
 

 

 

7 North Dixie Highway 

Lake Worth Beach , FL 33460 

561.586.1600 

  
AGENDA 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 
REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 20, 2022 - 6:00 PM 

ROLL CALL: 

INVOCATION OR MOMENT OF SILENCE: led by Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: led by Commissioner Kimberly Stokes 

AGENDA - Additions / Deletions / Reordering: 

PRESENTATIONS: (there is no public comment on Presentation items) 

A. Presentation by Lourdes M. Figueroa, Victim Advocate Violent Crimes Division, PBSO 

B. Presentation from Suzanne Cabrera, President and CEO, of the Housing Leadership 
Council of Palm Beach County, on the status of affordable and workforce housing 
initiatives and study for Palm Beach County 

COMMISSION LIAISON REPORTS AND COMMENTS: 

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT: 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT AGENDA: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

A. Pre-agenda Work Session - August 24, 2022 

B. Special Meeting - August 25, 2022 

C. Budget Work Session #5 - August 29, 2022 

D. Regular Meeting - September 6, 2022 

CONSENT AGENDA: (public comment allowed during Public Participation of Non-
Agendaed items) 

A. Proclamation declaring September 17-23, 2022 as Constitution Week 

B. Proclamation declaring September 21, 2022 as Alzheimer's Awareness Day  

C. Third Amendment to Retail Lease with Pura Vida Treats, Inc., the current 
tenant/assignee  

D. Fourth Amendment to Retail Lease with RVRA, LLC, the current tenant 

E. Facility Construction Agreement with Florida Power & Light for New Interconnection 
Project 



PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

A. Ordinance No. 2022-16 – Second Reading - Establishing a Business Advisory Board  

B. Ordinance No. 2022-18 – Second Reading - Repeal of sections 15-91 “Definitions,” 
15-91 “Prohibited acts regarding panhandling,” and 19-14 “Right-of-way solicitors and 
canvassers” 

C. Ordinance No. 2022-15 – First Reading - approval of a Mixed Use Urban Planned 
Development, Major Site Plan, Conditional Use Permit (CUP), and Sustainable Bonus 
Incentive Program (SBIP) requests for the project commonly referred to as “Lake 
Worth Station” located at 930 N G Street to construct a 5-story, 81 dwelling unit mixed 
use development with 39 multi-family units proposed to qualify as workforce housing 
and office space. The sustainable bonus request is for additional density and height. 
The property is zoned Transit Oriented Development – East (TOD-E) 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

A. Ordinance No. 19-2022 – First Reading - Adopting amendments to Chapter 7 
“Beaches, Parks and Recreation” to prohibit smoking and vaping in City parks and on 
the City’s beach 

B. Update by City Attorney followed by discussion regarding the housing crisis 

C. Ordinance 2022-12 - First Reading - Consideration of an ordinance amending Chapter 
23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 1 “General Provisions,” Division 2 
“Definitions,” and Article 2 “Administration”, Division 3 “Permits” adding a new Section 
23.2-39 “Affordable/Workforce Housing Program,” providing for a Lake Worth Beach 
Affordable/Workforce Housing Program and scheduling a second reading and public 
hearing on October 6, 2022 

D. Ordinance 2022-13 – First Reading - Consideration of an ordinance amending 
Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 1 “General Provisions,” Division 
2 “Definitions,” Section 23.1-12 “Definitions,” and Article 4 “Development Standards”, 
adding a new Section 23.4-25 “Micro-Units,” providing for Micro-Unit Housing 

E. Ordinance 2022-14 – First Reading – Consideration of an ordinance amending 
Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 1 “General Provisions,” Division 
2 “Definitions,” Section 23.1-12 “Definitions”, and Article 2 “Administration”, Division 3 
“Permits,” Section 23.2-31 “Site Design Qualitative Standards,” providing standards 
for buildings 

NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Property and Insurance Services renewals with Brown & Brown Inc. and City 
insurance coverage for FY 2022-2023 

B. Purchase Orders to Ace Pole Co. and Koppers Utility & Industrial Products for delivery 
of wood utility poles 

C. Second Amendment to Agreement with Gresco Utility Supply, Inc. for the purchase 
and delivery of distribution transformers 

D. Purchase Order with G&W Electric for Viper Recloser External CT Kit 



E. Agreement with Energy Erectors, Inc. for the construction of the Canal Distribution 
Substation 

CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT: 

UPCOMING MEETINGS AND WORK SESSIONS: 

September 21 - public meeting (redistricting) @ 6 PM 
September 22 - 2nd Budget Hearing @ 5:01 PM 
September 28 - Pre-agenda Work Session @ 9 AM 
October 6 - Regular Meeting @ 6 PM 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 
The City Commission has adopted Rules of Decorum for Citizen Participation (See Resolution No. 25-
2021). The Rules of Decorum are posted within the City Hall Chambers, City Hall Conference Room, posted 
online at:  https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/government/virtual-meetings/, and available through the City Clerk’s 
office. Compliance with the Rules of Decorum is expected and appreciated. 

 
If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the board, agency or commission with respect to any 
matter considered at such meeting or hearing, he or she will need a record of the proceedings, and that, 
for such purpose, he or she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which 
record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.  (F.S. 286.0105) 



 

MINUTES 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

CITY COMMISSION PRE-AGENDA WORK SESSION 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 

WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 24, 2022 - 9:00 AM 

 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Resch on the above date at 9:04 AM in the City 

Commission Chamber located at City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, 

Florida. 

 

ROLL CALL: Present were Mayor Betty Resch; Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy, 

Commissioners Sarah Malega (left the meeting at 9:47 AM), Kimberly Stokes (left the meeting 

at 9:30 AM) and Reinaldo Diaz (arrived at 9:07 AM). Also present were City Manager Carmen 

Davis, City Attorney Glen Torcivia, and City Clerk Melissa Ann Coyne. 

UPDATES / FUTURE ACTION / DIRECTION:  

 

Action: Consensus.for the City Attorney to present possibilities concerning the governance of the CRA 

at the September 20 meeting. (36:50) 

 

Action: Consensus.to allow utility items on the September 20 regular meeting as there would not be a 

utility meeting on September 27. (46:30) 

 

ADJOURNMENT: (1:02:13)  

 

The meeting adjourned at 10:06 AM. 

 

____________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 

 

Minutes Approved: September 20, 2022 

 

 

Item time stamps refer to the recording of the meeting which is available on YouTube. 



 

 

MINUTES 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

SPECIAL CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

CASINO BALLROOM 

THURSDAY, AUGUST 25, 2022 – 6:00 PM 

 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Resch on the above date at 6:05 PM in the Casino 

Ballroom located at 10 S. Ocean Blvd., Lake Worth Beach, Florida. 

 

ROLL CALL: (6:52) Present were Mayor Betty Resch; Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy and 

Commissioners Sarah Malega, Kimberly Stokes and Reinaldo Diaz.  Also present were City 

Manager Carmen Davis, City Attorney Glen Torcivia and City Clerk Melissa Ann Coyne. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: (7:33) led by Commissioner Sarah Malega. 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: (7:58) 

 

A. Historic Resources Preservation Board (HRPB) interviews and appointments 

 

1. Jamie Foreman (8:46) 

 

2.  Mariana Gonzalez (20:24) 

 

3.  Neil Rosen (25:45) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to appoint 

Mariana Gonzalez and Jamie Foreman to the HRPB. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, and Commissioners Malega, Stokes and Diaz.  

NAYS:  Vice Mayor McVoy. 

 

NEW BUSINESS: (38:08) 

 

A. Gulfstream Hotel Project Agreements 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Vice Mayor McVoy to approve the 

first agreement for economic incentives. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz.  NAYS:  None. 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to approve the 

second agreement for beach concession access. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES:  Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz.  NAYS:  None. 

 

  



Pg. 2, Special Meeting, August 25, 2022 

 

ADJOURNMENT: (1:46:01) 

 

Action:  Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to adjourn the 

meeting at 7:46 PM. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed:  AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Stokes 

and Diaz.  NAYS:  None. 

 

 

____________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 
 

________________________________ 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 
 

Minutes approved September 20, 2022. 
  

Item time stamps refer to the recording of the meeting which is available on YouTube. 



 

MINUTES 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

CITY COMMISSION BUDGET WORK SESSION #5 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 

MONDAY, AUGUST 29, 2022 - 5:00 PM 

 

 

The meeting was called to order by Vice Mayor McVoy on the above date at 5:09 PM in the 

City Commission Chamber located at City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, 

Florida. 

 

ROLL CALL: (0:44) Present were Mayor Betty Resch (arrived at 5:20 PM), Vice Mayor 

Christopher McVoy, and Commissioners Sarah Malega (via Zoom), Kimberly Stokes and 

Reinaldo Diaz. Also present were City Manager Carmen Davis and City Clerk Melissa Ann 

Coyne. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: (1:07) led by Commissioner Kimberly Stokes. 

 

UPDATES / FUTURE ACTION / DIRECTION: (01:27) 

 

A. Decisions on Priorities and Funding Options – Supplementals & CIP 

 

Action: Consensus to look at alternative funding sources for the Mobility Plan. (10:19) 

 

Action: Consensus to move the Skate Park and Spillway Park supplemental requests to the CIP budget; 

looking for grant funding. (18:23) 

 

Action: Consensus to delete the following from the supplemental requests: (30:16) 

 

 Remove supplement request for $45,000 for cemetery projects 

 Project Manager in Finance could be lowered to $15,000 

 Delete $4,000 from the City Clerk ask for ballot printing 

 Remove $15,000 for the chipper from Public Works 

 Delete $1,500 from the library kitchenette 

 

Action: Consensus to approve the Building Fund supplement requests. (1:25:16) 

 

Action: Consensus to approve the Beach Fund supplement requests. (1:25:28) 

 

Action: Consensus to approve the Electric Fund supplemental requests with an increase of $50,000 for 

the higher tier for the SELF program from ARPA funds, if allowable. (1:46:22) 

 

The meeting recessed at 7:27 PM and reconvened to 7:37 PM. 

 

Action: Consensus to approve the fees and charges presented for FY 2023. (2:28:11) 

 



Pg. 2, Budget Work Session #5, August 29, 2022 

 

Action: Consensus to explore funding options for the lighting request for the NW ball field. (3:45:13) 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT: (3:48:10) 

 

The meeting adjourned at 8:57 PM. 

 

____________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 

 

Minutes Approved: September 20, 2022 

 

Item time stamps refer to the recording of the meeting which is available on YouTube. 



 

 

MINUTES 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 6, 2022 – 6:00 PM 

 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Resch on the above date at 6:02 PM in the City 

Commission Chamber located at City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, 

Florida. 

 

ROLL CALL: (0:11) Present were Mayor Betty Resch, Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy, 

Commissioners Sarah Malega, Kimberly Stokes and Reinaldo Diaz. Also present were City 

Manager Carmen Davis, City Attorney Glen Torcivia and City Clerk Melissa Ann Coyne. 

 

INVOCATION OR MOMENT OF SILENCE: (0:35) led by Mayor Betty Resch. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: (1:12) led by Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz. 

 

ADDITIONS/DELETIONS/REORDERING (1:35) 

New Business item D, Ordinance No. 2022-15 – approval of a Mixed Use Urban Planned 

Development, Major Site Plan for the project commonly referred to as “Lake Worth Station” 

was continued to the September 20, 2022 meeting.  New Business item A, Twelfth Addendum 

to the Law Enforcement Service Agreement (LESA) and New Business item F, Ordinance No. 

2022-18 – First Reading - Repeal of sections 15-91 “Definitions,” 15-91 “Prohibited acts 

regarding panhandling,” and 19-14 “Right-of-way solicitors and canvassers” were reordered 

to follow the Consent Agenda. 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Stokes and seconded by Commissioner Diaz to approve the 

agenda as amended. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz. NAYS: None. 

 

PRESENTATIONS: (17:32) (there is no public comment on Presentation items) 

 

A. Presentation by The Corradino Group regarding the FDOT Intersection Project Update on 

US1 at Lake and Lucerne Avenues (18:05) 

B. PBC Transportation Planning Agency (TPA) presentation regarding Vision Zero and 

Complete Streets (33:56) 

C. Presentation by Kimley-Horn regarding Dixie Highway Lane Repurposing (48:38) 

D. Presentation by Lauren Bennett, Leisure Services Director, of awards received at the 

Florida Festival and Events Association Conference (1:06:06) 

 

COMMISSION LIAISON REPORTS AND COMMENTS:  
 

There were no liaison reports. 

 

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT: 
 



Pg. 2, Regular Meeting, September 6, 2022 

 

City Manager Davis did not provide a report. 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT 

AGENDA: (1:11:17) 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: (01:22:52) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to approve the 

following minutes: 

 

A. Budget Work Session #3 - August 11, 2022 

B. Budget Work Session #4 - August 15, 2022 

C. Regular Meeting - August 16, 2022 

D. Work Session - August 23, 2022 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz. NAYS: None. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA: (1:23:13) (public comment allowed during Public Participation of 

Non-Agendaed items) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Stokes and seconded by Commissioner Diaz to approve the 

Consent Agenda: 

 

A. Seventh Amendment to Professional Services Agreement with Ben Few & Company, Inc. 

B. Resolution No. 61-2022 – establishing the City’s desire to be designated as a Vision Zero 

Community 

C. Resolution No. 64-2022 – submission of an application to the Florida Department of State, 

Division of Cultural Affairs, General Program Support grant program for funding 

assistance with the 2023 Street Painting Festival  

D. Resolution No. 65-2022 – Fiscal Year 2023 State Aid to Libraries Grant Application 

E. Resolution No. 66-2022 – Florida Humanities English for Families Program Grant 

Application 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Malega, 

Stokes and Diaz. NAYS: None. 

(reordered from later in the agenda) NEW BUSINESS: (1:23:32) 

The meeting recessed at 7:28 PM and reconvened at 7:42 PM. 

 

F.  Ordinance No. 2022-18 – First Reading - Repeal of sections 15-91 “Definitions,” 15-91 

“Prohibited acts regarding panhandling,” and 19-14 “Right-of-way solicitors and 

canvassers” (1:40:20) 

 

City Attorney Torcivia read the ordinance by title only. 

ORDINANCE 2022-18 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 

FLORIDA, REPEALING SECTIONS 15-90 “DEFINITIONS,” 15-91 “PROHIBITED 

ACTS REGARDING PANHANDLING,” AND 19-14 “RIGHT-OF-WAY SOLICITORS 

AND CANVASSERS” OF THE CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES WHICH MAKE 



Pg. 3, Regular Meeting, September 6, 2022 

 

CERTAIN INSTANCES OF PANHANDLING OR SOLICITING IN PUBLIC AREAS 

UNLAWFUL; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, CODIFICATION, 

AN EFFECTIVE DATE, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to extend the 

meeting until 11 PM. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch and Commissioners Malega, Stokes and Diaz. 

NAYS: None. ABSENT: Vice Mayor McVoy. 

 

Action: Motion made by Vice Mayor McVoy and seconded by Commissioner Diaz to approve 

Ordinance No. 2022-18 on first reading and set the second reading and public hearing for 

September 20, 2022. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Stokes 

and Diaz. NAYS: Commissioner Malega. 

 

Mayor Resch passed the gavel to Vice Mayor McVoy and left the meeting at 10:22 PM. 

 

The meeting recessed at 10:23 PM and reconvened at 10:37 PM. 

 

A. (reordered to follow New Business F) Twelfth Addendum to the Law Enforcement Service 

Agreement (LESA) (4:35:40) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to approve the 

Twelfth Addendum to the Law Enforcement Service Agreement (LESA). 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Malega, Stokes and 

Diaz. NAYS: None.  ABSENT: Mayor Resch. 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to extend the 

meeting until midnight. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Vice Mayor McVoy and Commissioners Malega, Stokes and Diaz. 

NAYS: None. ABSENT: Mayor Resch. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: (4:52:07) 

 

A. Resolution No. 55-2022 - Adopting the final assessment roll for non-ad valorem 

assessments levied for Chronic Nuisance Services and directing that such final assessment 

roll be certified to the Palm Beach County Tax Collector 

 

City Attorney Torcivia did not read the resolution. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 55-2022 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, 

RELATED TO THOSE NON-AD VALOREM ASSESSMENTS WHICH MAY BE 

LEVIED FOR THE COST OF PROVIDING LOT CLEARING, BOARDING AND 

SECURING, AND DEMOLITION SERVICES TO ELIMINATE NUISANCE 

CONDITIONS ON PRIVATE REAL PROPERTY WITHIN THE INCORPORATED 

AREA OF THE CITY; APPROVING THE ASSESSMENT ROLL FOR FISCAL YEAR 



Pg. 4, Regular Meeting, September 6, 2022 

 

2022 AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS, 

SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Diaz to approve 

Resolution No. 55-2022 - Adopting the final assessment roll for non-ad valorem assessments 

levied for Chronic Nuisance Services and directing that such final assessment roll be certified 

to the Palm Beach County Tax Collector. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Malega, Stokes and 

Diaz. NAYS: None.  ABSENT: Mayor Resch. 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: (4:53:48) 

 

A. Resolution No. 63-2022 – approval to submit an application to the Florida Department of 

Transportation (FDOT) for lane repurposing on US-1/Dixie Highway 

 

City Attorney Torcivia did not read the resolution. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 63-2022 -- A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH 

BEACH, FLORIDA SUPPORTING THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE US-

1/FEDERAL HIGHWAY MULTIMODAL CORRIDOR STUDY COMPLETED AND 

ADOPTED BY THE PALM BEACH COUNTY TRANSPORTION PLANNING 

AGENCY AND THE US-1 LAKE WORTH BEACH COMPLETE STREETS STUDY 

SUPPORTED BY THE LAKE WORTH BEACH COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT 

AGENCY AND PALM BEACH COUNTY TRANSPORTATION PLANNING 

AGENCY, INCLUDING THE REDUCTION OF THE NUMBER OF LANES, AND 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY TO SUBMIT AN APPLICATION TO THE FLORIDA 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR THE LANE REPURPOSING ON US-

1/DIXIE HIGHWAY BETWEEN SR-5/FEDERAL HIGHWAY AND THE C-51 

CANAL; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR REPEALER; 

PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Diaz to approve 

Resolution No. 63-2022 – submitting an application to the Florida Department of 

Transportation (FDOT) for lane repurposing on US-1/Dixie Highway. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Malega, Stokes and 

Diaz. NAYS: None.  ABSENT: Mayor Resch. 

 

NEW BUSINESS: (5:16:37) 

 

A. (reordered to follow the Consent Agenda) Twelfth Addendum to the Law Enforcement 

Service Agreement (LESA) 

 

B. Resolution No. 62-2022 – establishing the City’s Complete Streets Policy (5:16:39) 

 

City Attorney Torcivia did not read the resolution. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 62-2022 – A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH 

BEACH, FLORIDA TO ESTABLISH A COMPLETE STREETS POLICY TO 



Pg. 5, Regular Meeting, September 6, 2022 

 

INTEGRATE VEHICULAR TRAFFIC, BICYCLING, WALKING, AND PUBLIC 

TRANSIT WITH THE CITY’S PROJECTS, POLICY INITIATIVES, GOALS, AND 

OBJECTIVES FOR ROUTINELY INCORPORATING COMPLETE STREETS INTO 

PRACTICE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Diaz to approve 

Resolution No. 62-2022 – establishing the City’s Complete Streets Policy. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Malega, Stokes and Diaz. 

NAYS: None.  ABSENT: Mayor Resch. 

 

C. Agreement with Spatco Energy Solutions LLC for the Fleet Fuel System and Dispensers 

Replacement Project (5:30:37) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Diaz to approve the 

Agreement with Spatco Energy Solutions LLC for the Fleet Fuel System and Dispensers 

Replacement Project. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Malega, Stokes and 

Diaz. NAYS: None.  ABSENT: Mayor Resch. 

 

D. (continued to September 20 meeting) Ordinance No. 2022-15 – First Reading - approval 

of a Mixed Use Urban Planned Development, Major Site Plan, Conditional Use Permit 

(CUP), and Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program (SBIP) requests for the project 

commonly referred to as “Lake Worth Station” located at 930 N G Street to construct a 5-

story, 81 dwelling unit mixed use development with 39 multi-family units proposed to 

qualify as workforce housing and office space. The sustainable bonus request is for 

additional density and height. The property is zoned Transit Oriented Development – East 

(TOD-E)  

 

E. Ordinance No. 2022-16 – First Reading - Establishing a Business Advisory Board 

(5:31:39) 

 

City Attorney Torcivia read the ordinance by title only. 

 

ORDINANCE 2022-16 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 

FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 2 “ADMINISTRATION,” ADDING A NEW 

ARTICLE 16III “BUSINESS ADVISORY BOARD,” PROVIDING FOR A NEW 

BUSINESS ADVISORY BOARD, TERMS, COMPOSITION AND DUTIES; AND 

PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, CODIFICATION AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Diaz to approve 

Ordinance No. 2022-16 on first reading and set the second reading and public hearing for 

September 20, 2022, expanding the board composition to seven members with a quorum of 

four members, adding the category of industrial businesses and lawyer; and clarifying that 

meetings would be every other month. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Malega, Stokes and 

Diaz. NAYS: None.  ABSENT: Mayor Resch. 



Pg. 6, Regular Meeting, September 6, 2022 

 

F. (reordered to follow the Consent Agenda) Ordinance No. 2022-18 – First Reading - Repeal 

of sections 15-91 “Definitions,” 15-91 “Prohibited acts regarding panhandling,” and 19-14 

“Right-of-way solicitors and canvassers” 

 

G. Ordinance No. 2022-19 – First Reading - Adopting amendments to Chapter 7 “Beaches, 

Parks and Recreation” to prohibit smoking and vaping in City parks and on the City’s beach 

(5:51:07) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Diaz to move 

Ordinance No. 2022-19 to the September 20 meeting as New Business A. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Malega, Stokes and 

Diaz. NAYS: None.  ABSENT: Mayor Resch. 

   

CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT:  
 

A. (continued to the September 20 meeting) Housing Crisis Update 

 

UPCOMING MEETINGS AND WORK SESSIONS: 

 

September 8 - Special, 1st Budget Hearing @ 5:01 pm 

September 12 - Work Session - redistricting @ 5 pm 

September 14 - Pre-Agenda Work Session @ 9 am 

September 20 - Regular @ 6 pm 

 

ADJOURNMENT: (5:52:35) 

 

Action:  Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to adjourn the 

meeting at 11:55 PM. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Malega, Stokes and 

Diaz. NAYS: None.  ABSENT: Mayor Resch. 

 

 

____________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 

 

Minutes approved September 20, 2022.  

 

Item time stamps refer to the recording of the meeting which is available on YouTube.  



CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

 
PROCLAMATION 

 
WHEREAS,  September 17, 2022, marks the 235th anniversary of the drafting of the 

Constitution of the United States of America by the Constitutional 

Convention; and 

 

WHEREAS, Celebration of the Constitution was started by the Daughters of the 

American Revolution. In 1955, the DAR petitioned Congress to set aside 

September 17-23 annually to be dedicated to the observance of 

Constitution Week. The resolution was later adopted by the U.S. 

Congress and signed into public law on August 2, 1956, by President 

Dwight D. Eisenhower. heightening awareness and respect for our great 

American heritage; and 

 

WHEREAS,  All people within the boundaries of the United States of America, 

whether citizens or visitors, enjoy the protection of their individual rights 

to an extent unparalleled on the face of the earth since recorded history, 

but these rights also imply individual responsibility; and 

 

WHEREAS,  It is proper for all people to reflect on the blessings of liberty afforded 

them in the United States as guaranteed by the Constitution, and it is 

proper that official recognition be accorded to this expression of the 

foundation of our freedoms that set America apart from every other 

nation; and  

 

WHEREAS,  The City of Lake Worth Beach honors the blessings of Liberty and the 

foundation of Freedoms guaranteed by the United States Constitution 

that so define our City's proud history and guide our promising future. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, BETTY RESCH, by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor 

of the City of Lake Worth Beach and on behalf of the City Commission, do hereby proclaim: 

 
SEPTEMBER 17-23, 2022 

as 

CONSTITUTION WEEK 

 
and ask all residents to reaffirm the ideals that the Framers of the Constitution had in 1787 by 

vigilantly protecting the freedoms guaranteed to us through this guardian of our liberties, 

remembering that lost rights may never be regained. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand and caused the seal of the City of Lake 

Worth Beach,  Florida, to be affixed hereto this 20th day of September, 2022. 

 
____________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 
_______________________________ 
Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 



 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

 
PROCLAMATION 

 
WHEREAS, Alzheimer’s disease, a progressive neurodegenerative brain 

disorder, tragically robs individuals of their memories and leads to 

progressive mental and physical impairments; and  

   

WHEREAS, Over 5.8 million Americans are living with Alzheimer’s disease, 

including an estimated 200,000 under age 65 living with younger-onset 

Alzheimer’s disease; included in this number are an estimated 750,000 

individuals in the State of Florida of which an estimated 80,000 reside in 

Palm Beach County; and  
 

WHEREAS,  Every 67 seconds, someone in the United States develops Alzheimer’s 

   disease, the sixth leading cause of death in America; and 

 

WHEREAS,  Alzheimer’s disease is the only cause of death among the top ten causes 

   of death in America that cannot be prevented, cured or even slowed; and 
 

WHEREAS,  The human cost of Alzheimer’s disease is immeasurable and in                       

   recognition of the individuals, families, friends and caregivers dealing 

   with Alzheimer’s disease, the researchers who are seeking a cause or 

   cure; and 
 

WHEREAS,  The State of Florida and the City of Lake Worth Beach recognize the 

   efforts of the Alzheimer’s Association to raise funds and promote      

   awareness to fight Alzheimer’s disease and related disorders, thereby 

   improving the quality of human life for those living with Alzheimer’s 

   disease and their caregivers. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, BETTY RESCH, by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor 

of the City of Lake Worth Beach and on behalf of the City Commission, do hereby proclaim: 

 

SEPTEMBER 21, 2022 

as 

ALZHEIMER’S AWARENESS DAY 

 

And I encourage all residents to raise awareness in our community for this devastating disease.  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand and caused the seal of the City of Lake 

Worth Beach,  Florida, to be affixed hereto this 20th day of September, 2022. 

 

 
____________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 
_______________________________ 
Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
AGENDA DATE: September 20, 2022  DEPARTMENT: City Attorney 

 

TITLE: 

Third Amendment to Retail Lease with Pura Vida Treats, Inc., the current tenant/assignee  

 
SUMMARY: 

The Third Amendment to the Retail Lease with Pura Vida Treats, Inc. seeks authorization from 
the City Commission to extend the Lease for up to 60 days or until another amendment to the 
Lease is brought before the Commission to extend the Lease for the five (5) year renewal and 
to amend the Base Rents for such renewal period (based upon the market rate assessment), 
whichever occurs first. 

 

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

On February 2, 2012, the City and Maxplan Enterprises, Inc. (d/b/a Kilwin’s Chocolates and Ice 
Cream) (“Maxplan”) entered a retail lease for Units #3 and #4 at the Lake Worth Beach 
Municipal Casino Building (“Lease”). The Lease provided an initial term of ten (10) years with 
two (2) five (5) year options for renewal. On August 13, 2020, the City and Maxplan amended 
the Lease to address conditions related to the COVID-19 pandemic. On March 2, 2021, the 
City approved an amendment to the Lease wherein Maxplan assigned the Lease to Pura Vida 
Treats, Inc. (“Pura Vida”), which took over the Premises and continues to operate the location 
as Kilwin’s Chocolates & Ice Cream Lake Worth Beach.  
 
The initial ten (10) year term of the Lease is set to expire on October 1, 2022 and Pura Vida 
wishes to renew the Lease for an additional five (5) years.  The City is currently conducting a 
market rate assessment on the rent under the Lease; however, such assessment is not yet 
complete.  Therefore, the amendment provides that the Lease will be extended for up to 60 
days or until an amendment is presented to the City Commission to extend the Lease for the 
full five (5) year renewal period and to amend the Base Rents (based upon the market rate 
assessment), whichever occurs first.  In order to document the proposed extension, the City 
Attorney has prepared the attached Third Amendment to the Lease.  
 

MOTION: 

Move to approve / disapprove the Third Amendment to Retail Lease with Pura Vida Treats, Inc. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Third Amendment to Retail Lease 
 

 









EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
AGENDA DATE: September 20, 2022  DEPARTMENT: City Attorney 

 

TITLE: 

Fourth Amendment to Retail Lease with RVRA, LLC, the current tenant 

 
SUMMARY: 

The Fourth Amendment to the Retail Lease with RVRA, LLC, seeks authorization from the City 
Commission to extend the Lease for up to 60 days or until another amendment to the Lease is 
brought before the Commission to extend the Lease for the five (5) year renewal and to amend 
the base rents for such renewal period (based upon the market rate assessment), whichever 
occurs first. 

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

On February 23, 2012, the Landlord and Mamma Mia’s on the Beach, Inc. (prior 
“Tenant/Assignor”) entered into a Retail Lease agreement for the lease of unit nos. 1 and 2 on 
the first floor of the Lake Worth Municipal Casino Building for use by the tenant as an Italian 
restaurant for on and off premises consumption (the “Lease”).  On May 2, 2017, the Landlord 
and the Tenant/Assignor entered into the First Amendment to the Lease authorizing Vincenzo 
Lograsso to deliver ownership of the Tenant/Assignor’s corporation to Francesco Lograsso.  
On May 7, 2019, the Landlord, the Tenant/Assignor and RVRA, LLC entered into the Second 
Amendment to the Retail Lease wherein the Landlord agreed to the assignment of the Lease 
from the Tenant/Assignor to RVRA, LLC, the current Tenant.  On December 1, 2020, the 
Landlord and the Tenant entered into the Third Amendment to the Retail Lease wherein the 
Parties addressed changes to the terms and conditions of the Lease due to COVID-19. 
 
The Lease is set to expire on October 1, 2022 and the parties wish to extend the Lease for the 
five (5) year renewal; however, the City is conducting a market rate assessment on the base 
rent for the renewal period and it is not yet complete. Therefore, the amendment provides that 
the Lease be extended for up to 60 days or until an amendment is presented to the City 
Commission to extend the Lease for the full five (5) year renewal period and to amend the base 
rents (based upon the market rate assessment), whichever occurs first.  In order to document 
the proposed extension, the City Attorney has prepared the attached Fourth Amendment to the 
Lease.  
 

MOTION: 

Move to approve / disapprove the Fourth Amendment to Retail Lease with RVRA, LLC. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fourth Amendment 



• 

FOURTH AME DME T TO RETAIL LEASE 

Till FOURTH ME 1DME T TO THE RETAIL LEASE (the "Amendment") is 
made between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a Florida municipal corporation ("Landlord"), and 
RVRA, LLC, a Florida limited liability company (the "Tenant") (collectively, the "Parties"). 

RECITALS 

WHERE , on February 23, 2012, the Landlord and Mamma Mia's on the Beach, Toe. 
(prior 'Tenant/Assignor") entered into a Retail Lease agreement for the lease of unit nos. I and 2 
on the first floor of the Lake Worth Municipal Casino Building for use by the Tenant as an Italian 
restaurant for on and offpremi cs consumption (the "Lease"); and, 

WHEREA , on May 2, 2017, the Landlord and the Tenant/ Assignor entered into the First 
Amendment to the Retail Lease authorizing Vincenzo Lograsso to deliver ownership of the 
Tenant/Assignor's corporation to Francesco Lograsso; and 

WHEREAS, on May 7, 2019, the Landlord, the Tenant/ Assignor and RVRA, LLC entered 
into the Second Amendment to the Retail Lease wherein the Landlord agreed to the assignment of 
the Lease from the Tenant/Assignor to RVRA, LLC, the current Tenant; and 

WHEREAS, on December I, 2020, the Landlord and the Tenant entered into the Third 
Amendment to the Retail Lease wherein the Parties addressed changes to the terms and conditions 
of the Lease due to COVID-19; and, 

WHEREAS, when the Lease is referenced hereinafter, it shall be defined to also include 
the First Amendment, Second Amendment and Third Amendment. 

WHEREAS, the Lease is set to expire on October I, 2022 and the Parties wish to extend 
the Lease for the five (5) year renewal; however, the City is conducting a market rate assessment 
on the Base Rent for the renewal period and it is not yet complete; and 

WHEREAS, the City will agree to extend the Lease for up to sixty (60) days or until 
another amendment to the Lease is brought before the Commission (whichever occurs first) to 
extend the Lease for the five (5) year renewal and to amend the updated Base Rents for such 
renewal period (based upon the market rate assessment); and 

WHEREAS, the Parties agree that the prior approved assignment of the Lease should not 

prohibit the extension of the Lease; and 

WHEREAS, the Landlord finds amending the Lease as set forth herein serves a valid 
public purpose. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants contained 
in the Lease and this Amendment and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of 
which the Parties expressly acknowledge, the Parties agree as follows: 

I. Recitals. The recitals set forth above are incorporated herein by this reference.

1 



2. City Commission Con ideration. This Amendment will be considered by the Landlord's
City Commission at a public meeting on September 20, 2022.

3. Rent Commencement Date. The parties hereby agree that the Rent Commencement Date
is October I, 2012 and, therefore, in accordance with the Lease, the initial tenn will expire,
unless extended, on October I, 2022.

4. Extension. The Lease is hereby extended for up to sixty (60) days or until an amendment
is brought before the Commission to extend the Lease for the five (5) year renewal and to
amend the Base Rent for the renewal period, whichever occurs first.

5. Special Requirement . Paragraph 1.2 of Exhibit "II" to the Lease (Special Requirements)
provides, in part. that the prior assignment of the Lease removes the renewal options from
the Lease. The City hereby retroactively waives its right to eliminate the lease renewal
options which was triggered by the assignment of the Lease to the current Tenant/Assignee
on May 7, 2019.

6. Agreement Unchanged. Except as specifically amended herein, all other provisions of
the Lease shall remain in full force and effect.

7. Controlling Documents. To the extent that there exists a conflict between this
Amendment and the Lease, the terms and conditions of this Amendment shall prevail.
Whenever possible, the provisions of such documents shall be construed in such a manner
as to avoid conflicts between the provisions of the various documents.

8. Entire Agreement The Parties agree that tbe Lease and this Amendment represent the
entire agreement between the Parties and supersede all other negotiations, representations,
or agreements, either written or verbal.

9. Counterparts. Each Party may sign one copy of this Amendment and together, whether
by signed original or by digitally signed, facsimiled, or e-mailed copy, the signed copies
shall constitute one, fully executed Amendment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Amendment to the Retail Lease
to be executed by their duly authorized representatives. 

LANDLORD: CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORID 

Witness: 

By: __________ _ By: 
---------------

Print Name: _________ _ Betty Resch, Mayor 

ATTEST: Date: ________ _ 

Melissa A. Coyne, CMC, City Clerk 

2 



ST A TE OF FLORIDA) 
COUNTY OF PALM BEACH) 

THE FOREGOTNG instrument was acknowledged before me by means of • physical 
presence or • online notarization on this __ day of ________ 2022, by !!£lly 
Resch. as the Mayor of the City of Lake Worth Beach (Landlord), who is personally known to 
me. 

otary eat: 

APPROVED AS TO FOR.t'v1. A D 
LEGAL SUFFICIE CY: 

By: 
-------------

Glen J. Torcivia, City Attorney 

TE IA T: 

STATE OF FLORIDA)
JCOUNTY OF �OWQ (I 

Notary Public Signature 

APPROVED FOR FTNANCTAL 
UFFI IENCY: 

By: ___________ _
Bruce T. Miller, Financial Services Director 

RVRA,LLC 

By: 

[Corporate Seal, if required] 

THE FOREGOING instrument was acknowledged before me b means of • physical 
p

c
ese

l
e O! • online 

::k;
tarizatjon on this j9_ day f rn� 2022, by 

-,0.. er I QQ.-, Vu l �?i 1Q , as the ....,,._.:..,,a...=,,__ ______ of
RVRA. LLC, a Florida limite �ability company, who is personally known to me or who has 
produced 1\c WRf I AC Of) <x'.:':=: as identification, and who did take an oath that he i 
duly authorized to execute the foregoing instrur cnt and bind the TE A T to the same. 

Notary Seal: 
,,.,,,,, DIANE M. PERSTE

, 
N

d 
��

�
�,..,;;,� Notary Public-State of F on a 

;: �= Commission•. HH 18?103 

�� !fI My Commission Expires 
�,J,J,:;.t�,\ ..... � February 08, 2026 

3 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

AGENDA DATE:   September 20, 2022 DEPARTMENT:  Electric Utility 

 

TITLE: 

Facility Construction Agreement with Florida Power & Light for New Interconnection Project 

 
SUMMARY: 

Agreement with Florida Power & Light Company (“FPL”) to establish a new interconnection 
between FPL’s transmission system and the Lake Worth Beach Electric Utility transmission 
system at the Canal Substation Station 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

City’s electric utility is connected the statewide electric high voltage transmission system via a 
single radial extension to the FPL transmission system which was first placed in service circa 1972 
and later upgraded circa 1982.  The existing radial transmission interconnection serves as the 
City’s electric utility’s sole pathway for accessing competitively priced wholesale electric energy 
and capacity from power plants located statewide in which it has ownership and other contractual 
interests, and provides reliability of electric supply as the City’s electric supply needs are in excess 
of City’s power plant capabilities to adequately of reliably provide. 

Under the proposed Facility Construction Agreement for New Interconnection Project 
(“Construction Agreement”) the City and FPL will memorialize their respective construction 
responsibilities with respect to a second interconnection to be located at City’s Canal Substation.   
The additional interconnection will provide a second pathway to the FPL transmission system and 
greatly enhance City’s ability to operate its electric utility reliably during storm events, as well as 
allowing for routine maintenance activities to be conducted without placing customers at risk of 
prolonged outages. 

Under the terms of the Construction Agreement, FPL will bear its own costs to construct facilities 
to provide electric transmission service to the Canal Substation. Likewise, City will bear its own 
costs to construct facilities to receive electric transmission service at the Canal Substation.  City 
and FPL have previously executed precursor agreements/contracts contemplating such a project.  
Among them are: 

 Contract for Interconnection Operations (“CIO”) dated December 3, 2013 

 Letter of Intent (“LOI”) dated October 1, 2020 

 Scheduling Document for FPL Intertie at Canal Substation (“Scheduling Document”) dated 
January 28, 2021 

City and FPL have been working collaboratively under the afore mentioned agreements to meet 
an in-service date for the new interconnection of December 2023.   

 

 



 

MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove the Facility Construction Agreement with Florida Power & Light for 
New Interconnection Project. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis – N/A 
Facility Construction Agreement 
 



1 

 

Facility Construction Agreement for New Interconnection Project 

  

This Facility Construction Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into as of the ___ day of 

__________, 2022, between Florida Power & Light Company (“FPL”) and City of Lake Worth 

Beach, Florida (“LWB” or “LWU”) and, together with FPL referred herein as the “Parties” and 

sets forth the agreement between the Parties concerning the construction work to be performed 

by the Parties to establish a new interconnection between FPL’s transmission system, by FPL 

extending its integrated transmission system to a certain point of interconnection at LWB’s 

Canal Substation, and by LWB extending its transmission system to the same certain point of 

interconnection with FPL, and referred to herein as the “Project”.  

 

RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, FPL is an investor-owned electric utility that owns and operates electric 

generation, transmission and distribution facilities in portions of the State of Florida and 

Georgia; and 

 

WHEREAS, LWB is a Florida municipality operating its own electric utility with electric 

generation, transmission, and distribution facilities in portions of the State of Florida; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into a Letter of Intent (“LOI”) dated October 1, 2020 

expressing their mutual intent to complete the Project, including the use of reasonable best 

efforts to achieve the completion, execution, and delivery of certain agreements related to the 

Project (“Definitive Agreements”); and   

 

 WHEREAS, the Parties entered into a Scheduling Document for FPL Intertie at Canal 

Substation (“Scheduling Document”) dated January 28, 2021 confirming the understanding 

between FPL and LWB regarding the new proposed intertie. This Scheduling Document 

included an original proposed in-service date for the Intertie Facilities of December 1, 2022. This 

was subsequently amended to an in-service date of December 1, 2023, as set forth in Exhibit B, 

which may be amended by the parties as set forth herein; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Parties are also parties to a Contract for Interconnected Operations (“CIO”), 

dated December 3, 2013, which provides at Section 4.1.1 that, “[t]o the extent that the Parties 

agree to modify, add, or delete any Interconnection Facilities, the Parties will enter into a 

construction agreement setting forth the obligations to construct or remove facilities.” When 

used in this Construction Agreement, terms with initial capitalization that are not defined in this 

Agreement shall have the meanings specified in the CIO; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to memorialize their construction responsibilities with respect 

to the Project, as contemplated in the LOI, and as required by the CIO, in this Agreement.    

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of and subject to the mutual covenants contained 

herein, the sufficiency of which is acknowledged by both Parties, the Parties agree as follows: 



2 

 

1. The purpose of this Agreement is to establish terms and conditions for work on the 

Project, including each Party’s responsibility for constructing the new facilities 

comprising the Project and the intended schedule for completion of construction 

activities, as set forth in Exhibit B (including Appendix D to Exhibit B), as such exhibit 

and appendix shall be amended from time to time by mutual agreement of the Parties (the 

“Work”).  Subject to the other terms and conditions of this Agreement, FPL shall perform 

all of its obligations hereunder and provide for the completion of all of its portions of the 

Work on a mutually agreed schedule with LWB, and LWB shall perform all of its 

obligations hereunder and provide for the completion of all of its portions of the Work on 

a mutually agreed schedule with FPL, both as shown in Appendix D. 

 

2. The Parties acknowledge that Exhibit A of this Agreement, which identifies the new 

certain point of interconnection that will be established upon completion of the Project (where 

LWB’s transmission system interconnects with the integrated transmission system of FPL), will 

be filed by FPL as a new Appendix to the CIO with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 

(“FERC”) pursuant to Section 205 of the Federal Power Act.  As requested by FPL, LWB will 

intervene in the applicable FERC docket in support of the filing. If Exhibit A is not accepted or 

approved by FERC in substantially the same form as filed, the Parties agree to pursue mutually 

acceptable modifications to Exhibit A. 

 

3. LWB shall have the right to terminate this Agreement for convenience with five (5) days’ 

notice to FPL.  FPL has the right to terminate this Agreement upon breach by LWB that is not 

cured within ninety (90) days (or, if such cure cannot be completed within 90 days, that LWB 

has not presented a plan reasonably acceptable to FPL for its cure and begun its cure efforts 

under that plan within 90 days).  FPL may also terminate this Agreement if LWB communicates 

that the Project is no longer needed or desired by LWB.  LWB is responsible for all costs 

incurred by FPL under this Agreement prior to a termination by LWB for convenience or 

pursuant to the previous sentence.  FPL shall use reasonable efforts to mitigate any termination 

expenses and/or cancellation costs it incurs.   If not earlier terminated by either Party, this 

Agreement shall remain in effect until the Project has been completed and all of the Work and 

other obligations of the Parties has been performed in accordance with the terms of this 

Agreement.  Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, neither Party hereby waives its rights after 

the apparent completion of the Work to bring a claim against the other Party for defects, 

deficiencies, failures, inadequacies, or other issues with the Work, to the extent a Party is 

impacted thereby.    

   

4. The Parties shall share with one another or otherwise provide all information among 

themselves that is reasonably requested and necessary for each Party to perform its portions of 

the Work and to otherwise perform its obligations specified under this Agreement.  The Work 

shall be completed consistent with applicable safety and/or engineering codes, and comply with 

Good Utility Practice, and further, shall comply with applicable laws and regulations.  If either 

Party reasonably determines that a material change(s) to the Work is necessary, including 

through unforeseen conditions, the Parties shall discuss the impact of such material change(s) 

and, if deemed necessary by either Party, amend the schedule accordingly.  Either Party may in 

its sole discretion cease work while the Parties address the impact of a material change(s) to the 

Work. As used herein, “Good Utility Practice” shall mean any of the practices, methods and acts 



3 

 

engaged in or approved by a significant portion of the Florida electric industry during the 

relevant time period, or any of the practices, methods and acts which, in the exercise of 

reasonable judgment in light of the facts known at the time the decision was made, could have 

been expected to accomplish the desired result at a reasonable cost consistent with good business 

practices, reliability, safety and expedition. Good Utility Practice is not intended to be limited to 

the optimum practice, method, or act to the exclusion of all others, but rather to be acceptable 

practices, methods, or acts generally accepted in Florida for coastal regions. Good Utility 

Practice shall include, but not be limited to, compliance with applicable laws and regulations, 

applicable standards, the National Electric Safety Code, and the National Electrical Code, as they 

may be amended from time to time, including the criteria, rules and standards of any successor 

organizations. 

 

5. No: (i) action (e.g., technical review or evaluation, or review of records) or inaction (e.g., 

failure to assess any portion of any activities to be undertaken by either Party); or (ii) statement, 

representation, or failure to speak, express or implied, at any time during the term of this 

Agreement: (a) is an endorsement of any design, fitness, construction, operation, or maintenance 

to be undertaken by the other Party; (b) is a warranty, representation, assurance, or guarantee of 

safety, durability, suitability, or reliability or of any associated control, protective, or safety device 

owned or controlled by the other Party; (c) makes a Party responsible for the facilities of the other 

Party, including the cost of such facilities; (d) relieves a Party of its exclusive responsibility for 

operation and maintenance of its own facilities, unless otherwise expressly addressed in a written 

and signed agreement between the Parties; or (e) relieves a Party of exclusive liability for injury, 

death, or damage arising from its own action or inaction; provided, however, that nothing in this 

Agreement is intended, nor may it be construed, to constitute or effect a waiver of any rights to 

sovereign immunity protections that either party may have under Florida law, including common 

law sovereign immunity protections, rights, and the damages cap provided for in section 768.28, 

Florida Statutes. 

 

6. All notices, statements, requests or other communications required under this Agreement 

will be in writing and deemed delivered (i) if delivered in person or by courier, upon receipt by 

the intended recipient or upon date of delivery as confirmed by courier’s records (ii) if marked, 

upon the date of delivery as shown by the return receipt therefor; or (iii) if delivered by a 

nationally recognized mail delivery service, upon the date of delivery. Notices must be sent to 

the following addresses: 

 

If to FPL: 

 

Florida Power and Light Company 

4200 West Flagler Street 

Miami, FL 33134 

Attn: Senior Manager, Transmission Services 

 

If to LWB: 

 

 City of Lake Worth Beach 

 1900 2nd Avenue North 



4 

 

 Lake Worth Beach, Florida 33461 

 Attn: Edward A. Liberty; Electric Utility Director 

 

A Party may at any time designate different or additional persons or different addresses for 

giving of notices, demands or requests. 

 

7. No Party shall be considered in breach of this Agreement if its failure to discharge an 

obligation hereunder is due to a Force Majeure Event.  A “Force Majeure Event” shall mean any 

cause beyond the reasonable control of a Party, including an act of God; labor disturbance; 

pandemic or epidemic; act of the public enemy, war, insurrection, or riot; fire, storm, or flood; 

explosion or breakage or accident to machinery or equipment; or order, regulation, or restriction 

imposed by governmental, military, or lawfully-established civilian authority. A Force Majeure 

Event does not include an act of negligence or intentional wrongdoing.  A Party claiming Force 

Majeure (the “Impacted Party”) shall promptly notify the other Party, either in writing or via 

phone, of the existence of the Force Majeure Event. The notification must specify in reasonable 

detail the Force Majeure Event, its expected duration, and the steps the Impacted Party is taking 

to mitigate the effects. Until the event ends, the Impacted Party must keep the other Party 

informed on a continuing basis of developments relating to the Force Majeure Event. The 

Impacted Party may suspend or modify its Agreement performance (other than any payment 

obligation) only to the extent that the effect of the Force Majeure Event cannot be mitigated by 

the use of its reasonable efforts. 

 

8. In no event shall any Party be liable to any other Party under any provision of this 

Agreement for any special, indirect, incidental, or consequential losses, damages, costs or 

expenses, or punitive damages, including but not limited to loss of profit or revenue, loss of the 

use of equipment, cost of capital, cost of temporary equipment or services, whether based in 

whole or in part in contract, in tort, including negligence, strict liability, or any other theory of 

liability. 

 

9. EACH OF THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY KNOWINGLY, VOLUNTARILY AND 

INTENTIONALLY WAIVES THE RIGHT EITHER OF THEM MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL 

BY JURY IN RESPECT OF ANY LITIGATION BASED HEREON, OR ARISING OUT OF, 

UNDER OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT AND ANY AGREEMENT 

CONTEMPLATED TO BE EXECUTED IN CONJUNCTION HEREWITH, OR ANY 

COURSE OF CONDUCT, COURSE OF DEALING, STATEMENTS (WHETHER VERBAL 

OR WRITTEN) OR ACTIONS OF ANY PARTY HERETO. 

 

10. To the fullest extent allowed by applicable law, each Party (“Indemnifying Party”) shall 

indemnify, release, hold harmless, and, at the other Party’s request, defend such other Party from 

or against a claim caused by, arising out of, or related to a negligent act or negligent omission by 

the Indemnifying Party related to this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed 

as either Party’s agreement or consent to indemnify, release, hold harmless, or defend the other 

Party for its own negligent acts or negligent omissions. The Parties hereby agree that the nature 

of the Work, and its importance for the electric system reliability and resiliency in the City of 

Lake Worth Beach, Florida and the electric utility customers of the LWB electric utility is of a 

special, unique and unusual character and that breach of FPL’s obligations or duties under this 



5 

 

Agreement may not be reasonably or adequately compensated for in damages in an action at law. 

Accordingly, LWB shall be entitled to injunctive and equitable relief for such breach, including 

specific performance, in addition to any other rights or remedies LWB may have at law, in 

equity, or pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

11. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent a Party from utilizing the services of contractors 

or subcontractors, as it deems appropriate, to perform its obligations under this Agreement; 

provided, however, that each Party shall require its contractors and subcontractors to comply 

with all applicable terms and conditions of this Agreement in providing such services and each 

Party shall remain primarily liable to the other Party for the performance of all such contractors 

and subcontractors. Each Party’s contractors and subcontractors utilized in performance of the 

Work shall be required to maintain appropriate levels of insurance for the Work performed and 

include the Parties as additional insured on all general liability and auto liability policies. 

 

12. Each Party represents and warrants that it has full power and authority to enter into this 

Agreement. The person signing this Agreement on behalf of each Party has been properly 

authorized and empowered to enter into this Agreement. 

 

13. Florida law governs all matters, including torts, arising under, or relating to execution, 

interpretation, performance, or enforcement of, this Agreement, without regard to choice of law 

principles. The Parties will resolve any Claim or dispute in a state or federal court sitting in Palm 

Beach County, Florida. The Parties hereby consent to exclusive jurisdiction and venue in these 

courts and, to the fullest extent allowed by applicable law, waive any objection to this 

jurisdiction or venue, subject to any venue privilege provided by Florida law. This Agreement is 

subject to all applicable laws and regulations. Each Party expressly reserves the right to seek 

changes in, appeal, or otherwise contest any law, order, or regulation of a governmental 

authority. 

 

14. There are no third party beneficiaries to this Agreement. 

 

15.  In the event of any claim or dispute arising out of this Agreement, the prevailing party in 

such litigation shall be entitled to recover from the non-prevailing party its reasonable attorneys’ 

fees and court costs, including, without limitation, all such fees and costs incurred on appeals, in 

bankruptcy proceedings and in post-judgment collection proceedings. 

 

 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



6 

 

 

THIS FACILITY CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT FOR NEW INTERCONNECTION 

PROJECT IS ENTERED INTO BY THE AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES OF THE 

PARTIES WHOSE SIGNATURES ARE SET FORTH BELOW. 

 

FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 

 

 

By: ____________________________________ 

 

Printed Name: ___________________________ 

 

 

Title: __________________________________ 

 

 

 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 

 

 

      By: __________________________________ 

       BETTY RESCH, MAYOR  

 

ATTEST:                                                                       

                                                         

By: __________________________                 

      Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk                           

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND                          APPROVED FOR FINANCIAL         

LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:                                        SUFFICIENCY 

 

By: __________________________                  By: ____________________________ 

      Glen J. Torcivia, City Attorney                        Bruce T. Miller, Financial Services Director 

  



7 

 

Exhibit A 

Canal Substation Interconnection Facilities 

 

1) Osborne-Canal and Ranch-Canal ties: 

a. Loop-in the new City of Lake Worth Beach Canal Substation on what is currently the 

Osborne - Ranch 138kV line, Greenacres-Osborne line section.   

b. FPL shall own and maintain the portions of the Osborne-Canal and Ranch-Canal 138 

kV transmission lines up to and including the line insulators attached to the substation 

structure at Canal Substation. LWU shall own and maintain all the facilities at the 

Canal Substation except FPL’s RTU, which will be maintained by FPL at FPL’s 

expense. 

c. Point of Interconnection: The Point of Interconnection will be at the substation 

structures at Canal Substation. FPL will own the new transmission line from FPL’s 

transmission system up to and including the first insulator at the pull off tower inside 

of Canal Substation   

d. General Characteristics at the Point of Interconnection 

The general electrical characteristics at the interconnection point are as follows: 

Nominal Voltage:  138 kV 

Rated Frequency:  60.00 Hz 

Circuit #1:   287 MVA, (1905Amps) 

FPL Conductor:  1431 ACSR/AZ @ 115C 

Circuit #2:   287 MVA, (1260Amps) 

FPL Conductor:  1431 ACSR/AZ @ 115C 

This is what FPL is designing for; however, the new Transmission Line will not be 

rated at 1905A due to limiting factors on existing Line. 

e. Point of Change of Ownership: The Point of Change of Ownership will be at the 

Point of Interconnection. 

f. System Protection Equipment: 

i. Normal “Maintenance of Structures” at Canal Substation will be performed by 

LWU. Such maintenance shall be performed in accordance with the 

manufacturers' recommendations, and in accordance with good modern 

generally accepted utility practice. Upon request, LWU shall provide FPL 

copies of appropriate maintenance and repair records. 

ii. FPL shall have the right of access to Canal Substation at any time for the 

purpose of installing, maintaining, repairing, inspecting, testing, emergency 

switching or operating any FPL equipment. LWU shall provide FPL a key to 

Canal Substation or whatever else is necessary to allow access to the Canal 

Substation yard and control house. 

iii. FPL shall have the right to review construction plans for any future alterations 

or additions to the configuration or operation of Canal Substation, prior to 

LWU’s implementation of such plans. LWU will conform with any 

reasonable recommendations by FPL to modify the construction plans so long 

as these recommendations conform to standards consistent with good utility 

practice. 

 

 



8 

 

g. Data Acquisition Equipment 

i. Data Acquisition Equipment – Each Party will own its own Data Acquisition 

Equipment within LWU’s Canal Substation. Each Party will be responsible 

for its respective Data Acquisition Equipment and maintenance located at 

LWU’s Canal Substation. LWU will make space available for FPL’s Data 

Acquisition Equipment inside LWU’s Canal Substation. Such responsibility 

will include all studies required for installation and maintenance of such Data 

Acquisition Equipment. 

ii. Data Points List – The list of data points shall be agreed to by the Operating 

Committee, but shall at least consist of real time MWs, MVARs, line current, 

line breaker(s) status, and bus voltage. 

h. Tie Metering Equipment 

i. Metering and telemetering equipment will be located at LWU’s Canal 

Substation and shall be owned and maintained by LWU. Additional metering 

and telemetering equipment will be located as necessary to measure any 

generation resource located on the LWU side of the interconnection point and 

will be owned and maintained by LWU. LWU is responsible for the RTU’s as 

well as the operation and maintenance of any related communications. 

i. Control of Breakers at Canal 

i. FPL will have exclusive operational control of the 138 kV circuit breaker and 

supervisory control equipment associated with FPL’s two transmission lines at 

Canal Substation and normal operational control of all other 138 kV breakers 

in the 138 kV section. However, in the event of an emergency, LWU may 

operate any of the breakers under the direction of FPL’s Division Load 

Dispatcher. 

j. Miscellaneous Provisions 

i. Routine inspections and “Maintenance of Station Equipment” for the facilities 

owned by LWU at Canal Substation may be performed for LWU by FPL, upon 

written request, in accordance with FPL’s regular procedures and practices. 

LWU shall reimburse FPL for all of the costs incurred in rendering such 

inspection and maintenance service including all regular as well as 

extraordinary maintenance expenses for renewals and replacements of property 

units. Charges for routine inspection and minor maintenance expenses shall be 

recorded through an annual blanket jobbing account with billings rendered only 

for those months when such work is performed. Charges for major maintenance 

through individual specific jobbing accounts subject to prior written approval 

by LWU’s representative, except in an emergency, in which event FPL shall 

obtain oral approval from LWU’s representative to be later confirmed in 

writing. Payment for such expenses shall be made in accordance with FPL’s 

regular procedures and practices. 

ii. Lake Worth agrees that it will not seek Network Credits under FPL’s Open 

Access Transmission Tariff for any facilities associated with the construction 

or any existing facilities on Lake Worth’s system, as a result of the Canal 

Substation Interconnection. 

 

 



9 

 

 

Exhibit B 

Scope of Work 

 

 

Project Scope 

Loop-in the new City of Lake Worth Beach (LWU) Canal substation on what is currently the 

Osborne - Ranch 138kV line, Greenacres-Osborne line section.  This is to provide another 

transmission tie between Florida Power and Light and the City of Lake Worth Beach Electric 

Utility transmission system to complement the existing tie at Hypoluxo. 

 

The point of change of ownership between FPL and LWU will be at the substation structures at 

Canal Substation, as described in Exhibit A.  The City of Lake Worth Beach will construct 

facilities at the Canal Substation and surrounding property to accept the lines. 

 

TRANSMISSION 

FPL 

Connect the existing Greenacres-Osborne 138kV line section into LWU Canal Substation. 

Proposed routing of line in Appendix A.  New conductor to be 1431 ACSR/AZ with 7#8 OHGW 

rated at 1905A.  This will require easement acquisition for approximately 3.6 miles.  

 

City of Lake Worth Beach 

Relocate roughly 500 feet of existing LWU Main – LWU Canal Substation 138 kV transmission 

line to provide clearance for new FPL Greenacres – LWU Canal transmission line as shown in 

Appendix B.  

Install new OPGW for fiber optic communications on existing 138 kV transmission lines from 

Canal Distribution Substation to Main, and from Main to Hypoluxo. 
 

SUBSTATION   
FPL 

Install communication package, communication circuit, and mini-RTU at Lake Worth Beach 

Electric Utility’s Canal Transmission Substation.  Provide cabling for control, indication, and 

alarming of the breaker that will tie the Ranch-Canal Substation and Osborne-Canal Substation 

line sections together. 

 

Work with City of Lake Worth Beach Electric Utility to install two sets of 138kV metering units 

at Canal Substation.  One on the line going to Canal distribution, the other set of metering on the 

line going to the Main Substation.   

 

City of Lake Worth Beach 

Supply all equipment necessary to receive all transmission lines including metering units, 

structures, and cabling. LWU will supply high voltage connections and required conduits from 

metering units to location of metering panel. 

 



10 

 

 

PROTECTION AND CONTROL 

FPL 

Coordinate protection design, carrier frequencies and relay settings with City of Lake Worth 

Beach.  Coordinate design for control of mid breaker between Ranch-Canal 138kV and Osborne-

Canal 138kV lines together.  Provide cabling and connections to single port on each meter 

(primary and backup) for each new line into Canal. 

 

City of Lake Worth Beach 

The installation of equipment will be very similar to Hypoluxo substation which is an existing 

City of Lake Worth Beach electric substation.  The protection line panels and power line carrier 

will need to coordinate with the FPL line panels and carrier.  Metering class current transformers 

and potential transformers will need to be installed on the Canal Distribution 138kV line and the 

Canal-Main 138kV line. A port on each meter will need to be provided to FPL for 

communications.  No compensation is necessary for the meter programming as the point of 

interconnection is at the first insulator at the pull off tower inside Canal substation on both lines 

 

DISTRIBUTION 

FPL 

The transmission line will include underbuilt distribution facilities along much of the route, with 

a portion belonging to FPL and a larger portion belonging to LWU.  

 

City of Lake Worth Beach 

Work with FPL to relocate existing LWU distribution circuits along FPL’s proposed route onto 

the new FPL 138 kV transmission poles. LWU will construct distribution system modifications 

as necessary to facilitate this relocation (such as intermediate poles where necessary). Design 

standards will be agreed upon between LWU and FPL. Work with FPL on a new operating 

agreement to guide operations on the joint poles, and coordinate for transfer of any third-party 

attachments as necessary. The locations where this work will take place are effectively the full 

portion of the FPL 138 kV transmission route shown in Appendix A that is within LWU electric 

service territory. 

 

 

 

  



11 

 

Appendix A to Exhibit B 

 

FPL Proposed Transmission Line 

 

 
Redacted Confidential Information  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



12 

 

 

 

 

Appendix B to Exhibit B 

 
 Proposed Transmission Line Tie-in at LWU Canal Substation 

 

 

Redacted Confidential Information  
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix C to Exhibit B 

 
 Preliminary LWU Canal Substation One Line 

 

 

 

Redacted Confidential Information 

 

  



13 

 

 

Appendix D to Exhibit B 

 
 Project Milestones 

 

 
 

Canal Substation Interconnection for Lake Worth

FPL Activities/Milestones Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Major milestone schedule 10/31/2020

Route Selection 60 days

Preliminary engineering for station pulloffs 90 days

Scheduling document completion 12/31/2020

Joint use document completion 3/31/2021

Survey 120 days

Engineering 390

ROW acquisition 600

Permitting 150

Material 180 days

Construction 240

Begin drafting Contract for Interconnected Operations         1/27/2021

File revised Contract for Interconnected Operations             9/1/2022

In service date of new interconnection                                   12/1/2023

CLWB Activities/Milestones

Preliminary Engineering 60 days

Detailed Design 270 days

Surveying and Geotech 60 days

Site Development 180 days

Permitting 450 days

Major Equipment Procurement (Inc. Metering) 570 days

70% to 100% (IFB to Final) Design 90 days

Construction - 138kV Station 300 days

Construction - 25kV Station 180 days

Indicates Joint FPL /CLWB Activities

Schedule revision on 7/16/2021

Schedule revision on 8/24/2021, per email on 8/19 with SPX transformer expected delivery of 7/13/22 and 8/9/22

Schedule revision by POWER on 3/14/2022

2023

25kV Station

138kV Station 25kV Station

2020 2021 2022



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

  

AGENDA DATE:  September 20, 2022 DEPARTMENT:  City Attorney 

TITLE: 

Ordinance No. 2022-16 – Second Reading - Establishing a Business Advisory Board  

 
SUMMARY: 

The proposed Ordinance will establish a Business Advisory Board to promote business 
development and support and sustain existing businesses within the City of Lake Worth Beach.  

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City Commission has expressed a desire for a Business Advisory Board to engage the local 
business owners within the City of Lake Worth Beach. The proposed Ordinance establishes a 
Business Advisory Board to act as a liaison between the owners of businesses within the City 
and the City Commission, to promote business development and support and sustain existing 
businesses within the City. The Business Advisory Board members will be appointed consistent 
with Section 2-9 of the City of Lake Worth Beach Code of Ordinances. The proposed duties of 
the Business Advisory Board are as follows:  
 

(a) Advise the city commission as to recommended improvements to, and the 
establishment of, city policies and procedures impacting the business community; 

(b) Review and recommend appropriate communication strategies to disseminate city 
information to the business community;  

(c) Solicit and facilitate business input in matters of significance in the city; 
(d) Endeavor to build an expanding community of support through education of its 

members, prospective members, community groups and government officials; 
(e) Advise the city commission and city administration on business development 

opportunities within the city; 
(f) Identify, analyze and address legislative issues that may impact the business 

community; and 
(g) Any additional duties as may be assigned by the city commission. 

 
The Ordinance passed first reading by a vote of 4-0 at the first reading on September 6, 2022 
with the following modifications: 
 

1. change the board composition to seven members 
2. add a category for industrial business and lawyer 
3. change quorum from three to four members 
4. clarify that meetings would be held every other month 

 



 

MOTION: 

Move to approve / disapprove Ordinance No. 2022-16 establishing a Business Advisory Board.  

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

Ordinance 2022-16 revised version and redlined version 

 
  



2022-16 1 

 2 
 3 

ORDINANCE 2022-16 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKE 4 
WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 2 5 
“ADMINISTRATION,” ADDING A NEW ARTICLE XXIII “BUSINESS 6 
ADVISORY BOARD,” PROVIDING FOR A NEW BUSINESS ADVISORY 7 
BOARD, TERMS, COMPOSITION AND DUTIES; AND PROVIDING FOR 8 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, CODIFICATION AND AN EFFECTIVE 9 
DATE 10 

 11 
WHEREAS, as provided in Section 2(b), Article VIII of the Constitution of the State 12 

of Florida, and Section 166.021(1), Florida Statutes, the City of Lake Worth Beach (the 13 

“City”), enjoys all governmental, corporate, and proprietary powers necessary to conduct 14 
municipal government, perform municipal functions, and render municipal services, and 15 

may exercise any power for municipal purposes, except as expressly prohibited by law; 16 
and  17 

 18 
WHEREAS, as provided in Section 166.021(3), Florida Statutes, the governing 19 

body of each municipality in the state has the power to enact legislation concerning any 20 
subject matter upon which the state legislature may act, except when expressly prohibited 21 

by law; and  22 
 23 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend Chapter 2 “Administration,” adding thereto 24 

a new Article 16III “Business Advisory Board,” to create a new Business Advisory Board 25 
including the terms, composition and duties; and 26 

 27 

WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the “City”), is a duly constituted 28 

municipality having such power and authority conferred upon it by the Florida Constitution 29 
and Chapter 166, Florida Statutes; and 30 

 31 

WHEREAS, the City Commission finds and declares that the adoption of this 32 
ordinance is appropriate, and in the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of the 33 

City, its residents and visitors. 34 
 35 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 36 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 37 
 38 
Section 1: The foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are ratified and confirmed as 39 

being true and correct and are made a specific part of this ordinance as if set forth herein.  40 

 41 
Section 2: Chapter 2 “Administration,” is hereby amended by adding thereto a 42 

new Article 16III “Business Advisory Board,” to read as follows: 43 
 44 
ARTICLE XXIII. – BUSINESS ADVISORY BOARD 45 

 46 
Sec. 2-271. – Creation of business advisory board and purpose. 47 
 48 
There is hereby created a business advisory board. The business advisory board shall 49 
act in an advisory capacity to the city manager and city commission. The business 50 
advisory board shall be advisory in nature only. The business advisory board shall 51 



Pg. 2, Ord. 2022-16 

 

promote business development and support and sustain existing businesses within the 52 

city by identifying business opportunities and acting as a liaison between the owners of 53 
businesses within the city and the city commission. 54 
 55 
Sec. 2-272. – Composition; appointment of members. 56 

 57 
(a) The board shall be appointed by the city commission and shall consist of seven (7) 58 

members. The board members need not be residents of the city, but shall be 59 
owners or operators of businesses within the city. The board members shall be 60 
comprised of representatives from the following categories: retail business, 61 

professional services business, personal services business, industrial business, 62 
commercial realtor or business broker, certified property manager, community 63 
bank representative, attorney, and commercial property owner. 64 

 65 
(b) Appointments shall be made consistent with Section 2-9. 66 

 67 

 68 
(c) If any member of the board shall fail to be present at three (3) consecutive regularly 69 

scheduled meetings or at twenty (20) percent of the regularly scheduled meetings 70 
of the board held within any twelve-month period, the city clerk shall declare the 71 
member's office vacant, and the city commission shall promptly fill such vacancy. 72 

 73 
(d) If the position of a member becomes vacant for any reason, the city commission 74 

shall appoint another person to serve the unexpired term of the vacated position. 75 

 76 

(e) The city commission may remove any member of the board for misconduct or 77 
neglect of duty. 78 

 79 

Sec. 2-273. – Officers; meetings. 80 
 81 

(a) Officers. The board shall elect its officers for a term of one (1) calendar year, 82 
not to exceed the member's appointed term. 83 
 84 

1. Chairperson. Presides at meetings of the board and makes 85 

presentations, written and oral, on behalf of the board to the city 86 
commission and the city manager. 87 
 88 

2. Vice-chairperson. Performs the duties of the chairperson in his/her 89 
absence. 90 

 91 
3. Secretary. Records the minutes and attendance at each meeting. 92 

 93 
(b) Meetings.  94 

 95 
1. The board shall meet every other month, or more regularly as necessary to 96 

address matters as requested by the commission.  97 
2. Four (4) members of the board shall constitute a quorum for the 98 

performance of the duties of the board at any time.  99 
 100 



Pg.3, Ord. 2022-16 
 

3. Meetings of the board shall be open to the public, and minutes shall be kept. 101 

A public record of the board's minutes and resolutions shall be maintained 102 
and made available for inspection by the public. 103 

 104 
Sec. 2-274. – Duties.  105 
 106 

The board’s duties shall consist of the following: 107 
 108 

(a) Advise the city commission as to recommended improvements to, and the 109 
establishment of, city policies and procedures impacting the business community; 110 
 111 

(b) Review and recommend appropriate communication strategies to disseminate city 112 
information to the business community;  113 

 114 
(c) Solicit and facilitate business input in matters of significance in the city; 115 

 116 
(d) Endeavor to build an expanding community of support through education of its 117 

members, prospective members, community groups and government officials; 118 

 119 
(e) Advise the city commission and city administration on business development 120 

opportunities within the city; 121 
 122 

(f) Identify, analyze and address legislative issues that may impact the business 123 

community; and 124 
 125 

(g) Any additional duties as may be assigned by the city commission. 126 
 127 

Sec. 2-275. – Staff liaison. 128 
 129 

 The city manager, or his or her appointed designee, is staff liaison to the board 130 
and attends board meetings. The city manager or appointed designee shall serve only in 131 
an advisory capacity. The city manager or appointed designee shall have a continuing 132 

responsibility to explain the organization, responsibilities and objectives to the board. The 133 
city manager or appointed designee shall work closely with the board in matters of interest 134 
to the operation of efficient programs and inform the board concerning the interests, 135 

needs, objectives, progress, plans, and other factors of importance. The city manager or 136 
appointed designee shall be the official medium of communication between the city 137 
commission and the board. 138 

 139 
Section 3: Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or 140 

portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 141 
competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and 142 

independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 143 
portions thereof.  144 

 145 
Section 4:  Repeal of Laws in Conflict.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in 146 

conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 147 
 148 



Pg. 4, Ord. 2022-16 

 

Section 5: Codification.  The sections of the ordinance may be made a part of 149 

the City Code of Laws and ordinances and may be re-numbered or re-lettered to 150 
accomplish such, and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section”, “division”, or 151 
any other appropriate word. 152 

 153 

Section 6: Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective 10 days after 154 
passage. 155 
 156 

The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by Commissioner 157 
Malega, seconded by Commissioner Diaz, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as 158 

follows: 159 
 160 
Mayor Betty Resch ABSENT  161 

Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy AYE 162 
Commissioner Sarah Malega AYE 163 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes AYE 164 

Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz AYE 165 
 166 

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the 167 
6th day of September, 2022. 168 

 169 

 170 
The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by 171 

_________________, seconded by ________________, and upon being put to a vote, 172 

the vote was as follows: 173 

 174 
Mayor Betty Resch  175 
Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy  176 

Commissioner Sarah Malega  177 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes  178 

Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz  179 
 180 
The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the _______ day of 181 

_____________________, 2022. 182 

 183 
LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 184 
 185 

 186 
By: __________________________ 187 

Betty Resch, Mayor 188 
 189 

ATTEST: 190 
 191 
 192 
____________________________ 193 
Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 194 



2022-16 1 

 2 

 3 

ORDINANCE 2022-16 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKE 4 

WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 2 5 

“ADMINISTRATION,” ADDING A NEW ARTICLE 16III XXIII “BUSINESS 6 

ADVISORY BOARD,” PROVIDING FOR A NEW BUSINESS ADVISORY 7 

BOARD, TERMS, COMPOSITION AND DUTIES; AND PROVIDING FOR 8 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, CODIFICATION AND AN EFFECTIVE 9 

DATE 10 

 11 
WHEREAS, as provided in Section 2(b), Article VIII of the Constitution of the State 12 

of Florida, and Section 166.021(1), Florida Statutes, the City of Lake Worth Beach (the 13 

“City”), enjoys all governmental, corporate, and proprietary powers necessary to conduct 14 

municipal government, perform municipal functions, and render municipal services, and 15 

may exercise any power for municipal purposes, except as expressly prohibited by law; 16 

and  17 
 18 

WHEREAS, as provided in Section 166.021(3), Florida Statutes, the governing 19 

body of each municipality in the state has the power to enact legislation concerning any 20 

subject matter upon which the state legislature may act, except when expressly prohibited 21 

by law; and  22 

 23 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend Chapter 2 “Administration,” adding thereto 24 

a new Article 16III “Business Advisory Board,” to create a new Business Advisory Board 25 

including the terms, composition and duties; and 26 

 27 
WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the “City”), is a duly constituted 28 

municipality having such power and authority conferred upon it by the Florida Constitution 29 

and Chapter 166, Florida Statutes; and 30 

 31 
WHEREAS, the City Commission finds and declares that the adoption of this 32 

ordinance is appropriate, and in the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of the 33 

City, its residents and visitors. 34 
 35 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 36 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 37 

 38 

Section 1: The foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are ratified and confirmed as 39 

being true and correct and are made a specific part of this ordinance as if set forth herein.  40 
 41 

Section 2: Chapter 2 “Administration,” is hereby amended by adding thereto a 42 

new Article 16III “Business Advisory Board,” to read as follows: 43 
 44 

ARTICLE 16IIIXXIII. – BUSINESS ADVISORY BOARD 45 

 46 

Sec. 2-271. – Creation of business advisory board and purpose. 47 

 48 

There is hereby created a business advisory board. The business advisory board shall 49 

act in an advisory capacity to the city manager and city commission. The business 50 

advisory board shall be advisory in nature only. The business advisory board shall 51 

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight



Pg. 2, Ord. 2022-16 

 

promote business development and support and sustain existing businesses within the 52 

city by identifying business opportunities and acting as a liaison between the owners of 53 

businesses within the city and the city commission. 54 
 55 

Sec. 2-272. – Composition; appointment of members. 56 

 57 

(a) The board shall be appointed by the city commission and shall consist of five (5) 58 

members and two (2) alternateseven (7)  members. The board members need not 59 

be residents of the city, but shall be owners or operators of businesses within the 60 

city. The board members shall be comprised of representatives from the following 61 

categories: retail business, professional services business, personal services 62 

business, industrial business, commercial realtor or business broker, certified 63 

property manager, community bank representative, attorney, and commercial 64 

property owner. 65 

 66 

(b) Appointments shall be made consistent with Section 2-9. 67 

 68 

(c) Alternate members shall be appointed as first alternate and second alternate, and 69 

shall serve on the board in that order in the event a regular member is absent. 70 

 71 

(d)(c) If any member of the board shall fail to be present at three (3) consecutive 72 

regularly scheduled meetings or at twenty (20) percent of the regularly scheduled 73 

meetings of the board held within any twelve-month period, the city clerk shall 74 
declare the member's office vacant, and the city commission shall promptly fill such 75 

vacancy. 76 

 77 

(e)(d) If the position of a member becomes vacant for any reason, the city 78 

commission shall appoint another person to serve the unexpired term of the 79 

vacated position. 80 

 81 

(f)(e) The city commission may remove any member of the board for misconduct 82 

or neglect of duty. 83 
 84 

Sec. 2-273. – Officers; meetings. 85 

 86 

(a) Officers. The board shall elect its officers for a term of one (1) calendar year, 87 

not to exceed the member's appointed term. 88 

 89 

1. Chairperson. Presides at meetings of the board and makes 90 

presentations, written and oral, on behalf of the board to the city 91 

commission and the city manager. 92 

 93 

2. Vice-chairperson. Performs the duties of the chairperson in his/her 94 

absence. 95 

 96 

3. Secretary. Records the minutes and attendance at each meeting. 97 

 98 

(b) Meetings.  99 

 100 



Pg.3, Ord. 2022-16 
 

1. The board shall meet bimonthlyevery other month, or more regularly as 101 

necessary to address matters as requested by the commission.  102 

2. Three (3Four (4) members of the board shall constitute a quorum for the 103 

performance of the duties of the board at any time.  104 

 105 

3. Meetings of the board shall be open to the public, and minutes shall be kept. 106 

A public record of the board's minutes and resolutions shall be maintained 107 

and made available for inspection by the public. 108 
 109 

Sec. 2-274. – Duties.  110 

 111 

The board’s duties shall consist of the following: 112 

 113 

(a) Advise the city commission as to recommended improvements to, and the 114 

establishment of, city policies and procedures impacting the business community; 115 

 116 
(b) Review and recommend appropriate communication strategies to disseminate city 117 

information to the business community;  118 

 119 

(c) Solicit and facilitate business input in matters of significance in the city; 120 

 121 

(d) Endeavor to build an expanding community of support through education of its 122 

members, prospective members, community groups and government officials; 123 

 124 

(e) Advise the city commission and city administration on business development 125 

opportunities within the city; 126 

 127 

(f) Identify, analyze and address legislative issues that may impact the business 128 

community; and 129 

 130 

(g) Any additional duties as may be assigned by the city commission. 131 
 132 

Sec. 2-275. – Staff liaison. 133 

 134 

 The city manager, or his or her appointed designee, is staff liaison to the board 135 

and attends board meetings. The city manager or appointed designee shall serve only in 136 

an advisory capacity. The city manager or appointed designee shall have a continuing 137 

responsibility to explain the organization, responsibilities and objectives to the board. The 138 

city manager or appointed designee shall work closely with the board in matters of interest 139 

to the operation of efficient programs and inform the board concerning the interests, 140 

needs, objectives, progress, plans, and other factors of importance. The city manager or 141 

appointed designee shall be the official medium of communication between the city 142 

commission and the board. 143 
 144 

Section 3: Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or 145 

portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 146 

competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and 147 

independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 148 

portions thereof.  149 



Pg. 4, Ord. 2022-16 

 

 150 
Section 4:  Repeal of Laws in Conflict.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in 151 

conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 152 

 153 
Section 5: Codification.  The sections of the ordinance may be made a part of 154 

the City Code of Laws and ordinances and may be re-numbered or re-lettered to 155 

accomplish such, and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section”, “division”, or 156 

any other appropriate word. 157 

 158 
Section 6: Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective 10 days after 159 

passage. 160 

 161 

The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by 162 

______________________, Commissioner Malega, seconded by 163 

________________________, Commissioner Diaz, and upon being put to a vote, the 164 

vote was as follows: 165 

 166 

Mayor Betty Resch ABSENT  167 

Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy AYE 168 

Commissioner Sarah Malega AYE 169 

Commissioner Kimberly Stokes AYE 170 

Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz AYE 171 

 172 
The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the 173 

_______ 6th day of ____________________, September, 2022. 174 

 175 

 176 

The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by 177 

_________________, seconded by ________________, and upon being put to a vote, 178 

the vote was as follows: 179 

 180 

Mayor Betty Resch  181 

Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy  182 

Commissioner Sarah Malega  183 

Commissioner Kimberly Stokes  184 

Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz  185 

 186 

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the _______ day of 187 

_____________________, 2022. 188 

 189 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 190 

 191 

 192 

By: __________________________ 193 

Betty Resch, Mayor 194 

 195 

ATTEST: 196 

 197 

 198 

Formatted: Superscript



Pg.5, Ord. 2022-16 
 

____________________________ 199 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 200 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE:  September 20, 2022 DEPARTMENT:  City Attorney 

TITLE: 

Ordinance No. 2022-18 – Second Reading - Repeal of sections 15-91 “Definitions,” 15-91 
“Prohibited acts regarding panhandling,” and 19-14 “Right-of-way solicitors and canvassers” 

 
SUMMARY: 

The proposed Ordinance will repeal sections 15-91 “Prohibited acts regarding panhandling” 
(including Section 15-90 “Definitions”) and 19-14 “Right-of-way solicitors and canvassers”.  

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 
 
Section 15-91 of the City’s Code of Ordinances (the “Code”) makes it unlawful to solicit money 
or other things of value in certain public areas, including bus stops, public transportation 
facilities and vehicles, areas within 15 feet of a sidewalk café, automatic teller machines, and 
the entrance or exit of a commercial or governmental building, parking lots, parking garages, 
and parking pay stations owned or operated by the City and private property, unless the person 
panhandling has permission from the owner of such property.  Section 19-14 of the Code 
makes it unlawful for any person to canvass or solicit in the right-of-way at certain designated 
intersections within the City.  
 
The Palm Beach County Sheriff’s Office ceased enforcing sections 15-91 and 19-14 on 
January 14, 2022, and given the decision to cease enforcement, the City believes it is prudent 
to repeal sections 15-90, 15-91, and 19-14 of the Code.  The Ordinance passed first reading 
by a vote of 4-1 at the September 6, 2022 meeting. 

MOTION: 

Move to approve / disapprove Ordinance No. 18-2022 -- Repeal of sections 15-91 “Definitions,” 
15-91 “Prohibited acts regarding panhandling,” and 19-14 “Right-of-way solicitors and 
canvassers”.  

  

ATTACHMENTS: 
Ordinance 2022-18 



2022-18 1 

 2 
ORDINANCE 2022-18 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKE 3 

WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, REPEALING SECTIONS 15-90 4 
“DEFINITIONS,” 15-91 “PROHIBITED ACTS REGARDING 5 
PANHANDLING,” AND 19-14 “RIGHT-OF-WAY SOLICITORS AND 6 
CANVASSERS” OF THE CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES WHICH MAKE 7 
CERTAIN INSTANCES OF PANHANDLING OR SOLICITING IN PUBLIC 8 

AREAS UNLAWFUL; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, 9 
CODIFICATION, AN EFFECTIVE DATE, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 10 

 11 
WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the “City”) is a duly constituted 12 

municipality having such home rule power and authority conferred upon it by the Florida 13 

Constitution and Chapter 166, Florida Statutes; and 14 
 15 

WHEREAS, section 15-91 of the City’s Code of Ordinances (the “Code”) makes it 16 
unlawful to solicit money or other things of value in certain public areas, including bus 17 
stops, public transportation facilities, public transportation vehicles, areas within fifteen 18 
(15) feet of a sidewalk café, automatic teller machine, and the entrance or exit of a 19 

commercial or governmental building, parking lots, parking garages and parking pay 20 
stations owned or operated by the City and private property, unless the person 21 

panhandling has permission from the owner of such property; and  22 
 23 
WHEREAS, section 19-14 of the Code makes it unlawful for any person to canvass 24 

or solicit in the right-of-way at certain designated intersections within the City; and 25 
 26 

WHEREAS, the City’s law enforcement agency, the Palm Beach County Sheriff’s 27 

Office (PBSO), ceased enforcing sections 15-91 and 19-14 on January 14, 2022; and  28 
 29 

WHEREAS, given the prior decision to cease enforcement of these ordinances, 30 
the City Commission believes it is prudent to repeal section 15-91 (and associated section 31 

15-90 “Definitions”) and section 19-14 of the Code; and 32 
 33 

WHEREAS, the City Commission finds and declares that the repeal of these 34 
ordinances is appropriate, and in the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of the 35 
City, its residents and visitors. 36 

 37 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 38 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 39 

 40 

Section 1: The foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are incorporated into this 41 
Ordinance as true and correct findings of the City Commission.  42 

 43 
Section 2: Chapter 15 “Offenses – Miscellaneous,” Article VI “Panhandling” is 44 

hereby repealed in full as follows: 45 

 46 

ARTICLE VI. – RESERVEDPANHANDLING 47 



Pg. 2, Ord. 2022-18 

 

Sec. 15-90. - Definitions. 48 

Definitions as used in this article: 49 

(a)  Aggressive panhandling or solicitation means: 50 

 (1) Approaching or speaking to a person in such a manner as would cause a 51 
reasonable person to believe that the person is being threatened with either imminent 52 
bodily injury or the commission of a criminal act upon the person or another person, or 53 

upon property in the person's immediate possession; 54 

 (2) Continuing to request money or something else of value after the person 55 
solicited has given a negative response to the initial request; 56 

 (3) Blocking, either individually or as part of a group of persons, the passage of 57 

a solicited person; 58 

 (4) Touching a solicited person without explicit permission; or 59 

 (5) Engaging in conduct that would reasonably be construed as intended to 60 

intimidate, compel or force a solicited person to accede to demands. 61 

  (b) Panhandling means: 62 

 (1) Any solicitation made in person requesting an immediate donation of money 63 

or other thing of value for oneself or another person; or 64 

 (2) Any solicitation which seeks a donation where the person solicited receives 65 
an item of little or no monetary value in exchange and where a reasonable person would 66 

understand that the transaction is in substance a donation. 67 

Panhandling does not mean the act of passively standing or sitting, performing music, 68 

or singing with a sign or other indication that a donation is being sought, but without any 69 
vocal request other than a response to an inquiry by another person. 70 

Sec. 15-91. - Prohibited acts regarding panhandling. 71 

 (a) It shall be unlawful to engage in the act of panhandling when either the solicitation 72 
occurs or the person being solicited is located in, on, or at any of the following locations: 73 

 (1) Bus stop or any public transportation facility; 74 

 (2) Public transportation vehicle; 75 

 (3) Area within fifteen (15) feet, in any direction, of a sidewalk café, as defined in 76 
the Code; 77 



Pg.3, Ord. 2022-18 
 

 (4) Parking lot, parking garage, or parking pay station owned or operated by the 78 

city; 79 

 (5) Area within fifteen (15) feet, in any direction, of an automatic teller machine; 80 

 (6) Area within fifteen (15') feet, in any direction, of the entrance or exit of a 81 
commercial or governmental building; 82 

 (7) Private property, unless the person panhandling has permission from the 83 

owner of such property. 84 

 (b) It shall be unlawful to engage in the act of aggressive panhandling in any location 85 
in the city. 86 

 87 

Section 3: Chapter 19 “Streets and Sidewalks,” Article I “In General,” Section 88 
19-14 “Right-of-way solicitors and canvassers” is hereby repealed in full as follows: 89 

 90 

Sec. 19-14. – Reserved.Right-of-way solicitors and canvassers. 91 

 (a) Definitions. For the purposes of this section, "right-of-way canvasser or solicitor" 92 

shall mean any person who sells or offers for sale any thing or service of any kind, or 93 

who seeks any donation of any kind, or who personally hands to or seeks to transmit by 94 
hand or receive by hand any thing or service of any kind, whether or not payment in 95 
exchange is required or requested, to any person who operates or occupies a motor 96 

vehicle of any kind, which vehicle is engaged in travel on or within any portion of any of 97 

the streets or roadways in the city, whether or not such vehicle is temporarily stopped 98 
in the travel lanes of the road. The term shall not apply to any person who merely holds 99 
or displays a sign lawfully permitted to be displayed by a person as long as there is no 100 

entry by such person or sign into any portion of the roadway. Further, this term shall not 101 
apply to official citations or notices provided pursuant to governmental authority. 102 

(b) Findings; purpose; intent. 103 

 (1) The city commission of the City of Lake Worth desires to adopt an ordinance 104 

restricting right-of-way canvassers and solicitors from certain intersections located in 105 
the city because such canvassers and solicitors pose a danger to themselves and the 106 

public at large by interfering with the safe movement of normal vehicular traffic; and 107 

 (2) According to a 2017 report by Smart Growth America, a national group that 108 
advocates for smart development, since 2009, pedestrians in Florida are more likely to 109 
be struck by vehicles than elsewhere in the United States; 110 

 (3) According to the Smart Growth America report, the metropolitan areas from 111 
Miami to West Palm Beach are one of the most dangerous metropolitan areas for 112 
pedestrians with 1,508 pedestrian fatalities from 2005-2014; and 113 



Pg. 4, Ord. 2022-18 

 

 (4) According to the Florida Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles 114 

2015 Florida Traffic Crash Statistics Report, six hunddred thirty-two (632) pedestrians 115 
were killed on Florida roadways in 2015; thirty-five (35) of those pedestrians were killed 116 
on roadways in Palm Beach County; and 117 

 (5) As reported in the USDOT National Highway Traffic Safety Administration's 118 
June 2008 National Pedestrian Crash Report, the Lake Worth experienced two (2) 119 
pedestrian crash deaths in 2006 alone; and 120 

 (6) Based upon statistics collected by the U.S. Department of Transportation, 121 
Federal Highway Administration, Florida pedestrian fatalities are on the rise; and 122 

 (7) According to a Palm Beach County Metropolitan Planning Organization's 123 

Bicycle and Pedestrian Safety Team commissioned study, Lake Worth Road (from Jog 124 
Road east into downtown Lake Worth) is a corridor of concern based on crash data 125 

involving pedestrians and bicyclists in Palm Beach County from 2010 to 2014 with 126 
central Palm Beach County being the most intense for pedestrian crashes in the past 127 
five (5) years; and 128 

 (8) Numerous types of right-of-way canvassers and solicitors may seek to 129 
operate within the City of Lake Worth, including, but not limited to, children, adolescents 130 

and adults who seek to collect money for school and community activities; vendors who 131 
sell flowers, newspapers and other products; and, people who seek donations or 132 

distribute written information; and 133 

 (9) Right-of-way canvassers and solicitors approach motorists and passengers 134 
in motor vehicles engaged in travel on roads, and are particularly susceptible and 135 

vulnerable to serious injury, or death due to the speed and number of motorists who 136 
operate vehicles on busy roads within the city; and 137 

 (10) Roadways are primarily designed for vehicular traffic and are not suited to 138 

safely accommodate right-of-way canvassers and solicitors; and 139 

 (11) The presence of right-of-way canvassers and solicitors interferes with the 140 
safe movement of normal vehicular traffic; and 141 

 (12) The road network in the city is substantially burdened by a high volume of 142 

traffic, roadway and adjacent construction and road design which frequently includes 143 
vehicle turns and movements that demand a driver's strict attention; and 144 

 (13) It is the intention of the city commission to use the least restrictive means to 145 
advance the significant governmental interests of traffic safety and public safety and, 146 
consequently, the Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office analyzed each of the major roads 147 
within the city and determined that the intersections listed in subsection (c) below 148 
present an increased and significant danger for use by distracted drivers, pedestrians 149 
and right-of-way canvassers and solicitors and pose the greatest threat to traffic and 150 
public safety in reference to activities and use by right-of-way canvassers and solicitors, 151 
and therefore the city commission has determined that such activities and use by right-152 



Pg.5, Ord. 2022-18 
 

of-way canvassers and solicitors shall be prohibited at the intersections listed in 153 

subsection (c); and 154 

 (14) It is the finding of the city commission that many other alternative channels 155 
of communication (other than right-of-way canvassing and solicitation at the prohibited 156 
intersections) exist for persons who seek to exercise their First Amendment freedoms, 157 

such as, but by no means limited to, solicitation of funds or distribution of literature 158 
through the mail or at alternate locations (such as houses of worship, shopping areas 159 
and special events); the sale and/or distribution of newspapers through home or office 160 
delivery, vending machines and retail stores; other authorized and permitted business, 161 
charitable and other activities under the city's Code; and the sale of goods and services 162 

at retail stores, through the internet and from vending machines; and 163 

 (15) The city commission desires to preserve and protect the personal safety and 164 
quality of life of its residents and of those who use streets within the city, both 165 
pedestrians and motorists alike; and 166 

 (16) The city commission has reviewed the proposed regulations provided by this 167 

section and finds that such regulations accomplish the purposes intended while utilizing 168 
the least restrictive means; and 169 

 (17) The city commission finds that it is in the best interests of the residents of 170 

the city to adopt this section. 171 

(c) Prohibited intersections. It shall be unlawful for any person to act as a right-of-way 172 

canvasser or solicitor at the intersections of: 173 

 (1) Interstate 95 (I-95) northbound and southbound on and off ramps at Sixth 174 

Avenue South; 175 

 (2) Interstate 95 (I-95) northbound and southbound on and off ramps at 10th 176 
Avenue North; 177 

 (3) Lake Worth Road and the CSX railway (located west of the Interstate 95 (I-178 

95) overpass at Lake Worth Road); 179 

 (4) Intersection of 10th Avenue North and North Dixie Highway; and, 180 

 (5) Intersection of 6th Avenue South and South Dixie Highway. 181 

For purposes of enforcement, the above identified intersections shall include 182 

any area within one hundred (100) feet from the lateral curb or boundary line of 183 
the intersection; and, shall also include the entire length of the Interstate 95 (I-184 
95) on and off ramps at 6th Avenue South and 10th Avenue North. 185 

(d) Chapter 316, Florida Statutes. The enforcement of this section shall not, in any way, 186 
preclude the enforcement of F.S. § 316.130(5), as applicable. 187 



Pg. 6, Ord. 2022-18 

 

(e) Precedence. It is the intent of this section that the prohibition herein for persons 188 

acting as right-of-way canvassers or solicitors at the identified intersections takes 189 
precedence over and prohibits any authorized or permitted activity under chapter 19, 190 
article VI, of this Code, regarding the authorized and permitted use of pedestrian and 191 
vehicular rights-of-way and other public property. 192 

(f) Enforcement and penalties. 193 

 (1) It shall be the duty of any law enforcement officer authorized to enforce the 194 
laws of the state to enforce the provisions of this section against any person found in 195 
violation. 196 

 (2) Any violation of any of the provisions of this section shall be prosecuted as a 197 

misdemeanor of the second degree and punished by a fine of not more than five 198 
hundred dollars ($500.00) and/or imprisonment in an authorized facility for not more 199 

than sixty (60) days. 200 

 (3) Notwithstanding the foregoing, the enforcement provisions and penalty 201 

provisions provided for in this section are not exclusive. The city may pursue any other 202 
legal or equitable remedies available under law for the enforcement of this section and 203 
related penalties, including without limitation, code enforcement. 204 

Section 4: Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or 205 

portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 206 
competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and 207 

independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 208 
portions thereof.  209 

 210 
Section 5:  Repeal of Laws in Conflict.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in 211 

conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 212 
 213 
Section 6: Codification.  The sections of the ordinance may be made a part of 214 

the City Code of Laws and ordinances and may be re-numbered or re-lettered to 215 
accomplish such, and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section”, “division”, or 216 
any other appropriate word. 217 

 218 
Section 7: Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective 10 days after 219 

passage. 220 
 221 

The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by Vice Mayor McVoy, 222 
seconded by Commissioner Diaz, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 223 

 224 

Mayor Betty Resch AYE  225 
Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy AYE 226 
Commissioner Sarah Malega NAY 227 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes AYE 228 
Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz AYE 229 
 230 

https://library.municode.com/fl/lake_worth_beach/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH19STSI


Pg.7, Ord. 2022-18 
 

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the 231 

6th day of September, 2022. 232 
 233 

 234 
The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by 235 

_________________, seconded by ________________, and upon being put to a vote, 236 

the vote was as follows: 237 
 238 

Mayor Betty Resch  239 
Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy  240 
Commissioner Sarah Malega  241 

Commissioner Kimberly Stokes  242 
Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz  243 

 244 
The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the _______ day of 245 

_____________________, 2022. 246 
 247 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 248 

 249 
 250 

By: __________________________ 251 
Betty Resch, Mayor 252 

ATTEST: 253 

 254 
 255 

____________________________ 256 
Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 257 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

AGENDA DATE: September 20, 2022 DEPARTMENT: Community Sustainability 

TITLE: 

Ordinance No. 2022-15 – First Reading - approval of a Mixed Use Urban Planned Development, 
Major Site Plan, Conditional Use Permit (CUP), and Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program 
(SBIP) requests for the project commonly referred to as “Lake Worth Station” located at 930 N 
G Street to construct a 5-story, 81 dwelling unit mixed use development with 39 multi-family 
units proposed to qualify as workforce housing and office space. The sustainable bonus request 
is for additional density and height. The property is zoned Transit Oriented Development – East 
(TOD-E) 

 
SUMMARY: 

The Applicant, Ricardo Hernandez - Bridge Holding, LLC, is requesting approval of the following: 

• A Mixed Use Urban Planned Development request to construct an approximately 5-story, 
81-unit multi-family residential structure, two office spaces, and additional site 
improvements and public amenities. 

• Major Site Plan for the development of mixed-use development in excess of 7,500 square 
feet.   

• A Conditional Use Permit request to develop a multi-family residential use structure 
greater than 7,500 square feet.  

• A Sustainable Bonus request for additional density (+/- 16 units) and height (3 stories & 
24’10”).  

The Applicant is proposing a mixed-use development on a 1.084-acre vacant lot with the 
purpose of “improving the area while contributing to the commercial, residential, and recreational 
uses surrounding the area.” The proposed mixed-use project includes the construction of a five-
story building, surface parking, public plaza with a sculpture on 10th Avenue North, and 
recreational amenities on the 5th Floor to serve 81 multi-family residential units and 2 offices 
(accessory leasing office and co-work office space open to the public). Of the 81 residential 
units, 63 will be 1-bedroom units and 18 will be 2-bedroom units.  Thirty-nine (39) of the 1-
bedroom units have been deed restricted as workforce housing through the PBC Workforce 
Housing program. The applicant’s stated project concept is to provide a mixed-use development 
with an open plaza to serve the residents and businesses, as well as the community. The 
proposed mixed-use project of residential and office will ensure compatibility with the 
surrounding mixed uses that promote walkable and interconnected uses with a mix of densities 
and intensities and access to transit, bicycle, pedestrian, and other modes of transportation 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The Planning and Zoning Board (PZB) at their August 3, 2022 meeting, recommended approval 
of the project with conditions.  The motion included one modification to staff’s recommended 
conditions of approval that requested the applicant move one of the units to the lowest workforce 



 

housing income category.  Discussion included many questions by the new members of the 
PZB as well as a request to reconfigure the entrance along 10th Avenue to reduce potential 
traffic conflicts at that entrance if feasible. 

As outlined in the staff report, the proposed planned development meets all standards and 
requirements as outlined in the City’s Land Development Regulations (LDRs) and 
Comprehensive Plan except in two areas where the applicant is requesting additional flexibility.  
Specifically, the applicant is requesting to reduce the side setback along North G Street by 1 
foot to 9 feet to allow for a more substantial landscape buffer on the east side (alley side) of the 
property while maintaining parking lot travel lane widths and turn radii.  The Applicant is also 
requesting to reduce the minimum living area of the one-bedroom units by 16 sf to a total of 584 
sf.  The Applicant has stated that they are requesting that reduction in support of the proposed 
workforce housing.  Policy 3.1.2.2 of the Housing & Neighborhood Element in the 
Comprehensive Plan allows for a 15% reduction in living area requirements for affordable and 
workforce housing. The project also features approximately 1,700 sf of common area on the 5th 
floor for residents. 

The proposed project will also implement the Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program to attain an 
increase in height (+/- 24’ 10” feet / 3-stories) and density (+/-16 units) which in exchange will 
contribute to the purpose of the comprehensive plan to incorporate sustainable design features, 
community-based improvements and overall design excellence as part of a development 
proposal. Per condition of approval, the applicant shall be required to pay 50% of the sustainable 
bonus incentive value to the City in the amount of $195,675.  For the remaining 50% of the 
incentive award value ($195,675), the Applicant is proposing the following qualified on-site 
improvements including on-street sidewalk & signage improvements on west side of North G 
Street ($30,000), 39 deed restricted affordable/workforce housing units, which is equal to 48% 
of all units (48% of $195,675 = $93,924), a public plaza along 10th Avenue North ($30,000) and 
Public Art (sculpture with a minimum $50,000 value). The total value of the qualifying 
improvements is $203,924, which exceeds the required incentive value of $195,675.   

Additional background, history and justification can be found in the attached documentation, 
including the advisory board staff report. 

The item was continued from the September 6, 2022 city commission meeting. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Ordinance No. 2022-15 on first reading and to schedule the second 
reading and public hearing on October 6, 2022. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Ordinance 2022-15 
PZB Staff Report 
Supporting Plans and Documents 



 

2022-15 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-15 -- AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY 
COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, 
AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP BY APPROVING THE 
CREATION OF A MIXED USE URBAN PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT, LOCATED AT 930 NORTH G STREE TO CONSTRUCT AN 
APPROXIMATELY 5-STORY, 81-UNIT MIXED USE DEVELOPMENT AS 
MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT A, LOCATED WITHIN 
THE TRANSIT ORIENTED DEVELOPMENT - EAST (TOD-E) ZONING 
DISTRICT WITH A FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION OF TRANSIT 
ORIENTED DEVELOPMENT (TOD) SUBJECT TO SPECIFIC 
DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS SET FORTH IN EXHIBIT B AND 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL SET FORTH IN EXHIBIT C; APPROVING 
A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT; APPROVING HEIGHT AND DENSITY 
BONUS INCENTIVES THROUGH THE CITY’S SUSTAINABLE BONUS 
INCENTIVE PROGRAM; APPROVING A MAJOR SITE PLAN FOR THE 
DEVELOPMENT OF A MIXED USE URBAN PLANNED DEVELOPMENT; 
PROVIDED FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE 
 
WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, pursuant 

to the authority granted in Chapters 163 and 166, Florida Statutes, and the Land 
Development Regulations, as adopted by the City of Lake Worth Beach, is authorized and 
empowered to consider petitions relating to zoning and land development orders; and 

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 23, Article 3, Division 6. – Planned Development of City of 

Lake Worth Beach’s Land Development Regulations allows for the creation of planned 
development districts to incentivize innovative development through the utilization of 
incentive programs and flexible dimensional and use requirements that are defined within 
and occur in conformity with an approved master development plan; and  

 
WHEREAS, Bridge Holding, LLC (the applicant) has petitioned the City of Lake 

Worth Beach (the City) for creation of a Mixed Use Urban Planned Development District 
to allow for the construction of an approximately 5-story, 81-unit mixed use development 
(on a site located at 930 North G Street (PCNs 38-43-44-21-15-274-0080; 38-43-44-21-
15-274-0070; 38-43-44-21-15-274-0040; 38-43-44-21-15-274-0030; and 38-43-44-21-15-
274-0020) as further described in Exhibit A (the Property) within the TOD-E Zoning District 
and the TOD Future Land Use designation, which, if approved, shall constitute an 
amendment to the City’s official zoning map; and 

WHEREAS, the applicant requests use of the City’s Sustainable Bonus Incentive 
Program to allow for additional height to be considered in conjunction with the applicant’s 
request for approval for a major site plan for the construction of a mixed-use development 
currently known as “Lake Worth Station” and containing approximately 81 residential units 
to be constructed on this site; 

 



Pg. 2, Ord. 2022-15  
 
 

WHEREAS, on August 3, 2022, the Lake Worth Beach Planning and Zoning Board 
(PZB) considered the subject application for a Mixed Use Urban Planned Development 
District, Major Site Plan, Conditional Use Permit, and Sustainable Bonus Incentive 
Program and recommended that the City Commission approve the creation of this 
residential planned development subject to specific district development standards and 
certain enumerated conditions; and 

 
WHEREAS, on xxx, 2022, the City Commission voted to approve on first reading 

the subject application for a Residential Planned Development District, Major Site Plan, 
Conditional Use Permit, and Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program subject to specific 
district development standards and enumerated conditions herein; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Commission has considered all of the testimony and evidence 

and has determined that the Mixed Use Urban Planned Development District, Major Site 
Plan, Conditional Use Permit, and Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program including the 
development regulations and conditions, meets the requirements of the Land Development 
Regulations, Section 23.3-25. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 
 
Section 1.   Recitals.  The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are hereby affirmed 
and ratified. 
 
Section 2.   The Mixed Use Urban Planned Development District located within the TOD-
E Zoning District with a future land use designation of TOD, as described more particularly 
in Exhibit A, is hereby approved. This approval includes the approval of the following 
elements to be known as the Master Development Plan: (a) Residential Planned 
Development; (b) Major Site Plan; (c) Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program; (d) 
Conditional Use Permit; (e) district development standards (Exhibit B); (f) conditions of 
approval (Exhibit C); (g) required plans including the site plan, landscape plan, and civil 
& drainage plans; (h) supplemental supporting documents, as well as all agreements, 
provisions and/or covenants which shall govern the use, maintenance, and continued 
protection of the residential planned development and any of its common areas or facilities. 
The applicant is bound to all elements and requirements of the Master Development Plan.  
 
Section 3.   The City’s zoning maps shall be updated to reflect the changes to the 
property described in Exhibit A. 
 
Section 4.   Repeal of Laws in Conflict.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict 
herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 
 
Section 5.   Severability.  If any provision of this ordinance or the application thereof is 
held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity shall not affect other 
provisions of the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared severable. 
 



Pg. 3, Ord. 2022-15 

 
 

Section 6.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days after its 
final passage. 
 

The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by 
_____________________, seconded by _____________________ and upon being put to 
a vote, the vote was as follows: 

 

Mayor Betty Resch  
Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy 
Commissioner Sarah Malega  
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes 
Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz  

 
The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the 

___ day of __________, 2022. 
 
The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by 

_________________, seconded by ________________, and upon being put to a vote, the 
vote was as follows: 

 

Mayor Betty Resch 
Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy  
Commissioner Sarah Malega 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes 
Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz 

 
The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the _______ day of 
_____________________, 2022. 

 
LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 
 
 
By: __________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 
 

  



Pg. 4, Ord. 2022-15  
 
 

Exhibit A 
 

DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY  

PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORIC PRESERVATION DIVISION 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION & LOCATION MAP  

Address: 930 N G Street 

PCNs:  38-43-44-21-15-274-0080; 38-43-44-21-15-274-0070; 38-43-44-21-15-274-0040; 38-43-44-21-15-274-0030;

  38-43-44-21-15-274-0020  
 
Size:  approx. 1.084 acres 

General Location: Northwest corner of 10th Avenue and North G Street 

Legal Description: See boundary survey in the Master Development Plan supporting documentation 

 

  



Pg. 5, Ord. 2022-15 

 
 

 
Exhibit B 

 

DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY 

 PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORIC PRESERVATION DIVISION 

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS  

 

Development Standard 

Base Zoning 

District 

Transit Oriented 

Development - 

East (TOD-E) 

Mixed-Use Urban 

Planned Development in 

TOD-E w/ Sustainable 

Bonus Incentive 

Program(SBIP) 

Provided  

Lot Size (min) 

In square feet (sf) 
13,000 sf 

0.5 acres min 1.084 acres 

Lot Width (min) 100’ 100’ 135’ 

Setbacks 

Front (min) 10’   18’-22’1 18’ 

Rear (min)2 34’ 42’-46’1 83’ 

Street Side 

(min) – west 

(North G 

Street) 

10’ 10’ 9’3 

Alley Side 

(min) – east  
0’ 0’ 69’ 

Impermeable Surface 

Coverage (maximum) 
65% 65% 62% 

Structure Coverage 

(max) 
50% 60% 29% 

Density (max) 
40 du/acre 

(43 units) 

 

75 du/acre4 

(81.3 units) 

 

74.72 du/acre 

(81 Units) 



Pg. 6, Ord. 2022-15  
 
 

Building Height (max) 30’ (max. 2 stories) 
68.75’4 

(30’ Pus 25’ = 55’ x 1.25) 

54’10” 

5-stories total 

Maximum Wall Height 

at Side Setback 
30’ 45’ 45’ 

Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 

(max) 
1.1 3.3134 1.43 

Living Area 

(minimum) 

Studio 400 sf 400 sf NA 

One-

bedroom 

units 

 

600 sf 600 sf 
5845 sf 

2.6% reduction (16 sf)  

Two-

bedroom 

units 

750 sf 750 sf 891 sf 

Three-

bedroom 

units 

900 sf 900 sf NA 

Parking  130.5 spaces 98 986  

Is property in flood plain 

or Wellfield Zone? 

Yes/No 

Flood Zone X not in 

floodplain / 

Wellfield Zone 4 

NA NA 

1. Additional height and stories setback for sustainable incentive: buildings in excess of thirty (30) feet in height 
in addition to sustainable incentive shall provide an additional front and rear setback of between eight (8) and 
twelve (12) feet to the minimum required front and rear setbacks. 

2. 15 ft. or 10% of lot depth when next to residential zoning district. 

3. Applicant has requested to reduce the side setback on the west side setback from 10 feet to 9 feet 

4. Per Policy 1.2.3.4 of the Comprehensive Plan’s Sustainable Bonus, allowing for a 25% bonus in density, 
intensity and height over Table 1 for urban planned developments less than 2 acres. 

5. Applicant has requested to reduce the living area for one-bedroom units from 600 square feet to 584 square 
feet, or 16 sf.  A 15% reduction living area is permitted for workforce housing per Policy 3.1.2.2 of the Housing 
& Neighborhood Element in the Comprehensive Plan. 

6. A 25% parking reduction for mixed use projects was requested per LDR Section 23.4-10(h)1. Total parking 
includes off-street parking (including electric vehicle (EV) charging spaces and a bike rack) and on-street parking 
(including two delivery and rideshare spaces) for multi-family residential and two office spaces.  

 

-Exhibit C 
 



Pg. 7, Ord. 2022-15 

 
 

DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY 

PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORIC PRESERVATION DIVISION 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL  

 

Planning & Zoning 

1. Fifty percent (50%) of the sustainable bonus fee ($195,675) and any portion of the remaining 
sustainable bonus fee (up to an additional 50%) after qualifying improvements are deducted shall 
be paid to the City within one year of approval, or prior to the issuance of the building permit, 
whichever comes first. 

2. Fifty percent of the sustainable bonus fee ($195,675) shall be paid to the City within one year of 
approval, or prior to the issuance of the building permit, whichever comes first.   

3. Public art (sculpture) proposed shall be reviewed by the CRA's LULA program prior to installation. 
4. Prior to building permit application,  

a. A Unity of Title will be required for all applicable parcels. 
b. An address application shall be required to be submitted prior to application for building 

permit. 
5. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall pay $14,000 into the City’s Tree 

Canopy Restoration fund. 
6. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall submit the final School District Availability 

Determination from the PBC School District and shall pay all applicable fees to PBC prior to the 
issuance of a building permit. 

7. The proposed mixed-use project shall comply with Palm Beach County’s Unified Land Development 
Best Management Practices for Wellfield Protection.  

8. All lighting shall comply with lighting code regulations in LDR Section 23.4-3.  Further, lighting 
fixtures shall comply with dark skies fixture recommendations, including a 3000K light tone or less 
for LED lighting, and shall be consistent with the architectural style of the project as determined by 
the Development Review Official. 

9. The 14 proposed compact/tandem spaces located at the south end of the building shall be assigned 
to the multifamily two-bedroom units.  

10. A public access/sidewalk easement shall be required on the west property line.   
11. A video security system shall be required for the property. 
12. Prior to the issuance of building permit for commercial signage, a Minor Site Plan amendment to 

establish a Uniform Master Sign Program for individual tenants/businesses in accordance with the 
City's Land Development Regulations is required.  Directional signage shall be exempt from the 
minor site plan requirement provided that is appropriately scaled and architecturally consistent. 

13. A minor site plan amendment shall be required to implement site modifications related to 
conditions of approval and to reflect the right turn in access from 10th Avenue N. 
 

Public Works 

Standard Conditions of Approval: 

1. The issuance of any permits shall comply with all provisions of the Lake Worth Municipal Code and 
all other applicable standards including but not limited to the Florida Department of Transportation 
(FDOT), Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD), and City of Lake Worth Public Works 
Construction Standards and Policy and Procedure Manual. 



Pg. 8, Ord. 2022-15  
 
 

2. No Certificate of Occupancy shall be granted until all conditions of approval have been satisfied 
under jurisdiction of the Department of Public Works. 

3. In the event of a legal challenge to this approval, the applicant/owner shall be responsible for all 
costs to defend the action of the city in approving any and all permits related to this application. 
Should the applicant fail to enter into an agreement to fund the costs of litigation, the city, at its 
discretion, may rescind this approval and revoke all permits issued.  

Additional Conditions of Approval 

1. Prior to issuance of a building permit: 
a. The applicant shall contact the Lake Worth Drainage (LWDD) District’s Engineering 

Department and obtain any required permit(s), if necessary, and furnish to the City.  
b. The applicant shall contact the South Florida Water Management District’s (SFWMD) 

Engineering Department and obtain any required permit(s), if necessary.  
c. The applicant shall meet with a representative from Public Works Solid Waste and 

Recycling Division to confirm dumpster enclosure location, accessibility and demand on 
property and that it is compatible with the requirements of the Department of Public 
Works. Solid Waste and Recycling Division contact number is 561-533-7344. 

d. The applicant shall submit an Erosion Control plan and indicate the BMP’s and NPDES 
compliance practices. 

2. Prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy: 
a. To accommodate the proposed on-street parking for this project, as it is depicted in the 

site plan, it will be necessary to shift the center line of North G Street to maintain travel 
lanes of adequate and equal width. To accomplish this the road will need to milled and 
resurfaced to move the crown of the road and change the centerline. 

b. New striping will be required from the intersection of North G Street and 9th Avenue North 
to the intersection of North G Street and 10th Avenue North, including stop bars and 
reflective pavement markers at the intersections. 

c. The west ROW of North G Street shall be improved with the addition of 5-foot-wide 
sidewalk, if determined to be required by the Public Works Director at building permit, and 
conforming to City specification from the intersection of North G Street to the intersection 
of 9th Avenue North. The sidewalk will meet ADA requirements and terminate at both 
intersections with ADA compliant ramps and tactile surfaces. 

d. A stop sign shall be installed at the intersection of North G Street and 9th Avenue North 
facing southbound traffic. 

e. “No Parking Any Time” signs shall be installed along the west ROW of North G Street but 
will not be installed any further south than the point along North G Street where the 
property line of the project ends. 

f. A cross-section showing the existing 40’ ROW of North G Street in its current condition and 
a cross section showing the ROW after the change of the centerline of North G Street will 
need to be provided prior to adoption by the City Commission. 

g. Alleyway improvements consisting of 4-inch asphalt millings, graded and compacted, shall 
be constructed from 10th Avenue North to 9th Avenue North.  

h. The applicant shall ensure the entire surrounding off-site infrastructure inclusive of the 
roadway, sidewalk, curbing, stormwater system piping and structures, valve boxes, 
manholes, landscaping, striping, signage, and other improvements are in the same 
condition as prior to construction. A pre-construction video of the entire perimeter shall 
be performed and submitted to the City.  

i. The applicant shall fine grade and sod all disturbed areas with bahia sod. 



Pg. 9, Ord. 2022-15 

 
 

j. The applicant shall broom sweep all areas of the affected right of way and remove of all 
silt and debris collected as a result of construction activity. 

k. The applicant shall restore the right of way to a like or better condition. Any damages to 
pavement, curbing, striping, sidewalks or other areas shall be restored in kind. 

3. Prior to performing work in the right of way, the applicant shall apply for and receive issuance of a 
“Right of Way/Utility Permit” application. 

4. The sidewalk on the east side of North G Street that is bisected by the project property line shall 
be maintained solely by the property in perpetuity and the City will not be held legally responsible 
for injuries associated with it. 

 

Utilities – Water & Sewer 

1. Prior to building permit issuance, capacity fees are due. 
2. Provide a public access easement along the sidewalk that is outside the N G Street right of way. 

 
Electric Utilities 

1. Prior to application and the issuance of a building permit, Electric Utilities is requesting the 
following: 

2. Items in regards to the facility’s Electrical Site Plan drawings (Electrical Details - E21_222028 BH) are 
needed to more accurately determine the location of the Electrical Equipment, the Electrical 
Connections, and Wiring, including Underground (UG) 

3. An appropriate Power Distribution Planning to ensure that there is adequate capacity (transformer 
capacity and feeder capacity) to meet the load demands of the facility shall be specified 

4. The facility’s potential annual electric energy (power consumption) shall be determined 
5. If Electric Vehicle (EV) Chargers are considered: Please provide the number of EV chargers to be 

installed as well as type of chargers.  For example, does the applicant intend to install Level II charger 
or Level III DC Fast chargers? Quantities of each type? And will these be connected from the facility’s 
main meter or connected directly to the City’s electric utility distribution system? 

6. The Electric Utility Dept. is requesting a review meeting with the developer & electrical engineers 
to review and clarify any additional electrical related items.  

Prior to the issuance of a building permit:  

7. Show the location of the Padmount Transformers, Automatic Transfer Switch (ATS), and the meter 
banks. The Padmount Transformer locations will need to be in an accessible location to our trucks 
and will need 8-ft (8 feet) of minimum clearance in the front and 3-ft (3 feet) of minimum clearance 
on the sides and rear. This clearance includes landscaping. None trees, plants, shrubs or vegetations 
are allowed within the clearance 

8. Provide the electric riser diagrams for all buildings, the proposed electrical loads and the voltages 
required, including proposed Electrical Cable Schedules 

9. Provide the Amp Sizes and Voltages for any other services needed than the commercial units, such 
as lighting, irrigation, etc. If any meter is over 320 amps for Single Phase, and over 200 amps for 3-
Phase, a CT Cabinet and CT Meter Can will need to be installed. All meters and CT Cabinets will need 
a minimum of 36” (36 in) of clearance in front of them 

10. Provide a 10-ft (10 feet) wide utility easement for the underground electric lines, Padmount 
Transformers & Switchgear that will serve this project. The Main Electric Line Routing from the Poles 
to the Padmount Transformers will be determined by the Lake Worth Beach design engineer 



Pg. 10, Ord. 2022-15  
 
 

11. Transformer & Electrical Equipment Box Pad Elevations shall be FEMA 100 yr. Flood-Plain Elevation 
+ 1-ft (1 feet)   

12. Provide details for Temporary Power during construction, Voltage & Amps and approximate 
Location of service point  

13. Complete payment to Lake Worth Beach for electrical infrastructure costs for labor & materials to 
serve this project  

14. The customer will be responsible for installing any Secondary Conduit at a minimum of 24” (24 in) 
deep from the Secondary Winding of the Transformer of the property to the building 

15. The customer will be responsible for Any and All labor and material costs for providing electric 
service to this project.  

16. The CLWB will procure one (1) Padmount Transformer and Box Pad to serve the facility, the 
owner/developer is responsible for the reimbursement costs to the City. The City will procure one 
(1) Spare Padmount Transformer at the City’s expense.  
 

Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy: 

17. Provide copy of recorded Utility Easement.  
Note that No permanent power can NOT be provided until a Final Electrical Inspection is done. 



 

Report Created and Reviewed by the Department for Community Sustainability 
Project Contact: Scott Rodriguez, AICP, Principal Planner | smrodriguez@lakeworthbeachfl.gov 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD REPORT 

PZB Project Number 22-00900002 (Ordinance 2022-15): Consideration of a Mixed Use Urban Planned 
Development, Major Site Plan, Conditional Use Permit (CUP), and Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program (SBIP) requests 
for the project commonly referred to as “Lake Worth Station” located at 930 N G Street to construct a 5-story, 81 dwelling 
unit mixed use development with 39 multi-family units proposed to qualify as workforce housing and office space. The 
sustainable bonus request is for additional density and height. The property is zoned Transit Oriented Development – 
East (TOD-E). 

 

Meeting Date: August 03, 2022 
Revised August 22, 2022  

Property Owner: Ricardo Hernandez - Bridge 
Holding, LLC 

Applicant: Ricardo Hernandez - Bridge Holding, 
LLC 

Project Manager: Patricia Ramudo – IBI Group 

Address: 930 N G Street  

PCNs:   
38-43-44-21-15-274-0080; 38-43-44-21-15-274-0070;  
38-43-44-21-15-274-0040; 38-43-44-21-15-274-0030; 
 38-43-44-21-15-274-0020  
 
Size: 1.084 Acre Lot  
 
General Location: Northwest corner of 10th 
Avenue and North G Street  

Existing Land Use: Vacant 

Current Future Land Use Designation: Transit 
Oriented Development (TOD) 

Zoning District: Transit Oriented Development - 
East (TOD-E) 

 

 

Location Map 

 

DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY 
Planning Zoning Historic Preservation Division 

1900 2ND Avenue North 
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33461 

561-586-1687 
 



 
PZB No. 22-00900002 

    P a g e  | 2 
 
 
  

 

RECOMMENDATION  

The documentation and materials provided with the application request were reviewed for compliance with the 
applicable guidelines and standards found in the City of Lake Worth Beach Land Development Regulations (LDRs), and 
for consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan. The proposed Mixed Use Urban Planned Development, 
Major Site Plan, and Conditional Use is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, Strategic Plan, and LDRs, as conditioned, 
and, therefore, a recommendation of approval with conditions is provided to the Planning and Zoning Board. The 
conditions are located on page 9 of this report.  
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The applicant, Ricardo Hernandez - Bridge Holding, LLC, is requesting approval of the following Lake Worth Station 
located at 930 North G Street: 

 A Mixed Use Urban Planned Development request to construct an approximately 5-story, 81-unit multi-family 
residential structure, two office spaces, and additional site improvements. 

 Major Site Plan for the development of mixed-use development in excess of 7,500 square feet.   

 A Conditional Use Permit request to develop a multi-family residential use structure greater than 7,500 square 
feet.  

 A Sustainable Bonus request for additional density and height.  
 

The Applicant is proposing a mixed-use development on a 1.084-acre vacant lot with the purpose of improving the area 
while contributing to the commercial, residential, and recreational uses surrounding the area. The proposed mixed-use 
project includes the construction of a five-story building, surface parking and site amenities, to serve 81 multi-family 
residential units and 2 offices (accessory leasing office and co-work office space open to the public). Of the 81 residential 
units, 63 will be 1-bedroom units and 18 will be 2-bedroom units.  Thirty-nine (39) of the 1-bedroom units have been 
designated as workforce housing through the PBC Workforce Housing program. The concept behind this project is 
intended to provide a mixed-use development with an open plaza to serve the residents and businesses, as well as the 
community. The proposed mixed-use project of residential and office will ensure compatibility with the surrounding 
mixed uses that promote walkable and interconnected uses with a mix of densities and intensities and access to transit, 
bicycle, pedestrian, and other modes of transportation. 
 
COMMUNITY OUTREACH  

Staff has not received any letters of support or opposition for this application.  

BACKGROUND  
Below is a summary of the property based on Palm Beach Property Appraiser’s records and City records:  
 
Construction: Currently, there are no existing structures on the site.   

Use:  The property’s existing use is vacant.  

Code Compliance: There are no active code case on the subject site. 
 
ANALYSIS  
 
Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan 
The subject site has a Future Land Use (FLU) designation of Transit-Oriented Development (TOD). Per policy 1.1.1.8, the 
land use category is intended to promote compact, mixed-use development near proposed or existing transportation 
infrastructure to encourage diversity in the way people live, work and commute. The maximum density of permitted 
residential development is 60 dwelling units per acre.*  The preferred mix of uses area-wide is 75% residential and 25% 



 
PZB No. 22-00900002 

    P a g e  | 3 
 
 
  

non-residential. All buildings are required to provide transitional buffering and design features to mitigate impact of the 
TOD sites adjacent to residential zoning districts. 
* Excludes sustainable bonus incentives per FLUE Policy 1.2.3.4 

 
The City’s Strategic Plan focuses on fostering safer neighborhoods, encouraging community pride, building a vibrant and 
diverse economy, planning for the future, and enhancing the natural, historic, and cultural environment of the City. Pillar  
II and Pilar IV of the Strategic Plan state that the City shall achieve strengthening Lake Worth Beach as a community of 
neighborhoods and navigating towards a sustainable community. Pillars II.A, II.B, IV.A, and IV.E of the Strategic Plan state 
that the City shall diversify housing options, continue crime reduction and prevention in achieving a safe, livable and 
friendly community, achieve economic and financial sustainability through a versatile and stable tax base, and ensuring 
facility placement, construction and development that anticipates and embraces the future. The proposed multifamily 
building, office component and associated site improvements will contribute towards the City’s Pillars II.A, II.B, IV.A, and 
IV.E of the Strategic Plan. 
 
Based on the analysis above, the proposed development request is consistent with the goals, objectives, and polices of 
the City of Lake Worth Beach’s Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan. 
 
Consistency with the Land Development Regulations 
Mixed Use Urban Planned Development - Per Section 23.3-25, planned developments are intended to encourage 
innovative land planning and development techniques through incentives to create more desirable and attractive 
development within the City. The Department of Community Sustainability is tasked to review planned development 
applications in accordance with the City’s LDRs, to assess compliance with the findings for granting planned 
developments (analyzed in the following sections) and to provide a recommendation for whether the application should 
be approved, approved with conditions, or denied.  
 
Analysis: The proposed Mixed Use Urban Planned Development was reviewed for compliance with Section 23.3-25. The 
subject planned development is requesting to waive or relax base zoning district requirements in two (2) areas of the 
LDRs. The applicant has requested to reduce the west side setback from 10 feet to 9 feet to allow for a more substantial 
landscape buffer on the east side (alley side) of the property while maintaining parking lot travel lane widths and turn 
radii. The applicant is also requesting to reduce the living area for one-bedroom units from required minimum 600 square 
feet to 584 square feet, or a reduction of 16 ft (2.67%). The applicant has stated that they are requesting that reduction 
in support of the proposed workforce housing.  Policy 3.1.2.2 of the Housing & Neighborhood Element in the 
Comprehensive Plan allows for a 15% reduction in living area requirements for affordable and workforce housing. The 
project also features approximately 1,700 sf of common area on the 5th floor for residents. The applicant will pursue the 
required unity of control for the petition, and has provided the required supporting information and development plans 
that comprise the master development plan.  The proposal meets the minimum site area requirement of 0.5 acres. 
Outdoor storage is not proposed.  The project planned development meets all land development requirements. 
 
Transit Oriented Development – East (TOD-E): Per LDR Section 23.3-19(a), the TOD-E transit-oriented development east 
district is designed for the areas around the FEC railroad tracks and desired future locations for intra-city, light rail transit, 
specifically Lake Avenue, Lucerne Avenue, 1st Avenue South, 10th Avenue North and 9th Avenue South. The TOD-E 
district is intended to promote compact, mixed-use development, including multiple-family residential, office and retail, 
near proposed or existing transportation infrastructure. The TOD-E district is also intended to encourage arts, 
entertainment and cultural activities in the city. The establishment of certain uses is subject to conditional use review to 
ensure they will not create excessive problems for through traffic, or have a negative impact on nearby residential areas 
or the commercial viability of their neighbors. The district implements in part the mixed-use land use category of the 
Lake Worth Comprehensive Plan. 
 



 
PZB No. 22-00900002 

    P a g e  | 4 
 
 
  

The table and topic area analysis below evaluate the proposed site features and the project’s compliance with the Code, 
including requests to waive or relax base zoning district requirements as permitted in planned developments and 
factoring in the Sustainable Bonus incentives, Planned Development incentives, and the Comprehensive Plan maximums: 
 

 

Development Standard 

Base Zoning District 
Transit Oriented 

Development - East 
(TOD-E) 

Mixed-Use Urban 
Planned Development in 

TOD-E w/ Sustainable 
Bonus Incentive 
Program(SBIP) 

Provided  

Lot Size (min) 
In square feet (sf) 

13,000 sf 
0.5 acres min 1.084 acres 

Lot Width (min) 100’ 100’ 135’ 

Setbacks 

 
Front (min) 

 

 

 
10’  

  

 
18’-22’1 

 

18’ 

Rear (min)2 34’ 42’-46’1 83’ 

Street Side 
(min) – west 
(North G 
Street) 

10’ 10’ 9’3 

Alley Side 
(min) – east  

0’ 0’ 69’ 

Impermeable Surface 
Coverage (maximum) 

65% 65% 62% 

Structure Coverage 
(max) 

50% 60% 29% 

Density (max) 
40 du/acre 
(43 units) 

 
75 du/acre4 
(81.3 units) 

 

74.72 du/acre 
(81 Units) 

Building Height (max) 30’ (max. 2 stories) 

 
68.75’4 

(30’ Pus 25’ = 55’ x 1.25) 
 

54’10” 
5-stories total 

Maximum Wall Height 
at Side Setback 

30’ 45’ 45’ 

Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 
(max) 

1.1 3.3134 1.43 

Living Area 
(minimum) 

Studio 400 sf 400 sf NA 

One-
bedroom 

units 
 

600 sf 600 sf 
5845 sf 

2.67% reduction (16 sf)  

Two-
bedroom 

units 
750 sf 750 sf 891 sf 



 
PZB No. 22-00900002 

    P a g e  | 5 
 
 
  

Three-
bedroom 

units 
900 sf 900 sf NA 

Parking 130.5 spaces 986 98 

Flood Zone / Wellfield 
Zone 

Flood Zone X not in 
floodplain / Wellfield 

Zone 4 

NA NA 

1. Additional height and stories setback for sustainable incentive: buildings in excess of thirty (30) feet 
in height in addition to sustainable incentive shall provide an additional front and rear setback of 
between eight (8) and twelve (12) feet to the minimum required front and rear setbacks. 

2. 15 ft. or 10% of lot depth when next to residential zoning district. 

3. Applicant has requested to reduce the side setback on the west side setback from 10 feet to 9 feet 

4. Per Policy 1.2.3.4 of the Comprehensive Plan’s Sustainable Bonus, allowing for a 25% bonus in 
density, intensity and height over Table 1 for urban planned developments less than 2 acres. 

5. Applicant has requested to reduce the living area for one-bedroom units from 600 square feet to 
584 square feet, or 16 sf (2.67%).  A 15% reduction living area is permitted for workforce housing 
per Policy 3.1.2.2 of the Housing & Neighborhood Element in the Comprehensive Plan. 

6. A 25% parking reduction for mixed use projects was requested per LDR Section 23.4-10(h)1. Total 
parking includes off-street parking (including electric vehicle (EV) charging spaces and a bike rack) 
and on-street parking (including two delivery and rideshare spaces) for multi-family residential and 
two office spaces.  

 
Section 12-7, Dumpster Requirements: The location of all dumpsters shall be approved by the public services director or 
his designee and/or the building official or his designee. All dumpsters shall meet the requirements set forth in this section 
and all other ordinances, rules, regulations and policies adopted by the city. 
 
Analysis: The proposed dumpster location was reviewed by Public Works, who determined that the dumpster was 
consistent with the size and screening requirements. The dumpster enclosure is proposed to be a concrete masonry unit 
(CMU) enclosure located at the southeast corner of the site. 
 
Section 23.4-3, Exterior Lighting: All outdoor lighting shall be installed in conformance with the provisions of this chapter, 
applicable electrical and energy codes, and applicable sections of the building code. 
 
Analysis: A photometric plan was provided depicting compliance with the exterior lighting requirements in Section 23.4-
3. A recommended condition of approval has been provided requiring the proposed lighting to comply with Dark Skies 
lighting recommendations. The proposed fixtures shall be required to have a warm tone setting of 3000 K or less. The 
proposed fixtures may be substituted with similar fully shielded light fixtures at building permit to achieve a warm LED 
light tone of 3000K or less if the proposed fixture cannot be set to provide the required light tone. 
 
Section 23.4-10. - Off-street parking: This section provides general provisions for off-street parking. The standards “apply 
to all parking spaces required for new buildings, new uses, additions, enlargements, or changes.”   
 
Analysis: The required parking for the multi-family and office mixed use proposal is 98 spaces. The parking spaces were 
calculated at the following: 

 1.5 spaces/unit for the multi-family one-bedroom unit proposal (94.5 spaces for 63 units) 

 1.75 spaces/unit for the multi-family two-bedroom unit proposal (31.5 spaces for 18 units) 

 1 space/400 square feet for the office/co-work space and leasing space (4.5 spaces 1,782 sf office) 

 A 25% parking reduction per LDR Section 23.4-10(h)1 (131 spaces x .75 = 98.25 = 99 required spaces) 

 Proposed two (2) bicycle racks with 2 bicycles each to count as two parking spaces per LDR Section 23.4-10(l), 
Parking alternates 



 
PZB No. 22-00900002 

    P a g e  | 6 
 
 
  

 14 tandem and compact spaces are less than 25% of required parking per LDR Section 23.4-10(l), Parking 
alternates 

 
The proposed 97 parking spaces, which include 12 on-street spaces, 14 tandem compact spaces, 1 alternative space (2 
bicycle racks with 2 bicycles each) and 4 electric vehicle charging spaces. The tandem spaces will be located at the south 
side of the proposed building. The tandem spaces will be conditioned to be assigned to multi-family two-bedroom units. 
The applicant has agreed to this condition assigning the tandem parking spaces to seven (7) multi-family two-bedroom 
units. The fourteen (14) tandem and compact spaces will be located at the southwest corner of the site.  The four (4) 
electric vehicle charging stations are proposed to be located at the northeast corner of the site.  
 
The proposed on-street parking also includes two delivery and rideshare spaces located on the northeast side of North 
G Street.  All of the proposed on-street parking (12 spaces total) will be located along the east side of North G Street. 
Public Works will require additional offsite improvements to adequately provide proper drainage and traffic circulation 
directly related to the improvement of North G Street from 10th Avenue North to 9th Avenue North.  
 
Additionally, Public Works is also requiring the improvement of the 10-foot alley located east of the subject site to be 
improved. A condition will be proposed to improve the 10-foot alley to the east to mill, grade, and compact the existing 
pavement from 10th Avenue North to 9th Avenue North.  To accommodate the proposed on-street parking for this project, 
as it is depicted in the site plan, it will be necessary to shift the center line of North G Street to maintain travel lanes of 
adequate and equal width. To accomplish this, Public Works is proposing a condition that the road will need to milled 
and resurfaced to move the crown of the road and change the centerline. The Public Works Department has also 
requested the applicant provide a sidewalk along the west side of North G Street. 
 
Signage: Signage is required to comply with the size and design requirements in the Land Development Regulations. 
The proposed signage will be reviewed at building permit for consistency with these requirements.  
 
Section 23.6-1. - Landscape regulations: The objective of this section is to provide minimum standards for the installation 
and maintenance of landscaping within the city. Per Section 23.6-1(c)(2), “on the site of a building or open-lot use 
providing an off-street parking, storage or other vehicular use area, where such an area will not be screened visually by 
an intervening building or structure from an abutting right-of-way or dedicated alley, shall require landscaping”. 
  
Analysis: The development proposal provides perimeter and interior landscaping and shade trees. The proposed 
landscaping is consistent with the City’s landscape regulations and the Major Thoroughfare Design Guidelines.  Tree 
species include a mix of Gumbo Limbo, Simpson Stopper, Live Oak and Pigeon Plum trees for the perimeter plantings 
and with multiple native and non-native shrubs, grasses and groundcovers for the interior plantings. The proposed 
landscape complies with the City’s requirement that a minimum 75% of all required plants be Florida native. 
 
As required by the tree removal provisions in the landscape regulations, the applicant submitted a tree survey and 
disposition plan that was reviewed by staff. The diameter at breast height (DBH) for the existing trees with a condition 
rating of fifty (50) percent or greater on the property is used to calculate the replacement tree requirement. After the 
review of the Tree Survey, Disposition Plan and Landscape Plan staff determined that there is a replacement and 
mitigation shortfall of 72 Diameter inches with an average tree size of 11 inches. Since the property cannot accommodate 
all of the required tree replacements on site, an in-lieu of fee may be paid into the Tree Canopy Restoration Fund as a 
substitute to replacement.  Therefore, staff has proposed a condition requiring the payment of $14,000 into the City’s 
Tree Canopy Restoration fund prior to the issuance of a building permit.  
 
Section 23.2-31 - Site Design Qualitative Standards (Attachment A) 
Site Design Qualitative Standards are intended to “promote safety and minimize negative impacts of development on its 
neighbors by establishing qualitative requirements for the arrangements of buildings, structures, parking areas, 
landscaping and other site improvements. The qualitative standards are designed to ensure that site improvements are 



 
PZB No. 22-00900002 

    P a g e  | 7 
 
 
  

arranged in ways which cannot be otherwise accomplished with quantitative standards.” These qualitative standards are 
applicable to site plan applications as well as all conditional uses. The Major Thoroughfare Design Guidelines are an 
adopted component of these Site Design Qualitative Standards as per Section 23.2-31(j), which are applicable to 
properties adjacent to the City’s major thoroughfares inclusive of the subject site. Compliance determination with the 
applicable standards in Section 23.2-31 are provided in Attachment A. The following analysis of the site, building, 
vehicular use area and appearance support the compliance findings for the applicable standards listed in Attachment 
A and in the Major Thoroughfare Design Guidelines.  
 

Site Design Qualitative Standards Analysis (including vehicular use areas) and Major Thoroughfare Design 
Guidelines: The proposed improvements to the site, including landscaping and architecture are generally consistent 
with the Major Throughcare Design Guidelines. The character of the proposed development is consistent with the 
Vision for the Major Thoroughfare Design Guidelines, providing for a vibrant, diverse, safe, inviting and sustainable 
features.  With an open plaza, located at the 10th Avenue North frontage, the project invites community interaction.  
The perimeter public sidewalks provide walkability and connectivity to the on‐site pedestrian walkways.  The building 
is placed along the North G Street corridor, with surface parking east of the building, such that it minimizes any 
adverse effects to its neighbors.  Driveway access is placed on the north and west side streets, minimizing vehicular 
interaction with the pedestrian circulation.  On‐site parking is designed along the south and east of the property, 
screening it from public view, by means of low walls and landscaping. Screening of the on‐site parking is provided by 
placing it at the rear of the property and will be screened by the buildings and landscape improvements.  Public 
Works has proposed conditions of approval requiring Public Works is also requiring the improvement of the 10-foot 
alley located east of the subject site to be improved and the installation of a sidewalk along west side of North G 
Street. The solid waste dumpster will be located in an enclosure located at the southeast of the property and will 
provide collection and storage of solid waste and recyclables.  Site lighting will comply with the City’s lighting design 
and illumination standards, such that it will not spill over to surrounding properties.  Landscaping of the perimeter 
buffers will be designed in such a manner as to compliment the architectural style of the buildings. The project will 
also feature an open plaza with a sculpture located in the NW corner of the project along 10th Avenue North. 

 
The proposed improvements to the site are harmonious as a whole, will improve the aesthetics of the site, and will 
be an asset to the neighborhood.  
 

The existing uses in the surrounding area are as follows: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning District Existing Use 

North  Transit Oriented 
Development (TOD) 

Transit Oriented 
Development – East 
(TOD-E) 

The 10th Avenue North / 
Mixed-Use Commercial 

South  Transit Oriented 
Development (TOD) 

Transit Oriented 
Development – East 
(TOD-E) 

Single-family home 

East  

Transit Oriented 
Development (TOD) 

Mixed Use – Dixie 
Highway (MU-DH) 

A platted 10’ alley 
(unimproved)/residential lots, 
comprised of single family, 
apartment buildings and a 
vacant lot. 

West  
Transit Oriented 
Development (TOD) 

Transit Oriented 
Development – East 
(TOD-E) 

The North G Street 40’ 
municipal ROW/vacant parcel, 
which abuts the Florida East 
Coast Railroad right-of-way. 

 



 
PZB No. 22-00900002 

    P a g e  | 8 
 
 
  

The proposed uses and site improvements will not negatively affect the existing surrounding properties and uses. 
The proposed changes are harmonious and compatible with the existing industrial area.  
 
Community Appearance Criteria:  
The proposed mixed-use proposal including new construction, new landscaping, and associated site improvements 
represent an enhancement in the general appearance of the property over the existing vacant lot. The proposed 
architecture of the building is appropriate and in harmony with the surrounding residential and nonresidential area. 
Overall, the proposed development proposal represents a substantial improvement in the visual appearance of the 
property. The project will also feature an open plaza with a sculpture located in the NW corner of the project along 
10th Avenue North. Overall, the proposed project represents a substantial improvement in the visual appearance 
over the existing property and is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, Major Thoroughfare Design Guidelines 
and the City’s Land Development Regulations (LDRs).  The project is in conformity with the principals of good design 
and quality and is in harmony with the city and the surrounding area as conditioned. 
 

Conditional Use Findings (Attachment B)  
Conditional uses are those uses that are generally compatible with the other uses permitted in a district, but that require 
individual review of their location, design, structure, configuration, density and intensity of use, and may require the 
imposition of conditions pertinent thereto in order to ensure the appropriateness and compatibility of the use at a 
particular location and to prevent or minimize potential adverse impacts to the surrounding area.  The project proposal 
includes a conditional use request to establish a residential master plan greater than 7,500 square feet. 
 
The proposed conditional use is not anticipated to impact the surrounding area greater than uses permitted by right. 
The site is currently vacant and is proposing multifamily buildings and office space that does not utilize the maximum 
development potential. The building will be served by municipal services, including water, sewer, refuse, fire and police. 
The site is located on an arterial roadway. The proposed associated site improvements would provide new screening and 
site circulation. 
 
Section 23.2-33(c) - Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program (SBIP) 
The City of Lake Worth Beach Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program (SBIP) is intended to implement Objective 1.2.3 of 
the City’s Comprehensive Plan which states the City shall establish incentives to help support the creation of a compact, 
sustainable, community-oriented development by implementing a Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program. The Program 
offers the opportunity to attain an option for increased height and/or FAR in exchange for the incorporation of 
sustainable design features, community-based improvements and overall design excellence as part of a development 
proposal. 
 
Per Policy 1.2.3.4 of the City’s Comprehensive Plan, a mixed-use urban planned development located west of Dixie 
Highway may obtain a 50% bonus on density, intensity (FAR), and height over the base line as outlined in Table 1 of the 
Comprehensive Plan. The Applicant is asking for a bonus height and bonus density which are less than the maximum 
allowances that can be permitted for height and intensity through a sustainable bonus incentive in a planned 
development in the TOD-E zoning district.   
 
The total square footage of bonus area above the second floor is +/-39,944 square feet. On the 5th floor, approximately 
12,236 square feet includes the 15 density bonus units.  Therefore, the value of required improvements for the SBIP 
bonus areas is $207,810 (27,708 sf X $7.50 per sf) plus an additional $183,540 (12,236 sf X $15 per sf) for the additional 
units on the 5th floor. The total incentive value is $391,350.  Fifty percent (50%) of the incentive award value is $195,675, 
which the applicant is required to pay to the City. For the remaining 50% of the incentive award value ($195,675), the 
applicant is proposing the following qualified on-site improvements including on-street sidewalk & signage 
improvements on west side of North G Street ($30,000), 39 deed restricted affordable/workforce housing units, which 
is equal to 48% of all units (48% of $195,675 = $93,924), a public plaza along 10th Avenue North ($30,000) and a Public 



 
PZB No. 22-00900002 

    P a g e  | 9 
 
 
  

Art (sculpture with a minimum $50,000 value). The total value of the qualifying improvements is $203,924, which exceeds 
the required incentive value of $195,675.   
 
The total remaining payment by the applicant to the City for the additional height and density is anticipated to be 
$195,675. 

 

CONCLUSION AND CONDITIONS  

The TOD-E district is intended to promote compact, mixed-use development, including multiple-family residential, 
office and retail, near proposed or existing transportation infrastructure. Based on the data and analysis in this report 
and the supporting materials by the applicant, the proposed site plan, building design, landscaping, and site circulation 
are appropriate and consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, Strategic Plan, Major Thoroughfare Design 
Guidelines, and Land Development Regulations with the two (2) requested minor reductions to the side back (9 ft 
provided) and the 1-bedroom living area (584 sf provided).  The proposed site circulation, parking, refuse, delivery, 
and amenity locations anticipated to minimize and/or mitigate any impacts of the mixed-use proposal on the adjacent 
and proximate uses.  The project also features an Therefore, a recommendation of approval is provided to the PZB 
with the following conditions: 
 

 
Planning & Zoning 

1. Fifty percent (50%) of the sustainable bonus fee ($195,675) and any portion of the remaining sustainable bonus 
fee (up to an additional 50%) after qualifying improvements are deducted shall be paid to the City within one 
year of approval, or prior to the issuance of the building permit, whichever comes first. 

2. Fifty percent of the sustainable bonus fee ($195,675) shall be paid to the City within one year of approval, or 
prior to the issuance of the building permit, whichever comes first.   

3. Public art (sculpture) proposed shall be reviewed by the CRA's LULA program prior to installation. 
4. Prior to building permit application,  

a. A Unity of Title will be required for all applicable parcels. 
b. An address application shall be required to be submitted prior to application for building permit. 

5. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall pay $14,000 into the City’s Tree Canopy 
Restoration fund. 

6. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall submit the final School District Availability 
Determination from the PBC School District and shall pay all applicable fees to PBC prior to the issuance of a 
building permit. 

7. The proposed mixed-use project shall comply with Palm Beach County’s Unified Land Development Best 
Management Practices for Wellfield Protection.  

8. All lighting shall comply with lighting code regulations in LDR Section 23.4-3.  Further, lighting fixtures shall 
comply with dark skies fixture recommendations, including a 3000K light tone or less for LED lighting, and shall 
be consistent with the architectural style of the project as determined by the Development Review Official. 

9. The 14 proposed compact/tandem spaces located at the south end of the building shall be assigned to the 
multifamily two-bedroom units.  

10. A public access/sidewalk easement shall be required on the west property line.   
11. A video security system shall be required for the property. 
12. Prior to the issuance of building permit for commercial signage, a Minor Site Plan amendment to establish a 

Uniform Master Sign Program for individual tenants/businesses in accordance with the City's Land 
Development Regulations is required.  Directional signage shall be exempt from the minor site plan 
requirement provided that is appropriately scaled and architecturally consistent. 

13. A minor site plan amendment shall be required if site modifications are required to implement the conditions 
of approval. 

14. A more vibrant exterior color scheme more in keeping with the colorful diversity and charm of the City is 
suggested.   



 
PZB No. 22-00900002 

    P a g e  | 10 
 
 
  

 
Public Works 
Standard Conditions of Approval: 

1. The issuance of any permits shall comply with all provisions of the Lake Worth Municipal Code and all other 
applicable standards including but not limited to the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT), Manual 
on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD), and City of Lake Worth Public Works Construction Standards and 
Policy and Procedure Manual. 

2. No Certificate of Occupancy shall be granted until all conditions of approval have been satisfied under 
jurisdiction of the Department of Public Works. 

3. In the event of a legal challenge to this approval, the applicant/owner shall be responsible for all costs to 
defend the action of the city in approving any and all permits related to this application. Should the applicant 
fail to enter into an agreement to fund the costs of litigation, the city, at its discretion, may rescind this 
approval and revoke all permits issued.  

Additional Conditions of Approval 
1. Prior to issuance of a building permit: 

a. The applicant shall contact the Lake Worth Drainage (LWDD) District’s Engineering Department and 
obtain any required permit(s), if necessary, and furnish to the City.  

b. The applicant shall contact the South Florida Water Management District’s (SFWMD) Engineering 
Department and obtain any required permit(s), if necessary.  

c. The applicant shall meet with a representative from Public Works Solid Waste and Recycling Division 
to confirm dumpster enclosure location, accessibility and demand on property and that it is 
compatible with the requirements of the Department of Public Works. Solid Waste and Recycling 
Division contact number is 561-533-7344. 

d. The applicant shall submit an Erosion Control plan and indicate the BMP’s and NPDES compliance 
practices. 

2. Prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy: 
a. To accommodate the proposed on-street parking for this project, as it is depicted in the site plan, it 

will be necessary to shift the center line of North G Street to maintain travel lanes of adequate and 
equal width. To accomplish this the road will need to milled and resurfaced to move the crown of the 
road and change the centerline. 

b. New striping will be required from the intersection of North G Street and 9th Avenue North to the 
intersection of North G Street and 10th Avenue North, including stop bars and reflective pavement 
markers at the intersections. 

c. The west ROW of North G Street shall be improved with the addition of 5-foot-wide sidewalk, if 
determined to be required by the Public Works Director at building permit, and conforming to City 
specification from the intersection of North G Street to the intersection of 9th Avenue North. The 
sidewalk will meet ADA requirements and terminate at both intersections with ADA compliant ramps 
and tactile surfaces. 

d. A stop sign shall be installed at the intersection of North G Street and 9th Avenue North facing 
southbound traffic. 

e. “No Parking Any Time” signs shall be installed along the west ROW of North G Street but will not be 
installed any further south than the point along North G Street where the property line of the project 
ends. 

f. A cross-section showing the existing 40’ ROW of North G Street in its current condition and a cross 
section showing the ROW after the change of the centerline of North G Street will need to be provided 
prior to City Commission. 

g. Alleyway improvements consisting of 4-inch asphalt millings, graded and compacted, shall be 
constructed from 10th Avenue North to 9th Avenue North.  

h. The applicant shall ensure the entire surrounding off-site infrastructure inclusive of the roadway, 
sidewalk, curbing, stormwater system piping and structures, valve boxes, manholes, landscaping, 



 
PZB No. 22-00900002 

    P a g e  | 11 
 
 
  

striping, signage, and other improvements are in the same condition as prior to construction. A pre-
construction video of the entire perimeter shall be performed and submitted to the City.  

i. The applicant shall fine grade and sod all disturbed areas with bahia sod. 
j. The applicant shall broom sweep all areas of the affected right of way and remove of all silt and debris 

collected as a result of construction activity. 
k. The applicant shall restore the right of way to a like or better condition. Any damages to pavement, 

curbing, striping, sidewalks or other areas shall be restored in kind. 
3. Prior to performing work in the right of way, the applicant shall apply for and receive issuance of a “Right of 

Way/Utility Permit” application. 
4. The sidewalk on the east side of North G Street that is bisected by the project property line shall be maintained 

solely by the property in perpetuity and the City will not be held legally responsible for injuries associated with 
it. 

 
Utilities – Water & Sewer 

1. Prior to building permit issuance, capacity fees are due. 
2. Provide a public access easement along the sidewalk that is outside the N G Street right of way. 

 
Electric Utilities 

1. Prior to application and the issuance of a building permit, Electric Utilities is requesting the following: 
2. Items in regards to the facility’s Electrical Site Plan drawings (Electrical Details - E21_222028 BH) are needed to 

more accurately determine the location of the Electrical Equipment, the Electrical Connections, and Wiring, 
including Underground (UG) 

3. An appropriate Power Distribution Planning to ensure that there is adequate capacity (transformer capacity 
and feeder capacity) to meet the load demands of the facility shall be specified 

4. The facility’s potential annual electric energy (power consumption) shall be determined 
5. If Electric Vehicle (EV) Chargers are considered: Please provide the number of EV chargers to be installed as 

well as type of chargers.  For example, does the applicant intend to install Level II charger or Level III DC Fast 
chargers? Quantities of each type? And will these be connected from the facility’s main meter or connected 
directly to the City’s electric utility distribution system? 

6. The Electric Utility Dept. is requesting a review meeting with the developer & electrical engineers to review 
and clarify any additional electrical related items.  

Prior to the issuance of a building permit:  
7. Show the location of the Padmount Transformers, Automatic Transfer Switch (ATS), and the meter banks. The 

Padmount Transformer locations will need to be in an accessible location to our trucks and will need 8-ft (8 
feet) of minimum clearance in the front and 3-ft (3 feet) of minimum clearance on the sides and rear. This 
clearance includes landscaping. None trees, plants, shrubs or vegetations are allowed within the clearance 

8. Provide the electric riser diagrams for all buildings, the proposed electrical loads and the voltages required, 
including proposed Electrical Cable Schedules 

9. Provide the Amp Sizes and Voltages for any other services needed than the commercial units, such as lighting, 
irrigation, etc. If any meter is over 320 amps for Single Phase, and over 200 amps for 3-Phase, a CT Cabinet and 
CT Meter Can will need to be installed. All meters and CT Cabinets will need a minimum of 36” (36 in) of 
clearance in front of them 

10. Provide a 10-ft (10 feet) wide utility easement for the underground electric lines, Padmount Transformers & 
Switchgear that will serve this project. The Main Electric Line Routing from the Poles to the Padmount 
Transformers will be determined by the Lake Worth Beach design engineer 

11. Transformer & Electrical Equipment Box Pad Elevations shall be FEMA 100 yr. Flood-Plain Elevation + 1-ft (1 
feet)   

12. Provide details for Temporary Power during construction, Voltage & Amps and approximate Location of service 
point  



 
PZB No. 22-00900002 

    P a g e  | 12 
 
 
  

13. Complete payment to Lake Worth Beach for electrical infrastructure costs for labor & materials to serve this 
project  

14. The customer will be responsible for installing any Secondary Conduit at a minimum of 24” (24 in) deep from 
the Secondary Winding of the Transformer of the property to the building 

15. The customer will be responsible for Any and All labor and material costs for providing electric service to this 
project.  

16. The CLWB will procure one (1) Padmount Transformer and Box Pad to serve the facility, the owner/developer 
is responsible for the reimbursement costs to the City. The City will procure one (1) Spare Padmount 
Transformer at the City’s expense.  

Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy: 
17. Provide copy of recorded Utility Easement.  
18. Note that No permanent power can NOT be provided until a Final Electrical Inspection is done.  

 
 

ADVISORY BOARD POTENTIAL MOTION:   
I move to recommend approval with conditions of the request for the Mixed Use Urban Planned Development, Major 
Site Plan, Conditional Use Permit (CUP), and Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program (SBIP) requests for Lake Worth Station 
at 930 N G Street based on upon the competent and substantial evidence provided in the staff report and in the testimony 
at the public hearing.  
 
I move to recommend disapproval of the request for the Mixed Use Urban Planned Development, Major Site Plan, 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP), and Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program (SBIP) requests for Lake Worth Station at 930 N 
G Street. The project does not meet the conditional use criteria for the following reasons [Board member please state 
reasons.].  
 
Consequent Action: The Planning & Zoning Board’s recommendation will be forwarded to the City Commission as part of 
the public hearing supporting documents and materials upon first reading of Ordinance 2022-15. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

A. Qualitative Development Standards 
B. Conditional Use Findings 
C. Application Package (site plan, architectural plans & supporting documents) 

 
  



 
PZB No. 22-00900002 

    P a g e  | 13 
 
 
  

ATTACHMENT A – Qualitative Development Standards 

 

Section 23.2-31(c) –Qualitative Development Standards  Analysis 

  
1. Harmonious and efficient organization. All elements of the site plan shall be harmoniously and 
efficiently organized in relation to topography, the size and type of plot, the character of adjoining 
property and the type and size of buildings. The site shall be developed so as to not impede the 
normal and orderly development or improvement of surrounding property for uses permitted in these 
LDRs. 
 

In Compliance  

2. Preservation of natural conditions. The natural (refer to landscape code, Article 6 of these LDRs) 
landscape shall be preserved in its natural state, insofar as practical, by minimizing tree and soil 
removal and by such other site planning approaches as are appropriate. Terrain and vegetation shall 
not be disturbed in a manner likely to significantly increase either wind or water erosion within or 
adjacent to a development site. Natural detention areas and other means of natural vegetative 
filtration of stormwater runoff shall be used to minimize ground and surface water pollution, 
particularly adjacent to major waterbodies. Fertilizer/pesticide conditions may be attached to 
development adjacent to waterbodies. Marinas shall be permitted only in water with a mean low 
tide depth of four feet or more.  
 

In compliance 

3. Screening and buffering. Fences, walls or vegetative screening shall be provided where needed 
and practical to protect residents and users from undesirable views, lighting, noise, odors or other 
adverse off-site effects, and to protect residents and users of off-site development from on-site 
adverse effects. This section may be interpreted to require screening and buffering in addition to that 
specifically required by other sections of these LDRs, but not less.  
 

In compliance  

4. Enhancement of residential privacy. The site plan shall provide reasonable, visual and acoustical 
privacy for all dwelling units located therein and adjacent thereto. Fences, walks, barriers and 
vegetation shall be arranged for the protection and enhancement of property and to enhance the 
privacy of the occupants.  
 

In compliance 

5. Emergency access. Structures and other site features shall be so arranged as to permit emergency 
vehicle access by some practical means to all sides of all buildings. 
 

In compliance 

6. Access to public ways. All buildings, dwelling units and other facilities shall have safe and 
convenient access to a public street, walkway or other area dedicated to common use; curb cuts close 
to railroad +crossings shall be avoided. 
 

In compliance  

7. Pedestrian circulation. There shall be provided a pedestrian circulation system which is insulated 
as completely as reasonably possible from the vehicular circulation system. 

In compliance  

  
8. Design of ingress and egress drives. The location, size and numbers of ingress and egress drives 
to the site will be arranged to minimize the negative impacts on public and private ways and on 
adjacent private property. Merging and turnout lanes traffic dividers shall be provided where they 
would significantly improve safety for vehicles and pedestrians.  
 

In compliance 

9. Coordination of on-site circulation with off-site circulation. The arrangement of public or 
common ways for vehicular and pedestrian circulation shall be coordinated with the pattern of 

In compliance  



 
PZB No. 22-00900002 

    P a g e  | 14 
 
 
  

existing or planned streets and pedestrian or bicycle pathways in the area. Minor streets shall not be 
connected to major streets in such a way as to facilitate improper utilization. 
 
10. Design of on-site public right-of-way (ROW). On-site public street and rights-of-way shall be 
designed to for maximum efficiency. They shall occupy no more land than is required to provide 
access, nor shall they unnecessarily fragment development into small blocks. Large developments 
containing extensive public rights-of-way shall have said rights-of-way arranged in a hierarchy with 
local streets providing direct access to parcels and other streets providing no or limited access to 
parcels. 
  

Not applicable 

11. Off-street parking, loading and vehicular circulation areas. Off-street parking, loading and 
vehicular circulation areas shall be located, designed and screened to minimize the impact of noise, 
glare and odor on adjacent property. 
 

In compliance 

12. Refuse and service areas. Refuse and service areas shall be located, designed and screened to 
minimize the impact of noise, glare and odor on adjacent property. 
 

In compliance 

13. Protection of property values. The elements of the site plan shall be arranged so as to have 
minimum negative impact on the property values of adjoining property. 
 

In compliance  

14. Transitional development. Where the property being developed is located on the edge of the 
zoning district, the site plan shall be designed to provide for a harmonious transition between 
districts. Building exteriors shall complement other buildings in the vicinity in size, scale, mass, bulk, 
rhythm of openings and character. Consideration shall be given to a harmonious transition in height 
and design style so that the change in zoning districts is not accentuated. Additional consideration 
shall be given to complementary setbacks between the existing and proposed development.  
 

In compliance 

15. Consideration of future development. In finding whether or not the above standards are met, 
the review authority shall consider likely future development as well as existing development.  
 

In compliance  

 

Section 23.2-31(d) - Qualitative Buildings, generally Analysis 

1. Buildings or structures which are part of a present or future group or complex shall have a unity 
of character and design. The relationship of forms of the use, texture and color of material shall be 
such as to create one (1) harmonious whole. When the area involved forms an integral part of, is 
immediately adjacent to, or otherwise clearly affects the future of any established section of the city, 
the design, scale and location of the site shall enhance rather than detract from the character, value 
and attractiveness of the surroundings. Harmonious does not mean or require that the buildings be 
the same. 
 

In compliance  

2. Buildings or structures located along strips of land or on a single site, and not a part of a unified 
multi-building complex shall achieve as much visual harmony with the surroundings as is possible 
under the circumstances. If a building is built in an undeveloped area, three (3) primary requirements 
shall be met, including honest design construction, proper design concepts, and appropriateness to 
the city. 
 

In compliance  

3. All façades visible to public or adjacent property shall be designed to create a harmonious whole. 
Materials shall express their function clearly and not appear foreign to the rest of the building. 
 

In compliance  



 
PZB No. 22-00900002 

    P a g e  | 15 
 
 
  

4. The concept of harmony shall not infer that buildings must look alike or be of the same style. 
Harmony can be achieved through the proper consideration of scale, mass, bulk, proportion, height, 
orientation, site planning, landscaping, materials, rhythm of solids to voids and architectural 
components including but not limited to porches, roof types, fenestration, orientation and stylistic 
expression. 
 

In compliance 

5. Look-alike buildings shall not be allowed unless, in the opinion of the board, there is sufficient 
separation to preserve the aesthetic character of the present or evolving neighborhood. This is not 
to be construed to prohibit the duplication of floor plans and exterior treatment in a planned 
development where, in the opinion of the board, the aesthetics or the development depend upon, or 
are enhanced by the look-alike buildings and their relationship to each other. 
 

Not Applicable 

6. Buildings, which are of symbolic design for reasons of advertising, unless otherwise compatible 
with the criteria herein, will not be approved by the board. Symbols attached to the buildings will not 
be allowed unless they are secondary in appearance to the building and landscape and are an 
aesthetic asset to the building, project and neighborhood. 
 

Not Applicable 

7. Exterior lighting may be used to illuminate a building and its grounds for safety purposes, but in 
an aesthetic manner. Lighting is not to be used as a form of advertising in a manner that is not 
compatible to the neighborhood or in a manner that draws considerably more attention to the 
building or grounds at night than in the day. Lighting following the form of the building or part of the 
building will not be allowed if, in the opinion of the board, the overall effect will be detrimental to 
the environment. All fixtures used in exterior lighting are to be selected for functional as well as 
aesthetic value. 

In compliance  

  
8. Building surfaces, walls and roofs shall be compatible and in harmony with the neighborhood. 
 

In compliance 

9. "Take-out" or "pick-up" windows of retail or wholesale establishments shall not be located on a 
building façade that faces a public right-of-way, unless they are designed in such a manner as to 
constitute an aesthetic asset to the building and neighborhood. 
 

Not Applicable 

10. All exterior forms, attached to buildings, shall be in conformity to and secondary to the building. 
They shall be an asset to the aesthetics of the site and to the neighborhood. 
  

In compliance  

11. All telephones, vending machines, or any facility dispensing merchandise, or a service on private 
property, shall be confined to a space built into the building or buildings or enclosed in a separate 
structure compatible with the main building, and where appropriate and feasible, should not be 
readily visible from off-premises. 
 

Not Applicable 

12. Buildings of a style or style-type foreign to south Florida or its climate will not be allowed. It is 
also to be understood that buildings which do not conform to the existing or to the evolving 
atmosphere of the city, even though possessing historical significance to south Florida, may not be 
approved. 
 

Not Applicable 

13. No advertising will be allowed on any exposed amenity or facility such as benches and trash 
containers. 
 

In compliance 

14. Light spillage restriction. The applicant shall make adequate provision to ensure that light 
spillage onto adjacent residential properties is minimized. 

In compliance  

 



 
PZB No. 22-00900002 

    P a g e  | 16 
 
 
  

 

Section 23.2-31(h) – Criteria for parking lots and vehicular use areas Analysis 

1. Parking lots and other vehicular use areas are to be designed as an aesthetic asset to a 
neighborhood and to the building, group of buildings, or facility they serve. A parking lot is to be 
considered an outside space; a transitional space that is located between access areas (such as 
roads) and the building, group of buildings or other outside spaces which it serves. The parking lot, 
because it is viewed from above as well as at eye level, should be designed accordingly. 
 

In compliance  

2. Parking lots, vehicular use areas, and vehicles parked therein are to be effectively screened from 
the public view and from adjacent property in a manner that is attractive and compatible with safety, 
the neighborhood and the facility served. 
 

In compliance  

3. The responsibility for beautification and design of a parking lot is the same as that which a 
homeowner has to his residential lot. The atmosphere within a parking lot or vehicular use area is to 
be as pleasant and park-like as possible, rather than a harsh stand of paving. Trees are of primary 
importance to the landscape and are not to be minimized in either height or quantity. Trees impart 
a sense of three-dimensional space in a relatively flat area. Trees cast shadows that help to reduce 
the monotony of an expanse of paving and create a refuge from the tropical sun. Signs designating 
entrances, exits and regulations are to be of a tasteful design and shall be subject to review by the 
board. Consideration may be given to use of pavement which is varied in texture or color to designate 
lanes for automobile traffic, pedestrian walks and parking spaces. Brightly colored pavement is to 
be used with restraint. In order to create a pleasant atmosphere, it is recommended that 
consideration be given to sculpture, fountains, gardens, pools and benches. Design emphasis is to be 
given to the entrance and exit areas of the lot. Trash, refuse and unaesthetic storage and mechanical 
equipment shall be screened from the parking lot. 
 

In compliance  

4. Lighting is to be designed for visual effects as well as safety and resistance to vandalism. Care 
should be taken not to create a nuisance to the neighborhood from brightness or glare. Low lights in 
modest scale can be used along with feature lighting emphasizing plants, trees, barriers, entrances 
and exits. The fixtures are to be selected for functional value and aesthetic quality. Fixtures should 
be regarded as "furniture of the parking lot" which are visible both day and night. 

In compliance  

  
 

Section 23.2-31(l) – Community Appearance Criteria Analysis 

1. The plan for the proposed structure or project is in conformity with good taste, good design, and 
in general contributes to the image of the city as a place of beauty, spaciousness, harmony, taste, 
fitness, broad vistas and high quality. 
 

In compliance  

2. The proposed structure or project is not, in its exterior design and appearance, of inferior quality 
such as to cause the nature of the local environment or evolving environment to materially 
depreciate in appearance and value. 
 

In compliance  

3. The proposed structure or project is in harmony with the proposed developments in the general 
area, with code requirements pertaining to site plan, signage and landscaping, and the 
comprehensive plan for the city, and with the criteria set forth herein. 
 

In compliance 

4. The proposed structure or project is in compliance with this section and 23.2-29, Conditional Use 
Permits (CUP), as applicable. 

In compliance 
 

 



 
PZB No. 22-00900002 

    P a g e  | 17 
 
 
  

ATTACHMENT B - Findings for Granting Conditional Uses 

Prior to approving any conditional use permit, the decision-making authority shall find based on competent and substantial 
evidence that the following criteria related to conditional uses are met: 
 

Section 23.2-29(d) General findings relating to harmony with LDRs and protection of public 
interest. 

Analysis 

1. The conditional use exactly as proposed at the location where proposed will be in harmony with 
the uses which, under these LDRs and the future land use element, are most likely to occur in the 
immediate area where located. 
 

In compliance  

2. The conditional use exactly as proposed at the location where proposed will be in harmony with 
existing uses in the immediate area where located. 
 

In compliance  

3. The conditional use exactly as proposed will not result in substantially less public benefit or greater 
harm than would result from use of the site for some use permitted by right or some other conditional 
use permitted on the site. 
 

In compliance 

4. The conditional use exactly as proposed will not result in more intensive development in advance 
of when such development is approved by the future land use element of the comprehensive plan. 
 

In compliance 

 

Section 23.2-29(e) Specific findings for all conditional uses.  
 

Analysis 

1.  The proposed conditional use will not generate traffic volumes or movements which will result 
in a significant adverse impact or reduce the level of service provided on any street to a level 
lower than would result from a development permitted by right. 

 

In compliance  

2.  The proposed conditional use will not result in a significantly greater amount of through traffic 
on local streets than would result from a development permitted by right and is appropriately 
located with respect to collector and arterial streets 

 

In compliance  

3.  The proposed conditional use will not produce significant air pollution emissions, or will 
appropriately mitigate anticipated emissions to a level compatible with that which would result 
from a development permitted by right. 

 

In compliance 

4.  The proposed conditional use will be so located in relation to the thoroughfare system that 
neither extension nor enlargement nor any other alteration of that system in a manner 
resulting in higher net public cost or earlier incursion of public cost than would result from 
development permitted by right. 

 

In compliance 

5. The proposed conditional use will be so located in relation to water lines, sanitary sewers, 
storm sewers, surface drainage systems and other utility systems that neither extension nor 
enlargement nor any other alteration of such systems in a manner resulting in higher net public 
cost or earlier incursion of public cost than would result from development permitted by right. 

 

In compliance 

6.  The proposed conditional use will not place a demand on municipal police or fire protection 
service beyond the capacity of those services, except that the proposed facility may place a 
demand on municipal police or fire protection services which does not exceed that likely to 
result from a development permitted by right. 

In compliance 



 
PZB No. 22-00900002 

    P a g e  | 18 
 
 
  

 
7.  The proposed conditional use will not generate significant noise, or will appropriately mitigate 

anticipated noise to a level compatible with that which would result from a development 
permitted by right. Any proposed use must meet all the requirements and stipulations set forth 
in section 15.24, Noise control. 

 

In compliance 

8. The proposed conditional use will not generate light or glare which encroaches onto any 
residential property in excess of that allowed in section 23.4-10, Exterior lighting. 

 

In compliance 

 



1 
 

 
 
July 22, 2022  

 
Mr. William Waters, AIA 
Director of Community Sustainability Department 
City of Lake Worth Beach 
1900 2nd Avenue North 
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33461 
 
Re:    Lake Worth Station – Project Narrative – Updated per SPRT #1 
  Mixed Use Residential/Office Planned Development, 1.084 Acres 
  Major Site Plan, Planned Development and Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program  

IBI Group Project Number 137767 
LWB Project Number 21‐01700076 

 
Dear Mr. Waters: 
 
We hereby submit this Project Narrative, in support of the proposed development of the project called 
Lake Worth Station, on behalf of Bridge Holding LLC.  The subject properties incorporated into the 
overall project area are described as follows: 
 
Overall Unified Property:  930 N G Street, 1.084 acres 
 
Property Control Numbers:   

38‐43‐44‐21‐15‐274‐0080     
38‐43‐44‐21‐15‐274‐0070     
38‐43‐44‐21‐15‐274‐0040     
38‐43‐44‐21‐15‐274‐0030     
38‐43‐44‐21‐15‐274‐0020     

 

MAJOR SITE PLAN APPLICATION: 
 
Location:    930 N G Street, Lake Worth Beach, FL, Palm Beach County 
     

FEMA Flood Zone:  Zone X (0.2 % annual chance flood hazard) 
 
As described in the Survey Legal Description:  Refer to survey for full legal description. 
Parcels 2 & 3:  Lots 7 and 8, Block 274, The Palm Beach Farms Co. Plat No. 2  
Parcels 4 & 5:  Lots 4, 5 and 6, Block 274, The Palm Beach Farms Co. Plat No. 2 
Parcel 6:  Lot 2, Block 274, The Palm Beach Farms Co. Plat No. 2 

 
   



2 
 

Zoning:  No change is proposed. 
Current:  TOD‐E 
Proposed:  TOD‐E 

 
Land Use Designation:  No change is proposed. 

Current:  TOD 
Proposed:  TOD 

  
Existing Use:  Five (5) Parcels of vacant land, previously developed and unified as one parcel.   
 
Proposed Use:  Mixed Use development of residential and office, comprised of: 

 
Residential:  81 units (63‐1BR, 18‐2BR) 
Leasing Office:  891 square feet 
Co‐work Office:  891 square feet 

  
 

Project Background:   
 
This project site is located within the CRA and consists of five parcels, which are currently vacant.   
 
The overall property is bordered by: 

North:  10th Avenue North 
South:  Residential Parcel, which is not included in the project. 
West:  North G Street 
East:  A platted 10’ alley, which is unimproved.   

 
Existing utilities are available to the site by means of: 

North:  Existing municipal drainage system 
South:  N/A 
West:  Existing 12” CIP watermain and overhead power 
East:  Existing 6” PVC watermain and 8” PVC sanitary sewer 

 
The proposed mixed‐use project includes the construction of a five‐story building, surface parking and 
site amenities, to serve 81 residential units and 2 offices. Of the 81 residential units, 63 will be 1‐
bedroom units and 18 will be 2‐bedroom units.  39 of the 1‐bedroom units will be workforce housing.  
At grade on‐site and street parking are also provided.   
 
The site will provide water & sewer, stormwater facilities and sidewalk infrastructure. The South Florida 
Water Management District (SFWMD) requirements include analysis of the 5 Year ‐1 Day, 25 Year ‐ 3 
Day, 100 Year ‐ 3 Day storm events for lower parking inlet elevation, berm and discharge rates, and 
finished floor elevations respectively. Furthermore, the City of Lake Worth requires the 3 Year ‐ 1 Hour 
storm event be evaluated and fully retained on‐site (Code of Ordinance Sec. 18‐103.). According to the 
Eastern Palm Beach County map included in this report, the control water table is estimated at 4.50 ft 
NAVD. However, the geotechnical report from TSFGEO shows the water table encountered during 
testing is found at elevations approximately 8‐9.5 feet below ground surface, March 9th, 2022. Based on 
average site grade of 13.8, in the vicinity of the exfiltration tests, we established the water table at 
elevation 5.8 ft NAVD for a much more conservative approach. The drainage system features exfiltration 



3 
 

trench to meet the water quality and water quantity requirements. A control structure featuring a 6" 
inverted triangle orifice will discharge offsite to the City storm system.   
 
Per Palm Beach County Wellfield Maps, this project site is located in Wellfield Zone 4.  An Affidavit of 
Notification has been submitted to Palm Beach County Department of Environmental Resources 
Management, who has provided the following written confirmation that a permit is not required. 
 

 
 
 
According to the Major Thoroughfare Design Guidelines, the project site is located within Major 
Thoroughfare E, which runs along 10th Avenue North, from Dixie Highway to the West City limit.  10th 
Avenue North is described as “a prominent roadway regularly used by residents, as well as incoming 
commuters from I‐95.”   
 

Site Characteristics:   

 
The site is currently vacant, with existing trees and an encroaching guy wire.  The parcels have been 
considered vacant since 1999.  This is based on a review of historical aerials conducted by the 
Geotechnical Consultant, TSFGEO.   
 
The topography varies from 13.6 to 16.8 NAVD.  The perimeter road elevations are: 
  North G Street:  centerline elevations vary from 14.41 to 14.62 NAVD 
  10th Avenue North:  centerline elevations vary from 15.70 to 16.50 NAVD 
  East 10’ Alley:  West R/W elevations vary from 14.50 to 15.10 NAVD 
 
   



4 
 

Surrounding Property Information:  Uses, Architectural Style and Size 

East:  A platted 10’ alley (unimproved) separates the subject property from the adjacent residential lots, 
comprised of single family, apartment buildings and a vacant lot. 
 
West:  The North G Street 40’ municipal right‐of way abuts the property.  It is comprised of a two‐way, 
two‐lane undivided roadway, with curb and gutter on both sides, as well as a concrete sidewalk on the 
east side only.  Beyond the roadway is a vacant parcel, which abuts the Florida East Coast Railroad right‐
of‐way. 
 
North:  The 10th Avenue North municipal right‐of‐way is a two‐way, two‐lane partially divided roadway.  
Beyond the roadway are commercial structures. 
 
South:  A residential lot is located south of the property and is not included in the proposed 
development. 
 
Please refer to following exhibits for the pictures of the project site and surrounding areas. 
 
   



5 
 

Aerial photo of site – along 10th Avenue North 
 

 

 



6 
 

 

Aerial photo of site – along North G Street 

 

 



7 
 

Adjacent property photo – along 10’ alley 

 

 



8 
 

Adjacent property photo – looking west on N G Street, vacant lot and FEC  

 

Adjacent property photo – east view on 10th Ave N, triplex apartment building  

 

 

 

   



9 
 

Adjacent property photo – residential building located south of subject property and 

apartment building east of subject property 

   



10 
 

Justification of the Proposal: 
 
The proposed development will provide workforce housing and is consistent with the vision of the City 
of Lake Worth Beach and the CRA.   The proposed mixed‐use development is consistent with the intent 
of the Transit‐Oriented Development (TOD) and the Land Use classification TOD and TOD‐E for Zoning.  
According to the City’s Land Development Regulations (LDR), Section 23.3.19, the intent of this 
designation is “to promote compact, mixed‐use development, including multiple‐family residential, 
office and retail, near proposed or existing transportation Infrastructure.”   
 

Compliance with the Site Design Qualitative Standards in Section 23.2‐31: 

1. Harmonious and efficient organization:  

Required:  The site plan is designed to be harmoniously and efficiently organized in relation to 
topography, the size and type of plot, the character of adjoining property and the type and size of 
buildings. The site shall be developed so as to not impede the normal and orderly development or 
improvement of surrounding property for uses permitted in these LDRs. 
 
Response:  The site plan has been designed to be harmoniously and efficiently organized in relation 
to topography, the size and type of plot, the character of adjoining property and the type and size of 
buildings.  The character of the proposed development is consistent with the Vision for the Major 
Thoroughfare Design Guidelines, providing for a vibrant, diverse, safe, inviting and sustainable 
features.  With an open plaza, located at the 10th Avenue North frontage, the project invites 
community interaction.  The perimeter public sidewalks provide walkability and connectivity to the 
on‐site pedestrian walkways.  The building is placed along the North G Street corridor, with surface 
parking east of the building, such that it minimizes any adverse effects to its neighbors.  Driveway 
access is placed on the north and west side streets, minimizing vehicular interaction with the 
pedestrian circulation.  On‐site parking is designed along the south and east of the property, 
screening it from public view, by means of low walls and landscaping. 

2. Preservation of natural conditions:   

Required:  The natural (refer to landscape code, Article 6 of these LDRs) landscape shall be 
preserved in its natural state, insofar as practical, by minimizing tree and soil removal and by such 
other site planning approaches as are appropriate. Terrain and vegetation shall not be disturbed in a 
manner likely to significantly increase either wind or water erosion within or adjacent to a 
development site. Natural detention areas and other means of natural vegetative filtration of 
stormwater runoff shall be used to minimize ground and surface water pollution, particularly 
adjacent to major waterbodies as specified in Part II, Chapter 12, Health and Sanitation, Article VIII, 
Fertilizer Friendly Use Regulations. Fertilizer/pesticide conditions may be attached to development 
adjacent to waterbodies. Marinas shall be permitted only in water with a mean low tide depth of 
four (4) feet or more.  
 
Response:  The subject property is undeveloped, with existing trees and vegetation.  Proposed 
improvements will be provided in compliance with environmental jurisdictional agencies and 
enhancements will include water quality, water quantity and erosion control measures. 
 
 
 



11 
 

3. Screening and buffering: 

Required:  Fences, walls or vegetative screening shall be provided where needed and practical to 
protect residents and users from undesirable views, lighting, noise, odors or other adverse off‐site 
effects, and to protect residents and users of off‐site development from on‐site adverse effects. This 
section may be interpreted to require screening and buffering in addition to that specifically 
required by other sections of these LDRs, but not less.  
 
Response:  Screening of the on‐site parking is provided by placing it at the rear of the property and 
will be screened by the buildings and landscape improvements.  The solid waste dumpster will be 
located in an enclosure located at the southeast of the property and will provide collection and 
storage of solid waste and recyclables.  Site lighting will comply with the City’s lighting design and 
illumination standards, such that it will not spill over to surrounding properties.  Landscaping of the 
perimeter buffers will be designed in such a manner as to compliment the architectural style of the 
buildings. 

4. Enhancement of residential privacy: 

Required:  The site plan shall provide reasonable, visual and acoustical privacy for all dwelling units 
located therein and adjacent thereto. Fences, walks, barriers and vegetation shall be arranged for 
the protection and enhancement of property and to enhance the privacy of the occupants.  
 
Response:  The project will be consistent with Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design 
Principles (CPTED) to reinforce the privacy and safety of the residents.  The building will be designed 
to provide acoustical and visual privacy for the residents, by means of building placement, impact 
windows and high rated insulation.  Perimeter landscape plantings will provide visual screening.  The 
proposed building has been placed at 83’ from the south property line, in excess of the 15’ required, 
and 69’ from the east property line, in excess of the 10’ required, thereby allowing for additional 
residential privacy for the abutting properties.   

5. Emergency access: 

Required:  Structures and other site features shall be so arranged as to permit emergency vehicle 
access by some practical means to all sides of all buildings.  
 
Response:  Emergency access is provided by means of the perimeter streets and interior private 
roadway.    Fire truck access to the west side of the building will have access to a proposed fire 
hydrant and Fire Department Connection (FDC).  In addition, the building will have and additional 
access to an existing fire hydrant at the northeast corner of the property.   A truck turning analysis 
was conducted, using an aerial fire truck template to access the rear drive aisle to maneuver from 
the side street onto the property.  In addition, emergency ambulance templates will also have full 
access available on all interior drives. The building will be provided with a fire sprinkler system, 
connected to a Fire Alarm. 

6. Access to public ways: 

Required:  The buildings, dwelling units and other facilities shall have safe and convenient access to 
a public street, walkway or other area dedicated to common use; curb cuts close to railroad 
crossings shall be avoided.  
 



12 
 

Response:  Vehicular access is provided by means of driveway connections at 10th Avenue N and N G 
Street.  Pedestrian access is provided along the north and west perimeter public rights‐of‐way, as 
well as internal pedestrian pathways.     

7. Pedestrian circulation: 

Required:  There shall be provided a pedestrian circulation system which is insulated as completely 
as reasonably possible from the vehicular circulation system.  
 
Response: The on‐site pedestrian circulation system is complimentary to the perimeter public 
sidewalks along the two perimeter streets providing connectivity to the internal parking area, the 
plaza area and the external public sidewalks.    

8. Design of ingress and egress drives: 

Required:  The location, size and numbers of ingress and egress drives to the site will be arranged to 
minimize the negative impacts on public and private ways and on adjacent private property. 
Merging and turnout lanes traffic dividers shall be provided where they would significantly improve 
safety for vehicles and pedestrians. 
 
Response:  The proposed ingress and egress, are provided by means of two driveway connections 
located at the north and west side streets. The private roadway provides a 22’ wide, two‐way 
roadway to connect to the parking area circulation.  Due to low traffic volumes and design of 
perimeter streets, turn lanes are not required.   

9. Coordination of on‐site circulation with off‐site circulation: 

Required:  The arrangement of public or common ways for vehicular and pedestrian circulation shall 
be coordinated with the pattern of existing or planned streets and pedestrian or bicycle pathways in 
the area. Minor streets shall not be connected to major streets in such a way as to facilitate 
improper utilization. 
 
Response:  The proposed vehicular and pedestrian improvements to the public rights‐of‐way 
adjacent to the site allow for ingress and egress, as well as on‐street parking that will reinforce the 
desired development pattern.  The connection to the existing perimeter roadways of 10th Avenue 
North and North G Street are not affected.   In addition to emergency vehicle accessibility, a truck 
turning analysis confirmed that solid waste collection vehicles are able to enter the property without 
conflict.  The return radius provided on the entrance drives allow for unrestricted access by 
emergency and solid waste collection vehicles. 

10. Design of on‐site public right‐of‐way: 

Required:  On‐site public street and rights‐of‐way shall be designed for maximum efficiency. They 
shall occupy no more land than is required to provide access, nor shall they unnecessarily fragment 
development into small blocks. Large developments containing extensive public rights‐of‐way shall 
have said rights‐of‐way arranged in a hierarchy with local streets providing direct access to parcels 
and other streets providing no or limited direct access to parcels. 
 
Response: The project will provide on‐street parking on the west right‐of‐way, as well as adding or 
improving to the public sidewalks.  On North G Street, there are 12 parallel parking spaces proposed, 
with two of these spaces to be considered as Temporary Loading spaces.  The location of the on‐



13 
 

street parking was designed in coordination with the City.  Access to the off‐street parking is 
provided by means of the proposed driveway connection and internal roadway, in compliance with 
City and FDOT standards. 

11. Off‐street parking, loading and vehicular circulation areas: 

Required:  Off‐street parking, loading and vehicular circulation areas shall be located, designed and 
screened to minimize the impact of noise, glare and odor on adjacent property. 
 
Response:  The site is designed so that the off‐street parking, temporary loading and vehicular 
circulation are located, designed and screened to minimize the impact of noise, glare and odor on 
adjacent properties.  Site lighting and landscaping improvements are designed to comply with the 
City’s standards.   

12. Refuse and service areas: 

Required:  Refuse and service areas shall be located, designed and screened to minimize the impact 
of noise, glare and odor on adjacent property.  
 
Response:  Refuse and service areas will be provided by means of dumpster, located at the southeast 
corner of the property and within the dumpster enclosure, where solid waste and recyclables will be 
collected.   

13. Protection of property values: 

Required:  The elements of the site plan shall be arranged so as to have minimum negative impact 
on the property values of adjoining property.  
 
Response:  The proposed project will have a positive impact on the adjoining property values, as well 

as the overall community values, by means of the site plan elements related to the mixed‐use 

building.   The design character of the project is described as inspired by the Modern Industrial 

design style.  A mix of bold and straight lines, simple volumes, metal rails, aluminum cantilever 

balconies, roofs, and entries.  Accents are materials that are left after a business vacates its 

industrial space and becomes an integral part of an industrial style. No other style is so strong with 

metal elements, bold colors and textures while metal is sleek and modern.   

 
Transitional development: 
Required:  Where the property being developed is located on the edge of the zoning district, the site 
plan shall be designed to provide for a harmonious transition between districts. Building exteriors 
shall complement other buildings in the vicinity in size, scale, mass, bulk, rhythm of openings and 
character. Consideration shall be given to a harmonious transition in height and design style so that 
the change in zoning districts is not accentuated. Additional consideration shall be given to 
complementary setbacks between the existing and proposed development.  
 
Response:  This project site is located in the Transit‐Oriented Development (TOD) land use and TOD‐E 
zoning areas, therefore this section does not apply.  However, the site plan is designed with the 
principles of the new urbanism, inspired by the old industrial style, strategically oriented within the 
site creating an icon along the main intersection which will be integrated into the surrounding area. 
 
 



14 
 

Consideration of future development: 
Required:  In finding whether or not the above standards are met, the review authority shall 
consider likely future development as well as existing development. 
 
Response:  The project is a single‐phase project that will complement the City and CRA’s Vision for 
the TOD‐E area, City’s Land Development Regulations, the Major Thoroughfares Design Guidelines 
and the Sustainability /Economic Development objectives, as well as, the design of the site and 
building that are consistent with urban design principles.  Therefore, it is requested that the review 
authority consider that the above standards are met. 
 

 

Compliance with Community Appearance Criteria Section 23.2‐31(I): 
The general requirements outlined in this section are minimum aesthetic standards for all site 
developments, buildings, structures, or alterations within the corporate limits of the city, except single‐
family residences. However, additions to existing buildings and sites shall be subject to review by the 
development review official for a determination regarding submission to the planning and zoning board 
or historic resources preservation board for review. All site development, structures, buildings or 
alterations to site development, structures or buildings shall demonstrate proper design concepts, 
express honest design construction, be appropriate to surroundings, and meet the following community 
appearance criteria:  
 
Required: 

1. The plan for the proposed structure or project is in conformity with good taste, good design, and 
in general contributes to the image of the city as a place of beauty, spaciousness, harmony, 
taste, fitness, broad vistas and high quality.  

2. The proposed structure or project is not, in its exterior design and appearance, of inferior 
quality such as to cause the nature of the local environment or evolving environment to 
materially depreciate in appearance and value.  

3. The proposed structure or project is in harmony with the proposed developments in the general 
area, with code requirements pertaining to site plan, signage and landscaping, and the 
comprehensive plan for the city, and with the criteria set forth herein.  

4. The proposed structure or project is in compliance with this section and 23.2‐29, as applicable.  

 
Response:   
The proposed Lake Worth Station project will adhere to the Compliance with Community Appearance 
Criteria.  The design and layout of the site are consistent with the Major Thoroughfare Design Guidelines.  
The elevations are inspired by the Modern Industrial architectural style, as well as the Design Guidelines.  
The project will enhance and embrace the City’s Vision, creating a vibrant, safe, inviting and sustainable 
community asset.   
 

   



15 
 

Major Thoroughfare Design Guidelines: 

 Encourage high‐quality mixed‐use infill development that is comprised of residential, office, 
entertainment, and commercial uses. 

• Provide the residents living in the upper floors of a mixed‐use development with high‐quality 
standards of living. 

• Protect the pedestrian and enhance the pedestrian environment and scale. 
• Provide residents with entrances separate from office and commercial spaces. 
• Create a base that distinctly grounds the building, and which enhances the streetwall along each 

thoroughfare. 
• Developments should include open spaces accessible to the public, located on the ground floor, 

as well as private spaces for residents. 
• Ensure that commercial/retail spaces on the lower floor are appropriately designed to promote 

uses that serve the community living in a mixed‐use development. 

• Ensure compatibility between adjacent uses, especially residential. 

Response:  The site elements comply with the guidelines state above.  The proposed development is 
consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and the CRA’s redevelopment initiatives and programs. 

MIXED USE URBAN PLANNED DEVELOPMENT: Per Section 23.3‐25.e 

Project Narrative addressing the following: 

 A general description of the proposed development, including the total acreage involved in the 
project; the number and percentage of acres devoted to various categories of land use; the 
number and type of dwelling units proposed and the overall project density in dwelling units per 
gross acre; the minimum design standards for such features as lot shape and size, building size 
and lot coverage, open space, off-street parking and loading, signs, and landscaping; 

Response:  The project consists of a 1.084 acre site, to be developed in a single phase and 
single building.  The 5-story building will provide 81 multi-family units.  Two of the units will serve 
as a Leasing/Clubroom and a Co-Work Office.  Parking is provided in excess of required.  Also 
provided are bicycle parking, as well as four electric charging spaces.  Refer to the following 
detailed information. 

 



16 
    



17 
 

 
 
 
 

 A statement indicating the manner in which the proposed project complies with the 
comprehensive plan: 

Response:  

1. Location:  The project is located within a mixed-use district east of Interstate 95, which is 
designated as Transit Oriented Development-East. 

2. Minimum area required:  The project area is 1.084 acres, which exceeds the minimum area 
required of 0.5 acres. 

3. Permitted uses:  This project is a mixture of residential and office uses, which are permitted 
uses. 

4. Required setbacks:  The required setbacks are provided along the north, south and east.  A 
waiver is requested along the west side of the property, a reduction of 1 foot from 10 feet to 9 
feet.  Justification of this request is based on the proposed on-street parking and workforce 
housing. 

5. Parking and loading space requirements:  The parking analysis, as shown below, indicates 
97 parking spaces required.  Total parking provided is 98, including credit for the bike rack.  
There are two delivery and rideshare parking spaces provided on North G Street. 

6. Landscaping/buffering:  Landscaping and buffering are provided as required. 
7. Illumination:  Site lighting is compliant with the illumination limit of one (1) foot candle at the 

boundaries of the project site. 
8. Outdoor storage:  There are no outdoor storage facilities proposed for this project. 
9. Sustainability:  Sustainability features shall be included in the project design and in 

compliance with the Florida Green Building Coalition criteria. 

  



18 
 

The project is consistent with the CRA’s redevelopment initiatives and programs.  The overall 
project site was assembled from five (5) parcels, as shown on the survey provided.  As per the 
Future Land Use Element Policy 1.1.1.8, the project provides live-work units and compact, 
sustainable urban infill residential development that meets the vision for the Transit-Oriented 
Development (TOD) land use and TOD-E zoning district, as well as the Major Thoroughfare 
Design Guidelines.  The project is also consistent with the intent of the Sustainable Bonus 
Incentive Program, which allows an increase in density, intensity and height.  

The proposed project is consistent with and furthers the applicable Goals, Objectives and Policies 
of the City’s Comprehensive Plan, which are as follows: 

GOAL 1.2: To strive to foster the City of Lake Worth as a livable community where live, 
work, play and learn become part of the daily life of residents and visitors.   

Objective 1.2.2: The City shall facilitate a compact, sustainable urban development pattern 
that provides opportunities to more efficiently use and develop infrastructure, land and 
other resources and services, and to reduce dependence on the automobile. This can be 
accomplished by concentrating more intensive growth within the City’s mixed use, high 
density residential and transit-oriented development (TOD) areas.   

 Policy 1.2.2.1: The City shall continue to promote compact developments within the 
mixed-use high density residential and TOD areas while providing adequate public 
services for each development in the most cost-effective manner possible. 

Objective 1.2.3: The City shall establish incentives to help support the creation of a 
compact, sustainable, community-oriented development by implementing a Sustainable 
Bonus Incentive Program. 

Objective 1.2.4:  The City shall establish incentives to encourage the redevelopment of the 
City’s stressed and blighted areas through a formal Transfer of Development Rights 
Program.  

Policy 1.2.4.1 The City shall implement a Transfer of Development Rights Program as 
described in Policy 1.2.4.4 to provide for increased density, intensity and height 
allowances through the purchase of development potential from the City’s properties with 
a Public Future Land Use Designation.  

GOAL 1.6: To support and coordinate with the City’s Community Redevelopment Area 
(CRA) infill and redevelopment initiatives and programs and to provide incentives for the 
continued redevelopment of the historic downtown commercial core of the City.  

 Objective 1.6.1: To support the redevelopment of older urban area.   

Policy 1.6.1.1: The City shall support redevelopment with recommended regulations 
pertaining to height, density, design, mixed use, neighborhood compatibility and 
protection of historic resources.  



19 
 

Response:  A waiver is hereby requested to allow that the west setback along North G Street be 
reduced by 1’.  This will allow the architectural character of the building to keep in balance the 
massing proportion for the overall site, as well as keeping the residential units consistent. An 
additional waiver is requested to reduce the living area for the one-bedroom units from 600 
square feet to 584 square feet.  This represents a 2.7% reduction, below the 15% decrease 
allowed by the Comprehensive Plan, Policy 3.1.2.2 and the Affordable/Workforce Housing 
Ordinance 2022-12.  Otherwise, the development proposal complies with the referenced sections 
above.   

 Policy 1.6.1.2: The City shall encourage new development, infill and redevelopment in 
conjunction with existing or planned transit improvements where possible. 

 The proposed schedule of development which identifies the anticipated project start and 
completion dates, stages of development (if any), and the area and location of common open 
space to be provided at each stage; 
 
Response:  The anticipated total construction time, from issuance of the building permit,265 days.  
The anticipated start date is December 2022.  The common open space is located in the open 
plaza area and will be available upon completion of construction. 
 

 Compliance with the General Provisions and Requirements in Section 23.3-25(b), which are as 
follows: 
 
Utilities: All utilities, including telephone, cable television, and electrical service systems, shall be 
installed underground. However, the following facilities may be exempt from this requirement:  
 

A. Accessory facilities normally associated with such systems that require above-ground 
installation, provided such facilities are screened adequately; and  
B. Primary facilities, such as electric substations, providing service to the planned 
development or to service areas not located within the planned development. Primary 
facilities shall be screened or landscaped.  

 
Response:  Utilities will be installed underground, in accordance with the criteria noted in 
subsection A, i.e., fire hydrants, backflow preventers, etc.  Primary facilities will be screened by 
means of landscaping.     
 
Visibility triangle: In all planned development, visibility at all street and alley intersections shall 
be provided pursuant to section 23.4-4.  
 
Response:  The visibility/site triangle is noted on the site plan and landscape plan. 
 
Open space: In all planned development, sufficient areas of common open space shall be 
provided at each stage of development and upon completion of development. Such common 
open space shall include areas not covered by water. 
.   
Response:  The open space provided is comprised of green space and hardscape.  The total 
open space, located within the open plaza and perimeter landscape areas, provided as follow: 
 
Green Space = 7,194 SF = 0.165 AC. = 15.23%    
Concrete Sidewalk, Ramps and Plaza = 3,361 SF = 0.077 AC.= 7.12% 
Total Open Space = 10,555 SF = 0.242 AC = 22.35% 
  



20 
 

 Establishment of planned development districts:  All planned developments shall comply with 
sections 23.2-27, 23.2-28 and 23.2-29.  Planned development districts will be established from 
designated existing zoning districts by amendment to the official zoning map for tracts of land 
suitable in location, extent, and character for the structures and uses proposed. 
 
Response:  Acknowledged. 
 

 Unified control:  All land included for purpose of development within a planned development 
district shall be owned or under the control of the petitioner for such zoning designation, whether 
that petitioner be an individual, partnership or a corporation, or a group of individuals, 
partnerships or corporations. The petitioners shall present firm evidence of the unified control of 
the entire area within the proposed planned development district and shall agree that when the 
development proceeds: 

o It will be in accordance with the ordinance officially adopted for the district and the 
regulations in effect when the planned development was approved. 

o Agreements, contracts, or deed restrictions and covenants will be provided to the city to 
insure that the development will occur in accordance with the master development plan; 
and that the developer, his successors, assignees, or heirs, are responsible for the 
continued maintenance and operation of common areas and facilities, including sodding, 
watering down and fencing of undeveloped areas earmarked for future stages of 
development that are disturbed during development. 

Response: The property will be unified under a Declaration of Unity of Title or other means.  The 
developer/applicant will execute any necessary agreements with the City and CRA. 

 Master development plan. Any petition for planned development district zoning shall be 
accompanied by a professionally prepared master development plan. 

Response:  A master development site plan is provided. 

 Supporting information. Applications for planned development approval shall include the all 
documentation set forth above. 

Response:  Applications are submitted together with this document and supporting documents. 

 Professional services required. A master development plan for any proposed planned 
development district shall be prepared utilizing the professional services of individuals possessing 
appropriate licensure or registration. 

Response:  Acknowledged and provided. 

 Application fees. Application fees for planned development districts shall be established and 
amended by resolution of the city commission. 

Response:  Acknowledged and provided. 

 

   



21 
 

Conditional Use: 

Justification Statement to address the Conditional Use Criteria in Section 23.2-29.d and Section 23.2-29-
e, which are as follows: 

 General findings relating to harmony with LDRs and protection of public interest. Prior to approving 
any Conditional Use permit, the decision making authority shall find based on competent and 
substantial evidence that: 
o The Conditional Use exactly as proposed at the location where proposed will be in harmony with 

the uses which, under these LDRs and the Future Land Use Element, are most likely to occur in 
the immediate area where located. 

o The Conditional Use exactly as proposed at the location where proposed will be in harmony with 
existing uses in the immediate area where located. 

o The conditional use exactly as proposed will not result in substantially less public benefit or 
greater harm than would result from use of the site for some use permitted by right or some other 
conditional use permitted on the site. 

o The Conditional Use exactly as proposed will not result in more intensive development in 
advance of when such development is approved by the Future Land use Element of the 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 

 Specific findings for all conditional uses. Prior to approving any Conditional Use, the decision 
making authority shall find that: 
o The proposed Conditional Use will not generate traffic volumes or movements which will result in 

a significant adverse impact or reduce the level of service provided on any street to a level lower 
than would result from a development permitted by right. 

o The proposed conditional use will not result in a significantly greater amount of through traffic on 
local streets than would result from a development permitted by right and is appropriately located 
with respect to collector and arterial streets. 

o The proposed conditional use will not produce significant air pollution emissions or will 
appropriately mitigate anticipated emissions to a level compatible with that which would result 
from a development permitted by right. 

o The proposed conditional use will be so located in relation to the thoroughfare system that neither 
extension nor enlargement nor any other alteration of that system in a manner resulting in higher 
net public cost or earlier incursion of public cost than would result from development permitted by 
right. 

o The proposed Conditional Use will be so located in relation to water lines, sanitary sewers, storm 
sewers, surface drainage systems and other utility systems that neither extension nor 
enlargement nor any other alteration of such systems in a manner resulting in higher net public 
cost than would result from development permitted by right. 

o The proposed Conditional Use will not place a demand on municipal police or fire protection 
service beyond the capacity of those services, except that the proposed facility may place a 
demand on municipal police or fire protection services which does not exceed that likely to result 
from a development permitted by right. 

o The proposed Conditional Use will not generate significant noise or will appropriately mitigate 
anticipated noise to a level compatible with that which would result from a development permitted 
by right. Any proposed use must meet all the requirements and stipulations set forth in Section 
15.24 – Noise Control. 

o The proposed Conditional Use will not generate light or glare which encroaches onto any 
residential property in excess of that allowed in Section 23.4-10 – Exterior Lighting. 

Response:  The development proposal complies with the referenced sections above.  

 



22 
 

 SUSTAINABLE BONUS INCENTIVE PROGRAM: 

The Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program is outlined in City Code Section 23.2-33 and provides the 
following criteria, which apply to this project: 

1. Any buildings seeking incentives must be over two stories, which allows for increases in height and 
intensity over baseline maximums. Once a year, the City Commission will establish baseline sustainable 
bonus values to participate in the program. 

2. As part of a planned development, mixed-use planned development, residential planned development, 
or urban planned development, a project may receive a 25% bonus on density, intensity, and height over 
the baseline.  For each project requesting the additional bonus, twice the baseline sustainable bonus 
value will apply to each square foot above the maximum base threshold. 

3. For mixed-use urban planned developments located west of Dixie Highway, which include at least 
three (3) use categories, one being residential, an additional 50% bonus in density, intensity, and height 
over the baseline may be obtained. For each project requesting the additional bonus, twice the baseline 
sustainable bonus value will apply to each square foot above the maximum base threshold. 

Response:  This project proposes use of the Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program for the following: 

 Increase the height of proposed building to 54’-10”. 
 Increase the number of stories of proposed building to 5 stories 
 Increase the density of the project from 60 du/acre to 75 du/acre 

The project will provide a community benefit by means of workforce housing.  In addition, it will 
incorporate sustainable design and development principles, including best practices, pervious 
concrete pavement, rainwater harvesting, native materials, etc.  
 
4. Projects incorporating transfer development rights must be a mixed use urban planned 
development, planned development, mixed use planned development or residential planned 
development.  

Response: The project is proposed as a mixed-use planned development with multi-family residential 
and work space. 

5. Projects must have incorporated all of the density, height and intensity bonuses available under the 
sustainable bonus program prior to being eligible for the transfer development rights program. 

Response:  The project proposal does not require TDR allowances for the proposed building: 
 
 



23 
 

 

 

LDR SECTION 23.2-33.C.2:  Review/Decision 

Review/decision: The development review official shall review the application along with the zoning 
approvals otherwise required of the development proposal under these LDRs. Development applications 
that require further review or approval by a decision-making board shall also include the development 
review official's recommendation regarding the award of bonus height or intensity (the "incentive award") 
under the program. Any decision on the incentive award shall be made by the planning and zoning board, 
the historic resources planning board, or the city commission as applicable. A decision on an incentive 
award may be appealed under the procedures applicable to the development application with which it is 
associated. No waiver or variance may be granted regarding the incentive award. The award of bonus 
height or intensity under this program shall be based on the following criteria:  

(a) Is the award calculated correctly, consistent with the square footage and height requested and 
the value of the features and improvements included in the development proposal;  
 
Response:  With the proposed improvements, the balance will be achieved. 
 

(b) Do the proposed on-site features or improvements adequately provide sustainable project 
enhancements, beyond those otherwise required by these LDRs for the development proposal, 
that are attainable and reasonable in the context of the proposed project;  
 
Response: The proposed improvements include workforce housing, higher quality and additional 
open space, pervious concrete pavement and public art (sculpture). 

  



24 
 

 
(c) Do the proposed off-site improvements meet the priorities of the city for community sustainability; 

and  

Response: The proposed off-site parking will provide public parking, as well as loading/unloading. 

(d) Do the proposed features, improvements or fees in-lieu meet the intent of the Sustainable Bonus 
Incentive Program?  

Response:  The proposed features and improvements meet the intent of the Sustainable Bonus 
Incentive Program. 

 

Based on the information provided and contained herein, we hereby request approval of the Major Site 
Plan, Planned Development District and Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program. 

If you have any questions, please contact me at (954) 974-2200, EXT. 52120, or at 
patricia.ramudo@ibigroup.com.  

Sincerely, 
 
IBI Group Professional Services (USA) Inc. 
 

 
 
Patricia F. Ramudo, PE LEED AP 
Manager of Engineering 

 
 
 
 



10th AVENUE NORTH

N 88°39'12"W                134.97'      (135' PLAT)

S 
01

°2
3'

21
"W

   
  3

50
.0

4'
(3

50
' P

LA
T)

N
O

R
TH

 G
 S

TR
EE

T
(4

0'
 R

/W
)

TRAFFIC
SIGNAL BOX

(80' R/W)

N
 0

1°
22

'4
8"

 E
   

   
34

0.
06

'

CATVS88°38'41"E  125.02'

PROPOSED
BLDG.
5-STORY

MULTI-FAMILY
GROUND FLOOR

13,854 SF

14

10

10

8

10

5

10

2

5

9

6

6

EV

EV

EV

EV

6 CUBIC YARD

RECYCLE RECYCLE RECYCLE RECYCLE

2' OVERHANG
(TYP.)

2' OVERHANG
(TYP.)

PROPOSED TYPE 'F'
CURB & GUTTER

(TYP.)

PROPOSED
TYPE 'D' CURB
(TYP.)

PROPOSED DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE
(PER LDR § 12-7)
REFER TO DETAIL, SHEET C3.1

PROPOSED
BIKE RACKS

R
2'

R2'

R2'

R2'

R20'

R20'

R2'

EXISTING METAL
LIGHTPOLE TO
BE RELOCATED

PROPOSED
DELIVERY &

RIDE-SHARE SPACES
9' x 22' EACH

PROPOSED
DECORATIVE
LOW WALL
(TYP.)

PROPOSED
WALL

FEATURE
(TYP.)

RAMP 1:12 MAX.,
DETECTABLE DOMES
(TYP. BOTH SIDES)

RAMP 1:12 MAX.,
DETECTABLE DOMES

(TYP. BOTH SIDES)

BEGIN TRANSITION
2' CURB & GUTTER TO
2' VALLEY GUTTER

PROPOSED
TYPE D CURB

(TYP.)

PROPOSED
2' CONCRETE

VALLEY GUTTER
(TYP.)

PROPOSED
LIGHT FIXTURE
(TYP.)

PROPOSED
LIGHT FIXTURE

(TYP.)

PROPOSED
LIGHT FIXTURE

(TYP.)

CO-WORK
SPACE
891 SF

LEASING
OFFICE
891 SF PROPOSED ELECTRIC

VEHICLE CHARGING
SPACES (4),
REFER TO DETAIL ON
SHEET C1.0

TYPE 'A' MOUNTABLE CURB

R2
5'

PROPOSED SIDEWALK
EASEMENT
(WIDTH 2.7')

R43'

R18'

12
'

5'
12

'
9'

9'

9'

18
'

18
'

69.4'

69.3'

18' 22' 16'5'

17
'

17
'

8'

16
'

20
'

9'

9'

7'

5.
5'

22
'

9'

8.
3'

8.
3'

5'

5'

5'
8.

3'
8.

3'

9'

9'

9'

9'

5.
5'

6.
5'

7'

83
.4

'

83
.4

'

9' 8'

16'
18'

16'

18'

16'

11
.3

'

2' 7' 2.3' 13'

13'

2' 7' 2.3'2.7' 6.3'

24
8.

7'

56.7'
6.3' 3.3'

2.3'
2.7'
7'

4.4' 4.5'

3.
4'

26
'

5'

18'

12.7'

12'

100.97' 16' 5'

4.5'

15°

R
1'

R2'

5' 8.
3'

14.3'

1

1

1

EV

N
 G

 S
T

10TH AVENUE N

FE
C

 R
AI

LR
O

AD

11TH AVENUE N

9TH AVENUE N

N
 F

 S
T

N
 H

 S
T

8TH AVENUE N

N
 E

 S
T

N
 D

IX
IE

 H
W

Y

N
 J

 S
T

N.I.C.

SP1.0

CMP

04/06/2022

DRAWN:

DESIGNED:

CHECKED:

DATE:

CMP

PFR

SCALE:
1" = 20'

PROJECT:
137767

SHEET:

NOT FOR C
ONSTRUCTIO

N

NOT TO BE FILED FOR RECORD UNLESS SIGNED AND DATED
WITH THE ORIGINAL SEAL OF PATRICIA F. RAMUDO,

FLORIDA P.E. #35798 FOR THE FIRM.

LOCATION MAP
(N.T.S.)

N

LA
KE

 W
O

R
TH

 S
TA

TI
O

N
LA

KE
 W

O
R

TH
 B

EA
C

H
, F

LO
R

ID
A

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
EN

G
IN

EE
R

'S
 C

ER
T.

 O
F 

AU
TH

. #
29

66
LA

N
D

SC
AP

E 
LC

 #
26

00
02

70

TOLL FREE

CALL

SUNSHINE STATE ONE CALL CENTER
811 or 1-800-432-4770

48 HOURS BEFORE DIGGING

IB
I G

R
O

U
P 

(F
LO

R
ID

A
) I

N
C

11
00

 P
ar

k 
C

en
tra

l B
ou

le
va

rd
 S

ou
th

 –
 S

ui
te

 3
50

0
Po

m
pa

no
 B

ea
ch

 F
L 

 3
30

64
  U

SA
te

l 9
54

 9
74

 2
20

0 
 fa

x 
95

4 
97

3 
26

86
ib

ig
ro

up
.c

om

D
at

e
N

o.
C

om
m

en
t

DISCLAIMER
This drawing, as an instrument of service, is the property
of the Engineer and may not be reproduced without their
permission and unless the reproduction carries their
name. All design and other information shown on this
drawing are for the use on the specified project only and
shall not be used otherwise without written permission of
the Engineer. Written dimensions shall have precedence
over scaled dimensions. Contractors shall verify and be
responsible for all dimensions and conditions on the job
and the Engineer shall be informed of any variations from
the dimensions and conditions shown on the drawing.
Shop drawings shall be submitted to the Engineer for
approval before proceeding with fabrication.

R
ev

is
io

n 
/ S

ub
m

is
si

on

By

PERVIOUS PAVEMENT PARKING AREA

CONCRETE

LEGEND

COMPACT PARKING SPACES

STANDARD PARKING SPACES

COMPACT (TANDEM) SPACES

PROJECT
LOCATION

PERVIOUS PAVERS

ASPHALT AREA

1
06

/1
5/

20
22

R
EV

IS
ED

 P
ER

 S
PR

T 
#1

PF
R

ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING SPACE

LIGHTING FIXTURES

PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF A CERTIFICATE OF
OCCUPANCY, ALLEYWAY IMPROVEMENTS CONSISTING
OF 4" ASPHALT MILLINGS, GRADED AND COMPACTED,
SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED FROM 9TH AVENUE NORTH
TO 10TH AVENUE NORTH.

NOTE:

2
08

/1
5/

20
22

R
EV

IS
ED

 P
ER

 P
ZB

PF
R

PATRICI
A 
RAMUD
O, PE 
35798

Digitally 
signed by 
PATRICIA 
RAMUDO, PE 
35798 
Date: 
2022.08.17 
15:41:59 
-04'00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT INCLUDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE #10 REGARDING R/W TAKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEETS EXISTING C.L.FENCE N.W. COR. OF LOT 14

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW 5'C.L.FENCE ON EAST SIDE OF POWER POLE AT SOUTH END, AND 1.0'EAST OF POLE AT NORTH END

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PARCEL 1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECORATIVE BRICK AND ROCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECORATIVE BRICK AND ROCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD ROCK STREWN THROUGHOUT LOT 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' WATER LINE EASEMENT (ORB 10198, PG.458)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLATTED 10' ALLEY (UNIMPROVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' (PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
90°02'04"

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE (NOT INCLUDED) FLU: TOD, ZONING: TOD-E

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACANT FLU: TOD, ZONING: MU-DIXIE

AutoCAD SHX Text
135.02' (135' PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 01°22'48" W       390.07''

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00°49'15"E  400.10' (400' PLAT)(400' PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHANNEL BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARBAGE CAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK BENCH W/2 1.5' COLUMNS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' CLF

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WOOD FENCE 0.2'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WOOD FENCE 1.4'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CLF 1.3'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CLF 0.3'S, 1.8'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WOOD FENCE 0.8'S, 1.5'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WOOD FENCE 0.8'S, 1.1'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CLF 1.1'S, 0.9'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' CLF ENDS ON E.SIDE OF POWER POLES

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" VCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C TRACKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.81'

AutoCAD SHX Text
90°31'29"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(36.63' PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIBO

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C TRACKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.83'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIE 1.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANCHOR ENCROACHES 11' WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' PLATTED RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACANT 0.354± ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
89°57'55"

AutoCAD SHX Text
APARTMENT BUILDINGS FLU: TOD, ZONING: MU-DIXIE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE FLU: TOD, ZONING: MU-DIXIE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRIPLEX APARTMENT BUILDING FLU: TOD, ZONING: MU-DIXIE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88°39'16"W 36.61'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK BENCH W/2 1.5' COLUMNS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' WOOD FENCE ENCROACHES

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLORIDA EAST COAST RAILROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD CROSSING ARM

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK PILE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 12" CIP WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 6" PVC WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 8" PVC SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 12" CIP WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 6" PVC WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 36" RCP STORM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SS MH RIM (V.I.F.) I.E. (N) (V.I.F.)    (S) (V.I.F.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SS MH RIM I.E. (N)

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLU: TOD, ZONING: TOD-E

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE FLU: TOD, ZONING: MU-DIXIE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE FLU: TOD, ZONING: MU-DIXIE

AutoCAD SHX Text
J:\137767_Lake_Worth_S\7.0_Production\7.03_Design\01_Gen\Sheets\137767-SP.dwg  Modified:8/15/2022  By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence   Modified:8/15/2022  By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence 8/15/2022  By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence   By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence cpence Plotted By:christopher pence  Plotted By:christopher pence christopher pence 

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =      ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2











agarcia
Snapshot













EV

EV

EV

EV

C1.0

CMP

04/06/2022

DRAWN:

DESIGNED:

CHECKED:

DATE:

CMP

PFR

SCALE:
N.T.S.

PROJECT:
137767

SHEET:

NOT TO BE FILED FOR RECORD UNLESS SIGNED AND DATED
WITH THE ORIGINAL SEAL OF PATRICIA F. RAMUDO,

FLORIDA P.E. #35798 FOR THE FIRM.

LA
KE

 W
O

R
TH

 S
TA

TI
O

N
LA

KE
 W

O
R

TH
 B

EA
C

H
, F

LO
R

ID
A

G
EN

ER
AL

 N
O

TE
S

GENERAL NOTES
1. ALL CONSTRUCTION SHALL CONFORM WITH THE FOLLOWING:

A) PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS PREPARED BY IBI GROUP (FLORIDA) INC.
B) PAVING, GRADING AND DRAINAGE: MINIMUM STANDARDS OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH,
    SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT AND SOUTH BROWARD DRAINAGE DISTRICT.
C) ROADS AND STREETS: CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH.
D) WATER DISTRIBUTION: THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE FIRE MARSHALL, HEALTH DEPARTMENT AND
     CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH.
E) SANITARY SEWER: CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH AND PALM BEACH COUNTY E.P.G.M.D.
F) ALL APPLICABLE LOCAL, COUNTY AND STATE CODES AND ORDINANCES.
G) WHEN CONFLICTS, OMISSIONS OR MODIFICATIONS EXIST, THE STRICTER PROVISION SHALL GOVERN.
H) FLORIDA ACCESSIBILITY CODE FOR BUILDING CONSTRUCTION (LATEST EDITION ) AND FEDERAL ADA
   ACCESSIBILITY GUIDELINES FOR BUILDINGS AND FACILITIES (LATEST EDITION).
I) IN THE EVENT OF CONFLICT OR OMISSION BETWEEN THE PLANS AND THESE CODES/GUIDELINES, 
   CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE EXECUTED IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE STRICTEST PROVISIONS OF THE 
   CODES/GUIDELINES.

2. SEPARATE PERMITS SHALL BE REQUIRED FOR ANY IMPROVEMENT WORK IN THE PUBLIC RIGHT- OF-WAY.

3. THESE PLANS SHOW THE APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF ALL KNOWN UTILITIES AND STORM DRAINS FOR THE PURPOSE OF
AIDING THE OWNER AND HIS CONTRACTOR IN THE CONNECTION TO THOSE FACILITIES OR THE REMOVAL OR AVOIDANCE
OF THOSE FACILITIES WHICH CONFLICT WITH THE PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION. THE PLANS HAVE BEEN PREPARED WITH
THE BEST INFORMATION AVAILABLE. HOWEVER, IT SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY THE
LOCATION AND EXPOSE EXISTING FACILITIES. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR REPAIRING ANY DAMAGE TO
SAID FACILITIES AS A RESULT OF CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL LOCATE AND EXPOSE ALL
EXISTING UTILITIES AND STORM DRAINS TO BE CONNECTED SUFFICIENTLY AHEAD OF CONSTRUCTION TO ALLOW
REDESIGN BY THE ENGINEER, IF SUCH INSTALLATIONS ARE FOUND TO BE DIFFERENT THAN SHOWN ON THESE PLANS.
CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT CALL SUNSHINE @ 1-800-432-4770 AND ALL UTILITY COMPANIES PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

4. ALL MATERIALS REMOVED FROM THE SITE ARE THE PROPERTY OF THE OWNER, AND AT HIS DIRECTION, SHALL BE
DISPOSED OF OFF-SITE OR SAVED FOR HIS USE. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE A CONTINGENCY BID PRICE FOR
DISPOSAL OF MATERIAL OFF-SITE AND PAYMENT SHALL BE BASED ON THE ACTUAL QUANTITY OF MATERIAL REMOVED.

5. THE EXISTING ELEVATIONS SHOWN HEREON ARE FOR THE PURPOSE OF INDICATING THE APPROXIMATE GROUND
ELEVATION AT THE LOCATION SHOWN AND IN NO WAY REFLECT SURFACE CONDITIONS OR SUBSURFACE SOIL
CONDITIONS. ALL SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS MUST BE VERIFIED.

6. UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ALL MUCK AND YIELDING MATERIAL WITHIN THE ROADWAYS, PARKING AREAS AND
BUILDING AREAS SHALL BE REMOVED COMPLETELY AND REPLACED WITH CLEAN FILL MATERIAL COMPACTED TO NOT
LESS THAN 100% OF MAXIMUM DENSITY AT OPTIMUM MOISTURE CONTENT AS DETERMINED BY AASHTO T-99 OR 98% OF
MAXIMUM DENSITY AS DETERMINED BY AASHTO T-180. NO ROCKS OR BOULDERS TO EXCEED 3" DIAMETER IN BUILDING
PAD.

7. ALL UNDERGROUND DRAINAGE AND UTILITIES SITUATED IN PAVED ROADWAYS OR PARKING AREAS, INCLUDING SEWER
AND WATER SYSTEMS, DRAINAGE, ELECTRICAL DISTRIBUTION, LIGHTING, CATV, TELEPHONE AND CONDUITS SHALL BE
COMPLETED BEFORE ANY SUBGRADE OR PAVING WORK COMMENCES.

8. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN ALL UTILITIES WITHOUT INTERRUPTION IN SERVICE UNLESS AUTHORIZED BY THE
OWNER AND ENGINEER.

9. BENCH MARK INFORMATION: SEE SURVEY. ELEVATIONS SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON THE NORTH AMERICAN
VERTICAL DATUM OF 1988 (NAVD88).

10. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSUME RESPONSIBILITY FOR PROTECTING ALL SURVEY STAKES AND MONUMENTS.
REPLACEMENT COSTS OF ALL STAKES SHALL BE BORNE BY THE CONTRACTOR.

11. CONSTRUCTION OBSERVATION WILL BE PROVIDED BY THE ENGINEER AND IS REQUIRED. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL
NOTIFY THE ENGINEER AT LEAST 48 HOURS BEFORE BEGINNING CONSTRUCTION AND AT LEAST 24 HOURS BEFORE
REQUIRING INSPECTION ON EACH AND EVERY PHASE OF WORK.

12. A PRE-CONSTRUCTION MEETING IS TO BE HELD BETWEEN THE ENGINEER OF RECORD, THE CONTRACTOR, AND
REPRESENTATIVES OF THE OWNER, UTILITIES, ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT AND DRAINAGE DISTRICT (IF APPLICABLE)
PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF CONSTRUCTION. THE MEETING WILL BE SCHEDULED BY THE CONTRACTOR.

13. SHOP DRAWINGS OF ALL MATERIALS BEING USED SHALL BE SUBMITTED BY THE CONTRACTOR TO THE ENGINEER FOR
APPROVAL PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

14. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN A CURRENT SET OF APPROVED CONSTRUCTION PLANS ON THE JOB SITE DURING ALL
PHASES OF CONSTRUCTION.

15. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONFIRM ALL MEASUREMENTS IN THE FIELD AND NOTIFY THE ENGINEER IN WRITING OF ANY
DISCREPANCY WITH THE DRAWINGS PRIOR TO PERFORMING THE WORK. ALL QUANTITIES SHALL BE PAID ON THE BASIS
OF FIELD MEASUREMENTS OF COMPLETED WORK, UNLESS THE CONTRACT PROVIDES FOR A LUMP SUM. PIPE LENGTHS
ARE MEASURED FROM CENTER OF STRUCTURE TO CENTER OF STRUCTURE.

16. COMPLETE "AS-BUILT" INFORMATION RELATIVE TO PIPE, STRUCTURES, VALVES, SERVICES, FITTINGS, LENGTH, VERTICAL
ELEVATION, QUANTITY, AND MATERIAL SHALL BE ACCURATELY RECORDED BY THE CONTRACTOR AND SUBMITTED TO THE
ENGINEER PRIOR TO FINAL ACCEPTANCE OF THE WORK. ALL AS-BUILT MEASUREMENTS SHALL BE TAKEN BY AN
INDEPENDENT LAND SURVEYOR REGISTERED IN THE STATE OF FLORIDA AND INCLUDED IN THE "AS-BUILT" INFORMATION,
FURNISHED BY THE CONTRACTOR AT HIS EXPENSE. FINAL ACCEPTANCE OF THE PROJECT IS SUBJECT TO THE FINAL
REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF THE "AS-BUILT" INFORMATION FURNISHED TO THE REGULATORY AGENCIES, THE APPLICABLE
UTILITY AND THE ENGINEER.

17. ALL EXISTING PIPE WHICH IS TO REMAIN IN THE GROUND BUT IS NOT TO BE USED SHALL BE PLUGGED TO PREVENT SOIL
FROM ENTERING THE PIPE AND CAUSING GROUND SETTLEMENT. ALL WATER AND SEWER LINES SHALL BE PLUGGED WITH
STANDARD PLUGS DESIGNED FOR THE GIVEN TYPE OF PIPE. DRAINAGE CULVERTS SHALL BE PLUGGED WITH BRICK AND
MORTAR.

18. COMPACTED BACKFILL SHALL BE PLACED ALONGSIDE OF AND OVER ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES. DENSITY TESTS
SHALL BE TAKEN TO VERIFY BACKFILL COMPACTION. DENSITY TESTS FOR SUBGRADE AND BASE MATERIALS SHALL BE
PERFORMED AT THE DIRECTION OF THE ENGINEER. PROCTOR TESTS SHALL BE PAID FOR BY THE OWNER. ALL DENSITY
TESTS SHALL BE PAID FOR BY THE OWNER IF THE REQUIRED DENSITY IS ACHIEVED. CONTRACTOR SHALL PAY FOR ALL
RETESTS.

19. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR COMPACTING THE BACKFILL IN ALL TRENCHES CREATED BY THE
REMOVAL OF EXISTING UTILITIES TO THE SAME SPECIFICATIONS AS REQUIRED FOR UTILITY CONSTRUCTION UNDER
PAVEMENT AREAS OR HOUSE PAD COMPACTION AS APPROPRIATE DEPENDING ON THE TRENCH LOCATION. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL RESTORE THE SITE, INCLUDING SPRINKLER SYSTEMS, ETC., TO EQUAL OR BETTER THAN THE
ORIGINAL CONDITION WITHOUT EXTRA COSTS TO THE OWNER.

20. THE MINIMUM FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION FOR ANY BUILDING SHALL BE SET AT OR ABOVE ELEVATION ---- WHICH IS THE
PROJECTED FLOOD STAGE PRODUCED BY THE ONE IN ONE HUNDRED YEAR FREQUENCY STORM PER SFWMD PERMIT.

21. PAVEMENT MARKING AND TRAFFIC SIGNS SHALL CONFORM TO LOCAL REGULATIONS AND TO THE "MANUAL ON UNIFORM
TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES FOR STREETS AND HIGHWAYS". PAVEMENT MARKINGS SHALL BE HIGHLY REFLECTIVE
THERMOPLASTIC UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

22. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL HAVE COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE QUALITY AND EXECUTION OF THE WORK, THE
TECHNIQUES AND SEQUENCES OF CONSTRUCTION, PROJECT SECURITY AND THE MAINTENANCE OF SAFETY DEVICES
AND PRACTICES IN ACCORDANCE WITH O.S.H.A. AND ALL OTHER APPLICABLE STANDARDS. THE ENGINEER HAS NO DUTY
IN CONNECTION THEREWITH THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE ADEQUATE SUPERVISION OF THE WORK AND SHALL
SCHEDULE ALL REQUIRED TESTS AND INSPECTIONS.

23. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR IDENTIFYING CONFLICTS BETWEEN STORM DRAINS AND WATER MAINS
OR FORCE MAINS PLACED AT MINIMUM COVER. IN CASE OF CONFLICT, WATER MAIN OR FORCE MAIN ALIGNMENT SHALL
BE ADJUSTED TO CLEAR THE STORM DRAIN WITH 18" MINIMUM SEPARATION. IN CASE OF CONFLICT BETWEEN WATER
MAIN AND FORCE MAIN, FORCEMAIN SHALL BE LOWERED TO PASS UNDER WATER MAIN WITH 18" MINIMUM SEPARATION.
NO ADDITIONAL PAYMENT SHALL BE DUE TO CONTRACTOR FOR RAISING OR LOWERING THE MAINS OR THE ADDITIONAL
FITTINGS USED THEREON. ANY REDUCTION IN THE MINIMUM 18" SEPARATION SHALL BE SUBJECT TO APPROVAL OF THE
ENGINEER.

24. WHENEVER IT IS NECESSARY, IN THE INTEREST OF SAFETY, TO BRACE THE SIDES OF A TRENCH, THE CONTRACTOR
SHALL FURNISH, PUT IN PLACE AND MAINTAIN SUCH SHEETING OR BRACING AS MAY BE NECESSARY TO SUPPORT THE
SIDES OF THE EXCAVATION TO ENSURE PERSONNEL SAFETY, AND TO PREVENT MOVEMENT WHICH CAN IN ANY WAY
DAMAGE THE WORK OR ENDANGER ADJACENT STRUCTURES. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR
THE SEQUENCE, METHODS, AND MEANS OF CONSTRUCTION, AND FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION OF ALL OSHA AND OTHER
SAFETY REQUIREMENTS.

25. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ENSURE THAT EXISTING AND PROPOSED TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS ARE NOT OBSCURED BY
EXISTING OR PROPOSED LANDSCAPING.

26. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL, PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION, EXPOSE EXISTING UTILITIES AT EACH POINT OF
CONNECTION AND CROSSING, AND REPORT TO THE ENGINEER THE SIZE, MATERIAL AND ELEVATION.

27. CONTRACTOR SHALL, PRIOR TO START OF CONSTRUCTION, FILE FORM 62-621.300(4)(b) (NPDES N.O.I. TO USE GENERIC
PERMIT) WITH THE FLORIDA DEPT. OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION.

PROJECT SPECIFIC NOTES
1. THE CONTRACTOR IS TO COORDINATE HIS/HER WORK AND SITE ACCESS WITH THE OTHER ENTITIES THAT MAY BE WORKING ON SITE. ANY CONFLICTS ON

COORDINATION ISSUES SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF THE OWNER AND/OR ENGINEER FOR MUTUAL RESOLUTION.

2. PRE-BID SITE VISITS ARE REQUIRED BY ALL BIDDERS TO FAMILIARIZE THEM WITH SITE CONDITIONS. ALL ADDITIONAL DEMOLITION REQUIRED SHALL BE THE
RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER.

3. FORTY-EIGHT (48) HOUR NOTICE IS REQUIRED BY THE ENGINEER PRIOR TO SITE INSPECTIONS AND/OR WITNESSING OF WATER AND/OR SEWER TESTING.

4. ALL EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN SHALL BE BARRICADE PROTECTED FROM DAMAGE BY EQUIPMENT AND/OR PERSONNEL.

5. THE PROPOSED PROJECT WILL NOT ADVERSELY AFFECT SIGNIFICANT HISTORICAL OR ARCHEOLOGICAL RESOURCES UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION
267.061, F.S. IF EVIDENCE OF THE EXISTENCE OF HISTORIC OR ARCHEOLOGICAL RESOURCES IS DISCOVERED OR OBSERVED AT DEVELOPMENT SITES OR
DURING DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES AFTER FINAL APPROVAL. ALL WORK SHALL CEASE IN THE AREA OF EFFECT AS DETERMINED BY THE DIRECTOR. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE ENGINEER AND OWNER IMMEDIATELY, AND THE DEPARTMENT OF HISTORICAL RESOURCES WITHIN TWO WORKING DAYS.
EXAMPLES OF EVIDENCE OF HISTORICAL RESOURCES INCLUDE WHOLE OR FRAGMENTARY STONE TOOLS, SHELL TOOLS, ABORIGINAL OR HISTORIC
POTTERY, HISTORIC GLASS, HISTORIC BOTTLES, BONE TOOLS, HISTORIC BUILDING FOUNDATIONS, SHELL MOUNDS, SHELL MADDENS, OR SAND MOUNDS.
THE DIRECTOR SHALL ASSESS THE SIGNIFICANCE OF THE FINDS AND MITIGATE ANY ADVERSE EFFECTS AS SOON AS POSSIBLE, BUT NO LATER THAN
THREE WORKING DAYS OF NOTIFICATION.

TESTING NOTES
1. TESTS SHALL BE LOCATED NO MORE THAN FIFTY (50) FEET APART. TESTS SHALL BE PERFORMED ON EACH LIFT, EXCEPT THAT TESTS SHALL NOT BE

FURTHER APART THAN ONE (1) FOOT VERTICALLY. FIELD DENSITIES SHALL BE TAKEN OVER ALL ROAD CROSSINGS. FIELD DENSITIES FOR SANITARY LINES
SHALL BE STAGGERED TO INCLUDE RESULTS OVER SERVICE LATERALS. THERE SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF ONE (1) TEST SERIES FOR EACH SIX (6) INCHES OF
LIFT OVER PIPELINE BETWEEN MANHOLES OR CLEANOUTS. TESTS AROUND STRUCTURES SHALL BE SPIRALED IN SIX (6) INCH LIFTS. TESTS AROUND BOX
CULVERTS SHALL BE DONE ON BOTH SIDES EVERY LIFT.

2. FOR FLEXIBLE PIPE (CORRUGATED STEEL OR ALUMINUM), 95% OF MAXIMUM DENSITY (AASHTO-T99) PER FDOT SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS SUB
ARTICLE 125-8.3.2 AS MODIFIED..

3. THERE SHALL BE NO LESS THAN THREE (3) TESTS WITHIN THE PROPOSED ROAD, TWO (2) TESTS IN THE PARKING AREA  AND ONE (1) TEST IN THE
DRIVEWAY TO THE DUMPSTER PAD.

4. APPLIES TO SITE CONCRETE SUCH AS CURBS, GUTTERS, FLUMES, DRIVEWAYS AND SIDEWALKS.

5. ENGINEER OF RECORD SHALL RECEIVE MATERIAL TESTING REPORTS NO LATER THAN ONE (1) WEEK FROM THE TEST DATE.

6. TESTING FOR RCP SHALL BEGIN AT THE SPRING LINE OF THE PIPE.

7. EMBANKMENT, FILL AND BACKFILL MATERIAL SHALL BE PLACED AND COMPACTED IN LIFTS NOT TO EXCEED TWELVE (12) INCHES VERTICALLY. EACH
COMPACTED LIFT SHALL PASS THE AFOREMENTIONED TESTING CRITERIA BEFORE PROCEEDING TO THE NEXT VERTICAL LIFT.

8. DENSITY TESTS SHALL BE PERFORMED AT A MINIMUM FREQUENCY OF ONE (1) TEST PER EVERY ONE HUNDRED (100) SQUARE YARDS OF FILL MATERIAL
BEING PLACED, PER VERTICAL LIFT.

9. IF SUCCESSIVE VERTICAL LIFTS ARE PLACED, THE DENSITY TESTS SHALL BE STAGGERED SO AS TO NOT BE REPEATED IN THE SAME LOCATION.

TESTING SCHEDULE
ITEM TEST TEST FREQUENCY

PIPE TRENCH BACKFILL OPTIMIUM MOISTURE/MAXIMUM DENSITY PER SOIL TYPE

OVER PIPELINES AND AROUND 98% OF MAXIMUM DENSITY AS DETERMINED BY AASHTO T180-57 (ASTM (SEE NOTES 1 & 2 IN TESTING NOTES)
STRUCTURES FROM R.O.W. BY AASHTO T180-57 (ASTM D1557-70)
LINE TO R.O.W. LINE AND IN STRUCTURAL AREAS

STABILIZED SUBGRADE OPTIMUM MOISTURE/MAXIMUM DENSITY PER MATERIAL TYPE
MINIMUM 40 LBR PER MATERIAL TYPE
98% OF MAXIMUM DENSITY AS DETERMINED BY AASHTO T180-57 (ASTM (SEE NOTES 1 & IN TESTING NOTES)
 D1557-70)

BASE OPTIMUM MOISTURE/MAXIMUM DENSITY PER MATERIAL TYPE
MINIMUM 100 LBR PER SOURCE
98% OF MAXIMUM DENSITY AS DETERMINED BY AASHTO T180-57 (ASTM EACH LIFT (SEE NOTE 3 IN TESTING NOTES)
 D1557-70) - NO TOLERANCE

GRADATION, ATTERBURG LIMITS PER SOURCE

CONCRETE (SEE NOTE 4 IN TESTING NOTES) SLUMP TEST ONE (1) PER SET OF CYLINDERS
(PER AASHTO & ASTM SPECS.) MIN. COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH AT 28 DAYS 3,500 PSI

COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH CYLINDERS ONE (1) SET OF THREE (3) CYLINDERS FOR
ONE HUNDRED (100) CUBIC YARDS OR FRACTION THEREOF

AIR CONTENT ONE (1) PER SET OF CYLINDERS

ASPHALTIC CONCRETE AGGREGATE ANALYSIS ONE PER DESIGN
(PER FDOT SECTION 320) DESIGN MIX ONE PER TYPE

BITUMEN CONTENT ONE PER DAY
GRADATION STABILITY FLOW ONE PER DAY
PROPERTIES OF IN-PLACE MATERIALS (MARSHALL) ONE PER DAY
THICKNESS (SEE NOTE 3 IN TESTING NOTES)
95% OF LAB DENSITY (SEE NOTE 3 IN TESTING NOTES)

SEPARATION OF WATER & SEWER LINES

HORIZONTAL SEPARATION OF PIPELINES ALTERNATE CONSTRUCTION
MINIMUM SEPARATION BETWEEN THE OUTSIDE OF THE WATER MAIN WHERE AN UNDERGROUND WATER MAIN IS BEING LAID LESS THAN THE

AND THE OUTSIDE OF ANY EXISTING OR REQUIRED MINIMUM HORIZONTAL DISTANCE FROM ANOTHER PIPELINE AND
PROPOSED WASTEWATER LINE WHEN POSSIBLE WHERE AND UNDERGROUND WATER MAIN IS CROSSING ANOTHER PIPELINE

AND JOINTS IN THE WATER MAIN ARE BEING LOCATED LESS THAN THE
THREE FEET, AND STORM SEWER, STORMWATER FORCE MAIN REQUIRED MINIMUM VERTICAL DISTANCE FROM JOINTS IN THE OTHER PIPELINE.
PREFERABLY TEN FEET OR RECLAIMED WATER MAIN

1. USE OF PRESSURE-RATED PIPE CONFORMING TO THE AMERICAN
THREE FEET, AND VACUUM-TYPE SANITARY SEWER WATER WORKS ASSOCIATION STANDARDS INCORPORATED INTO RULE
PREFERABLY TEN FEET 62-555.330, F.A.C., FOR THE OTHER PIPELINE IF IT IS A GRAVITY- OR

VACUUM-TYPE PIPELINE;
SIX FEET, AND GRAVITY- OR PRESSURE-TYPE SANITARY SEWER,
PREFERABLY TEN FEET WASTEWATER FORCE MAIN OR RECLAIMED 2. USE OF WELDED, FUSED OR OTHERWISE RESTRAINED JOINTS FOR

WATER MAIN NOT REGULATED UNDER PART III EITHER THE WATER MAIN OR THE OTHER PIPELINE; OR
OF CHAPTER 62-610, F.A.C.

3. USE OF WATERTIGHT CASING PIPE OR CONCRETE ENCASEMENT AT
THE MINIMUM HORIZONTAL SEPARATION LEAST FOUR (4) INCHES THICK FOR EITHER THE WATER MAIN OR
DISTANCE BETWEEN WATER MAINS AND GRAVITY- THE OTHER PIPELINE.
TYPE SANITARY SEWERS SHALL BE REDUCED
TO THREE FEET WHERE THE BOTTOM OF THE
WATER MAIN IS LAID AT LEAST SIX INCHES WHERE AN UNDERGROUND WATER MAIN IS BEING LAID LESS THAN THREE FEET
ABOVE THE TOP OF THE SEWER HORIZONTALLY FROM ANOTHER PIPELINE AND WHERE AN UNDERGROUND

WATER MAIN IS CROSSING ANOTHER PIPELINE AND IS BEING LAID LESS THAN
TEN FEET "ON-SITE SEWAGE TREATMENT AND DISPOSAL SYSTEM" THE REQUIRED MINIMUM VERTICAL DISTANCE FROM THE OTHER PIPELINE;

1. USE OF PIPE, OR CASING PIPE, HAVING HIGH IMPACT STRENGTH (I.E.
HAVING AN IMPACT STRENGTH AT LEAST EQUAL TO THAT OF 0.25-INCH-
THICK DUCTILE IRON PIPE) OR CONCRETE ENCASEMENT AT LEAST FOUR
INCHES THICK FOR THE WATER MAIN; AND

2. USE OF PIPE, OR CASING PIPE, HAVING HIGH IMPACT STRENGTH (I.E. HAVING A
0.25-INCH-THICK DUCTILE IRON PIPE) OR CONCRETE ENCASEMENT AT LEAST FOUR
INCHES THICK FOR THE OTHER PIPELINE IF IT IS NEW AND IS
CONVEYING WASTEWATER OR RECLAIMED WATER.

VERTICAL SEPARATION OF PIPELINES
MINIMUM SEPARATION NEW OR RELOCATED. UNDERGROUND WATER
DISTANCE FROM THE CROSSING ANY EXISTING OR PROPOSED
(OUTSIDE TO OUTSIDE)

6 INCHES, PREFERABLY GRAVITY- OR VACUUM-TYPE SANITARY
12 INCHES ABOVE SEWER OR STORM SEWER

12 INCHES BELOW GRAVITY- OR VACUUM-TYPE SANITARY
SEWER OR STORM SEWER

12 INCHES ABOVE OR PRESSURE-TYPE SANITARY SEWER,
BELOW WASTEWATER, STORMWATER FORCE MAIN OR

PIPELINE CONVEYING RECLAIMED WATER MAIN

ONE FULL LENGTH OF WATER MAIN PIPE SHALL BE CENTERED ABOVE OR
BELOW THE OTHER PIPELINE SO THE WATER MAIN JOINTS WILL BE AS FAR AS
POSSIBLE FROM THE OTHER PIPELINE.

ALTERNATIVELY, THE PIPES SHALL BE ARRANGED SO THAT ALL WATER MAIN
JOINTS ARE AT LEAST THREE FEET FROM ALL JOINTS IN VACUUM-TYPE
SANITARY SEWERS, STORM SEWERS, STORMWATER FORCE MAINS OR
RECLAIMED WATER MAINS, AND AT LEAST SIX FEET FROM ALL JOINTS IN
GRAVITY- OR PRESSURE-TYPE SANITARY SEWERS, WASTEWATER, FORCE
MAINS OR RECLAIMED WATER MAINS.

A

7.71

W = X.XX
D = X.XX

A

PROPOSED GRADE

DRAINAGE FLOW

CATCH BASIN

SEWER LATERAL W/ CLEANOUT

SEWER MANHOLE

SIAMESE CONNECTION
REDUCER
45° BEND FITTING

TEE FITTING

22° BEND FITTING

FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY

WATER METER

MILLING AND RESURFACING AREA

EXFILTRATION TRENCH

TYPICAL SECTION CUT

BACKFLOW PREVENTER

F=FORCEMAIN
D=DRAINAGE
S=SEWER
W=WATER

WATER OVER DRAINAGE
BOTTOM OF WATER
TOP OF DRAINAGE

LEGEND
WATER & SEWER

PAVING, GRADING & DRAINAGE

DRAINAGE CULVERT

WATER MAIN

SEWER MAIN

EN
G

IN
EE

R
'S

 C
ER

T.
 O

F 
AU

TH
. #

29
66

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E 

LC
 #

26
00

02
70

IB
I G

R
O

U
P

11
00

 P
ar

k 
C

en
tra

l B
ou

le
va

rd
 S

ou
th

 –
 S

ui
te

 3
50

0
Po

m
pa

no
 B

ea
ch

 F
L 

 3
30

64
  U

SA
te

l 9
54

 9
74

 2
20

0 
 fa

x 
95

4 
97

3 
26

86
ib

ig
ro

up
.c

om

D
at

e
N

o.
C

om
m

en
t

DISCLAIMER
This drawing, as an instrument of service, is the property
of the Engineer and may not be reproduced without their
permission and unless the reproduction carries their
name. All design and other information shown on this
drawing are for the use on the specified project only and
shall not be used otherwise without written permission of
the Engineer. Written dimensions shall have precedence
over scaled dimensions. Contractors shall verify and be
responsible for all dimensions and conditions on the job
and the Engineer shall be informed of any variations from
the dimensions and conditions shown on the drawing.
Shop drawings shall be submitted to the Engineer for
approval before proceeding with fabrication.

R
ev

is
io

n 
/ S

ub
m

is
si

on

By
06

/1
5/

20
22

R
EV

IS
ED

 P
ER

 S
PR

T 
#1

PF
R

EV PARKING SPACE DETAIL
NOTES:

1. THE  FOUR (4) EV PARKING SPACES ARE TO BE LOCATED AT THE
SINGLE COMPACT PARKING SPACES ON NORTHEAST PARKING AREA
AS NOTED IN THE DETAIL ABOVE.

2. AS REQUIRED, 4% OF THE OFF-STREET PARKING SHALL BE
PROVIDED AS EV PARKING SPACES. BASED ON THE 85 OFF-STREET
PARKING SPACES PROVIDED, THE PROJECT WILL PROVIDE 4 EV
PARKING SPACES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WOOD FENCE 0.2'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
J:\137767_Lake_Worth_S\7.0_Production\7.03_Design\01_Gen\Sheets\137767-COVER.dwg  Modified:6/16/2022  By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence   Modified:6/16/2022  By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence 6/16/2022  By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence   By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence cpence Plotted By:christopher pence  Plotted By:christopher pence christopher pence 

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOLL FREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUNSHINE STATE ONE CALL CENTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
811 or 1-800-432-4770

AutoCAD SHX Text
48 HOURS BEFORE DIGGING

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
EV PARKING SPACES



N
 G

 S
T

10TH AVENUE N

FE
C

 R
AI

LR
O

AD

11TH AVENUE N

9TH AVENUE N

N
 F

 S
T

N
 H

 S
T

8TH AVENUE N

N
 E

 S
T

N
 D

IX
IE

 H
W

Y

N
 J

 S
T

N.I.C.

DUM
PSTER

AREA

XXX

12'-0"

6 CUBIC YARD 12'-8"

12'-8"

RECYCLE
RECYCLE

RECYCLE

8"

RECYCLE

11'-4"

7'-0"

8"

PROPOSED
BLDG.
5-STORY

MULTI-FAMILY
GROUND FLOOR

13,854 SF

EV

EV

EV

EV

CIVIL DRAWING INDEX

COVER
SURVEY
SP1.0 PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN
C1.0 GENERAL NOTES
C3.0 PAVING, GRADING AND DRAINAGE PLAN
C3.1 TYPICAL SECTIONS AND DETAILS
C3.2 PAVING, GRADING AND DRAINAGE DETAILS
C3.3 PAVING, GRADING AND DRAINAGE DETAILS
C4.0 WATER AND SEWER PLAN
C4.1 WATER AND SEWER DETAILS
C5.0 EROSION CONTROL PLAN
C6.0 PAVEMENT MARKING AND SIGNAGE PLAN

ARCHITECTURAL  DRAWING INDEX

A-000 COVER
A-100 MASTER PLAN - GROUND FLOOR
A-201 FLOOR PLANS
A-202 FLOOR PLANS
A-301 ELEVATIONS
A-401 UNIT PLANS
A-601 ENLARGEMENT
A-602 ENLARGEMENT

LANDSCAPE DRAWING INDEX

L-00       ILLUSTRATIVE LANDSCAPE PLAN
L-01       SITE AERIAL & PROPERTY SURVEY
L-02       TREE DISPOSITION PLAN
L-03       LANDSCAPE PLAN
L-04       LANDSCAPE DETAILS & GENERAL NOTES

ELECTRICAL DRAWING INDEX

E301 PHOTOMETRIC SITE PLAN
E701 ELECTRICAL DETAILS
E702 ELECTRICAL DETAILS
E703 ELECTRICAL DETAILS
E801 COMCHECK

LAKE WORTH BEACH, FL
PALM BEACH COUNTY

LAKE WORTH STATION

ENGINEER'S PROJECT# 137767

AGENCY PERMIT TYPE DATE APPROVED APPROVAL NO.
PERMITS REQUIRED

LOCATION MAP
NOT TO SCALE

PROJECT
LOCATION

NOT TO BE FILED FOR RECORD UNLESS SIGNED AND DATED
WITH THE ORIGINAL SEAL OF PATRICIA F. RAMUDO,

FLORIDA P.E. #35798 FOR THE FIRM.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

N

PROJECT TEAM

OWNER/DEVELOPER
BRIDGE HOLDING, LLC.
10135 SW 75TH PLACE
MIAMI, FL 33156
RICARDO HERNANDEZ
PHONE: (786) 223-1568
EMAIL: RIHERNANP@GMAIL.COM

ARCHITECT
THE MARTIN ARCHITECTURAL GROUP, P.C.
6810 LYONS TECHNOLOGY CIRCLE, SUITE 185
COCONUT CREEK, FL 33073
ANNABELLA GARCIA, SENIOR PROJECT MANAGER
PHONE: (954) 428-1618
FAX: (954) 428-4416
EMAIL: AGARCIA@MARTINAIA.COM

CIVIL ENGINEER
IBI GROUP
1100 PARK CENTRAL BOULEVARD SOUTH - SUITE 3500
POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA 33064
PATRICIA F. RAMUDO, P.E., LEED AP
PHONE: (954) 974-2200
FAX: (954) 973-2686
EMAIL: PATRICIA.RAMUDO@IBIGROUP.COM

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT
ANDRES MONTERO LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE, LLC.
2208 NE 26TH STREET, #1
FORT LAUDERDALE, FL 33305
ANDRES MONTERO, PLA, ASLA
PHONE: (954) 533-8259
EMAIL: AMONTERO@AMLASTUDIO.COM

MEP
FORMICA & ASSOCIATES INC.
980 N. FEDERAL HIGHWAY, SUITE 110
BOCA RATON, FL 33432
DANIEL HERNANDEZ
PHONE: (561) 368-3611
EMAIL: DANIEL.F.HERNANDEZ@FORMICAENGINEERING.COM

SURVEYOR
MILLER LAND SURVEYING
1121 LAKE WORTH AVENUE
LAKE WORTH BEACH, FL 33460
MICHAEL MILLER, PLS
PHONE: (561) 586-2669
EMAIL: ORDERS@MILLERSURVEYING.COM

TRAFFIC ENGINEER
SIMMONS & WHITE, INC.
2581 METRO CENTRE BOULEVARD, SUITE 3
WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA 33407
BRYAN G. KELLEY, P.E.
PHONE: (561) 478-7848
EMAIL: BRYAN @SIMMONSANDWHITE.COM

EXPIRATION DATE

930 NORTH G STREET
PARCEL ID# 38-43-44-21-15-274-0080, 38-43-44-21-15-274-0070,38-43-44-21-15-274-0040,

38-43-44-21-15-274-0030, 38-43-44-21-15-274-0020
SECTION 21 TOWNSHIP 44 RANGE 43

ENGINEER'S CERT. OF AUTH. #2966  LANDSCAPE LC #26000270 No. CommentDate By

IBI GROUP
1100 Park Central Boulevard South – Suite 3500
Pompano Beach FL  33064  USA
tel 954 974 2200  fax 954 973 2686
ibigroup.com

Revision/Submission

PROJECT OVERVIEW
NOT TO SCALE

PROJECT
LOCATION

N

9TH AVENUE N

10TH AVENUE N

N
 H

 S
TR

EE
T

N
 G

 S
TR

EE
T

FE
C

 R
AI

LR
O

AD

PARCELS 2 & 3:
LOTS 7 AND 8, BLOCK 274, THE PALM BEACH FARMS CO. PLAT NO.2 LUCERNE TOWNSITE (NOW KNOWN AS LAKE WORTH), ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 2, PAGE 29, PUBLIC
RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA.

PARCELS 4 & 5:
LOTS 3, 4, 5, AND 6, BLOCK 274, THE PALM BEACH FARMS CO. PLAT NO.2 LUCERNE TOWNSITE (NOW KNOWN AS LAKE WORTH), ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 2, PAGE 29,
PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA.

PARCEL 6:
LOT 2, BLOCK 274, THE PALM BEACH FARMS CO. PLAT NO.2 LUCERNE TOWNSITE (NOW KNOWN AS LAKE WORTH), ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 2, PAGE 29, PUBLIC RECORDS
OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA.

REVISED PER SPRT #106/15/2022 PFR

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' WATER LINE EASEMENT (ORB 10198, PG.458)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOLL FREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUNSHINE STATE ONE CALL CENTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
811 or 1-800-432-4770

AutoCAD SHX Text
48 HOURS BEFORE DIGGING

AutoCAD SHX Text
1



10th AVENUE NORTH

N 88°39'12"W                134.97'      (135' PLAT)

 S
 0

1°
23

'2
1"

W
   

  3
50

.0
4'

(3
50

' P
LA

T)

N
O

R
TH

 G
 S

TR
EE

T
(4

0'
 R

/W
)

TRAFFIC
SIGNAL BOX

(80' R/W)

N
 0

1°
22

'4
8"

 E
   

   
34

0.
06

'

CATVS88°38'41"E  125.02'

6 CUBIC YARD

RECYCLE
RECYCLE

RECYCLE
RECYCLE

PROPOSED
BLDG.
5-STORY

MULTI-FAMILY
GROUND FLOOR

13,854 SF

EV

EV

EV

EV

PROPOSED
SILT FENCE
(TYP.)

PROPOSED 50' GRAVEL
CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE

(REFER TO DETAIL)

PROPOSED
CURB INLET

SEDIMENT BARRIER
(TYP.)

PROPOSED 50' GRAVEL
CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE
(REFER TO DETAIL)

C5.0

PFR

06/08/2022

DRAWN:

DESIGNED:

CHECKED:

DATE:

CMP

PFR

SCALE:
1" = 20'

PROJECT:
137767

SHEET:

NOT FOR C
ONSTRUCTIO

N

NOT TO BE FILED FOR RECORD UNLESS SIGNED AND DATED
WITH THE ORIGINAL SEAL OF PATRICIA F. RAMUDO,

FLORIDA P.E. #35798 FOR THE FIRM.

LA
KE

 W
O

R
TH

 S
TA

TI
O

N

ER
O

SI
O

N
 C

O
N

TR
O

L 
PL

AN

LA
KE

 W
O

R
TH

 B
EA

C
H

, F
LO

R
ID

A

EN
G

IN
EE

R
'S

 C
ER

T.
 O

F 
AU

TH
. #

29
66

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E 

LC
 #

26
00

02
70

TOLL FREE

CALL

SUNSHINE STATE ONE CALL CENTER
811 or 1-800-432-4770

48 HOURS BEFORE DIGGING

IB
I G

R
O

U
P 

(F
LO

R
ID

A
) I

N
C

11
00

 P
ar

k 
C

en
tra

l B
ou

le
va

rd
 S

ou
th

 –
 S

ui
te

 3
50

0
Po

m
pa

no
 B

ea
ch

 F
L 

 3
30

64
  U

SA
te

l 9
54

 9
74

 2
20

0 
 fa

x 
95

4 
97

3 
26

86
ib

ig
ro

up
.c

om

D
at

e
N

o.
C

om
m

en
t

DISCLAIMER
This drawing, as an instrument of service, is the property
of the Engineer and may not be reproduced without their
permission and unless the reproduction carries their
name. All design and other information shown on this
drawing are for the use on the specified project only and
shall not be used otherwise without written permission of
the Engineer. Written dimensions shall have precedence
over scaled dimensions. Contractors shall verify and be
responsible for all dimensions and conditions on the job
and the Engineer shall be informed of any variations from
the dimensions and conditions shown on the drawing.
Shop drawings shall be submitted to the Engineer for
approval before proceeding with fabrication.

R
ev

is
io

n 
/ S

ub
m

is
si

on

By

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT INCLUDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE #10 REGARDING R/W TAKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEETS EXISTING C.L.FENCE N.W. COR. OF LOT 14

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW 5'C.L.FENCE ON EAST SIDE OF POWER POLE AT SOUTH END, AND 1.0'EAST OF POLE AT NORTH END

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PARCEL 1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECORATIVE BRICK AND ROCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECORATIVE BRICK AND ROCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD ROCK STREWN THROUGHOUT LOT 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' WATER LINE EASEMENT (ORB 10198, PG.458)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLATTED 10' ALLEY (UNIMPROVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' (PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
90°02'04"

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE (NOT INCLUDED) FLU: TOD, ZONING: TOD-E

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACANT FLU: TOD, ZONING: MU-DIXIE

AutoCAD SHX Text
135.02' (135' PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 01°22'48" W       390.07''

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00°49'15"E  400.10' (400' PLAT)(400' PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHANNEL BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARBAGE CAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK BENCH W/2 1.5' COLUMNS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' CLF

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WOOD FENCE 0.2'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WOOD FENCE 1.4'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CLF 1.3'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CLF 0.3'S, 1.8'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WOOD FENCE 0.8'S, 1.5'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WOOD FENCE 0.8'S, 1.1'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CLF 1.1'S, 0.9'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" VCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C TRACKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.81'

AutoCAD SHX Text
90°31'29"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(36.63' PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIBO

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C TRACKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.83'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIE 1.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANCHOR ENCROACHES 11' WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' PLATTED RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACANT 0.354± ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
89°57'55"

AutoCAD SHX Text
APARTMENT BUILDINGS FLU: TOD, ZONING: MU-DIXIE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE FLU: TOD, ZONING: MU-DIXIE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRIPLEX APARTMENT BUILDING FLU: TOD, ZONING: MU-DIXIE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88°39'16"W 36.61'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK BENCH W/2 1.5' COLUMNS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' WOOD FENCE ENCROACHES

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLORIDA EAST COAST RAILROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD CROSSING ARM

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK PILE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 12" CIP WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 6" PVC WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 8" PVC SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 12" CIP WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 6" PVC WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 36" RCP STORM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SS MH RIM (V.I.F.) I.E. (N) (V.I.F.)    (S) (V.I.F.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SS MH RIM I.E. (N)

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
NN

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLU: TOD, ZONING: TOD-E

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE FLU: TOD, ZONING: MU-DIXIE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE FLU: TOD, ZONING: MU-DIXIE

AutoCAD SHX Text
J:\137767_Lake_Worth_S\7.0_Production\7.03_Design\01_Gen\Sheets\137767-ECP.dwg  Modified:6/8/2022  By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence   Modified:6/8/2022  By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence 6/8/2022  By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence   By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence cpence Plotted By:christopher pence  Plotted By:christopher pence christopher pence 



10th AVENUE NORTH

N 88°39'12"W                134.97'      (135' PLAT)

 S
 0

1°
23

'2
1"

W
   

  3
50

.0
4'

(3
50

' P
LA

T)

N
O

R
TH

 G
 S

TR
EE

T
(4

0'
 R

/W
)

TRAFFIC
SIGNAL BOX

(80' R/W)

N
 0

1°
22

'4
8"

 E
   

   
34

0.
06

'

CATVS88°38'41"E  125.02'

6 CUBIC YARD

RECYCLE
RECYCLE

RECYCLE
RECYCLE

PROPOSED
BLDG.
5-STORY

MULTI-FAMILY
GROUND FLOOR

13,854 SF

EV

EV

EV

EV

15.24

15.50 15.10
16.00

CB2
RIM EL. 15.00
I.E. = 10.50 (S) W/ PRB
I.E. = 11.50 (N)

CB1
RIM EL. 15.00
I.E. = 10.50 (N)
W/ PRB

15.7514.5014.35
14.20

14.50
14.50

EX. CURB INLET
REMOVE EX. TOP
AND REPLACE W/
GRATE TYPE TBD,

EX. I.E. TO BE
FIELD VERIFIED

EX. STORM SEWER
SIZE & MATERIAL

TO BE FIELD VERIFIED

EX. STORM SEWER
SIZE, MATERIAL & EX. I.E.

TO BE FIELD VERIFIED

DMH 2
RIM EL. 15.25 (V.I.F.)
I.E. = 11.50 (E)
EX. I.E. (N,S) TO BE
FIELD VERIFIED

108 LF 18" HDPE

DMH 1
RIM EL. 15.35
I.E. = 11.50 (W,S)
CONTROL BAFFLE TO BE
INSTALLED ON WEST PIPE OPENING,
REFER TO DETAIL31 LF 18" HDPE

16.00

260 LF EXFILTRATION TRENCH
(18" PHDPE)

F.F.E.16.50 MIN.

RAMP 1:12 MAX.,
LANDING 2% MAX.,
DETECTABLE DOMES
(TYP.)

END ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS,
MATCH EX. PAVEMENT &
TYPE 'F' CURB & GUTTER

(V.I.F.)

TYPE 'A' CURB
TRAFFIC SEPARATOR

R25'R2
5' R36'

R0.5' R0.5'

R0.5' R0.5'

5'

5'

6'

11' 11'

2' CONCRETE
CURB & GUTTER

TYPE 'F' CURB

TYPE 'D' CURB

ASPHALT APRON

CONCRETE

PERVIOUS
PARKING AREA

11
.7

5'
5'

R2' R2'

TYPE 'A' MOUNTABLE
CURB

12
.6

7'

12'

1.
83

'

4.5'

N
 G

 S
T

10TH AVENUE N

FE
C

 R
AI

LR
O

AD

11TH AVENUE N

9TH AVENUE N

N
 F

 S
T

N
 H

 S
T

8TH AVENUE N

N
 E

 S
T

N
 D

IX
IE

 H
W

Y

N
 J

 S
T

N.I.C.

C3.0

CMP

04/06/2022

DRAWN:

DESIGNED:

CHECKED:

DATE:

CMP

PFR

SCALE:
1" = 20'

PROJECT:
137767

SHEET:

NOT FOR C
ONSTRUCTIO

N

NOT TO BE FILED FOR RECORD UNLESS SIGNED AND DATED
WITH THE ORIGINAL SEAL OF PATRICIA F. RAMUDO,

FLORIDA P.E. #35798 FOR THE FIRM.

LA
KE

 W
O

R
TH

 S
TA

TI
O

N

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

PA
VI

N
G

, G
R

AD
IN

G
 A

N
D

 D
R

AI
N

AG
E

PL
AN

LOCATION MAP
(N.T.S.)

N

LA
KE

 W
O

R
TH

 B
EA

C
H

, F
LO

R
ID

A

EN
G

IN
EE

R
'S

 C
ER

T.
 O

F 
AU

TH
. #

29
66

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E 

LC
 #

26
00

02
70

TOLL FREE

CALL

SUNSHINE STATE ONE CALL CENTER
811 or 1-800-432-4770

48 HOURS BEFORE DIGGING

IB
I G

R
O

U
P 

(F
LO

R
ID

A
) I

N
C

11
00

 P
ar

k 
C

en
tra

l B
ou

le
va

rd
 S

ou
th

 –
 S

ui
te

 3
50

0
Po

m
pa

no
 B

ea
ch

 F
L 

 3
30

64
  U

SA
te

l 9
54

 9
74

 2
20

0 
 fa

x 
95

4 
97

3 
26

86
ib

ig
ro

up
.c

om

D
at

e
N

o.
C

om
m

en
t

DISCLAIMER
This drawing, as an instrument of service, is the property
of the Engineer and may not be reproduced without their
permission and unless the reproduction carries their
name. All design and other information shown on this
drawing are for the use on the specified project only and
shall not be used otherwise without written permission of
the Engineer. Written dimensions shall have precedence
over scaled dimensions. Contractors shall verify and be
responsible for all dimensions and conditions on the job
and the Engineer shall be informed of any variations from
the dimensions and conditions shown on the drawing.
Shop drawings shall be submitted to the Engineer for
approval before proceeding with fabrication.

R
ev

is
io

n 
/ S

ub
m

is
si

on

By

PROJECT
LOCATION

CATCH BASIN

YARD DRAIN

LEGEND

DRAINAGE MANHOLE

1. ELEVATIONS SHOWN HERON ARE BASED ON THE 1988 NATIONAL AMERICAN VERTICAL DATUM.

2. ALL MUCK/ORGANIC MATERIALS ARE TO BE REMOVED PER PALM BEACH COUNTY ENGINEERING DIVISION.

3. PRIME COAT AND TACK COAT FOR BASE COURSES SHALL CONFORM TO THE  REQUIREMENTS OF  PALM BEACH COUNTY/FDOT  ENGINEERING DIVISION. PRIME COAT SHALL BE APPLIED
AT A RATE OF 0.25 GALLONS PER SQUARE YARD.

4. ALL CONCRETE SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH OF 3000 PSI AT 28 DAYS UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

5. ALL LABOR, MATERIALS, AND METHODS OF CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE IN STRICT ACCORDANCE WITH THE CITY OF POMPANO BEACH AND PALM BEACH COUNTY ENGINEERING DIVISION.

6. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT ALL UTILITY COMPANIES, THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 48 HOURS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION. THE CONTRACTOR
SHALL PROTECT ALL UTILITIES AND SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL DAMAGES CAUSED DURING CONSTRUCTION AND SHALL REPAIR SAID DAMAGES AT HIS EXPENSE.

7. SHOP DRAWINGS OF ALL MATERIALS BEING USED SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE ENGINEER FOR APPROVAL PRIOR TO ORDERING  MATERIALS.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE
RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY REVISED OR UNACCEPTABLE MATERIALS INSTALLED OR ORDERED WITHOUT AN APPROVED SHOP DRAWING.

8. ALL DRAINAGE PIPE IN AND PARALLEL TO THE ROADWAY SHALL BE REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE CONFORMING TO ASTM C-76. (UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED ON THE PLANS).

9. PVC PIPE SHALL BE NON-PRESSURE PIPE CONFORMING TO ASTM D-3034 SDR 35.

10. RESTORE ALL SIDEWALK, PAVEMENT, CURB, SODDING, SIGNAGE, PAVEMENT MARKINGS, ETC. DAMAGED DURING CONSTRUCTION TO ITS ORIGINAL CONDITION.

11. ANY EXISTING, UNUTILIZED WATER, SEWER OR GAS SERVICES MUST BE CUT AND CAPPED OR SLEEVED IN PLACE AT IT'S RESPECTIVE MAIN.

12. ANY CONFLICT WITH EXISTING OR PROPOSED UTILITIES SHALL IMMEDIATELY BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF THE ENGINEER.

13. AT THE END OF EACH WORK PERIOD, ANY DROP-OFF IN THE AREA ADJACENT TO THE TRAVEL WAY SHALL BE BACKFILLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH STANDARD INDEX 600 OR SHALL BE
OTHERWISE PROTECTED WITH A TEMPORARY BARRIER WALL AT THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE.

14. THE APPLICANT AT THE EARLIEST CONVENIENT TIME SHALL NOTIFY IN WRITING ALL RIGHT-OF-WAY USERS AFFECTED BY THE CONSTRUCTION OF THIS PROJECT.

15. LIMEROCK BASE SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 8" AND COMPACTED IN 4" LIFTS TO 98% MAXIMUM DENSITY ACCORDING TO AASHTO-T180.  CONSTRUCTION TO CONFORM TO SECTION 200.
BASE TO BE PRIMED AFTER COMPACTION.

16. STABILIZED SUBGRADE - MINIMUM 12" THICK AND COMPACTED TO 98% MAXIMUM DENSITY ACCORDING TO AASHTO-180.  MATERIAL TO HAVE MINIMUM L.B.R OF 40 AND CONFORM TO
SECTION 160.

17. ALL CURB CUT RAMPS MUST FACE IN THE DIRECTION OF PEDESTRIAN TRAVEL.

18. FLAGGERS MUST BE PRESENT DURING THE INGRESS AND EGRESS OF CONSTRUCTION VEHICLES TO AND FROM THE PROJECT SITE.  WARNING SIGNS MUST BE ERECTED ADVISING
MOTORISTS OF TRUCKS ENTERING THE HIGHWAY.

19. BASE AND SUB-GRADE DENSITY TESTS SHALL BE CONDUCTED FOR A MAXIMUM 7000 SQUARE FEET OF FINISHED PAVEMENT OR AS DIRECTED BY ENGINEER OR CITY.

20. LABORATORY PROCTOR COMPACTION TESTS (T-180) SHALL BE PERFORMED ON ALL MATERIAL, SUB-GRADE AND BASE ANY SUBSEQUENT CHANGES IN MATERIALS. LIMEROCK BEARING
RATIOS, SIEVE ANALYSIS AND DENSITIES REQUIRED BY THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS SHALL BE SUBMITTED BY THE CITY

21. ALL REPAIRS TO EXISTING PAVEMENT SHALL RECEIVE SAW-CUT EDGES PRIOR TO RELAYING ASPHALT. UTILITY PIPING OR WIRING LESS THAN FOUR (4) INCHES IN DIAMETER REQUIRES
A SCHEDULE 40 PVC CASING PIPE WITH SAND BACKFILLS UNDER PAVED AREAS ONLY

22. ALL CONTROL STRUCTURES SHALL HAVE POLLUTION RETARDANT BAFFLE AT THE DISCHARGE PIPE OPENING.

23. PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF A CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY, ALLEYWAY IMPROVEMENTS CONSISTING OF 4" ASPHALT MILLINGS, GRADED AND COMPACTED, SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED
FROM 9TH AVENUE NORTH TO 10TH AVENUE NORTH.

PAVING AND DRAINAGE SPECIFICATIONS

CONCRETE

PERVIOUS  PARKING AREA

PERVIOUS PAVERS

ASPHALT AREA

CONTROL BAFFLE

POLLUTION RETARDANT BAFFLE (PRB)

D
C3.1

A
C3.1

B
C3.1

C
C3.1

DRAINAGE NOTES
GENERAL:
1. DISTANCES AND LENGTHS SHOWN ON PLANS AND PROFILE DRAWINGS ARE REFERENCED TO THE CENTER OF STRUCTURES.

2. IN THE EVENT OF CONFLICT OR OMISSION BETWEEN THE PLANS AND THESE CODES/GUIDELINES, CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE EXECUTED IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE STRICTEST
PROVISIONS OF THE CODES/GUIDELINES.

MATERIALS:
1. REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE (R.C.P.) SHALL MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OF ASTM C-76, LATEST REVISION, AND CLASS III. RUBBER GASKETS OR OTHER MANUFACTURER SUPPLIED JOINT
SEALER SHALL BE USED.

2. ALL DRAINAGE CATCH BASINS AND STRUCTURES SHALL BE PRECAST CONCRETE. THE MINIMUM WALL AND SLAB THICKNESS SHALL BE 8 INCHES AND THE MINIMUM REINFORCING SHALL
BE NO. 4 BARS AT 12 INCHES EACH WAY UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED. CONCRETE SHALL BE MINIMUM OF fc=4000 PSI AT 28 DAYS. STRUCTURES SHALL MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OF
ASTM C-478.

3. ALL P.V.C. STORM SEWER PIPE AND FITTINGS SHALL BE NON-PRESSURE POLYVINYL CHLORIDE (PVC) PIPE CONFORMING TO ASTM D 3034, SDR 35, WITH PUSH-ON RUBBER GASKET
JOINTS.

4. DUCTILE IRON PIPE (D.I.P.) SHALL BE CEMENT LINED INSIDE AND SHALL HAVE A COAL TAR EPOXY COATING, MANUFACTURED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ANSI/AWWA C151/A21.51-86 OR
LATEST REVISION.

5. IRON CASTINGS SHALL CONFORM TO ASTM A-48 AND IN GENERAL SHALL BE CLASS 30. FRAMES AND GRATES MAY BE CLASS 20. ALL MANHOLE COVERS SHALL BE PROVIDED WITH
CONCEALED PICK HOLES, AND SHALL BE LABELED "STORM SEWER".

6. HIGH DENSITY POLYETHYLENE PIPE (HDPE) AND FITTINGS, SHALL BE HANCOR SURELOK F477 (O.A.E.), AND SHALL MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OF AASHTO M294 TYPE S. JOINTS SHALL BE
SILT TIGHT & LEAK RESISTANT.

7. CORRUGATED ALUMINUM PIPE SHALL MEET THE STANDARDS OF SECTION 945 OF FDOT STANDARDS SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROAD AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION, LATEST EDITION.

8. YARD DRAIN SHALL BE NYLOPLAST DRAIN BASINS OR APPROVED EQUAL.

INSTALLATION:
1. PIPE SHALL BE PLACED ON A MINIMUM OF 8" STABLE GRANULAR MATERIAL FREE OF ROCK FORMATION AND OTHER FOREIGN FORMATIONS, AND CONSTRUCTED TO A UNIFORM GRADE
AND LINE.

2. BACKFILL MATERIAL SHALL BE WELL GRADED GRANULAR MATERIAL, WELL TAMPED IN LAYERS NOT TO EXCEED 6 INCHES TO A HEIGHT OF 12 INCHES ABOVE PIPE AS SHOWN ON THE
PLANS AND IN 12" LAYERS THEREAFTER. BACKFILL SHALL BE COMPACTED TO MINIMUM OF 98% OF THE MAXIMUM DENSITY (AASHTO T-180). ON EACH 12" LIFT

3. PROVIDE A MINIMUM PROTECTIVE COVER OF 18 INCHES OVER STORM SEWER AND AVOID UNNECESSARY CROSSING BY HEAVY CONSTRUCTION VEHICLES DURING CONSTRUCTION.

4. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE APPLICABLE REGULATORY AUTHORITIES AT LEAST 24 HOURS PRIOR TO THE START OF THE CONSTRUCTION AND PRIOR TO INSPECTION.

5. WHENEVER IT IS NECESSARY, IN THE INTEREST OF SAFETY, TO BRACE THE SIDES OF A TRENCH, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FURNISH, PUT IN PLACE AND MAINTAIN SUCH SHEETING OR
BRACING AS MAY BE NECESSARY TO SUPPORT THE SIDES OF THE EXCAVATION TO ENSURE PERSONNEL SAFETY, AND TO PREVENT MOVEMENT WHICH CAN IN ANY WAY DAMAGE THE
WORK OR ENDANGER ADJACENT STRUCTURES. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR THE SEQUENCE, METHODS AND MEANS OF CONSTRUCTION, AND FOR THE
IMPLEMENTATION OF ALL OSHA AND OTHER SAFETY REQUIREMENTS.

E
C3.1

06
/1

5/
20

22
R

EV
IS

ED
 P

ER
 S

PR
T 

#1
PF

R

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.78

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.13

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.46

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.83

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.59

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.59

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.62

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEETS EXISTING C.L.FENCE N.W. COR. OF LOT 14

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW 5'C.L.FENCE ON EAST SIDE OF POWER POLE AT SOUTH END, AND 1.0'EAST OF POLE AT NORTH END

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECORATIVE BRICK AND ROCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECORATIVE BRICK AND ROCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' WATER LINE EASEMENT (ORB 10198, PG.458)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLATTED 10' ALLEY (UNIMPROVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' (PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
90°02'04"

AutoCAD SHX Text
135.02' (135' PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 01°22'48" W       390.07''

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00°49'15"E  400.10' (400' PLAT)(400' PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHANNEL BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARBAGE CAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK BENCH W/2 1.5' COLUMNS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' CLF

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WOOD FENCE 0.2'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WOOD FENCE 1.4'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CLF 1.3'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CLF 0.3'S, 1.8'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WOOD FENCE 0.8'S, 1.5'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WOOD FENCE 0.8'S, 1.1'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CLF 1.1'S, 0.9'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" VCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C TRACKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.81'

AutoCAD SHX Text
90°31'29"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(36.63' PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIBO

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C TRACKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.83'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIE 1.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANCHOR ENCROACHES 11' WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' PLATTED RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
89°57'55"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88°39'16"W 36.61'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK BENCH W/2 1.5' COLUMNS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' WOOD FENCE ENCROACHES

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLORIDA EAST COAST RAILROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD CROSSING ARM

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK PILE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 12" CIP WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 6" PVC WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 8" PVC SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 12" CIP WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 6" PVC WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 36" RCP STORM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SS MH RIM (V.I.F.) I.E. (N) (V.I.F.)    (S) (V.I.F.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SS MH RIM I.E. (N)

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
NN

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
J:\137767_Lake_Worth_S\7.0_Production\7.03_Design\01_Gen\Sheets\137767-ENG.dwg  Modified:6/15/2022  By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence   Modified:6/15/2022  By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence 6/15/2022  By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence   By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence cpence Plotted By:christopher pence  Plotted By:christopher pence christopher pence 

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =      ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
1



EX. EOP
14.28

EX. ℄
14.62 REMOVE EX. PAVEMENT

AND CURB & GUTTER

MATCH EX. EL 14.20
(V.I.F.)

14.50 (25 YR, 3 DAY STAGE)

15.75

8.6'11'

7'
ASPHALT

P'VMT
16'

PERVIOUS PAVEMENT
10.3'

CONCRETE DRIVE6.7'

EX. EOP
13.92

EX. ℄
14.62

EX. BACK
OF S/W
14.38

6.5' 11' 8.4'

7'
ASPHALT

PAVEMENT

MATCH EX. EL
14.22 (V.I.F.) 2% MAX.

EX. PVMT
15.70

MATCH EX. EL
15.24 (V.I.F.)

15.50

2% MAX.

2% MAX.

CONCRETE
VALLEY

GUTTER

7'
ASPHALT
PARKING2' ±56.7' PROPOSED BUILDING

9'
SETBACK 18' 11' 11' 16'

2'

5'
ASPHALT

 PVMT
5'

S/W

11.8'
CONCRETE

DRIVE2'
PERVIOUS
PAVEMENT

TYPE 'D'
CONCRETE CURB

(TYP. BOTH SIDES)

2.4'

14.35

4'

5'
S/W

12" STABILIZED SUBGRADE

12" AGGREGATE BASE
6" PERVIOUS PAVEMENT

2%

2'
C&G

PROPOSED
BUILDING

CONCRETE S/W
W/ THICKENED EDGE

2.6'

12" STABILIZED SUBGRADE

12" AGGREGATE BASE
6" PERVIOUS PAVEMENT

8.1'

2% MAX.

CONCRETE S/W
W/ THICKENED EDGE

8.6'

135'

PERVIOUS PAVEMENT

12" STABILIZED SUBGRADE

12" AGGREGATE BASE
6" PERVIOUS PAVEMENT

CONCRETE S/W

FLOWLINE
VARIES 15.00 TO 16.00

10'
ALLEY

 (UNIMPROVED)

6"

2.3'

2.3'

NOTE: CONCRETE SIDEWALK AND
DRIVE WILL BE 6" THICK IN VEHICULAR
ACCESS DRIVE.

NOTE: CONCRETE SIDEWALK AND
DRIVE WILL BE 6" THICK IN VEHICULAR
ACCESS DRIVE.

6"

2.4'

F.F.E. = 16.50

PROPOSED
BUILDING

2% MAX.

2'
OH3.4'

5'
S/W 16' 11' 11' 16'

TYPE 'D'
CONCRETE CURB

PERVIOUS PAVEMENT

12" STABILIZED SUBGRADE

12" AGGREGATE BASE

6" PERVIOUS PAVEMENTCONCRETE S/W
W/ THICKENED EDGE

EX. RES.
PROP3'16'

TANDEM PARKING

6"

6.3'

2'
OH3.3'

5'
S/W

5'
S/W 6.3'

3'

PERIMETER BERM 6"

ABOVE GRADE AT ⅊

5'
S/W

R25'R2
5' R36'

R0.5' R0.5'

R0.5' R0.5'

5'

5'

6'

11' 11'

2' CONCRETE
CURB & GUTTER

TYPE 'F' CURB

TYPE 'D' CURB

ASPHALT APRON

CONCRETE

PERVIOUS
PARKING AREA

11
.7

5'
5'

R2' R2'

TYPE 'A' MOUNTABLE
CURB

C3.1

CMP

04/06/2022

DRAWN:

DESIGNED:

CHECKED:

DATE:

CMP

PFR

SCALE:
N.T.S.

PROJECT:
137767

SHEET:

NOT FOR C
ONSTRUCTIO

N

NOT TO BE FILED FOR RECORD UNLESS SIGNED AND DATED
WITH THE ORIGINAL SEAL OF PATRICIA F. RAMUDO,

FLORIDA P.E. #35798 FOR THE FIRM.

LA
KE

 W
O

R
TH

 S
TA

TI
O

N

TY
PI

C
AL

 S
EC

TI
O

N
S 

AN
D

 D
ET

AI
LS

LA
KE

 W
O

R
TH

 B
EA

C
H

, F
LO

R
ID

A

EN
G

IN
EE

R
'S

 C
ER

T.
 O

F 
AU

TH
. #

29
66

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E 

LC
 #

26
00

02
70

IB
I G

R
O

U
P 

(F
LO

R
ID

A
) I

N
C

11
00

 P
ar

k 
C

en
tra

l B
ou

le
va

rd
 S

ou
th

 –
 S

ui
te

 3
50

0
Po

m
pa

no
 B

ea
ch

 F
L 

 3
30

64
  U

SA
te

l 9
54

 9
74

 2
20

0 
 fa

x 
95

4 
97

3 
26

86
ib

ig
ro

up
.c

om

D
at

e
N

o.
C

om
m

en
t

R
ev

is
io

n 
/ S

ub
m

is
si

on

By
06

/1
5/

20
22

R
EV

IS
ED

 P
ER

 S
PR

T 
#1

PF
R

10TH AVENUE N. ENTRANCE DETAIL

NOTE:

1. CONSTRUCTION JOINTS SHALL BE PLACED AT EQUAL
SPACES (10' MAX.) BETWEEN NORMAL EXPANSION JOINTS.
CONSTRUCTION JOINTS SHALL BE SAW CUT WITHIN 24
HRS. OF PLACEMENT.

2. FOR CURB & GUTTER CONSTRUCTED ADJACENT TO
CONCRETE PAVEMENT. 12" EXPANSION JOINT MATERIALS
SHALL BE PLACED BETWEEN THE EDGE OF GUTTER AND
EDGE OF PAVEMENT.

TYPE 'A' CURB  DETAIL
N.T.S.

1'-4"

9" 7"

6"

11
"2"

3"

R
3 4"R
3 4"R13 4"

R 3
4"

CONCRETE

PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
HP

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL SECTION  WEST SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL SECTION  WEST SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL SECTION  NORTH SECTIONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL SECTION  EAST-WEST CROSS-SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL SECTION  SOUTH SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SS MH RIM (V.I.F.) I.E. (N) (V.I.F.)    (S) (V.I.F.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
J:\137767_Lake_Worth_S\7.0_Production\7.03_Design\01_Gen\Sheets\137767-ENG.dwg  Modified:6/15/2022  By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence   Modified:6/15/2022  By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence 6/15/2022  By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence   By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence cpence Plotted By:christopher pence  Plotted By:christopher pence christopher pence 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1



C3.2

CMP

04/06/2022

DRAWN:

DESIGNED:

CHECKED:

DATE:

CMP

PFR

SCALE:
N.T.S.

PROJECT:
137767

SHEET:

NOT FOR C
ONSTRUCTIO

N

NOT TO BE FILED FOR RECORD UNLESS SIGNED AND DATED
WITH THE ORIGINAL SEAL OF PATRICIA F. RAMUDO,

FLORIDA P.E. #35798 FOR THE FIRM.

LA
KE

 W
O

R
TH

 S
TA

TI
O

N

 P
AV

IN
G

, G
R

AD
IN

G
 A

N
D

 D
R

AI
N

AG
E 

 D
ET

AI
LS

LA
KE

 W
O

R
TH

 B
EA

C
H

, F
LO

R
ID

A

EN
G

IN
EE

R
'S

 C
ER

T.
 O

F 
AU

TH
. #

29
66

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E 

LC
 #

26
00

02
70

IB
I G

R
O

U
P 

(F
LO

R
ID

A
) I

N
C

11
00

 P
ar

k 
C

en
tra

l B
ou

le
va

rd
 S

ou
th

 –
 S

ui
te

 3
50

0
Po

m
pa

no
 B

ea
ch

 F
L 

 3
30

64
  U

SA
te

l 9
54

 9
74

 2
20

0 
 fa

x 
95

4 
97

3 
26

86
ib

ig
ro

up
.c

om

D
at

e
N

o.
C

om
m

en
t

R
ev

is
io

n 
/ S

ub
m

is
si

on

By

TOLL FREE

CALL

SUNSHINE STATE ONE CALL CENTER
811 or 1-800-432-4770

48 HOURS BEFORE DIGGING

DISCLAIMER
This drawing, as an instrument of service, is the property
of the Engineer and may not be reproduced without their
permission and unless the reproduction carries their
name. All design and other information shown on this
drawing are for the use on the specified project only and
shall not be used otherwise without written permission of
the Engineer. Written dimensions shall have precedence
over scaled dimensions. Contractors shall verify and be
responsible for all dimensions and conditions on the job
and the Engineer shall be informed of any variations from
the dimensions and conditions shown on the drawing.
Shop drawings shall be submitted to the Engineer for
approval before proceeding with fabrication.

LONGITUDINAL SECTION TRANSVERSE SECTION

4" MAX.

5'

12"

5'
4" MAX.

LENGTH OF FRENCH DRAIN

10'

10'

8'

POLLUTION RETARDANT BAFFLE (PRB) DETAIL

CONTROL BAFFLE DETAIL

EXFILTRATION TRENCH DETAIL

PRECAST DRAINAGE MANHOLE
OR CIRCULAR CATCH BASIN

SECTION

PLAN (MANHOLE)

PLAN (CATCH BASIN)

TYPICAL PAVEMENT SECTION
N.T.S.

1 1/2" TYPE "S-III" ASPHALTIC
CONCRETE SURFACE COURSE (2-3/4" LIFTS)

12" THICK SUB-BASE COMPACTED TO 95%
OF THE MODIFIED PROCTOR (ASTM D-1557
AASHTO T-180), MAX. DRY DENSITY.

8" CRUSHED LIMEROCK BASE COMPACTED
TO 98% OF THE MODIFIED PROCTOR
(ASTM D-1557 AASHTO T-180), MAX. DENSITY.

06
/1

5/
20

22
R

EV
IS

ED
 P

ER
 S

PR
T 

#1
PF

R

NOTE:

1. CONSTRUCTION JOINTS SHALL BE PLACED AT EQUAL
SPACES (10' MAX.) BETWEEN NORMAL EXPANSION JOINTS.
CONSTRUCTION JOINTS SHALL BE SAW CUT WITHIN 24
HRS. OF PLACEMENT.

2. FOR CURB & GUTTER CONSTRUCTED ADJACENT TO
CONCRETE PAVEMENT. 12" EXPANSION JOINT MATERIALS
SHALL BE PLACED BETWEEN THE EDGE OF GUTTER AND
EDGE OF PAVEMENT.

TYPE 'A' CURB  DETAIL
N.T.S.

1'-4"

9" 7"

6"

11
"2"

3"

R
3 4"R
3 4"R13 4"

R 3
4"

CONCRETE

PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
J:\137767_Lake_Worth_S\7.0_Production\7.03_Design\01_Gen\Sheets\137767-ENG.dwg  Modified:6/15/2022  By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence   Modified:6/15/2022  By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence 6/15/2022  By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence   By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence cpence Plotted By:christopher pence  Plotted By:christopher pence christopher pence 

AutoCAD SHX Text
48"

AutoCAD SHX Text
54"

AutoCAD SHX Text
42"

AutoCAD SHX Text
54"

AutoCAD SHX Text
60"

AutoCAD SHX Text
48"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
30"

AutoCAD SHX Text
36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
42"

AutoCAD SHX Text
30"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(IN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
"H"

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOLID TOP (SEE NOTE #1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN BOTTOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(MIN.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
IN

AutoCAD SHX Text
HALF PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.A.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(MIN.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
"W "

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH 1/2" MOUNTING HOLES

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2 ROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORRUGATED

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" x 1/8" FLAT BAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP AND SIDES

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTINUOUS WELD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EQUAL (1" x 3") SHALL BE INSTALLED ON THE SIDES

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEOPRENE ADHESIVE BACKED GASKET, OR APPROVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
POLLUTION RETARDANT BAFFLE TO BE FASTENED IN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE WITH 3/8"x4" STAINLESS STEEL "RED HEADS",

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR APPROVED EQUAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHALL BE WELDED TO CLOSE OPENING AT THE TOP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUMINUM SHEET OF SAME THICKNESS (GAUGE) AS PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
 OPENING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
 (SEE NOTE #2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEOPRENE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEOPRENE GASKET

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SEE NOTE #2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
21"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"

AutoCAD SHX Text
30"

AutoCAD SHX Text
21"

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND TOP OF ALL BAFFLES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL EXFILTRATION TRENCHES SHALL HAVE A POLLUTION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRUCTURE (SEE EXFILTRATION TRENCH DETAIL).

AutoCAD SHX Text
RETARDANT BAFFLE AT EACH CONNECTION POINT TO A 

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIBERGLASS BAFFLES ARE NOT PERMITTED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOUNTING BRACKETS MAY BE ADDED TO FLAT BARS TO 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASE INSTALLATION IN ROUND STRUCTURES. SPACING TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH HOLES IN FLAT BARS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE 7.

AutoCAD SHX Text
48"

AutoCAD SHX Text
54"

AutoCAD SHX Text
42"

AutoCAD SHX Text
54"

AutoCAD SHX Text
60"

AutoCAD SHX Text
48"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
30"

AutoCAD SHX Text
36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
42"

AutoCAD SHX Text
30"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(IN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
(IN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
(GAUGE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
(IN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
42"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
60"

AutoCAD SHX Text
54"

AutoCAD SHX Text
66"

AutoCAD SHX Text
48"

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
21"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
21"

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
30"

AutoCAD SHX Text
21"

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
30"

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECTANGULAR STRUCTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROUND STRUCTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUMINUM PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GASKET TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECTANGULAR STRUCTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
180

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROUND STRUCTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
"W "

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR POLLUTION RETARDANT BASINS THE BOTTOM ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF THE BAFFLE MUST BE A MINIMUM OF 2' BELOW THE

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTROL WATER ELEVATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE BOTTOM OF THE BAFFLE SHALL BE A MIN. OF 12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BELOW C.W.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
48"

AutoCAD SHX Text
54"

AutoCAD SHX Text
42"

AutoCAD SHX Text
54"

AutoCAD SHX Text
60"

AutoCAD SHX Text
48"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
30"

AutoCAD SHX Text
36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
42"

AutoCAD SHX Text
30"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(IN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
"H"

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN TOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLOSED BOTTOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(MIN.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
IN

AutoCAD SHX Text
HALF PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.A.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(MIN.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
"W "

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH 1/2" MOUNTING HOLES

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2 ROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORRUGATED

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" x 1/8" FLAT BAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP AND SIDES

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTINUOUS WELD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EQUAL (1" x 3") SHALL BE INSTALLED ON THE SIDES

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEOPRENE ADHESIVE BACKED GASKET, OR APPROVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
POLLUTION RETARDANT BAFFLE TO BE FASTENED IN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE WITH 3/8"x4" STAINLESS STEEL "RED HEADS",

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR APPROVED EQUAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHALL BE WELDED TO CLOSE OPENING AT THE TOP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUMINUM SHEET OF SAME THICKNESS (GAUGE) AS PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
 OPENING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEOPRENE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEOPRENE GASKET

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SEE NOTE #2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
21"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"

AutoCAD SHX Text
30"

AutoCAD SHX Text
21"

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND TOP OF ALL BAFFLES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL EXFILTRATION TRENCHES SHALL HAVE A POLLUTION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRUCTURE (SEE EXFILTRATION TRENCH DETAIL).

AutoCAD SHX Text
RETARDANT BAFFLE AT EACH CONNECTION POINT TO A 

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIBERGLASS BAFFLES ARE NOT PERMITTED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOUNTING BRACKETS MAY BE ADDED TO FLAT BARS TO 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASE INSTALLATION IN ROUND STRUCTURES. SPACING TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH HOLES IN FLAT BARS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE 7.

AutoCAD SHX Text
48"

AutoCAD SHX Text
54"

AutoCAD SHX Text
42"

AutoCAD SHX Text
54"

AutoCAD SHX Text
60"

AutoCAD SHX Text
48"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
30"

AutoCAD SHX Text
36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
42"

AutoCAD SHX Text
30"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(IN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
(IN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
(GAUGE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
(IN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
42"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
60"

AutoCAD SHX Text
54"

AutoCAD SHX Text
66"

AutoCAD SHX Text
48"

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
21"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
21"

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
30"

AutoCAD SHX Text
21"

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
30"

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECTANGULAR STRUCTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROUND STRUCTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GASKET TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECTANGULAR STRUCTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
180

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROUND STRUCTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
"W "

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR POLLUTION RETARDANT BASINS THE BOTTOM ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF THE BAFFLE MUST BE A MINIMUM OF 2' BELOW THE

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTROL WATER ELEVATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE BOTTOM OF THE BAFFLE SHALL BE A MIN. OF 12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BELOW C.W.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE #1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE #8

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" INVERTED TRIANGLE BLEEDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV. ELEV. 12.00 NAVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SELECT FILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE C INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEVATION = 6.00' NAVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOTTOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE C INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
FABRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLASTIC FILTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1.  PLASTIC FILTER FABRIC OR FILTER CLOTH (AT EA. SIDE, TOP AND BOTTOM) SHALL BE USED IN SANDY    AREAS AS NOTED IN PLANS AND/OR AS DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER.  2.  IF BALLAST ROCK IS NOT PRE-WASHED, AFTER IT HAS BEEN PLACED TO THE PROPER ELEVATION, IT            SHALL BE CAREFULLY WASHED DOWN WITH CLEAN WATER IN ORDER TO ALLOW FOR INITIAL    SETTLEMENT THAT MAY OCCUR.  IF IT DOES TAKE PLACE, ADDITIONAL BALLAST ROCK WILL    BE ADDED TO RESTORE THE BALLAST ROCK TO THE PROPER ELEVATION, SO THAT THE    EXFILTRATION TRENCH BE COMPLETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE DETAILS.  3.  INVERT ELEVATION TO BE AS SHOWN IN PLANS. 4.  POLLUTION RETARDENT BAFFLE (PRB) REQUIRED AT EACH PIPE OPENING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SELECT  FILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SELECT FILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
BALLAST ROCK (SEE NOTE 2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE*

AutoCAD SHX Text
SELECT FILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" PERF HDPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLASTIC FILTER FABRIC OR FILTER CLOTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEVATION = 10.50' NAVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE INVERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHWT = 5.80' NAVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEVATION = 14.00' NAVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF TRENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SELECT FILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINIMUM GRATE ELEVATION = 15.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR DROP CURB:  USE USF 5112-6143 FRAME AND GRATE (O.A.E.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR CURB INLET: USE USF 5130-6168 FRAME AND GRATE (O.A.E.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK TO GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
# 420 (OR APPROVED EQUAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
# 4155-6210 (OR APPROVED EQUAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANHOLE - U.S. FOUNDRY RING AND COVER, DRAWING

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN - U.S. FOUNDRY FRAME AND GRATE, DRAWING

AutoCAD SHX Text
c

AutoCAD SHX Text
"B"

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL RE-BARS ("E")

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF FABRICATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL RE-BARS ("D")

AutoCAD SHX Text
"A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
"B"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
"F"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7'-4"%%C 

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'-4"%%C 

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'-4"%%C 

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-4"%%C 

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'-4"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
"E"

AutoCAD SHX Text
"F"

AutoCAD SHX Text
"C"

AutoCAD SHX Text
"B"

AutoCAD SHX Text
"D"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
#5@12"C.C.E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
#5@12"C.C.E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
#5@12"C.C.E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-W.W.M.  W/#4

AutoCAD SHX Text
@12"C.C. VERT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4@12"C.C.E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4@12"C.C.E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
#5@12"C.C.E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
#5@6"C.C.E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
#5@6"C.C.E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
#5@6"C.C.E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDOT CLASS 57

AutoCAD SHX Text
COARSE AGGREGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL RE-BARS ("E")

AutoCAD SHX Text
"C"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RE-BAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
"C"

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
"A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
M-5

AutoCAD SHX Text
M-8

AutoCAD SHX Text
M-7

AutoCAD SHX Text
M-6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7'-0"%%C 

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'-0"%%C 

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-0"%%C 

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'-0"%%C 

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-5

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-7

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-8

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-6

AutoCAD SHX Text
M-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'-0"%%C 

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIED UNDER BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INVERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDARD HOOKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FABRIC FOR MIN. 2' UP SIDES

AutoCAD SHX Text
WRAP DOT APPROVED FILTER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRECAST CONCRETE STRUCTURE TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDITIONAL RE-BARS ("D")

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOLES FOR PIPING SHALL BE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND SHALL BE CAST AT TIME

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" LARGER THAN PIPE O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CONCRETE MIN. F =4000 psi)

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPLY SITH ASTM C-478

AutoCAD SHX Text
(MAXIMUM 12")

AutoCAD SHX Text
1



C3.3

CMP

04/06/2022

DRAWN:

DESIGNED:

CHECKED:

DATE:

CMP

PFR

SCALE:
N.T.S.

PROJECT:
137767

SHEET:

NOT FOR C
ONSTRUCTIO

N

NOT TO BE FILED FOR RECORD UNLESS SIGNED AND DATED
WITH THE ORIGINAL SEAL OF PATRICIA F. RAMUDO,

FLORIDA P.E. #35798 FOR THE FIRM.

LA
KE

 W
O

R
TH

 S
TA

TI
O

N

 P
AV

IN
G

, G
R

AD
IN

G
 A

N
D

 D
R

AI
N

AG
E 

 D
ET

AI
LS

LA
KE

 W
O

R
TH

 B
EA

C
H

, F
LO

R
ID

A

EN
G

IN
EE

R
'S

 C
ER

T.
 O

F 
AU

TH
. #

29
66

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E 

LC
 #

26
00

02
70

IB
I G

R
O

U
P 

(F
LO

R
ID

A
) I

N
C

11
00

 P
ar

k 
C

en
tra

l B
ou

le
va

rd
 S

ou
th

 –
 S

ui
te

 3
50

0
Po

m
pa

no
 B

ea
ch

 F
L 

 3
30

64
  U

SA
te

l 9
54

 9
74

 2
20

0 
 fa

x 
95

4 
97

3 
26

86
ib

ig
ro

up
.c

om

D
at

e
N

o.
C

om
m

en
t

R
ev

is
io

n 
/ S

ub
m

is
si

on

By
06

/1
5/

20
22

R
EV

IS
ED

 P
ER

 S
PR

T 
#1

PF
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
J:\137767_Lake_Worth_S\7.0_Production\7.03_Design\01_Gen\Sheets\137767-ENG.dwg  Modified:6/15/2022  By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence   Modified:6/15/2022  By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence 6/15/2022  By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence   By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence cpence Plotted By:christopher pence  Plotted By:christopher pence christopher pence 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1



10th AVENUE NORTH

N 88°39'12"W                134.97'      (135' PLAT)

 S
 0

1°
23

'2
1"

W
   

  3
50

.0
4'

(3
50

' P
LA

T)

N
O

R
TH

 G
 S

TR
EE

T
(4

0'
 R

/W
)

TRAFFIC
SIGNAL BOX

(80' R/W)

N
 0

1°
22

'4
8"

 E
   

   
34

0.
06

'

CATVS88°38'41"E  125.02'

6 CUBIC YARD

RECYCLE
RECYCLE

RECYCLE
RECYCLE

PROPOSED
BLDG.
5-STORY

MULTI-FAMILY
GROUND FLOOR

13,854 SF

EV

EV

EV

EV

CONNECT TO EX. 8"
PVC SS W/ 6" PVC SL

12" x 4" TAPPING
SLEEVE & VALVE,
4" G.V., 4" DIP FL,

4" DDCV

12" x 6" TAPPING
SLEEVE & VALVE,

FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBY

6" x 4" TAPPING
SLEEVE & VALVE,
4" G.V., 4" DIP,
4" W.M., 4" RPZBFP,
SP #1

CO
CO

±80 LF 6" PVC SL
@ 1% MIN.

4" DIP FL

FDC

6" x 2" TAPPING
SLEEVE & VALVE,
2" G.V., 2" DIP WL,
2" IRRIG. METER &
2" BACKFLOW
PREVENTER

REFER TO NOTE #2

N
 G

 S
T

10TH AVENUE N

FE
C

 R
AI

LR
O

AD

11TH AVENUE N

9TH AVENUE N

N
 F

 S
T

N
 H

 S
T

8TH AVENUE N

N
 E

 S
T

N
 D

IX
IE

 H
W

Y

N
 J

 S
T

N.I.C.

C4.0

CMP

04/06/2022

DRAWN:

DESIGNED:

CHECKED:

DATE:

CMP

PFR

SCALE:
1" = 20'

PROJECT:
137767

SHEET:

NOT FOR C
ONSTRUCTIO

N

NOT TO BE FILED FOR RECORD UNLESS SIGNED AND DATED
WITH THE ORIGINAL SEAL OF PATRICIA F. RAMUDO,

FLORIDA P.E. #35798 FOR THE FIRM.

LA
KE

 W
O

R
TH

 S
TA

TI
O

N

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

W
AT

ER
 A

N
D

 S
EW

ER
 P

LA
N

LOCATION MAP
(N.T.S.)

N

LA
KE

 W
O

R
TH

 B
EA

C
H

, F
LO

R
ID

A

EN
G

IN
EE

R
'S

 C
ER

T.
 O

F 
AU

TH
. #

29
66

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E 

LC
 #

26
00

02
70

TOLL FREE

CALL

SUNSHINE STATE ONE CALL CENTER
811 or 1-800-432-4770

48 HOURS BEFORE DIGGING

IB
I G

R
O

U
P 

(F
LO

R
ID

A
) I

N
C

11
00

 P
ar

k 
C

en
tra

l B
ou

le
va

rd
 S

ou
th

 –
 S

ui
te

 3
50

0
Po

m
pa

no
 B

ea
ch

 F
L 

 3
30

64
  U

SA
te

l 9
54

 9
74

 2
20

0 
 fa

x 
95

4 
97

3 
26

86
ib

ig
ro

up
.c

om

D
at

e
N

o.
C

om
m

en
t

DISCLAIMER
This drawing, as an instrument of service, is the property
of the Engineer and may not be reproduced without their
permission and unless the reproduction carries their
name. All design and other information shown on this
drawing are for the use on the specified project only and
shall not be used otherwise without written permission of
the Engineer. Written dimensions shall have precedence
over scaled dimensions. Contractors shall verify and be
responsible for all dimensions and conditions on the job
and the Engineer shall be informed of any variations from
the dimensions and conditions shown on the drawing.
Shop drawings shall be submitted to the Engineer for
approval before proceeding with fabrication.

R
ev

is
io

n 
/ S

ub
m

is
si

on

By

PROJECT
LOCATION

SANITARY SEWER LATERAL W/ MANHOLE

45° BEND FITTING

TEE FITTING

LEGEND

REDUCER

GATE VALVE

WATER METER

BACKFLOW PREVENTER

DOUBLE DETECTOR CHECK VALVE

FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTION

FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY

90° BEND FITTING

22° BEND FITTING

NOTES:

1. ALL DIP WATER MAINS TO BE COLOR CODED OR
MARKED BLUE ACCORDING TO FLORIDA
ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, RULE 62-555.320(21)(b)3.

2. FOR EX. 8" PVC SANITARY SEWER, CONTRACTOR
SHALL LINE THE INTERIOR OF THE PIPE WITH A
CURED IN PLACE LINER, FROM MANHOLE TO
MANHOLE, ±355 LF.

SEPARATION OF WATER & SEWER LINES

HORIZONTAL SEPARATION OF PIPELINES ALTERNATE CONSTRUCTION
MINIMUM SEPARATION BETWEEN THE OUTSIDE OF THE WATER MAIN WHERE AN UNDERGROUND WATER MAIN IS BEING LAID LESS THAN THE

AND THE OUTSIDE OF ANY EXISTING OR REQUIRED MINIMUM HORIZONTAL DISTANCE FROM ANOTHER PIPELINE AND
PROPOSED WASTEWATER LINE WHEN POSSIBLE WHERE AND UNDERGROUND WATER MAIN IS CROSSING ANOTHER PIPELINE

AND JOINTS IN THE WATER MAIN ARE BEING LOCATED LESS THAN THE
THREE FEET, AND STORM SEWER, STORMWATER FORCE MAIN REQUIRED MINIMUM VERTICAL DISTANCE FROM JOINTS IN THE OTHER PIPELINE.
PREFERABLY TEN FEET OR RECLAIMED WATER MAIN

1. USE OF PRESSURE-RATED PIPE CONFORMING TO THE AMERICAN
THREE FEET, AND VACUUM-TYPE SANITARY SEWER WATER WORKS ASSOCIATION STANDARDS INCORPORATED INTO RULE
PREFERABLY TEN FEET 62-555.330, F.A.C., FOR THE OTHER PIPELINE IF IT IS A GRAVITY- OR

VACUUM-TYPE PIPELINE;
SIX FEET, AND GRAVITY- OR PRESSURE-TYPE SANITARY SEWER,
PREFERABLY TEN FEET WASTEWATER FORCE MAIN OR RECLAIMED 2. USE OF WELDED, FUSED OR OTHERWISE RESTRAINED JOINTS FOR

WATER MAIN NOT REGULATED UNDER PART III EITHER THE WATER MAIN OR THE OTHER PIPELINE; OR
OF CHAPTER 62-610, F.A.C.

3. USE OF WATERTIGHT CASING PIPE OR CONCRETE ENCASEMENT AT
THE MINIMUM HORIZONTAL SEPARATION LEAST FOUR (4) INCHES THICK FOR EITHER THE WATER MAIN OR
DISTANCE BETWEEN WATER MAINS AND GRAVITY- THE OTHER PIPELINE.
TYPE SANITARY SEWERS SHALL BE REDUCED
TO THREE FEET WHERE THE BOTTOM OF THE
WATER MAIN IS LAID AT LEAST SIX INCHES WHERE AN UNDERGROUND WATER MAIN IS BEING LAID LESS THAN THREE FEET
ABOVE THE TOP OF THE SEWER HORIZONTALLY FROM ANOTHER PIPELINE AND WHERE AN UNDERGROUND

WATER MAIN IS CROSSING ANOTHER PIPELINE AND IS BEING LAID LESS THAN
TEN FEET "ON-SITE SEWAGE TREATMENT AND DISPOSAL SYSTEM" THE REQUIRED MINIMUM VERTICAL DISTANCE FROM THE OTHER PIPELINE;

1. USE OF PIPE, OR CASING PIPE, HAVING HIGH IMPACT STRENGTH (I.E.
HAVING AN IMPACT STRENGTH AT LEAST EQUAL TO THAT OF 0.25-INCH-
THICK DUCTILE IRON PIPE) OR CONCRETE ENCASEMENT AT LEAST FOUR
INCHES THICK FOR THE WATER MAIN; AND

2. USE OF PIPE, OR CASING PIPE, HAVING HIGH IMPACT STRENGTH (I.E. HAVING A
0.25-INCH-THICK DUCTILE IRON PIPE) OR CONCRETE ENCASEMENT AT LEAST FOUR
INCHES THICK FOR THE OTHER PIPELINE IF IT IS NEW AND IS
CONVEYING WASTEWATER OR RECLAIMED WATER.

VERTICAL SEPARATION OF PIPELINES
MINIMUM SEPARATION NEW OR RELOCATED. UNDERGROUND WATER
DISTANCE FROM THE CROSSING ANY EXISTING OR PROPOSED
(OUTSIDE TO OUTSIDE)

6 INCHES, PREFERABLY GRAVITY- OR VACUUM-TYPE SANITARY
12 INCHES ABOVE SEWER OR STORM SEWER

12 INCHES BELOW GRAVITY- OR VACUUM-TYPE SANITARY
SEWER OR STORM SEWER

12 INCHES ABOVE OR PRESSURE-TYPE SANITARY SEWER,
BELOW WASTEWATER, STORMWATER FORCE MAIN OR

PIPELINE CONVEYING RECLAIMED WATER MAIN

ONE FULL LENGTH OF WATER MAIN PIPE SHALL BE CENTERED ABOVE OR
BELOW THE OTHER PIPELINE SO THE WATER MAIN JOINTS WILL BE AS FAR AS
POSSIBLE FROM THE OTHER PIPELINE.

ALTERNATIVELY, THE PIPES SHALL BE ARRANGED SO THAT ALL WATER MAIN
JOINTS ARE AT LEAST THREE FEET FROM ALL JOINTS IN VACUUM-TYPE
SANITARY SEWERS, STORM SEWERS, STORMWATER FORCE MAINS OR
RECLAIMED WATER MAINS, AND AT LEAST SIX FEET FROM ALL JOINTS IN
GRAVITY- OR PRESSURE-TYPE SANITARY SEWERS, WASTEWATER, FORCE
MAINS OR RECLAIMED WATER MAINS.

06
/1

5/
20

22
R

EV
IS

ED
 P

ER
 S

PR
T 

#1
PF

R

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT INCLUDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE #10 REGARDING R/W TAKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEETS EXISTING C.L.FENCE N.W. COR. OF LOT 14

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW 5'C.L.FENCE ON EAST SIDE OF POWER POLE AT SOUTH END, AND 1.0'EAST OF POLE AT NORTH END

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PARCEL 1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECORATIVE BRICK AND ROCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECORATIVE BRICK AND ROCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD ROCK STREWN THROUGHOUT LOT 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' WATER LINE EASEMENT (ORB 10198, PG.458)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLATTED 10' ALLEY (UNIMPROVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' (PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
90°02'04"

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE (NOT INCLUDED) FLU: TOD, ZONING: TOD-E

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACANT FLU: TOD, ZONING: MU-DIXIE

AutoCAD SHX Text
135.02' (135' PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 01°22'48" W       390.07''

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00°49'15"E  400.10' (400' PLAT)(400' PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHANNEL BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARBAGE CAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK BENCH W/2 1.5' COLUMNS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' CLF

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WOOD FENCE 0.2'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WOOD FENCE 1.4'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CLF 1.3'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CLF 0.3'S, 1.8'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WOOD FENCE 0.8'S, 1.5'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WOOD FENCE 0.8'S, 1.1'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CLF 1.1'S, 0.9'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" VCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C TRACKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.81'

AutoCAD SHX Text
90°31'29"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(36.63' PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIBO

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C TRACKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.83'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIE 1.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANCHOR ENCROACHES 11' WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' PLATTED RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACANT 0.354± ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
89°57'55"

AutoCAD SHX Text
APARTMENT BUILDINGS FLU: TOD, ZONING: MU-DIXIE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE FLU: TOD, ZONING: MU-DIXIE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRIPLEX APARTMENT BUILDING FLU: TOD, ZONING: MU-DIXIE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88°39'16"W 36.61'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK BENCH W/2 1.5' COLUMNS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' WOOD FENCE ENCROACHES

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLORIDA EAST COAST RAILROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD CROSSING ARM

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK PILE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 12" CIP WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 6" PVC WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 8" PVC SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 12" CIP WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 6" PVC WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 36" RCP STORM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SS MH RIM (V.I.F.) I.E. (N) (V.I.F.)    (S) (V.I.F.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SS MH RIM I.E. (N)

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
NN

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLU: TOD, ZONING: TOD-E

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE FLU: TOD, ZONING: MU-DIXIE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE FLU: TOD, ZONING: MU-DIXIE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NN

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
J:\137767_Lake_Worth_S\7.0_Production\7.03_Design\01_Gen\Sheets\137767-ENG.dwg  Modified:6/16/2022  By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence   Modified:6/16/2022  By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence 6/16/2022  By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence   By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence cpence Plotted By:christopher pence  Plotted By:christopher pence christopher pence 

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =      ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
1



C4.1

CMP

04/06/2022

DRAWN:

DESIGNED:

CHECKED:

DATE:

CMP

PFR

SCALE:
N.T.S.

PROJECT:
137767

SHEET:

NOT FOR C
ONSTRUCTIO

N

NOT TO BE FILED FOR RECORD UNLESS SIGNED AND DATED
WITH THE ORIGINAL SEAL OF PATRICIA F. RAMUDO,

FLORIDA P.E. #35798 FOR THE FIRM.

LA
KE

 W
O

R
TH

 S
TA

TI
O

N

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

W
AT

ER
 A

N
D

 S
EW

ER
 D

ET
AI

LS

LA
KE

 W
O

R
TH

 B
EA

C
H

, F
LO

R
ID

A

EN
G

IN
EE

R
'S

 C
ER

T.
 O

F 
AU

TH
. #

29
66

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E 

LC
 #

26
00

02
70

IB
I G

R
O

U
P 

(F
LO

R
ID

A
) I

N
C

11
00

 P
ar

k 
C

en
tra

l B
ou

le
va

rd
 S

ou
th

 –
 S

ui
te

 3
50

0
Po

m
pa

no
 B

ea
ch

 F
L 

 3
30

64
  U

SA
te

l 9
54

 9
74

 2
20

0 
 fa

x 
95

4 
97

3 
26

86
ib

ig
ro

up
.c

om

D
at

e
N

o.
C

om
m

en
t

R
ev

is
io

n 
/ S

ub
m

is
si

on

By

TYPICAL FDC DETAIL

06
/1

5/
20

22
R

EV
IS

ED
 P

ER
 S

PR
T 

#1
PF

R

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE HYDRANT INSTALLATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-2 1/2" HOSE NOZZLES

AutoCAD SHX Text
4 1/2" PUMPER NOZZLE FACING ROADWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISHED GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALVE BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" GATE VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" D.I.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN TEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" D.I.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REST. TEE OR TIE RODS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISHED GRADE IF VALVE FALLS WITHIN PAVEMENT OR SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZINC PLATED STEEL TIE RODS WITH DUC LUGS OR EYE BOLTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE:  1. ON RUNS LONGER THAN 60' ANOTHER VALVE IS REQUIRED. ON RUNS LONGER THAN 60' ANOTHER VALVE IS REQUIRED. 2. MEGALUGS REQUIRED ON ALL JOINTS.MEGALUGS REQUIRED ON ALL JOINTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" MIN. 24" MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE NO. 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETAIL "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
METER BY OTHERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER SERVICE FOR 1" OR 2" PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR EXIST COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1. SUCCESSIVE TAPS INTO THE WATER MAIN SHALL BE SPACED A MINIMUM OF 18". SUCCESSIVE TAPS INTO THE WATER MAIN SHALL BE SPACED A MINIMUM OF 18". OFFSET AND AT 45° FROM THE CENTERLINE (ON MAINS WITH GREATER THAN 30"OF COVER. SEE DETAIL 'A'). 2. WHERE NO SIDEWALK EXISTS, METER BOXES SHALL BE SET TO CONFORM TO FINISH WHERE NO SIDEWALK EXISTS, METER BOXES SHALL BE SET TO CONFORM TO FINISH GRADE.. 3. COPPER TUBING SHALL BE TYPE "K" WITH COMPRESSION FITTINGS. POLYETHYLENE COPPER TUBING SHALL BE TYPE "K" WITH COMPRESSION FITTINGS. POLYETHYLENE TUBING SHALL BE SDR 9, COPPER SIZE TUBING. 4. ROTATE THE CORPORATION STOP SO THAT THE OPERATING NUT IS ACTUATED FROM ROTATE THE CORPORATION STOP SO THAT THE OPERATING NUT IS ACTUATED FROM THE VERTICAL POSITION RATHER THAN THE HORIZONTAL. 5. COPPER SERVICE LINES SHALL BE CONTINUOUS FROM CORPORATION STOP TO COPPER SERVICE LINES SHALL BE CONTINUOUS FROM CORPORATION STOP TO ANGLE METER STOP WITH NO FITTINGS IN BETWEEN. 6. TAPPING SADDLES AND CORPORATION STOPS SHALL HAVE CC THREADS. TAPPING SADDLES AND CORPORATION STOPS SHALL HAVE CC THREADS. 7. SERVICE CASING SHALL NOT BE INSTALLED BY WATER JETTING UNDER ROADWAY.   SERVICE CASING SHALL NOT BE INSTALLED BY WATER JETTING UNDER ROADWAY.   8. GALVANIZED CASING REQUIRED FOR JACK AND BORE IN MOST CASES, SCHEDULE 40 GALVANIZED CASING REQUIRED FOR JACK AND BORE IN MOST CASES, SCHEDULE 40 PVC MAY BE USED WITH THE APPROVAL OF THE ENGINEER . CASING SHOULD EXTEND SIX (6) FEET BEYOND EDGE OF PAVEMENT AND SIZED AS FOLLOWS A. 1" SERVICE USE 2" CASING  1" SERVICE USE 2" CASING  B. 2" SERVICE USE 4" CASING 2" SERVICE USE 4" CASING 9. METER BOX TO BE SET TWO FEET BEHIND PROPERTY LINE AND TWO FEET INSIDE METER BOX TO BE SET TWO FEET BEHIND PROPERTY LINE AND TWO FEET INSIDE SIDE PROPERTY LINE ON EITHER SIDE OF PROPERTY. 10. PIPING LAYOUT SHOWN IS TYPICAL FOR 2" SERVICE.PIPING LAYOUT SHOWN IS TYPICAL FOR 2" SERVICE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL BOTH ENDS OF CASING WITH CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE METER BOX AND C.I. COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" CORPORATION STOP AND TUBING (MINIMUM SIZE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOUBLE STRAP TAPPING SADDLE (NO DIRECT TAPS PERMITTED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" ANGLE  METER  STOP ( MIN.)  WITH LOCKING WINGS AND DRILLED METER NUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" PIPE COPPER OR PE (1" PIPE FOR SINGLE SERVICE OR TWO 5/8" METERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISHED GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFLOW PREVENTION DEVICE - 3/4" TO 2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
RPZ BACKFLOW PREVENTER ZURN/WILKINS 975.XL OR WATTS 909 RPZ 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE 'K' COPPER TUBING (HARD DRAWN) WITH COPPER/BRASS "SWEAT" FITTINGS AND ADAPTERS SHALL BE USED FROM THE METER ON. PIPE SIZE SHALL BE 1" OR 2".

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" MIN. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
   IN BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THREADED 6" LONG

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRASS NIPPLES (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
316 S.S. UNI-STRUT (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNI-STRUT CAP (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1. PROVIDE GUARD SHACK STEEL ENCLOSURE   PROVIDE GUARD SHACK STEEL ENCLOSURE   WITH GREEN VINYL COATING FOR PROTECTION. 2. ALL DEVICES ARE TO BE USC APPROVED.ALL DEVICES ARE TO BE USC APPROVED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION "A-A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAN-OUT IN PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISHED GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
30" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
48" MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1. U.S. FOUNDRY NO. 7621 REVERSIBLE HANDHOLE RING AND U.S. FOUNDRY NO. 7621 REVERSIBLE HANDHOLE RING AND COVER OR APPROVED EQUAL SHALL BE USED, COVER TO BE CAST WITH "S" IN THE CENTER.  2. CLEAN OUT REQUIRED ON ALL SERVICES AT PROPERTY LINE CLEAN OUT REQUIRED ON ALL SERVICES AT PROPERTY LINE WITHIN 5-FT OF R.  3. STANDARD WYE SHALL BE USED AT CLEAN OUT. STANDARD WYE SHALL BE USED AT CLEAN OUT. 4.  ALL PIPE AND CLEANOUT SHALL BE 6" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAP BRONZE PLATE AND RECESSED NUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" x 30" x 30" CONCRETE COLLAR WITH 4" x 4" WIRE MESH REINFORCMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" x 22" x 22" CONCRETE COLLAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE #1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAN OUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL WASTEWATER SERVICE CONNECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAINTENANCE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"X 6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.B.C.W.U.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEE BRANCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
WYE BRANCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROTATE BENDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" CLEAN OUT TO GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOUBLE WYE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE SERVICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOUBLE SERVICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOUBLE SERVICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"x6"x6" DOUBLE WYE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR DOUBLE SERVICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
 45° PVC 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDR35 BEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" CLEAN OUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
 45° PVC 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDR35 BEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISHED GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"-18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" SDR 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
45°

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"x6" WYE FOR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE SERVICE  

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROTATED UPWARDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"x6" WYE FOR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE SERVICE  

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROTATED UPWARDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" MIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
END OF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRENCHING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPELINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMIT FOR MACHINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INVERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
+ 24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" HAND EXCAVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
 4" MIN. SAND/GRAVEL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
 MACHINE EXCAVATION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALTERNATE FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND OVER-EXCAVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXCAVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE:  FOR PLACEMENT  OF  BACKFILL MATERIAL SEE SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROVIDE A MINIMUM OF 36 INCHES (FOR PVC) OR 30 INCHES (FOR DIP) OF COVER UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE ON PLANS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOWER QUADRANT TO BE SHAPED TO RECEIVE PIPE BELL AND BARREL

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAND PLACED SELECT MATERIAL ( COMPACTED IN 6" LIFTS )

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAMPLING POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" COPPER TUBING TYPE "K" OR POLYETHYLENE TUBING TO LOCKING BALL VALVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL EXCAVATED HOLE TO GRADE PRIOR TO DISCHARGING ANY WATER ON THE GROUND.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORPORATION STOP - AFTER SAMPLING IS COMPLETE, TURN CORPORATION STOP OFF, REMOVE TUBING AND PLUG CORPORATION STOP WITH BRASS PLUG.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOUBLE STRAP TAPPING SADDLE WITH AWWA THREADS. NO DIRECT TAPS ARE PERMITTED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" LOCKING BALL VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" AND LARGER METER INSTALLATION AND BACKFLOW ASSEMBLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:  1. MECHANICAL JOINT FITTINGS SHALL BE REQUIRED UNDERGROUND AND FLANGED FITTINGS FOR MECHANICAL JOINT FITTINGS SHALL BE REQUIRED UNDERGROUND AND FLANGED FITTINGS FOR ABOVE GROUND USE, NO UNIFLANGES PERMITTED. 2. PAINT THE ABOVE GROUND ASSEMBLY IN ACCORDANCE WITH CONSTRUCTION STANDARD, AFTER PAINT THE ABOVE GROUND ASSEMBLY IN ACCORDANCE WITH CONSTRUCTION STANDARD, AFTER MANUFACTURERS RECOMMENDED SURFACE PREP IS COMPLETED. DO NOT PAINT OVER NAME/SERIAL PLATE, STAINLESS STEEL OR BRASS FITTINGS. 3. PROTECTIVE PIPE STANCHIONS ARE REQUIRED. PROTECTIVE PIPE STANCHIONS ARE REQUIRED. 4. APPROVED REDUCED PRESSURE BACKFLOW PREVENTER WITH SILICONE RUBBER SEAL RINGS OR APPROVED REDUCED PRESSURE BACKFLOW PREVENTER WITH SILICONE RUBBER SEAL RINGS OR DISKS: A. WILKENS MODEL 375 S, 4" TO 10" WILKENS MODEL 375 S, 4" TO 10" B. AMES MODEL 4000 SSSR, 4" TO 10" AMES MODEL 4000 SSSR, 4" TO 10" C. AMES MODEL 4000 SESR, 4" TO 10" AMES MODEL 4000 SESR, 4" TO 10" D. AMES MODEL 4000 SSI, 4" TO 10" AMES MODEL 4000 SSI, 4" TO 10" 5. 3" METER REQUIRES 4" BACKFLOW ASSEMBLY AND PIPING. 3" METER REQUIRES 4" BACKFLOW ASSEMBLY AND PIPING. 6. ALL TEST PORTS SHALL BE PLUGGED WITH BRASS PLUGS. ALL TEST PORTS SHALL BE PLUGGED WITH BRASS PLUGS. 7. PROVIDE SPOOL PIECES DIRECTLY IN FRONT OF METER. MINIMUM LENGTH TO BE THREE PIPE PROVIDE SPOOL PIECES DIRECTLY IN FRONT OF METER. MINIMUM LENGTH TO BE THREE PIPE DIAMETERS. 8. METER TO BE SUPPLIED BY CONTRACTOR. MODEL NUMBER TO BE DETERMINED BY CITY.METER TO BE SUPPLIED BY CONTRACTOR. MODEL NUMBER TO BE DETERMINED BY CITY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPOUND WATER METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FROM

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" MIN. SIZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS DRAWING DEPICTS A GENERAL ASSEMBLY ONLY. THE ENGINEER OF RECORD SHALL COORDINATE THE SPECIFIC ASSEMBLY'S REQUIREMENTS WITH THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRACE PIPE, MIN. 4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
NON-RISING STEM GATE VALVE WITH HAND WHEEL OPERATOR (TYPICAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEST PORT (3/4" TAP WITH LOCKING BALL VALVE)(TYPICAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
REDUCED PRESSURE BACKFLOW PREVENTION DEVICE (SEE NOTE 4)

AutoCAD SHX Text
____" EMERGENCY BYPASS (TO BE SIZED BY ENGINEER OF RECORD)(4" MIN. SIZE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE SUPPORTS REQUIRED (SEE "PIPE SUPPORT" DETAIL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FULL FACED NEOPRENE GASKETS SHALL BE REQUIRED ON ALL FLANGES

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y STRAINER

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y STRAINER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPOOL PIECE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPOOL PIECE

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
11 1/4%%d, 22 1/2%%d & 45%%d BENDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
90%%d BEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEAD END

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
REDUCER

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DI

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESTRAINED PIPE JOINTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. LENGTH 'L' IS IN FEET.  LENGTH 'L' IS IN FEET.  2. RESTRAINED LENGTHS ARE BASED ON THE FOLLOWING:  RESTRAINED LENGTHS ARE BASED ON THE FOLLOWING:  .A. 150 PSI TEST PRESSURE 150 PSI TEST PRESSURE .B. MIN. 30" COVER. MIN. 30" COVER. .C. PVC - PIPE SIZES 4" - 12". PVC - PIPE SIZES 4" - 12". DI - PIPE SIZES 4" - 48". .D. SANDY SOIL. SANDY SOIL. .E. SAFETY FACTOR OF 1.5. SAFETY FACTOR OF 1.5. 3. LENGTH 'L' SHOWN IN THE TABLE TO BE RESTRAINED LENGTH 'L' SHOWN IN THE TABLE TO BE RESTRAINED IN THE DIRECTION OF THE ARROWS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
J:\137767_Lake_Worth_S\7.0_Production\7.03_Design\01_Gen\Sheets\137767-ENG.dwg  Modified:6/15/2022  By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence   Modified:6/15/2022  By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence 6/15/2022  By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence   By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence cpence Plotted By:christopher pence  Plotted By:christopher pence christopher pence 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1' - 4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" GALV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" DI SPIG CIF

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"x0-4 GALV. NIPPLE W/ 1/2" GALV. COUPLING & 1/2 BRASS BALLDRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"x2-1/2"x2-1/2" ROUGH BRASS 90° PATTERN FDC WITH(2) 2-1/2" BREAKABLE CAPS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" RETAINING GLAND THRUST BLOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-900 MJ 90° ELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN WITH 1" MIN. RAISED LETTERING

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" WATER CHECK VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1



10th AVENUE NORTH

N 88°39'12"W                134.97'      (135' PLAT)

 S
 0

1°
23

'2
1"

W
   

  3
50

.0
4'

(3
50

' P
LA

T)

N
O

R
TH

 G
 S

TR
EE

T
(4

0'
 R

/W
)

(80' R/W)

N
 0

1°
22

'4
8"

 E
   

   
34

0.
06

'

S88°38'41"E  125.02'

6 CUBIC YARD

RECYCLE
RECYCLE

RECYCLE
RECYCLE

PROPOSED
BLDG.
5-STORY

MULTI-FAMILY
GROUND FLOOR

13,854 SF

EV

EV

EV

EV

PROPOSED 6"
SINGLE WHITE @ 45°

PROPOSED
NO PARKING, LOADING &

UNLOADING ONLY SIGN

PROPOSED 4"
SINGLE WHITE
(TYP.)

PROPOSED 4"
DOUBLE WHITE

(TYP.)

PROPOSED 25 LF
6" DOUBLE YELLOW,
24" WHITE STOP BAR,
R1-1 STOP SIGN,
R3-5R RIGHT ONLY SIGN,
WHITE RIGHT ONLY
PAVEMENT ARROW
(THERMOPLASTIC)

PROPOSED ACCESSIBLE
PARKING SPACE & SIGN
(TYP.,SEE DETAIL FOR STRIPING)

PROPOSED R1-1 STOP SIGN
25 LF - 6" DOUBLE YELLOW,

24" WHITE STOP BAR,
(THERMOPLASTIC)

PROPOSED 6"
SINGLE WHITE @ 45°

C6.0

PFR

06/08/2022

DRAWN:

DESIGNED:

CHECKED:

DATE:

CMP

PFR

SCALE:
1" = 20'

PROJECT:
137767

SHEET:

NOT FOR C
ONSTRUCTIO

N

NOT TO BE FILED FOR RECORD UNLESS SIGNED AND DATED
WITH THE ORIGINAL SEAL OF PATRICIA F. RAMUDO,

FLORIDA P.E. #35798 FOR THE FIRM.

LA
KE

 W
O

R
TH

 S
TA

TI
O

N

PA
VE

M
EN

T 
M

AR
KI

N
G

 A
N

D
 S

IG
N

AG
E 

 P
LA

N

LA
KE

 W
O

R
TH

 B
EA

C
H

, F
LO

R
ID

A

EN
G

IN
EE

R
'S

 C
ER

T.
 O

F 
AU

TH
. #

29
66

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E 

LC
 #

26
00

02
70

TOLL FREE

CALL

SUNSHINE STATE ONE CALL CENTER
811 or 1-800-432-4770

48 HOURS BEFORE DIGGING

IB
I G

R
O

U
P 

(F
LO

R
ID

A
) I

N
C

11
00

 P
ar

k 
C

en
tra

l B
ou

le
va

rd
 S

ou
th

 –
 S

ui
te

 3
50

0
Po

m
pa

no
 B

ea
ch

 F
L 

 3
30

64
  U

SA
te

l 9
54

 9
74

 2
20

0 
 fa

x 
95

4 
97

3 
26

86
ib

ig
ro

up
.c

om

D
at

e
N

o.
C

om
m

en
t

DISCLAIMER
This drawing, as an instrument of service, is the property
of the Engineer and may not be reproduced without their
permission and unless the reproduction carries their
name. All design and other information shown on this
drawing are for the use on the specified project only and
shall not be used otherwise without written permission of
the Engineer. Written dimensions shall have precedence
over scaled dimensions. Contractors shall verify and be
responsible for all dimensions and conditions on the job
and the Engineer shall be informed of any variations from
the dimensions and conditions shown on the drawing.
Shop drawings shall be submitted to the Engineer for
approval before proceeding with fabrication.

R
ev

is
io

n 
/ S

ub
m

is
si

on

By

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLATTED 10' ALLEY (UNIMPROVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
J:\137767_Lake_Worth_S\7.0_Production\7.03_Design\01_Gen\Sheets\137767-PMS.dwg  Modified:6/8/2022  By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence   Modified:6/8/2022  By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence 6/8/2022  By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence   By:cpence Plotted By:christopher pence cpence Plotted By:christopher pence  Plotted By:christopher pence christopher pence 



W

D

1

0

'

-

1

"

 

X

 

1

0

'

-

1

0

"

A

/

C

W

H

.

1

1

'

-

0

"

 

X

 

1

0

-

0

"

2

2

'

-

2

"

 

X

 

1

3

'

-

1

"

18 cu. ft.

Top

Freezer Ref

Range/

oven

Micro/hood

above

1

0

'

-

3

"

 

X

 

1

2

'

-

8

"

1

1

'

-

1

0

"

 

X

 

2

2

'

-

6

"

A

/

C

W

H

.

1

8

 

c

u

.

 

f

t

.

T

o

p

F

r

e

e

z

e

r

 

R

e

f

R

a

n

g

e

/

o

v

e

n

M

i

c

r

o

/

h

o

o

d

a

b

o

v

e

1
0
'
-
3
"
 
X
 
1
2
'
-
8
"

1
1
'
-
5
"
 
X
 
2
3
'
-
6
"

1
8
 
c
u
.
 
f
t
.

T
o
p

F
r
e
e
z
e
r
 
R
e
f

A
/
C

W
H

.

R
a
n
g
e
/

o
v
e
n

M
i
c
r
o
/
h
o
o
d

a
b
o
v
e

1

0

'

-

3

"

 

X

 

1

2

'

-

8

"

1

1

'

-

5

"

 

X

 

2

3

'

-

6

"

1

8

 

c

u

.

 

f

t

.

T

o

p

F

r

e

e

z

e

r

 

R

e

f

A

/

C

W

H

.

R

a

n

g

e

/

o

v

e

n

M

i

c

r

o

/

h

o

o

d

a

b

o

v

e

1
0
'
-
3
"
 
X
 
1
2
'
-
8
"

1
1
'
-
1
0
"
 
X
 
2
2
'
-
6
"

A
/
C

W
H

.

1
8
 
c
u
.
 
f
t
.

T
o
p

F
r
e
e
z
e
r
 
R
e
f

R
a
n
g
e
/

o
v
e
n

M
i
c
r
o
/
h
o
o
d

a
b
o
v
e

1

0

'

-

3

"

 

X

 

1

2

'

-

8

"

1

1

'

-

5

"

 

X

 

2

3

'

-

6

"

1

8

 

c

u

.

 

f

t

.

T

o

p

F

r

e

e

z

e

r

 

R

e

f

A

/

C

W

H

.

R

a

n

g

e

/

o

v

e

n

M

i

c

r

o

/

h

o

o

d

a

b

o

v

e

1

0

'

-

3

"

 

X

 

1

2

'

-

8

"

1

1

'

-

1

0

"

 

X

 

2

2

'

-

6

"

A

/

C

W

H

.

1

8

 

c

u

.

 

f

t

.

T

o

p

F

r

e

e

z

e

r

 

R

e

f

R

a

n

g

e

/

o

v

e

n

M

i

c

r

o

/

h

o

o

d

a

b

o

v

e

1
0
'
-
3
"
 
X
 
1
2
'
-
8
"

1
1
'
-
5
"
 
X
 
2
3
'
-
6
"

1
8
 
c
u
.
 
f
t
.

T
o
p

F
r
e
e
z
e
r
 
R
e
f

A
/
C

W
H

.

R
a
n
g
e
/

o
v
e
n

M
i
c
r
o
/
h
o
o
d

a
b
o
v
e

1
0
'
-
3
"
 
X
 
1
2
'
-
8
"

1
1
'
-
1
0
"
 
X
 
2
2
'
-
6
"

A
/
C

W
H

.

1
8
 
c
u
.
 
f
t
.

T
o
p

F
r
e
e
z
e
r
 
R
e
f

R
a
n
g
e
/

o
v
e
n

M
i
c
r
o
/
h
o
o
d

a
b
o
v
e

1

0

'

-

3

"

 

X

 

1

2

'

-

8

"

1

1

'

-

5

"

 

X

 

2

3

'

-

6

"

1

8

 

c

u

.

 

f

t

.

T

o

p

F

r

e

e

z

e

r

 

R

e

f

A

/

C

W

H

.

R

a

n

g

e

/

o

v

e

n

M

i

c

r

o

/

h

o

o

d

a

b

o

v

e

1
0
'
-
3
"
 
X
 
1
2
'
-
8
"

1
1
'
-
5
"
 
X
 
2
3
'
-
6
"

1
8
 
c
u
.
 
f
t
.

T
o
p

F
r
e
e
z
e
r
 
R
e
f

A
/
C

W
H

.

R
a
n
g
e
/

o
v
e
n

M
i
c
r
o
/
h
o
o
d

a
b
o
v
e

1

0

'

-

3

"

 

X

 

1

2

'

-

8

"

1

1

'

-

1

0

"

 

X

 

2

2

'

-

6

"

A

/

C

W

H

.

1

8

 

c

u

.

 

f

t

.

T

o

p

F

r

e

e

z

e

r

 

R

e

f

R

a

n

g

e

/

o

v

e

n

M

i

c

r

o

/

h

o

o

d

a

b

o

v

e

1
0
'
-
3
"
 
X
 
1
2
'
-
8
"

1
1
'
-
1
0
"
 
X
 
2
2
'
-
6
"

A
/
C

W
H

.

1
8
 
c
u
.
 
f
t
.

T
o
p

F
r
e
e
z
e
r
 
R
e
f

R
a
n
g
e
/

o
v
e
n

M
i
c
r
o
/
h
o
o
d

a
b
o
v
e

1
0
'
-
3
"
 
X
 
1
2
'
-
8
"

1
1
'
-
1
0
"
 
X
 
2
2
'
-
6
"

A
/
C

W
H

.

1
8
 
c
u
.
 
f
t
.

T
o
p

F
r
e
e
z
e
r
 
R
e
f

R
a
n
g
e
/

o
v
e
n

M
i
c
r
o
/
h
o
o
d

a
b
o
v
e

L
e
a
s
i
n
g

8
9
0
 
S
F

9
'
-
7
"
 
X
 
1
0
'
-
1
0
"

L
E
A
S
I
N

G
 
O

F
F
I
C
E

T
a
b
l
e
 
t
o
p

2
2
'
-
2
"
 
X
 
1
3
'
-
1
"

G
R
E
A
T
 
R
O

O
M

S
t
o
r
a
g
e
 
&

 
C
o
p
y

M
a
i
l
 
a
r
e
a

D
r
o
p
 
o
f
 
b
o
x
e
s

Under counter

Ref

U
n
d
e
r

c
o
u
n
t
e
r

M
i
c
r
o
w

a
v
e

M
.
 
B
A
T
H

A
/
C

W
H

.

V
E
S
T
.

M
R

B
u
i
l
t
-
i
n
 
c
a
b
.

A
/
C

W
H

.

7
'
-
8
"
 
X
 
1
0
'
-
1
1
"

u
n
d
e
r

 
c
o
u
n
t
e
r

r
e
f
.

u
n
d
e
r

 
c
o
u
n
t
e
r

m
i
c
r
o
w

a
v
e

w
a
l
l

n
i
c
h
e

w
a
l
l

n
i
c
h
e

w
a
l
l

n
i
c
h
e

M
R

W

D

1
0
'
-
1
"
 
X
 
1
0
'
-
1
0
"

A
/
C

W
H

.

1
1
'
-
0
"
 
X
 
1
0
-
0
"

2
2
'
-
2
"
 
X
 
1
3
'
-
1
"

18 cu. ft.

Top

Freezer Ref

Range/

oven

Micro/hood

above

9 10

19

20

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

57

1

18

17

16

15

14

13

12

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

38

43

67

68

69

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

42

41

70

71

53

72

Com
pacts

Compacts (tandem)

12

8382818079

7374757677

40

7654321 118

78

84 85

54

39

VISIBILITY TRIANGLES

VISIBILITY TRIANGLES

loading

10

11

4 bikes

55

52

51

50

49

48

47

46

45

44

56

22'-0"

18'-0"

9
'
-
0
"

8
'
-
0
"

3
2
'
-
0
"

8'-0"

1
6
'
-
0
"

1
8
'
-
0
"

1
6
'
-
0
"

6'-0"

6'-0"

5
'
-
0
"

9'-9"

9'-9"

1
1
'
-
3
"

1
1
'
-
3
"

7
'
-
0
"

18'-0"

16'-0"
5'-0"

D
U

M
P
S
T
E
R

A
R
E
A

X
X

X

6
 
C
U

B
I
C
 
Y
A
R
D

R
E
C
Y
C
L
E

R
E
C
Y
C
L
E

R
E
C
Y
C
L
E

R
E
C
Y
C
L
E

12'-0"

1
2
'
-
8
"

88 Sf SOD-R

LARGE SHADE TREE

LEGEND

SMALL TREE

MEDIUM TREE

MEDIUM PALM

SMALL PALM

HEDGE

SHRUBS &

GROUNDCOVERS

2 CO

2 IC

189 TRA

13 ILX

2 ZAP

13 ILX

1 QV

13 ILX

2 ZAP

13 ILX

1 MY

13 ILX

2 ZAP

10 HAM

2 ZAP

4 HAM

12 CAP

16 ILX

2 ZAP

5 MY

12 DII

15 DII

8 HAM

12 ILX

2 MY

8 DII

1 QV

16 ILX

9 ILX

247 TRA

1 QV

140 TRA

12 DII

26 TRF

2 MY

10 CAP 5 SPX

16 HAM

6 DII

8 DII

8 TRF

3 DII

17 COS

10 DII

17 COS

11 COS

15 DII

10 COS

13 CAP

165 TRA

5 DII

5 DII

18 DII

5 FIM

6 FIM

3 HAM

11 DII

1 QV-E

4 CO

7 TRF

6 HAM

1 CE

4 CO

4 CO

130 CHR

280 Sf SOD

2 BU

14 HAM

6 CHR

2 PTX

11 CHR

2 PTX
2 PTX

1 QV
1 CE

1 QV

1 QV

1 CE

1 MY

7 HAM

8 TRF

6 TRF

6 TRF

7 HAM

6 HAM

6 HAM

114 Sf SOD

102 Sf SOD

127 Sf SOD

57 Sf SOD

70 CHR

10 ILX

160 Sf SOD-R
25 Sf SOD-R

NOTES:

1. THE UNPAVED PORTION OF THE RIGHT-OF-WAY ADJACENT TO THE PROPERTY LINE TO BE LANDSCAPED AND PROVIDED WITH IRRIGATION

AND MAINTENANCE.

2. ROOT BARRIERS SHALL BE INSTALLED AT ALL TREES/PALMS THAT ARE PLANTED WITHIN FIVE (5) FEET OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES OR

UTILITY EASEMENT.

3. ALL LANDSCAPE AREAS SHALL BE PROVIDED WITH A FULLY AUTOMATICALLY OPERATED IRRIGATION SYSTEM. IRRIGATION SYSTEM SHALL

PROVIDE COMPLETE COVERAGE OF ALL PLANT MATERIALS. THIS SYSTEM SHOULD HAVE RAIN SENSOR AND SHOULD AUTOMATICALLY

SHUT OFF WHEN RAINING.

4. WITHIN VISIBILITY TRIANGLES, LANDSCAPE SHALL BE MAINTAIN TO PROVIDE CLEAR VISIBILITY WITHOUT OBSTRUCTION FROM AN AREA

BETWEEN THIRTY (30) INCHES AND EIGHT (8) FEET ABOVE AVERAGE ELEVATION OF THE INTERSECTION.

10 CRL

9 DII

11 DII

2 ZAP

12 HAM

18 CAP

4 DII

16 HAM

13 ILX

2 ZAP

10 DII

18 CAP

12 HAM

16 ILX

9 COS

9 CAP

9 HAM

2 PTX

1 THX

2 PTX

1 THX

1 THX

2 PTX

1 THX

3.5'

OVERHEAD
POWER LINES

WATER MAIN

SIDEWALK

BENCH

BENCH

BENCH

S
I
D

E
W

A
L
K

S
I
D

E
W

A
L
K

SIDEWALK

MANHOLE

CATCH BASIN

SLEEVE &
VALVE

DECORATIVE
LOW WALL (TYP.)

DECORATIVE
LOW WALL (TYP.)

LA

SD

LA

LA

LA

LA

LA

LB

LB

BL

BL

BL

BL

BL

BL

BL

BL

SB

SD

SB

SB

SB

SD

SB

LA

LA

LA

LA

LA

LA

LA

LA

LA

LA

3 BU

PLAZA

SCULPTURE

5 CHR

5 CHR

40

1 QV

4 CO

1 BU

1 MY

6 FIM

ROOT BARRIER

LOCATION

(SEE DETAIL #6)

Drawn By:

Approved By:

Date:

Sheet Number:

Project No:

Scale:

R
e

v
:
 
 
D

a
t
e

:
 
 
 
D

e
s
c
r
i
p

t
i
o

n
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B

y
:

S
h

e
e

t
 
T

i
t
l
e

:

3

4

1 2

P
r
o

j
e

c
t
 
N

a
m

e
:

L
A

K
E

 
W

O
R

T
H

 
S

T
A

T
I
O

N

1
0

t
h

 
A

v
e

.
 
N

o
r
t
h

 
&

 
N

o
r
t
h

 
G

 
S

t
.
 
 

L
a

k
e

 
W

o
r
t
h

,
 
F

L
 
3

3
4

6
0

 

6

ALL DESIGNS AND DETAILS ON THIS DRWAWING ARE THE

PROPERTY OF ANDRES MONTERO LANDSCAPE

ARCHITECTURE, LLC. AND SHALL NOT BE USED, COPIED

OR REPRODUCED WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION FROM

ANDRES MONTERO LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE, LLC.

5

L
A

N
D

 
P

L
A

N
N

I
N

G

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
A

R
C

H
I
T

E
C

T
U

R
E

2
2
0
8
 
N

E
 
2
6
 
T

H
 
S

T
R

E
E

T
,
 
#
1

F
O

R
T

 
L
A

U
D

E
R

D
A

L
E

,
 
F

L
O

R
I
D

A
 
3
3
3
0
5
 
U

S
A

T
E

L
:
 
9
5
4
.
5
3
3
.
8
2
5
9

L
C

2
6
0
0
0
5
9
8

w
w

w
.
a
m

l
a
s
t
u
d
i
o
.
c
o
m

U
R

B
A

N
 
D

E
S

I
G

N

202206

SEAL / SIGNATURE

A
N

D
R

E
S

 
M

O
N

T
E

R
O

,
 
P

L
A

,
 
A

S
L

A

S
T

A
T

E
 
O

F
 
F

L
O

R
I
D

A

R
E

G
I
S

T
R

A
T

I
O

N
 
L

A
6

6
6

6
9

7
3

20' 40' 60'0'

GRAPHIC SCALE

NORTH

L-03

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
P

L
A

N

R

Know what's below.
Call before you dig.

Sunshine State
One Call

S
I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N
 
A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
 
S

E
T

 
-
 
N

O
T

 
F

O
R

 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N

1" = 20'

AEM

AEM/GMP/MEP

JUNE 15, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NN

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHANNEL BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK BENCH W/2 1.5' COLUMNS



1
8

"

1
8

"

M
I
N

.

'X'

'X'

'X'

NOTE:

ALL SHRUBS AND GROUNDCOVER MASSES

TO USE TRIANGULAR SPACING EXCEPT

WHERE NOTED REFER TO PLANT LIST FOR

INDIVIDUAL PLANT SPACING "X".

3

4

1

2

LEGEND

1. SETBACK FOR SHRUBS PLANTED 24" O.C. OR GREATER.

2. SETBACK FOR GROUNDCOVER AND ANNUALS.

3. PROVIDE MIN. 18" SPACING BETWEEN DIFFERENT PLANT TYPES.

4. CURB OR EDGE OF PAVEMENT.

9

TYPICAL PLANT SPACING

SECTION

d-Typical spacing.DWG

SCALE: N.T.S

NOTE:

CONTRACTOR SHALL

ASSURE PERCOLATION OF

ALL PLANTING PITS PRIOR

TO INSTALLATION.

LEGEND

1. 2" NYLON STRAPPING W/RUBBER HOSE-WRAPPED 360 AROUND TRUNK BEFORE TYING- WRAP @ LATERAL BRANCH

2. 3" MULCH AS SPECIFIED MIN. 24" FROM TRUNK

3. SOIL BERM TO HOLD WATER.

4. 2"x4"x3' STAKES BURIED 3" BELOW FINISHED GRADE.

5. FINISHED GRADE - SOD CONDITION (SEE GRADING PLAN).

6. B&B OR CONTAINERIZED (SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROOT BALL REQUIREMENTS).

7. PREPARED PLANTING SOIL AS SPECIFIED.

8. AUGER PER SPECS FOR PERCOLATION

1'

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

MIN.

1

120

120

120

PLAN

2

LARGE TREE

SECTION

d-Large tree.dwg

SCALE: N.T.S

1

2

3

NOTE:

ALL MULCH SHALL BE FREE OF FIRE ANTS AND DEBRIS ONLY

ENVIRONMENTAL FRIENDLY MULCH SHALL BE APPROVED.

LEGEND

1. SOD (PROVIDE CLEAN, SMOOTH EDGE BETWEEN SOD AND  MULCHED AREAS).

2. 3" DECORATIVE MULCH. (SEE SPECIFICATIONS)

3. PLANTING SOIL (FINE RAKED AND  FREE OF WEEDS AND OTHER DELETERIOUS

MATERIALS, SEE SPECIFICATIONS)

10

MULCH

SECTION

d-Mulch.DWG

SCALE: N.T.S

NOTE:

a. FINAL TREE STAKING DETAILS

AND PLACEMENT TO BE

APPROVED BY THE L.A.

b. CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSURE

PERCOLATION OF ALL PLANTING

PITS PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

LEGEND

1.

2. 2" NYLON STRAPPING

3. THREE-2"X2"X8' STAKES

4. 3" MULCH AS SPECIFIED

5. SOIL BERM TO HOLD WATER.

6. FINISHED GRADE - SOD CONDITION (SEE GRADING PLAN).

7. B&B OR CONTAINERIZED (SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROOT BALL REQUIREMENTS).

8. PREPARED PLANTING SOIL AS SPECIFIED

9. AUGER PER SPECS FOR PERCOLATION

10. MULCH CONTINUES  - SHRUB BED CONDITION

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

1'

MIN.

120

120

120

PLAN

4

MULTI-TRUNK TREE

SECTION

d-Multi-trunk tree.dwg

SCALE: N.T.S

1

2

3

LEGEND

1. SET ROOT-TRUNK COLLAR FLUSH 1" ABOVE FINISHED GRADE.

2. SIDEWALK OR PAVERS

3. 18" ROOT BARRIER. EXTEND A MINIMUN 6' IN BOTH DIRECTION FROM

THE CENTERLINE OF THE TREES.

4. CENTER TREE IN PLANTER OPENING.

5. MULCH.

6. BACKFILL WITH TOPSOIL OR AMENDED TOPSOIL.

7. CONCRETE SIDEWALK.

4

5

6

7

DEPTH VARIES BASES

ON SIZE OF ROOT BALL

6

ROOT BARRIER INSTALLATION 

SECTION

d-2006-Root barrier.dwg

SCALE: N.T.S

5' MIN

3
0
"

C
O

V
E

R

NOTES

1. ALL ROOT BARRIERS SHALL BE 5'

MINIMUM FROM ALL CITY FACILITIES.

2. THE INSTALLATION OF ROOT

BARRIERS SHALL BE COORDINATED

WITH CITY AND INSPECTED BY CITY

PRIOR TO BACKFILLING. ALL ROOT

BARRIERS SHALL EXTEND UP TO

FINISHED GRADE.

3. ROOT BARRIERS SHALL BE MINIMUN

36" DEEP. APPROVED PRODUCTS

INCLUDE "DEEP ROOT" AND "ROOT

SOLUTIONS". FLEXIBLE BARRIERS

SHALL BE 36" PANELS

MANUFACTURED BY BIOBARRIER.

4. ALL ROOT BARRIERS SHALL BE

INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

MANUFACTURERS WRITTEN

INSTRUCTIONS.

UNDERGROUND

UTILITIES (MAINS,

SERVICES, ETC.)

1

NOTE:

CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSURE

PERCOLATION OF ALL PLANTING

PITS/BEDS PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

2

3

4

5

7

4

T
Y

P
.

4

TYP

LEGEND

1. PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE PLANTED 2" HIGH WITH SOIL MOUNDING UP TO THE TOP OF ROOT BALL.

2. 3" MINIMUM OF MULCH

3. SOIL BERM TO HOLD WATER

4. MINIMUN DEPTH OF 12" PLANTING SOIL FOR GROUNDCOVER BED

5. EXCAVATE ENTIRE BED SPECIFIED FOR GROUNDCOVER BED.

6. FINISHED GRADE (SEE GRADING PLAN)

7. PREPARED PLANTING SOIL AS SPECIFIED.

NOTE: WHEN GROUNDCOVERS AND SHRUBS USED IN MASSES, ENTIRE BED TO BE EXCAVATED TO RECEIVE

PLANTING SOIL & PLANT MATERIAL, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.

6

8

SHRUBS & GROUNCOVERS

SECTION

d-Shrubs and groundcovers.DWG

SCALE: N.T.S

1

2

3

4

5

NOTES:

1. FINAL TREE STAKING DETAILS AND

PLACEMENT TO BE APPROVED BY

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

2. CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSURE

PERCOLATION OF ALL PLANTING PITS

PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

6

7

8

9

10

LEGEND

1. PRUNE AND TIE FRONDS WITH HEMP TWINE.

2. TWO LAYERS OF BURLAP TO PROTECT TRUNK.

3. TWO STEEL BANDS TO SECURE BATTONS.

4. THREE 2" X 4" X 18" WOOD BATTONS.

5. 3-2" X 4" LUMBER POLE BRACES.  NAIL (DRILL AND NAIL IF NECESSARY) TO BATTONS & 2" X4" STAKES.  FLAG AT

MIDPOINT.

6. 3" MIN. MULCH- SEE SPECIFICATIONS.

7. PREPARED PLANTING SOIL AS SPECIFIED.  PALMS SHALL BE PLANTED WITH THE TOP OF ROOTBALL AT FINISHED

GRADE.

8. BERM SOIL TO HOLD WATER.

9. 2" X 4"  X 3' WOOD STAKES.

10. FINISH GRADE

1'

MIN.

C
L
E

A
R

 
W

O
O

D
 
(
C

.
W

.
)
 
S

E
E

 
P

L
A

N
S

2
4
"
 
M

A
X

.

120

120

120

PLAN

5

SMALL PALM

SECTION

d-Small palm.DWG

SCALE: N.T.S

2

4

1

3

5

7

6

LEGEND

1. THREE 2"x4"x8" STAKES SPACE EVENLY AROUND TREE PAINTED BROWN.

2. #10 GUAGE WIRE.

3. 3" MINIMUM OF MULCH.

4. SOIL BERM TO HOLD WATER.

5. FINISHED GRADE (SEE GRADING PLAN).

6. B&B OR CONTAINERIZED (SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROOT BALL REQUIREMENTS).

7. PREPARED PLANTING SOIL AS SPECIFIED.

MIN.

1'

NOTE:

a. CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSURE

PERCOLATION OF ALL PLANTING

PITS PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

b. FINAL TREE STAKING DETAILS

AND PLACEMENT TO BE

APPROVED BY L.A.

c. PROTECT TREE TRUNK WITH

BLACK RUBBER HOSE

120

120

120

PLAN

3

SMALL TREE

SECTION

d-Small tree.dwg

SCALE: N.T.S

1. Before construction begins, the Landscape Contractor is responsible for locating all underground

utilities and must avoid damaging any services during construction. If any damage occurs by

fault of the Contractor, the necessary repairs must take place at the Landscape Contractor's

expense and under the supervision of the Owner's representative.

2. All proposed trees and plant materials shall be graded as Nursery Grade Florida No. 1 or better

as outlined by the Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, Division of Plant

Industry "Grades and standards for Nursery Plants", most current edition. All planting shall be

done in accordance with the Florida Nurserymen's and Grower's Association approved practices.

3. In addition to these requirements the Landscape Contractor shall comply with all local landscape

codes and requirements as part of this base bid and contract in order to satisfy the review and

approval of the governing agency.

4. All screening hedges shall be planted and maintained in a way that they form a continuous

visual screen.  Screening hedges at VUA to be maintained at a minimum height of thirty (30)

inches.

5. All planting beds shall be excavated to a minimum depth of twenty-four (24") inches and

backfilled with a suitable soil. All plant material shall be planted in planting soil that is delivered

to the site in a loose, clean and friable condition. The planting soil shall be the approximate

proportions as follows: 50% sand and 50% organic material consisting of native peat,

well-decomposed sawdust, leaf mold and top soil. It shall provide a good pliable and thoroughly

mixed medium with adequate aeration, drainage and water-holding capacity. It shall also be free

of all extraneous debris, such as roots, stones, weeds, etc.

6. All trees/palms and shrubs shall be fertilized with "Agriform" 20-10-5 planting tablets as per the

manufacturers specifications at the time of installation and prior completion of pit backfilling also

in conjunction with note #5. Tablets to be placed uniformly around the root mass at a depth that

is between the middle and bottom of root mass at an application rate of: One (1) - 21 gram tablet

for 1 gal container, two (2)- tablets for 3 gal container, three (3)- tablets for 5 gal container, four

(4)-tablets for 7 gal container, three (3)-tablets for each 1/2 inch of tree caliper, and seven (7)

tablets for palms. Ground Cover areas shall receive fertilization with "Ozmocote" time release

fertilizer as per manufacturer's specification.

7. All plant beds shall receive a 3" layer of organic mulch, which is to be watered-in after

installation. Mulch should be at least six (6) inches away from any portion of a structure or tree

trunk and three (3) inches away from the base of shrubs. Only environmental friendly mulch shall

be approved, Cypress mulch shall not be accepted.

8. All plant material shall be thoroughly watered in at the time of planting and until landscape

material is established. No dry material shall be permitted.

9. The plant material schedule is presented for the convenience of the Landscape Contractor. In

the event of a discrepancy between the plan and the plant key, the plan shall prevail.

10. Plants shall meet size, container, and spacing specifications. Any material not meeting

specifications shall be removed and replaced at the contractor's expense.

11. All tree and shrub locations shall be approved by Landscape Architect prior to planting.

12. The Landscape Contractor shall grade planting beds, as required, to provide positive drainage

and promote optimum plant growth.

13. The Landscape Contractor shall be responsible for examining fully both the site and bid

documents. Discrepancies in the documents or the actual site conditions shall be reported to the

Landscape Architect in writing at the time of bidding or discovery. No account shall be made

after contract completion for failure by the Landscape Contractor to report such condition or for

errors on the part of the Landscape Contractor at the time of bidding.

14. The Landscape Contractor shall be responsible for securing all necessary applicable permits

and licenses to perform the work set forth in this plan set and the specifications.

15. Plant material shall be bid as specified unless unavailable, at which time the Landscape

Architect shall be notified in writing of intended changes.

16. All questions concerning the plan set and/or specifications shall be directed to the Landscape

Architect.

17. There shall be no additions, deletions or substitutions without written approval of the Landscape

Architect.

18. The Landscape Contractor shall guarantee, in writing, plant survivability. Trees and palms for

twelve (12) months, shrubs and groundcovers for ninety (90) days and sod for sixty (600 days

from final acceptance by the Owner or Owner's representative.

19. All dimensions to be field-checked by the Landscape Contractor prior to landscape material

installation. Discrepancies shall be reported immediately to the Landscape Architect.

20. All materials must be as specified on the landscape plan. If materials or labor do not adhere to

specifications, they will be rejected by the Landscape Architect with proper installation carried

out by the Landscape Contractor at no additional cost.

21. Existing sod shall be removed as necessary to accommodate new plantings

22. All existing trees on site shall be protected from damage during construction - See existing tree

protection fence detail.

23. Any existing landscape and hardscape areas that are unnecessarily disturbed during the

landscape installation shall be restored to original conditions by the Landscape Contractor.

24. The Landscape Contractor will be responsible for the collection, removal, and proper disposal of

any and all debris generated during the installation of this project.

25. All landscape areas to have a positive drainage away from buildings and structures. Finished

grade of landscape areas to be at or below the grade of adjacent sidewalks, slabs or VUA

26. Trees installed within 5' of a utility easement, underground utilities or any public infrastructure

shall utilize a root barrier system.

GENERAL NOTES

IRRIGATION NOTES:

1. All landscape areas shall be provided with a fully

automatically operated irrigation system. Irrigation system

shall provide complete coverage of all plant materials. this

system should have rain sensor and should automatically

shut off when raining. Irrigation system to comply with

applicable jurisdictional requirements.

2. Irrigation system to use potable water.

Drawn By:

Approved By:

Date:

Sheet Number:

Project No:

Scale:

R
e

v
:
 
 
D

a
t
e

:
 
 
 
D

e
s
c
r
i
p

t
i
o

n
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B

y
:

S
h

e
e

t
 
T

i
t
l
e

:

3

4

1 2

P
r
o

j
e

c
t
 
N

a
m

e
:

L
A

K
E

 
W

O
R

T
H

 
S

T
A

T
I
O

N

1
0

t
h

 
A

v
e

.
 
N

o
r
t
h

 
&

 
N

o
r
t
h

 
G

 
S

t
.
 
 

L
a

k
e

 
W

o
r
t
h

,
 
F

L
 
3

3
4

6
0

 

6

ALL DESIGNS AND DETAILS ON THIS DRWAWING ARE THE

PROPERTY OF ANDRES MONTERO LANDSCAPE

ARCHITECTURE, LLC. AND SHALL NOT BE USED, COPIED

OR REPRODUCED WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION FROM

ANDRES MONTERO LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE, LLC.

5

L
A

N
D

 
P

L
A

N
N

I
N

G

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
A

R
C

H
I
T

E
C

T
U

R
E

2
2
0
8
 
N

E
 
2
6
 
T

H
 
S

T
R

E
E

T
,
 
#
1

F
O

R
T

 
L
A

U
D

E
R

D
A

L
E

,
 
F

L
O

R
I
D

A
 
3
3
3
0
5
 
U

S
A

T
E

L
:
 
9
5
4
.
5
3
3
.
8
2
5
9

L
C

2
6
0
0
0
5
9
8

w
w

w
.
a
m

l
a
s
t
u
d
i
o
.
c
o
m

U
R

B
A

N
 
D

E
S

I
G

N

202206

SEAL / SIGNATURE

A
N

D
R

E
S

 
M

O
N

T
E

R
O

,
 
P

L
A

,
 
A

S
L

A

S
T

A
T

E
 
O

F
 
F

L
O

R
I
D

A

R
E

G
I
S

T
R

A
T

I
O

N
 
L

A
6

6
6

6
9

7
3

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
D

E
T

A
I
L

S
 

L-04

&
 
G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 
N

O
T

E
S

S
I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N
 
A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
 
S

E
T

 
-
 
N

O
T

 
F

O
R

 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N

20' 40' 60'0'

GRAPHIC SCALE

NORTH

R

Know what's below.
Call before you dig.

Sunshine State
One Call

1" = 20'

AEM

AEM/GMP/MEP

JUNE 15, 2022



AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

SITE

10th Avenue North

1
0
t
h
 
A

v
e
n
u
e
 
N

o
r
t
h

SURVEY PREPARED BY:

A & B ENGINEERING, INC.

3460 FAIRLANE FARMS RD

WELLINGTON, FL 33414

P:561.383.7480

ARBORIST REPORT PREPARED BY:

ALISON WALKER

FL. CERTIFIED ARBORIST ISA FL-9317A

E: info@treage.com

         C: 786.525.7883

1 2
3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41
42

43

44

45

18B

18A

Drawn By:

Approved By:

Date:

Sheet Number:

Project No:

Scale:

R
e

v
:
 
 
D

a
t
e

:
 
 
 
D

e
s
c
r
i
p

t
i
o

n
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B

y
:

S
h

e
e

t
 
T

i
t
l
e

:

3

4

1 2

P
r
o

j
e

c
t
 
N

a
m

e
:

L
A

K
E

 
W

O
R

T
H

 
S

T
A

T
I
O

N

1
0

t
h

 
A

v
e

.
 
N

o
r
t
h

 
&

 
N

o
r
t
h

 
G

 
S

t
.
 
 

L
a

k
e

 
W

o
r
t
h

,
 
F

L
 
3

3
4

6
0

 

6

ALL DESIGNS AND DETAILS ON THIS DRWAWING ARE THE

PROPERTY OF ANDRES MONTERO LANDSCAPE

ARCHITECTURE, LLC. AND SHALL NOT BE USED, COPIED

OR REPRODUCED WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION FROM

ANDRES MONTERO LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE, LLC.

5

L
A

N
D

 
P

L
A

N
N

I
N

G

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
A

R
C

H
I
T

E
C

T
U

R
E

2
2
0
8
 
N

E
 
2
6
 
T

H
 
S

T
R

E
E

T
,
 
#
1

F
O

R
T

 
L
A

U
D

E
R

D
A

L
E

,
 
F

L
O

R
I
D

A
 
3
3
3
0
5
 
U

S
A

T
E

L
:
 
9
5
4
.
5
3
3
.
8
2
5
9

L
C

2
6
0
0
0
5
9
8

w
w

w
.
a
m

l
a
s
t
u
d
i
o
.
c
o
m

U
R

B
A

N
 
D

E
S

I
G

N

202206

SEAL / SIGNATURE

A
N

D
R

E
S

 
M

O
N

T
E

R
O

,
 
P

L
A

,
 
A

S
L

A

S
T

A
T

E
 
O

F
 
F

L
O

R
I
D

A

R
E

G
I
S

T
R

A
T

I
O

N
 
L

A
6

6
6

6
9

7
3

20' 40' 60'0'

GRAPHIC SCALE

NORTH

1" = 20'

AEM

L-01

AEM/GMP/MEP

JUNE 15, 2022

R

Know what's below.
Call before you dig.

Sunshine State
One Call

S
I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N
 
A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
 
S

E
T

 
-
 
N

O
T

 
F

O
R

 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N

S
I
T

E
 
A

E
R

I
A

L
 
&

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 
S

U
R

V
E

Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET IRC                  

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET MAG NAIL & DISKDISK

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 3/4" IP 0.23'S, 0.09'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD CROSSING ARM

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' WOOD FENCE ENCROACHES

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK BENCH W/2 1.5' COLUMNS

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 01°22'48" W    350.06'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRIPLEX APARTMENT BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
APARTMENT BUILDINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
89°57'55"

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' PLATTED RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANCHOR ENCROACHES 11' WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. IRC

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET MAG NAIL & DISKDISK

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. NAIL & DISK

AutoCAD SHX Text
(80' R/W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET NAIL & DISK BENCH MARK EL=16.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST BOUND 2-LANES

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK PILE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW 2' CURB & GUTTER & NEW ASPHALT PAVINGNEW ASPHALT PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIE 1.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
90°32'04"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.83'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C TRACKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIBO

AutoCAD SHX Text
(135' PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(36.63' PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
90°31'29"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.81'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C TRACKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
 (350' PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" VCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
 OHW

AutoCAD SHX Text
 OHW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 3/4" IP 0.26'S, 0.07'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND IRC MLS LB 6836 0.09'S, 0.19'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAFFIC SIGNAL BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS FIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' CLF ENDS ON E.SIDE OF POWER POLES

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CLF 1.1'S, 0.9'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WOOD FENCE 0.8'S, 1.1'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WOOD FENCE 0.8'S, 1.5'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CLF 0.3'S, 1.8'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CLF 1.3'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WOOD FENCE 1.4'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WOOD FENCE 0.2'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' CLF

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK BENCH W/2 1.5' COLUMNS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARBAGE CAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHANNEL BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN (NEW)

AutoCAD SHX Text
135.02' (135' PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
90°02'04"

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' (PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLATTED 10' ALLEY (UNIMPROVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00°49'15" E  400.11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' WATER LINE EASEMENT (ORB 10198, PG.458)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD ROCK STREWN THROUGHOUT LOT 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET MAG NAIL&DISK

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' CAR PATH ENCROACHMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GPS BASE POINT SET CONDUIT PIPE AND CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECORATIVE BRICK AND ROCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°38'41"E  640.08' (640' PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC.IRC

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. NAIL & DISK IN WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECORATIVE BRICK AND ROCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
 (400' PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOP SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.78

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.13

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.13

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.46

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.83

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.59

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.59

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.62

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PARCEL 1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO TRUCK PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW 5'C.L.FENCE ON EAST SIDE OF POWER POLE AT SOUTH END, AND 1.0'EAST OF POLE AT NORTH END

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PARCELS 2 & 3)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PARCELS 4 & 5)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PARCEL 6)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEETS EXISTING C.L.FENCE N.W. COR. OF LOT 14

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE #10 REGARDING R/W TAKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK ENCROACHES 1.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.0'



AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

AeccDbCogoPoint (AeccLand90)

TREE PROTECTION FENCE

TREE NUMBER

X

EXISTING TREE TO REMAIN

EXISTING PALM TO REMAIN

EXISTING PALM TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING TREE TO BE REMOVED

LEGEND

1 2
3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

42

43

44

45

18B

18A

41

NOTES:

1. THE APPROXIMATE LOCATION, SIZE AND CONDITIONS OF THE EXISTING TREES/PALMS

WITHIN THE PROJECT LIMITS HAS BEEN COLLECTED FROM THE EXISTING TREE SURVEY

PREPARED BY:

                     A & B ENGINEERING, INC.

3460 FAIRLANE FARMS RD

WELLINGTON, FL 33414

P:561.383.7480

       AND THE ARBORIST REPORT PREPARED BY:

ALISON WALKER

FL. CERTIFIED ARBORIST ISA FL-9317A

info@treage.com

                    C: 786.525.7883

2. EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN TO BE PROTECTED DURING CONSTRUCTION - SEE EXISTING

TREE PROTECTION FENCE DETAIL # 1- SHEET L-02

3. CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN A TREE REMOVAL PERMIT PRIOR TO THE REMOVAL OF

TREES/PALMS PROPOSED TO BE REMOVED.

F
E

N
C

I
N

G
 
4
'

M
I
N

TREE CANOPY

DISTURBED AREA

2

LEGEND

1. EXISTING TREE

2. DRIPLINE

3. FENCE TO EXTEND TO THE EDGE OF THE

DRIPLINE OR MORE WHERE POSSIBLE

4. THREE ROWS OF SPLIT RAIL FENCING

(2'x4') TO BE PLACED AROUND ALL

EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN.

5. WOODEN STAKES (2'x4'x5' MIN.) ON 5'

CENTERS - TO SUPPORT SPLIT RAIL

FENCING.

1

3

4

5

NOTES:

a. ALL EXPOSED ROOTS WITHIN ROOT PROTECTION ZONE SHALL BE HAND PRUNED TO HAVE A SMOOTH, CLEAN

CUT WITHOUT TEARING OR SPLITTING.

b. BARRIER TO FORM A CONTINUOUS CIRCLE AROUND THE TREE OR GROUP OF TREES.

c. CONTRACTOR TO INSTALL PROTECTIVE FENCE BARRIER AROUND ALL EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN - AT THE

START OF THE PROJECT - FENCE TO REMAIN IN PLACE THROUGHOUT THE DURATION OF THE PROJECT.

d. CONTRACTOR SHALL TAKE EXTRA CARE DURING EARTHWORK AND UTILITY OPERATIONS TO PROTECT ALL

EXISTING TREES -  AND SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE TO REPLACE ANY TREES DAMAGED DURING CONSTRUCTION.

1

EXISTING TREE PROTECTION FENCE 

SECTION

d-Protection fence 1.dwg

SCALE: N.T.S

Drawn By:

Approved By:

Date:

Sheet Number:

Project No:

Scale:

R
e

v
:
 
 
D

a
t
e

:
 
 
 
D

e
s
c
r
i
p

t
i
o

n
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B

y
:

S
h

e
e

t
 
T

i
t
l
e

:

3

4

1 2

P
r
o

j
e

c
t
 
N

a
m

e
:

L
A

K
E

 
W

O
R

T
H

 
S

T
A

T
I
O

N

1
0

t
h

 
A

v
e

.
 
N

o
r
t
h

 
&

 
N

o
r
t
h

 
G

 
S

t
.
 
 

L
a

k
e

 
W

o
r
t
h

,
 
F

L
 
3

3
4

6
0

 

6

ALL DESIGNS AND DETAILS ON THIS DRWAWING ARE THE

PROPERTY OF ANDRES MONTERO LANDSCAPE

ARCHITECTURE, LLC. AND SHALL NOT BE USED, COPIED

OR REPRODUCED WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION FROM

ANDRES MONTERO LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE, LLC.

5

L
A

N
D

 
P

L
A

N
N

I
N

G

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
A

R
C

H
I
T

E
C

T
U

R
E

2
2
0
8
 
N

E
 
2
6
 
T

H
 
S

T
R

E
E

T
,
 
#
1

F
O

R
T

 
L
A

U
D

E
R

D
A

L
E

,
 
F

L
O

R
I
D

A
 
3
3
3
0
5
 
U

S
A

T
E

L
:
 
9
5
4
.
5
3
3
.
8
2
5
9

L
C

2
6
0
0
0
5
9
8

w
w

w
.
a
m

l
a
s
t
u
d
i
o
.
c
o
m

U
R

B
A

N
 
D

E
S

I
G

N

202206

SEAL / SIGNATURE

A
N

D
R

E
S

 
M

O
N

T
E

R
O

,
 
P

L
A

,
 
A

S
L

A

S
T

A
T

E
 
O

F
 
F

L
O

R
I
D

A

R
E

G
I
S

T
R

A
T

I
O

N
 
L

A
6

6
6

6
9

7
3

20' 40' 60'0'

GRAPHIC SCALE

NORTH

1" = 20'

AEM

P
L

A
N

L-02

AEM/GMP/MEP

R

Know what's below.
Call before you dig.

Sunshine State
One Call

T
R

E
E

 
D

I
S

P
O

S
I
T

I
O

N

S
I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N
 
A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
 
S

E
T

 
-
 
N

O
T

 
F

O
R

 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N

JUNE 15, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET IRC                  

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET MAG NAIL & DISKDISK

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 3/4" IP 0.23'S, 0.09'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' WOOD FENCE ENCROACHES

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK BENCH W/2 1.5' COLUMNS

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 01°22'48" W    350.06'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRIPLEX APARTMENT BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
APARTMENT BUILDINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
89°57'55"

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANCHOR ENCROACHES 11' WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. IRC

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET MAG NAIL & DISKDISK

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. NAIL & DISK

AutoCAD SHX Text
(80' R/W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET NAIL & DISK BENCH MARK EL=16.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST BOUND 2-LANES

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK PILE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW 2' CURB & GUTTER & NEW ASPHALT PAVINGNEW ASPHALT PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
23.20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(135' PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(36.63' PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
90°31'29"

AutoCAD SHX Text
 (350' PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" VCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
 OHW

AutoCAD SHX Text
 OHW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 3/4" IP 0.26'S, 0.07'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND IRC MLS LB 6836 0.09'S, 0.19'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAFFIC SIGNAL BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS FIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' CLF ENDS ON E.SIDE OF POWER POLES

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CLF 1.1'S, 0.9'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WOOD FENCE 0.8'S, 1.1'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WOOD FENCE 0.8'S, 1.5'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CLF 0.3'S, 1.8'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CLF 1.3'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WOOD FENCE 1.4'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' WOOD FENCE 0.2'E

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' CLF

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK BENCH W/2 1.5' COLUMNS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARBAGE CAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHANNEL BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN (NEW)

AutoCAD SHX Text
135.02' (135' PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
90°02'04"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
VACANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLATTED 10' ALLEY (UNIMPROVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' WATER LINE EASEMENT (ORB 10198, PG.458)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD ROCK STREWN THROUGHOUT LOT 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET MAG NAIL&DISK

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' CAR PATH ENCROACHMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GPS BASE POINT SET CONDUIT PIPE AND CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECORATIVE BRICK AND ROCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°38'41"E  640.08' (640' PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
REC. NAIL & DISK IN WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECORATIVE BRICK AND ROCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
 (400' PLAT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOP SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.78

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.13

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.46

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.83

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.59

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.59

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.62

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PARCEL 1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO TRUCK PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW 5'C.L.FENCE ON EAST SIDE OF POWER POLE AT SOUTH END, AND 1.0'EAST OF POLE AT NORTH END

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PARCELS 2 & 3)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PARCELS 4 & 5)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PARCEL 6)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEETS EXISTING C.L.FENCE N.W. COR. OF LOT 14

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE #10 REGARDING R/W TAKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK ENCROACHES 1.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.0'



S

NN

M
M

EV

EV

EV

EV

WV

FH

Calculation Summary

Project: LAKE WORTH STATION - SITE - REV1 --- APR-6-2022

Label Avg Max Min Avg/Min Max/Min

PARK & DRIVE 2.17 5.8 0.6 3.62 9.67

PROPERTY LINE - 6' AG HORIZONTAL 0.06 0.32 0.00 N.A. N.A.

PROPERTY LINE - 6' AG VERTICAL 0.06 0.31 0.00 N.A. N.A.

SA

MH: 20

SD

MH: 20

BL

MH: 3.3

BL

MH: 3.3

BL

MH: 3.3

BL

MH: 3.3

BL

MH: 3.3

BL

MH: 3.3

BL

MH: 3.3
BL

MH: 3.3

SD

MH: 20

SB1

MH: 20

SB1

MH: 20

SB1

MH: 20

SB1

MH: 20

W1

MH: 15

SD1

MH: 20

SB

MH: 20

W

MH: 15

W

MH: 15

0.6 1.0 1.6 2.9 4.1 4.3 3.3 2.1 1.3 0.9

0.9 1.5 2.1 3.0 3.7 3.8 3.5 2.7 2.0 1.6

3.0 5.8 4.2 3.4 3.2 3.2 3.6 4.2 4.9 5.6 2.1

4.5 5.3 4.2 3.5 3.2 3.2 3.7 4.0 4.4 4.7 2.5 0.7

2.5 3.6 3.2 3.1 3.1 3.2 3.7 3.6 3.5 2.0 1.1

1.3 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.4 2.9 3.6 3.1 2.8 1.9 1.4

0.7 1.4 1.5 1.7 2.0 2.4 2.8 2.7 2.6 2.4 2.1 1.8

2.1 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.6

1.7 1.9 2.1 2.5 3.4

1.3 1.7 2.0 2.6 3.6

1.1 1.6 2.1 2.6 3.4

0.9 1.5 2.0 2.5 3.1

0.8 1.3 1.7 2.3 3.1

0.8 1.2 1.5 2.0 3.1

1.4 1.4 1.8 2.7

1.7 1.5 1.2 1.4 1.9

1.9 1.4 1.1 1.2 1.3

1.8 1.4 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.7

1.3 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.7

1.0 1.2 1.2 1.2

0.9 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.9 1.7

1.0 1.4 1.4 1.7 2.5 2.9

1.4 1.6 1.5 1.9 2.8 3.3

2.0 1.8 1.7 2.1 2.9 3.1

1.8 2.1 2.8 2.7

1.9 1.8 1.7 2.0 2.9 3.2

1.2 1.5 1.5 1.8 2.8 3.4

0.8 1.2 1.3 1.6 2.4 3.0

0.6 1.1 1.4 1.7 2.0 1.9

0.7 1.1 1.6 2.1 2.1 1.0

0.8 1.3 1.8 2.5 3.1 1.0

1.1 1.5 2.0 3.0 4.4 2.4

1.0 1.3 1.9 3.3 5.2 2.6

0.6 0.7 1.0 1.3 1.3

0.010.030.030.040.080.170.300.080.000.000.000.000.000.01

0.00

0.00

0.01

0.02

0.01

0.00

0.01

0.02

0.01

0.00

0.00

0.01

0.02

0.01

0.00

0.01

0.02

0.01

0.01

0.01

0.02

0.00

0.00

0.01

0.03

0.01

0.07

0.04

0.04

0.06

0.09

0.16

0.18

0.13

0.04 0.04 0.07 0.25 0.31 0.12 0.15 0.12 0.13 0.14 0.11 0.24 0.16 0.04

0.04

0.13

0.15

0.09

0.08

0.07

0.11

0.10

0.10

0.17

0.12

0.11

0.09

0.04

0.04

0.05

0.06

0.03

0.01

0.04

0.06

0.03

0.03

0.04

0.09

0.07

0.03

0.03

0.03

0.04

0.02

0.01

0.02

0.03

0.01

0.0

0.2

8.3

0.2

0.0

0.1

4.9

0.9

0.0

0.0

0.4

8.3

0.1

0.0

0.0

3.1

1.8

0.1

0.9

4.1

0.1

0.0

0.1

8.6

0.7

0.3

1.9 1.9 0.8 1.1 2.0 5.9 2.0

1.4

1.0

0.7

0.5

0.4

0.6

1.2

2.3

2.8

2.3

1.3

0.9

0.8

0.9

1.5

2.5

2.8

2.1

1.1

0.6

0.5

0.6

0.8

1.1

0.9

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.5

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2LA

MH: 0.1
LA

MH: 0.1

LA

MH: 0.1

LA

MH: 0.1

LB

MH: 0.1LB

MH: 0.1

4 LA HADCO   B9DWH-SP1 0.900 33 132

2 LB BK LIGHTING   HP2-LED-TR-E65-SP-A9-xxx-12-MT-AH 0.900 7 14

Luminaire Schedule

Project: LAKE WORTH STATION - SITE - REV1 --- APR-6-2022

Symbol Qty Label Description LLD Lum. Watts Total Watts

8 BL FC LIGHTING   FCB6C_36N02 0.900 28.94 231.52

1 SA GARDCO   ECF-S-32L-1_2A-WW-G2-5   POLE MOUNT 20' AFG 0.900 121.6 121.6

1 SB GARDCO   ECF-S-32L-700-WW-G2-BLC   POLE MOUNT 20' AFG 0.900 71.82 71.82

4 SB1 GARDCO   ECF-S-32L-530-WW-G2-BLC   POLE MOUNT 20' AFG 0.900 54.87481 219.4992

2 SD GARDCO   ECF-S-32L-700-WW-G2-LCL   POLE MOUNT 20' AFG 0.900 71.82 143.64

1 SD1 GARDCO   ECF-S-32L-530-WW-G2-LCL   POLE MOUNT 20' AFG 0.900 54.87481 54.87481

2 W GARDCO   101L-16L-700-WW-G2-3 0.900 38.4 76.8

1 W1 GARDCO   101L-16L-200-WW-G2-4 0.900 12 12

1

P
E

R
 F

IX
T

U
R

E
 S

C
H

E
D

U
L

E

1
8
"

A
S

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D

UTILITY STRUCTURES, INC. SQUARE
TAPERED CONCRETE DIRECT BURIAL
POLE.  CONFIRM O.A. LENGTH WITH
CERTIFIED WIND LOAD 
CALCULATIONS.

3 #10 THHN INSIDE 
POLE.

PROVIDE WIND LOAD CALCULATIONS
FOR 170MPH, SIGNED AND SEALED BY 
A FLORIDA ENGINEER.  CONFIRM 
BURIAL DEPTH FOR EACH POLE 
ASSEMBLY / MOUNTING HEIGHT.

1"

PVC

PROVIDE BACKFILL
AS REQUIRED FOR
WIND LOADING

FIXTURE TYPE SA, SB, SC, SD & SE.
GARDCO ECOFORM ECF-S SERIES, 
PER FIXTURE SCHEDULE.

GARDCO INFRARED MOTION RESPONSE

SENSOR AND MODULE WITH "IMRI7" OR

"IMR3" LENS.  PROVIDE "CM50" AUTOMATIC

PROFILE DIMMING ON EACH LUMINAIRE.

FIXTURE WILL AUTOMATICALLY DIM TO

50% FOR 8 HOURS PER NIGHT DURATION,

ONLY INTERRUPTED BY MOTION.  5

MINUTES AFTER NO MOTION WILL RETURN

TO THE AUTOMATIC PROFILE SCHEDULE

CONDUIT OUT TO THE NEXT POLE
(EXCEPT FOR THE LAST BOX)

HANDHOLE, WITH FUSE HOLDER 
AND 3AMP FUSE

CONDUIT IN FROM PREVIOUS PULL BOX

FURNISH AND INSTALL PULLBOX

#8 AWG GROUND

EXOTHERMIC WELD

5/8"X 10' COPPER CLAD STEEL GROUND ROD

FINISH GRADE

980 N. Federal Highway
Suite 110

Boca Raton, FL 33432
Tel: (561) 368-3611

License No. CA 8818
www.formicaengineering.com

GENERAL DISCLAIMER:
ANY DESIGN CHANGES, TO THE SYSTEM COVERED BY THESE 
PLANS WITHOUT PRIOR APPROVAL OF THE ENGINEER WHO 
PREPARED THESE PLANS, WILL NULL AND VOID THESE PLANS 
AND THE REVISED INSTALLATION.  IN ADDITION, ALL EXPENSES 
ASSOCIATED WITH RETURNING THE SYSTEM TO ITS ORIGINAL 
DESIGN WILL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE COMPANY 
WHICH APPROVED THESE CHANGES. FINAL BID TO INCLUDE 
PERMIT COMMENTS.

, The Martin Architectural Group, P.C.c

ALL REPORTS, PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS AND COMPUTER FILES
RELATING TO THIS PROJECT ARE THE PROPERTY OF THE

MARTIN ARCHITECTURAL GROUP. THE MARTIN ARCHITECTURAL
GROUP RETAINS ALL COMMON LAW, STATUTE AND OTHER
RESERVED RIGHTS INCLUDING THE COPY- RIGHT THERETO.

REPRODUCTION OF THE MATERIAL HEREIN OR SUBSTANTIAL
USE WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE MARTIN
ARCHITECTURAL GROUP VIOLATES THE COPYRIGHT LAWS OF
THE UNITED STATES AND WILL BE SUBJECT TO LEGAL

PROSECUTION.

L
A
K
E
 W

O
R

T
H

 B
E
A
C
H

, 
F
L
O

R
ID

A

L
A

K
E

 W
O

R
T

H
 S

T
A

T
I
O

N

T
H

E
 M

A
R

T
IN

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

U
R

A
L
 G

R
O

U
P

, 
P

.C
.

AS NOTED

P.A.:

P.M.:

PROJECT NO.:

SCALE:

DATE:

A
R
C
H
IT
E
C
T
S
 
A
N
D
 
L
A
N
D
 
P
L
A
N
N
E
R
S

A
 
P
R
O
F
E
S
S
IO
N
A
L
 
C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
IO
N

6
8
1
0
 L

y
o
n
s 

T
e
ch

n
o
lo

g
y
 C

ir
cl

e
, 
S
u
it
e
 1

8
5
. 
C
o
co

n
u
t 

C
re

e
k
 F

L
. 

3
3
0
7
3

P
 (

9
5
4
) 

4
2
8
-1

6
1
8
  
F
 (

9
5
4
) 

4
2
8
-4

4
1
6

DRAWN BY:

R
E
V
IS

IO
N

N
O

.
D

A
T
E

, The Martin Architectural Group, P.C.c

E301

P
H

O
T

O
M

E
T

R
IC

 S
IT

E
P

L
A

N

PERMIT SET

2022/04/06

JVS

DFH

SL

222028

1" = 20'-0"E301

1 PHOTOMETRIC SITE  PLAN

SITE LIGHTING NOTES

A THE SITE LIGHTING SHOWN HAS BEEN DESIGNED WITH A COMPUTERIZED POINT

BY POINT PHOTOMETRIC LAYOUT.

B SITE LIGHTING SHALL BE INSTALLED AS SPECIFIED ON THIS DRAWING. NO FIXTURE

SUBSTITUTION WILL BE ACCEPTED BY THIS OFFICE. THIS WILL BE ENABLE

LIGHTING CERTIFICATION LETTER TO BE DONE BY OUR OFFICE.

C IF ANY SITE LIGHTING SUBSTITUTION IS MADE, CERTIFICATION LETTER & TEST FOR

LIGHTING SHALL BE SIGNED & SEALED BY AN INDEPENDENT PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEER.

D THE POLE MANUFATURER SHALL SUPPLY ANY REQ'D CERTIFICATION FOR THE

RECOMMENDED BURIAL DEPTH TO COMPLY WITH FLORIDA BUILDING CODE

REQUIEREMENTS.

E SOIL SHALL BE TESTED AND IF REQUIRED A CONCRETE FOOTING SHALL BE DONE

FOR THE POLE.

NOT TO SCALEE301

2 POLE MOUNTING DETAIL

1
R

E
V

IS
E

D
 P

E
R

 S
P

R
T

 #
1

0
6

/1
5

/2
0

2
2



980 N. Federal Highway
Suite 110

Boca Raton, FL 33432
Tel: (561) 368-3611

License No. CA 8818
www.formicaengineering.com

GENERAL DISCLAIMER:
ANY DESIGN CHANGES, TO THE SYSTEM COVERED BY THESE 
PLANS WITHOUT PRIOR APPROVAL OF THE ENGINEER WHO 
PREPARED THESE PLANS, WILL NULL AND VOID THESE PLANS 
AND THE REVISED INSTALLATION.  IN ADDITION, ALL EXPENSES 
ASSOCIATED WITH RETURNING THE SYSTEM TO ITS ORIGINAL 
DESIGN WILL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE COMPANY 
WHICH APPROVED THESE CHANGES. FINAL BID TO INCLUDE 
PERMIT COMMENTS.

, The Martin Architectural Group, P.C.c

ALL REPORTS, PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS AND COMPUTER FILES
RELATING TO THIS PROJECT ARE THE PROPERTY OF THE

MARTIN ARCHITECTURAL GROUP. THE MARTIN ARCHITECTURAL
GROUP RETAINS ALL COMMON LAW, STATUTE AND OTHER
RESERVED RIGHTS INCLUDING THE COPY- RIGHT THERETO.

REPRODUCTION OF THE MATERIAL HEREIN OR SUBSTANTIAL
USE WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE MARTIN
ARCHITECTURAL GROUP VIOLATES THE COPYRIGHT LAWS OF
THE UNITED STATES AND WILL BE SUBJECT TO LEGAL

PROSECUTION.

L
A
K
E
 W

O
R

T
H

 B
E
A
C
H

, 
F
L
O

R
ID

A

L
A

K
E

 W
O

R
T

H
 S

T
A

T
I
O

N

T
H

E
 M

A
R

T
IN

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

U
R

A
L
 G

R
O

U
P

, 
P

.C
.

AS NOTED

P.A.:

P.M.:

PROJECT NO.:

SCALE:

DATE:

A
R
C
H
IT
E
C
T
S
 
A
N
D
 
L
A
N
D
 
P
L
A
N
N
E
R
S

A
 
P
R
O
F
E
S
S
IO
N
A
L
 
C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
IO
N

6
8
1
0
 L

y
o
n
s 

T
e
ch

n
o
lo

g
y
 C

ir
cl

e
, 
S
u
it
e
 1

8
5
. 
C
o
co

n
u
t 

C
re

e
k
 F

L
. 

3
3
0
7
3

P
 (

9
5
4
) 

4
2
8
-1

6
1
8
  
F
 (

9
5
4
) 

4
2
8
-4

4
1
6

DRAWN BY:

R
E
V
IS

IO
N

N
O

.
D

A
T
E

, The Martin Architectural Group, P.C.c

E701

E
L
E

C
T

R
IC

A
L

 D
E

T
A

IL
S

PERMIT SET

2022/04/06

JVS

DFH

SL

222028

SITE LIGHTING GENERAL NOTE:

COORDINATE WITH ARCHITECT AND END USER FOR COLOR TEMPERATURE 
AND FINISH OF LIGHT FIXTURE HOUSING AND MOUNTING ACCESORIES OR 
POLE



980 N. Federal Highway
Suite 110

Boca Raton, FL 33432
Tel: (561) 368-3611

License No. CA 8818
www.formicaengineering.com

GENERAL DISCLAIMER:
ANY DESIGN CHANGES, TO THE SYSTEM COVERED BY THESE 
PLANS WITHOUT PRIOR APPROVAL OF THE ENGINEER WHO 
PREPARED THESE PLANS, WILL NULL AND VOID THESE PLANS 
AND THE REVISED INSTALLATION.  IN ADDITION, ALL EXPENSES 
ASSOCIATED WITH RETURNING THE SYSTEM TO ITS ORIGINAL 
DESIGN WILL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE COMPANY 
WHICH APPROVED THESE CHANGES. FINAL BID TO INCLUDE 
PERMIT COMMENTS.

, The Martin Architectural Group, P.C.c

ALL REPORTS, PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS AND COMPUTER FILES
RELATING TO THIS PROJECT ARE THE PROPERTY OF THE

MARTIN ARCHITECTURAL GROUP. THE MARTIN ARCHITECTURAL
GROUP RETAINS ALL COMMON LAW, STATUTE AND OTHER
RESERVED RIGHTS INCLUDING THE COPY- RIGHT THERETO.

REPRODUCTION OF THE MATERIAL HEREIN OR SUBSTANTIAL
USE WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE MARTIN
ARCHITECTURAL GROUP VIOLATES THE COPYRIGHT LAWS OF
THE UNITED STATES AND WILL BE SUBJECT TO LEGAL

PROSECUTION.

L
A
K
E
 W

O
R

T
H

 B
E
A
C
H

, 
F
L
O

R
ID

A

L
A

K
E

 W
O

R
T

H
 S

T
A

T
I
O

N

T
H

E
 M

A
R

T
IN

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

U
R

A
L
 G

R
O

U
P

, 
P

.C
.

AS NOTED

P.A.:

P.M.:

PROJECT NO.:

SCALE:

DATE:

A
R
C
H
IT
E
C
T
S
 
A
N
D
 
L
A
N
D
 
P
L
A
N
N
E
R
S

A
 
P
R
O
F
E
S
S
IO
N
A
L
 
C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
IO
N

6
8
1
0
 L

y
o
n
s 

T
e
ch

n
o
lo

g
y
 C

ir
cl

e
, 
S
u
it
e
 1

8
5
. 
C
o
co

n
u
t 

C
re

e
k
 F

L
. 

3
3
0
7
3

P
 (

9
5
4
) 

4
2
8
-1

6
1
8
  
F
 (

9
5
4
) 

4
2
8
-4

4
1
6

DRAWN BY:

R
E
V
IS

IO
N

N
O

.
D

A
T
E

, The Martin Architectural Group, P.C.c

E702

E
L
E

C
T

R
IC

A
L

 D
E

T
A

IL
S

PERMIT SET

2022/04/06

JVS

DFH

SL

222028

SITE LIGHTING GENERAL NOTE:

COORDINATE WITH ARCHITECT AND END USER FOR COLOR TEMPERATURE 
AND FINISH OF LIGHT FIXTURE HOUSING AND MOUNTING ACCESORIES OR 
POLE



980 N. Federal Highway
Suite 110

Boca Raton, FL 33432
Tel: (561) 368-3611

License No. CA 8818
www.formicaengineering.com

GENERAL DISCLAIMER:
ANY DESIGN CHANGES, TO THE SYSTEM COVERED BY THESE 
PLANS WITHOUT PRIOR APPROVAL OF THE ENGINEER WHO 
PREPARED THESE PLANS, WILL NULL AND VOID THESE PLANS 
AND THE REVISED INSTALLATION.  IN ADDITION, ALL EXPENSES 
ASSOCIATED WITH RETURNING THE SYSTEM TO ITS ORIGINAL 
DESIGN WILL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE COMPANY 
WHICH APPROVED THESE CHANGES. FINAL BID TO INCLUDE 
PERMIT COMMENTS.

, The Martin Architectural Group, P.C.c

ALL REPORTS, PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS AND COMPUTER FILES
RELATING TO THIS PROJECT ARE THE PROPERTY OF THE

MARTIN ARCHITECTURAL GROUP. THE MARTIN ARCHITECTURAL
GROUP RETAINS ALL COMMON LAW, STATUTE AND OTHER
RESERVED RIGHTS INCLUDING THE COPY- RIGHT THERETO.

REPRODUCTION OF THE MATERIAL HEREIN OR SUBSTANTIAL
USE WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE MARTIN
ARCHITECTURAL GROUP VIOLATES THE COPYRIGHT LAWS OF
THE UNITED STATES AND WILL BE SUBJECT TO LEGAL

PROSECUTION.

L
A
K
E
 W

O
R

T
H

 B
E
A
C
H

, 
F
L
O

R
ID

A

L
A

K
E

 W
O

R
T

H
 S

T
A

T
I
O

N

T
H

E
 M

A
R

T
IN

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

U
R

A
L
 G

R
O

U
P

, 
P

.C
.

AS NOTED

P.A.:

P.M.:

PROJECT NO.:

SCALE:

DATE:

A
R
C
H
IT
E
C
T
S
 
A
N
D
 
L
A
N
D
 
P
L
A
N
N
E
R
S

A
 
P
R
O
F
E
S
S
IO
N
A
L
 
C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
IO
N

6
8
1
0
 L

y
o
n
s 

T
e
ch

n
o
lo

g
y
 C

ir
cl

e
, 
S
u
it
e
 1

8
5
. 
C
o
co

n
u
t 

C
re

e
k
 F

L
. 

3
3
0
7
3

P
 (

9
5
4
) 

4
2
8
-1

6
1
8
  
F
 (

9
5
4
) 

4
2
8
-4

4
1
6

DRAWN BY:

R
E
V
IS

IO
N

N
O

.
D

A
T
E

, The Martin Architectural Group, P.C.c

E703

E
L
E

C
T

R
IC

A
L

 D
E

T
A

IL
S

PERMIT SET

2022/04/06

JVS

DFH

SL

222028

SITE LIGHTING GENERAL NOTE:

COORDINATE WITH ARCHITECT AND END USER FOR COLOR TEMPERATURE 
AND FINISH OF LIGHT FIXTURE HOUSING AND MOUNTING ACCESORIES OR 
POLE



980 N. Federal Highway
Suite 110

Boca Raton, FL 33432
Tel: (561) 368-3611

License No. CA 8818
www.formicaengineering.com

GENERAL DISCLAIMER:
ANY DESIGN CHANGES, TO THE SYSTEM COVERED BY THESE 
PLANS WITHOUT PRIOR APPROVAL OF THE ENGINEER WHO 
PREPARED THESE PLANS, WILL NULL AND VOID THESE PLANS 
AND THE REVISED INSTALLATION.  IN ADDITION, ALL EXPENSES 
ASSOCIATED WITH RETURNING THE SYSTEM TO ITS ORIGINAL 
DESIGN WILL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE COMPANY 
WHICH APPROVED THESE CHANGES. FINAL BID TO INCLUDE 
PERMIT COMMENTS.

, The Martin Architectural Group, P.C.c

ALL REPORTS, PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS AND COMPUTER FILES
RELATING TO THIS PROJECT ARE THE PROPERTY OF THE

MARTIN ARCHITECTURAL GROUP. THE MARTIN ARCHITECTURAL
GROUP RETAINS ALL COMMON LAW, STATUTE AND OTHER
RESERVED RIGHTS INCLUDING THE COPY- RIGHT THERETO.

REPRODUCTION OF THE MATERIAL HEREIN OR SUBSTANTIAL
USE WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE MARTIN
ARCHITECTURAL GROUP VIOLATES THE COPYRIGHT LAWS OF
THE UNITED STATES AND WILL BE SUBJECT TO LEGAL

PROSECUTION.

L
A
K
E
 W

O
R

T
H

 B
E
A
C
H

, 
F
L
O

R
ID

A

L
A

K
E

 W
O

R
T

H
 S

T
A

T
I
O

N

T
H

E
 M

A
R

T
IN

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

U
R

A
L
 G

R
O

U
P

, 
P

.C
.

AS NOTED

P.A.:

P.M.:

PROJECT NO.:

SCALE:

DATE:

A
R
C
H
IT
E
C
T
S
 
A
N
D
 
L
A
N
D
 
P
L
A
N
N
E
R
S

A
 
P
R
O
F
E
S
S
IO
N
A
L
 
C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
IO
N

6
8
1
0
 L

y
o
n
s 

T
e
ch

n
o
lo

g
y
 C

ir
cl

e
, 
S
u
it
e
 1

8
5
. 
C
o
co

n
u
t 

C
re

e
k
 F

L
. 

3
3
0
7
3

P
 (

9
5
4
) 

4
2
8
-1

6
1
8
  
F
 (

9
5
4
) 

4
2
8
-4

4
1
6

DRAWN BY:

R
E
V
IS

IO
N

N
O

.
D

A
T
E

, The Martin Architectural Group, P.C.c

E801

C
O

M
C

H
E

C
K

PERMIT SET

2022/04/06

JVS

DFH

SL

222028









 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

1.0 SITE DATA ........................................................................................................ 2 

2.0 PURPOSE OF STUDY ....................................................................................... 2 

3.0 TRAFFIC GENERATION ................................................................................... 3 

4.0 RADIUS OF DEVELOPMENT INFLUENCE ...................................................... 3 

5.0 TEST 1 BUILD-OUT ANALYSIS ........................................................................ 4 

6.0 TEST 2 BUILD-OUT ANALYSIS ........................................................................ 4 

7.0 SITE RELATED IMPROVEMENTS .................................................................... 4 

8.0 CONCLUSION ................................................................................................... 4 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
  
  
 
 

 
 



 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Lake Worth Station 
Job No. 22-039 Page 2 

1.0 SITE DATA 
 

The subject parcel is located in the southeast corner of 10th Avenue North and N. 
G Street in the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida and contains approximately 
1.08 acres.  The Property Control Numbers (PCN) for the subject parcel may be 
summarized as follows: 
 

38-43-44-21-15-274-0080  38-43-44-21-15-274-0070 
38-43-44-21-15-274-0040  38-43-44-21-15-274-0020 
 

The proposed plan of development on the currently unimproved parcel is to 
consist of 81 multifamily dwelling units with a build out of 2026.   Site access is 
proposed via a full access driveway connection to N. G Street and a right in, right 
out only driveway connection to 10th Avenue North.  For additional information 
concerning site location and layout, refer to the Site Plan. 
 
Note the project is located within the Coastal Residential Exception Area and is 
therefore exempt from traffic concurrency. The traffic study is prepared for 
informational purposes. 

 
2.0 PURPOSE OF STUDY 

 

This study will analyze the proposed development’s impact on the surrounding 
major thoroughfares within the project’s radius of development influence in 
accordance with the Palm Beach County Unified Land Development Code  
Article 12 – Traffic Performance Standards.  The Traffic Performance Standards 
state that a Site Specific Development Order for a proposed project shall meet 
the standards and guidelines outlined in two separate “Tests” with regard to 
traffic performance.  
 
Test 1, or the Build-Out Test, relates to the build-out period of the project and 
requires that a project not add traffic within the radius of development influence 
which would have total traffic exceeding the adopted LOS at the end of the build-
out period.  This Test 1 analysis consists of two parts and no project shall be 
approved for a Site Specific Development Order unless it can be shown to satisfy 
the requirements of Parts One and Two of Test 1.  Part One – Intersections, 
requires the analysis of major intersections, within or beyond a project’s radius of 
development influence, where a project’s traffic is significant on a link within the 
radius of development influence.  The intersections analyzed shall operate within 
the applicable threshold associated with the level of analysis addressed.  Part 
Two – Links, compares the total traffic in the peak hour, peak direction on each 
link within a project’s radius of development influence with the applicable LOS 
“D” link service volumes.  The links analyzed shall operate within the applicable 
thresholds associated with the level of analysis addressed.  
 
Test 2, or the Five Year Analysis, relates to the evaluation of project traffic five 
years in the future and requires that a project not add traffic within the radius of 
development influence which would result in total traffic exceeding the adopted 
LOS at the end of the Five Year Analysis period.   



 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Lake Worth Station 
Job No. 22-039 Page 3 

 
2.0 PURPOSE OF STUDY (CONT.) 

 
 
This test requires analysis of links and major intersections as necessary within or 
beyond the radius of development influence, where a project’s traffic is significant 
on a link within the radius of development influence.   

\ 
This analysis shall address the total traffic anticipated to be in place at the end of 
the build out year.  This study will verify that the proposed development’s traffic 
impact will meet the above Traffic Performance Standards.  
 

3.0 TRAFFIC GENERATION 
 

The traffic to be generated by the proposed development has been calculated in 
accordance with the traffic generation rates listed in the ITE Trip Generation 
Manual, 10th Edition and rates published by the Palm Beach County Engineering 
Traffic Division.  Table 1 shows the proposed daily traffic generation in trips per 
day (tpd).  Tables 2 and 3 show the AM and PM peak hour traffic generation, 
respectively, as peak hour trips (pht).  The traffic generated by the proposed 
development may be summarized as follows: 
 

Proposed Development  
 

Daily Traffic Generation     =       441 tpd 
AM Peak Hour Traffic Generation (IN/OUT)  =         29 pht (8 In/21 Out) 

  PM Peak Hour Traffic Generation (IN/OUT)  =         36 pht (22 In/14 Out) 
 
4.0 RADIUS OF DEVELOPMENT INFLUENCE 

 
Based on Table 12.B.2.D-7 3A of the Palm Beach County Unified Land 
Development Code Article 12 – Traffic Performance Standards, for a net trip 
generation of 36 peak hour trips, the development of influence shall be one-half 
mile. 
 
For Test 1, a project must address those links within the radius of development 
influence on which its net trips are greater than 1% of the LOS “D” of the link 
affected on a peak hour, peak direction basis AND those links outside of the 
radius of development influence on which its net trips are greater than five 
percent of the LOS “D” of the link affected on a peak hour, peak direction basis 
up to the limits set forth in Table 12.B.2.C-1 1A: LOS “D” Link Service Volumes.  
 
For Test 2, a project must address those links within the radius of development 
influence on which its net trips are greater than 3% of the LOS “E” of the link 
affected on a peak hour, peak direction basis AND those links outside of the 
radius of development influence on which its net trips are greater than five 
percent of the LOS “E” of the link affected on a peak hour, peak direction basis 
up to the limits set forth in Table 12.B.2.C-4 2A: LOS “E” Link Service Volumes.   



 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Lake Worth Station 
Job No. 22-039 Page 4 

 
5.0 TEST 1 BUILD-OUT ANALYSIS 

 
Test 1, or the Build-Out Analysis, relates to the build-out period of the project and 
requires that a project not add traffic within the radius of development influence 
which would have total traffic exceeding the adopted LOS at the end of the build-
out period.  The trip distribution percentages are shown in Tables 4 and 5.  
Tables 4 and 5 indicate the project’s assignment is less than 1% of the applicable 
LOS “D” threshold and is insignificant for all links within the project’s radius of 
development influence.  This project therefore meets the requirements of Test 1. 

 
6.0 TEST 2 BUILD-OUT ANALYSIS 

 
Test 2, or the Five Year Analysis, relates to the evaluation of project traffic five 
years in the future and requires that a project not add traffic within the radius of 
development influence which would result in total traffic exceeding the adopted 
LOS at the end of the Five Year Analysis Period.  Tables 6 and 7 show the 
project’s net trip generation is less than 3% of the applicable LOS “E” threshold 
for all links within the project’s radius of development influence.  This project 
therefore meets the requirements of Test 2. 

 
7.0 SITE RELATED IMPROVEMENTS 

 
The AM and PM peak hour volumes at the project entrances for the overall 
development with no reduction for pass by credits are shown in Tables 2 and 3 
and may be summarized as follows: 
 
 DIRECTIONAL 
 DISTRIBUTION 
 (TRIPS IN/OUT) 
 
           AM =            8 / 21 
           PM =          22 / 14 

  
As previously mentioned, site access is proposed via a full access driveway 
connection to N. G Street and a right in, right out only driveway connection to 10th 
Avenue North.  Based on the Palm Beach County Engineering Guidelines used 
in determining the need for turn lanes of 75 right turns or 30 left turns in the peak 
hour, no turn lanes are not warranted or recommended.   
 

8.0 CONCLUSION 
 

The proposed development has been estimated to generate 441 trips per day, 29 
AM peak hour trips, and 36 PM peak hour trips at project build-out in 2026.  A 
brief review of the roadway links within the project’s radius of development 
influence reveals the proposed development will have an insignificant project 
assignment and will therefore meet the requirements of the Palm Beach County 
Traffic Performance Standards.   

 
sa:   x:\Documents\Traffic Drainage&Structural\itis.22039 



LAKE WORTH STATION 03/30/2022

TABLE 1 - Daily Traffic Generation
ITE

Landuse Code Rate/Equation In Out % % Trips
Multifamily Mid-Rise Housing 3-10 

story (Apartment/Condo/TH)
221 81 Dwelling Units 5.44 0% 0

Grand Totals: 0.0% 0% 0

TABLE 2 - AM Peak Hour Traffic Generation
ITE

Landuse Code Rate/Equation In Out In Out Total % In Out Total In Out Total % Trips In Out Total
Multifamily Mid-Rise Housing 3-10 

story (Apartment/Condo/TH)
221 81 Dwelling Units 0.36 0.26 0.74 8 21 29 0.0% 0 0 0 8 21 29 0% 0 8 21 29

Grand Totals: 8 21 29 0.0% 0 0 0 8 21 29 0% 0 8 21 29

TABLE 3 - PM Peak Hour Traffic Generation
ITE

Landuse Code Rate/Equation In Out In Out Total % In Out Total In Out Total % Trips In Out Total
Multifamily Mid-Rise Housing 3-10 

story (Apartment/Condo/TH)
221 81 Dwelling Units 0.44 0.61 0.39 22 14 36 0.0% 0 0 0 22 14 36 0% 0 22 14 36

Grand Totals: 22 14 36 0.0% 0 0 0 22 14 36 0% 0 22 14 36

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

Dir Split Internalization Pass-by
Intensity Gross Trips Total External Trips Net Trips

441 0 441 441

441 0 441 441

Net Trips
Intensity

Dir Split Gross Trips Internalization External Trips Pass-by

Net Trips
Intensity

Dir Split Gross Trips Internalization External Trips Pass-by

X:\Documents\PROJECTS\2022\22-039 Lake Worth Station\Lake Worth Station Traffic Calcs.xlsx
AL







LAKE WORTH STATION 03/30/2022

8
21

AM PEAK HOUR
DIRECTIONAL TOTAL

PROJECT PROJECT EXISTING LOS D PROJECT PROJECT 
ROADWAY FROM TO DISTRIBUTION TRIPS LANES CLASS STANDARD IMPACT SIGNIFICANT

10TH AVENUE NORTH I-95 N. G STREET 50% 11 4D II 1770 0.62% NO
10TH AVENUE NORTH N. G STREET DIXIE HIGHWAY 30% 6 4D II 1770 0.34% NO
10TH AVENUE NORTH DIXIE HIGHWAY FEDERAL HIGHWAY 5% 1 2 II 810 0.12% NO

DIXIE HIGHWAY FOREST HILL BOULEVARD 10TH AVENUE NORTH 20% 4 4 II 1680 0.24% NO
DIXIE HIGHWAY 10TH AVENUE NORTH LUCERNE AVENUE 5% 1 4 II 1680 0.06% NO

FEDERAL HIGHWAY 13TH AVENUE NORTH 10TH AVENUE NORTH 3% 1 2 II 810 0.12% NO
FEDERAL HIGHWAY 10TH AVENUE NORTH LUCERNE AVENUE 2% 0 2 II 810 0.00% NO

N. G STREET 10TH AVENUE NORTH LUCERNE AVENUE 20% 4 2 II 810 0.49% NO

TOTAL AM PEAK HOUR PROJECT TRIPS (EXITING) =

TABLE 4
TEST 1 - PROJECT SIGNIFICANCE CALCULATION

AM PEAK HOUR
2026 BUILD OUT
1/2 MILE RADIUS OF DEVELOPMENT INFLUENCE
TOTAL AM PEAK HOUR PROJECT TRIPS (ENTERING) =

X:\Documents\PROJECTS\2022\22-039 Lake Worth Station\Lake Worth Station Traffic Calcs.xlsx
AL



LAKE WORTH STATION 03/30/2022

22
14

PM PEAK HOUR
DIRECTIONAL TOTAL

PROJECT PROJECT EXISTING LOS D PROJECT PROJECT 
ROADWAY FROM TO DISTRIBUTION TRIPS LANES CLASS STANDARD IMPACT SIGNIFICANT

10TH AVENUE NORTH I-95 N. G STREET 50% 11 4D II 1770 0.62% NO
10TH AVENUE NORTH N. G STREET DIXIE HIGHWAY 30% 7 4D II 1770 0.40% NO
10TH AVENUE NORTH DIXIE HIGHWAY FEDERAL HIGHWAY 5% 1 2 II 810 0.12% NO

DIXIE HIGHWAY FOREST HILL BOULEVARD 10TH AVENUE NORTH 20% 4 4 II 1680 0.24% NO
DIXIE HIGHWAY 10TH AVENUE NORTH LUCERNE AVENUE 5% 1 4 II 1680 0.06% NO

FEDERAL HIGHWAY 13TH AVENUE NORTH 10TH AVENUE NORTH 3% 1 2 II 810 0.12% NO
FEDERAL HIGHWAY 10TH AVENUE NORTH LUCERNE AVENUE 2% 0 2 II 810 0.00% NO

N. G STREET 10TH AVENUE NORTH LUCERNE AVENUE 20% 4 2 II 810 0.49% NO

TOTAL PM PEAK HOUR PROJECT TRIPS (EXITING) =

TABLE 5
TEST 1 - PROJECT SIGNIFICANCE CALCULATION

PM PEAK HOUR
2026 BUILD OUT
1/2 MILE RADIUS OF DEVELOPMENT INFLUENCE
TOTAL PM PEAK HOUR PROJECT TRIPS (ENTERING) =

X:\Documents\PROJECTS\2022\22-039 Lake Worth Station\Lake Worth Station Traffic Calcs.xlsx
AL



LAKE WORTH STATION 03/30/2022

8
21

AM PEAK HOUR
DIRECTIONAL TOTAL

PROJECT PROJECT EXISTING LOS E PROJECT PROJECT 
ROADWAY FROM TO DISTRIBUTION TRIPS LANES CLASS STANDARD IMPACT SIGNIFICANT

10TH AVENUE NORTH I-95 N. G STREET 50% 11 4D II 1870 0.59% NO
10TH AVENUE NORTH N. G STREET DIXIE HIGHWAY 30% 6 4D II 1870 0.32% NO
10TH AVENUE NORTH DIXIE HIGHWAY FEDERAL HIGHWAY 5% 1 2 II 860 0.12% NO

DIXIE HIGHWAY FOREST HILL BOULEVARD 10TH AVENUE NORTH 20% 4 4 II 1780 0.22% NO
DIXIE HIGHWAY 10TH AVENUE NORTH LUCERNE AVENUE 5% 1 4 II 1780 0.06% NO

FEDERAL HIGHWAY 13TH AVENUE NORTH 10TH AVENUE NORTH 3% 1 2 II 860 0.12% NO
FEDERAL HIGHWAY 10TH AVENUE NORTH LUCERNE AVENUE 2% 0 2 II 860 0.00% NO

N. G STREET 10TH AVENUE NORTH LUCERNE AVENUE 20% 4 2 II 860 0.47% NO

TOTAL AM PEAK HOUR PROJECT TRIPS (EXITING) =

TABLE 6
TEST 2 - PROJECT SIGNIFICANCE CALCULATION

AM PEAK HOUR
TEST 2 - FIVE YEAR ANALYSIS
1/2 MILE RADIUS OF DEVELOPMENT INFLUENCE
TOTAL AM PEAK HOUR PROJECT TRIPS (ENTERING) =

X:\Documents\PROJECTS\2022\22-039 Lake Worth Station\Lake Worth Station Traffic Calcs.xlsx
AL



LAKE WORTH STATION 03/30/2022

22
14

PM PEAK HOUR
DIRECTIONAL TOTAL

PROJECT PROJECT EXISTING LOS E PROJECT PROJECT 
STATIONROADWAY FROM TO DISTRIBUTION TRIPS LANES CLASS STANDARD IMPACT SIGNIFICANT

10TH AVENUE NORTH I-95 N. G STREET 50% 11 4D II 1870 0.59% NO
10TH AVENUE NORTH N. G STREET DIXIE HIGHWAY 30% 7 4D II 1870 0.37% NO
10TH AVENUE NORTH DIXIE HIGHWAY FEDERAL HIGHWAY 5% 1 2 II 860 0.12% NO

DIXIE HIGHWAY FOREST HILL BOULEVARD 10TH AVENUE NORTH 20% 4 4 II 1780 0.22% NO
DIXIE HIGHWAY 10TH AVENUE NORTH LUCERNE AVENUE 5% 1 4 II 1780 0.06% NO

FEDERAL HIGHWAY 13TH AVENUE NORTH 10TH AVENUE NORTH 3% 1 2 II 860 0.12% NO
FEDERAL HIGHWAY 10TH AVENUE NORTH LUCERNE AVENUE 2% 0 2 II 860 0.00% NO

N. G STREET 10TH AVENUE NORTH LUCERNE AVENUE 20% 4 2 II 860 0.47% NO

TOTAL PM PEAK HOUR PROJECT TRIPS (EXITING) =

TABLE 7
TEST 2 - PROJECT SIGNIFICANCE CALCULATION

PM PEAK HOUR
TEST 2 - FIVE YEAR ANALYSIS
1/2 MILE RADIUS OF DEVELOPMENT INFLUENCE
TOTAL PM PEAK HOUR PROJECT TRIPS (ENTERING) =

X:\Documents\PROJECTS\2022\22-039 Lake Worth Station\Lake Worth Station Traffic Calcs.xlsx
AL



 
 
 
 
         March 31, 2022 
Palm Beach County Engineering Department 
Traffic Division 
2300 North Jog Road 
Floor 3E 
West Palm Beach, Florida  33411 
 
Attention: Mr. Quazi Bari, P.E. 
 
Reference: Lake Worth Station 
  West Palm Beach, Florida 
 
Dear Mr. Bari: 
 
Please find enclosed for your review and approval the following items pertaining to the 
above referenced project located in the southeast corner of 10th Avenue North and N. G 
Street in the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida. 
 
 1. One (1) copy of the Insignificant Traffic Impact Statement 

2. One (1) copy of the Site Plan 
3.  TPS Review fee of $300.00 
 

The proposed plan of development is to consist of 81 multifamily residential dwelling 
units a buildout of 2026.  We are respectfully requesting a letter from your Department to 
the City of Lake Worth Beach following your review and approval.  Note the project is 
located within the Coastal Residential Exception Area.  Thank you for your assistance 
with this matter. 
 
        Sincerely, 
 
        SIMMONS & WHITE, INC. 
 
 
 
        Bryan Kelley, P.E. 
 
Enclosures 
BK: x:/docs/miscltrs/kelley/22039.barisub 

2 5 8 1  M e t r o c e n t r e  B o u l e v a r d  W e s t    S u i t e  3    W e s t  P a l m  B e a c h    F l o r i d a    3 3 4 0 7  
T :   5 6 1 . 4 7 8 . 7 8 4 8    F :  5 6 1 . 4 7 8 . 3 7 3 8    w w w . s i m m o n s a n d w h i t e . c o m  

C e r t i f i c a t e  o f  A u t h o r i z a t i o n  N u m b e r  3 4 5 2  
 



PROJECT NAME:  LAKE WORTH STATION
PROJECT NO: 137767
DATE: 2022-04-25

Patricia F. Ramudo, PE, LEED AP

FL Reg. No. 35798

DRAINAGE STATEMENT
The project is located at 930 N G Street, Lake Worth Beach, FL / Parcel # 38-43-44-21-15-274-0080. The proposed mixed-
use project includes the construction of a residential building, surface parking and site amenities. Additionally the site will 
include water & sewer, stormwater facilities, and sidewalk infrastructure. The South Florida Water Management District 
(SFWMD) requirements include analysis of the 5 Year -1 Day, 25 Year - 3 Day, 100 Year - 3 Day storm events for lower 
parking inlet elevation, berm and discharge rates, and finished floor elevations respectively. Furthermore, the City of Lake 
Worth requires the 3 Year - 1 Hour storm event be evaluated and fully retained on-site (Code of Ordinance Sec. 18-103.). 
According to the Eastern Palm Beach County map included in this report, the control water table is estimated at 4.50 ft 
NAVD. However, the geotechnical report from TSFGEO shows the water table encountered during testing is found at 
elevations approximately 8-9.5 feet below ground surface, March 9th, 2022. Based on average site grade of 13.8, in the 
vicinity of the exfiltration tests, we established the water table at elevation 5.8 ft NAVD for a much more conservative 
approach. The drainage system features exifiltration trench to meet the water quality and water quantity requirements. A 
control structure featuring a 6" inverted triangle orifice will discharge offsite to the City storm system.  The summary table 
below provides the final pre- vs post elevations and discharge rates for all the aforementioned storm events.  Per Palm 
Beach County Wellfield Maps, this project site is located in Wellfield Zone 4.  An Affidavit of Notification has been submitted 
to Palm Beach County Department of Environmental Resources Management.



LWS Wellfield Map Palm Beach County
None

April 22, 2022

0 0.1 0.20.05 mi

0 0.2 0.40.1 km

1:9,028

Created by: Palm Beach County
µ

SITE LOCATION





From: Patricia Ramudo
To: Rosy Escobar-Penalba
Cc: Ricardo Hernandez
Subject: FW: Lake Worth Station - Affidavit
Date: Tuesday, April 26, 2022 4:38:48 PM

Rosy,
 
PBC – ERM has received and responded to our Affidavit of Notification regarding our project.  Please
see Samantha’s response below and let me know if you need anything else.
 
Patricia Ramudo PE, LEED AP
 
Associate
 
IBI GROUP
1100 Park Central Boulevard South - Suite 3500
Pompano Beach FL  33064-2214  United States
tel +1 954 974 2200 ext 52120  fax +1 954 973 2686
 

 

 
NOTE: This email message/attachments may contain privileged and confidential information. If received in error, please notify the sender and delete this e-mail message.

From: Samantha Pucci <SPucci@pbcgov.org> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 26, 2022 4:33 PM
To: Patricia Ramudo <patricia.ramudo@ibigroup.com>
Subject: RE: Lake Worth Station - Affidavit
 
If it is solely individual residential units, a wellfield permit would not be required for this project. We
only require that the contractors follow the best management practices that were included in the
Affidavit of notification packet.
 

From: Patricia Ramudo <patricia.ramudo@ibigroup.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 26, 2022 4:29 PM
To: Samantha Pucci <SPucci@pbcgov.org>
Cc: Ricardo Hernandez <rihernanp@gmail.com>
Subject: RE: Lake Worth Station - Affidavit
 
****** Note: This email was sent from a source external to Palm Beach County. Links or
attachments should not be accessed unless expected from a trusted source. *******

Samantha,
 
I have copied the Owner/Developer to confirm this response.  At this time, there is no plan for a pool
or club house, nor am I aware of a proposed on-site generator.
 

mailto:patricia.ramudo@ibigroup.com
mailto:rescobar-penalba@LakeWorthBeachfl.gov
mailto:rihernanp@gmail.com
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://www.ibigroup.com/?utm_source=outlook&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=ibi-esignature__;!!L27OxSvrGzUPJKx-75U!_VBll-GRc2Rp0t4EH10KMQswaO7sZepf5wKkYeV1pIqnMYo5M5Qspi0hPc78MelcvUBVnePZv8ud0ZHSVl7pFGRRlTKJw_T5sj8WrMPVIKjDTQ$


Patricia Ramudo PE, LEED AP
 
Associate
 
IBI GROUP
1100 Park Central Boulevard South - Suite 3500
Pompano Beach FL  33064-2214  United States
tel +1 954 974 2200 ext 52120  fax +1 954 973 2686
 

[linkedin.com]  [twitter.com]  [instagram.com]  [youtube.com]  [facebook.com]
 

[ibigroup.com]
 
NOTE: This email message/attachments may contain privileged and confidential information. If received in error, please notify the sender and delete this e-mail message.

From: Samantha Pucci <SPucci@pbcgov.org> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 26, 2022 4:24 PM
To: Patricia Ramudo <patricia.ramudo@ibigroup.com>
Subject: RE: Lake Worth Station - Affidavit
 
Patricia,
 
I received the Affidavit after my phone call.
 
With this being a residential development, my question would be in relation to the wellfield area, is
if there are any plans of a pool, onsite generator or a maintenance closet for a club house?
 
 
Samantha Pucci
Resources Protection
Environmental Resources Management
(561)233-2523
fax: (561) 233-2414
 
 
 

From: Patricia Ramudo <patricia.ramudo@ibigroup.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 26, 2022 3:31 PM
To: Samantha Pucci <SPucci@pbcgov.org>
Cc: Ricardo Hernandez <rihernanp@gmail.com>
Subject: Lake Worth Station - Affidavit
 
****** Note: This email was sent from a source external to Palm Beach County. Links or
attachments should not be accessed unless expected from a trusted source. *******

Samantha,
 

https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https*3A*2F*2Furldefense.com*2Fv3*2F__https*3A*2Fwww.linkedin.com*2Fcompany*2Fibi-group_2__*3B!!COIdcu9TKnUF_QTdrw!M_OLlP3nw4NdkCJ7RvGW7cK22w3e9JsRyYH7bcRheXTfN8D6ZqVwLGZhhxsJjKc*24&data=05*7C01*7Cpatricia.ramudo*40ibigroup.com*7C5d754a9e93174bf0f0c608da27c3ff21*7C9093f1a387714fb78596d51eeef18cda*7C0*7C0*7C637866020021837202*7CUnknown*7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0*3D*7C3000*7C*7C*7C&sdata=xKELiN*2FZZdtPZzauTV168M7MFUWlSkXolh3cCwv5EPM*3D&reserved=0__;JSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJQ!!L27OxSvrGzUPJKx-75U!_VBll-GRc2Rp0t4EH10KMQswaO7sZepf5wKkYeV1pIqnMYo5M5Qspi0hPc78MelcvUBVnePZv8ud0ZHSVl7pFGRRlTKJw_T5sj8WrMMENxF_Qg$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https*3A*2F*2Furldefense.com*2Fv3*2F__https*3A*2Ftwitter.com*2Fibigroup__*3B!!COIdcu9TKnUF_QTdrw!M_OLlP3nw4NdkCJ7RvGW7cK22w3e9JsRyYH7bcRheXTfN8D6ZqVwLGZh-j4ubiE*24&data=05*7C01*7Cpatricia.ramudo*40ibigroup.com*7C5d754a9e93174bf0f0c608da27c3ff21*7C9093f1a387714fb78596d51eeef18cda*7C0*7C0*7C637866020021837202*7CUnknown*7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0*3D*7C3000*7C*7C*7C&sdata=hfkbt4bq7js*2FeYc3GIvmUHc96xSolgm*2F1w08O5TEiQ8*3D&reserved=0__;JSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJQ!!L27OxSvrGzUPJKx-75U!_VBll-GRc2Rp0t4EH10KMQswaO7sZepf5wKkYeV1pIqnMYo5M5Qspi0hPc78MelcvUBVnePZv8ud0ZHSVl7pFGRRlTKJw_T5sj8WrMMGtpB7VQ$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https*3A*2F*2Furldefense.com*2Fv3*2F__https*3A*2Finstagram.com*2Fibi_group*2F__*3B!!COIdcu9TKnUF_QTdrw!M_OLlP3nw4NdkCJ7RvGW7cK22w3e9JsRyYH7bcRheXTfN8D6ZqVwLGZhYejiZKw*24&data=05*7C01*7Cpatricia.ramudo*40ibigroup.com*7C5d754a9e93174bf0f0c608da27c3ff21*7C9093f1a387714fb78596d51eeef18cda*7C0*7C0*7C637866020021837202*7CUnknown*7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0*3D*7C3000*7C*7C*7C&sdata=oHxOQL7Tij2W*2F6Cn58ZAMorrCv*2BvHjRyFzdjnP49mgw*3D&reserved=0__;JSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSU!!L27OxSvrGzUPJKx-75U!_VBll-GRc2Rp0t4EH10KMQswaO7sZepf5wKkYeV1pIqnMYo5M5Qspi0hPc78MelcvUBVnePZv8ud0ZHSVl7pFGRRlTKJw_T5sj8WrMM7s-S7gw$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https*3A*2F*2Furldefense.com*2Fv3*2F__https*3A*2Fwww.youtube.com*2Fchannel*2FUCHeNBald7aLLE1aTz0LSf6w*3Fsub_confirmation*3D1__*3B!!COIdcu9TKnUF_QTdrw!M_OLlP3nw4NdkCJ7RvGW7cK22w3e9JsRyYH7bcRheXTfN8D6ZqVwLGZhxmTa__k*24&data=05*7C01*7Cpatricia.ramudo*40ibigroup.com*7C5d754a9e93174bf0f0c608da27c3ff21*7C9093f1a387714fb78596d51eeef18cda*7C0*7C0*7C637866020021837202*7CUnknown*7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0*3D*7C3000*7C*7C*7C&sdata=tmq*2Bx95zdBB4*2FVCgdTsLLFMJC9pqPnmW3954t*2BHVRjI*3D&reserved=0__;JSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSU!!L27OxSvrGzUPJKx-75U!_VBll-GRc2Rp0t4EH10KMQswaO7sZepf5wKkYeV1pIqnMYo5M5Qspi0hPc78MelcvUBVnePZv8ud0ZHSVl7pFGRRlTKJw_T5sj8WrMOeANcI0A$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https*3A*2F*2Furldefense.com*2Fv3*2F__https*3A*2Fwww.facebook.com*2Fibigroup__*3B!!COIdcu9TKnUF_QTdrw!M_OLlP3nw4NdkCJ7RvGW7cK22w3e9JsRyYH7bcRheXTfN8D6ZqVwLGZhSdR_aLM*24&data=05*7C01*7Cpatricia.ramudo*40ibigroup.com*7C5d754a9e93174bf0f0c608da27c3ff21*7C9093f1a387714fb78596d51eeef18cda*7C0*7C0*7C637866020021837202*7CUnknown*7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0*3D*7C3000*7C*7C*7C&sdata=J5P1zx4VHLtCE3fZfJZu6rc*2BOu6PlwRGPgt1rRS*2FsU8*3D&reserved=0__;JSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJQ!!L27OxSvrGzUPJKx-75U!_VBll-GRc2Rp0t4EH10KMQswaO7sZepf5wKkYeV1pIqnMYo5M5Qspi0hPc78MelcvUBVnePZv8ud0ZHSVl7pFGRRlTKJw_T5sj8WrMPEHOZDwg$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https*3A*2F*2Furldefense.com*2Fv3*2F__https*3A*2Fwww.ibigroup.com*2F*3Futm_source*3Doutlook*26utm_medium*3Demail*26utm_campaign*3Dibi-esignature__*3B!!COIdcu9TKnUF_QTdrw!M_OLlP3nw4NdkCJ7RvGW7cK22w3e9JsRyYH7bcRheXTfN8D6ZqVwLGZhEVjQbks*24&data=05*7C01*7Cpatricia.ramudo*40ibigroup.com*7C5d754a9e93174bf0f0c608da27c3ff21*7C9093f1a387714fb78596d51eeef18cda*7C0*7C0*7C637866020021837202*7CUnknown*7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0*3D*7C3000*7C*7C*7C&sdata=HzPV*2B7rkwijU0skfInpfjd5zFWteTR0Z7FH5NtlT*2Fvk*3D&reserved=0__;JSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJQ!!L27OxSvrGzUPJKx-75U!_VBll-GRc2Rp0t4EH10KMQswaO7sZepf5wKkYeV1pIqnMYo5M5Qspi0hPc78MelcvUBVnePZv8ud0ZHSVl7pFGRRlTKJw_T5sj8WrMP9r654FQ$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https*3A*2F*2Furldefense.com*2Fv3*2F__https*3A*2Fwww.ibigroup.com*2F*3Futm_source*3Doutlook*26utm_medium*3Demail*26utm_campaign*3Dibi-esignature__*3B!!COIdcu9TKnUF_QTdrw!M_OLlP3nw4NdkCJ7RvGW7cK22w3e9JsRyYH7bcRheXTfN8D6ZqVwLGZhEVjQbks*24&data=05*7C01*7Cpatricia.ramudo*40ibigroup.com*7C5d754a9e93174bf0f0c608da27c3ff21*7C9093f1a387714fb78596d51eeef18cda*7C0*7C0*7C637866020021837202*7CUnknown*7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0*3D*7C3000*7C*7C*7C&sdata=HzPV*2B7rkwijU0skfInpfjd5zFWteTR0Z7FH5NtlT*2Fvk*3D&reserved=0__;JSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJQ!!L27OxSvrGzUPJKx-75U!_VBll-GRc2Rp0t4EH10KMQswaO7sZepf5wKkYeV1pIqnMYo5M5Qspi0hPc78MelcvUBVnePZv8ud0ZHSVl7pFGRRlTKJw_T5sj8WrMP9r654FQ$
mailto:SPucci@pbcgov.org
mailto:patricia.ramudo@ibigroup.com
mailto:patricia.ramudo@ibigroup.com
mailto:SPucci@pbcgov.org
mailto:rihernanp@gmail.com


Thank you for your phone call.  The Affidavit was delivered by Fedex this morning but is herein
attached.
 
We appreciate your assistance.  Please let me know if you need any other documents or
information.
 
Patricia Ramudo PE, LEED AP
 
Associate
 
IBI GROUP
1100 Park Central Boulevard South - Suite 3500
Pompano Beach FL  33064-2214  United States
tel +1 954 974 2200 ext 52120  fax +1 954 973 2686
 

[linkedin.com] [can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com]  [twitter.com]

[can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com]  [instagram.com]

[can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com]  [youtube.com]

[can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com]  [facebook.com]
[can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com]
 

[ibigroup.com] [can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com]
 
NOTE: This email message/attachments may contain privileged and confidential information. If received in error, please notify the sender and delete this e-mail message.

 

Under Florida law, e-mail addresses are public records. If you do not want your e-mail address released
in response to a public records request, do not send electronic mail to this entity. Instead, contact this
office by phone or in writing.

https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https*3A*2F*2Furldefense.com*2Fv3*2F__https*3A*2Fcan01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com*2F*3Furl*3Dhttps*3A*2F*2Furldefense.com*2Fv3*2F__https*3A*2Fwww.linkedin.com*2Fcompany*2Fibi-group_2__*3B!!COIdcu9TKnUF_QTdrw!PImCqQq6aGmdrfpvVCSRt5AxNQTiCLwvsWjjzFy5-cxN9xa8e5J0SKeCiC6ZuqU*24*26data*3D05*7C01*7Cpatricia.ramudo*40ibigroup.com*7C969e5cc7f59b4e93e9b108da27c2c0b2*7C9093f1a387714fb78596d51eeef18cda*7C0*7C0*7C637866014682851938*7CUnknown*7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0*3D*7C3000*7C*7C*7C*26sdata*3DespSr7THtk6KtCCIStKST7odrzZqKq578Ih8HtHOIlI*3D*26reserved*3D0__*3BJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUl!!COIdcu9TKnUF_QTdrw!M_OLlP3nw4NdkCJ7RvGW7cK22w3e9JsRyYH7bcRheXTfN8D6ZqVwLGZhCrcFsA4*24&data=05*7C01*7Cpatricia.ramudo*40ibigroup.com*7C5d754a9e93174bf0f0c608da27c3ff21*7C9093f1a387714fb78596d51eeef18cda*7C0*7C0*7C637866020021837202*7CUnknown*7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0*3D*7C3000*7C*7C*7C&sdata=3LjzyTXVUXKFvxY9REkWcd6vre*2BXi6ei1WCRxumDxoU*3D&reserved=0__;JSUlJSUlJSUlJSoqKioqKioqKioqJSUqKioqKioqKioqKioqKiolJSolJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSU!!L27OxSvrGzUPJKx-75U!_VBll-GRc2Rp0t4EH10KMQswaO7sZepf5wKkYeV1pIqnMYo5M5Qspi0hPc78MelcvUBVnePZv8ud0ZHSVl7pFGRRlTKJw_T5sj8WrMOL-7CrQw$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https*3A*2F*2Furldefense.com*2Fv3*2F__https*3A*2Fcan01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com*2F*3Furl*3Dhttps*3A*2F*2Furldefense.com*2Fv3*2F__https*3A*2Ftwitter.com*2Fibigroup__*3B!!COIdcu9TKnUF_QTdrw!PImCqQq6aGmdrfpvVCSRt5AxNQTiCLwvsWjjzFy5-cxN9xa8e5J0SKeCFqlylmU*24*26data*3D05*7C01*7Cpatricia.ramudo*40ibigroup.com*7C969e5cc7f59b4e93e9b108da27c2c0b2*7C9093f1a387714fb78596d51eeef18cda*7C0*7C0*7C637866014682851938*7CUnknown*7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0*3D*7C3000*7C*7C*7C*26sdata*3DZE6gTfe6qWlyh*2BErGRBgUL4qfTf7IVxEtc9jPFNibHo*3D*26reserved*3D0__*3BJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUl!!COIdcu9TKnUF_QTdrw!M_OLlP3nw4NdkCJ7RvGW7cK22w3e9JsRyYH7bcRheXTfN8D6ZqVwLGZhoX8E6UA*24&data=05*7C01*7Cpatricia.ramudo*40ibigroup.com*7C5d754a9e93174bf0f0c608da27c3ff21*7C9093f1a387714fb78596d51eeef18cda*7C0*7C0*7C637866020021993419*7CUnknown*7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0*3D*7C3000*7C*7C*7C&sdata=PKwgCm7L20j9CwSHnwHOPHANbQyFP5mNVmhYWlVExJw*3D&reserved=0__;JSUlJSUlJSUlJSoqKioqKioqKiolJSoqKioqKioqKioqKioqKiUlKiolJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJQ!!L27OxSvrGzUPJKx-75U!_VBll-GRc2Rp0t4EH10KMQswaO7sZepf5wKkYeV1pIqnMYo5M5Qspi0hPc78MelcvUBVnePZv8ud0ZHSVl7pFGRRlTKJw_T5sj8WrMMt5vucPg$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https*3A*2F*2Furldefense.com*2Fv3*2F__https*3A*2Fcan01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com*2F*3Furl*3Dhttps*3A*2F*2Furldefense.com*2Fv3*2F__https*3A*2Ftwitter.com*2Fibigroup__*3B!!COIdcu9TKnUF_QTdrw!PImCqQq6aGmdrfpvVCSRt5AxNQTiCLwvsWjjzFy5-cxN9xa8e5J0SKeCFqlylmU*24*26data*3D05*7C01*7Cpatricia.ramudo*40ibigroup.com*7C969e5cc7f59b4e93e9b108da27c2c0b2*7C9093f1a387714fb78596d51eeef18cda*7C0*7C0*7C637866014682851938*7CUnknown*7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0*3D*7C3000*7C*7C*7C*26sdata*3DZE6gTfe6qWlyh*2BErGRBgUL4qfTf7IVxEtc9jPFNibHo*3D*26reserved*3D0__*3BJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUl!!COIdcu9TKnUF_QTdrw!M_OLlP3nw4NdkCJ7RvGW7cK22w3e9JsRyYH7bcRheXTfN8D6ZqVwLGZhoX8E6UA*24&data=05*7C01*7Cpatricia.ramudo*40ibigroup.com*7C5d754a9e93174bf0f0c608da27c3ff21*7C9093f1a387714fb78596d51eeef18cda*7C0*7C0*7C637866020021993419*7CUnknown*7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0*3D*7C3000*7C*7C*7C&sdata=PKwgCm7L20j9CwSHnwHOPHANbQyFP5mNVmhYWlVExJw*3D&reserved=0__;JSUlJSUlJSUlJSoqKioqKioqKiolJSoqKioqKioqKioqKioqKiUlKiolJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJQ!!L27OxSvrGzUPJKx-75U!_VBll-GRc2Rp0t4EH10KMQswaO7sZepf5wKkYeV1pIqnMYo5M5Qspi0hPc78MelcvUBVnePZv8ud0ZHSVl7pFGRRlTKJw_T5sj8WrMMt5vucPg$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https*3A*2F*2Furldefense.com*2Fv3*2F__https*3A*2Fcan01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com*2F*3Furl*3Dhttps*3A*2F*2Furldefense.com*2Fv3*2F__https*3A*2Finstagram.com*2Fibi_group*2F__*3B!!COIdcu9TKnUF_QTdrw!PImCqQq6aGmdrfpvVCSRt5AxNQTiCLwvsWjjzFy5-cxN9xa8e5J0SKeCbpBNCZk*24*26data*3D05*7C01*7Cpatricia.ramudo*40ibigroup.com*7C969e5cc7f59b4e93e9b108da27c2c0b2*7C9093f1a387714fb78596d51eeef18cda*7C0*7C0*7C637866014682851938*7CUnknown*7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0*3D*7C3000*7C*7C*7C*26sdata*3DIKQZlI60FfrUEiwor2K6arQDmofQpHHUhSivLVXEzB8*3D*26reserved*3D0__*3BJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUl!!COIdcu9TKnUF_QTdrw!M_OLlP3nw4NdkCJ7RvGW7cK22w3e9JsRyYH7bcRheXTfN8D6ZqVwLGZhfquTeBY*24&data=05*7C01*7Cpatricia.ramudo*40ibigroup.com*7C5d754a9e93174bf0f0c608da27c3ff21*7C9093f1a387714fb78596d51eeef18cda*7C0*7C0*7C637866020021993419*7CUnknown*7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0*3D*7C3000*7C*7C*7C&sdata=alIrf2r*2FRzVfPyyERlexUPbgUVGUhi9kSrpoOfTD9Jg*3D&reserved=0__;JSUlJSUlJSUlJSoqKioqKioqKioqJSUqKioqKioqKioqKioqKiolJSolJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSU!!L27OxSvrGzUPJKx-75U!_VBll-GRc2Rp0t4EH10KMQswaO7sZepf5wKkYeV1pIqnMYo5M5Qspi0hPc78MelcvUBVnePZv8ud0ZHSVl7pFGRRlTKJw_T5sj8WrMPv3D_YzA$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https*3A*2F*2Furldefense.com*2Fv3*2F__https*3A*2Fcan01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com*2F*3Furl*3Dhttps*3A*2F*2Furldefense.com*2Fv3*2F__https*3A*2Finstagram.com*2Fibi_group*2F__*3B!!COIdcu9TKnUF_QTdrw!PImCqQq6aGmdrfpvVCSRt5AxNQTiCLwvsWjjzFy5-cxN9xa8e5J0SKeCbpBNCZk*24*26data*3D05*7C01*7Cpatricia.ramudo*40ibigroup.com*7C969e5cc7f59b4e93e9b108da27c2c0b2*7C9093f1a387714fb78596d51eeef18cda*7C0*7C0*7C637866014682851938*7CUnknown*7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0*3D*7C3000*7C*7C*7C*26sdata*3DIKQZlI60FfrUEiwor2K6arQDmofQpHHUhSivLVXEzB8*3D*26reserved*3D0__*3BJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUl!!COIdcu9TKnUF_QTdrw!M_OLlP3nw4NdkCJ7RvGW7cK22w3e9JsRyYH7bcRheXTfN8D6ZqVwLGZhfquTeBY*24&data=05*7C01*7Cpatricia.ramudo*40ibigroup.com*7C5d754a9e93174bf0f0c608da27c3ff21*7C9093f1a387714fb78596d51eeef18cda*7C0*7C0*7C637866020021993419*7CUnknown*7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0*3D*7C3000*7C*7C*7C&sdata=alIrf2r*2FRzVfPyyERlexUPbgUVGUhi9kSrpoOfTD9Jg*3D&reserved=0__;JSUlJSUlJSUlJSoqKioqKioqKioqJSUqKioqKioqKioqKioqKiolJSolJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSU!!L27OxSvrGzUPJKx-75U!_VBll-GRc2Rp0t4EH10KMQswaO7sZepf5wKkYeV1pIqnMYo5M5Qspi0hPc78MelcvUBVnePZv8ud0ZHSVl7pFGRRlTKJw_T5sj8WrMPv3D_YzA$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https*3A*2F*2Furldefense.com*2Fv3*2F__https*3A*2Fcan01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com*2F*3Furl*3Dhttps*3A*2F*2Furldefense.com*2Fv3*2F__https*3A*2Fwww.youtube.com*2Fchannel*2FUCHeNBald7aLLE1aTz0LSf6w*3Fsub_confirmation*3D1__*3B!!COIdcu9TKnUF_QTdrw!PImCqQq6aGmdrfpvVCSRt5AxNQTiCLwvsWjjzFy5-cxN9xa8e5J0SKeC0mxq0hI*24*26data*3D05*7C01*7Cpatricia.ramudo*40ibigroup.com*7C969e5cc7f59b4e93e9b108da27c2c0b2*7C9093f1a387714fb78596d51eeef18cda*7C0*7C0*7C637866014682851938*7CUnknown*7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0*3D*7C3000*7C*7C*7C*26sdata*3DBQILQPRYBREwIgszYfCsfJDSmiUKP3VYIFdMuHpSLi8*3D*26reserved*3D0__*3BJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSU!!COIdcu9TKnUF_QTdrw!M_OLlP3nw4NdkCJ7RvGW7cK22w3e9JsRyYH7bcRheXTfN8D6ZqVwLGZhOzSSDcU*24&data=05*7C01*7Cpatricia.ramudo*40ibigroup.com*7C5d754a9e93174bf0f0c608da27c3ff21*7C9093f1a387714fb78596d51eeef18cda*7C0*7C0*7C637866020021993419*7CUnknown*7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0*3D*7C3000*7C*7C*7C&sdata=2ydG4uUumLcOkChfr2n3t0flAg8Fi55QIzS3U4l1unA*3D&reserved=0__;JSUlJSUlJSUlJSoqKioqKioqKioqKiolJSoqKioqKioqKioqKioqKiUlKiUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUl!!L27OxSvrGzUPJKx-75U!_VBll-GRc2Rp0t4EH10KMQswaO7sZepf5wKkYeV1pIqnMYo5M5Qspi0hPc78MelcvUBVnePZv8ud0ZHSVl7pFGRRlTKJw_T5sj8WrMN138_VUQ$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https*3A*2F*2Furldefense.com*2Fv3*2F__https*3A*2Fcan01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com*2F*3Furl*3Dhttps*3A*2F*2Furldefense.com*2Fv3*2F__https*3A*2Fwww.youtube.com*2Fchannel*2FUCHeNBald7aLLE1aTz0LSf6w*3Fsub_confirmation*3D1__*3B!!COIdcu9TKnUF_QTdrw!PImCqQq6aGmdrfpvVCSRt5AxNQTiCLwvsWjjzFy5-cxN9xa8e5J0SKeC0mxq0hI*24*26data*3D05*7C01*7Cpatricia.ramudo*40ibigroup.com*7C969e5cc7f59b4e93e9b108da27c2c0b2*7C9093f1a387714fb78596d51eeef18cda*7C0*7C0*7C637866014682851938*7CUnknown*7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0*3D*7C3000*7C*7C*7C*26sdata*3DBQILQPRYBREwIgszYfCsfJDSmiUKP3VYIFdMuHpSLi8*3D*26reserved*3D0__*3BJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSU!!COIdcu9TKnUF_QTdrw!M_OLlP3nw4NdkCJ7RvGW7cK22w3e9JsRyYH7bcRheXTfN8D6ZqVwLGZhOzSSDcU*24&data=05*7C01*7Cpatricia.ramudo*40ibigroup.com*7C5d754a9e93174bf0f0c608da27c3ff21*7C9093f1a387714fb78596d51eeef18cda*7C0*7C0*7C637866020021993419*7CUnknown*7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0*3D*7C3000*7C*7C*7C&sdata=2ydG4uUumLcOkChfr2n3t0flAg8Fi55QIzS3U4l1unA*3D&reserved=0__;JSUlJSUlJSUlJSoqKioqKioqKioqKiolJSoqKioqKioqKioqKioqKiUlKiUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUl!!L27OxSvrGzUPJKx-75U!_VBll-GRc2Rp0t4EH10KMQswaO7sZepf5wKkYeV1pIqnMYo5M5Qspi0hPc78MelcvUBVnePZv8ud0ZHSVl7pFGRRlTKJw_T5sj8WrMN138_VUQ$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https*3A*2F*2Furldefense.com*2Fv3*2F__https*3A*2Fcan01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com*2F*3Furl*3Dhttps*3A*2F*2Furldefense.com*2Fv3*2F__https*3A*2Fwww.facebook.com*2Fibigroup__*3B!!COIdcu9TKnUF_QTdrw!PImCqQq6aGmdrfpvVCSRt5AxNQTiCLwvsWjjzFy5-cxN9xa8e5J0SKeC_5vFcR8*24*26data*3D05*7C01*7Cpatricia.ramudo*40ibigroup.com*7C969e5cc7f59b4e93e9b108da27c2c0b2*7C9093f1a387714fb78596d51eeef18cda*7C0*7C0*7C637866014682851938*7CUnknown*7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0*3D*7C3000*7C*7C*7C*26sdata*3DDiUDS0QGC6vlB7FJrkupXrHgEv8Ianf0oLxZgT5tbNk*3D*26reserved*3D0__*3BJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSU!!COIdcu9TKnUF_QTdrw!M_OLlP3nw4NdkCJ7RvGW7cK22w3e9JsRyYH7bcRheXTfN8D6ZqVwLGZhUuEsISI*24&data=05*7C01*7Cpatricia.ramudo*40ibigroup.com*7C5d754a9e93174bf0f0c608da27c3ff21*7C9093f1a387714fb78596d51eeef18cda*7C0*7C0*7C637866020021993419*7CUnknown*7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0*3D*7C3000*7C*7C*7C&sdata=xh9pmPkibZPR7q4j7pfWdHGrYU0DSS*2FrjrXsBFwvnJU*3D&reserved=0__;JSUlJSUlJSUlJSoqKioqKioqKiolJSoqKioqKioqKioqKioqKiUlKiUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJQ!!L27OxSvrGzUPJKx-75U!_VBll-GRc2Rp0t4EH10KMQswaO7sZepf5wKkYeV1pIqnMYo5M5Qspi0hPc78MelcvUBVnePZv8ud0ZHSVl7pFGRRlTKJw_T5sj8WrMNXTrcAiQ$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https*3A*2F*2Furldefense.com*2Fv3*2F__https*3A*2Fcan01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com*2F*3Furl*3Dhttps*3A*2F*2Furldefense.com*2Fv3*2F__https*3A*2Fwww.facebook.com*2Fibigroup__*3B!!COIdcu9TKnUF_QTdrw!PImCqQq6aGmdrfpvVCSRt5AxNQTiCLwvsWjjzFy5-cxN9xa8e5J0SKeC_5vFcR8*24*26data*3D05*7C01*7Cpatricia.ramudo*40ibigroup.com*7C969e5cc7f59b4e93e9b108da27c2c0b2*7C9093f1a387714fb78596d51eeef18cda*7C0*7C0*7C637866014682851938*7CUnknown*7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0*3D*7C3000*7C*7C*7C*26sdata*3DDiUDS0QGC6vlB7FJrkupXrHgEv8Ianf0oLxZgT5tbNk*3D*26reserved*3D0__*3BJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSU!!COIdcu9TKnUF_QTdrw!M_OLlP3nw4NdkCJ7RvGW7cK22w3e9JsRyYH7bcRheXTfN8D6ZqVwLGZhUuEsISI*24&data=05*7C01*7Cpatricia.ramudo*40ibigroup.com*7C5d754a9e93174bf0f0c608da27c3ff21*7C9093f1a387714fb78596d51eeef18cda*7C0*7C0*7C637866020021993419*7CUnknown*7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0*3D*7C3000*7C*7C*7C&sdata=xh9pmPkibZPR7q4j7pfWdHGrYU0DSS*2FrjrXsBFwvnJU*3D&reserved=0__;JSUlJSUlJSUlJSoqKioqKioqKiolJSoqKioqKioqKioqKioqKiUlKiUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJQ!!L27OxSvrGzUPJKx-75U!_VBll-GRc2Rp0t4EH10KMQswaO7sZepf5wKkYeV1pIqnMYo5M5Qspi0hPc78MelcvUBVnePZv8ud0ZHSVl7pFGRRlTKJw_T5sj8WrMNXTrcAiQ$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https*3A*2F*2Furldefense.com*2Fv3*2F__https*3A*2Fcan01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com*2F*3Furl*3Dhttps*3A*2F*2Furldefense.com*2Fv3*2F__https*3A*2Fwww.ibigroup.com*2F*3Futm_source*3Doutlook*26utm_medium*3Demail*26utm_campaign*3Dibi-esignature__*3B!!COIdcu9TKnUF_QTdrw!PImCqQq6aGmdrfpvVCSRt5AxNQTiCLwvsWjjzFy5-cxN9xa8e5J0SKeCIgiPMSk*24*26data*3D05*7C01*7Cpatricia.ramudo*40ibigroup.com*7C969e5cc7f59b4e93e9b108da27c2c0b2*7C9093f1a387714fb78596d51eeef18cda*7C0*7C0*7C637866014682851938*7CUnknown*7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0*3D*7C3000*7C*7C*7C*26sdata*3D7rgxjwS1XKiR6EludYib6SyV7TdgDZM9h7lIoTA0iaY*3D*26reserved*3D0__*3BJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSU!!COIdcu9TKnUF_QTdrw!M_OLlP3nw4NdkCJ7RvGW7cK22w3e9JsRyYH7bcRheXTfN8D6ZqVwLGZh8N711Yc*24&data=05*7C01*7Cpatricia.ramudo*40ibigroup.com*7C5d754a9e93174bf0f0c608da27c3ff21*7C9093f1a387714fb78596d51eeef18cda*7C0*7C0*7C637866020021993419*7CUnknown*7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0*3D*7C3000*7C*7C*7C&sdata=joRqzsUG4nWkXJ*2Fyoxst1ol88eqIqjL0Pr9Dupncekc*3D&reserved=0__;JSUlJSUlJSUlJSoqKioqKioqKioqKioqKiolJSoqKioqKioqKioqKioqKiUlKiUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJQ!!L27OxSvrGzUPJKx-75U!_VBll-GRc2Rp0t4EH10KMQswaO7sZepf5wKkYeV1pIqnMYo5M5Qspi0hPc78MelcvUBVnePZv8ud0ZHSVl7pFGRRlTKJw_T5sj8WrMPyoAfScw$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https*3A*2F*2Furldefense.com*2Fv3*2F__https*3A*2Fcan01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com*2F*3Furl*3Dhttps*3A*2F*2Furldefense.com*2Fv3*2F__https*3A*2Fwww.ibigroup.com*2F*3Futm_source*3Doutlook*26utm_medium*3Demail*26utm_campaign*3Dibi-esignature__*3B!!COIdcu9TKnUF_QTdrw!PImCqQq6aGmdrfpvVCSRt5AxNQTiCLwvsWjjzFy5-cxN9xa8e5J0SKeCIgiPMSk*24*26data*3D05*7C01*7Cpatricia.ramudo*40ibigroup.com*7C969e5cc7f59b4e93e9b108da27c2c0b2*7C9093f1a387714fb78596d51eeef18cda*7C0*7C0*7C637866014682851938*7CUnknown*7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0*3D*7C3000*7C*7C*7C*26sdata*3D7rgxjwS1XKiR6EludYib6SyV7TdgDZM9h7lIoTA0iaY*3D*26reserved*3D0__*3BJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSU!!COIdcu9TKnUF_QTdrw!M_OLlP3nw4NdkCJ7RvGW7cK22w3e9JsRyYH7bcRheXTfN8D6ZqVwLGZh8N711Yc*24&data=05*7C01*7Cpatricia.ramudo*40ibigroup.com*7C5d754a9e93174bf0f0c608da27c3ff21*7C9093f1a387714fb78596d51eeef18cda*7C0*7C0*7C637866020021993419*7CUnknown*7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0*3D*7C3000*7C*7C*7C&sdata=joRqzsUG4nWkXJ*2Fyoxst1ol88eqIqjL0Pr9Dupncekc*3D&reserved=0__;JSUlJSUlJSUlJSoqKioqKioqKioqKioqKiolJSoqKioqKioqKioqKioqKiUlKiUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJSUlJQ!!L27OxSvrGzUPJKx-75U!_VBll-GRc2Rp0t4EH10KMQswaO7sZepf5wKkYeV1pIqnMYo5M5Qspi0hPc78MelcvUBVnePZv8ud0ZHSVl7pFGRRlTKJw_T5sj8WrMPyoAfScw$


 

  

PREPARED BY: IBI GROUP DATE: 2022-04-05

FILE 137767

SFWMD SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT LICENSE 

DRAINAGE CALCULATIONS

FOR

LAKE WORTH STATION

AT

LAKE WORTH BEACH, FL



SFWMD SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT CALCULATIONS
PROJECT NAME:  LAKE WORTH STATION
PROJECT NO: 137767
DATE: 2022-04-05

Patricia F. Ramudo, PE, LEED AP

FL Reg. No. 35798

PROJECT NARRATIVE:

1. PROPOSED PROJECT LAND USE

TOTAL AREA AREA

(ACRES) (ACRES) % (ACRES) % (ACRES) %

1.084 0.32 29.33 0.41 37.89 0.355 32.78

1.084 0.32 29.33 0.41 37.89 0.355 32.78

Total Site Summary:  

Site area (ac) 1.084 100%
Building area (ac) 0.318 29%
Impervious area (ac) 0.355 33%
Pervious area (ac) 0.411 38% 1.08

2. FLOOD AND RAINFALL CRITERIA

3 year, 1 Hour ** 2.60 inches City of LW req.
5 year, 1 day storm * 7.00 inches Parking
25 year, 3 day storm * 12.30 inches Perimeter
100 year, 3 day storm * 16.20 inches Finish Floor Elevation

* SFWMD - Rainfall Maps
** FDOT IDF CURVE - ZONE 10

3. COMPUTE SOIL STORAGE
Pre- Post-

Control elevation ** 4.50 4.50  'NAVD Palm Beach County Water Table Map

Estimated Seasonal HWT Elevation 5.80 5.80  'NAVD TSF Geotech Report (03/11/2022)

Average site elevation 14.40 15.25  'NAVD Topographic Survey and PGD

Depth to water table 8.60 9.45 ft.

Pre Post
Available ground storage - 25% compaction 8.18 8.18 inches
Pervious Area within the site area 1.08 0.41 acres Open area + Pervious Concrete
Soils Storage S per SFWMD criteria 8.18 3.10 inches

The project is located at 930 N G Street, Lake Worth Beach, FL / Parcel # 38-43-44-21-15-274-0080. The proposed mixed-use project includes the 
construction of a residential building, surface parking and site amenities. Additionally the site will include water & sewer, stormwater facilities, and 
sidewalk infrastructure. The South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD) requirements include analysis of the 5 Year -1 Day, 25 Year - 3 
Day, 100 Year - 3 Day storm events for lower parking inlet elevation, berm and discharge rates, and finished floor elevations respectively. 
Furthermore, the City of Lake Worth requires the 3 Year - 1 Hour storm event be evaluated and fully retained on-site (Code of Ordinance Sec. 18-
103.). According to the Eastern Palm Beach County map included in this report, the control water table is estimated at 4.50 ft NAVD. However, the 
geotechnical report from TSFGEO shows the water table encountered during testing is found at elevations approximately 8-9.5 feet below ground 
surface, March 9th, 2022. Based on average site grade of 13.8, in the vicinity of the exfiltration tests, we established the water table at elevation 
5.8 ft NAVD for a much more conservative approach. The drainage system features exifiltration trench to meet the water quality and water quantity 
requirements. A control structure featuring a 6" inverted triangle orifice will discharge offsite to the City storm system.  The summary table below 
provides the final pre- vs post elevations and discharge rates for all the aforementioned stormevents.

IMPERVIOUS AREABUILDING AREA PERVIOUS AREA



4. WATER QUALITY REQUIREMENTS

1) Based on the first 1" of runoff over total site
Site area 1.08 acres
Required retention 1.08 acre-in

0.09 ac-ft

2) Based on 2.5 inches times percent impervious 
a) Site area (Total Project -(Building+Lake) 0.77 acres 
b) Impervious area (Site area - pervious) 0.36 acres 
c) Percent impervious 46.39%
d) Inches to be treated (2.5" x % impervious) 1.16
e) Req Volume (inches to be treated x(Total site -Lake) 1.26 acre-in
    Required Volume 0.10 ac-ft

The required Water Quality Volume to be treated is : 0.10 ac-ft

If this is a project on commercial zoned land, 0.5 in. of dry retention/detention must be provided.

3) Compute pretreatment volume based on 1/2" inches of runoff
Total site - Lake 1.08 acres
Required pretreatment based on 1/2" 0.54 acre-in

0.05 acre-ft

5. PROVIDED WATER QUALITY

a) Proposed exfiltration trenches (refer to next page)

Required (AF) Provided (AF) Check Storage Stage Met
Proposed Exfiltration Trenches 0.50

Total Dry Water Quality 0.10 0.50 PASS 11.15

Pretreatment Volume 0.05 0.50 PASS

6. WATER QUANTITY CRITERIA

Compute Runoff 3 Yr Storm

Rainfall (P) 2.60 in

Runoff (Q) 0.77 in

Runoff Volume ( 0.07 ac‐ft V=Q*A/12

Fully retained on site at EL 8.38' (Refer to Stage Storage Table)



Volume Provided in Exfiltration Trenches

Exfiltration Trench Calculations 

L = V/(K(H2*W +2H2*Du- Du^2 + 2*H2*Ds) + (1.39X10^-4)*W*Du)

V=L*(K(H2*W +2H2*Du- Du^2 + 2*H2*Ds) + (1.39X10^-4)*W*Du)

Design Information:

W = Trench Width: 10 ft

K = Hydraulic Conductivity: 6.92E-05 cfs*sq ft-ft head (average of 2 field tests)

H2 = Depth to Water Table: 9.00 ft

Du = Non-Saturated Trench Depth: 8.00 ft

Ds = Saturated Trench Depth: 0.00 ft

L= Length provided 260 ft

Provided Storage in Exfiltration Trenches = 5.950 ac-in 0.496 ac-ft

15 ft NAVD - Lowest Inlet Elevation at Exfil trench

Limerock base and asphalt depth = 0.75'

14 ft NAVD - Top of Trench

1.5 ft, Diameter of Perforated Pipe

10.50 ft NAVD - Invert of Perforated HDPE

6.00 ft NAVD - Bottom of Trench Elevation

5.80 ft NAVD - High water Table Elevation

Discharge Caculations at 25 year Storm event Control Structure

Pre‐development discharge 

C A C x A C (w avg)

Open 0.3 1.084 0.325 Orifice INV = 12.0'NAVD

Impervious 0.95 0.000 0.000

Total 1.084 0.30

Q=CIA 2.77 cfs   18" Pipe INV = 11.5' 'NAVD

I = 8.5 in/hr *

*(FDOT IDF Curve ‐ Zone 10)

Post‐development discharge to 17th Ave

Q  0.82 < 2.77 csf Passed

Refer to Cascade Analysis for 25 Year ‐ 3 Day storm event

Flood Routing Summary REFER TO CASCADE ROUTINGS

Storm Event Pre Post Comment
3 year - 1 Hour 13.26 9.09 ft' NAVD fully retained on-site

5 Year - 1 day 14.37 14.04 ft' NAVD Min Inlet El = 15.00

25 Year - 3 day 14.86 14.37 ft' NAVD Min Perimeter El = 14.50

100 year - 3 day 15.16 15.95 ft' NAVD Min FFE 16.50

Proposed Site Discharge is via a 6" 

inverted triange orifice at EL 12.00 

ft NAVD



IBI GROUP (FL) INC

.
Grading Criteria

Description Acreage Low EL ('NAVD) High EL. ('NAVD)
ac. ft ft

A Building 0.000 0 0
B Pervious/Landscpae 1.084 13.70 15.10
C Parking-Impervious 0.000 0.00 0.00

Stage Storage

Stage Site Storage Retention Storage Total Storage Note: Datum Conversion
 'NAVD ac-ft ac-ft ac-ft
13.00 0.00 0 0.00  'NGVD - 1.5'75 = 'NAVD
14.00 0.03 0 0.03
14.50 0.25 0 0.25
15.00 0.65 0 0.65
15.50 1.19 0 1.19
16.00 1.73 0 1.73

Stage Storage Curve Table

Deco Green - Pre- Development Storage Analysis

13.00

13.50

14.00

14.50

15.00

15.50

16.00

16.50

0.03 0.25 0.65 1.19 1.73

ST
A
G
E 
('
N
A
V
D
)

STORAGE (AC‐FT)



Grading Criteria

Description Acreage Low EL ('NAVD) High EL. ('NAVD)
ac. ft ft

A Building 0.318 0.00 0.00
B Parking-Impervious 0.355 15.00 16.00
C Pervious/Landscape 0.411 14.50 15.75

D Pervious Concrete 0.503 15.00 16.00 pro-rate storage in subsurface pervious concrete
see perv conc analysis, volume stored =6569 cf = 0.151 af
Volume Stored = 6569 0.151

E Exfiltration Trench 7.00 15.00 Volume Stored = 0.496 acre-feet

Stage Storage

Stage Site Storage Trench Storage Perv Conc Total Storage
 'NAVD ac-ft ac-ft ac-ft ac-ft

6.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000
8.00 0.00 0.000 0.000 0.000 Note: Datum Conversion

10.00 0.00 0.124 0.000 0.124  'NGVD - 1.5' = 'NAVD
12.00 0.00 0.248 0.000 0.248
14.00 0.00 0.372 0.000 0.372
15.00 0.04 0.434 0.151 0.625
15.50 0.21 0.465 0.151 0.826
16.00 0.54 0.496 0.151 1.187
16.50 0.92 0.496 0.151 1.567
17.00 1.30 0.496 0.151 1.947

Deco Green- Post-Development Storage Analysis

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

14.00

16.00

18.00

0.000 0.000 0.124 0.248 0.372 0.625 0.826 1.187 1.567 1.947

ST
A
G
E 
('
N
A
V
D
)

STORAGE (AC‐FT)

Post‐Development Stage Storage Curve























































EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE:  September 20, 2022 DEPARTMENT:  City Attorney 

TITLE: 

Ordinance No. 19-2022 – First Reading - Adopting amendments to Chapter 7 “Beaches, Parks 
and Recreation” to prohibit smoking and vaping in City parks and on the City’s beach 

 
SUMMARY: 

The proposed Ordinance will amend Chapter 7 “Beaches, Parks and Recreation,” Article I 
“Parks, Recreational Facilities and Public Property” and Article VI “Municipal Beach Area and 
Municipal Beach” to prohibit smoking and vaping in city parks and on the beach and to provide 
for enforcement of the same.  

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 
 

The State legislature preempted the regulation of smoking to the State under section 386.209, 
Florida Statutes, which prohibited municipalities from regulating smoking.  However, effective 
July 1, 2022, section 386.209 was amended to allow municipalities to restrict smoking and 
vaping within the boundaries of public beaches and public parks owned by such municipalities, 
except that they may not restrict the smoking of unfiltered cigars.  Based upon the documented 
health problems caused by secondhand smoke and aerosol (vaping), the City wishes to adopt 
an ordinance that will prohibit smoking and vaping within its City parks and on its beach.  The 
ordinance also provides for enforcement of these regulations by the Palm Beach County 
Sheriff’s Office through the City’s civil citation process set forth in Chapter 2, Article X of the 
Code. 
 

The Ordinance was continued from the September 6, 2022 commission meeting. 
 

MOTION: 

Move to approve / disapprove Ordinance No. 19-2022 on first reading and set the second 
reading and public hearing for October 6, 2022.  

  

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

Ordinance 19-2022 



2022-19 1 
 2 

 3 

ORDINANCE 2022-19 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKE 4 
WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 7 “BEACHES, 5 
PARKS AND RECREATION,” ARTICLE I “PARKS, RECREATIONAL 6 
FACILITIES AND PUBLIC PROPERTY,” SECTION 7-9 “REGULATION 7 
OF CONDUCT IN PARKS AND RECREATION AREAS AND ON PUBLIC 8 

PROPERTY” BY CREATING A NEW SUBSECTION (K) TO BE 9 
ENTITLED “SMOKING AND VAPING” TO PROHIBIT SMOKING AND 10 
VAPING IN CITY PARKS AND PROVIDING FOR ENFORCEMENT; AND 11 
ARTICLE VI “MUNICIPAL BEACH AREA AND MUNICIPAL BEACH,” 12 
SECTION 7-80 “ADDITIONAL REGULATIONS APPLYING TO THE 13 

MUNICIPAL BEACH AREA,” BY CREATING A NEW SUBSECTION (Z) 14 
TO BE ENTITLED “SMOKING AND VAPING” TO BAN SMOKING AND 15 

VAPING ON CITY BEACH AND TO PROVIDE FOR ENFORCEMENT; 16 
AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, CODIFICATION 17 

AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 18 
 19 

 20 
WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the “City”) is a duly constituted 21 

municipality having such home rule power and authority conferred upon it by the Florida 22 

Constitution and Chapter 166, Florida Statutes; and 23 
 24 

WHEREAS, under section 386.209, Florida Statutes, the State legislature 25 

preempted the regulation of smoking to the State which prohibited municipalities and 26 

counties from regulating smoking within local parks and beaches; and  27 
 28 

WHEREAS, effective July 1, 2022, the Florida legislature amended section 29 
386.209, Florida Statutes, to allow municipalities to restrict smoking within the boundaries 30 
of public beaches and public parks that are owned by such municipalities, except that 31 

they may not restrict the smoking of unfiltered cigars; and 32 

 33 
WHEREAS, as noted in the reports cited in the staff analysis for HB 105 (2022) 34 

which amended section 386.209, Florida Statutes (and which are incorporated herein by 35 
reference), secondhand smoke can cause numerous health problems and has been 36 
causally linked to cancer and other fatal diseases; and 37 

 38 
WHEREAS, various articles have reported that electronic smoking devices emit 39 

secondhand aerosol which contain nicotine, ultrafine particles and low levels of toxins 40 
that are known to cause cancer; and 41 

 42 
WHEREAS, further, the Ocean Conservancy, Inc. has also reported that cigarette 43 

butts are the number one littered item on beaches and that cigarette butts are also a 44 

major part of plastic pollution because they are made of tightly packed plastic fibers that 45 
erode into smaller bits, which accumulate in fish and other organisms and not only 46 



Pg. 2, Ord. 2022-19 

 

impacts animal health and reproductivity, but also human health when people consume 47 
sick fish; and  48 

 49 

WHEREAS, the City Commission finds that the harmful impact of cigarette butts, 50 
secondhand smoke and secondhand aerosol at the City’s beaches and parks are 51 
detrimental to beach and park users and should be banned to the greatest extend allowed 52 
by law; and 53 

 54 

WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the “City”), is a duly constituted 55 
municipality having such power and authority conferred upon it by the Florida Constitution 56 
and Chapter 166, Florida Statutes; and 57 

 58 
WHEREAS, the City Commission finds and declares that the adoption of this 59 

ordinance is appropriate, and in the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of the 60 
City, its residents and visitors. 61 

 62 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 63 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 64 
 65 

Section 1: The foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are incorporated into this 66 
Ordinance as true and correct findings of the City Commission, without limitation, the 67 
reports cited in the staff analysis for Florida HB 105 (2022) which amended section 68 

386.209, Florida Statutes.  69 
 70 

Section 2: Chapter 7 “Beaches, Parks and Recreation,” Article I “Parks, 71 

Recreational Facilities and Public Property,” Section 7-9 “Regulation of conduct in parks 72 

and recreation areas and on public property” is hereby amended by adding thereto a new 73 
subsection (k) to read as follows: 74 

  75 
Sec. 7-9. – Regulation of conduct in parks and recreation areas and on public 76 
property. 77 

  In addition to the regulations contained in sections 7-1 through 7-7 of this article, the 78 

following regulations shall apply to all parks and recreation facilities and public property, 79 
unless otherwise noted.  Conduct relating specifically to the municipal beach area shall 80 
be proscribed by chapter 7, article VI of this Code. 81 
 82 
* * * 83 
 (k) Smoking and vaping.  84 

 85 
(1) Definitions. For the purposes of this section, the following terms shall have 86 

the meanings given. Words not otherwise defined shall have the meaning 87 
set forth in Part II, Chapter 386, Florida Statutes (the Florida Clean Air Act), 88 
or shall be construed to mean the common and ordinary meaning. 89 

“Smoking” means inhaling, exhaling, burning, carrying, or possessing any 90 

lighted tobacco product, including cigarettes, cigars, pipe tobacco, and any 91 
other lighted tobacco product. However, “unfiltered cigars” shall be exempt 92 

from this definition of smoking. 93 



Pg.3, Ord. 2022-19 

“Vape” or “vaping” means to inhale or exhale vapor produced by a vapor-94 
generating electronic device or to possess a vapor-generating electronic 95 
device while that device is actively employing an electronic, a chemical, or 96 

a mechanical means designed to produce vapor or aerosol from a nicotine 97 
product or any other substance. The term does not include the mere 98 
possession of a vapor-generating electronic device. 99 

(2) Prohibition.  A person is prohibited from smoking and/or vaping in a park 100 

located within the city.  101 

(3) Enforcement. The city’s law enforcement agency is hereby authorized to 102 

enforce this subsection through the issuance of a city civil citation as set forth 103 
in Chapter 2, Article X of this Code.   104 

Section 3: Chapter 7 “Beaches, Parks and Recreation,” Article VI “Municipal 105 
Beach Area and Municipal Beach,” Section 7-80 “Additional regulations applying to the 106 
municipal beach area” is hereby amended by adding thereto a new subsection (z) to read 107 

as follows: 108 
 109 
Sec. 7-80. – Additional regulations applying to the municipal beach area. 110 
  Purpose.  Citizens and visitors should be afforded a safe, clean environment in which 111 

recreational opportunities can be maximized.  Due to the wide variety of patron needs 112 

and use of city property, it is necessary to establish the following regulations.  These 113 
regulations are in addition to regulations that are contained in other sections of the Code 114 
of Ordinances or otherwise posted in particular parks, recreational facilities or municipal 115 

beaches. 116 

 117 
* * * 118 
 (z) Smoking and vaping.  119 

 120 
(1) Definitions. For the purposes of this section, the following terms shall have the 121 

meanings given. Words not otherwise defined shall have the meaning set forth in 122 
Part II, Chapter 386, Florida Statutes (the Florida Clean Air Act), or shall be 123 
construed to mean the common and ordinary meaning. 124 

“Smoking” means inhaling, exhaling, burning, carrying, or possessing any 125 

lighted tobacco product, including cigarettes, cigars, pipe tobacco, and any 126 
other lighted tobacco product. However, “unfiltered cigars” shall be exempt 127 
from this definition of smoking. 128 

“Vape” or “vaping” means to inhale or exhale vapor produced by a vapor-129 

generating electronic device or to possess a vapor-generating electronic 130 
device while that device is actively employing an electronic, a chemical, or 131 

a mechanical means designed to produce vapor or aerosol from a nicotine 132 
product or any other substance. The term does not include the mere 133 
possession of a vapor-generating electronic device. 134 

(2) Prohibition.  A person is prohibited from smoking and/or vaping on the municipal 135 

beach located within the city.  This prohibition shall only apply to the beach and 136 
not the entire municipal beach area as defined in this Code. 137 



Pg. 4, Ord. 2022-19 

 

(3) Enforcement. The city’s law enforcement agency is hereby authorized to enforce 138 
this subsection through the issuance of a city civil citation as set forth in Chapter 139 
2, Article X of this Code.  140 

 141 
Section 4: Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or 142 

portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 143 
competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and 144 
independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 145 

portions thereof.  146 
 147 
Section 5:  Repeal of Laws in Conflict.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in 148 

conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 149 

 150 
Section 6: Codification.  The sections of the ordinance may be made a part of 151 

the City Code of Laws and ordinances and may be re-numbered or re-lettered to 152 

accomplish such, and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section”, “division”, or 153 
any other appropriate word. 154 

 155 
Section 7: Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective 10 days after 156 

passage. 157 
 158 

The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by 159 

______________________, seconded by ________________________, and upon 160 
being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 161 

 162 
Mayor Betty Resch  163 

Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy  164 
Commissioner Sarah Malega  165 

Commissioner Kimberly Stokes  166 
Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz  167 
 168 
The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the 169 

_______ day of ____________________, 2022. 170 
 171 

 172 
The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by 173 

_________________, seconded by ________________, and upon being put to a vote, 174 
the vote was as follows: 175 

 176 

Mayor Betty Resch  177 
Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy  178 
Commissioner Sarah Malega  179 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes  180 
Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz  181 

 182 



Pg.5, Ord. 2022-19 

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the _______ day of 183 
_____________________, 2022. 184 

 185 

 186 
LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 187 
 188 
 189 
By: __________________________ 190 

Betty Resch, Mayor 191 
 192 
ATTEST: 193 
 194 
 195 

____________________________ 196 
Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 197 

 198 



 TORCIVIA, DONLON,  

 GODDEAU & RUBIN, P.A.  

701 Northpoint Parkway, Suite 209 

West Palm Beach, Florida 33407-1950 

561-686-8700 Telephone / 561-686-8764 Facsimile 

www.torcivialaw.com 

Glen J. Torcivia Jennifer H.R. Hunecke 

Lara Donlon Susan M. Garrett 

Christy L. Goddeau* Elizabeth V. Lenihan* 

Leonard G. Rubin* Denise A. Mutamba 

 Kara L. Land 

  
*FLORIDA BAR BOARD CERTIFIED 

CITY COUNTY AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT ATTORNEY 

September 6, 2022 

Via E-Mail Only 

Mayor and Commissioners 

City of Lake Worth Beach 

7 N. Dixie Highway 

Lake Worth Beach, FL  33460 

 

 RE: Discussion on Housing Crisis  

 

Dear Mayor and Commissioners: 

 

Pursuant to recent Commission comments, we have prepared the following housing crisis update which 

includes a summary of the statutory rent control ordinance process and information regarding other 

local governments who are currently pursuing rent control referendums.  Section 166.043, Florida 

Statutes (attached), prohibits local governments from adopting rent control ordinances “unless it is 

found and determined…that such controls are necessary and proper to eliminate an existing housing 

emergency which is so grave as to constitute a serious menace to the general public.”  §166.043(2), 

Fla. Stat.  The statute exempts the following categories of residential accommodations from a rent 

control ordinance:  (1) seasonal or tourist unit; (2) second housing unit; and (3) luxury apartment 

buildings.”  §166.043(4), Fla. Stat.    

The statute requires a rent-control ordinance to be approved by two separate processes:  (1) the local 

government’s standard ordinance adoption procedure (including, but not limited to, notice and a public 

hearing); and (2) a referendum approved by the voters. See §166.043(5), Fla. Stat.  Also, any such 

ordinance automatically expires within 1 year and cannot be extended or renewed unless the local 

government adopts another ordinance in accordance with the statutory provisions (including, but not 

limited to another referendum).  See §166.043(3), Fla. Stat.  Finally, the statute, authorizes the adoption 

of a rent control ordinance only when the local government “makes and recites in such measure its 

findings establishing the existence in fact of a housing emergency so grave as to constitute a serious 

menace to the general public and that such controls are necessary and proper to eliminate such grave 

housing emergency.”  See §166.043(5), Fla. Stat.   

Therefore, it is recommended that the City Commission secure the necessary data and the opinion of a 

qualified professional(s) to firmly establish, at a minimum, the following: (1) whether there exists 

within the City of Lake Worth Beach a “housing emergency so grave as to constitute a serious menace 



2 
 

to the general public” (including an explanation of how the statistics and data used establishes a “grave 

housing emergency”); (2) what impacts/effects the housing emergency is having on the general 

public’s health, safety and welfare (i.e., “serious menace to the general public”)  (e.g., distress, 

extortion, increase of rents without legal process, evictions, homelessness,  overcrowding, etc.); and 

(3) whether and how a rent control ordinance is “necessary and proper to eliminate such grave housing 

emergency” and the details/requirements of such an ordinance.  We will work with staff to draft the 

appropriate procurement document for these professional services and ensure that the scope of services 

includes, but is not limited to, the above statutory questions.   Please be aware that if a local 

government’s rent control ordinance is challenged in any court action, the government will have the 

evidentiary burden to prove that its ordinance meets the statutory requirements.  See §166.043(6), Fla. 

Stat.   

Regarding rent control by other local governments, Orange County adopted a rent control ordinance 

pursuant to section 125.0103, Florida Statutes (the county version of section 166.043) and has placed 

a referendum on the upcoming November election ballot.  Generally, the Orange County ordinance 

limits rent increases in multiunit buildings (4 or more dwelling units) to the annual increase in the 

Consumer Price Index; however such controls do not apply to luxury units, single family homes, 

vacation rentals, and other specified units.  The ordinance also addresses the development of “a process 

by which landlords can request exceptions to the limitations on rent increases based on the opportunity 

to receive a fair and reasonable return on investment.”  

Shortly after the ordinance was adopted, a lawsuit challenging the ordinance and pending referendum 

was filed on behalf of the Florida Apartment Association and the Florida Association of Realtors.  The 

lawsuit, in part, includes the general argument that the rent-control ordinance fails to meet the statutory 

requirements and is, therefore, invalid.  Under this argument, the plaintiffs contend that the “Rent-

Control Ordinance fails to establish the existence-in-fact of a “housing emergency so grave as to 

constitute a serious menace to the general public.”  See Complaint ¶31.  Under this argument, the 

plaintiffs maintain that the county fails to explain how and why the statistics it relies upon demonstrate 

a “grave housing emergency.” See id. They further argue that the ordinance is contrary to the legal 

memorandum drafted by the Orange County Attorney because it “appears to be premised entirely on 

statistics addressing vacancy rates, rising rents, a shortage of housing, an increase in the cost of living, 

and ‘spiraling inflation.’” See Complaint ¶33.   They indicate that “These findings alone are insufficient 

to establish a ‘grave housing emergency’ under Florida Supreme Court precedence.”  See id.   

The plaintiffs also argue that even if Orange County could establish a “grave housing emergency,” the 

ordinance “contains no findings demonstrating a ‘serious menace to the general public.’” See 

Complaint ¶34.  They rely, again, upon the county attorney’s memorandum, that “a rent-control 

ordinance must include findings addressing the housing emergency’s impact on the health, safety, and 

welfare of the general public such as ‘overcrowding’ resulting in ‘insanitary conditions’ and ‘disease.’” 

See id.    They make the additional argument that the ordinance’s findings “fail to establish that rent 

control is ‘necessary and proper’ to ‘eliminate’ the grave housing emergency in Orange County.”  See 

Complaint ¶35.  The plaintiffs state that the county’s “increased housing costs are ‘likely beyond the 

control of local regulation’ and stemmed mostly from ‘inadequate housing production over years which 

a temporary rent ceiling would do little to correct.’”  See id.   

In the county attorney’s memorandum, he points out that “Florida courts have not interpreted either 

provisions of the Statute, and therefore it is unclear how either provision would be interpreted or 

applied today.”  See County Attorney Memorandum, pg. 2. After highlighting the legal history of rent 

control ordinances and how a “grave housing emergency” may be defined, the attorney generally 

concluded, in part, “It is unlikely that findings of an increase in the cost of living or inflation alone will 

be sufficient to meet the requirements of the Statute.  Instead, the Board would likely need findings of 



3 
 

a housing shortage, rising rents, increased demand, etc. and findings describing the impact of these 

conditions on the general public’s health, safety, and welfare in order to meet the Statute’s 

requirements.  Further, the Board would likely need findings to establish that its rent control ordinance 

is necessary to eliminate the grave housing emergency.” See id.   

It was reported that the City of Tampa considered a rent control ordinance; however, the ordinance 

was not approved by the city council.  It was also reported that the City of St. Petersburg’s council 

agreed to draft a resolution declaring a housing emergency and proposing ballot language for rent 

control regulations; however, the council withdrew the resolution based on advice from their legal 

counsel.  The council discussed a motion to draft a rent control ordinance and submit it to the voters 

by referendum; however, the motion failed. 

If the City chooses to move forward with the drafting of a rent control ordinance, we recommend that 

it address the issues highlighted in the Orange County Complaint and the Orange County Attorney’s 

Memorandum.  For your review, we have attached the following documents:  (1) Orange County Rent 

Control Ordinance; (2) Complaint challenging the Orange County ordinance (without attachments); 

and (3) Orange County Attorney’s Memorandum regarding the rent control ordinance.  As mentioned 

above, we will be working with staff to develop the appropriate procurement document for the 

professional services needed to explore and address the requirements of a rent control ordinance.  

Please let me know if you have any questions regarding the above. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Glen J. Torcivia 

 

Glen J. Torcivia 

City Attorney 

Enclosures: Section 166.043, Florida Statutes, Orange County Ordinance, Orange County Complaint 

(without attachments), Orange County Attorney Opinion 

Copy:  Carmen Davis, City Manager 

 William Waters, Community Sustainability Director 



 

Select Year:   2022  Go

The 2022 Florida Statutes
 

Title XII
MUNICIPALITIES

Chapter 166 
MUNICIPALITIES

View Entire Chapter

166.043 Ordinances and rules imposing price controls; findings required; procedures.—
(1)(a) Except as hereinafter provided, no county, municipality, or other entity of local government shall adopt or

maintain in effect an ordinance or a rule which has the effect of imposing price controls upon a lawful business activity
which is not franchised by, owned by, or under contract with, the governmental agency, unless specifically provided by
general law.

(b) This section does not prevent the enactment by local governments of public service rates otherwise authorized by
law, including water, sewer, solid waste, public transportation, taxicab, or port rates, rates for towing of vehicles or vessels
from or immobilization of vehicles or vessels on private property, or rates for removal and storage of wrecked or disabled
vehicles or vessels from an accident scene or the removal and storage of vehicles or vessels in the event the owner or
operator is incapacitated, unavailable, leaves the procurement of wrecker service to the law enforcement officer at the
scene, or otherwise does not consent to the removal of the vehicle or vessel.

(c) Counties must establish maximum rates which may be charged on the towing of vehicles or vessels from or
immobilization of vehicles or vessels on private property, removal and storage of wrecked or disabled vehicles or vessels
from an accident scene or for the removal and storage of vehicles or vessels, in the event the owner or operator is
incapacitated, unavailable, leaves the procurement of wrecker service to the law enforcement officer at the scene, or
otherwise does not consent to the removal of the vehicle or vessel. However, if a municipality chooses to enact an
ordinance establishing the maximum rates for the towing or immobilization of vehicles or vessels as described in paragraph
(b), the county’s ordinance established under s. 125.0103 shall not apply within such municipality.

(2) No law, ordinance, rule, or other measure which would have the effect of imposing controls on rents shall be
adopted or maintained in effect except as provided herein and unless it is found and determined, as hereinafter provided,
that such controls are necessary and proper to eliminate an existing housing emergency which is so grave as to constitute a
serious menace to the general public.

(3) Any law, ordinance, rule, or other measure which has the effect of imposing controls on rents shall terminate and
expire within 1 year and shall not be extended or renewed except by the adoption of a new measure meeting all the
requirements of this section.

(4) Notwithstanding any other provisions of this section, no controls shall be imposed on rents for any accommodation
used or offered for residential purposes as a seasonal or tourist unit, as a second housing unit, or on rents for dwelling units
located in luxury apartment buildings. For the purposes of this section, a luxury apartment building is one wherein on
January 1, 1977, the aggregate rent due on a monthly basis from all dwelling units as stated in leases or rent lists existing
on that date divided by the number of dwelling units exceeds $250.

(5) No municipality, county, or other entity of local government shall adopt or maintain in effect any law, ordinance,
rule, or other measure which would have the effect of imposing controls on rents unless:

(a) Such measure is duly adopted by the governing body of such entity of local government, after notice and public
hearing, in accordance with all applicable provisions of the Florida and United States Constitutions, the charter or charters
governing such entity of local government, this section, and any other applicable laws.

(b) Such governing body makes and recites in such measure its findings establishing the existence in fact of a housing
emergency so grave as to constitute a serious menace to the general public and that such controls are necessary and proper
to eliminate such grave housing emergency.

(c) Such measure is approved by the voters in such municipality, county, or other entity of local government.
(6) In any court action brought to challenge the validity of rent control imposed pursuant to the provisions of this

section, the evidentiary effect of any findings or recitations required by subsection (5) shall be limited to imposing upon any

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Index&Title_Request=XII#TitleXII
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0100-0199/0166/0166ContentsIndex.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0100-0199/0166/0166.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0125/Sections/0125.0103.html


party challenging the validity of such measure the burden of going forward with the evidence, and the burden of proof (that
is, the risk of nonpersuasion) shall rest upon any party seeking to have the measure upheld.

(7) Notwithstanding any other provisions of this section, municipalities, counties, or other entity of local government
may adopt and maintain in effect any law, ordinance, rule, or other measure which is adopted for the purposes of increasing
the supply of affordable housing using land use mechanisms such as inclusionary housing ordinances.

History.—ss. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, ch. 77-50; s. 82, ch. 79-400; s. 2, ch. 88-240; s. 3, ch. 90-283; s. 53, ch. 97-300; s. 5, ch. 98-324; s. 9, ch. 99-360; s.
34, ch. 2001-201; s. 3, ch. 2020-174.

Copyright © 1995-2022 The Florida Legislature • Privacy Statement • Contact Us

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/cgi-bin/View_Page.pl?File=privacy.html&Directory=welcome/&Location=app&Tab=info_center&Submenu=4
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/cgi-bin/View_Page.pl?File=contact.html&Directory=Info_Center/help/&Location=app&Tab=info_center&Submenu=4


























ORDINANCE NO. 2022-29 

AN ORDINANCE RELATED TO RENT STABILIZATION IN 
ORANGE COUNTY; ENACTING A NEW ARTICLE XIII, 
DIVISION 2 OF THE ORANGE COUNTY CODE OF 
ORDINANCES (“CODE”), SECTION 25-380 THROUGH 
SECTION 25-449; PROVIDING A SHORT TITLE AND 
LEGISLATIVE FINDINGS AND PURPOSE; LIMITING 
RENT INCREASES FOR CERTAIN RENTAL UNITS IN 
MULTIFAMILY STRUCTURES FOR A PERIOD OF ONE (1) 
YEAR; REQUIRING CERTAIN RESIDENTIAL 
LANDLORDS TO SUBMIT A RENTAL UNIT 
REGISTRATION STATEMENT; PROVIDING PENALTIES 
FOR VIOLATION; CALLING FOR A REFERENDUM; 
PROVIDING BALLOT LANGUAGE; REQUIRING PUBLIC 
NOTICE OF SUCH REFERENDUM; PROVIDING THAT 
THE RENT STABILIZATION ORDINANCE WILL TAKE 
EFFECT ONLY UPON APPROVAL BY THE 
ELECTORATE; PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF LAWS IN 
CONFLICT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

WHEREAS, there are approximately 584,000 total housing units in Orange County of 
which 230,000 are occupied by renters, and according to the 2020 census, Orange County has seen 
an approximate 25% increase in population since 2010—from approximately 1.15 million people 
to approximately 1.43 million people; and 

WHEREAS, there is a shortage of dwelling houses and apartments in Orange County, 
Florida needed to house the current and growing population; and 

WHEREAS, because of the current shortage of housing, the vacancy rate for housing is 
low; and  

WHEREAS, tenants displaced as a result of their inability to pay increasing rents must 
relocate, but are unable to find decent, safe, and sanitary housing at affordable rent levels; and 

WHEREAS, some tenants attempt to pay the requested rent increases, but as a 
consequence must expend less on other necessities of life; and 

WHEREAS, this situation has had a detrimental effect on a substantial number of renters 
in Orange County creating hardships on senior citizens, persons on fixed incomes, and low and 
moderate-income households; and 

WHEREAS, a housing emergency so grave as to constitute a serious menace to the general 
public exists in fact in Orange County; and 

APPROVED BY ORANGE 
COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS 
 
BCC Mtg. Date: August 9, 2022 
 
Effective Date: August 12, 2022; except 
Section 2 which shall take effect only 
if and when approved by a majority of 
the voters voting in the referendum 
called by the Board of County 
Commissioners of Orange County, 
Florida in Section 3 to be held on  
November 8, 2022



2 

 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary and proper to regulate rents to eliminate such grave housing 

emergency. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF ORANGE 

COUNTY, FLORIDA: 

Section 1. Recitals. The recitals set forth above are hereby adopted and incorporated 

into the body of this ordinance as if fully set forth herein. 

Section 2. Enactment of New Chapter 25, Article XIII, Division 2. A new Rent 

Stabilization Ordinance, to be codified at Chapter 25, Article XIII, Division 2 of the Code, Section 

25-380 through Section 25-449, is hereby enacted to read as follows: 

CHAPTER 25. LICENSES, TAXATION AND 
MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS REGULATIONS 

* * * 

ARTICLE XIII. RESIDENTIAL TENANCIES 

* * * 

DIVISION 2. RENT STABILIZATION  

Section 25-380. Short Title and Scope. 
 
 This division shall be known and may be cited to as the 
“Rent Stabilization Ordinance.” The Rent Stabilization Ordinance 
shall be effective in both the incorporated and unincorporated areas 
within Orange County, except that this ordinance will not be 
effective within those incorporated areas that have enacted a duly 
adopted ordinance exempting such incorporated area from this 
ordinance. 
 

  Section 25-381. Legislative Findings and Purpose. 
 
(a) Section 125.0103, Florida Statutes (the “Statute”), provides that 

ordinances which would have the effect of imposing controls on 
rents may be adopted when it is found and determined that such 
controls are necessary and proper to eliminate an existing 



3 

housing emergency which is so grave as to constitute a serious 
menace to the general public; and 

(b) The Statute authorizes a county to duly adopt an ordinance
which would have the effect of imposing controls on rents when
the governing body makes and recites in such ordinance its
findings establishing the existence in fact of a housing
emergency so grave as to constitute a serious menace to the
general public and that such controls are necessary and proper
to eliminate such grave housing emergency; and

(c) There is a shortage, scarcity, and insufficient supply of dwelling
houses and apartments in Orange County, Florida. Relative to
population, national production of housing units has declined
from approximately 0.82 homes per person in the 1970s to
approximately 0.45 homes per person in 2019. In Orange
County, there is a shortage of as many as 26,500 housing units
relative to the County’s need; and

(d) According to the 2020 census, Orange County has seen an
approximate 25% increase in population since 2010—from
approximately 1.15 million people to approximately 1.43
million people; and

(e) There are approximately 584,000 total housing units in Orange
County, of which 230,000 are occupied by renters; and

(f) The shortage of housing is further evidenced by the low vacancy
rate for rental properties in Orange County which reached 5.2%
in 2021—the lowest on record since at least the year 2000; and

(g) Inflation, housing prices, and rental rates in Orange County are
increasing, accelerating, and spiraling. The Consumer Price
Index for All Urban Consumers in the South was 9.2% from
May 2021 to May 2022. The median existing home sales price
in Orange County was $275,000 in May 2020 and $392,500 in
May 2022, which represents a 43% increase. Asking rent per
unit in the County was $1,357 in 2020 and $1,697 in 2021 which
represents a 25% year-over-year increase—the highest increase
since 2006 when it was 6.7%; and

(h) The housing conditions have resulted in widespread distress
among Orange County residents. It is estimated that 80.3% of
households earning at or below the Average Median Income
(AMI) in Orange County are considered “cost burdened” which



4 

 

the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
defines to include households who pay more than thirty-percent 
(30%) of their income for housing and may have difficulty 
affording necessities such as food, clothing, transportation, and 
medical care; and  
 

(i) The widespread distress in housing conditions is further 
evidenced as Orange County residents were awarded more funds 
from the State of Florida’s Emergency Rental Assistance 
Program 1 (“Emergency Program”) than any other county in the 
state. The Emergency Program has since ended while the 
County’s housing conditions continue to worsen; and 

 
(j) Orange County was in a housing crisis prior to the COVID-19 

pandemic. In May 2018, Central Florida’s interjurisdictional 
Regional Affordable Housing Initiative said, “National and 
regional home prices and rents are pushing well above historic 
limits when compared to income and affordability. The situation 
has passed the point of concern and is now a crisis.” The housing 
crisis has worsened since the COVID-19 pandemic; and  

 
(k) Tenancies are being terminated and eviction rates are increasing. 

For the first half of 2022, there have been 6,970 eviction case 
filings, which is a 70.1% increase over the same period in 2021; 
and 

 
(l) The findings made and recited in this ordinance establish the 

existence in fact of a housing emergency so grave as to constitute 
a serious menace to the general public; and  
 

(m) The Orange County Board of County Commissioners finds that 
this grave housing emergency cannot be dealt with effectively 
by the ordinary operations of the private rental housing market. 
In jurisdictions in Florida comparable to Orange County that do 
not have rent stabilization measures in place, rent increases 
continue to spiral. For example, in Hillsborough County, Duval 
County, and Broward County, the year-over-year asking rent has 
increased by over 20%; and 

 
(n) Jurisdictions with rent stabilization measures in effect and 

otherwise comparable to Orange County have been successful 
in protecting tenants by establishing limits on rent increases 
while still providing landlords with a fair and reasonable return 
on their investment. For example, in California, Alameda 
County and Sacramento County contain rent control measures 



5 

 

and have limited their year-over-year asking rent increases to 
approximately 5%-10% despite low vacancy rates; and 
 

(o) The Board finds that a rent stabilization measure is necessary 
and proper to eliminate the County’s housing emergency which 
is so grave as to constitute a serious menace to the general 
public.  

 
 The purpose of this Rent Stabilization Ordinance is to 
provide stability and certainty for tenants in the rental market, as 
necessary and proper to eliminate the grave housing emergency, 
while also providing landlords with the opportunity to receive a fair 
and reasonable return on their investment. 
 
Section 25-382. Authority. 
 
 Pursuant to Section 125.0103, Florida Statutes, the Orange 
County Board of County Commissioners is authorized to adopt this 
necessary and proper Rent Stabilization Ordinance to eliminate the 
existing housing emergency which is so grave as to constitute a 
serious menace to the general public.  
 
Section 25-383. Definitions. 
 
 For the purposes of this Rent Stabilization Ordinance, the 
following definitions shall apply: 
 
(a) Board or BCC shall mean the Board of County Commissioners 

of Orange County, Florida. 
 

(b) Change of occupancy shall mean a change in the occupation of 
the rental unit from one tenant to another tenant. 

 
(c) Consumer Price Index or CPI shall mean the most recent 12-

month average percentage change in the Consumer Price Index 
for All Urban Consumers, South Region (All Items), as 
published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics of the United States 
Department of Labor, which, by way of example, was 9.8% from 
June 2021 to June 2022. 

 
(d) County shall mean Orange County, Florida. 

 
(e) Department shall mean Orange County’s Planning, 

Environmental and Development Services Department (or such 
successor division or department designated by the County). 



6 

 

 
(f) Dwelling unit shall mean: 

 
(1) A structure or part of a structure that is rented for use as a 

home, residence, or sleeping place by one person or by two 
or more persons who maintain a common household. 
 

(2) A mobile home rented by a tenant. 
 

(3) A structure or part of a structure that is furnished, with or 
without rent, as an incident of employment for use as a 
home, residence, or sleeping place by one or more persons. 

 
(g) Grave housing emergency shall mean the housing emergency so 

grave as to constitute a serious menace to the general public as 
found to exist in the County by the Board as recited in this Rent 
Stabilization Ordinance in accordance with Section 125.0103, 
Florida Statutes.   

 
(h) Housing services shall include, but are not limited to, 

maintaining roofs, windows, doors, floors, steps, porches, 
exterior walls, foundations, and all other structural components 
in good repair and capable of resisting normal forces and loads, 
and maintaining the plumbing in reasonable working condition, 
and ensuring that screens are installed in a reasonable condition, 
and any other benefit, privilege, or facility connected with the 
use or occupancy of any rental unit pursuant to applicable state 
and local law, building, housing, and health codes, and rental 
agreements, and, by way of example, mail, vehicle parking 
spaces, storage, and use of common areas and/or recreational 
facilities and all other amenities held out for use by tenants. 

 
(i) Landlord shall mean the owner or lessor of a residential rental 

unit. 
 

(j) Ordinance shall mean the Rent Stabilization Ordinance. 
 

(k) Rent shall mean the periodic payments due the landlord from the 
tenant for occupancy under a rental agreement and any other 
payments due the landlord from the tenant as may be designated 
as rent in a written rental agreement. Rent shall include fees 
required by the landlord for a tenant’s access to and use of 
mandatory housing services. Rent does not include user fees for 
housing services that may be utilized at the option of the tenant 
or utility charges for those rental units that are billed separately. 



7 

 

 
(l) Rental Agreement shall mean any written agreement, including 

amendments or addenda, or oral agreement for a duration of less 
than 1 year, providing for use and occupancy of premises. 

 
(m) Residential rental unit or rental unit shall mean any dwelling 

unit, or portion of a dwelling unit, that is located in a multifamily 
structure containing a total of four (4) or more dwelling units 
that are rented or otherwise made available for rent for 
residential use or occupancy, together with all housing services 
connected with the use or occupancy of such property.  

 
(n)  State shall mean the State of Florida. 

 
(o) Tenancy shall mean the right of entitlement of a tenant to use or 

occupy a residential rental unit under the terms of a rental 
agreement. 

 
(p) Tenant shall mean any person entitled to occupy a residential 

rental unit under a rental agreement.  
 
Section 25-384. Limitations on rent increases. 
 
(a) No landlord shall demand, charge, or accept from a tenant a rent 

increase for a residential rental unit more than once in a 12-
month period. 

 
(b) No landlord shall demand, charge, or accept from a tenant a rent 

increase that is in excess of the existing rent multiplied by the 
Consumer Price Index for any residential rental unit except as 
otherwise allowed under section 25-388 of this ordinance. 

 
Section 25-385. Minimum housing services. 
 
 No landlord shall refuse to provide any housing services that 
were agreed upon by the landlord and tenant as of this ordinance’s 
effective date. 
 
Section 25-386. Vacancy. 
 
 This ordinance’s limitations on rent increases shall apply 
regardless of change of occupancy in a residential rental unit except 
as otherwise allowed under section 25-388 of this ordinance. 
 
Section 25-387. Rental unit registration statement. 



8 

 

 
(a) At the Department’s request, a landlord shall submit a 

registration statement to the Department with information 
related to the landlord’s residential rental units to ensure 
compliance with this ordinance. The landlord shall submit the 
registration statement within a timeframe specified by the 
Department and on forms approved by the Department.  
 

(b) The Department may require a landlord to submit the following 
information as part of the registration statement required by this 
section: 
 
(1) Current and previous rental amounts charged for one or more  

residential rental units, and the date of the last rent increase 
for said rental unit(s); 
 

(2) The name, address, and telephone number of the landlord for 
each applicable residential rental unit(s); 

 
(3) The name and mailing address of applicable tenants or rental 

units including any building or unit identification number or 
other description, as applicable; 

 
(4) A description of the housing services provided by the 

landlord to each applicable tenant or for each applicable 
rental unit; 

 
(5) Move-in and vacancy dates for each applicable tenant or 

applicable rental unit; and 
 

(6) Any other relevant information requested by the Department 
which may include, but is not limited to, rental agreements 
and other supporting documentation evidencing the 
accuracy of the information contained in the landlord’s 
registration statement. 

 
(c) Landlords shall retain copies of all rental agreements and other 

supporting documentation necessary to comply with this section 
for a minimum period of two (2) years. 
 

(d) Landlords shall submit corrections to a registration statement to 
the Department within ten (10) days of discovering any errors in 
the information contained in the registration statement.  
 



9 

 

(e) Failure to submit a complete, timely, and accurate registration 
statement, or corrections to a registration statement, in 
accordance with this section shall be considered a violation of 
this ordinance and subject to the penalties contained in section 
25-390 of this ordinance.     

 
Section 25-388. Fair and reasonable return on investment. 
 
(a) The Board shall adopt a resolution with rules establishing a 

process by which landlords can request exceptions to the 
limitations on rent increases based on the opportunity to receive 
a fair and reasonable return on investment. Rationale for 
deviations from the limitation on rent increases must consider 
the following factors: 
 
(1) Increases or decreases in property taxes;  

 
(2) Unavoidable increases or any decreases in maintenance and 

operating expenses;  
 

(3) The cost of planned or completed capital improvements to 
the rental unit (as distinguished from ordinary repair, 
replacement and maintenance) where such capital 
improvements are necessary to bring the property into 
compliance or maintain compliance with applicable 
building, housing, or health codes, and where such capital 
improvement costs are properly amortized over the life of 
the improvement;  

 
(4) Increases or decreases in the number of tenants occupying 

the rental unit, living space, furniture, furnishings, 
equipment, or other housing services provided, or occupancy 
rules;  

 
(5) Substantial deterioration of the rental unit other than as a 

result of normal wear and tear;  
 

(6) Inability of the landlord to provide adequate housing 
services, or to comply substantially with applicable state and 
local laws, building, housing, or health codes, or the rental 
agreement; and  

 
(7) The pattern of recent rent increases or decreases.  

 



10 

(b) It is the intent of this ordinance that exceptions to the limitations
on rent increases be made only when the landlord demonstrates
that such adjustments are necessary to provide the landlord with
a fair and reasonable return on investment.

(c) The County will not grant an exception to the limitations on rent
increases for any residential rental unit where the landlord has
failed to bring the rental unit into compliance with applicable
state and local laws and building, housing, and health codes.

Section 25-389. Exemptions. 

This Rent Stabilization Ordinance shall not apply to any 
residential rental units expressly exempt pursuant to any provision 
of state or federal law, and such units shall be exempt from the 
provisions of this ordinance. The following units are also 
specifically exempt from this ordinance: 

(a) Rental units used or offered for residential purposes as a
seasonal or tourist unit pursuant to Section 125.0103(4), Florida
Statutes, which include units located in a hotel, motel, or other
similar establishment where units are rented primarily to
transient guests;

(b) Units used or offered for residential purposes as a second
housing unit pursuant to Section 125.0103(4), Florida Statutes,
which include accessory dwelling units;

(c) Rentals units located in a luxury apartment building pursuant to
Section 125.0103(4), Florida Statutes, which, for the purposes
of this section, shall mean one wherein on January 1, 1977, the
aggregate rent due on a monthly basis from all dwelling units as
stated in leases or rent lists existing on that date divided by the
number of dwelling units exceeds $250;

(d) Dwelling units located in a single-family home, townhome,
condominium, or mobile home, and mobile home lot rents as
preempted by Chapter 723, Florida Statutes;

(e) Rental units that a governmental agency or authority owns,
operates, or otherwise manages;

(f) Dwelling units located in a cooperative apartment occupied by a
holder of a proprietary lease;



11 

(g) Dwelling units located in a disability facility, hospital, nursing
home, assisted care community, or other health care facility
licensed under Chapter 393, 395, 400, or 429, Florida Statutes;

(h) Rental units for which the landlord receives federal, state, or
local housing subsidies including, but not limited to, federal
housing assistance vouchers issued under Section 8 of the
United States Housing Act of 1937 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 1437f);

(i) Rental units that are currently under rent control by virtue of
local, state or federal housing subsidy; and

(j) New rental units that have received a Certificate of Occupancy
on or after the effective date of this ordinance.

Section 25-390. Enforcement, penalties, and prohibitions. 

(a) Enforcement. This ordinance may be enforced by code
enforcement officers, including county and municipal code
enforcement officers, and any law enforcement agency having
jurisdiction of the area within which the rental unit at issue is
located pursuant to Section 125.69 and Chapter 162, Florida
Statutes, or any applicable municipal code enforcement
provision.

(b) Penalties for violation.

(1) Violations of this ordinance may be prosecuted in the same
manner as misdemeanors and result in a fine not to exceed
five hundred dollars ($500.00) or by imprisonment in the
county jail for a term not exceeding sixty (60) days, or by
both such fine and imprisonment, in accordance with Section
125.69, Florida Statutes, and Section 1-9 of the Orange
County Code.

(2) Notwithstanding any other provision of this ordinance, the
county may impose civil fines through its code enforcement
board or special magistrate or issue civil citations through its
code enforcement citation program for violations of this
ordinance. Such fines or citations shall be enforced in
amounts as provided for and authorized by Chapter 162,
Florida Statutes, and Chapter 11, Orange County Code.

i. Fines imposed by the code enforcement board or special
magistrate may be for amounts not to exceed one



12 

 

thousand dollars ($1,000) per day for a first violation and 
five thousand dollars ($5,000) per day for a repeat 
violation. However, if the code enforcement board or 
special magistrate finds a violation to be irreparable or 
irreversible in nature, it may impose a fine not to exceed 
fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000) per violation. 
 

ii. Citations issued pursuant to the county’s code 
enforcement citation program for violations of this 
ordinance shall be classified as a Class III violation and 
subject to a fine as provided in Section 11-67 of the 
Orange County Code. 

 
(c) Private right of action.  

 
(1) Any tenant aggrieved by a landlord’s noncompliance with 

this ordinance may seek relief in a court of competent 
jurisdiction provided that such action is filed within two (2) 
years of the alleged violation.  
 

(2) In a private civil action filed under this ordinance, the court 
may issue an order prohibiting the unlawful practice and 
providing affirmative relief from the effects of the practice, 
including equitable relief, temporary restraining order, 
actual and punitive damages, reasonable attorney’s fees, 
interest, costs, or other relief, upon a finding that a violation 
of this ordinance has occurred or is about to occur. 

 
(d) Prohibition of waiver. Any lease provision which waives or 

purports to waive any right, benefit, or entitlement created in this 
ordinance shall be deemed void and of no lawful force or effect. 

 
Sections 25-391 – 25-449. Reserved. 
 

Section 3. Referendum Called.  A referendum election is hereby called and ordered to 

be held in Orange County at the time of the next general election to be held on November 8, 2022, 

to determine whether the Rent Stabilization Ordinance is approved by the voters.  

Section 4. Notice of Referendum. Pursuant to Section 100.342, Florida Statutes, a 

Notice of Referendum shall be published twice in the Orlando Sentinel, a newspaper of general 



13 

circulation in the County.  The publications shall occur once in the fifth week and once in the third 

week prior to the week which includes November 8, 2022. 

Section 5. Official Ballot.  Ballots to be used in the referendum shall contain a 

statement of the description of the proposed issue in substantially the following form: 

Rent Stabilization Ordinance to 
Limit Rent Increase for Certain 

Residential Rental Units 

Shall the Orange County Rent Stabilization Ordinance, which 
limits rent increases for certain residential rental units in 
multifamily structures to the average annual increase in the 
Consumer Price Index, and requires the County to create a 
process for landlords to request an exception to the limitation on 
the rent increase based on an opportunity to receive a fair and 
reasonable return on investment, be approved for a period of one 
year? 

Section 6. Spanish Translation. The above ballot question shall additionally appear 

on the ballot in Spanish and the County Attorney and Supervisor of Elections are requested to 

authorize, and directed to prepare, an accurate Spanish translation to be included on the ballot. 

Section 7. Payment of Referendum Expenses. The Board authorizes the payment of 

lawful expenses associated with conducting the referendum, as well as the cost of providing 

information as permitted by Section 106.113, Florida Statutes.  The Orange County Comptroller 

is hereby authorized and directed to disburse the funds necessary to pay such expenses. 

Section 8. Repeal of Laws in Conflict. All local laws and ordinances in conflict with 

any provision of this ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 



Section 9. Severability. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or provision of this 

ordinance or the application thereof to any person or circumstance is held invalid for any reason, 

the invalidity shall not affect any other provision or application of this ordinance, and to this end 

the provisions of this ordinance are declared severable. 

Section JO. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect pursuant to general law. 

However, Section 2 of this ordinance, Rent Stabilization Ordinance, shall take effect only if and 

when approved by a majority of the voters voting in the referendum called by the Board of County 

Commissioners of Orange County, Florida in Section 3 of this ordinance. In accordance with 

Section 125.0103(3), Florida Statutes, the Rent Stabilization Ordinance approved pursuant to this 

ordinance shall terminate and expire one (1) year after this ordinance's effective date and shall not 

be extended or renewed except by the adoption of a new ordinance meeting all the requirements 

of Florida Statutes. 

ADOPTED THIS 9th DAY OF August 

ATTEST: Phil Diamond, CPA, County Comptroller 
As Clerk of the Board of County Commissioners 

/(otiJ,. ~ By: ___,,_t_~_"" __________ _ 
Deputy Clerk 

14 

'20 22. 

ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA 
By: Board of County Commissioners 

~ Jerry L. Demings 
Orange County Mayor 



IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE NINTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT 
IN AND FOR ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA 

FLORIDA ASSOCIATION OF REALTORS,  
a not-for-profit corporation d/b/a  
FLORIDA REALTORS; and  
FLORIDA APARTMENT ASSOCIATION,  
INC., a not-for-profit corporation,   

Plaintiffs, 

v.   Case No: 
  Division: 

ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, and  
BILL COWLES, in his official capacity  
as Orange County Supervisor of Elections, 

Defendants. 
______________________________________/ 

COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 
AND FOR WRIT OF QUO WARRANTO 

Plaintiffs Florida Association of Realtors, a not-for-profit corporation d/b/a Florida 

Realtors (“Florida Realtors”) and Florida Apartment Association, Inc. (“FAA”), a not-for-profit 

corporation, file this complaint challenging the validity of Orange County Ordinance 2022-29 

(the “Rent-Control Ordinance” or “Ordinance”) against Defendants Orange County and Bill 

Cowles, in his official capacity as Orange County Supervisor of Elections. 

Nature of the Action 

Under Florida law, local governments are generally prohibited from adopting ordinances 

that would have the effect of imposing rent control. § 125.0103(2), Fla. Stat. A narrow statutory 

exception authorizes limited rent-control ordinances only upon approval of both the local 

governing body and the voters, and only where “necessary and proper to eliminate an existing 

housing emergency which is so grave as to constitute a serious menace to the general public.” Id. 

Filing # 155363644 E-Filed 08/15/2022 04:50:20 PM



2 

In any court action challenging the validity of a rent control ordinance, the burden of proof rests 

upon the party seeking to have the measure upheld. § 125.0103(6), Fla. Stat. 

The Rent-Control Ordinance fails to satisfy this stringent legal standard and therefore 

violates both section 125.0103 of the Florida Statutes, and Article VIII, section 1(g), of the 

Florida Constitution. This Court should declare the Ordinance invalid and enjoin its operation. 

Jurisdiction, Parties, and Venue 

1. This Court has jurisdiction over this matter under article V, section 5(b) of the 

Florida Constitution and section 26.012 of the Florida Statutes. Venue is proper in Orange 

County under section 47.011 of the Florida Statutes. Plaintiffs’ action for declaratory and 

injunctive relief is authorized under sections 86.011 and 26.012(3) of the Florida Statutes. This 

Court has the power to issue writs of quo warranto under article V, section 5(b) of the Florida 

Constitution. 

2. Plaintiff Florida Realtors is a 501(c)(6) trade association headquartered in 

Orlando whose 225,000 members include residential and commercial agents and brokers, 

appraisers, real estate counselors, property managers, and other real estate specialists. The 

mission of Florida Realtors is to support the American dream of homeownership, build strong 

communities and shape public policy on real property issues. To achieve its goals, Florida 

Realtors engages in extensive education and advocacy efforts both directly through its staff and 

in alliance with its local and regional Realtor associations and boards on issues affecting the real 

estate community and property owners in Florida. Orange County’s adoption of the Rent-Control 

Ordinance has required Florida Realtors to divert its time, staff, and other resources and focus 

away from its other policy priorities toward efforts to educate and respond to concerns from its 

members confronted with the adoption of an invalid rent-control measure. Florida Realtors also 



3 

brings these claims on behalf of its members, a substantial number of whom will be adversely 

affected by the Rent-Control Ordinance. The relief requested in this lawsuit—declaratory and 

injunctive relief and a writ of quo warranto—is of a type appropriate for a trade association to 

receive on behalf of its members. 

3. Plaintiff Florida Apartment Association, Inc. is a 501(c)(6) trade association 

headquartered in Orlando. The mission of FAA is to represent and advocate the interests of the 

Florida multifamily rental housing industry. FAA represents a diverse array of apartment 

property types, amounting to nearly three-quarters of all apartment communities in Florida. To 

achieve its goals, FAA engages in legislative monitoring and advocacy efforts at the state and 

local level both directly through its staff and in alliance with its local affiliates on issues 

impacting the multifamily rental housing industry. Orange County’s adoption of the Rent-

Control Ordinance has required FAA to divert its time, staff, and other resources and focus away 

from its other policy priorities toward efforts to address the adoption of an invalid rent-control 

measure. FAA also brings these claims on behalf of its members, a substantial number of whom 

will be adversely affected by the Rent-Control Ordinance. The relief requested in this lawsuit—

declaratory and injunctive relief and a writ of quo warranto—is of a type appropriate for a trade 

association to receive on behalf of its members. 

4. Defendant Orange County is a political subdivision of the State of Florida and a 

charter county governed by a seven-member Board of County Commissioners. Art. VIII, § 1, 

Fla. Const.; § 7.48, Fla. Stat. The Orange County Board of County Commissioners has the power 

to enact county ordinances “not inconsistent with general law.” Art. VIII, § 1(g), Fla. Const. 

5. Defendant Bill Cowles is the Supervisor of Elections for Orange County and is 

named as a defendant in his official capacity. Supervisor Cowles is responsible for preparing the 



4 

ballots for, and otherwise administering, the referendum election on the Rent-Control Ordinance 

called for November 2022.  

6. All conditions precedent to the filing of this action have been performed or 

waived. 

Common Factual Allegations 

A. Statutory Restrictions on Rent Control 

7. For more than four decades, Florida law has imposed significant restrictions on 

the authority of local governments to adopt ordinances that would have the effect of imposing 

rent control. Under section 125.0103(2) of the Florida Statutes, “No law, ordinance, rule, or other 

measure which would have the effect of imposing controls on rents shall be adopted or 

maintained in effect except as provided herein and unless it is found and determined, as 

hereinafter provided, that such controls are necessary and proper to eliminate an existing housing 

emergency which is so grave as to constitute a serious menace to the general public.” 

8. Florida law entirely exempts certain categories of rental properties from the 

application of any rent-control ordinance. No rent controls may be imposed on rents for: 

o any accommodation used or offered for residential purposes as a seasonal or tourist 
unit; 

o any accommodation used or offered for residential purposes as a second housing unit; 
or 

o dwelling units located in “luxury apartment buildings,” defined as buildings “wherein 
on January 1, 1977, the aggregate rent due on a monthly basis from all dwelling units 
as stated in leases or rent lists existing on that date divided by the number of dwelling 
units exceeds $250.” 

 
§ 125.0103(4), Fla. Stat. 

9. A local government seeking to adopt a rent-control ordinance must secure two 

separate approvals. First, the measure must be “duly adopted by the governing body of such 

entity of local government, after notice and public hearing, in accordance with all applicable 



5 

provisions of the Florida and United States Constitutions, the charter or charters governing such 

entity of local government, this section, and any other applicable laws.” § 125.0103(5)(a), Fla. 

Stat. Second, the measure must be “approved by the voters” at a referendum election.                  

§ 125.0103(5)(c), Fla. Stat. 

10. All rent-control ordinances must be time-limited. They “shall terminate and 

expire within 1 year” and “shall not be extended or renewed except by the adoption of a new 

measure meeting all the requirements” required for the original adoption of the rent-control 

ordinance. § 125.0103(3), Fla. Stat. 

11. Finally, rent control is authorized only where the governing body of the local 

government makes and recites findings “establishing the existence in fact of a housing 

emergency so grave as to constitute a serious menace to the general public and that such controls 

are necessary and proper to eliminate such grave housing emergency.” § 125.0103(5)(b), Fla. 

Stat. The local government’s findings and recitations adopted in the ordinance are not accorded 

any presumptive evidentiary effect. Id. 

12. In any court action brought to challenge the validity of rent control adopted under 

section 125.0103, the party seeking to have the measure upheld bears the ultimate burden to 

prove: 1) the “existence in fact” of a “grave housing emergency” constituting a “serious menace 

to the general public”; and 2) that the rent-control ordinance is “necessary and proper to 

eliminate such grave housing emergency.” § 125.0103(6), Fla. Stat. 

B. Orange County’s Adoption of the Rent-Control Ordinance 

1. County Attorney’s Memorandum Addresses Statutory Restrictions on 
Rent-Control and Applicable Precedents. 

 
13. On March 8, 2022, Orange County Commissioner Emily Bonilla submitted a 

memorandum and report to the Orange County Mayor and County Commissioners regarding a 



6 

proposed rent-control ordinance to be discussed at the Board’s meeting on April 5, 2022. At the 

request of Mayor Jerry Demings, and in preparation for the Board’s discussion, the County 

Attorney for Orange County prepared a memorandum addressing Florida’s statutory restrictions 

on rent-control measures and relevant judicial precedents. A copy of the County Attorney’s 

Memorandum is attached as Exhibit A. 

14. The County Attorney’s Memorandum identified the conditions and restrictions 

imposed on local governments that seek to adopt rent-control measures under the “grave housing 

emergency” exception. Exh. A at 3. In addition to discussing the procedural restrictions, the 

County Attorney’s Memorandum analyzed the statutory term “grave housing emergency” and 

traced its origin to the United States Supreme Court’s decision in Edgar A. Levy Leasing Co. v. 

Siegel, 258 U.S. 242 (1922). Exh. A at 4-5. 

15. The County Attorney’s Memorandum also examined the history of litigation in 

Florida over the City of Miami Beach’s attempts to impose rent control in the 1960s and 1970s—

actions that immediately preceded the adoption of section 125.0103. Exh. A at 5-6.  

16. Based upon a review of these authorities, the County Attorney’s Memorandum 

concluded that it was “unlikely that a shortage of housing, increase in the cost of living, or an 

inflationary spiral alone are enough to establish ‘a housing emergency so grave as to constitute a 

serious menace to the general public.’” Exh. A at 6-7. See also id. at 7 (quoting Florida Supreme 

Court holding “emergency” is “narrowly defined”). 

17. Instead, the County Attorney’s Memorandum stated that a rent-control ordinance 

in Orange County would “likely need to contain findings and recitations that are more similar to 

the Levy case”: 

That there was a very great shortage in dwelling house accommodations in the 
cities of the state to which the acts apply; that this condition was causing 



7 

widespread distress; that extortion in most oppressive forms was flagrant in rent 
profiteering; that, for the purpose of increasing rents, legal process was being 
abused and eviction was being resorted to as never before; and that unreasonable 
and extortionate increases of rent had frequently resulted in two or more families 
being obliged to occupy an apartment adequate only for one family, with a 
consequent overcrowding, which was resulting in insanitary conditions, disease, 
immorality, discomfort, and widespread social discontent. 

Exh. A at 7 (quoting Levy, 258 U.S. at 246). Stated differently, the findings must establish both 

the “grave housing emergency” and “the effect that the emergency is having on the general 

public” such as “widespread distress, extortion, flagrant rent profiteering, abuse of the legal 

process, overcrowding resulting in insanitary conditions and disease, etc.” Exh. A at 7-8. 

18. Not only would Orange County need to recite these findings in a rent-control 

ordinance, the County Attorney’s Memorandum advised that Orange County would need 

evidence to prove the existence in fact of a grave housing emergency in the event of a legal 

challenge. Exh. A at 8. Orange County would also need evidence to prove that its rent-control 

ordinance “is necessary and proper to eliminate said grave housing emergency.” Id. 

19. Finally, the County Attorney’s Memorandum noted that there was “no apparent 

record of any local governments in Florida imposing rent controls pursuant to [section 125.0103] 

since the Statute went into effect on May 21, 1977. Exh. A at 9. 

2. Orange County Retains Consultants to Evaluate Local Housing Conditions 
and Effectiveness of Rent-Control Measures. 

 
20. Following discussion at a meeting on April 5, 2022, Orange County’s Board of 

County Commissioners instructed staff to retain a consultant to evaluate housing costs and the 

effectiveness of rent-control measures. Orange County retained a consulting group, The 

Community Solutions Group of GAI Consultants, Inc. (“GAI”) to evaluate and document local 

housing conditions to determine whether they rise to the level of an emergency, to estimate the 

number of units that could be affected by rent-control measures, and to comment on the likely 



8 

effectiveness of those measures if implemented. A copy of the Orange County Rent Stabilization 

Analysis produced by GAI in May 2022 (the “GAI Report”) is attached as Exhibit B. 

21. The GAI Report ultimately concluded that the issues driving housing costs in 

Orange County were “deeply structural and a product of regional and national market influences, 

likely beyond the control of local regulation.” Exh. B at 3. The issues stemmed mostly from 

“inadequate housing production over years which a temporary rent ceiling would do little to 

correct.” Id. The GAI Report found that, rather than eliminating a grave housing emergency, 

rent-control measures consistent with section 125.0103 “may impede the objective of speeding 

overall housing deliveries as well as create a number of unintended consequences.” Id. 

22. As to each of the GAI Report’s major findings on the specific issues evaluated, 

Orange County’s retained consultants reached conclusions inconsistent with the existence-in-fact 

of a grave housing emergency that would be eliminated by the adoption of a rent-control 

ordinance. See Exh. B at 4-5 (addressing market and social metrics as to evidence of an 

“emergency”); Exh. B at 5-6 (addressing whether proposed rent-control measures would 

eliminate the conditions associated with the source of the emergency); Exh. B at 6-7 (addressing 

likely consequences of rent control measures). 

3. Orange County Adopts Rent-Control Ordinance Notwithstanding Statutory 
Restrictions and GAI Report’s Findings. 

 
23. At a meeting on June 7, 2022, the Orange County Board of County 

Commissioners was presented with the findings of the GAI Report. Following lengthy 

discussion, the issue was tabled for further deliberation at a special session. 

24. On June 23, 2022, the Board convened in special session and directed staff to 

begin drafting a rent-control ordinance. The Board reached consensus on the remaining issues 



9 

needed to create a full draft rent-control ordinance at a subsequent meeting held on July 26, 

2022. 

25. The Orange County Board of County Commissioners met again on August 9, 

2022. By a margin of 4-3, the Board voted to adopt the Rent-Control Ordinance and to place a 

referendum on approval before the voters at the November 2022 General Election. A copy of the 

Rent-Control Ordinance is attached as Exhibit C. 

26. The Rent-Control Ordinance has the “effect of imposing controls on rents.”          

§ 125.0103(2), Fla. Stat. Specifically, the Ordinance provides that “[n]o landlord shall demand, 

charge, or accept from a tenant a rent increase for a residential rental unit more than once in a 12-

month period.” Exh. C at 7 (Section 25-384(a)). The Ordinance also provides that “[n]o landlord 

shall demand, charge, or accept from any tenant a rent increase that is in excess of the existing 

rent multiplied by the Consumer Price Index for any residential rental unit except as otherwise 

allowed under Section 25-388 of this Ordinance.” Exh. C at 7 (Section 25-384(b)). 

27. A landlord violating the Rent-Control Ordinance is subject to a variety of 

penalties, including civil citations and fines imposed by the County’s code enforcement board of 

up to $15,000 per violation or $5,000 per day and prosecution resulting in imprisonment in the 

county jail for a term of up to 60 days. Exh. C at 11 (Section 25-390). The Rent-Control 

Ordinance also creates a private right of action authorizing any tenant aggrieved by a landlord’s 

alleged noncompliance to file suit in a court of competent jurisdiction and to recover “actual and 

punitive damages, reasonable attorney’s fees, interest, costs, or other relief, upon a finding that a 

violation of this ordinance has occurred or is about to occur.” Id. 

28. The Rent-Control Ordinance calls a referendum election to be held at the 

November 2022 General Election to determine whether the Ordinance will be approved by the 



10 

voters. Exh. C at 12. Ballots to be used in the referendum election must contain the following 

ballot statement: 

 

29. The Rent-Control Ordinance includes two sets of findings purportedly 

establishing the existence-in-fact of a housing emergency in Orange County so grave as to 

constitute a serious menace to the general public, and that the Rent-Control Ordinance is 

necessary and proper to eliminate the grave housing emergency. The first set of findings are set 

out in a series of conclusory recitals that are incorporated by reference: 

 WHEREAS, there are approximately 584,000 total housing units in Orange 
County of which 230,000 are occupied by renters, and according to the 2020 
census, Orange County has seen an approximate 25% increase in population since 
2010—from approximately 1.15 million people to approximately 1.43 million 
people; and 

 WHEREAS, there is a shortage of dwelling houses and apartments in Orange 
County, Florida needed to house the current and growing population; and 

 WHEREAS, because of the current shortage of housing, the vacancy rate for 
housing is low; and 

 WHEREAS, tenants displaced as a result of their inability to pay increasing rents 
must relocate, but are unable to find decent, safe, and sanitary housing at 
affordable rent levels; and 



11 

 WHEREAS, some tenants attempt to pay the requested rent increases, but as a 
consequence must expend less on other necessities of life; and 

 WHEREAS, this situation has had a detrimental effect on a substantial number of 
renters in Orange County creating hardships on senior citizens, persons on fixed 
incomes, and low and moderate-income households; and 

 WHEREAS, a housing emergency so grave as to constitute a serious menace to 
the general public exists in fact in Orange County; and 

 WHEREAS, it is necessary and proper to regulate rents to eliminate such grave 
housing emergency. 

Exh. C at 1-2.  

30. The second set of findings purportedly complying with section 125.0103(5)(b) are 

set out in Section 25-381 of the Rent-Control Ordinance, entitled “Legislative Findings and 

Purpose.” These findings include: 

 There is a shortage, scarcity, and insufficient supply of dwelling houses and apartments 
in Orange County, Florida. Relative to population, national production of housing units 
has declined from approximately 0.82 homes per person in the 1970s to approximately 
0.45 homes per person in 2019. In Orange County, there is a shortage of as many as 
26,500 housing units relative to the County’s need; and 

 According to the 2020 census, Orange County has seen an approximate 25% increase in 
population since 2010—from approximately 1.15 million people to approximately 1.43 
million people; and 

 There are approximately 584,000 total housing units in Orange County, of which 230,000 
are occupied by renters; and 

 The shortage of housing is further evidenced by the low vacancy rate for rental properties 
in Orange County which reached 5.2% in 2021—the lowest on record since at least the 
year 2000; and 

 Inflation, housing prices, and rental rates in Orange County are increasing, accelerating, 
and spiraling. The Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers in the South was 
9.2% from May 2021 to May 2022. The median existing home sales price in Orange 
County was $275,000 in May 2020 and $392,500 in May 2022, which represents a 43% 
increase. Asking rent per unit in the County was $1,357 in 2020 and $1,697 in 2021 
which represents a 25% year-over-year increase—the highest increase since 2006 when it 
was 6.7%; and 

 The housing conditions have resulted in widespread distress among Orange County 



12 

residents. It is estimated that 80.3% of households earning at or below the Average 
Median Income (AMI) in Orange County are considered “cost burdened” which the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development defines to include households who pay 
more than thirty-percent (30%) of their income for housing and may have difficulty 
affording necessities such as food, clothing, transportation, and medical care; and 

 The widespread distress in housing conditions is further evidenced as Orange County 
residents were awarded more funds from the State of Florida’s Emergency Rental 
Assistance Program 1 (“Emergency Program”) than any other county in the state. The 
Emergency Program has since ended while the County’s housing conditions continue to 
worsen; and 

 Orange County was in a housing crisis prior to the COVID-19 pandemic. In May 2018, 
Central Florida’s interjurisdictional Regional Affordable Housing Initiative said, 
“National and regional home prices and rents are pushing well above historic limits when 
compared to income and affordability. The situation has passed the point of concern and 
is now a crisis.” The housing crisis has worsened since the COVID-19 pandemic; and 

 Tenancies are being terminated and eviction rates are increasing. For the first half of 
2022, there have been 6,970 eviction case filings, which is a 70.1% increase over the 
same period in 2021; and 

 The findings made and recited in this ordinance establish the existence in fact of a 
housing emergency so grave as to constitute a serious menace to the general public; and 

 The Orange County Board of County Commissioners finds that this grave housing 
emergency cannot be dealt with effectively by the ordinary operations of the private 
rental housing market. In jurisdictions in Florida comparable to Orange County that do 
not have rent stabilization measures in place, rent increases continue to spiral. For 
example, in Hillsborough County, Duval County, and Broward County, the year-over-
year asking rent has increased by over 20%; and 

 Jurisdictions with rent stabilization measures in effect and otherwise comparable to 
Orange County have been successful in protecting tenants by establishing limits on rent 
increases while still providing landlords with a fair and reasonable return on their 
investment. For example, in California, Alameda County and Sacramento County contain 
rent control measures and have limited their year-over-year asking rent increases to 
approximately 5%-10% despite low vacancy rates; and 

 The Board finds that a rent stabilization measure is necessary and proper to eliminate the 
County’s housing emergency which is so grave as to constitute a serious menace to the 
general public. 

Exh. C at 2-5. 



13 

C. The Rent-Control Ordinance fails to satisfy the requirements of section 
125.0103 and is therefore invalid. 

 
31. First, the Rent-Control Ordinance fails to establish the existence-in-fact of a 

“housing emergency so grave as to constitute a serious menace to the general public.” Several of 

the findings contained in the Ordinance establish no baseline against which a “grave housing 

emergency” could be measured. See, e.g., Section 25-381(d) (acknowledging approximately 25% 

increase in the total population of Orange County from 2010 to 2020), Section 25-381(e) 

(finding approximately 584,000 total housing units in Orange County, of which 230,000 are 

occupied by renters). The Ordinance fails to explain why these numbers demonstrate a “grave 

housing emergency” or what different numbers would indicate the absence of a housing 

emergency. 

32. The Rent-Control Ordinance also ignores relevant evidence tending to refute the 

significance of its findings. For example, the Ordinance focuses on a “70.1% increase” in 

eviction rates for the first half of 2022 as compared to the first half of 2021 (Section 25-

381(k))—but fails to acknowledge the existence of the federal moratorium on evictions during 

the pandemic that existed throughout the entire first half of 2021. 

33. Contrary to the advice provided in the County Attorney’s Memorandum, the 

Ordinance’s finding of a “grave housing emergency” appears to be premised entirely on statistics 

addressing vacancy rates, rising rents, a shortage of housing, an increase in the cost of living, and 

“spiraling inflation.” Cf Exh. A at 6-8 with Exh. C at 2-5. These findings alone are insufficient to 

establish a “grave housing emergency” under Florida Supreme Court precedent, as explained in 

the County Attorney’s Memorandum. Exh. C at 6-8. Orange County cannot satisfy its 

evidentiary burden of proof. 



14 

34. But even if these findings could establish a “grave housing emergency,” the 

Ordinance contains no findings demonstrating a “serious menace to the general public” as 

required by section 125.0103(5)(b), Florida Statutes. As noted in the County Attorney’s 

Memorandum, a rent-control ordinance must include findings addressing the housing 

emergency’s impact on the health, safety, and welfare of the general public such as 

“overcrowding” resulting in “insanitary conditions” and “disease.” Exh. A at 7-8. Orange County 

did not include these findings in the Ordinance and cannot satisfy its evidentiary burden of proof. 

35. Finally, the Rent-Control Ordinance’s findings fail to establish that rent control is 

“necessary and proper” to “eliminate” the grave housing emergency in Orange County as 

required by section 125.0103(5)(b). As explained at length in the GAI Report, Orange County’s 

increased housing costs are “likely beyond the control of local regulation” and stemmed mostly 

from “inadequate housing production over years which a temporary rent ceiling would do little to 

correct.” Exh. B. at 3. The GAI Report commissioned by Orange County found that, rather than 

eliminating a grave housing emergency, rent-control measures consistent with section 125.0103 

“may impede the objective of speeding overall housing deliveries as well as create a number of 

unintended consequences.” Id.  

36. On this point, the Ordinance’s findings are limited to a conclusory allegation that 

a “rent stabilization measure is necessary and proper to eliminate the County’s housing 

emergency which is so grave as to constitute a serious menace to the general public.” Section 25-

381(o). Orange County did not include any specific factual findings on this point in the 

Ordinance and cannot satisfy its evidentiary burden of proof. 

 

 



15 

D. The Rent-Control Ordinance’s ballot statement violates section 101.161 and 
is therefore invalid. 

 
37. The ballot statement specified in the Rent-Control Ordinance is affirmatively 

misleading and fails to fairly inform voters of the chief purpose of the proposal in clear and 

unambiguous language. 

38. As described above, the Rent-Control Ordinance requires the following ballot 

statement to be provided to voters at the November 2022 referendum election: 

39. This ballot statement omits any reference to other aspects of the Rent-Control 

Ordinance that may be significant to voters: separate limitations on rent increases in Section 25-

384; the open-ended delegation of authority to Orange County’s Planning, Environmental, and 

Development Services Department to administer the Ordinance’s rental-unit registration process 

in Section 25-387; and the Ordinance’s enforcement and penalty provisions including the 

potential assessment of punitive damages, attorney-fee shifting, civil penalties, and 

imprisonment in the county jail in Section 25-390. 



16 

40. A ballot title and summary must be accurate. The ballot statement provided for 

the voters in the Rent-Control Ordinance contains omissions and affirmative misstatements that 

render it defective under section 101.161, Florida Statutes. 

Count 1: Declaratory Judgment – Invalidity of Ordinance 
(against all Defendants) 

 
41. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through 40 are incorporated by reference.  

42.  The allegations in this Complaint demonstrate a bona fide actual, present, and 

practical need for a declaration by this Court that the Rent-Control Ordinance is facially invalid 

under section 125.0103 of the Florida Statutes and Article VIII, § 1(g) of the Florida 

Constitution.  

43. In the absence of the declaratory relief sought in this action, Plaintiffs and their 

members would be placed in doubt or uncertainty as to their rights with respect to the Rent-

Control Ordinance. 

44. The statutory requirement that any rent-control measure be approved by the voters 

at a referendum election also implicates precedent favoring the prompt resolution of election-

related disputes “before the ballots [are] cast and results announced.” Republican Party of 

Miami-Dade Cnty. v. Davis, 18 So. 3d 1112, 1118 (Fla. 3d DCA 2009). 

45. It is adverse and antagonistic to the public interest and to the interests of the 

Plaintiffs and their members to allow the Rent-Control Ordinance to be placed on the ballot or 

enforced by Orange County where the Ordinance is unlawful and invalid. 

46. The adverse and antagonistic interests are all before this Court by proper process 

and the relief sought is not merely a request for legal advice or an advisory opinion. 

Count 2: Permanent Injunctive Relief – Invalidity of Ordinance 
(against all Defendants) 

47. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through 40 are incorporated by reference. 



17 

48. This is a claim for permanent injunctive relief to require: 

1) Defendant Bill Cowles, as Orange County Supervisor of Elections, and all 

others acting in concert with him, to refrain from: conducting the Referendum Election 

called in Section 3 of Ordinance 2022-29; including the Rent-Control Ordinance on any 

ballots that are printed for the November 2022 General Election; or tabulating, reporting, 

or certifying any votes cast for the Rent-Control Ordinance at the November 2022 

General Election, on the basis that the Rent-Control Ordinance is facially invalid under 

section 125.0103 of the Florida Statutes and Article VIII, § 1(g) of the Florida 

Constitution; and 

2) Defendant Orange County, and all others acting in concert with it, to refrain 

from enforcement of the Rent-Control Ordinance on the basis that the Rent-Control 

Ordinance is facially invalid under section 125.0103 of the Florida Statutes and Article 

VIII, § 1(g) of the Florida Constitution. 

49. Plaintiffs and their members have a clear legal right to the relief requested. 

Florida law prohibits local governments from adopting ordinances that would have the effect of 

imposing rent control except under narrow circumstances not present here. The Rent-Control 

Ordinance’s findings fail to establish “the existence in fact of a housing emergency so grave as to 

constitute a serious menace to the general public and that such controls are necessary and proper 

to eliminate such grave housing emergency.” § 125.0103, Fla. Stat. The Rent-Control Ordinance 

is therefore invalid. 

50. Plaintiffs and their members face a likelihood of irreparable harm if this Court 

does not grant the relief sought and allows the Rent-Control Ordinance to appear on the ballot 

and to be enforced notwithstanding its invalidity. 



18 

51. Plaintiffs and their members have no adequate remedy at law to address the harm 

described in this Complaint, as their injuries cannot be adequately remedied through money 

damages against Defendants.  

52. The public interest strongly favors the entry of a permanent injunction and the 

resolution of this dispute to prevent the holding of a referendum election or the enforcement of 

an invalid rent-control measure. 

Count 3: Declaratory Judgment – Invalid Ballot Statement 
(against all Defendants) 

 
53. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through 40 are incorporated by reference.  

54.  The allegations in this Complaint demonstrate a bona fide actual, present, and 

practical need for a declaration by this Court that the ballot statement for the Rent-Control 

Ordinance fails to comply with section 101.161 of the Florida Statutes.  

55. In the absence of the declaratory relief sought in this action, Plaintiffs and their 

members would be placed in doubt or uncertainty as to their rights with respect to the Rent-

Control Ordinance. 

56. The statutory requirement that any rent-control measure be approved by the voters 

at a referendum election also implicates precedent favoring the prompt resolution of election-

related disputes “before the ballots [are] cast and results announced.” Republican Party of 

Miami-Dade Cnty. v. Davis, 18 So. 3d 1112, 1118 (Fla. 3d DCA 2009). 

57. It is adverse and antagonistic to the public interest and to the interests of the 

Plaintiffs and their members to allow the Rent-Control Ordinance to be placed on the ballot 

when its ballot statement violates section 101.161 of the Florida Statutes. 

58. The adverse and antagonistic interests are all before this Court by proper process 

and the relief sought is not merely a request for legal advice or an advisory opinion. 



19 

Count 4: Permanent Injunctive Relief – Invalid Ballot Statement 
(against Supervisor of Elections) 

59. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through 40 are incorporated by reference. 

60. This is a claim for permanent injunctive relief to require Defendant Bill Cowles, 

as Orange County Supervisor of Elections, and all others acting in concert with him, to refrain 

from: conducting the Referendum Election called in Section 3 of Ordinance 2022-29; including 

the Rent-Control Ordinance on any ballots that are printed for the November 2022 General 

Election; or tabulating, reporting, or certifying any votes cast for the Rent-Control Ordinance at 

the November 2022 General Election, on the basis that the ballot statement for the Rent-Control 

Ordinance violates section 101.161 of the Florida Statutes. 

61. Plaintiffs and their members have a clear legal right to the relief requested. 

Florida law provides for the invalidation of ballot proposals whose ballot statements fail to 

comply with the clarity requirements of section 101.161. The ballot statement for the Rent-

Control Ordinance is not accurate, is affirmatively misleading, and fails to fairly inform voters of 

the chief purpose of the proposal in clear and unambiguous language. 

62. Plaintiffs and their members face a likelihood of irreparable harm if this Court 

does not grant the relief sought and allows the Rent-Control Ordinance to appear on the ballot 

notwithstanding the invalidity of its ballot statement. 

63. Plaintiffs and their members have no adequate remedy at law to address the harm 

described in this Complaint, as their injuries cannot be adequately remedied through money 

damages against Defendants.  

64. The public interest strongly favors the entry of a permanent injunction and the 

resolution of this dispute to prevent the holding of a referendum election on a measure whose 

ballot statement violates section 101.161, Florida Statutes. 



20 

Count 5: Quo Warranto 
(against Orange County) 

65. The allegations in paragraphs 1 through 40 are incorporated by reference. 

66. This is a claim for a writ of quo warranto to determine that Orange County has 

improperly exercised its powers derived from the State of Florida by adopting the Rent-Control 

Ordinance. 

67. Orange County lacks the authority to enact county ordinances inconsistent with 

general law. § 125.01(a), Fla. Stat.; Art. VIII, § 1(g), Fla. Const. Section 125.0103(2)-(6) of the 

Florida Statutes is a general law limiting the authority of local governments, such as Orange 

County, to enact ordinances that would have the effect of imposing controls on rents. 

68. Orange County exceeded its authority derived from the State of Florida by 

adopting the Rent-Control Ordinance, as its findings fail to establish “the existence in fact of a 

housing emergency so grave as to constitute a serious menace to the general public and that such 

controls are necessary and proper to eliminate such grave housing emergency.”

§ 125.0103(5)(b), Fla. Stat. 

69. Orange County’s failure to act in strict accordance with the requirements of 

Florida law makes it appropriate for this Court to issue a writ of quo warranto. 

70. The requested writ of quo warranto is also consistent with the public interest in 

ensuring that local governments comply with laws adopted by the Florida Legislature limiting 

the circumstances under which they can adopt local ordinances. 

RELIEF SOUGHT 

Wherefore, Plaintiffs requests that this Court: 

a. Enter a declaratory judgment that the Rent-Control Ordinance is facially invalid 

under section 125.0103 of the Florida Statutes and Article VIII, § 1(g) of the Florida Constitution 



21 

because the Ordinance’s findings fail to establish “the existence in fact of a housing emergency 

so grave as to constitute a serious menace to the general public and that such controls are 

necessary and proper to eliminate such grave housing emergency”; 

b. Enter a declaratory judgment that the ballot statement for the Rent-Control 

Ordinance is defective and fails to satisfy the clarity requirements of section 101.161 because it 

is affirmatively misleading and fails to clearly and unambiguously advise voters of the chief 

purpose of the proposal. 

c. Issue a permanent injunction requiring Defendant Orange County to refrain from 

enforcing the Rent-Control Ordinance and Defendant Cowles and those acting in concert with 

him from conducting a referendum election called in Section 3 of Ordinance 2022-29; including 

the Ordinance on any ballots printed for the November 2022 General Election; or tabulating, 

reporting, or certifying any votes cast for the Rent-Control Ordinance at the November 2022 

General Election, on the basis that the Rent-Control Ordinance is facially invalid under section 

125.0103 of the Florida Statutes and Article VIII, § 1(g) of the Florida Constitution. 

d. Issue a permanent injunction requiring Defendant Cowles and all others acting in 

concert with him, to refrain from: conducting the Referendum Election called in Section 3 of 

Ordinance 2022-29; including the Rent-Control Ordinance on any ballots that are printed for the 

November 2022 General Election; or tabulating, reporting, or certifying any votes cast for the 

Rent-Control Ordinance at the November 2022 General Election, on the basis that the ballot 

statement for the Rent-Control Ordinance violates section 101.161 of the Florida Statutes 

e. Issue a writ of quo warranto determining that Orange County has exceeded its 

authority derived from the State of Florida by adopting the Rent-Control Ordinance and that the 

Ordinance is therefore facially invalid. 



22 

f. Grant such other or further relief the Court deems appropriate, including but not 

limited to an award of attorney’s fees under section 57.112, Florida Statutes, and costs.  

Respectfully submitted, 

SCOTT A. GLASS (FBN 911364) 
ERIK F. SZABO (FBN 572993) 
300 South Orange Avenue, Suite 1600 
Orlando, Florida 32801 
(407) 423-3200 
SGlass@shutts.com 
ESzabo@shutts.com 

/s/ Daniel Nordby      
DANIEL NORDBY (FBN 14588) 
BENJAMIN GIBSON (FBN 58661) 
SHUTTS & BOWEN LLP 
215 South Monroe Street, Suite 804 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
(850) 241-1717 
DNordby@shutts.com 
BGibson@shutts.com 
 

Counsel for Florida Realtors and Florida Apartment Association 

 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

AGENDA DATE: September 20, 2022 DEPARTMENT: Community Sustainability 

TITLE: 

Ordinance 2022-12 - First Reading - Consideration of an ordinance amending Chapter 23 “Land 
Development Regulations,” Article 1 “General Provisions,” Division 2 “Definitions,” and Article 2 
“Administration”, Division 3 “Permits” adding a new Section 23.2-39 “Affordable/Workforce 
Housing Program,” providing for a Lake Worth Beach Affordable/Workforce Housing Program 
and scheduling a second reading and public hearing on October 6, 2022 

 
SUMMARY: 

The proposed amendment would add a new section to the Land Development Regulations 
(LDRs) providing for a Lake Worth Beach Affordable/Workforce Housing Program, which would 
require that a percentage of any density, intensity and/or height bonuses be associated with a 
specific dedication of affordable/workforce housing units.  In addition, the program allows for a 
density increase for all projects provided that the additional density is all deed restricted as 
affordable/workforce housing.  

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The subject amendment to the City’s Land Development Regulations (LDRs) was drafted based 
on City Commission direction to staff to prepare an amendment to the LDRs to develop a formal 
Lake Worth Beach Affordable/Workforce Housing Program.  The proposed program also meets 
a specific requirement of the City’s Comprehensive Plan as well as several Pillars within the 
City’s Strategic Plan. 

In summary, applicants/developers requesting increases in density, intensity and/or height 
through the city’s incentive and/or bonus program(s) shall provide for a dedication of a minimum 
fifteen percent (15%) of a project’s total number of housing units as affordable/workforce.  The 
units will be governed by both a deed restriction and a restrictive covenant for twenty (20) years.  
The program applies to both rental and fee simple ownership units.  The program also allows 
for the Commission to have an option to extend the restrictive covenant in increments of twenty 
(20) years.  In addition, the program allows for up to a fifteen percent (15%) increase in total 
density for all projects provided that all of the additional units are restricted as 
affordable/workforce housing units.  Finally, an Affordable/Workforce Housing Trust Fund is to 
be established to assist with the creation and preservation of affordable units. 

As part of the program, developers/project owners will be required to submit an annual audited 
report to the City to verify that the specified affordable/workforce housing units meet the 
requirements of the restrictive covenant.  Should the report not be submitted or the units not 
meet the affordability requirements, the program includes a penalty provision assessing a fee 
that must be paid to the City.  Any penalty fees collected will be placed in the affordable housing 
trust fund.  

The Planning & Zoning Board (PZB) unanimously voted to recommend approval of the proposed 
text amendment to the City Commission at its June 1, 2022 meeting*.  The Historic Resources 



 

 

Preservation Board (HRPB) also unanimously voted to recommend approval of the proposed 
text amendment to the City Commission at the June 8, 2022 meeting*.  

At its meeting of August 2, 2022, the City Commission voted unanimously to approve the 
proposed ordinance with the proposed penalty fee to be a minimum of $15/sq. ft., which will be 
reviewed and adopted in the City’s Schedule of Fees and Charges with its value to increase 
based on the Consumer Price Index.  In addition, the penalty was to be assessed on a yearly 
basis for those units that do not meet the affordable/workforce criteria as established by the 
ordinance.  These changes are highlighted in yellow on the attached ordinance. 

With the August 16, 2022, City Commission meeting, discussion focused on clarifications and 
more information regarding the ordinance.  The ordinance was tabled for a second reading on 
September 20, 2022.  Over the intervening weeks, the changes and edits were extensive 
enough to warrant a second first reading with a subsequent second reading should the 
ordinance be approved. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Ordinance 2022-12 on first reading amending Chapter 23 “Land 
Development Regulations,” Article 1 “General Provisions,” Division 2 “Definitions,” and Article 2 
“Administration”, Division 3 “Permits” adding a new Section 23.2-39 “Affordable/Workforce 
Housing Program,” providing for a Lake Worth Beach Affordable/Workforce Housing Program 
and scheduling a second reading and public hearing on October 6, 2022. 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

Draft Ordinance 2022-12 
PZHP Staff Report  
 

*Note: draft meeting minutes were not available upon publication of this staff report. 



2022-12 1 

 2 
ORDINANCE 2022-12 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKE 3 

WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 23 “LAND 4 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS,” ARTICLE 1 “GENERAL 5 
PROVISIONS,” DIVISION 2 “DEFINITIONS,” SECTION 23.1-12 6 
“DEFINITIONS,” ADDING A NEW DEFINITIONS “ANNUAL GROSS 7 
HOUSEHOLD INCOME,” “GROSS RENT” AND “OVERALL HOUSING 8 

EXPENSE;” AND ARTICLE 2 “ADMINISTRATION,” DIVISION 3 9 
“PERMITS,” ADDING A NEW SECTION 23.2-39 10 
“AFFORDABLE/WORKFORCE HOUSING PROGRAM,” PROVIDING 11 
FOR AN AFFORDABLE/WORKFORCE HOUSING PROGRAM WITHIN 12 
THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH; AND PROVIDING FOR 13 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, CODIFICATION AND AN EFFECTIVE 14 
DATE 15 

 16 
WHEREAS, as provided in Section 2(b), Article VIII of the Constitution of the State 17 

of Florida, and Section 166.021(1), Florida Statutes, the City of Lake Worth Beach (the 18 
“City”), enjoys all governmental, corporate, and proprietary powers necessary to conduct 19 

municipal government, perform municipal functions, and render municipal services, and 20 
may exercise any power for municipal purposes, except as expressly prohibited by law; 21 

and  22 
 23 
WHEREAS, as provided in Section 166.021(3), Florida Statutes, the governing 24 

body of each municipality in the state has the power to enact legislation concerning any 25 
subject matter upon which the state legislature may act, except when expressly prohibited 26 

by law; and  27 

 28 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend Chapter 23 Land Development 29 
Regulations,” Article 1 “General Provisions,” Division 2 “Definitions,” Section 23.1.12 30 
definitions, to add definitions and to define “Annual Gross Household Income,” “Gross 31 

Rent” and “Overall Housing Expense;” and 32 
 33 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend Chapter 23, Article 2 “Administration,” to 34 
establish a new section, Section 23.2-39 – Affordable/Workforce Housing Program to 35 
establish an affordable/workforce housing program within the City of Lake Worth Beach; 36 

and 37 
 38 

WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the “City”), is a duly constituted 39 

municipality having such power and authority conferred upon it by the Florida Constitution 40 

and Chapter 166, Florida Statutes; and 41 
 42 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board, in its capacity as the local planning 43 

agency, considered the proposed amendments at a duly advertised public hearing; and 44 
 45 

WHEREAS, the Historic Resources Preservation Board, in its capacity as the local 46 
planning agency, considered the proposed amendments at a duly advertised public 47 
hearing; and 48 

 49 



Pg. 2, Ord. 2022-12 

 

WHEREAS, the City Commission finds and declares that the adoption of this 50 

ordinance is appropriate, and in the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of the 51 
City, its residents and visitors. 52 

 53 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 54 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 55 
 56 
Section 1: The foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are ratified and confirmed as 57 

being true and correct and are made a specific part of this ordinance as if set forth herein.  58 
 59 

Section 2: Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,”, Article 1 “General 60 
Provisions,” Division 2 “Definitions,” Section 23.1-12 “Definitions,” is hereby amended by 61 
adding thereto new definitions “Annual Gross Household Income,” “Gross Rent” and 62 

“Overall Housing Expense” to read as follows: 63 
 64 
Annual Gross Household Income: Total gross income of all wage-earning 65 

residents residing within a single dwelling unit. 66 
 67 
Gross Rent: Total all-inclusive dollar amount required from a lessee by a lessor for 68 

a single dwelling unit. 69 
 70 
Median Household Income: Gross income for 4 people, also known as Area 71 

Median Income, published annually for Palm Beach County by the U.S. Department of 72 
Housing and Urban Development. 73 

 74 

Overall Housing Expense: Total homeowner expenses for mortgage, mortgage 75 

insurance, property insurance and taxes. 76 
 77 

Section 3: Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,”, Article 2 78 
“Administration,” is hereby amended by adding thereto a new Section 23.2-39 79 

“Affordable/Workforce Housing Program” to read as follows: 80 
 81 

Sec. 23.2-39. – Affordable/Workforce Housing Program. 82 
 83 

a) Intent. The Affordable/Workforce Housing Program is intended to implement 84 

Objective 3.1.2 of the city comprehensive plan future land use element and 85 
provisions therein regarding affordable and workforce housing. The 86 

Affordable/Workforce Housing Program provides for a density bonus and a 87 
reduction in overall housing unit areas for developments that incorporate 88 
residential units with restrictive covenants that meet the requirements of the 89 
program. 90 

 91 
b) Purpose. The purpose of the Affordable/Workforce Housing Program is to 92 

encourage the inclusion of affordable and workforce housing units within both 93 
residential and mixed-use projects as well as planned developments of all types to 94 
provide for broader and more accessible housing options within the City.  The 95 
Affordable/Workforce Housing Program offers the following as “Program 96 
Incentives”;  97 



Pg.3, Ord. 2022-12 
 

 98 

1.  Tier One: may apply to all development projects consistent with the 99 
provisions of this section 100 
(a)  Up to a fifteen percent (15%) increase in overall project density; 101 
(b)  Up to a fifteen percent (15%) reduction in the gross area requirements 102 

based on unit type; 103 

(c)  Up to a twenty five percent (25%) reduction in required parking, provided 104 
that each residential dwelling unit is provided at least one (1) parking 105 
space and the entire project is affordable/workforce housing meeting 106 
the requirements of this section. This reduction may not be combined 107 
with other parking reduction provisions of these LDRs; 108 

 (d)  Any additional density and/or other benefits provided under this tier 109 
shall require that those units benefiting from the provisions be restricted 110 

as affordable/workforce housing meeting the requirements of this 111 
section through a restrictive covenant. 112 

(e) Additional financial incentives may be considered on a case by case 113 
basis by the applicable decision-making entity if the project provides 114 
more affordable/workforce units that the minimum required. 115 

2. Tier Two: applies to all projects utilizing other city incentive and/or bonus 116 
program(s)  117 

(a) For all projects utilizing any other city incentive or bonus program(s), 118 
fifteen percent (15%) of the total number of dwelling units within the 119 
project must restricted as affordable/workforce dwelling units meeting 120 

the requirements of this section through a restrictive covenant. 121 
(b) Any combination of Tier One incentives with other city incentive and/or 122 

bonus program(s) related to density, intensity and/or height shall 123 
require that all units benefiting from these increases and/or incentives 124 

be restricted as affordable/workforce dwelling units meeting the 125 
requirements of this section through a restrictive covenant. 126 

 127 
c) Application and Review Process. 128 

 129 

1. Application.  All development proposals seeking increased density of up to 130 

fifteen percent (15%) and/or reductions in overall unit sizes of up to fifteen 131 
percent (15%) shall submit an affordable/workforce housing program 132 

application as provided by the department of community sustainability.  The 133 
application shall accompany the standard City of Lake Worth Beach Universal 134 
Development Application for the development proposal. The 135 

affordable/workforce housing program application shall include all of the 136 
following: 137 
 138 
(a) A project fact sheet with building specifications including the number of 139 

additional units, unit types and unit sizes proposed. 140 
 141 

(b) The affordability criteria for each unit proposed to be included in the project. 142 
 143 

(c) Draft restrictive covenant should the City’s version not be submitted. 144 
 145 



Pg. 4, Ord. 2022-12 

 

(d) Any other additional information to ensure the timely and efficient evaluation 146 

of the project by city staff to ensure that the requirements of the 147 
Affordable/Workforce Housing Program are being met. 148 
 149 

2. Review/decision. The development review official shall review the application 150 

along with the zoning approvals otherwise required of the development 151 
proposal under these LDRs. Development applications that require further 152 
review or approval by a decision-making board shall also include the 153 
development review official's recommendation regarding the award of 154 
additional density and/or unit size reduction under the Affordable/Workforce 155 

Housing Program. Any decision on the award shall be made by the planning 156 
and zoning board, the historic resources planning board, or the city commission 157 
as applicable. A decision on an award may be appealed under the procedures 158 

applicable to the development application with which it is associated. No waiver 159 
or variance may be granted regarding the award. The award of bonus density, 160 
height or intensity under the Affordable/Workforce Housing Program shall be 161 

based on the following criteria: 162 
 163 

(a) Is the award calculated correctly, consistent with the density and unit size 164 
reduction(s) that are allowed under the Affordable/Workforce Housing 165 
Program; 166 

 167 
(b) Do the proposed income restrictions meet the intent of the 168 

Affordable/Workforce Housing Program; 169 

 170 

(c) Do the proposed annual rents and/or mortgage costs meet the intent of the 171 
Affordable/Workforce Housing Program; and 172 

 173 

(d)  Do the proposed restrictive covenants to maintain affordability meet the 174 
intent of the Affordable/Workforce Housing Program? 175 

 176 
d) Qualifying income restrictions.  The following provisions outline the required 177 

income limits and overall percentage of household income to qualify units as being 178 
affordable/workforce under the Affordable/Workforce Housing Program.  All 179 

income values shall be based on the then current area (County) median household 180 
income published annually by the US Department of Housing & Urban 181 
Development.  Whether with a rental unit or for a fee simple, for sale unit, the 182 

overall housing expense (rent, mortgage, property taxes, and insurances) for the 183 
unit shall not exceed thirty percent (30%) of the income limit provided for each unit 184 
type, based upon the number of bedrooms. 185 

 186 

1. For a studio unit, the annual gross household income shall not exceed forty five 187 
percent (45%) of area median income and minimum household size is one (1) 188 
person, not to exceed two (2) people. 189 

 190 

2. For a one-bedroom unit, the annual gross household income shall not exceed 191 
sixty five percent (65%) of the area median income and minimum household 192 
size of one (1) person, not to exceed two (2) people. 193 



Pg.5, Ord. 2022-12 
 

 194 

3. For a two-bedroom unit, the annual gross household income shall not exceed 195 
eighty five percent (85%) of the area median income and minimum household 196 
size of two (2) people, not to exceed two (2) people per bedroom. 197 
 198 

4. For a three-bedroom unit, the annual gross household income shall not exceed 199 

one hundred and five percent (105%) of the area median income and minimum 200 
household size of three (3) people, not to exceed two (2) people per bedroom. 201 

 202 

5. For a four or more-bedroom unit, the annual gross household income shall not 203 
exceed one hundred and twenty five percent (125%) of the area median income 204 

and minimum household size of four (4) people, not to exceed two (2) people 205 
per bedroom. 206 

 207 

6. For fee simple ownership, the limits provided above may be increased by fifteen 208 
(15%) based on unit type and shall include the overall housing expense. 209 

 210 

7. Alternatively, the income restrictions may adhere to the following guidelines 211 

singularly or in combination. 212 
 213 

a. “Affordable Housing Eligible Households” means a household with an 214 
annual gross household income at or less than eighty percent (80%) of 215 
the Area Median Income, calculated as percentages of the Median 216 

Family Income for Palm Beach County, as published annually by the US 217 
Department of Housing and Urban Development. 218 

 219 
b. “Workforce Housing Eligible Households” means a household with an 220 

annual gross household income within the following income categories: 221 
Moderate (80%-100%) and Middle (101%-140%) of the Area Median 222 

Income, calculated as percentages of the Median Family Income for 223 
Palm Beach County, as published annually by the US Department of 224 
Housing and Urban Development. 225 

 226 
e) Additional restrictions.  The following requirements outline the restrictive covenant 227 

that shall be recorded and maintained on each unit awarded under the 228 

Affordable/Workforce Housing Program. 229 
 230 

1. The restrictive covenant shall be in a legal form acceptable to the department 231 

of community sustainability and the city attorney’s office or as otherwise 232 
provided by the city and shall require each unit awarded be maintained at the 233 
awarded level of affordability, in accordance with the Affordable/Workforce 234 
Housing Program, for a minimum of twenty (20) years. 235 

 236 

2. The restrictive covenant shall include the more restrictive program 237 
requirements, which shall govern the project if other affordable/workforce 238 
housing incentives are combined with use of the Affordable/Workforce Housing 239 
Program. 240 

 241 



Pg. 6, Ord. 2022-12 

 

3. The restrictive covenant shall require an annual report of the project’s 242 

compliance with the restrictive covenants and the requirements of the 243 
Affordable/Workforce Housing Program be provided to the City or its designee 244 
for evaluation, review and approval.  Should the annual report not be submitted 245 
or should it demonstrate the project is not meeting the requirements of the 246 

Affordable/Workforce Housing Program, the project owner shall pay the city, as 247 
a penalty, an amount no less than fifteen dollars ($15) per square foot for each 248 
unit that did not comply with the program’s requirements for the previous year, 249 
or portion thereof. If the report is not submitted, the penalty payment will be 250 
calculated as though no units met the requirements of the Affordable/Workforce 251 

Housing Program for the reporting period. The per square foot penalty value 252 
may increase based on the annual U.S. Consumer Price Index (CPI) and shall 253 
be reflected in the City’s adopted annual Schedule of Fees and Charges. Any 254 

required penalty payment shall be made within ten (10) days of notification from 255 
the city of the calculated payment based on the report or failure to submit the 256 
report and the annual penalty value as adopted by the city. 257 

 258 

4. The restrictive covenant shall provide for extension of the affordability period, 259 

as set forth in this section. 260 
 261 

f) Financial incentives.  The following are parameters for financial incentive values 262 

based on unit type, which may be utilized to ensure more than the required fifteen 263 
percent (15%) of the dwelling units available after the density increase incentive 264 
remain affordable for a guaranteed twenty (20) year period as governed through a 265 

covenant and/or deed restriction.  Values may be paid through utilization of 266 

Sustainable Bonus Incentive Values, Transfer Development Right Values or cash 267 
payments from the City from the Affordable/Workforce Housing Program Trust 268 
Fund, Sustainable Bonus Incentive Trust Account or the Transfer Development 269 

Rights Trust Account or other legally approved funding source(s). 270 
 271 

1. For a studio dwelling unit, a one-time payment of $40,000 or 50% percent of 272 
the area median income, whichever is greater; 273 
 274 

2. For a one-bedroom dwelling unit, a one-time payment of $60,000 or 75% 275 

percent of the area median income, whichever is greater; 276 
 277 

3. For a two-bedroom dwelling unit, a one-time payment of $80,000 or 100% 278 

percent of the area median income, whichever is greater; 279 
 280 

4. For a three-bedroom dwelling unit, a one-time payment of $100,000 or 125% 281 
percent of the area median income, whichever is greater; 282 

 283 

5. For a four or more-bedroom dwelling unit, a one-time payment of $120,000 or 284 
150% percent of the area median income, whichever is greater; 285 

 286 

6. For a fee simple ownership dwelling unit, an additional one-time payment of 287 
$25,000 may be provided; and 288 

 289 



Pg.7, Ord. 2022-12 
 

7. Payments shall be made at time of dwelling units receiving a final certificate of 290 

occupancy or certificate of completion. 291 
 292 

g) Affordability extension(s).  The City shall have the express right, in its sole 293 

discretion, to extend the affordability deed restrictions and covenants for another 294 
period of no less than twenty (20) years) through the provision of a then current 295 

economic incentive payment based on unit size. 296 
 297 

1.  The City shall provide formal notice of intent to extend affordability of units a 298 
minimum of six (6) months prior to the expiration of the affordability deed 299 
restrictions and covenants. 300 

 301 
2. The City’s notice shall include the number and type of units having affordability 302 

extended and the economic incentive to be provided for those units. 303 
 304 

3. The affordability extension may not exceed the original number and type of 305 
units governed by the Affordable/Workforce Housing Program. 306 

 307 

4. There shall be no limit on the number of affordability extensions the city may 308 
fund for a project. 309 

 310 
5. The extension incentive payment shall follow the parameters as set forth in f) 311 

of this section based on the values established for the year that the extension 312 

is authorized. 313 
 314 

h) Policies and Procedures.  The city’s director for community sustainability is hereby 315 

authorized to establish policies and procedures including covenants, accountability 316 

and reporting to ensure effective implementation of the Affordable/Workforce 317 
Housing Program and clarify the requirements and procedures as set forth herein. 318 

 319 
i) Trust Fund. There is hereby established an Affordable/Workforce Housing 320 

Program Trust Fund. The trust fund will be a separate line item in the City’s budget.  321 

 322 
1. Payments required by the Affordable/Workforce Housing Program due to non-323 

compliance with restrictive covenants shall be paid into the trust fund.  324 

 325 
2. Funds in the trust fund will be used to fund the financial incentives and the 326 

affordability extensions under the Affordable/Workforce Housing Program. 327 

 328 
3. At least once each fiscal period, the city manager shall present to the city 329 

commission a report on funds held in the trust fund, including any accrued 330 
interest, and any proposed use thereof.  Monies, including any accrued interest, 331 

not assigned in any fiscal period shall be retained in the trust fund until the next 332 
fiscal period. 333 

 334 
j) In Lieu Payment Provision.  In some instances, projects including Density, Intensity 335 

and/or Height Bonuses may not be appropriate for participation in the Program.  In 336 



Pg. 8, Ord. 2022-12 

 

these cases, the project may pay an in lieu of payment based on the following 337 

provisions; 338 
1. The fee shall be calculated on fifteen percent (15%) of the gross area of the 339 

bonuses requested for the project. 340 
2. The fee shall be a one-time payment of $50 or 0.0625% of the area median 341 

income, whichever is greater, per gross square foot. 342 
3. Projects eligible for an in lieu of payment may include the following: 343 

i. Single or multiple use projects that do not include a residential use; 344 
ii. Mixed use projects that include residential and fewer than 25 345 

residential units; 346 

iii. Residential only projects that include fewer than 15 residential units; 347 
iv. Any project that includes a residential use(s) and all of the dwelling 348 

units are for sale, home ownership such as condominiums, 349 

townhouses and/or single-family residences of which none are deed 350 
restricted as affordable/workforce housing. 351 

4. Fee payment shall be due prior to issuance of any building permits related 352 

to the project. 353 
 354 

k) Exemptions.  Projects in specific locations are exempt from the requirements of 355 

this section due to their maximum allowed density and/or to their allowed uses.   356 
1. Individual residential dwelling units in the Single Family Residential (SF-R) 357 

and Single Family/Two Family Residential (SF/TF) Zoning Districts unless 358 
units are part of a project requesting additional densities under the 359 
provisions of one of the city’s incentive programs. 360 

2. Projects within the Public (P), Public Recreation and Open Space (PROS), 361 

Beach and Casino (BAC), Conservation (C) and Industrial Park of 362 
Commerce (I-POC) Zoning Districts. 363 

 364 

Section 4: Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or 365 
portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 366 

competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and 367 
independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 368 
portions thereof.  369 

 370 

Section 5:  Repeal of Laws in Conflict.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in 371 
conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 372 

 373 

Section 6: Codification.  The sections of the ordinance may be made a part of 374 
the City Code of Laws and ordinances and may be re-numbered or re-lettered to 375 
accomplish such, and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section”, “division”, or 376 
any other appropriate word. 377 

 378 
Section 7: Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective 10 days after 379 

passage. 380 
 381 

The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by Commissioner 382 
Malega, seconded by Commissioner Stokes, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was 383 
as follows: 384 



Pg.9, Ord. 2022-12 
 

 385 

Mayor Betty Resch  386 
Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy 387 
Commissioner Sarah Malega 388 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes 389 
Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz 390 

 391 
The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the 392 

20th day of September, 2022. 393 
 394 

 395 

The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by 396 
_________________, seconded by ________________, and upon being put to a vote, 397 

the vote was as follows: 398 
 399 

Mayor Betty Resch  400 
Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy  401 
Commissioner Sarah Malega  402 

Commissioner Kimberly Stokes  403 
Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz  404 

 405 
The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the _______ day of 406 

_____________________, 2022. 407 

 408 
LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 409 

 410 
 411 

By: __________________________ 412 
Betty Resch, Mayor 413 

 414 
ATTEST: 415 
 416 

 417 
____________________________ 418 
Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 419 

 420 



 
City Of Lake Worth 

Department for Community Sustainability 

Planning, Zoning and Historic Preservation Division 

1900 Second Avenue North · Lake Worth · Florida 33461· Phone: 561-586-1687  
  

 

DATE:  May 25, 2022  
 
TO:  Members of the Planning & Zoning and Historic Resources Preservation Boards 
 
FROM:  William Waters, Director Community Sustainability 
 
MEETING:  June 1 & June 8, 2022 
 
SUBJECT: Ordinance 2022-12: Consideration of an ordinance amending Chapter 23 “Land Development 

Regulations,” Article 1 “General Provisions,” Division 2 “Definitions,” Section 23.1-12 “Definitions,” 
adding new definitions “Annual Gross Household Income,” “Gross Rent,” “Overall Housing 
Expense,” and "Median Household Income;" and Article 2 “Administration,” Division 3 “Permits,” 
adding a new Section 23.2-39 “Affordable/Workforce Housing Program.” 

 

 
PROPOSAL / BACKGROUND/ ANALYSIS: 
The subject amendment to the City’s Land Development Regulations (LDR) was drafted based on City Commission 
direction to staff to create an Affordable/Workforce Housing Program to encourage the development of affordable 
and/or workforce housing units within the City.  The proposed program would allow several incentives, including a 
15% density bonus and additionally flexibility in unit size, parking requirements and financial incentives provided 
that no less than 15% of the total dwelling units are deed restricted as affordable.   
 
The proposed amendments would add a new section to the LDR in Chapter 23 of the City’s Code of Ordinances: 

 Article 1, Section 23.1-12 – Definitions 

 Article 2, NEW Section 23.2-39 – Affordable/Workforce Housing Program 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning and Zoning Board and Historic Resources Preservation Board recommend that 
the City Commission adopt Ordinance 2022-12. 
 
POTENTIAL MOTION: 
 
I move to RECOMMEND/NOT RECOMMEND TO THE CITY COMMISSION TO ADOPT the proposed LDR text 
amendments included in Ordinance 2022-12. 
 
Attachments 

A. Draft Ordinance 2022-12 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: September 20, 2022 DEPARTMENT: Community Sustainability 

TITLE: 

Ordinance 2022-13 - First Reading - Consideration of an ordinance amending Chapter 23 “Land 
Development Regulations,” Article 1 “General Provisions,” Division 2 “Definitions,” Section 23.1-
12 “Definitions,” and Article 4 “Development Standards”, adding a new Section 23.4-25 “Micro-
Units,” providing for Micro-Unit Housing 

 
SUMMARY: 

The proposed amendment would add a new section to the Land Development Regulations 
(LDRs) providing for Micro-Unit Housing, which would allow for the development and 
construction of micro-units providing that they meet specific development standards as a 
conditional use.   

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The subject amendment to the City’s Land Development Regulations (LDRs) was drafted based 
on City Commission direction to staff to bring back for formal consideration a micro-unit housing 
program.   The amendment allows for the development and construction of micro-unit housing 
units that must meet specific development standards as a conditional use within the City’s mixed 
use zoning districts.  

The Planning & Zoning Board (PZB) unanimously voted to recommend approval of the proposed 
text amendment to the City Commission at its June 1, 2022 meeting*.  The Historic Resources 
Preservation Board (HRPB) also unanimously voted to recommend approval of the proposed 
text amendment to the City Commission at the June 8, 2022 meeting*.  

At its meeting of August 2, 2022, the City Commission unanimously approved the proposed 
ordinance on first reading. 

With the August 16, 2022, City Commission meeting, discussion focused on clarifications and 
more information regarding the ordinance.  The ordinance was tabled for a second reading on 
September 20, 2022.  Over the intervening weeks, the clarifications were extensive enough to 
warrant a second first reading with a subsequent second reading should the ordinance be 
approved. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Ordinance 2022-13 on first reading and set the second reading 
and public hearing for October 6, 2022. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Draft Ordinance 2022-13 



 

PZHP Staff Report  
 

*Note: draft meeting minutes were not available upon publication of this staff report. 



2022-13 1 

 2 
ORDINANCE 2022-13 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKE 3 

WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 23 “LAND 4 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS,” ARTICLE 1 “GENERAL 5 
PROVISIONS,” DIVISION 2 “DEFINITIONS,” SECTION 23.1-12 6 
“DEFINITIONS,” ADDING A NEW DEFINITION “MICRO-UNIT;” AND 7 
ARTICLE 4 “DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS,” ADDING A NEW SECTION 8 

23.4-25 “MICRO-UNITS,” PROVIDING FOR DEVELOPMENT 9 
STANDARDS FOR MICRO-UNITS; AND PROVIDING FOR 10 
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, CODIFICATION AND AN EFFECTIVE 11 
DATE 12 

 13 

WHEREAS, as provided in Section 2(b), Article VIII of the Constitution of the State 14 
of Florida, and Section 166.021(1), Florida Statutes, the City of Lake Worth Beach (the 15 

“City”), enjoys all governmental, corporate, and proprietary powers necessary to conduct 16 
municipal government, perform municipal functions, and render municipal services, and 17 
may exercise any power for municipal purposes, except as expressly prohibited by law; 18 
and  19 

 20 
WHEREAS, as provided in Section 166.021(3), Florida Statutes, the governing 21 

body of each municipality in the state has the power to enact legislation concerning any 22 
subject matter upon which the state legislature may act, except when expressly prohibited 23 
by law; and  24 

 25 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend Chapter 23 Land Development 26 

Regulations,” Article 1 “General Provisions,” Division 2 “Definitions,” Section 23.1.12 27 

definitions, to a definition and to define the new use, “Micro-Unit;” and 28 

 29 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend Chapter 23, Article 4 “Development 30 

Standards,” to establish a new section, Section 23.4-25 – Micro-Units to establish 31 

supplementary development standards for this use; and 32 
 33 

WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the “City”), is a duly constituted 34 
municipality having such power and authority conferred upon it by the Florida Constitution 35 
and Chapter 166, Florida Statutes; and 36 

 37 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board, in its capacity as the local planning 38 

agency, considered the proposed amendments at a duly advertised public hearing; and 39 

 40 

WHEREAS, the Historic Resources Preservation Board, in its capacity as the local 41 
planning agency, considered the proposed amendments at a duly advertised public 42 
hearing; and 43 

 44 
WHEREAS, the City Commission finds and declares that the adoption of this 45 

ordinance is appropriate, and in the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of the 46 
City, its residents and visitors. 47 

 48 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 49 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 50 



Pg. 2, Ord. 2022-13 

 

 51 

Section 1: The foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are ratified and confirmed as 52 
being true and correct and are made a specific part of this ordinance as if set forth herein.  53 

 54 
Section 2: Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,”, Article 1 “General 55 

Provisions,” Division 2 “Definitions,” Section 23.1-12 “Definitions,” is hereby amended by 56 
adding thereto a new definition “Micro-unit” to read as follows: 57 

 58 
Micro-unit: a small residential unit with a total square footage between 250 square 59 

feet and 750 square feet with a fully functioning kitchen and bathroom; and may include 60 

a maximum of two (2) bedrooms with each unit equivalent to 0.75 residential dwelling 61 
units only for determining density. 62 

 63 

Section 3: Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,”, Article 4 64 
“Development Standards,” is hereby amended by adding thereto a new Section 23.4-25 65 
“Micro-units” to read as follows: 66 

 67 
Sec. 23.4-25. – Micro-units. 68 

 69 
a) Project size.  All micro-unit projects must provide a minimum of 20 micro-units. 70 

 71 

b) Micro-Unit Use Restriction.  Micro-units must be residential and may not be converted 72 

to other uses. Each micro-unit must be separately metered for electric. 73 
 74 

c) Personal service, retail or commercial space.  All micro-unit projects shall be designed 75 

as mixed use projects providing personal service, retail and/or commercial areas, 76 
including the required parking as set forth in this section and shall be allowed only 77 
within the City’s mixed use zoning districts. Uses other than residential must account 78 

for at least 10% of the gross area of the project. 79 
 80 

d) Residential Building Type.  All micro-unit projects must be in a multi-family structure 81 

or collection of multi-family structures. Individual micro-units may not be combined to 82 
facilitate larger individual units. 83 
 84 

e) Interior shared common areas.  Interior shared common areas supporting micro-units 85 

must equate to 10% of the gross living area of all residential units within the project.  86 
Such supporting common areas shall include but not be limited to the following: 87 

1. Reading Room, 88 
2. Gym/Exercise Facilities, 89 
3. Virtual Office Space, 90 
4. Party/Community Room, 91 

5. Game Room, 92 
6. Library, 93 
7. Movie Theatre, 94 
8. Gourmet Kitchen, 95 
9. Art Labs, 96 
10. Other similarly situated common usage areas, and 97 



Pg.3, Ord. 2022-13 

11. Essential support areas such as lobbies, hallways, egress routes, stairs, concierge 98 
areas, staff offices, maintenance areas and required restroom facilities or similar 99 

shall not count toward shared interior common areas. 100 
 101 

f) Parking.  Parking may be a combination of the following: 102 

1. One (1) parking space or equivalent for each micro unit; 103 
2. 50% or more of the required spaces shall be standard parking spaces; 104 
3. Up to 25% of the parking spaces may be compact spaces (8’-0” x 18’-0”); 105 
4. Up to 25% of the parking spaces may be met with bicycle, scooter or motorcycle 106 

storage.  Four (4) bicycle storage spaces shall equal one (1) parking space; two 107 
(2) scooter storage spaces shall equal one (1) parking space; and two (2) 108 
motorcycle storage spaces shall equal one (1) parking space; and 109 

5. Required guest and employee parking may be met with the same parking space 110 
combination ratio. Guest and employee parking shall be no less than one (1) space 111 

for every 100 sq. ft. of common area, public area, support area and offices, 112 
excluding required hallways, egress routes and stairs. 113 

6. The mixed-use parking reduction of 25% shall not apply. 114 

 115 
g) Outdoor amenity.  All micro-unit projects shall provide for an outdoor amenity that is 116 

above and beyond the required interior shared common area.  Outdoor amenity space 117 
shall be no less than 5% of the gross area of all residential units and may not count 118 

toward the required interior shared common area. 119 
 120 

Section 4: Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or 121 
portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 122 
competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and 123 

independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 124 

portions thereof.  125 
 126 
Section 5:  Repeal of Laws in Conflict.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in 127 

conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 128 
 129 

Section 6: Codification.  The sections of the ordinance may be made a part of 130 

the City Code of Laws and ordinances and may be re-numbered or re-lettered to 131 
accomplish such, and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section”, “division”, or 132 

any other appropriate word. 133 
 134 
Section 7: Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective 10 days after 135 

passage. 136 
 137 

The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by Commissioner 138 
Malega, seconded by Commissioner Stokes, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was 139 

as follows: 140 
 141 
Mayor Betty Resch 142 
Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy 143 
Commissioner Sarah Malega 144 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes 145 
Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz 146 



Pg. 4, Ord. 2022-13 

 

 147 

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the 148 
20th day of September, 2022. 149 

 150 
 151 

The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by 152 
_________________, seconded by ________________, and upon being put to a vote, 153 
the vote was as follows: 154 

 155 
Mayor Betty Resch  156 

Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy  157 
Commissioner Sarah Malega  158 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes  159 

Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz  160 
 161 
The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the _______ day of 162 

_____________________, 2022. 163 
 164 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 165 
 166 
 167 

By: __________________________ 168 
Betty Resch, Mayor 169 

 170 

ATTEST: 171 

 172 
 173 
____________________________ 174 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 175 
 176 



 
City Of Lake Worth 

Department for Community Sustainability 

Planning, Zoning and Historic Preservation Division 

1900 Second Avenue North · Lake Worth · Florida 33461· Phone: 561-586-1687  
  

 

DATE:  May 25, 2022  
 
TO:  Members of the Planning & Zoning and Historic Resources Preservation Boards 
 
FROM:  William Waters, Director Community Sustainability 
 
MEETING:  June 1 & June 8, 2022 
 
SUBJECT: Ordinance 2022-13: Consideration of an ordinance amending Chapter 23 “Land Development 

Regulations,” Article 1 “General Provisions,” Division 2 “Definitions,” Section 23.1-12 “Definitions,” 
adding a new definition “Micro-unit;” and Article 4 “Development Standards,” adding a new 
Section 23.4-25 “Micro-units,” providing for development standards for micro-units. 

 

 
PROPOSAL / BACKGROUND/ ANALYSIS: 
The subject amendment to the City’s Land Development Regulations (LDR) was drafted based on City Commission 
direction to staff to allow for a new multi-family unit type in the City to address housing affordability in the region.  
The proposed micro-unit housing type would have a smaller minimum unit size (minimum 250 sf – maximum 750 
sf) and require only 1 parking space per unit with provisions for guest parking.  A micro-unit development would 
also be required to provide additional interior common areas and an outdoor amenity area.   
 
The proposed amendments would add a new section to the LDR in Chapter 23 of the City’s Code of Ordinances: 

 Article 1, Section 23.1-12 – Definitions 

 Article 4, NEW Section 23.4-25 – Micro-units 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning and Zoning Board and Historic Resources Preservation Board recommend that 
the City Commission adopt Ordinance 2022-13. 
 
POTENTIAL MOTION: 
 
I move to RECOMMEND/NOT RECOMMEND TO THE CITY COMMISSION TO ADOPT the proposed LDR text 
amendments included in Ordinance 2022-13. 
 
Attachments 

A. Draft Ordinance 2022-13 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

AGENDA DATE: September 20, 2022 DEPARTMENT: Community Sustainability 

TITLE: 

Ordinance 2022-14 – First Reading - Consideration of an ordinance amending Chapter 23 “Land 
Development Regulations,” Article 1 “General Provisions,” Division 2 “Definitions,” Section 23.1-
12 “Definitions”, and Article 2 “Administration”, Division 3 “Permits,” Section 23.2-31 “Site Design 
Qualitative Standards,” providing standards for buildings 

 
SUMMARY: 

The proposed amendment would amend the City’s Site Design Qualitative Design Standards of 
the Land Development Regulations (LDRs) providing for enhanced architectural quality, 
compatibility and harmony as well as building performance standards for buildings over 7,500 
sq. ft and for all planned developments to enhance and improve community sustainability.   

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The subject amendment to the City’s Land Development Regulations (LDRs) was drafted based 
on City Commission direction for staff to prepare changes to the LDRs to improve the 
architectural quality, compatibility and overall performance of new buildings and projects.  The 
proposed amendment includes improved qualitative design standards for buildings as well as 
additional criteria that serve to ensure that buildings and projects are sensitive to the City’s 
commitment to cultural, historical, ecological, environmental, financial and overall community 
sustainability.  Specifically, all new buildings of 7,500 sq. ft. or more will have meet to specific 
performance standards, and all planned development projects will have to incorporate design 
elements, features and performance standards that support the City’s commitment to 
community sustainability.   

The Planning & Zoning Board (PZB) voted 5-1 with reservations concerning sections 16 and 17 
to recommend approval of the proposed text amendment to the City Commission at its June 1, 
2022 meeting*.  The Historic Resources Preservation Board (HRPB) unanimously voted against 
recommending approval of the proposed text amendment to the City Commission at its June 8, 
2022 meeting due to concerns regarding sections 16 and 17 as well as the specificity of the 
architectural design standard changes*.   Both boards voiced concern regarding the financial 
burden being placed on new projects, potential investors, and affordable housing as well as staff 
resources. 

Should the amendment be adopted, Staff does recognize that several layers of additional design 
review and documentation will be required of many projects.  As such, Staff is requesting that 
an additional full-time planning position with an emphasis on design and sustainability be 
approved in order to ensure that the standards are implemented efficiently and effectively.   The 
financial impact of this additional staff resource is projected to be $115,000 annually beginning 
Fiscal Year 2024.  The imposition of additional application fees and annual monitoring fees may 
provide some of the financial support for the position.  In addition, outside consultants may 
provide the necessary staffing support until a full-time position can be established. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

At its meeting of August 2, 2022, the Commission unanimously approved the proposed 
ordinance on first reading with the proviso that the words “strive to” be removed from item 16 at 
line 25, which is highlighted in strikeout format in the attached ordinance. 

With the August 16, 2022, City Commission meeting, discussion focused on clarifications and 
more information regarding the ordinance.  The ordinance was tabled for a second reading on 
September 20, 2022.  Over the intervening weeks, the clarifications were extensive enough to 
warrant a second first reading with a subsequent second reading should the ordinance be 
approved. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Ordinance 2022-14 on first reading and scheduling the second 
reading and public hearing on October 6, 2022 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

Draft Ordinance 2022-14 
PZHP Staff Report  
 

*Note: draft meeting minutes were not available upon publication of this staff report. 



 
Fiscal Years 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 
 
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 0 0 $115,000 $120,000 $125,000 
External Revenues 0 0 $5,000 $7,500 $10,000 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 $110,000 $112,500 $115,000 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact:  The Planning & 
Preservation Division will require a new senior level planning position beginning FY 2024 to 
manage new requirements.  Staffing cost including benefits and administrative costs are 
projected to be $115,000 beginning October 1, 2023.  This position and associated costs will 
need to be included in the FY 2024 operating budget. 

 
Account 
Number 

Department 
Name  

Division  
Name 

Account 
Description 

Project 
Number 

FY24 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Budget 
Transfer 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

001-
2040-
515.12-
10 

Community 
Sustainability 

 Planning 
and 
Preservation 

Salaries       

          

 



  2022-14 1 

 2 
ORDINANCE 2022-14 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKE 3 

WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 23 “LAND 4 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS,” ARTICLE 1 “GENERAL 5 
PROVISIONS,” DIVISION 2 “DEFINITIONS,” SECTION 23.1-12 6 
“DEFINITIONS,” ADDING THERETO NEW DEFINITIONS “SOCIAL 7 
JUSTICE” AND “SUSTAINABILITY;” AND “ARTICLE 2 8 

“ADMINISTRATION,” DIVISION 3 “PERMITS,” SECTION 23.2-31 “SITE 9 
DESIGN QUALITATIVE STANDARDS,” PROVIDING FOR STANDARDS 10 
FOR BUILDINGS; AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, 11 
CODIFICATION AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 12 

 13 

 14 
WHEREAS, as provided in Section 2(b), Article VIII of the Constitution of the State 15 

of Florida, and Section 166.021(1), Florida Statutes, the City of Lake Worth Beach (the 16 
“City”), enjoys all governmental, corporate, and proprietary powers necessary to conduct 17 
municipal government, perform municipal functions, and render municipal services, and 18 
may exercise any power for municipal purposes, except as expressly prohibited by law; 19 

and  20 
 21 

WHEREAS, as provided in Section 166.021(3), Florida Statutes, the governing 22 
body of each municipality in the state has the power to enact legislation concerning any 23 
subject matter upon which the state legislature may act, except when expressly prohibited 24 

by law; and  25 
 26 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend Chapter 23, Article 1 “General Provisions,” 27 

Division 2 “Definitions,” Section 23.1-12 “Definitions,” to add definitions and to define 28 

“Social Justice” and “Sustainability;” and 29 
 30 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend Chapter 23, Article 2 “Administration,” 31 

Division 3 “Permits,” Section 23.2-31 “Site Design Qualitative Standards” to amend the 32 
section to provide further guidance, consistency, clarity and additional standards for 33 

buildngs; and 34 
 35 
WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the “City”), is a duly constituted 36 

municipality having such power and authority conferred upon it by the Florida Constitution 37 
and Chapter 166, Florida Statutes; and 38 

 39 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board, in its capacity as the local planning 40 

agency, considered the proposed amendments at a duly advertised public hearing; and 41 
 42 
WHEREAS, the Historic Resources Preservation Board, in its capacity as the local 43 

planning agency, considered the proposed amendments at a duly advertised public 44 
hearing; and 45 

 46 
WHEREAS, the City Commission finds and declares that the adoption of this 47 

ordinance is appropriate, and in the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of the 48 
City, its residents and visitors. 49 

 50 



Pg. 2, Ord. 2022-14 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 51 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 52 
 53 
Section 1: The foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are ratified and confirmed as 54 

being true and correct and are made a specific part of this ordinance as if set forth herein.  55 

 56 
Section 2: Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 1 “General 57 

Provisions,” Division 2 “Definitions,” Section 23.1-12 “Definitions,” is hereby amended by 58 
adding thereto new definitions for “Social Justice” and for “Sustainability” to read as 59 
follows: 60 

 61 
Social Justice: the political and philosophical theory that focuses on the concept of 62 

fairness in relations between individuals in society and equal access to wealth, 63 

opportunities and social privileges. 64 
 65 
Sustainability:  the three principles of economy, society (social and human) and 66 

environment that focus on the needs of the present without compromising the ability of 67 
future generations to meet their needs. 68 

 69 
Section 3: Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 2 70 

“Administration,” Division 3 “Permits,” Section 23.2-31 “Site design qualitative standards,” 71 

is hereby amended to read as follows: 72 

Sec. 23.2-31. Site design qualitative standards. 73 

a) Intent. It is the intent of this section to promote safety and minimize negative impacts 74 

of development on its neighbors by establishing qualitative requirements for the 75 
arrangements of buildings, structures, parking areas, landscaping and other site 76 

improvements. The qualitative standards are designed to ensure that site 77 
improvements are arranged in ways which cannot be otherwise accomplished with 78 

quantitative standards.  79 

b) Application. The site design qualitative standards set forth in this section shall apply 80 

to all development subject to site plan review under section 23.2-30, and to all 81 

conditional uses.  82 

c) Qualitative development standards. 83 

1. Harmonious and efficient organization. All elements of the site plan shall be 84 

harmoniously and efficiently organized in relation to topography, the size and 85 

type of plot, the character of adjoining property and the type and size of 86 
buildings. The site shall be developed so as to not impede the normal and orderly 87 
development or improvement of surrounding property for uses permitted in these 88 
LDRs.  89 

2. Preservation of natural conditions. The natural (refer to landscape code, Article 90 

6 of these LDRs) landscape shall be preserved in its natural state, insofar as 91 
practical, by minimizing tree and soil removal and by such other site planning 92 
approaches as are appropriate. Terrain and vegetation shall not be disturbed in 93 
a manner likely to significantly increase either wind or water erosion within or 94 
adjacent to a development site. Natural detention areas and other means of 95 



Pg.3, Ord. 2022-14 
 

natural vegetative filtration of stormwater runoff shall be used to minimize ground 96 

and surface water pollution, particularly adjacent to major waterbodies as 97 
specified in Part II, Chapter 12, Health and Sanitation, Article VIII, Fertilizer 98 
Friendly Use Regulations. Fertilizer/pesticide conditions may be attached to 99 
development adjacent to waterbodies. Marinas shall be permitted only in water 100 
with a mean low tide depth of four (4) feet or more.  101 

3. Screening and buffering. Fences, walls or vegetative screening shall be provided 102 

where needed and practical to protect residents and users from undesirable 103 
views, lighting, noise, odors or other adverse off-site effects, and to protect 104 
residents and users of off-site development from on-site adverse effects. This 105 
section may be interpreted to require screening and buffering in addition to that 106 

specifically required by other sections of these LDRs, but not less.  107 

4. Enhancement of residential privacy. The site plan shall provide reasonable, 108 

visual and acoustical privacy for all dwelling units located therein and adjacent 109 
thereto. Fences, walks, barriers and vegetation shall be arranged for the 110 
protection and enhancement of property and to enhance the privacy of the 111 
occupants.  112 

5. Emergency access. Structures and other site features shall be so arranged as 113 

to permit emergency vehicle access by some practical means to all sides of all 114 
buildings.  115 

6. Access to public ways. All buildings, dwelling units and other facilities shall have 116 

safe and convenient access to a public street, walkway or other area dedicated 117 
to common use; curb cuts close to railroad crossings shall be avoided.  118 

7. Pedestrian circulation. There shall be provided a pedestrian circulation system 119 

which is insulated as completely as reasonably possible from the vehicular 120 
circulation system.  121 

8. Design of ingress and egress drives. The location, size and numbers of ingress 122 

and egress drives to the site will be arranged to minimize the negative impacts 123 
on public and private ways and on adjacent private property. Merging and 124 

turnout lanes traffic dividers shall be provided where they would significantly 125 

improve safety for vehicles and pedestrians.  126 

9. Coordination of on-site circulation with off-site circulation. The arrangement of 127 

public or common ways for vehicular and pedestrian circulation shall be 128 
coordinated with the pattern of existing or planned streets and pedestrian or 129 

bicycle pathways in the area. Minor streets shall not be connected to major 130 
streets in such a way as to facilitate improper utilization.  131 

10. Design of on-site public right-of-way. On-site public street and rights-of-way shall 132 

be designed for maximum efficiency. They shall occupy no more land than is 133 
required to provide access, nor shall they unnecessarily fragment development 134 
into small blocks. Large developments containing extensive public rights-of-way 135 
shall have said rights-of-way arranged in a hierarchy with local streets providing 136 
direct access to parcels and other streets providing no or limited direct access 137 
to parcels.  138 



Pg. 4, Ord. 2022-14 

 

11. Off-street parking, loading and vehicular circulation areas. Off-street parking, 139 

loading and vehicular circulation areas shall be located, designed and screened 140 
to minimize the impact of noise, glare and odor on adjacent property.  141 

12. Refuse and service areas. Refuse and service areas shall be located, designed 142 

and screened to minimize the impact of noise, glare and odor on adjacent 143 

property.  144 

13. Protection of property values. The elements of the site plan shall be arranged so 145 

as to have minimum negative impact on the property values of adjoining 146 
property.  147 

14. Transitional development. Where the property being developed is located on the 148 

edge of the zoning district, the site plan shall be designed to provide for a 149 
harmonious and complementary transition between districts. Building exteriors 150 

shall complement other buildings in the vicinity in size, scale, mass, bulk, height, 151 
rhythm of openings and character. Special consideration Consideration shall be 152 
given to a harmonious transition in height and design style so that the change in 153 
zoning districts is not accentuated. Additional consideration shall be given to 154 

complementary setbacks between the existing and proposed development.  155 

15. Consideration of future development. In finding whether or not the above 156 

standards are met, the review authority shall consider likely future development 157 
as well as existing development.  158 

d) Buildings, generally. 159 

1. Buildings or structures which are part of a present or future group or complex 160 
shall have a unity of character, style, integrity and design. Their architectural 161 
style(s) shall be clearly expressed and detailed appropriately to vocabulary of 162 
the style(s) and be of high quality in terms of materials, craftmanship and 163 

articulation. The relationship of building forms through of the use, texture and 164 
color of material(s) shall be such as to create one (1) harmonious whole.  When 165 
the area involved forms an integral part of, is immediately adjacent to, or 166 

otherwise clearly affects the future of any established section of the city, the 167 
design, scale, height, setback, massing and location of on the site shall enhance 168 

rather than detract from the character, value and attractiveness of the 169 
surroundings. Harmonious does not mean or require that the buildings be the 170 
same.  171 

2. Buildings or structures located along strips of land or on a single site, and not a 172 

part of a unified multi-building complex shall achieve as much visual harmony 173 
and compatibility with the surroundings as is possible under the circumstances. 174 

The overall building fenestration, orientation, rhythm, height, setback, mass and 175 
bulk of an existing streetscape shall be respected. If a building is built in an 176 
undeveloped area, three 9 (3nine) primary requirements shall be met, including 177 
honest design construction, proper design concepts, appropriate use of high-178 
quality materials, and appropriateness to compatibility with the overall character 179 

of the city., appreciation of location, respectful transition, activation of the 180 
streetscape, building form(s) following proposed function(s )and overall 181 
sustainability. 182 



Pg.5, Ord. 2022-14 
 

3. All façades visible to public or adjacent property shall be designed to create a 183 

harmonious whole. Materials shall express their function clearly and not appear 184 
foreign to the rest of the building. Facades shall have visual breaks every 75 feet 185 
at a minimum. The breaks shall be setbacks of either 8” or 12” or more to create 186 
reveal lines or step backs on the façade and to add rhythm. Buildings in Lake 187 
Worth Beach typically have facades arranged in 25-foot or 50-foot increments. 188 

Breaks in facades also may be achieved through the use of differing but 189 
complementary and harmonious architectural styles. The massing elements of 190 
each façade shall have a height to width ratio approximating the golden ratio of 191 
1.618, either vertically or horizontally. 192 

4. The concept of harmony shall not infer that buildings must look alike or be of the 193 

same style. Harmony can be achieved through the proper consideration of 194 
setback, floor to floor height, scale, mass, bulk, proportion, overall height, 195 

orientation, site planning, landscaping, materials, rhythm of solids to voids and 196 
architectural components including but not limited to porches, roof types, 197 
fenestration, entrances, orientation and stylistic expression.  198 

5. Look-alike buildings shall not be allowed unless, in the opinion of the board 199 
reviewing entity, there is sufficient separation to preserve the aesthetic character 200 

of the present or evolving neighborhood. This is not to be construed to prohibit 201 
the duplication of floor plans and exterior treatment in a planned development 202 

where, in the opinion of the board reviewing entity, the aesthetics or the 203 
development depend upon, or are enhanced by the look-alike buildings and their 204 
relationship to each other.  205 

6. Buildings, which are of symbolic design for reasons of advertising, unless 206 

otherwise compatible with the criteria herein, will not be approved by the board 207 
reviewing entity. Symbols attached to the buildings will not be allowed unless 208 
they are secondary in appearance to the building and landscape and are an 209 

aesthetic asset to the building, project and neighborhood.  210 

7. Exterior lighting may be used to illuminate a building and its grounds for safety 211 

purposes, but in an aesthetic manner. Lighting is not to be used as a form of 212 
advertising in a manner that is not compatible to the neighborhood or in a 213 
manner that draws considerably more attention to the building or grounds at 214 

night than in the day. Lighting following the form of the building or part of the 215 
building will not be allowed if, in the opinion of the board, the overall effect will 216 
be detrimental to the environment. All fixtures used in exterior lighting are to be 217 

selected for functional as well as aesthetic value.  218 

8. Building surfaces, walls, fenestration and roofs shall be compatible and in 219 

harmony with the neighborhood.  220 

9. "Take-out" or "pick-up" windows of retail or wholesale establishments shall not 221 
be located on a building façade that faces a public right-of-way, unless they are 222 
designed in such a manner as to constitute an aesthetic asset to the building 223 
and neighborhood.  224 

10. All exterior forms, attached to buildings, shall be in conformity to and secondary 225 
to the building. They shall be an asset to the aesthetics of the site and to the 226 
neighborhood.  227 



Pg. 6, Ord. 2022-14 

 

11. All telephones, vending machines, or any facility dispensing merchandise, or a 228 

service on private property, shall be confined to a space built into the building or 229 
buildings or enclosed in a separate structure compatible with the main building, 230 
and where appropriate and feasible, should not be readily visible from off-231 
premises.  232 

12. Buildings of a style or style-type foreign to south Florida or its climate will not be 233 
allowed. It is also to be understood that buildings which do not conform to the 234 
existing or to the evolving atmosphere of the city, even though possessing 235 
historical significance to south Florida, may not be approved.  236 

13. No advertising will be allowed on any exposed amenity or facility such as 237 

benches and trash containers.  238 

14. Light spillage restriction. The applicant shall make adequate provision to ensure 239 

that light spillage onto adjacent residential properties is minimized. 240 

15. All buildings shall address both the public right of way and improve the overall 241 
pedestrian experience through the inclusion of the following components: 242 

a.  clearly articulated entrances, 243 

b.  expanses of fenestration at the ground level, 244 

c.  provision of shade through porches, awnings, galleries, arcades and/or 245 

loggias as well as other appropriate forms to the chosen architectural style(s), 246 

d. integrated signage,  247 

e. pedestrian scaled lighting,  248 

f.  buildings that define at least fifty percent (50%) of the street frontage, and 249 

g.  openings that approximate a golden ratio of 1.618. 250 

16.   All new buildings of 7,500 gross square feet or larger shall strive to incorporate 251 
design principles, practices and performance standards to achieve the following 252 

through a project proforma description and analysis prepared by the developer 253 
and verified by an independent third party: 254 

 a.  Overall 10% reduction in greenhouse emissions over the life of the building 255 
as compared to industry standards, 256 

 b.  Overall 10% reduction in carbon footprint during construction and operation 257 
of the building as compared to industry standards, 258 

 c.  Overall 20% reduction in refuse stream during construction and operation of 259 
the building as compared to industry standards, 260 

d.  Overall utilization of at least 20% recycled materials and/or materials that are 261 
recyclable, 262 

 e.  Overall 20% reduction in water usage during operation of the building as 263 

compared to industry standards,  264 

 f.  Efficient use of natural resources through use reduction, reuse, reclamation, 265 
and recycling,  266 



Pg.7, Ord. 2022-14 
 

 g.  Incorporation of design features and uses that support multi-modal 267 

transportation options, 268 

h. Incorporation of appropriate safety features to ensure the security and comfort 269 
of both occupants and visitors, 270 

i.  Incorporation of amenities that are conducive to enhancing community pride 271 
and social interaction, and 272 

17. In addition to the items enumerated above, all new planned developments shall 273 
strive to incorporate design elements, performance standards and/or 274 
specifications to enhance the public’s awareness and appreciation of the 275 
community’s commitment to the preservation and enhancement of the following 276 
sustainability qualities, values and principles: 277 

a.  Cultural resources, 278 

b. Historical resources, 279 

c. Ecological/natural resources, 280 

d. Diversity and inclusion, 281 

e.  Social justice, 282 

f.  Economic investment, 283 

g. Neighborhood vitality,  284 

h. Sense of place, 285 

i.  Education, and 286 

j. Recreation.  287 

e) Reserved.  288 

f) Signs. The aesthetic quality of a building or of an entire neighborhood is materially 289 

affected by achieving visual harmony of the signs on or about a surface as they relate 290 

to the architecture of the building or the adjacent surroundings. In addition to the 291 
mechanical limitations on signs imposed by Article 45, Supplemental Regulations, 292 
the following aesthetic considerations must also be met:  293 

1. The scale of the sign must be consistent with the scale of the building on which 294 
it is to be placed or painted.  295 

2. The overall effect of the configuration or coloring of the sign shall not be garish. 296 

The colors shall not conflict with those of other signs already on the building or 297 
in the immediate vicinity.  298 

g) Landscaping. See Article 6 of these LDRs.  299 

h) Criteria for parking lots and vehicular use areas. 300 

1. Parking lots and other vehicular use areas are to be designed as an aesthetic 301 
asset to a neighborhood and to the building, group of buildings, or facility they 302 
serve. A parking lot is to be considered an outside space; a transitional space 303 
that is located between access areas (such as roads) and the building, group of 304 
buildings or other outside spaces which it serves. The parking lot, because it is 305 
viewed from above as well as at eye level, should be designed accordingly.  306 



Pg. 8, Ord. 2022-14 

 

2. Parking lots, vehicular use areas, and vehicles parked therein are to be 307 

effectively screened from the public view and from adjacent property in a manner 308 
that is attractive and compatible with safety, the neighborhood and the facility 309 
served.  310 

3. The responsibility for beautification and design of a parking lot is the same as 311 

that which a homeowner has to his residential lot. The atmosphere within a 312 
parking lot or vehicular use area is to be as pleasant and park-like as possible, 313 
rather than a harsh stand of paving. Trees are of primary importance to the 314 
landscape and are not to be minimized in either height or quantity. Trees impart 315 
a sense of three-dimensional space in a relatively flat area. Trees cast shadows 316 

that help to reduce the monotony of an expanse of paving and create a refuge 317 
from the tropical sun. Signs designating entrances, exits and regulations are to 318 
be of a tasteful design and shall be subject to review by the board. Consideration 319 

may be given to use of pavement which is varied in texture or color to designate 320 
lanes for automobile traffic, pedestrian walks and parking spaces. Brightly 321 
colored pavement is to be used with restraint. In order to create a pleasant 322 

atmosphere, it is recommended that consideration be given to sculpture, 323 
fountains, gardens, pools and benches. Design emphasis is to be given to the 324 

entrance and exit areas of the lot. Trash, refuse and unaesthetic storage and 325 
mechanical equipment shall be screened from the parking lot.  326 

4. Lighting is to be designed for visual effects as well as safety and resistance to 327 

vandalism. Care should be taken not to create a nuisance to the neighborhood 328 
from brightness or glare. Low lights in modest scale can be used along with 329 
feature lighting emphasizing plants, trees, barriers, entrances and exits. The 330 

fixtures are to be selected for functional value and aesthetic quality. Fixtures 331 

should be regarded as "furniture of the parking lot" which are visible both day 332 
and night.  333 

5. Additional regulations for parking lots and vehicular use areas may be found in 334 

Article 4, Supplemental Regulations.  335 

i) Required utilities. All construction of sanitary sewer collection facilities and water 336 

supply and distribution systems shall conform to the requirements of the Florida 337 
Building Code as amended and the Lake Worth Utilities Department construction 338 
standards, and the appropriate state governing agency. The water supply system 339 
within the development shall conform to the City of Lake Worth's fire rescue services 340 

provider requirements for fire protection.  341 

j) Design guidelines for major thoroughfares. The design standards for major 342 

thoroughfares may be adopted and amended from time to time by resolution of the 343 
city commission, and shall apply to the following properties:  344 

1. Property adjacent to Lake and Lucerne Avenues from the Intracoastal to 345 
Interstate 95 and within the Old Town Historic District;  346 

2. Lake Worth Road;  347 

3. Property adjacent to H, J, K, L, and M Streets within the Old Town Historic 348 
District;  349 



Pg.9, Ord. 2022-14 
 

4. Property adjacent to 10th Avenue North from the east side of Dixie Highway west 350 

to Interstate 95;  351 

5. Property adjacent to 6th Avenue South from the east side of Dixie Highway west 352 
to Interstate 95;  353 

6. Property adjacent to Federal Highway from the south city limit to the south 354 
boundary of College Park; and  355 

7. Property adjacent to Dixie Highway from the south city limit to the north City limit.  356 

k) Storefront window treatments.  357 

1. All windows or openings of buildings located within the city's zoning districts 358 
including DT, MU-E, MU-FH, MU-DH, MU-W, TOD-E and TOD-W whereby the 359 
interiors of such buildings can be observed from the public streets or sidewalks, 360 

shall be treated or screened in the manner set forth below.  361 

2. All windows or openings of vacant buildings or buildings under construction 362 

located within all of the city's zoning districts including DT, MU-E, MU-FH, MU-363 
DH, MU-W, TOD-E and TOD-W, which windows or openings can be viewed from 364 

the public streets and sidewalks and which expose the interiors of such 365 
buildings, shall screen the vacant interior of the building in which they are 366 
located.  367 

3. Window treatment or screening may be achieved by either constructing within 368 
the window or opening a pocket, equivalent in dimension to the dimension of the 369 

window or opening itself, and forty (40) inches or more in depth, or hanging 370 
curtains or utilizing interior shutters. The pocket shall be used for purposes of 371 

screening the interior of the building, and to provide an attractive display for 372 
those who can observe the window or opening from the streets or public 373 

sidewalks of the town. This pocket shall be decorated by featuring displays of 374 
the incoming tenant, or vignettes representing designs and merchandise of 375 
existing city merchants. The window glass shall be clean both inside and outside. 376 

It is advisable that the window shall be lighted at night.  377 

4. All windows or openings of businesses that are operational, vacant or under 378 
construction may not have storage materials, such as kitchen equipment, 379 

alcoholic beverage containers, stacked furniture, debris or packing materials 380 
visible from a public street or right-of-way. A window or opening of an operational 381 
business will be decorated with merchandise or screened from view with curtains 382 
or interior shutters.  383 

5. Any storefront both vacant or operational that has more than twenty-five (25) 384 
feet of frontage on a public sidewalk must provide a vignette display in at least 385 
one-half (½) of its available window space.  386 

6. Newspaper, printed paper or unpainted plywood will not be allowed in a window.  387 

7. No windows or openings of storefronts will utilize a mirrored reflective film. Films 388 
allowing light to pass through, but blocking ultraviolet light will be permitted. The 389 
intent is that interior displays will be visible from the right-of-way.  390 

8. An owner must comply with these specifications within seven (7) days of 391 
vacancy of a storefront.  392 



Pg. 10, Ord. 2022-14 

 

9. Penalties. Any owner of any building found to be in violation of this division shall 393 

be subject to general penalties as provided by law or to the provisions of the 394 
code enforcement board.  395 

l) Community appearance criteria. The general requirements outlined in this section 396 

are minimum aesthetic standards for all site developments, buildings, structures, or 397 

alterations within the corporate limits of the city, except single-family residences. 398 
However, additions to existing buildings and sites shall be subject to review by the 399 
development review official for a determination regarding submission to the planning 400 
and zoning board or historic resources preservation board for review. All site 401 
development, structures, buildings or alterations to site development, structures or 402 

buildings shall demonstrate proper design concepts, express honest design 403 
construction, be appropriate to surroundings, and meet the following community 404 
appearance criteria:  405 

1. The plan for the proposed structure or project is in conformity with good taste, 406 
good design, and in general contributes to the image of the city as a place of 407 
beauty, spaciousness, harmony, taste, fitness, broad vistas and high quality.  408 

2. The proposed structure or project is not, in its exterior design and appearance, 409 
of inferior quality such as to cause the nature of the local environment or evolving 410 

environment to materially depreciate in appearance and value.  411 

3. The proposed structure or project is in harmony with the proposed developments 412 
in the general area, with code requirements pertaining to site plan, signage and 413 

landscaping, and the comprehensive plan for the city, and with the criteria set 414 
forth herein.  415 

4. The proposed structure or project is in compliance with this section and 23.2-29, 416 
as applicable.  417 

m) Compliance with other requirements. The requirements of this section are in addition 418 

to any other requirement of the Code of Ordinances of the city, such as the building 419 
code. Approval by the decisionmaking body of a given set of plans and specifications 420 

does not necessarily constitute evidence of applicant's compliance with other 421 
requirements of the city code.  422 

 423 
Section 4: Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or 424 

portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 425 
competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and 426 

independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 427 
portions thereof.  428 

 429 
Section 5:  Repeal of Laws in Conflict.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in 430 

conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 431 
 432 
Section 6: Codification.  The sections of the ordinance may be made a part of 433 

the City Code of Laws and ordinances and may be re-numbered or re-lettered to 434 
accomplish such, and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section”, “division”, or 435 
any other appropriate word. 436 

 437 



Pg.11, Ord. 2022-14 
 

Section 7: Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective 10 days after 438 

passage. 439 
 440 

The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by Commissioner 441 
Malega, seconded by Commissioner Stokes, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was 442 
as follows: 443 

 444 
Mayor Betty Resch 445 
Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy 446 
Commissioner Sarah Malega 447 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes 448 

Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz 449 
 450 

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the 451 
20th day of September, 2022. 452 

 453 
 454 

The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by 455 

_________________, seconded by ________________, and upon being put to a vote, 456 
the vote was as follows: 457 

 458 
Mayor Betty Resch  459 
Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy  460 

Commissioner Sarah Malega  461 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes  462 

Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz  463 
 464 

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the _______ day of 465 
_____________________, 2022. 466 

 467 
LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 468 
 469 

 470 
By: __________________________ 471 

Betty Resch, Mayor 472 

 473 
ATTEST: 474 
 475 

 476 
____________________________ 477 
Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 478 
 479 



City Of Lake Worth 
Department for Community Sustainability 

Planning, Zoning and Historic Preservation Division 

1900 Second Avenue North · Lake Worth · Florida 33461· Phone: 561-586-1687 

DATE: May 25, 2022  

TO: Members of the Planning & Zoning and Historic Resources Preservation Boards 

FROM: William Waters, Director Community Sustainability 

MEETING: June 1 & June 8, 2022 

SUBJECT: Ordinance 2022-11: Consideration of an ordinance amending Chapter 23 “Land Development 
Regulations,” Article 2 “Administration,” Division 3 “Permits,” Section 23.2-31 related to “Site 
Design Qualitative Standards.”  

PROPOSAL / BACKGROUND/ ANALYSIS: 
The subject amendment to the City’s Land Development Regulations (LDR) was drafted based on City Commission 
direction to staff to revise the site design qualitative standards to provide additional guidance, consistency, clarity 
and additional standards related to building design and sustainable performance. The City Commission also 
expressed a desire to ensure the design of new buildings would be of a high-quality architectural design that also 
would be respectful of the existing streetscape. The new building performance standards would require new 
buildings to exceed industry standards with regard to greenhouse emissions, carbon footprint and utilization of 
recycled materials as well as reductions in water and energy usage.  New buildings also shall be required to 
incorporate design features that support multi-modal transportation, amenities that are conducive to enhancing 
community pride and social interaction, and safety features. Further, design elements, performance standards 
and/or specifications to enhance the public’s awareness and appreciation of the community’s commitment to the 
incorporation of sustainable qualities, values and principles as outlined in the ordinance on page 6. 

Due to the complexity and comprehensive nature of the newly proposed sustainability requirements, an additional 
staff position or the use of outside consultants shall be required for the review of the proposed building 
performance standards. 

The proposed amendments would amend the LDR in Chapter 23 of the City’s Code of Ordinances as follows: 

 Article 2, Section 23.2-31 – Site Design Qualitative Standards

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends that the Planning and Zoning Board and Historic Resources Preservation Board recommend that 
the City Commission adopt Ordinance 2022-11. 

POTENTIAL MOTION: 

I move to RECOMMEND/NOT RECOMMEND TO THE CITY COMMISSION TO ADOPT the proposed LDR text 
amendments included in Ordinance 2022-11. 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: September 20, 2022 DEPARTMENT: Human Resources 

TITLE: 

Property and Insurance Services renewals with Brown & Brown Inc. and City insurance 
coverage for FY 2022-2023 

 
SUMMARY: 

This agreement will authorize the City’s insurance broker Brown & Brown Inc., to bind several 
types of insurance on behalf of the City for fiscal year 2022-2023.  

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The State regulates self-insurer programs in order to protect outstanding liability of public 
entities. The City of Lake Worth Beach is self-insured and every one to three years, it rebids its 
insurance to ensure that it obtains the best premium possible. Brown & Brown Inc. has provided 
the City’s insurance coverage at a cost of approximately $1,409,421. This is an increase of 
$172,527.00. The greater market rate increase is 10-20%, this increase reflects a 14% upsurge 
over thirteen (13) lines of coverage due to expected 2022/2023 high risk factors facing local 
municipality. This year, the City of Lake Worth Beach requested proposals from insurance 
brokers to provide the following types of insurance coverage to the city: Automobile Liability, 
Boiler and Machinery Coverage, Crime Coverage, Cyber and Privacy Insurance, Data 
Processing Equipment Coverage, Deadly Weapon Protection, Drone Liability, Excess Workers’ 
Compensation Coverage, Fiduciary Liability, General Liability, Inland Marine Coverage, 
Pollution Coverage, Property Coverage, Public Officials Liability Coverage, Tenant Users 
Liability Insurance. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove the one-year agreement with Brown & Brown Inc. and the City’s 
insurance coverage for fiscal year 2022-2023. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Agreement with Brown & Brown Inc. 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 
 
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures $1,409,421 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact $1,409,421 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Account 
Number 

Department 
Name  

Division  
Name 

Account 
Description 

Project 
Number 

FY23 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Budget 
Transfer 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

520-1331-
513.45-70 

Human 
Resources 

 Insurance 
Premium 

    $1,409,421  

          

 



 
 

P U B L I C  S E C T O R  

Insurance Proposal for Utilities Property, 
Package, Aviation, Pollution, Fiduciary 
(Firefighters Pension), Cyber, Public Officials 
and TULIP (Special Events) 
October 1, 2022 to October 1, 2023 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Overview           1 
 The Agency of Public Risk Insurance Advisors 
 An Introduction to Your Service Team 
 Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust 
 Claims Services & Safety and Risk Management Services 
 
Property – Utilites ONLY        2 
 
Property             3 
 
Crime/Employee Dishonesty        3 
 
General Liability           4 
 
Deadly Weapon Protection        5 
 
Automobile Liability & Physical Damage      6 
 
Excess Workers’ Compensation       7 
 
Public Officials & Employment Practices Liability    8 
 
Cyber Liability          9 
 
Pollution Liability           10 
 
Fiduciary Liability (Firefighters Pension)      11 
 
TULIP (Tenant Users Liability Insurance Policy)     12 
 
Drone Liability          13 
 
Broker Recommendation/Premium Recapitulation    14 
 Notes of Importance 
 Compensation Disclosures 
 Carrier Financial Status  

Guide to Best’s Ratings 
 
Items Required Prior to Binding        

Acceptance of Proposal – Premium Recapitulation 
Acknowledgment of Non-Admitted Carrier 
SIGNED Terrorism forms 
UM form & Preferred Signature page 



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Our Story 
 

Brown & Brown, Public Sector is 
a proud member of the Brown & 
Brown family – an 83-year-old, 
publicly traded, Florida 
corporation currently ranked as 
the 5th largest insurance 
brokerage in the United States of 
America. Our Brown & Brown 
family is now more than 11,000 
teammates, spanning from 
London to Los Angeles. Through 
our collaborative efforts, we 
design, place, and service more 
than $20 Billion in annual 
insurance products. We 
passionately undertake these 
efforts on behalf of our clients – 
ranging from individuals and 
small businesses, to state 
governments and Fortune 500 
companies. 
 
The Brown & Brown, Public 

Sector team is a highly-specialized unit of insurance advisors 100% trained to deliver 
industry-leading services to public entities in the State of Florida. Since 1992, we have 
continuously refined that specialization and enhanced our services, while becoming the 
largest public entity brokerage in Florida. Our team provides Property & Casualty and 
Employee Benefits services to governments from Key West to the Panhandle and represents 
more than 200 clients. 
 
We have proven over nearly three decades of service to local governments that we are a 
highly sophisticated and accountable team of insurance professionals, laser-focused on 
providing both world-class brokerage services and concierge-level support to our clients. We 
have built our reputation by empowering our governmental clients to outperform their 
industry peers, lower their cost of risk, and enhance their employee benefits programs - all 
while staying within their annual budgetary constraints. Our team is committed to serve 
those who serve the public – and provide superior service to our clients, their staff, and their 
employees. 



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

An Introduction to Your Service Team 
 

Account Executives 
Matt Montgomery 

Executive Vice President (386) 239-7245 Matt.Montgomery@bbrown.com 

Robin Russell, ARM-P, CISR, CSRM 
Director of Operations (386) 239-4044 Robin.Russell@bbrown.com 

Paul Dawson, ARM-P 
Senior Vice President / Public Risk Advisor (386) 239-4045 Paul.Dawson@bbrown.com 

Michelle Martin, CIC 
Senior Vice President / Public Risk Advisor (386) 239-4047 Michelle.Martin@bbrown.com 

Brian Cottrell, CIC, CRM 
Vice President / Public Risk Advisor (386) 239-4060 Brian.Cottrell@bbrown.com 

Kyle Stoekel, ARM-P, CIC 
Public Risk Advisor (386) 944-5805 Kyle.Stoekel@bbrown.com 

Victoria “Tori” Reedy 
Executive Coordinator (386) 239-4043 Tori.Reedy@bbrown.com 

Nicholas “Nick” Van Nostrand 
Account Executive (321) 214-2377 Nicholas.VanNostrand@bbrown.com 

Service Representatives 
Emily Bailey 

Public Risk Specialist (386) 333-6085 Emily.Bailey@bbrown.com 

Melody Blake, ACSR 
Public Risk Specialist (386) 239-4050 Melody.Blake@bbrown.com 

Christina Carter, CIC, CRM 
Public Risk Specialist (386) 333-6069 Christina.Carter@bbrown.com 

Danielle Coggon, CIC, CISR 
Public Risk Specialist (386) 239-4048 Danielle.Coggon@bbrown.com 

Schylar Howard 
Public Risk Specialist (386) 265-6117 Schylar.Howard@bbrown.com 

Patricia “Trish” Jenkins, CPSR 
Public Risk Specialist (386) 239-4042 Trish.Jenkins@bbrown.com 

Alexa Gray 
Public Risk & Claims Specialist (386) 333-6068 Alexa.Gray@bbrown.com 

Certificate Requests: 179.certificates@bbrown.com 
Claim Reporting: 179.claims@bbrown.com 

 
 

 
Our Service Team philosophy focuses on accountability at all levels of account management. Our goal is 

not simply to meet your service needs, but to exceed them. All the employees at Brown & Brown are 
dedicated to achieving this goal and distinguishing ourselves from the competition. 

  



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust (Preferred) 
Overview 

 
Several hundred members and millions in premiums prove that the Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust® 
fulfills what Florida needs: an insurance program exclusively customized and dedicated to the public sector. 
Preferred stays on the forefront of specialized insurance for property, casualty and workers’ compensation 
because it is non-profit and self-governed with a membership comprised solely of Florida public entities. 
 
Preferred’s history dates back to 1999. Its robust membership and financial strength, including consistent 
growth of surplus, stem from its conservative platform of managed risk. Preferred is just that: preferred for 
unmatched public entity experience, innovation, stability and personalized service. 
 
 

Preferred’s Member Types 
Municipalities Counties Special Districts 

Public Schools Charter Schools Sheriff Departments 

Housing Authorities Aviation Authorities Transit, Port & Utility Authorities 
 
 
 

Preferred’s Comprehensive Coverages 
Property Workers’ Compensation General Liability 

Automobile Liability Automobile Physical Damage Law Enforcement Liability 

Public Officials Liability Employment Practices Liability Educators’ Legal Liability 

 
 
 

The Power of Groups and People 
What does a specialized insurance trust do for you? In the case of Preferred, it gives you the purchasing power 
of a very large trust with billions of covered property values—far more financial negotiating power than a 
single public entity can muster. As a Preferred member, you are part of a formidable Florida insurance trust. 
 
The trust also transfers risks from any one public entity to the larger group. This provides all members of the 
trust better rating structures with less volatility. Preferred’s sole focus on government ensures that members’ 
unique needs are met. 
 
  

mailto:rfaircloth@bbpria.com


 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Underwriting and Administration 
Behind Preferred’s underwriting platform are decades of success built on integrity and market relationships. 
Our team of underwriters’ vast insurance expertise enhances the actuarial and scientific data used to 
underwrite individual risks within the trust. Services delivered are both broad and precise. Reliability is 
assured. The administrator for Preferred is Public Risk Underwriters of Florida, Inc.® (PRU), Florida’s premier 
public entity specialist of its kind. Preferred’s claims administrator is PGCS Claim Services. With more than 25 
years in claims experience, PGCS is Florida’s foremost governmental third-party administration company. 
 

        
 
Underwriting Highlights 
• Diverse risk financing options: guaranteed cost, deductible, self-insured retention, all lines aggregate 
• Competitive premium discounts based on favorable experience and sound safety practices 
• Flexibility of coverage design, including mono-line or package basis  
• Dynamic financial analysis conducted periodically to validate the trust’s superior financial standing 

 
Administration 
• General counsel, defense counsel and litigation services by specialists in governmental law 
• Membership relations for networking and professional development 
• Legislative Pulse newsletter from Tallahassee-based law firm 
• Professional marketing that guarantees local agent support, governmental knowledge and an ever-

growing group of members 
• Preferred News—a quarterly publication covering the spectrum of government insurance issues 
• State filing, accounting and independent CPA audited financials as needed 

 
 

Preferred’s Expert Boards Know Your Business 
Preferred is governed and guided by people working daily in all segments of Florida’s public sector – from 
municipalities to counties to schools to special taxing districts. 
 
The Board of Trustees is comprised of elected public officials who work wisely and diligently to set policy, 
keeping Preferred as the premier public entity insurer of its kind. 
 

  



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Preferred Claims Administration 
 

Preferred Governmental Claim Solutions, Inc. ® (PGCS) is the premier governmental third-party 
claims administrator in the state of Florida and administers the claims for Preferred Governmental 
Insurance Trust (Preferred).  Since its founding in 1956, PGCS has provided claims administration 
services exclusively to over 450 governmental entities including schools, cities, towns, counties, 
community development districts, and fire districts. Therefore, PGCS’s adjusters are extremely 
qualified to handle governmental tort liability and public sector workers’ compensation claims.  They 
are experts at investigating and handling police and firefighters presumption claims.  PGCS is 
sensitive to the politics involved in the handling of public entity claims. 
 
PGCS’s claims administration program consists of workers’ compensation, general liability, bodily 
injury, personal injury, property, auto liability, auto physical damage, employment practices liability, 
school leaders/educators liability and public officials liability.  Their claims staff has over 630 years 
of combined insurance experience and each has been with PGCS an average of 8 years.  Claims are 
handled under strict supervision in accordance with the PGCS workers’ compensation and liability 
claim handling procedure manuals and the PGCS claim best practices manual.  A random sampling of 
each adjuster’s claim files are audited on a monthly basis by a Quality Assurance Manager to ensure 
compliance.  
 
PGCS provides their clients with a dedicated Subrogation Unit to pursue reimbursements from at-
fault third parties.  Their current recovery rate is fifty-nine (59) percent of the claim costs expended.  
PGCS also has a dedicated excess reporting and recovery unit for communication to and securing 
reimbursement from the excess and/or reinsurance carriers. In addition, PGCS provides a state-
approved Special Investigation Unit (SIU) to prevent and pursue fraudulent claims.  PGCS offers 
rewards up to $10,000.00 for the arrest and conviction of persons committing workers’ 
compensation fraud.  This service is provided via a twenty-four hour seven day a week hotline. 
 
PGCS utilizes the RiskMaster system for claims processing.  This system captures a wide variety of 
data and allows the adjuster to enter an unlimited number of claim notes, process reserve changes, 
and issue claim payments.   Customized reports can be obtained from PGCS’s on-line system 
containing a multitude of data parameters that a client may choose to analyze.  The system can be 
accessed by clients via their website at www.pgcs-tpa.com.   
 
Communication with PGCS’s clients is the cornerstone of their claims administration program.  
Professional adjusters, nurses, management, quarterly in-depth claim review meetings, 24/7 claim 
reporting, utilization of attorneys specializing in public entity defense, litigation management, and 
return to work programs are just a sample of how PGCS has set the standard for the industry. 
 
PGCS is committed to partnering with their clients to provide professional and aggressive claim 
management programs.  While they are recognized as the leader in the industry, PGCS is always 
striving to improve the quality of their programs and expand the services that they offer. 

http://www.pgcs-tpa.com/


 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Preferred Safety and Risk Management Services 
 

The success of any public sector community is tied to its ability to protect and preserve its human 
physical assets. This basic premise serves as the cornerstone of an effective Safety Management 
program and underscores the importance of Safety and Risk Control to the community. Preferred’s 
Safety and Risk Management Department is very aware of the valuable contribution a comprehensive 
safety and risk control program makes to the bottom-line of any organization. 
 
At Preferred, Safety consultations originate with one basic thought—to recommend specific measures 
to minimize or eliminate the exposures that cause accidents. This does not mean that the workplace 
become no-risk utopias, but we expect our consultants to recommend measures to control and 
minimize all types of accidents, injuries and illnesses to our Preferred members’ operations and 
premises. 
 
Preferred is dedicated to meeting the challenge of the complex issues facing public sector 
organizations Disarming these issues and converting them into solutions which work to the 
advantage of our goal. Preferred’s approach to risk control incorporates the following elements: 
 

• Exposure Identification – Assist management in determining areas where a chance of loss 
might exist through cause trend analysis, work site evaluations, and facility inspections.  

 
• Exposure Measurement and Loss Analysis – Loss analysis and a review of the consequences 

of the exposures will be considered to develop alternative methods of control. 
 

• Determination and Selection of Appropriate Risk Control Methods – Based on 
measurement and analysis, specific recommendations and/or custom designed risk control 
plan will be formulated. OSHA, as well as other Agency Standards will be applied and/or used 
as a “Best Practice” measure when designing and formulating safety and risk control plans.  

 
• Training and Safety Management Consulting – After considering client needs specific 

services and/or training will be formulated and initiated to fit the client’s need. Key Personnel 
or specialty consulting services with the knowledge and skills needed to meet those identified 
needs will be provided.  
 

• Additional Consulting Services Available – Preferred’s Safety & Risk Management has other 
services available that may benefit our clients. These services include security evaluations and 
review of existing safety and risk programs.  

 
Preferred’s Safety and Risk Management Department evaluates the unique needs to each client, 
ultimately designing a program that is capable of being integrated into the overall safety and risk 
control efforts of each client. Preferred’s dedication to the problem-solving approach is the 
foundation of their Safety and Risk Management Service.  

  



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Company:    ACE American Insurance Company 
(Rated A++ XV by A.M. Best) 

 
Starr Tech Participation:  100% 
 
Form:     Starr Tech benchmark form plus endorsements 
 
Coverage: All Risk of direct physical loss or damage, covering Property Damage, 

Business Interruption, Extra Expense, and Boiler & Machinery 
 
 

Values  
(per schedule on file) 

$124,680,801 Property Damage  
No Coverage Business Interruption 
$500,000 Extra Expense 
$124,680,801 Total Insured Value 
  

Policy Limit of Liability 
$124,680,801 Any One Occurrence 

 
Valuation 

This company’s liability for loss under this policy for real and personal property (excluding stock) shall 
not exceed the smallest of the following amounts: 
 1. The amount of this policy. 

2. The replacement cost of property or any part thereof, identical with property described herein, 
at the same location and intended for the same occupancy and use; 

3. The amount actually and necessarily expended in repairing or replacing the property described 
herein, or any part thereof, at the same location, or another location, and intended for the same 
occupancy and use. 

4. Actual Cash Value if the property is not repaired or replaced within 2 years. 
 

 Time Element Coverages: Actual Loss Sustained 
 

 



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Utilities Property 
 

Sublimits 
Sub-limits are per occurrence unless shown otherwise. The sub-limits below are part of and not in addition to the 

Policy Limit of Liability. Sub-limits are 100% and are subject to Starr Tech percentage participation. 
$25,000,000 Earthquake/Earth movement, Annual Aggregate 
No Coverage California Earthquake/Earth Movement 
$5,000,000 Flood (including storm surge) , Annual Aggregate 
$1,000,000 Flood (Zones A & V and all subzones, including storm surge), Annual Aggregate 
$500,000 or 25% of the 
loss, whichever is greater Debris Removal 

$250,000 Demolition & Increased Cost of Construction 
$1,000,000 EDP Equipment & Media 
$250,000 Expediting Expense 
$500,000 Extra Expense 
$250,000 Hazardous Substances or Contaminents 
$1,000,000 Newly Acquired Locations 
NO Coverage Service Interuption 
$1,000,000 Transit 
$250,000 Unnamed locations 
$250,000 Valuable papers 



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Utilities Property 
 
Deductibles:  
All deductibles listed below are per occurrence. 
 
Property Damage:   $300,000 except 
 
Flood (Zones A & V and all  
              subzones, including 
              Storm Surge): 5% of the Property Damage Total Insurable Value of the units of 

insurance damaged in the Occurrence, subject to a minimum of 
$250,000 

 
Wind (Named Storms): 5% of the Property Damage Total Insurable Value of the units of 

insurance damaged in the Occurrence, subject to a minimum of 
$250,000 
 

Dispatch Building & Utilies Office $100,000 
 
Water Treatment Plant/Reverse 
 Osmosis Water Treatment Plant $50,000 
 
Time Element  
  (including but limited to):  $300,000 
  Extra Expense:   120 hours per occurrence 
 
 
As respects real and personal property, all claims for loss, damage or expense arising out of any one occurrence 
shall be adjusted as on claim and from the amount of each such adjusted claim there shall be deducted the sum 
stated on the Declaration Page. Deductibles for Property Damage and Time Element shall be applied 
separately. 
 
 



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Utilities Property 
 
ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS:  
1.  Coverages and/or Extensions of Coverage not specifically mentioned, even though they may be 
 outlined in your submission, are not included. 
2.  This quotation is subject to change at any time prior to binding if any new losses not previously 
 reported are incurred, whether from natural catastrophe or any other insured cause of loss and 
 coverage cannot be bound prior to September 20, 2022. 
3.  Business Interruption coverage is excluded. 
4.  72 Hour Occurrence Definition applies to Wind, Flood, Earthquake and Riot. 
5.  No coverage provided for Steam Turbine Units S-1, S-2 and S-4 and associated boilers,  
 feedwater, condensate, circulating water and auxiliary electrical equipment. 
6.  No coverage provided for substation and switchyard, including the TPTL transformers. 
7.  Transmission and Distribution lines, line transformers, towers and poles, equipment or apparatus 

connected therewith located beyond 1,000 feet of any insured premises are excluded.  
8.  Extra Expense coverage excludes the costs incurred in the generation, transmission, purchase, 
 replacement, trading, or distribution of electrical power. 
9.  Premium does not include surcharges, taxes, & countersignature fees if any apply. 
10.  Premium to be paid in full within 30 days of inception. 
11.  The following Additional Endorsements will attach to and form part of the in-force Starr Tech 
 Energy policy form: 

a. Chubb Property Declarations 
b. Common Policy Conditions 
c. Commercial Property Conditions 
d. OFAC Policyholder Notice 
e. Energy Policy Declarations 
f. Energy Property All Risk Insurance Policy 
g. Accounts Receivable 
h. Asbestos Exclusion 
i. Biological or Nuclear Exclusion 
j. California Earth Movement Exclusion 
k. Designated Country or Region 
l. Electronic Data/Media Exclusion 
m. Electronic Data Processing Media with Extra Expense 
n. Exclusion of Loss due to Virus, Bacteria, or microorganism that induce Physical 
     distress, Illness or Disease 
o. Extra Expense 
p. Extra Expense Coverage Restriction 
q. Mold, Fungus, Wet and Dry Rot and Bacteria Exclusion 
r. Named Windstorm Definition 
s. Political Risk Exclusion 
t. Terrorism Endorsements per Table 
u. Valuable Papers and Records 
v. Wind 
w. Policy Change Endorsement 
x. Bridge Wording 
y. Signatures 
z. State Amendatory Notices 
aa. Claims Notice  



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Property – Inland Marine 
 

Term: October 1, 2022 to October 1, 2023 
 
Company: Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust (Preferred) 
 

Covered Property (Per Schedule Provided) 
$45,663,687 Blanket Value Buildings and Contents 
  

Special Property Coverages 
$5,000,000 Flood 
$5,000,000 Earth Movement 
$5,000,000 TRIA 
  

Inland Marine (Per Schedule Provided) 
$600,000 Blanket Unscheduled Inland Marine*** 
Included in Blanket Communication Equipment*** 
$494,526 Contractor’s / Mobile Equipment*** 
Included in Blanket Electronic Data Processing Equipment*** 
Included in Blanket Emergency Portable Service Equipment*** 
Included in Blanket Fine Arts*** 
Included in Blanket Other Inland Marine 
$100,000 Rented, Leased or Borrowed Equipment♦♦ 
Included in Blanket Valuable Papers 
$17,780 Watercraft, Not Including Hull Coverage** 

 
Deductibles:   $5,000 per Occurrence – Buildings and Contents, Earth Movement and TRIA 
 

5% of TIV per Occurrence / Per Location for “Named Storm” subject to 
minimum of $20,000 Per Occurrence. Location is defined by each itemized 
listing on the applicable schedule. Also applies to Inland Marine 

 
    $5,000 any one occurrence for Flood, except: 

Excess of maximum NFIP available whether purchased or not or 5% of the TIV 
at each affected location whichever is greater for Zones A & V 

 
    $1,000 per Occurrence – Inland Marine 
 
***Unscheduled items are subject to a maximum value of $25,000 or less per item. Items valued above this amount must be 
scheduled. 
 
**Watercraft, not exceeding 25 feet, coverage is not hull coverage. Limited to Specified Perils only, excluding collision with 
another object. 
 
♦♦Unscheduled items are subject to a maximum value of $250,000 or less per item, subject to the maximum per occurrence 
loss limit shown on the Inland Marine Schedule. Items valued above $250,000 must be schedule. 

  



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Property – Inland Marine 
 
“Named Storm” Definition:  “…the direct action of wind, including wind driven water and storm surge when associated 
with or occurring in conjunction with a storm or weather disturbance which is named…”  Wind driven water and storm 
surge loss are NOT subject to Flood Sublimit and are included to the blanket limits. 
 
Flood coverage in zones A or V, or within a 100 Year Flood Plain as designated by the United States Army Corps of 
Engineers, will have a special flood deductible equal to all flood insurance available for such property under the NFIP, 
whether purchased or not or 5% of the Total Insured Value at each affected location whichever is greater. If such property 
is not eligible for the National Flood Insurance Program because the community in which the property is located does not 
participate in the NFIP, the Special Flood Deductible will be $1,000,000 per insured location damaged in the flood 
occurrence or 5% of the Total Insured Value at each affected location whichever is greater.  
 
Flood zones A will include, but not be limited to all the sub-classifications of AO, AH, AE, AR, A1 through A99, or any other 
sub-classification with the A prefix or designation. Flood zones V will include, but not be limited to all the sub-
classifications of VO, VH, VE, VR V1 through V99, or any other sub-classification with the V prefix or designation.  See 
policy form for special deductible restrictions.  
 
Coverage: 
 

1. Special form (formerly “All Risk”), subject to policy exclusions. 
2. Replacement Cost applies to Buildings, Contents and EDP is subject to all terms and conditions of the 

coverage agreement the most we will pay for all loss, damage or costs in any one occurrence is the 
applicable limits of liability shown in the property declaration. The blanket limit of coverage shown 
in the property declaration applies to all covered property unless a separate limit, lower limit 
or reduced amount of coverage is indicated elsewhere in the coverage agreement or in the 
property declaration.   

3. Inland Marine coverage paid at “Agreed Value” if the valuation type on the Inland Marine schedule is 
shown as agreed value; or the lesser of Actual Cash Value or 110% of the value reported on the 
schedule. See policy for complete details. 

4. Preferred will pay for covered loss to your real property, inland marine or personal property:  
a. At the location shown on the Schedule of the Declarations, 
b. Property in the open within 1,000 feet of locations described in a. above, 
c. With respects to Inland Marine, at or away from your covered location. 

5. No Coinsurance Clause. 
6. Certain coverages subject to sub-limits stated in policy. 
7. During the current coverage agreement period, there will be no charge for any new locations acquired 

after the inception date of the agreement. If the newly added location was owned or acquired prior to 
the inception date of the coverage agreement, then premium is due at the time the location is added. 

8. The Preferred Property Program is a shared limit. The limits purchased are a per occurrence limit and 
in the event an occurrence exhaust the limit purchased by Preferred on behalf of the members, payment 
to you for a covered loss will be reduced pro-rata based on the amounts of covered loss by all members 
affected by the occurrence.  

9. Preferred will be appraising all property currently scheduled. At time of finalization of 
appraisal, building values are to be adjusted accordingly or Stated Value endorsement will be 
applied with immediate effect. 



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Property – Inland Marine 
 

Sublimits of Coverage 
Sublimits apply as part of, and not in addition to, the overall Total Insured Values coverage limit.  

$500,000 Accounts Receivable, per occurrence 

$1,000,000 Additional Expense 

$5,000 Animals, annual aggregate 

$500,000 Business Income 

$250,000, or 25% of loss 
whichever is greater Debris Removal, per occurrence 

$1,250,000 Demolition Cost, Ordinance & Increased Cost of Construction, per occurrence 

$250,000 Errors and Omissions, per occurrence 

$5,000 Expediting Expense, per occurrence 

$25,000 Fire Department Charges, per occurrence 

$50,000  Fungus Cleanup Expense, annual aggregate 

$25,000 Per Occurrence 
$1,000 Max per Tree 

Lawns, Plants, Trees and Shrubs, Excludes Wind (see policy form for additional 
restrictions) 

$2,000,000 New Locations, per occurrence – 60 days from the date new location(s) is first 
purchased, rented or occupied, whichever is earlier. See policy for details.  

$50,000  Personal Property of Employees, per occurrence 

$50,000 Pollution Cleanup Expense, annual aggregate 

$250,000 Preservation of Property, per occurrence 

$20,000 Professional Fees, per occurrence 

$150,000 Property at Miscellaneous Unnamed Locations 

$10,000 Recertification, per occurrence 

$100,000 Service Interruption Coverage, per occurrence 

$250,000 Transit, per occurrence 



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Property – Inland Marine 
Major Exclusions 

 
Property Not Covered includes but not limited to: 

1. Animals, water, land including land on which the property is located, shrubs, trees, lawns, growing 
crops, or standing timber, except under conditions described in the “Extensions of Coverage” section 
of the policy. 

2. Aircraft. 
3. Property you sold under conditional sale, trust agreement, installment payment, or other deferred 

payment plan after such property has been delivered to the customer. 
4. Caves, caverns, mines or any type, or any property contained within them. 
5. Currency, money, notes or securities. 
6. Dams, dikes or levees. 
7. Contraband or property in the course of illegal transportation or trade. 
8. Property covered under import or export ocean cargo policies. 
9. Property you transport as a common carrier. 
10. Property shipped by mail, unless sent registered or certified. 
11. Watercraft unless loss is from a specified peril and scheduled on the inland marine schedule.  
12. Vehicles licensed or designed for highway use, unless shown on the Property Declaration, Extensions 

of Coverage item U, and then no coverage for any over the road coverage, or collision with another 
vehicle or object. The AOP deductible applies per occurrence and in the event of a Named Storm the 
Named Storm deductible applies per vehicle rather than per location. This coverage is paid at actual 
cash value at time of loss. 

13. Bulkheads, docks, piers, wharves, retaining walls, boardwalks or underwater conduits from: freezing 
and thawing; impact of watercraft; waves, or debris driven by waves; pressure or weight of ice or 
water, whether driven by wind or not; or sinking or settling. 

14. Electrical or communication lines, towers, and poles you own that are not located on a “covered 
location” insured under this policy. 

15. Personal property of volunteers. 
16. Underground pipes, unless loss is from a specified peril.  
17. If building has been vacant for more than 90 consecutive days before a loss or damage, the following 

perils will be excluded: Vandalism, Sprinkler leakage, unless the system has been protected against 
freezing, building glass breakage, water damage, theft or attempted theft.  

 
Excluded Risks of Direct Physical Loss include but not limited to: 

1. War, invasion, acts of foreign enemies, hostilities or war like operations, civil war, rebellion, revolution, 
insurrection, civil commotion, military, usurped power, or any act of terrorism 

2. Biological or Chemical Materials  
3. Electronic Data or Electronic Date Recognition Exclusion 
4. Asbestos 
5. Damage caused by electronic currents artificially generated.  
6. Pollution, except as provided under “Extensions of Coverage” 
7. Building ordinance enforcement or Government action 
8. Nuclear reaction 
9. Utility failure 
10. Fungus, except as provided under “Extensions of Coverage” 
11. Any offshore oil well or oil shipping/tanker incident and the ensuing oil spill 

  



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Equipment Breakdown 
 

Term: October 1, 2022 to October 1, 2023 
 
 
Company: Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust (Preferred) 

 
 

Covered Equipment: Covered Property built to operate under vacuum or pressure, other 
than weight of contents, or used for the generation, transmission or 
utilization of energy. 

 
 
Coverage Limit 
Property Damage / Loss of Business Income / Additional Expense per accident $45,663,687 
Water Damage $1,000,000 
Ammonia Contamination $1,000,000 
Hazardous Substance Coverage $1,000,000 
Utility Interruption (24 Hour Waiting Period) $2,000,000 
Spoilage Damage $250,000 
Ordinance or Law $1,000,000 
Expediting Expenses $1,000,000 
Data or Media $250,000 
Fungus, Wet Rot, Dry Rot $15,000 

  
 
 
Deductibles: Same as Property – Building and Contents 
 24 Hours – Utility Interruption 
 
 
 
 



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Crime 
 

Term: October 1, 2022 to October 1, 2023 
 
 
Company: Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust (Preferred) 
 
 
Limits of Liability and Coverage: 
 
Coverage Limit Deductible 

Employee Dishonesty, Including Faithful Performance $500,000 $25,000 

Forgery or Alteration Coverage $500,000 $25,000 

Theft, Disappearance and Destruction Coverage 
     Inside 
     Outside 

 
$500,000 
$500,000 

 
$25,000 
$25,000 

Computer Fraud Coverage (Including Funds Transfer) $500,000 $25,000 

 
 
Notes of Importance: 
 

1. Employee dishonesty coverage is excluded for those employees required by law to be individually 
bonded. 

 
 



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

General Liability 
 

Term: October 1, 2022 to October 1, 2023 
 
Company: Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust (Preferred) 
 
Form: Occurrence 

Coverage Limit Self Insured Retention 
General Liability 

Bodily Injury and Property Damage, per Occurrence $1,000,000 

$200,000/$300,000 
 

Personal Injury and Advertising Injury, per 
Person/Occurrence Included 

Products/Completed Operations, Aggregate Included 
Fire Damage, per Occurrence Included 
Medical Payments $5,000 
Employee Benefits Liability, per Occurrence $1,000,000 

Sublimits 
Vicarious Law Enforcement Liability, per Occurrence $1,000,000 

Same as General Liability 

Principle of Eminent Domain Including Inverse 
Condemnation, “Bert J. Harris, Jr., Private Property Rights 
Protection Act” per Occurrence / Annual Aggregate. 

$100,000 

Sewer Backup and Water Damage: 
 Non-Negligent Claims  
 Negligent Claims. 

 
$10,000/$200,000 

$200,000/$200,000 
Herbicide and Pesticide, per Occurrence $1,000,000 

 
Additional Coverages Included: 

1. EMT/Paramedic Professional Services 
2. Premises Operations 
3. “Insured” Contracts 
4. Host Liquor Liability 
5. Broad Form Property Damage Subject to $2,500 Personal Property of Others Sublimit 
6. Watercraft Liability (under 52 feet). See policy form for limitations 
7. Limited Worldwide Coverage 
8. Failure to Supply Water 
9. Communicable Disease (Correctional Facilities and Health Care Facilities - $300,000 Limit) 

 
Notes of Importance: 

1. Premium is not audited. 
2. Defense Costs are paid in addition to policy limits. 
3. In the event an occurrence, accident or offense continues beyond the policy period, the applicable 

deductible would apply separately to each policy period in which the occurrence, accident or offense 
was committed or was alleged to have been committed. 

4. Limits of Liability are subject to Florida Statute 768.28. 
5. SIR applied to money damages and claims expenses (including investigation, adjustment and defense 

costs). 



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

General Liability 
 

Exclusions, include but not limited to: 
• Expected or intended injury 
• Contractual Liability 
• Liquor Liability 
• Workers’ Compensation and similar laws 
• Employer’s Liability 
• Pollution 
• Aircraft, Auto or Watercraft 
• Mobile Equipment 
• War 
• Damage to Your Property, Product or Work 
• Damage to Impaired Property or Property Not Physically Injured 
• Recall of Products, Work or Impaired Property 
• Racketeering 
• Law Enforcement, except for vicarious liability arising out of an act or omission by a law 

enforcement agency that is not owned, operated or controlled by the “Covered party” if there is a 
contract with an outside agency to provide law enforcement for your entity. 

• Asbestos, Mold, Fungi, or Bacteria 
• Liability arising out of or caused or contributed to by any ownership, maintenance, operation, use, 

loading, unloading or control of or responsibility for any airfield, airport, aircraft, runway, hangar, 
building or other property or facility designed for, used, connected, associated or affiliated with 
or in any way related to aviation or aviation activities; this exclusion does not apply to premises 
exposure for those common areas open to the public including but not limited to parking areas, 
sidewalks, and terminal buildings. 

• Failure or inability to supply or any interruption of any adequate quantity of power, steam, 
pressure, or fuel 

• Subsidence, erosion or earth movement.  
• Hospital / Clinic Medical Malpractice or Health Care Facilities 
• Professional Health Care Services, but not including emergency medical services for first aid 

performed by emergency medical technicians, paramedics or Medical Director while in the course 
and scope of their duties. 

• ERISA 
• Actual or alleged illegal discrimination 
• Injunctive, declaratory or equitable relief 
• Actual or alleged deterioration, bursting breaking, leaking, inadequacy, design of, control of, 

maintenance of, or any other alleged responsibility for any structure device, or water course, 
natural or man-made, including, but not limited to: dams, reservoirs, levees, banks, embankments, 
gates, canals, ditches, gutters, sewers, aqueducts, channels, culvert, retaining walls, drains, tanks, 
watershed, or drains, a purpose of which is the containing, carrying, impeding, channeling, 
diverting, or draining of water or other liquid. Does not apply only as to the bursting or failure of 
man-made sewer, storm water, grey water or potable water supply pipes owned and maintained 
by Covered Party. 

• Sexual abuse after initial discovery 
  



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Deadly Weapon Protection 
 
Term: October 1, 2022 to October 1, 2023 
 
Company: Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust (Preferred) 
 
Form: Claims Made 
 

Deadly Weapon Protection – Claims Made  
Retroactive Date: 10/1/2019 

Coverage Limit Deductible 
Deadly Weapon Event (Including Claims Expenses), per event $1,000,000 $0 

Per Event 
Deadly Weapon Protection – Sublimits 

Business Interruption  Included 

$0 
Per Event 

Demolition, Clearance, and Memorialization, per event $250,000 
Extra Expense, per event $250,000 
Crisis Management Included 
Property Damage Extension, per event Included 
Counseling Services, per event $250,000 
Funeral Expenses, per event $250,000 
Claims Expenses Included 
Medical Expense, per person $25,000 
Accidental Death & Dismemberment, per person $50,000 

 
Notes of Importance: 

1. Coverage limited to scheduled locations only. 
2. Premium is not audited. 
3. Defense Costs are paid within the policy limits. 
4. Deductible does not apply to claims expense.  

 
 
Any Event that occurs at a Location which has been specifically leased or loaned 
by the City to any other entity or individual to host a permitted event planned 
and ticketed for more than 15,000 attendees over the duration of the event, 
MUST BE reported to AND APPROVED by Preferred PRIOR to event. The Trust 
may, at their discretion, charge an additional premium and/or impose 
additional conditions specifically for that event.  
 
 
  



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Deadly Weapon Protection 
 
Exclusions include but are not limited to: 
• Loss of market, income or use at the property physically lost or physically damaged.  
• Confiscation, nationalization, requisition, destruction or damage to property by any authority.  
• Criminal, dishonest, fraudulent or malicious conduct by the Covered Party.  
• Negligent act, error, omission, misstatement, misleading statement, neglect or breach of duty by 

the Directors or Officers 
• Euthanasia.  
• Explosive devices unless used in conjunction with a Deadly Weapon Event.  
• Vehicle not defined as a Road Vehicle;  
• Weapon mounted (or designed to be mounted) on a vehicle;  
• Weapon, device or substance delivered by an airborne weapon delivery system including, but not limited 

to, fixed wing aircraft, helicopter or drone.  
• Injury or death to employees of the Covered Party, except for Crisis Management Services, Counselling 

Services, and Funeral Expenses endorsed by Extension to this Coverage Agreement.  
• Claim or Claims made by, or on behalf of, any Assailant(s).  
• Use or operation, as a means for inflicting harm, of any computer, computer system, computer software 

program, malicious code, computer virus or process or any other electronic system. 
• Nuclear, Chemical, Biological, Bio-Chemical, Electromagnetic or Radioactive Weapons.  
• Mental injury or mental anguish related claim where no actual Bodily Injury has occurred to the claimant.  
• Covered Party's recklessness or deliberate misconduct.  
• Mercy Killing(s).  
• Covered Party except for employee while they are a recipient of Business Services being provided by the 

Covered Party.  
• Pollutant or Contaminant.  
• Goods or products designed, manufactured, constructed, altered, repaired, serviced, treated, sold, supplied 

or distributed by the Covered Party.  
• Property Damage in respect of property:  

o owned, leased, rented or occupied by the Covered Party.  
o in the care, custody or control of the Covered Party or the care, custody or control of any person 

under contract with the Covered Party.  
• Punitive or exemplary damages, sanctions or any additional damages resulting from the multiplication of 

compensatory damages.  
• Strikes, labor unrest, riots or civil commotion.  
• Suicide. 
• War, invasion, acts of foreign enemies, hostilities or warlike operations, civil war, rebellion, revolution, 

insurrection, civil commotion assuming the proportions of, or amounting to, an uprising, military power. 
  



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Deadly Weapon Protection 
 
 
Claims Made Policy: 
When a policy is on a claims-made basis, coverage triggers based on the actual filing date or receipt of the 
claim, in addition to the date of loss or injury. It handles any insured loss or claim filed during the policy period, 
regardless of when the actual loss or injury occurred, subject to the retroactive date on the declarations. 
Claims-made coverage applies only to covered losses that occur after the retroactive date. 
 
 
Extended Reporting Periods: 
Preferred provides the following Extended Reporting Periods options in the event coverage is cancelled or 
non-renewed: 
 
Automatic Extended Reporting Period – continued coverage granted for a period of 90 days following the 
effective date of termination or nonrenewal, but only for Claims first made during the 90 days and arising from 
Wrongful Acts taking place prior to the effective date of the termination or nonrenewal. 
  



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Automobile Liability and Physical Damage 
 

Term: October 1, 2022 to October 1, 2023 
 
 
Company: Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust (Preferred) 
 
 

Coverage Limit Symbol Self Insured 
Retention 

Automobile Liability (Based on 193 Vehicles) 
Primary Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability 
– Combined Limit $1,000,000 1 $200,000/$300,000 

 

Personal Injury Protection Statutory 5 $0  
Per Person 

Medical Payments Not Included 2 N/A 

Uninsured Motorist Rejected 2 N/A 

 
 
Coverage and Notes of Importance: 
 

1. Defense Costs are paid in addition to policy limits. 
2. Hired and non-owned liability is included. 
3. Limits of Liability are subject to Florida Statute 768.28. 

 



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Automobile Liability and Physical Damage 
 
Description of Covered Auto Designation Symbols: 
 
SYMBOL  DESCRIPTION 

1 = ANY “AUTO” 
2 = ALL OWNED “AUTOS” ONLY. Only those “autos” you own and or lease (and for Liability 

Coverage any “trailers” you don’t own while attached to power units you own). This also 
includes all those “autos” you acquire ownership of after the coverage agreement begins. 

3 = OWNED PRIVATE PASSENGER “AUTOS” ONLY. Only the private passenger “autos” you 
won. This includes those private passenger “autos” you acquire ownership of after the 
coverage agreement begins. 

4 = OWNED “AUTOS” OTHER THAN PRIVATE PASSENGER “AUTOS” ONLY. Only those “autos” 
you won that are not of the private passenger type (and for Liability Coverage any 
“trailers” you don’t own while attached to power units you own). This includes those 
“autos” not of the private passenger type you acquire ownership of after the coverage 
agreement begins. 

5 = OWNED “AUTOS” SUBJECT TO NO-FAULT. Only those “autos” you own and or lease that 
are required to have No-Fault benefits in the state where they are licensed or principally 
garaged. This includes those “autos” you acquire ownership of after the coverage 
agreement begins provided they are required to have No-Fault benefits in the state where 
they are licensed or principally garaged. 

6 = OWNED “AUTOS” SUBJECT TO A COMPULSORY UNINSURED MOTORIST LAW. Only those 
“autos” you own and or lease that because of the law in the state where they are licensed 
or principally garaged are required to have and cannot reject Uninsured Motorists 
Coverage. This includes those “autos” you acquire ownership of after the coverage 
agreement begins provided they are subject to the same state uninsured motorists 
requirement. 

7 = SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED “AUTOS”. Only those “autos” described in ITEM THREE of the 
Declarations for which a premium charge is shown (and for Liability Coverage any 
“trailers” you don’t own while attached to any power unit described in ITEM THREE). 

8 = HIRED “AUTOS” ONLY. Only those “autos” you hire rent or borrow. This does not include 
any “auto” you lease, hire, rent, or borrow from any of your employees or partners or 
members of their households. 

9 = NONOWNED “AUTOS” ONLY. Only those “autos” you do not own, hire, rent or borrow that 
are used in connection with your business. This includes “autos” owned by your 
employees or partners or members of their households but only while used in your 
business. 

 
 
 
 
  



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Excess Workers’ Compensation 
 

Term: October 1, 2022 to October 1, 2023 
 
 
Insurer: Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust (Preferred) 
 
 

Contract Terms Option 1: 
Liability Period 10/1/2022 – 10/1/2023 
Payroll Reporting Period 10/1/2022 – 10/1/2023 
Payroll $20,894,772 
Self-Insured Retention $500,000 
Specific Limit Statutory 
Employers Liability Limit $1,000,000/$1,000,000/$1,000,000 

 
 
 
 
 
Notes of Importance:  
 

1. TPA Fees are not included in this proposal. 
2. State taxes and assessments are not included in the premium and are the responsibility of the insured. 
3. If TPA is other than PGCS, first dollar TPA losses required on a quarterly basis. 
4. Certification of Servicing for Self-Insurers form filed with the State of Florida (SI-19) must be 

received PRIOR to binding excess WC 
5. Final premium subject to payroll audit. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
  



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Option 1 
Public Officials Liability/Employment Practices Liability 

(Information Subject to change) 
Term:      October 1, 2022 to October 1, 2023 
 
Company:     ACE American Insurance Company 
       (Rated A++ XV by A.M. Best) 
       Admitted 
Limit of Liability: 
 

Public Officials Liability / Employment Practices Liability 
Coverage:  Limit: Retention: 
Annual Aggregate  $1,000,000 

$100,000 
Each Wrongful Act $1,000,000 

Crisis Management Fund $25,000  

Form:      Claims Made  
 
Retroactive Date:    Full Prior Acts 
 
Extended Reporting Period: 12 months for 100% of last annual premium 
 
The following Endorsements will be added to the basic contract(s); Policy Form Number: PF-23535 / 
PF-23536 (01/08) 

• Signatures      CC-1K11j (03/21) - (All States except Ohio) 
• Notice Amended Endorsement    PF-33468 (02/11) 
• Trade Or Economic Sanctions Endorsement PF-46593 (08/15) - Florida 
• Network Security or Privacy Exclusion   PF-37210 (02/12) 
• False Claims Act Exclusion    PF-38981 (01/13) 
• Bonds Exclusion     PF-27923 (08/09 
• Public Entity Liability Enhancement Endt PF-308205 (10/20) 
• Limits of Liability Amended – Payment of 

Claims Expenses Reduces the Limits of Liability  PF -299861 (04/20) 
 
TRIA Endorsements added to basic contract(s): 
 

• Policyholder Disclosure Notice of Terrorism Insurance Coverage   TR-19606e (08/20) 
 
Policy Addendums: 

• U.S. Treasury Department’s Office Of Foreign Assets Control 
(“OFAC”) Advisory Notice to Policyholders    PF-17914a (04/16) 

• Chubb Producer Compensation Practices & Policies   ALL-20887a (03/16) 
 
Claims Made Policy:  When a policy is on a claims-made basis, coverage triggers based on the actual filing date 
or receipt of the claim, in addition to the date of loss or injury. It handles any insured loss or claim filed during 
the policy period, regardless of when the actual loss or injury occurred, subject to the retroactive date on the 
declarations. Claims-made coverage applies only to covered losses that occur after the retroactive date.  



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Option 2 
Public Officials Liability/Employment Practices Liability 

 
Term: October 1, 2022 to October 1, 2023 
 
 
Company: Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust (Preferred) 
 
 
Form: POL/EPLI: Claims Made – Duty to Defend 
 
 

Coverage 
Limit Self 

Insured 
Retention 

Public Officials Liability 
Retroactive Date: Full Prior Acts 

Per Claim $1,000,000 $100,000 
Employment Practices Liability 

Retroactive Date: Full Prior Acts 
Per Claim $1,000,000 $100,000 

Sublimits 
Employee Pre-Termination Legal Consultation Services 
 Per Employee 
 Aggregate 

 
$2,500 
$5,000  

Non-Monetary Claims Defense Costs, Aggregate $100,000 
 
 
Notes of Importance: 
 

1. Defense Costs are paid in addition to policy limits. 
2. SIR applied to money damages and claims expenses (including investigation, adjustment and defense 

costs) 
3. Broadened definition of “Who is an Insured.” 
4. Limits of Liability are subject to Florida Statute 768.28. 

  



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Public Officials Liability/Employment Practices Liability 
 
 
Exclusions, include but not limited to: 

• Criminal Acts 
• Non-Monetary relief except as provided in the Supplementary Payments 
• Bodily Injury, Personal Injury, Property Damage, Advertising Injury 
• Damages arising out of Inverse Condemnation, Eminent Domain, Temporary or Permanent taking, 

Adverse Possession, Dedication by adverse Use, Condemnation Proceedings, or claims brought under 
Florida Statute 70.001 the “Bert J. Harris Jr., Private Property Rights Protection Act” or any similar 
claim by whatever named called. 

• War, Invasion, Acts of foreign enemies, hostiles or warlike operations, strike, lock-out, riot, civil war, 
rebellion, revolution, insurrection or civil commotion 

• Failure to effect and maintain insurance 
• Fiduciary Liability 
• Pollution 
• Workers’ Compensation, Employers Liability and similar laws 
• Nuclear 
• ERISA of 1974, any similar state or local laws, and any rules and regulations promulgated thereunder 

and amendments thereto. 
• Infringement of copyright, trademark, plagiarism, piracy or misappropriation of any ideas or other 

intellectual property 
• Contractual Liability 
• Health Care Professional or Health Care Facilities 
• Prior and Pending claims 
• Workers’ Adjustment and Retraining Notification Act, OSHA, RICO, or ADA 
• Law Enforcement Activities 
• Insured vs. Insured 
• Bonds, Taxes or Construction contracts 
• Collective Bargaining Agreements 
• Capital Improvement to make property more accessible or accommodating to disabled persons 
• Punitive Damages 
• Return or improper assessment of taxes, assessments, penalties, fines, fees 
• Activities of any attorney-at-law, medical personnel, architect, engineer or accountant, in the scope of 

their professional duties, except for claims made against them as Public Officials or Employees 
• Media Wrongful Act 
• Access or Disclosure of Confidential or Personal Information and Data-related Liability 



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Public Officials Liability/Employment Practices Liability 
 

Claims Made Policy: 
 
When a policy is on a claims-made basis, coverage triggers based on the actual filing date or receipt of the 
claim, in addition to the date of loss or injury. It handles any insured loss or claim filed during the policy period, 
regardless of when the actual loss or injury occurred, subject to the retroactive date on the declarations. 
Claims-made coverage applies only to covered losses that occur after the retroactive date. 
 
 
Extended Reporting Periods: 
 
Preferred provides the following Extended Reporting Periods options in the event coverage is cancelled or 
non-renewed: 
 
Automatic Extended Reporting Period – continued coverage granted for a period of 60 days following the 
effective date of termination or nonrenewal, but only for Claims first made during the 60 days and arising from 
Wrongful Acts taking place prior to the effective date of the termination or nonrenewal. 
 
Optional Extended Reporting Period – The Public Entity shall have the right, upon payment of up to 200% 
of the expiring premium, to purchase an Optional Extended Reporting Period, for the period of 12 months 
following the effective date of the cancellation or nonrenewal, but only for Claims first made during the 
Optional Extended Reporting Period and arising from Wrongful Acts taking place prior to the effective date of 
the termination or nonrenewal. 
 
 

 
 

  



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Option 1 
Cyber Liability 

 
Term: October 1, 2022 to October 1, 2023 
 
Company: ACE American Insurance Company 
  (Rated A++ XV by A.M. Best) 
 
Form: Claims Made 
 

Cyber Enterprise Risk Management Policy 

Maximum Single Limit of Insurance $1,000,000 

Maximum Policy Aggregate Limit of Insurance $1,000,000 

First Party Insuring Agreement 
Limit of Liability 

Each 
Claim/Aggregate 

Retention / 
Waiting Period 
Each Incident 

Cyber Incident 
Response Coach 

Cyber Incident Response Fund    

     Standard Cyber Incident Response Team $1,000,000 $100,000 $100,000 

     Non-Panel Response Provider $250,000 $100,000 $100,000 
Business Interruption Loss and Extra 
Expense $1,000,000 $100,000 /  

10 Hour N/A 

Contingent Business Interruption and 
Extra Expense N/A N/A N/A 

     Unscheduled Providers $1,000,000 $100,000 N/A 

     Scheduled Providers N/A N/A N/A 

Digital Data Recovery $1,000,000 $100,000 N/A 

Network Extortion $1,000,000 $100,000 N/A 

Third Party Liability Insuring Agreement 
Limit of Liability 

Each 
Claim/Aggregate 

Retention Each 
Claim 

Retro Date / 
Pending or 

Prior 
Proceedings 

Date 
Cyber, Privacy and Network Security 
Liability $1,000,000 $100,000 Full Prior Acts / 

1-23-20 

     Payment Card Loss $500,000 $100,000 Full Prior Acts / 
1-23-20 

     Regulatory Proceedings $1,000,000 $100,000 Full Prior Acts / 
1-23-20 

Electronic, Social and Printed Media 
Liability $1,000,000 $100,000 Full Prior Acts / 

1-23-20 
 



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Cyber Liability 
 
 
 
Cyber Other Terms and Conditions: 
Coverage Limit Retention Coinsurance 
Ransomware Encounter $1,000,000 $100,000 0% 
Widespread Severe Known Vulnerability 
Exploit $1,000,000 $100,000 0% 

Widespread Software Supply Chain Exploit $1,000,000 $100,000 0% 

Widespread Severe Zero Day Exploit $1,000,000 $100,000 0% 

All Other Widespread Events $1,000,000 $100,000 0% 
 
Notices, Forms, & Endorsements (include but are not limited to) U: 
 

Form # Edition 
Date Title 

PF-48169 02/19 Chubb Cyber Enterprise Risk Management Policy 
1701 02/91 Cyber Services Solutions 

ALL-20887a 03/16 Chubb Producer Compensation Practices & Policies 
PF-17914A 04/16 U.S. Treasury Department’s Office of Foreign Assets Control (“OFAC”) Notice 
TR-19606e 08/20 Policyholder Disclosure Notice of Terrorism Insurance Coverage 
PF-17993a 05/06 Notice to Policyholders 
PF-46593 08/15 Trade or Economic Sanction Endorsement - Florida 

ALL-39822 04/13 Notice to Our Florida Property and Casualty Policyholders Guidelines for Loss 
Control Plans 

PF-45354 02/19 Cap on Losses from Certified Acts of Terrorism 
CC-1K11j 03/21 Signatures Endorsement 
PF-48285 02/19 Amendatory Endorsement - Florida 
PF-48155 02/’19 Additional Insured-Blanket Pursuant to a Contract- Cyber ERM 
PF-48275 02/19 Non-Malicious Computer Act – System Failure – Business Interruption and 

Contingent Business Interruption - Sublimit 
PF-49501 02/19 Preventative Shutdown 
PF-54812 06/21 General Amendatory Endorsement 
PF-54814 06/21 Ransomware Encounter Endorsement 
PF-54815 06/21 Widespread Event Endorsement 
PF-50959 02/19 Failure to Supply Exclusion 
PF-56230 12/21 Coordination of Coinsurance, Retention, and Limits of Insurance 
PF-56258 02/22 Musical Work or Composition Exclusion Endorsement 

 
 
 
 
 
  



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Cyber Liability 
 
 
Coverage Overview: 
The following coverages are available but may not be included in this proposal:  
 
Third-Party Liability Coverage 

• Cyber, Privacy and Network Security Liability – Failure to protect private or confidential information 
of others, and failure to prevent a cyber incident from impacting others’ systems.  

• Payment Card Loss – Contractual liabilities owed as a result of a cyber incident.  
• Regulatory Proceedings – Defense for regulatory actions and coverage for fines and penalties.  
• Media Liability – Copyright and trademark infringement within scope of defined media content.  

 

First-Party Coverage 
• Cyber Incident Response Fund – Legal fees, forensics, notification costs, credit monitoring, public 

relations, etc.  
• Business Interruption – Loss of profits and expenses from interruptions of insured’s systems; and 

with Contingent Business Interruption, adds losses from interruptions of others’ systems.  
• Digital Data Recovery – Costs to restore or replace lost or damaged data or software, and extra 

expense.  
• Telephone Toll Fraud – Costs incurred as phone bill charges due to fraudulent calling.  
• Network Extortion – Payments to prevent digital destruction / impairment and extra expense.  

 

Cyber Crime (By Endorsement) 
• Computer Fraud – Third party accessing insured’s computers to take money.  
• Funds Transfer Fraud – Third party tricking a bank into transferring funds from insured’s account.  
• Social Engineering Fraud – Third party tricking an employee into transferring money.  

 

 
 
 



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Cyber Liability 
 
Claims Made Policy: 
 
When a policy is on a claims-made basis, coverage triggers based on the actual filing date or receipt of the 
claim, in addition to the date of loss or injury. It handles any insured loss or claim filed during the policy period, 
regardless of when the actual loss or injury occurred, subject to the retroactive date on the declarations. 
Claims-made coverage applies only to covered losses that occur after the retroactive date. 
 
 
Extended Reporting Periods: 
 
ACE provides the following Extended Reporting Periods options in the event coverage is cancelled or non-
renewed: 
 
Automatic Extended Reporting Period – continued coverage granted for a period of 90 days following the 
effective date of termination or nonrenewal, but only for Claims first made during the 90 days and arising from 
Wrongful Acts taking place prior to the effective date of the termination or nonrenewal. 
 
Optional Extended Reporting Period – The Public Entity shall have the right, within thirty (30) of the 
effective date of the cancellation or nonrenewal, to purchase an Optional Extended Reporting Period for up to 
three (3) years upon payment of an additional premium amount of up to:   
 

• 100% of the expiring premium for the period of 12 months 
• 150% of the expiring premium for the period of 24 months 
• 175% of the expiring premium for the period of 36 months 

 
but only for Claims first made during the Optional Extended Reporting Period and arising from Wrongful Acts 
taking place prior to the effective date of the termination or nonrenewal. 
 

 
 
  



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Option 2 
Cyber Liability 

 
Term: October 1, 2022 to October 1, 2023 
 
 
Company: Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust (Preferred) 
 
 
Form: Claims Made – Duty to Defend 
 
 

Cyber Liability 
Retroactive Date: 10/1/2011 

Coverage Limit Deductible 
Policy Limit – Annual Aggregate $2,000,000 Per Below 

Third Party Liability Coverage 
Privacy & Security Liability, each claim $2,000,000 $25,000 
Media Content Services Liability, each claim $2,000,000 $25,000 
PCI DSS, sublimit $1,000,000 $25,000 

First Party Liability Coverage 
Cyber Extortion & Ransomware, each claim $500,000 $25,000 
Data Breach & Crisis Management, each claim $2,000,000 $25,000 
Data Recovery, each claim $2,000,000 $25,000 
Business Interruption / Extra Expense, each claim $2,000,000 $25,000/12 Hr. 
Cyber Crime, refer to form for sublimits – Annual Aggregate 
 Social Engineering Financial Fraud* 
 Funds Transfer Fraud 
 Invoice Manipulation 

$250,000 
$250,000 
$100,000 
$100,000 

$25,000 
$25,000 
$25,000 
$25,000 

Utility Fraud, refer to form for sublimits – Annual Aggregate 
 Crypto Jacking 
 Telecommunications Fraud 

$100,000 
$100,000 
$100,000 

$25,000 
$25,000 
$25,000 

System Failure – BI/EE, sublimit $1,000,000 $25,000/12 Hr. 
Dependent Business Interruption – System Failure, BI/EE, sublimit $1,000,000 $25,000/12 Hr.. 
Bricking Coverage, sublimit $500,000 $25,000 
Consequential Reputation Loss 
 Period of Restoration  

$500,000 
6 Months 12 Hours 

 
*Social Engineering Financial Fraud – Coverage shall only apply if you verify the instruction to transfer money or 
securities by following a pre-arranged callback or other established procedural method to authenticate the validity or the 
request prior to acting upon any transfer instructions.  



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Cyber Liability 
 

Notes of Importance: 
 

1. Defense Costs are paid in addition to policy limits. 
2. Deductible does not apply to claims expense.  

 
 
Exclusions, include but not limited to: 

• Deliberate Acts / Personal Profit 
• Prior Acts 
• Bodily Injury / Property Damage 
• Employment Practices  
• Ownership 
• Covered Party vs. Covered Party 
• ERISA/Securities 
• Pollution 
• Contractual except when assumed under contract 
• Guarantees 
• Advertising 
• Business Practice 
• Patent 
• Privacy 
• Governmental Action 
• Software Responsibility 
• Act of God 
• Recover of Profits, Royalties and Fees 
• RICO 
• Trade Secrets 
• War 
• Infrastructure Failure electrical, mechanical, Internet, telecommunication, cable or satellite failure, 

fluctuation or outage not under the operational control of the Insured, however caused, including any 
electrical power interruption, short circuit, surge, brownout or blackout, however this exclusion shall 
not apply to a telecommunications fraud event.  

• Governmental Orders any court order or damaged requiring the Covered Party to provide law 
enforcement, any administrative, regulatory or judicial body or any other governmental authority 
access to personally identifiable information, protected health information, or confidential business 
information. 

• Over-Redemption price discounts, prizes, awards, coupons, or any other valuable consideration given 
in excess of the contracted or expected amount.  

 
 
 
 
  



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Cyber Liability 
 

Claims Made Policy: 
 
When a policy is on a claims-made basis, coverage triggers based on the actual filing date or receipt of the 
claim, in addition to the date of loss or injury. It handles any insured loss or claim filed during the policy period, 
regardless of when the actual loss or injury occurred, subject to the retroactive date on the declarations. 
Claims-made coverage applies only to covered losses that occur after the retroactive date. 
 
 
Extended Reporting Periods: 
 
Preferred provides the following Extended Reporting Periods options in the event coverage is cancelled or 
non-renewed: 
 
Automatic Extended Reporting Period – continued coverage granted for a period of 60 days following the 
effective date of termination or nonrenewal, but only for Claims first made during the 60 days and arising from 
Wrongful Acts taking place prior to the effective date of the termination or nonrenewal. 
 
Optional Extended Reporting Period – The Covered Party shall have the right to purchase an Optional 
Extended Reporting Period for up to 6 years following the effective date of the cancellation or nonrenewal, as 
shown below: 
 

o Option 1 – 100% for 1 Year 
o Option 2 – 150% for 2 Years 
o Option 3 – 175% for 3 Years 
o Option 4 – 250% for 6 Years 

 
but only for Claims first made during the Optional Extended Reporting Period and arising from Wrongful Acts 
taking place prior to the effective date of the termination or nonrenewal. 



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Pollution Liability 
 
Term: October 1, 2022 to October 1, 2023 
 
Company: Indian Harbor Insurance Company 
 (Rated A XV by A.M. Best) 
 
Form: Claims Made 
 
Retroactive date: 5/1/2001 – Various Locations 
 Various – Storage Tanks 
 

Coverage Limit Self-Insured 
Retention 

Aggregate Limit $10,750,000 
$50,000 Legal Expense Aggregate Limit of Liability 

(in addition to the Aggregate Limit of Liability) $1,075,000 

Your Location Coverage 
Retroactive Date: Please refer to attached policy form EVPRL015a 

Your Location Limit of Liability for each Pollution Condition $3,000,000 $50,000 
Each Condition Your Location Aggregate Limit of Liability $10,750,000 

Emergency Remediation Expense 
Emergency Remediation Expense Limit of Liability for each 
Pollution Condition $500,000 $50,000 

Each Condition Emergency Remediation Expense Aggregate Limit of 
Liability $500,000 

Contingent Transportation Coverage 
Contingent Transportation Limit of Liability for Each 
Pollution Condition $3,000,000 $50,000 

Each Condition Contingent Transportation Aggregate Limit of Liability $10,750,000 
Non-Owned Disposal Site 

Retroactive Date: 11/11/2011 
Non-Owned Disposal Site Limit of Liability for each 
Pollution Condition $3,000,000 $50,000 

Each Condition Non-Owned Disposal Site Aggregate Limit of Liability $10,750,000 
 
 
 
  



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Pollution Liability 
 
Coverage Form & Endorsements include but not limited to:   
 
Form Description Form Number 
Coverage Form EVPRLCP 0419 
Your Location(s) Schedule EVPRL001a 0820 
Retroactive Date(s) for Specific Your Location(s) EVPRL015a 0622 
Additional Coverages for Municipalities EVPRL070a 1220 
Legionella Coverage EVPRL317a 0820 
Asbestos and Lead-Based Paint Exclusion Amendment EVPRL411a 0419 
PFAS Exclusion for Specific Your Locations(s) EVPRL433a 1220 
State of Florida Coverage for Certified Acts of Terrorism, Subject to Cap and 
Coverage for Other Acts of Terrorism Committed Within the United States (if 
accepted) 

EVPRL930a-FL 0419 

Exclusion of Certified Acts of Terrorism, and Terrorism Committed Outside of 
United States (if rejected) EVPRL931a 0419 

Financial Responsibility Endorsement for Aboveground and/or Underground 
Storage Tank(s) – Single State EVPRL941b 0820 

State of Florida Storage Tank Financial Assurance Endorsement for Releases from 
Aboveground and/or Underground Storage Tank(s) for Covered Location(s) in the 
State of Florida Only 

EVPRL949a 0820 

 
 
Pollution and Remediation Legal Liability  
  
Covered Locations 
- Municipal Golf Course, One 7th Avenue N., Lake Worth, FL 33460 
- Master Pump Station, 2nd Ave. & Golfview Dr., Lake Worth, FL 33460  
- Repump Station, 1910 2nd Ave. N, Lake Worth, FL 33461  
- Public Works, 1749 3rd Ave. S, Lake Worth, FL 33460  
- Public Safety Complex, 120 N. G St., Lake Worth, FL 33460  
- Water Treatment Plant, 301 College St., Lake Worth, FL 33460  
- South Water Booster Station, 1600 S.E. St., Lake Worth, FL 33460  
- North Water Booster Station, 22nd Ave. N. & N. D St., Lake Worth, FL 33460  
- Floridan Well F-1, 517 College St., Lake Worth, FL 33460  
- Floridan Well F-2, 1502 Lake Osborne Dr., Lake Worth, FL 33460  
- Lift Station, 6300 Old Congress Rd., Lake Worth, FL 33460  
- City Hall, 7 N. Dixie Hwy., Lake Worth, FL 33460  
- Power Plant, 117 College St., Lake Worth, FL 33460  

 
 
  



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Aboveground and/or underground storage tank(s) schedule 
 

UST/AST  Covered Location Tank Size (gallons)  
AST Municipal Golf Course  

One 7th Ave. N  
Lake Worth, FL 33460  

2 – 1,000  

AST Master Pump Station  
2nd Ave. & Golfview Dr.  
Lake Worth, FL 33460  

10,000  

AST Master Pump Station  
2nd Ave. & Golfview Dr.  
Lake Worth, FL 33460  

2 – 2,000  

AST Master Pump Station  
2nd Ave. & Golfview Dr.  
Lake Worth, FL 33460  

1,450  

AST Repump Station  
1910 2nd Ave. N  
Lake Worth, FL 33460  

1,500  

AST Public Works  
1749 3rd Ave. S  
Lake Worth, FL 33460  

3 – 275  

AST Public Safety Complex  
120 N. G. St.  
Lake Worth, FL 33460  

1,000  

AST Water Treatment Plant  
301 College St.  
Lake Worth, FL 33460  

6,000  

 
UST/AST  Covered Location Tank Size (gallons)  
AST  Water Treatment Plant  

301 College St.  
Lake Worth, FL 33460  

8,000  

AST  Water Treatment Plant  
301 College St.  
Lake Worth, FL 33460  

1,000  

AST  Water Treatment Plant  
301 College St.  
Lake Worth, FL 33460  

4 – 4,500  

AST  Water Treatment Plant  
301 College St.  
Lake Worth, FL 33460  

3 – 2,256  

AST  Water Treatment Plant  
301 College St.  
Lake Worth, FL 33460  

2 – 2,400  

AST  Water Treatment Plant  
301 College St.  
Lake Worth, FL 33460  

2 – 6,770  

AST  South Water Booster Station  
1600 S.E. St.  
Lake Worth, FL 33460  

1,470  



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

AST  Power Plant  
117 College St.  
Lake Worth, FL 33460  

2 – 15,600  

AST  Power Plant  
117 College St.  
Lake Worth, FL 33460  

3 – 5,000  

AST  Power Plant  
117 College St.  
Lake Worth, FL 33460  

2,200  

AST  Power Plant  
117 College St.  
Lake Worth, FL 33460  

950  

 
  

   
AST  North Water Booster Station  

22nd Ave. N. & N. D. St.  
Lake Worth, FL 33460  

1,470  

AST  Floridian Well F-1  
517 College St.  
Lake Worth, FL 33460  

500  

AST  Floridian Well F-2  
1502 Lake Osborne Dr.  
Lake Worth, FL 33460  

500  

AST  Lift Station  
6300 Old Congress Rd.  
Lake Worth, FL 33460  

3,100  

AST  City Hall  
7 N. Dixie Hwy.  
Lake Worth, FL 33460  

290  

AST  Power Plant  
117 College St.  
Lake Worth, FL 33460  

395,000  

AST  Power Plant  
117 College St.  
Lake Worth, FL 33460  

126,000  

AST  Power Plant  
117 College St.  
Lake Worth, FL 33460  

2 – 28,000 

AST  Power Plant  
117 College St.  
Lake Worth, FL 33460  

2 – 20,000  



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Important notes:   
1. Policy limits do not annually reinstate.  
2. Covered pollution conditions must commence after the retro date of this policy and before the 

end of the policy period. 
3. No flat cancellation allowed. Policy is subject to 25% minimum earned premium. 
4. Premium quoted includes Loss Control/Risk Management Support Service Fee. 
5. This insurance is issued pursuant to the FL Surplus Lines laws.  Entities insured by surplus 

lines carriers do not have the protection of the FL Insurance Guaranty Act to the extent of any 
right of recovery for the obligation of an insolvent, unlicensed insurer. 

 
Claims Made Policy: 
 
When a policy is on a claims-made basis, coverage triggers based on the actual filing date or receipt of the 
claim, in addition to the date of loss or injury. It handles any insured loss or claim filed during the policy period, 
regardless of when the actual loss or injury occurred, subject to the retroactive date on the declarations. 
Claims-made coverage applies only to covered losses that occur after the retroactive date. 
 
 
Extended Reporting Periods: 
 
XL provides the following Extended Reporting Periods options in the event coverage is cancelled or non-
renewed: 
 
Automatic Extended Reporting Period – continued coverage granted for a period of 90 days following the 
effective date of termination or nonrenewal, but only for Claims first made during the 60 days and arising from 
Wrongful Acts taking place prior to the effective date of the termination or nonrenewal. 

 
 

  



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Fiduciary Liability – Firefighters Pension Trust Fund 
 

Term:      October 1, 2022 to October 1, 2023 
 
Company:     Markel American Insurance Company 
       (Rated A XV by A.M. Best) 
 
 
Form:      Claims Made 
 
 
Prior and Pending Proceeding Date  10/1/2012 
 
Limits of Liability: $1,000,000 Limit of Liability for all Loss (Aggregate) 
 
  $200,000 Voluntary Compliance Program Expenditure Sub-

Limit:  Aggregate Limit of Liability for all Voluntary Compliance 
Program Expenditures (included within and not in addition to 
the maximum Aggregate Limit of Liability set forth in Item 04(a) 
of the Policy Certificate 

 
 
Deductible:     $0 Each Claim 
 
 

Policy Form & Endorsements: Form Number: 
Governmental Fiduciary Liability Insurance Claims-Made Policy Form GOV-1000 – 11/2014 
Trade or Economic Sanctions MIL 1214 (09/17) 
Cap on Losses From Certified Acts of Terrorism TRIA (06/15) 
Florida Amendatory Endorsement GOV-FL (06/15) 
Removal of Statutory Indemnification Endorsement GOV-003 (05/19) 
Renewal Guarantee GOV-004 (03/21) 
Specific Matter Exclusion GOV-043 (06/15) 
Modification Endorsement GOV-054 (05/16) 

 
 
Claims Made Policy: 
When a policy is on a claims-made basis, coverage triggers based on the actual filing date or receipt of the 
claim, in addition to the date of loss or injury. It handles any insured loss or claim filed during the policy period, 
regardless of when the actual loss or injury occurred, subject to the retroactive date on the declarations. 
Claims-made coverage applies only to covered losses that occur after the retroactive date. 
 
  



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

TULIP General Liability 
 

Term:      October 1, 2022 to October 1, 2023 
 
Company:     Markel Insurance Company 
      (Rated A (Excellent) by A.M. Best) 
 
Form:      ISO Occurrence Form (04/13) with broadening coverage  
      endorsement 
 
Limits of Liability:     
 

General Liability 
 

General Aggregate $5,000,000  
Products / Completed Operation Agg $1,000,000 
 Each Occurrence Limit $ 1,000,000 
 Personal Injury and Advertising Injury $1,000,000 
 Damage to Rented Premises $1,000,000 
 Medical Expense Limit $ 5,000 
        
Deductible:      $0 per Occurrence 
 
Business Description:  Tenant users of select facilities of the City of Lake Worth Beach 
 
Named Insured: 
Sports, Leisure & Entertainment Risk Purchasing Group and its member tenant users, City of Lake Worth who 
have enrolled in the insurance program and have been approved by the company and for which an appropriate 
premium has been paid and to whom a certificate of insurance has been issued. 
  
Conditions: 
A $2,500 gross deposit is required to bind coverage for this program. Event premiums will be deducted from 
this deposit payment. The deposit payment must be replenished to $2,500 when the balance of the deposit 
payment reaches $500. The working gross deposit must be received to endorse any further events to the 
policy. A positive deposit must exist for coverage to be extended to any event. Coverage can be bound upon 
receipt of the down payment and the signed acceptance of this enrollment form. 
 



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

TULIP General Liability 
 

General Liability Costs:  
The cost per tenant user/per event is based on the total attendance at the event. The total attendance is to be 
determined by counting all persons attending each session and/or each day of the event. An event is 
considered 10 (ten) consecutive days or less. Non-consecutive event days are to be considered separate 
events. Cost include a $15 Annual Risk Purchasing Membership Fee. The minimum premiums per event are: 

Total Attendance Class 1 – Private 
Invitation 

Class 2 – Open to the 
Public 

200 or less $ 155.00 $ 185.00 
201 - 750 $ 185.00 $ 215.00 

751 – 1,500 $ 255.00 $ 330.00 
1,501 – 3,000 $ 445.00 $ 565.00 

 
 
Additional Insureds: 
 MGL 1239 – Blanket Additional Insured (when required by valid contract or agreement) 

CG 2011 Managers or Lessor of Premises- As requested and endorsed-City of Lake Worth Beach 
CG2026 Managers or Lessor of Premises- City of Lake Worth  

 CG2026 Designated Person or Organization – as requested and endorsed-owners and/or Lessors of  
   Premises, Sponsors or Co-Promoters – blanket additional insured form 
 
 
Eligible Operations:  
To be eligible under this program the tenant user of the facility must meet the following criteria:  
 

• Maximum total attendance of 3,000 or less for any one event  
• Maximum number of consecutive event days (not including set-up and tear-down) is 

10. Event days are to be consecutive.  
• Event is held at a single location.  
• Event is held at City of Lake Worth Beach facilities on file with company (Casino 

Building and Beach Complex; Osborne Community Center, Normal J Wimbley 
Gymnasium, Barton and Howard Pavilion, Cultural Plaza, Bryan South Pavilion and 
Sunset A&D Pavilion)  

 
The following operations are eligible for this program. Please note that this is not a complete list, please 
contact for eligibility. 
 
 
 Class 1 – Private Invitation Events:  
Achievement celebrations; Anniversary parties; Award banquets or presentations; Baby showers; 
Banquets; Baptisms; Bar mitzvahs or bat mitzvahs; Birthday parties; Business dinners, lectures, 
seminars, meetings, parties or banquets; Celebrations (holiday); Charity or fundraising events 
(auction, benefit, dance, dinner); Debuts or debutante balls; Dinners, luncheons or showers; 
Graduation parties; Lectures; Meetings (clubs or business); Memorial services; Parties (retirement, 
house, anniversary, engagement or graduation); Quinceañeras, Recitals (dance or musical); 
Reunions (class, family or military); Seminars; Social gatherings or receptions; Wedding 
ceremonies, showers, receptions or rehearsal dinners  



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Class 2 – Open to the Public Events:  
Auctions (property or real estate); Bingo games (for charity/fundraising only); Car, RV or boat 
shows (static displays only); Celebrations (holiday); Charity events (auction, benefit, dance or 
dinner); Concert-other than rap, hip-hop, heavy metal/screamo or techno/electronic; Conventions; 
Fraternity or sorority events (alumni association off site event that have been approved by us); 
Festivals or fairs (harvest, craft, ethnic, job or art); Flea market or swap meet; Graduation 
ceremonies; Lectures or workshops; Pageants; Picnics (no on or in water activity); Religious events; 
Reunions (class, family or military); Rummage sales; School band or drill team competitions; School 
carnivals (no inflatables/rides); Shows (animals-arena setting only, antique, art, baby, boat, 
business, consumer, craft or fashion); Speaking engagements; Walking Tours (garden, holiday, 
parade of homes, historical site) 
 
Ineligible Operations: 
Activist rallies/marches/protests; Air shows/events; Animal obedience training; Any event and/or 
concerts - involving rap, hip-hop, heavy metal/screamo or techno/electronic music; Any events 
held at multiple locations; Any events held on airport premises; Any events honoring national 
and/or local celebrities or professional athletes; Any event involving an organized athletic 
events/competitions; Any events with over 3,000 in attendance; Any events held outside the United 
States; Any events involving in or on water activities; Any event/activities involving motorized 
vehicles, except static vehicle shows/auctions or car washes (for charity fundraising only) , Balloon 
festival; Battle reenactments; Bonfires; Cannabis related events; Christmas tree sales/lots; 
Cinematography or photography events for commercial use; Circuses; Color party or foam party or 
raves; Dance competitions; Food eating contests; Fraternity or sorority events (except alumni 
association off-site events that have been approved by K&K); Geocaching events; Gun and/or knife 
shows; Haunted attractions/events; Health fairs or expositions; Hunting, fishing and hiking events; 
Mazes (corn, hay or fence); Parades or an event involving a parade; Political events (except private 
fundraising auctions, benefits, dances, dinners); Pumpkin chunkin events; Rodeos, Séances; 
Shooting events/activities (skeet/trap/clay/guns); Tailgating events (unless reported prior and 
approved by K&K); Tractor pulls; Union meetings; Walks/running events 
 
Commercial General Liability Broadening Coverages: Form SRPG115  
 
1. Extended Property Damage – Expected or Intended injury resulting from use of reasonable force to protect 
persons or property  
2. Non-owned watercraft – extended to 58 feet  
3. Property Damage To Borrowed Equipment - $10,000 each occurrence  
4. Property Damage To Customers’ Goods - $10,000 each occurrence  
5. Broadened Coverage – Damage to Premises Rented to You – definition expanded  
6. Property Damage from Elevator Use  
7. Personal and Advertising Injury From Televised Or Videotaped Material (if not professionally produced)  
8. Medical Personnel - $100,000 Any One Person  
9. Broadened Definition of Insured – Newly acquired or formed organization for up to 180 days  
10. Supplementary payments - $2,500 bail bonds, $500 a day loss of earnings  
11. Knowledge or Notice of Occurrence  
12. Unintentional Failure to Disclose All Hazards  
13. Waiver Of Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery Against Others To Us (Waiver Of Subrogation)  
14. Mental Anguish Resulting From Bodily Injury  



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

15. Broadened Definition Of Mobile Equipment  
16. Additional coverages:  

• Emergency Real Estate Cons. Fee - $25,000  
• Identify Theft Exposure - $25,000  
• Key Individual Replacement Cost - $50,000  
• Lease Cancellation Moving Expense - $2,500  
• Temporary Meeting Place - $25,000  
• Terrorism Travel Reimbursement - $25,000  
• Workplace Violence Counseling - $25,000 

 
Notable Exclusions: (state variations may apply)  

• Commercial General Liability Standard Exclusions  
• Cap on Losses from Certified Acts of Terrorism  
• Communicable Disease Exclusion  
• Abuse, Molestation or Exploitation  
• Asbestos  
• Lead  
• Nuclear Energy  
• Sexually Transmitted Disease  
• Unmanned Aircraft  
• Employment Related Practices  
• Cyber Incident, Data Compromise, and Violation of Statutes Related to Personal Data  
• Silica or Silica-Related Dust Exclusion  
• Fungi or Bacteria  
• Total Pollution with a Building Heating, Cooling & Dehumidifying Equipment Exception and 

Hostile Fire Exception  
• Fireworks  
• E-commerce Consulting  
• Operations of concessionaires, exhibitors, and/or events at your event  
• Petting zoos  
• Room and board liability/overnight camping  
• Specified Recreational Activities – Aircraft/Hot Air Balloon: Airport; Amusement Devices (the 

ownership, operation, maintenance or use of any; mechanical or non-mechanical ride, slide, 
water slide, any inflatable recreation device, any bungee operation or equipment, any vertical 
device or equipment used for climbing either permanently affixed or temporarily erected or dunk 
tank. Amusement device does not include any video arcade or computer games or structures that 
are not designed to bounce on, slide on, ride on or tunnel through); Animal (injury or death to 
any animal, or Injury, death or property damage caused by any animal owned, rented or hired 
by you); Haunted Attraction; Rodeo (any rodeo activity including, but not limited to, bronco or 
bull riding, steer roping, team roping, barrel racing or horseback riding); Snowmobile: The 
ownership, operation, maintenance, use, “loading or unloading” of any snowmobile.  

  



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

• Designated Operations: Activist rallies/marches/protests; Air shows/events; Animal obedience 
training; Any event and/or concerts - involving rap, hip-hop, heavy metal/screamo or 
techno/electronic music; Any events held at multiple locations; Any events held on airport 
premises; Any events honoring national and/or local celebrities or professional athletes; Any 
event involving an organized athletic events/competitions; Any events with over 3,000 in 
attendance; Any events held outside the United States; Any events involving in or on water 
activities; Any event/activities involving motorized vehicles, except static vehicle shows/auctions 
or car washes (for charity fundraising only); Battle reenactments; Bonfires; Cannabis related 
events; Christmas tree sales/lots; Cinematography or photography events for commercial use; 
Circuses; Color party or foam party or raves; Food eating contests; Fraternity or sorority events 
(except alumni association off-site events that have been approved by K&K); Geocaching events; 
Gun and/or knife shows; Haunted attractions/events; Health fairs or expositions; Hunting, 
fishing and hiking events; Mazes (corn, hay or fence); Parades or an event involving a parade; 
Political events (except private fundraising auctions, benefits, dances, dinners); Pumpkin 
chunkin events; Rodeos, Séances; Shooting events/activities (skeet/trap/clay/guns); Tailgating 
events (unless reported prior and approved by K&K); Tractor pulls; Union meetings; 
Walks/running events  

 
Notable Endorsements (subject to state variations): 
o Changes – Master Policy 
o Earned Premium – 100% at inception 
o Event Provision- coverage applies only to those event(s) reported to, approved by, and on file with us. 
Notwithstanding the specific event date(s) reported, approved and on file, activities that are part of 
the set-up and tear-down required for the event are considered part of the insured event.  



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

UNMANNED AIRCRAFT 
 
Term:      October 1, 2022 to October 1, 2023 
 
Company:     GLOBAL AEROSPACE 

American Alternative Insurance Corporation  - 59.24% 
      American Commerce Insurance Company - 10.00% 
      National Indemnity Company of the South - 18.39%  
      Tokio Marine America Insurance Company - 12.37% 
 
Form:      Occurrence 
 
Limits of Liability:    $1,000,000 

 
Covered Territory:      The Contiguous United States, Mexico, Canada, And The  
      Bahama Islands 
 
Covered Use:      Aerial Photography, Survey Or Transmission Line Inspection 
      
Limits of Liability:     
 

Coverage Limit Deductible 
Liability $1,000,000  

Medical Expense $5,000  
Bail Bonds $5,000  
Fire Legal  $100,000  

Contractual Liability Policy limit  
Product Liability arising out of sale of scheduled 

aircraft Policy Limit  

Personal Injury $1,000,000  
Physical Damage Deductible in Motion  5% 

Physical Damage Deductible NOT in Motion  5% 
 

Schedule of Aircraft 
 

Aircraft Make Hull Value 
2020 DJI Inspire 2 T650A $10,250 

2020 DJI Innovations Mavic 2 Enterprise $2,636 
  

 
UAS Payload 

 
Make Value Deductible 

Zenmuse X5S FC6520 $2,049 10% 

 
  



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

UNMANNED AIRCRAFT cont’d 
 
 
War, hi-jacking and other perils Physical Damage Coverage for Drones, Ground Equipment and 
Payload are INCLUDED 
 
Also includes Liability arising from: 

• occasioned by or in consequence of war hi-jacking and other perils 
• the operation of UAS you rent/lease/borrow for periods of less than 30 days 
• UAS operated on your behalf by others 

 
Approved Pilots for Scheduled Aircraft: 
The policy shall not apply while a scheduled aircraft is in flight unless the pilot in command is approved 
by the Named Insured and appropriately licensed for the flight being conducted. 
 
 
Endorsements (Includes but not limited to): 
 
E041  Electronic Data Event Liability Exclusion 
A121  Additional Insured 
A125  Amendment of Defined Terms 
C022  Limited Liability War Exclusion Limited Coverage 
C023  Limited Physical Damage War Exclusion Limited Coverage 
C025  Electronic Date Recognition Exclusion Limited Coverage 
C036  Expenses for Medical Services     $5,000 each occurrence 
C039  Liability for Sale of Aircraft, Aircraft Parts or Services 
C054  Terrorism (TRIA) Coverage - Hull & Liability 
C061  Aviation Personal And Advertising Injury Liability  $1,000,000 each occurrence/aggregate 
C064  Premises Coverage 
C066  Fire Legal Liability      $100,000 each occurrence 
C095  Expanded Contractual Liability Endorsement 
C097  Payload Physical Damage Endorsement 
N004  Non-Owned Aircraft Liability - UnManned Aircraft System 
D004 TRIA Disclosure 
S018 Florida Amendatory 
  



This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach 

Premium Recapitulation 
Page 1 of 3 

Annual Premium Check Option 
Accept Reject 

Preferred Package 
Property including Equipment Breakdown $258,599.00   

Inland Marine $3,290.00   

Crime / Employee Dishonesty     $1,382.00   

General Liability     $60,985.00   

Deadly Weapon Protection* Included 

Automobile Liability  $27,890.00   

Excess Workers Compensation $71,660.00   

Package Payment Plan: Annual   

*Deadly Weapon Protection Coverage: Any Event that occurs at a Location which has been
specifically leased or loaned by the City to any other entity or individual to host a permitted event
planned and ticketed for more than 15,000 attendees over the duration of the event, MUST BE
reported to AND APPROVED by Preferred PRIOR to event. The Trust may, at their discretion, charge
an additional premium and/or impose additional conditions specifically for that event.

All lines of coverage must be accepted in order to bind coverage with Preferred. 

Utility Property 
Premium $800,000.00 
Engineering Fee   $7,000.00 
FIGA Surcharge     $16,000.00 
Total Premium $823,000.00   

Optional - Certified Terrorism   $13,968.00 
(Plus fees)   

Optional - Non-Certified Terrorism     $1,552.00 
(Plus fees)   





















This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City	of	Lake	Worth	Beach		

Premium	Recapitulation	
Page	2	of	3	

Annual	Premium	 Check	Option
Accept Reject 

Public	Officials	Liability

	Option	1	‐	Ace American Ins. Co Not	to	Exceed	
$60,000.00	

   Option	2	-	Preferred $69,227.00 	 	

Cyber	Liability	

Option	1:  Ace American Premium $66,795.00 
      FL State Surcharge          $1,335.91 
      Total Premium $68,130.91   

	Option	2:	 Preferred $39,780.00 	 	

Pollution	Liability	 $42,218.00 	 	
Optional	‐	Terrorism	        $422.18 	 

Fiduciary	Liability	(Firefighters	Pension	
Trust)	

Premium $5,845.00 
FL State Surcharge          $117.00 
Total	Premium	 $5,962.00 	 	

Tenant	Users	Liability	Insurance	Program	
(TULIP)	 $2,500.00  	
















This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach 

Premium Recapitulation 
Page 3 of 3 

Annual Premium Check Option
Accept Reject 

Drone Liability 
Premium $2,871.00 
FL State Surcharge  $57.00 
Total Premium $2,928.00   

I authorize Brown & Brown to request the underwriters to bind coverage on the items 
indicated above and acknowledge receipt of the Compensation and Financial Condition 
Disclosure(s) provided in this proposal. 

_______________________________________________________ 
(Signature) 

_______________________________________________________ 
(Name & Title) 

_______________________________________________________ 
(Date) 





 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Notes of Importance: 
 
1. Quotes provided in the proposal are valid until 10/01/2022. After this date terms and conditions are 

subject to change by the underwriters. 
 

2. Preferred is not subject to the Florida Insurance Guaranty Act, in the event it becomes unable to meet its 
claims payment obligations. However, insured is named on excess of loss policies. 
 

3. Some of the Carriers of the Preferred excess of loss policies are issued pursuant to the FL Surplus Lines 
laws.  Entities insured by surplus lines carriers do not have the protection of the FL Insurance Guaranty 
Act to the extent of any right of recovery for the obligation of an insolvent, unlicensed insurer. 
 

4. Quote is subject to review and acceptance by Preferred Board of Trustees. 
 

5. Premiums are subject to change if all lines of coverage quoted are not bound. Premiums are subject to 
25% minimum premium upon binding. 
 

6. Not all coverages requested may be provided in this quotation. 
 

7. Flood quotes from NFIP may be available. Please advise your agent if you have property located in zones 
A or V and would like to have separate NFIP quotes. 
 

8. Property values are based on information supplied by you. You should have reviewed your property 
schedule and as you deem necessary have appraisals done to verify your reported values are accurate 
based on current market conditions.  
 

9. The Trust requires all Members to maintain valid and current certificates of workers’ compensation 
insurance for all work performed by persons other than its employees.  
 

10. With the exception of Workers’ Compensation, the total premium is due within 30 days of 
inception. Premium financing can be arranged if needed. 
 

11. Quote is not bound until written orders to bind are received from the insured and the Trust and Company 
subsequently accepts the risk. 
 

12. Should signed application reveal differing details/data than original application received, the entire 
quote/binder is subject to revision and possible retraction. 
 

13. Higher limits of liability may be available. Please consult with your agent. 
 

14. This proposal is based upon exposures to loss made known to the Brown & Brown. Any changes in 
exposures (i.e. new operations, new acquisitions of property or change in liability exposure) need to be 
promptly reported to us in order that proper coverage may be put into place. 
 

15. This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Please refer to coverage agreements for 
complete information regarding definition of terms, deductibles, sub-limits, restrictions and 
exclusions that may apply. In the event of any differences, the policy will prevail. 



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

Retail Compensation Disclosure 
 

In addition to the commissions or fees received by us for assistance with the placement, servicing, claims 
handling, or renewal of your insurance coverages, other parties, such as excess and surplus lines brokers, 
wholesale brokers, reinsurance intermediaries, underwriting managers and similar parties, some of which 
may be owned in whole or in part by Brown & Brown, Inc., may also receive compensation for their role in 
providing insurance products or services to you pursuant to their separate contracts with insurance or 
reinsurance carriers. That compensation is derived from your premium payments. Additionally, it is possible 
that we, or our corporate parents or affiliates, may receive contingent payments or allowances from insurers 
based on factors which are not client-specific, such as the performance and/or size of an overall book of 
business produced with an insurer. We generally do not know if such a contingent payment will be made by a 
particular insurer, or the amount of any such contingent payments, until the underwriting year is closed. That 
compensation is partially derived from your premium dollars, after being combined (or “pooled”) with the 
premium dollars of other insureds that have purchased similar types of coverage. We may also receive 
invitations to programs sponsored and paid for by insurance carriers to inform brokers regarding their 
products and services, including possible participation in company-sponsored events such as trips, seminars, 
and advisory council meetings, based upon the total volume of business placed with the carrier you select. We 
may, on occasion, receive loans or credit from insurance companies. Additionally, in the ordinary course of our 
business, we may receive and retain interest on premiums you pay from the date we receive them until the 
date of premiums are remitted to the insurance company or intermediary. In the event that we assist with 
placement and other details of arranging for the financing of your insurance premium, we may also receive a 
fee from the premium finance company.  
 
If an intermediary is utilized in the placement of coverage, the intermediary may or may not be owned in whole 
or part by Brown & Brown, Inc. or its subsidiaries. Brown & Brown entities operate independently and are not 
required to utilize other companies owned by Brown & Brown, Inc., but routinely do so. In addition to 
providing access to the insurance company, the Wholesale Insurance Broker/Managing General Agent may 
provide additional services including, but not limited to: underwriting; loss control; risk placement; coverage 
review; claims coordination with insurance company; and policy issuance. Compensation paid for those 
services is derived from your premium payment, which may on average be 15% of the premium you pay for 
coverage, and may include additional fees charged by the intermediary. 
 
Questions and Information Requests. Should you have any questions, or require additional information, please 
contact this office at (386) 252-6176 or, if you prefer, submit your question or request online at 
http://www.bbinsurance.com/customerinquiry/.  
 
 

  

http://www.bbinsurance.com/customerinquiry/


 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

PREFERRED Compensation Disclosure 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to assist with your insurance needs.  Information concerning compensation 
paid to other entities for this placement and related services appears below.  Please do not hesitate to contact 
us if any additional information is required. 
 
Our office is owned by Brown & Brown, Inc. Brown & Brown entities operate independently and are not 
required to utilize other companies owned by Brown & Brown, Inc., but routinely do so. 
 
For the 2022 – 2023 policy year, your insurance was placed with Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust 
(Preferred). Preferred is an insurance trust formed by Florida public entities through an Interlocal Agreement 
for the purpose of providing its members with an array of insurance coverages and services. Preferred has 
contracted with entities owned by Brown & Brown, Inc. to perform various services. As explained below, those 
Brown & Brown entities are compensated for their services.  
 
Preferred has contracted with Public Risk Underwriters (PRU), a company owned by Brown & Brown, Inc., to 
administer Preferred’s operations. The administrative services provided by PRU to Preferred include: 
 

• Underwriting 
• Coverage review 
• Marketing 
• Policy Review 

• Accounting 
• Issuance of Preferred Coverage Agreements 
• Preferred Member Liaison 
• Risk Assessment and Control 

 
Pursuant to its contract with Preferred, Public Risk Underwriters of Florida, Inc. (PRU) receives an 
administration fee, based on the size and complexity of the account, of up to 10% of the Preferred premiums 
billed and collected.  
 
Preferred has also contracted with Preferred Governmental Claims Solutions (PGCS), a company owned by 
Brown & Brown, Inc., for purposes of administering the claims of Preferred members. The services provided 
by PGCS to Preferred may include: 
 

• Claims Liaison with Insurance Company 
• Claims Liaison with Preferred Members 
• Claims Adjustment 

 
Pursuant to its contract with Preferred, PGCS receives a claims administration fee for those accounts which 
PGCS services of up to 5% of the non-property portion of the premiums you pay to Preferred.   
 
Preferred also utilizes wholesale insurance brokers, some of which (such as Peachtree Special Risk Brokers 
and Apex Insurance Services) are owned by Brown & Brown, Inc., for the placement of Preferred’s insurance 
policies. The wholesale insurance broker may provide the following services: 
 

• Risk Placement  
• Coverage review 
• Claims Liaison with Insurance Company 

• Policy Review 
• Current Market Intelligence 

 
The wholesale insurance broker’s compensation is largely dictated by the insurance company. It typically 
ranges between 10% and 17% of the premiums you pay to Preferred for your coverage.  

  



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

 

Notice of Carrier Financial Status 

 
Risk Management Associates, Inc., and its parent company, Brown & Brown, Inc. (collectively “Brown & 
Brown”) do not certify, warrant or guarantee the financial soundness or stability of any insurance carrier or 
alternative risk transfer or pooling entity.  We endeavored to place your coverage with an insurance carrier 
with an AM Best Company financial rating of “A-” or better.* While Brown & Brown cannot certify, warrant or 
guarantee the financial soundness or stability of  any insurance carrier or alternative risk transfer or pooling 
entity or otherwise predict whether the financial condition of any such entity  might improve or deteriorate, 
we are hereby providing you with notice and disclosure of financial condition so that you can make an 
informed decision regarding the placement of coverage.  Accordingly, with receipt of this notice you 
acknowledge the following with regard to the placement and any subsequent renewal of the coverage 
indicated below: 
 
 

• Brown & Brown may have other options for your insurance placement, including quotations with 
insurance carriers holding an “A-” or better rating from AM Best Company. Alternative quotes may be 
available with an A- or better rated carrier upon your request. 
 

• Coverage is being renewed through Preferred Governmental Insurance Trust (“Preferred”), which 
is as a Florida local government self-insurance fund established pursuant to Section 624.4622, Florida 
Statutes, as such Preferred is not rated by the AM Best Company. 

 
• Preferred is not subject to the protections afforded by any state guaranty fund or association. 
 
• The financial condition of insurance companies and other coverage providers including local 

government self-insurance funds like Preferred may change rapidly and that such changes are beyond 
the control of Brown & Brown. 

 
• You should review the financial and membership information from Preferred and agree to abide by 

the conditions of membership established by Preferred. 
 
• You should consider the information provided, including the Preferred coverage quote and coverage 

placement and review it with your accountants, legal counsel and advisors. 
 
 

Named Insured: City of Lake Worth Beach 
Line of Coverage(s): Property, Inland Marine, Crime, General Liability, Employee Benefits Liability, 

Deadly Weapon Protection, Automobile Liability, Public Officials Liability, 
Employment Practices Liability, Cyber Liability, Excess Workers Compensation 

 

Policy Number(s): PX2FL1 0502013 21-12 
Policy Period(s): 10/1/22 – 23 
Date of Notice: 8/30/22 

 
 
* AM Best Rating Guide: Rating for Stability:  A++ to F = Highest to lowest rating 
   Financial Size Category:  XV to I - Largest to smallest rating 

  



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

 
Guide to Bests Ratings 

Best Category Rating Description 
Secure A++ Superior 
Secure A+ Superior 
Secure A Excellent 
Secure A- Excellent 
Secure B++ Very Good 
Secure B+ Very Good 
Vulnerable B Fair 
Vulnerable B- Fair 
Vulnerable C++ Marginal 
Vulnerable C+ Marginal 
Vulnerable C Weak 
Vulnerable C- Weak 
Vulnerable D Poor 
Vulnerable E Under Regulatory Supervision 
Vulnerable F In Liquidation 
Vulnerable S Rating Suspended 
Not Rated NR-1 Insufficient Data 
Not Rated NR-2 Insufficient Size and/or operating experience 
Not Rated NR-3 Rating Procedure Inapplicable 
Not Rated NR-4 Company Request 
Not Rated NR-5 Not Formally Followed 
Rating Modifier u Under Review 
Rating Modifier q Qualified 
Affiliation Code g Group 
Affiliation Code p Pooled 
Affiliation Code r Reinsured 
   

Guide to Best’s Financial Size Categories 
Reflects size of  I Less than $1,000,000 
insurance company II $1,000,000 - $2,000,000 
based on their  III $2,000,000 - $5,000,000  
capital, surplus IV $5,000,000 - $10,000,000 
and conditional V $10,000,000 - $25,000,000 
reserve funds in VI $25,000,000 - $50,000,000 
U.S. dollars. VII $50,000,000 - $100,000,000 
 VIII $100,000,000 - $250,000,000 
 IX $250,000,000 - $500,000,000 
 X $500,000,000 - $750,000,000 
 XI $750,000,000 - $1,000,000,000 
 XII $1,000,000,000 - $1,250,000,000 
 XIII $1,250,000,000 - $1,500,000,000 
 XIV $1,500,000,000 - $2,000,000,000 
 XV Greater than $2,000,000,000 

 
 
 
Brown & Brown always strives to place your coverage with highly secure insurance companies. We cannot, however, 
guarantee the financial stability of any carrier. 
 
  



 
 

This proposal is intended to give a brief overview. Higher limits may be available. Please refer to coverage forms for complete details 
regarding definition of terms, exclusions and limitations. 

City of Lake Worth Beach  

 
 

Statement Acknowledging That Coverage Has  
 

Been Placed With A Non-Admitted Carrier 
 

 
 
Per Florida Statute, the insured is required to sign the following E&S disclosure:   

The undersigned hereby agrees to place insurance coverage in the surplus lines market 

and understands that superior coverage may be available in the admitted market and 

at a lesser cost. Persons insured by surplus lines carriers are not protected by the 

Florida Insurance Guaranty Association with respect to any right of recovery for the 

obligation of an insolvent unlicensed insurer. 

 

City of Lake Worth Beach 
Named Insured 
  

  
Signature of Insured’s Authorized Representative Date 
  

Indian Harbor Insurance Co. 
Name of Excess and Surplus Lines Carrier 
  

Pollution Liability  PEC004832005 
Type of Insurance Renewal of Policy Number 
  

10/1/22 - 23  Florida 
Effective/Expiration Date of Coverage State 

 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

  

AGENDA DATE: September 20, 2022 DEPARTMENT: Electric Utility  

TITLE: 

Purchase Orders to Ace Pole Co. and Koppers Utility & Industrial Products for delivery of wood 
utility poles 

 
SUMMARY: 

Purchase Orders with Ace Pole Co. and Koppers Utility & Industrial Products are for acquisition 
of wood utility poles for the City’s Electric Utility under Florida Municipal Power Agency’s (FMPA) 
Joint Purchasing Project solicitation (ITB #2019-009) at a cost not to exceed $300,000 annually. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

FMPA was formed in 1978 to provide various services for Florida municipal-owned utilities. In 
July of 1994, FMPA created a joint purchasing project for the joint purchasing of services, 
materials, supplies and equipment utilized in the generation, transmission, and distribution of 
electricity. FMPA members desiring to share in the benefits of the FMPA joint purchasing project 
enter a project procurement agreement with FMPA. The City has been a participating member 
of FMPA since its inception in 1978 and signed a project procurement agreement in 1994. 

Under its joint purchasing project, FMPA issued a solicitation for the purchase and delivery of 
wood utility poles. FMPA reviewed the bids with its project participants and issued an award 
letter to two vendors with two vendors specifically identified for the City’s wood utility pole needs 
for part of its System Hardening and Reliability Improvements Program (SHRIP). The City’s 
Electric Utility anticipates issuing the Purchase Order(s) to Ace Pole Co. and Koppers Utility & 
Industrial Products at a cost not to exceed $300,000 per Fiscal Year. 

The City is currently implementing the Electric Utility System Hardening and Reliability 
Improvement Program (SHRIP). As part of the SHRIP project, old wood utility poles are replaced 
with stronger poles to improve storm resiliency. The storm-hardening program is currently being 
implemented using a combination of concrete, higher-class wood poles and ductile iron poles. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Purchase Orders to Ace Pole Co. and Koppers Utility & Industrial 
Products for delivery of wood utility poles at a cost not to exceed $300,000 per Fiscal Year. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
FMPA Award Memo 
 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 
 
Capital Expenditures $ 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures $300,000 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact $300,000 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact:  

C.  
Account 
Number 

Department 
Name  

Division  
Name 

Account 
Description 

Project 
Number 

FY23 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Budget 
Transfer 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

401-
0000-
141-
02.10 

Electric T&D Parts/ 
General  

N/A 
(Inventory) 

N/A N/A N/A 300,000 N/A 

 



FM^i Simon Samuels

Member Services Programs and Procurement Administrator

MUNICIPAL POWER

MEMORANDUM

TO: FMPA Members

FROM: Sharon Samuels

DATE: April10,2019

SUBJECT: Award of the Wood Poles Bid (ITB# 2019-009)

In response to the FMPA Purchase & Delivery of Wood Poles - Invitation to Bid No.
2019-009, FMPA received one (1) no bid from Robbins Manufacturing Co. and bid
submittals from Ace Pole Co. of Blackshear GA and Koppers Utility & Industrial
Products ofStatesboro, GA.

The Participating Members have reviewed the bids received and conducted their
evaluations. The recommended award is for both Ace Poles and Koppers Industries.

Ace Poles, Co. Koppers Utility & Industrial Products
6352 Timber Lane 1021 Johnson Dr.
Biackshear, GA 31516 Statesboro, GA 30461
(912) 449-4011 662-202-6812
(800) 422-2149 877-492-7728 (not for routine orders)
cthrift@acepole.com colstonwb@koppers.com

Ace Pole and Koppers will extend the prices and terms bid to all FMPA Members. This
award expires April 30, 2024. At that time the award may be extended by mutual consent

All of the exceptions or other conditions taken by Ace Pole and Koppers are included with
this letter. If you have any questions, please give me a call.

Attachments: Bidder's Exceptions & Clarifications
Bid TabA/endor Analysis

ec: Bidders

Florida Municipal Power Agency

8553 Commodity Circle • Orlando, FL 32819 • (407)355-7767 • www.fmpa.com



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE:   September 20, 2022 DEPARTMENT:  Electric Utility 

 

TITLE: 

Second Amendment to Agreement with Gresco Utility Supply, Inc. for the purchase and delivery 
of distribution transformers 

 
SUMMARY: 

The Second Amendment seeks to increase the total maximum costs to be paid by the City under 
the Agreement for each fiscal year to a not to exceed amount of $2,500,000. 

 

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 
 
The City of Lake Worth Beach issued a solicitation for the purchase and delivery of distribution 
transformers. The City reviewed the bids and issued an initial award letter to Gresco Utility Supply, 
Inc. for the City’s distribution transformer needs for part of its System Hardening and Reliability 
Improvements Program (SHRIP). The City subsequently issued the First Amendment to the 
original Agreement to extend the term of the Agreement until February 25, 2023.  Due to supply 
chain issues, this Second Amendment seeks to increase the total maximum costs to be paid by 
the City to a not to exceed amount of $2,500,000. 
 
The City is currently implementing the Electric Utility System Hardening and Reliability 
Improvement Program (SHRIP). As part of the SHRIP project, overloaded or undersized 
distribution transformers are replaced with larger distribution transformers and/or 4kV 
transformers are replaced with 26kV distribution transformers to improve reliability. 

 

MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Second Amendment to Agreement with Gresco Utility Supply, Inc. 
for the purchase and delivery of distribution transformers at a cost not to exceed $2,500,000 per 
Fiscal Year. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Second Amendment 
  



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 
 
Capital Expenditures $ 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures $2,500,000 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact $2,500,000 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: Funds have been identified 
in account 401-0000-141-02.10.  

 
Account 
Number 

Department 
Name  

Division  
Name 

Account 
Description 

Project 
Number 

FY23 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Budget 
Transfer 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

401-
0000-
141-
02.10 

Electric T&D Parts / 
General 

N/A N/A 
(Inventory) 

N/A N/A 2,500,000 N/A 

 







EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

AGENDA DATE:  September 20, 2022 DEPARTMENT:  Electric Utility 

 

TITLE: 

Purchase Order with G&W Electric for Viper Recloser External CT Kit 

 
SUMMARY: 

The Purchase Order authorizes G&W Electric to provide viper recloser external CT kit for the new 
Canal Distribution Substation at a cost not to exceed $69,678.  This project has been identified as 
an element of the City’s electric utility System Hardening and Reliability Improvement Project 
(SHRIP) and for which bonds were sold in November 2020. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City’s Electrical Engineering team is finalizing the design of the new Canal 26.4kV Distribution 
Substation. This station is designed to break up the 8 feeders in to two (2) separate four (4)  feeder 
bays to improve reliability. In order to protect the electrical bus feeding each of the recloser bays 
that supply energy to the neighborhoods, a protective relay will be installed. In order for this relay 
to protect the system from physical failure in the even of a fault, external current transformers (CT) 
are needed. These current transformers are used to provide data points of the load at each feeder 
bay to the relay. The relay then compares those loads to the incoming current transformers to see 
if there are any differences and clear any faults within milliseconds. The mounting of these CT’s 
are uniquely placed on to the feeder reclosers to minimize installation footprint on the bus 
structures. Since the reclosers are manufactured by G&W and the need is common across the 
industry, G&W manufactured a safe, easy to install CT kit for utilities. 

The Electric Utility has standardized new substation designs and equipment selection to include 
the G&W Electric reclosers. The G&W CT kits offer the City the best value for a reliable form fit kit 
specifically designed for G&W reclosers. No other kits for CTs specified for G&W reclosers exist 
and custom solutions would cost more in engineering, review, and procurement.   

Under Section 2-112 (e)(1) of the City’s Procurement Code, the Electric Utility is requesting a 
single/sole source procurement with G&W Electric for the purchase of the viper recloser external 
CT kit for the Canal 26.4kV Distribution Substation.  

The Electric Utility is requesting the approval of Purchase Order with G&W Electric for the Canal 
Substation viper recloser external CT kit in the amount not to exceed $69,678. The G&W external 
CT retrofit kit are included in the design and material specifications package prepared and 
submitted by Power Engineers. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Purchase Order to the G&W Electric, to provide viper recloser 
external CT kit in the amount not to exceed $69,678. 



 

FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 
 
Capital Expenditures $69,678 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact $69,678 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: Funds have been identified 
in account 401-6034-531-63.15, CIP Project SH2113. 

 
Account 
Number 

Department 
Name  

Division  
Name 

Account 
Description 

Project 
Number 

FY22 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Budget 
Transfer 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

421-
6034-
531-
63.15 

Electric T&D Improve 
Other than 
Build / 
Infrastructure 

SH2113 9,720,800 6,754,436.25 N/A 69,678 $6,684,758.25 

 

 
 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
G&W Quote 
G&W Sole Source Letter 



 

G&W Electric Company 
305 W. Crossroads Pkwy 

Bolingbrook, IL 60440 USA 
Tel: 708.388.5010 
Fax: 708.388.0755 

www.gwelec.com 
 

ISO 9001 Certified  
ISO 14001 Certified 

 

 
   

 Customer: Lake Worth  
Date: Aug 16, 2022  

Validity: 30 Days  
Quotation Number: SQ-73873:0  

Customer Reference:          Lake Worth Beach Utilities S/Ns: 201907290339, 
40, 41, 42, 43 

 

   
 

Item G&W Part Number Description Qty Price Each Extended 
Price 

1 PLU218870xxx 1200:5A External CT Retrofit 
Kit 9 $7,742 $69,678 

 
 
Item 1: 1200:5A External CT Retrofit Kit for D8703SS3LS00 
 
Standard Features: 
• Three (3), externally mounted 1200:5A, C400 single ratio current transformers including 

galvanized steel mounting bracket for mounting on D8703SS3LS00. 
o CTs will be terminated to a shorting block in a NEMA 4X junction box for customer 

use.  
o Weather tight conduits for CT wiring included. 

 
 
Exceptions/Clarifications: 
• The following quotation was prepared without reference to a formal plan and specification 

package. G&W’s offering for this quotation is limited to the equipment and bill of materials 
listed in this quotation. If formal plans/specifications are available for this project, please send 
to G&W to evaluate and revise this quotation accordingly. 

• All other materials to be provided by other 
 

Commercial Terms and Conditions 
 
Submittal drawings: 
If required, submittal drawings will be issued for approval 4 weeks after receipt of order. 
 
Lead time for shipment: Estimated 10-12 weeks after receipt of order and release to 
production. 
 
Shipping Terms:  FOB-Factory, Bolingbrook, IL USA 
Freight: Prepaid and Allowed on a standard closed top trailer. 
 
Payment: Net 30 days; Payment terms are subject to G&W Finance Department approval 
Purchase Order Submission: Purchase order should be addressed to: 
 



2 

G&W Electric Co. 
305 W. Crossroads Parkway 
Bolingbrook, IL 60440-4938 

 
Terms & Conditions: Warranty and all other terms and conditions are as per SM-F-1 Rev 7 
 



 
Lake Worth Beach Utilities 
G&W SQ# 73873 
Viper Recloser External CT Kit – Sole Source 
August 17, 2022 

 
 

To Whom It May Concern: 
 

G&W Electric is the sole source provider of external upgrade kits on our recloser products at 
Lake Worth Beach.  The subject proposal includes external current sensors that require custom 
mounting frames, cables and termination points in order to interface with the existing recloser. 
G&W is the only vendor who can adequately design this kit and ensure its compatibility with 
the existing G&W product. 
 
All requests for quotation, purchase orders and support needs should be coordinated through 
our local representative Van & Smith Company.   

 
Please do not hesitate to contact me should the City of Lake Worth Beach require any further 
clarification on this topic. We sincerely appreciate your business and look forward to 
supporting you on this project. 

 
Best regards, 

Graham Leard 

 
Regional Vice President 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

AGENDA DATE: September 20, 2022 DEPARTMENT: Electric Utility  

TITLE: 

Agreement with Energy Erectors, Inc. for the construction of the Canal Distribution Substation 

 
SUMMARY: 

The Agreement authorizes Energy Erector Inc., to provide construction services for the 
construction of the Canal Distribution Substation at a cost not to exceed $3,352,690.  This 
project has been identified as an element of the City’s electric utility System Hardening and 
Reliability Improvement Project (SHRIP) and for which bonds were sold in November 2020. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City issued an Invitation for Bid (IFB 22-110) on June 26, 2022 seeking bids from qualified 
companies to build and construct the Canal Distribution Substation. The City received five (5) 
bids. Energy Erector, Inc., was the lowest compliant bidder and was selected to provide these 
services.  

The existing substation is equipped with a single 26.4kV to 4.16kV step-down transformer, 
antiquated switchgear and ancillary equipment dating back to its original construction in the 
1970’s. The substation provides power to businesses and residents through three (3) 26kV 
circuits and one (1) 4kV circuit and also provides a back-up circuit to the Palm Beach State 
College.   

The work and scope of this project includes installation of foundations, bus structure assembly, 
new breakers, installation and wiring of a new Control House and ancillary components. Project 
benefits include all new breakers, new relays and protective equipment to minimize outages and 
improved restoration time, as well as reduced loading of circuits, all leading to increased circuit 
reliability. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Energy Erector, Inc., to provide construction services for the 
construction of the Canal Distribution Substation at a cost not to exceed $3,352,690. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
IFB 22-110 Canal Transmission Substation Construction Bid Tab 
Construction Contract 



 
Fiscal Years 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 
 
Capital Expenditures $3,352,690 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact $3,352,690 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: Funds have been identified 
in account No. 421-6034-531-63.16, Project No. SH2001. 

 
Account Number Account 

Description 
Project 
Number 

FY21 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

421-6034-531-
63.16 

Improve Other than 
Build / 
Infrastructure 

SH2001 $6,643,513 $3,802,762 $3,352,690 $450,072 

 



Bidder: Energy Erectors, Inc Hooper Corporation LE Myers Co Powerserve 
Technologies, Inc Service Electric Co

ITEM #

1 Steel structures Installations  $                             73,650.00  $                        160,597.22  $                          116,825.86  $                         150,000.00  $                        255,968.08 
2 HV Breaker Installation  $                               7,250.00  $                          32,292.24  $                              7,343.92  $                         160,000.00  $                          22,637.73 
3 CCVT Installations  $                               8,700.00  $                          26,810.96  $                              7,317.13  $                           42,250.00  $                          19,403.77 
4 Metering Unit Installations  $                               4,350.00  $                          19,041.14  $                              3,658.57  $                           24,000.00  $                            9,701.89 
5  Wave Traps/Line Tuner Installations  $                               2,200.00  $                          15,307.74  $                              2,281.87  $                           26,000.00  $                            6,467.92 
6  Switch Installations  $                             60,250.00  $                        181,795.99  $                          131,966.22  $                         240,000.00  $                        127,117.37 
7  Bus Work Installations  $                           261,500.00  $                        310,328.21  $                          382,077.12  $                           60,000.00  $                        357,161.36 
8  Equipment Installations  $                               4,350.00  $                          44,939.16  $                              1,416.47  $                         160,000.00  $                          16,169.81 
9 Foundation Installations  $                           504,590.00  $                        597,727.46  $                          546,229.14  $                         427,750.00  $                        696,971.00 

10  Grounding Installations  $                           205,750.00  $                        165,902.72  $                          324,204.03  $                         120,000.00  $                        353,444.39 
11 Conduit/Cable Trench Installations  $                           185,000.00  $                        180,504.96  $                          283,927.41  $                           70,000.00  $                        247,861.26 
12  Station Service Installations  $                               2,000.00  $                            2,306.58  $                              1,416.47  $                           10,000.00  $                            1,616.98 
13  Control and Power Cables Installations  $                           281,200.00  $                        184,551.71  $                          224,940.49  $                         190,000.00  $                        195,551.60 
14  Wall & Gates Installation  $                           385,000.00  $                        342,921.60  $                          270,171.68  $                         360,000.00  $                        251,328.00 
15  Lightning Protection Installation  $                             21,400.00  $                            8,651.72  $                              4,957.63  $                           50,000.00  $                            3,233.96 
16  Lighting Installations  $                             21,400.00  $                          14,992.72  $                              5,677.03  $                           50,000.00  $                            1,616.98 
17 Control Building  $                             12,500.00  $                            5,766.49  $                                        -    $                           50,000.00  $                          12,935.85 
18 Clearing/Site Work  $                           613,000.00  $                        299,250.00  $                          520,974.56  $                         290,000.00  $                        629,502.50 
19 Drainage Installation  $                           361,000.00  $                        443,100.00  $                          297,905.96  $                           90,000.00  $                        629,502.50 
20  Switchyard rock surfacing  $                           110,000.00  $                        124,687.50  $                          243,328.16  $                         100,000.00  $                        108,839.13 
21 Equipment Testing  $                             60,000.00  $                          37,537.50  $                            92,308.92  $                         190,000.00  $                          69,398.96 
22  Relaying Testing  $                             73,000.00  $                        130,186.74  $                          207,763.65  $                         190,000.00  $                        157,618.96 
23  Miscellaneous  $                             94,600.00  $                          33,490.80  $                            43,058.96  $                                       -   

 $                    3,352,690.00  $                 3,362,691.16  $                   3,719,751.25  $                  3,050,000.00  $                 4,174,050.00 

 $                                      -    $                                   -    $                                     -    $                                    -    $                                   -   

 $                    3,352,690.00  $                 3,362,691.16  $                   3,719,751.25  $                  3,050,000.00  $                 4,174,050.00 
submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted
submitted not filled out submitted confirmed not filled out
submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted/not complete
submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted
submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted
submitted submitted submitted submitted not filled out
submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted
submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted

n/a not submitted n/a

claimed local preference, 
did not meet requirement 

for Lake Worth Beach local 
preference

n/a

submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted
safety details provided in 

different format submitted submitted submitted submitted

Bidder met qualification requirement (Yes or No) Yes No Yes No Yes
submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted
submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted
submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted

exceptions, assumption 
statement provided 

acceptable 

exception for foundation,  
scope gap

bid adjusted based on unit 
price submitted, bidder 

withdrew bid

Bidder provided 
exclusions/modifications  

to City's terms
COMPLIANT NOT COMPLIANT COMPLIANT WITHDRAWN NOT COMPLIANT BID COMPLIANCE: 

Schedule of Equipment & Materials 00300-10
Sworn Statement - Public Entity Crimes 00300-11 & 12

Scrutinized Companies Certification Form 00851-1

Bidders Qualification Questionnaire 00310-1 to 6

Drug Free Certification 00300-13

Bid Bond 

Veteran Business Enterprise, Small Business  and/or Local 
Business Preference  00300-14

Contractor Corporate Safety Assessment form 

Comments:

Campaign Contribution Statement 00850-1 & 2

DESCRIPTION

City of Lake Worth Beach

IFB#22-110 Canal Transmission Substation Construction 

Bid Tab

Veteran Business Enterprise, Small Business  and/or 
Local Business Preference amount

Total:

Trench Safety Affidavit - 00300-8
Schedule of Subcontractors - 00300-9

Unit Price schedule - 00300-5-7 

Bid form (00300 -1 to 4)
Adjusted lump sum applying preferences 

Addendums Acknowledgment (00300-1)



CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 
 
 

 
 
 
 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 
Canal Transmission Substation Construction   

IFB #22-110 
 

Contract 
  

 
 

 
 
 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 
ELECTRIC UTILITIES  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

01/06/95           TC-1 
 

              City of Lake Worth Beach 
Canal Transmission Substation Construction   

IFB #22-110 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
No. of pages  

BIDDING AND CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
 
00020 INVITATION TO BID  ........................................................................................................... 2 
 
00100 INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS  .......................................................................................... 10 
 
00300 BID FORM  ............................................................................................................................ 12  
 
00310 BIDDERS’S QUALIFICATION QUESTIONAIRE & APPENDIX 1 BIDDERS’S 
QUALIFICATION QUESTIONAIRE CONTRACTOR SAFETY FORM & BIDDERS SUBMITTED 
DOCUMENTS ………………………………………………………….. ……………………………….18 
 
00500 AGREEMENT  ...................................................................................................................... 11 
 
00501 OPINION OF ATTORNEY  .................................................................................................... 1 
 
00620 CONSTRUCTION PAYMENT AND PERFORMANCE BOND  ......................................... 3 
 
00630 NOTICE OF COMPLIANCE WITH CHAPTER 556, FLORIDA STATUTES ..................... 1 
 
00670 CONTRACTOR'S AFFIDAVIT TO OWNER  ....................................................................... 1 
 
00680 APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT  .......................................................................................... 1 
 
00681 SCHEDULE OF VALUES AND WORK COMPLETED   ..................................................... 1 
 
00700 GENERAL CONDITIONS  ................................................................................................... 72 
 
00800 SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS  ..................................................................................... 6 
 
00820 SPECIAL CONDITIONS  ....................................................................................................... 2 
 
00840 RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE  ........................................................................ 3 
 
00850 CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION STATEMENT  .................................................................... 2 
 
00851 SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES CERTIFICATION FORM…………………………………..1 
 
00900 ADDENDA …………………………………………………………………………………29 
 
NOTICE OF INTENT TO AWARD……………………………………………………………………….1 
 
BID BOND…………………………………………………………………………………………………3 
 
DOCUMENTATION SUBMITTED WITHIN CONTRACTOR BID PACKAGE……………………..101 
 
CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS WITH APPENDICES ............................................................. 276  
  
 APPENDIX A - RACEWAY LIST 
 APPENDIX B - SOIL BORING REPORT 
 APPENDIX C - DRAWINGS 
 APPENDIX D - ELECTRICAL HEALTH AND SAFETY PLAN  
        



INVITATION TO BID 
01/12/21-LWU  00020-1 

City of Lake Worth Beach 
IFB #22-110 

Canal Transmission Substation Construction  

00020 
INVITATION TO BID 

The City of Lake Worth Beach is soliciting bids from responsible and experienced contractors for the 
construction of the new 138 kV Canal Transmission Substation located at 4601 Davis Road, Lake Worth 
Beach, FL 33461 Canal Transmission Substation for the City’s Electric Utilities.  

This Invitation for Bid (IFB) may be downloaded at lakeworthbeachfl.bidsandtenders.net or 
www.lakeworthbeachfl.gov. All Bidders shall have a Bidding System Vendor account and be registered 
as a Plan Taker for this Bid opportunity, which will enable the Bidders to download the Bid Call Document, 
to receive Addenda email notifications and download all documents without the watermark “preview” on 
them. 
To ensure receipt of the latest information and updates via email regarding this bid, or if a Bidder has 
obtained this Bid Document from a third party, the onus is on the Bidder to create a Bidding System Vendor 
account and be register as a Plan Taker for the bid opportunity.  Copies of this IFB may also be acquired 
by contacting purchasing1@lakeworthbeachfl.gov.  

Time is of the essence and any bid received after 3:00 PM, August 10, 2022 whether by mail or otherwise 
shall be rejected by the City. The time of receipt shall be determined by the time clock located in the 
Financial Services Office. Bids shall be placed in a sealed envelope, marked with the bid number, title, 
date, and hour bids are scheduled to be received. The City offices have limited access to the public at 
this time. Courier deliveries SHALL NOT require signature for the receipt. Bidders may deliver bids 
directly to City Hall during regular business hours 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. Monday through Friday. If bids 
are delivered in person, visitors shall ring the bell at the City Hall front entrance and wait for 
assistance or by contacting Procurement Division at (561) 586 – 1770 in advance. Bidders are 
responsible for ensuring that their bid is stamped by office personnel by the deadline indicated. 

All persons or entities responding to the IFB (hereafter “Bidders”) are responsible for ensuring that their 
bid is received by the City at its’ designated office address by the deadline indicated in the IFB. The City 
will in no way be responsible for delays caused by any occurrence. Bids shall not be submitted and will 
not be accepted in by e-mail, telephone, telegram, facsimile or any other City’s address except as notified 
below.  The time of receipt shall be determined by the time clock in Financial Services Department.  

A Non-Mandatory Pre-Bid meeting is scheduled for July 14, 2022 at 10:00 a.m. at 4601 Davis Road, 
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33461 

A Site Visit / Inspection will be held shortly after the conclusion of the Pre-Bid Meeting. The City 
will not answer any question at the visit. Bidders can submit their questions following the solicitation 
protocol after their visit. 

All bids must be mailed or delivered to: 

City of Lake Worth Beach, City Hall  
Financial Services Office - Procurement 

7 North Dixie Hwy. 2nd floor 
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460 

mailto:purchasing1@lakeworthbeachfl.gov


INVITATION TO BID 
01/12/21-LWU  00020-2 

ENVELOPES MUST BE IDENTIFIED AS IFB # 22-110 Canal Transmission Substation 
Construction   

Bids will be opened publicly at the City Hall immediately following the bid deadline. 

All questions must be in writing submitted on lakeworthbeachfl.bidsandtenders.net or 
purchasing1@lakeworthbeachfl.gov before July 20, 2022 at 4 p.m.  

 Bids must be accompanied by a copy of Bid Security in the form of a certified or bank check made 
payable to the Owner, or a Bid Bond.  The amount of the security shall not be less than five (5) percent of 
the Bidder's total price indicated in Bid Form. Bidder must be able to deliver original Bid Bond immediately 
after the bid opening if requested by the City.  

 No Bid may be withdrawn for a period of 120 days after the scheduled closing date for the receipt of 
bids except as otherwise provided in Article 13 of the Instructions to Bidders. 

 The successful Bidder, who is awarded the Contract, shall be required to furnish a 100% Construction 
Performance Bond and a 100% Construction Payment Bond which meet the requirements of section 255.05, 
Florida Statutes. 

 The OWNER reserves the right to reject any or all Bids, to waive all nonmaterial irregularities, to re-
advertise, and to cancel any invitation to bid when it is in the best interests of the City. 

PUBLISHED: June 26, 2022 – Palm Beach Post & City Website 

mailto:purchasing1@lakeworthbeachfl.gov


INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
10/23/17  00100-1 

City of Lake Worth Beach 
IFB #22-110 

Canal Transmission Substation Construction  

00100 
INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 

1. DEFINED TERMS.

Terms used in these Instructions to Bidders which are defined in the Standard General Conditions of the 
Construction Contract (EDCJC C-700, 2013 Edition) have the meanings assigned to them in the General 
Conditions.  The term "Bidder" means one who submits a Bid directly to Owner, as distinct from a sub-
bidder, who submits a bid to a Bidder.  The term "Successful Bidder" means the lowest, qualified, 
responsible and responsive Bidder to whom Owner (on the basis of Owner's evaluation as hereinafter 
provided) makes an award.  The term "Bidding Documents" includes the Advertisement or Invitation to 
Bid, Instructions to Bidders, the Bid Form, and the proposed Contract Documents (including all Addenda 
issued prior to receipt of Bids). 

2. COPIES OF BIDDING DOCUMENTS.

2.1.  Complete sets of the Bidding Documents in the number and for the cost, if any, stated in the 
Advertisement or Invitation to Bid may be obtained from lakeworthbeachfl.bidsandtenders.net or 
www.lakeworthbeachfl.gov. 

All Bidders shall have a Bidding System Vendor account and be registered as a Plan Taker for this Bid 
opportunity, which will enable the Bidders to download the Bid Call Document, to receive Addenda email 
notifications and download all documents without the watermark “preview” on them. 
To ensure receipt of the latest information and updates via email regarding this bid, or if a Bidder has 
obtained this Bid Document from a third party, the onus is on the Bidder to create a Bidding System Vendor 
account and be register as a Plan Taker for the bid opportunity. 

2.2.  Complete sets of Bidding Documents must be used in preparing Bids; neither Owner nor Engineer 
assume any responsibility for errors or misinterpretations resulting from the use of incomplete sets of 
Bidding Documents. 

2.3.  Owner and Engineer in making copies of Bidding Documents available on the above terms do so only 
for the purpose of obtaining Bids on the Work and do not confer a license or grant for any other use. 

3. QUALIFICATIONS OF BIDDERS.

To demonstrate qualifications to perform the Work, each Bidder must submit the bidder qualifications 
questionnaire in its entirety. Bidder must also be prepared to submit within five days of Owner's request, 
written evidence such as financial data, previous experience, present commitments and other such data as 
may be reasonably specifically requested by Owner or otherwise required in Contract Documents.  Each 
Bid must contain evidence of Bidder's qualification to do business in the state where the Project is located. 

4. EXAMINATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND SITE.

4.1. It is the responsibility of each Bidder before submitting a Bid, to (a) examine the Contract Documents 
thoroughly, (b) visit the site to become familiar with local conditions that may affect cost, progress, 
performance or furnishing of the Work, (c) consider federal, state and local Laws and Regulations that may 
affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the Work, (d) study and carefully correlate Bidder's 
observations with the Contract Documents, and (e) notify Engineer of all conflicts, errors or discrepancies 
in the Contract Documents during the question submission period. 

4.2. Reference is made to Division 1: General Requirements of the Specifications for the identification of: 



INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
10/23/17  00100-2 

4.2.1. those reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at the site which have been 
utilized by Engineer in preparation of the Contract Documents. 

4.2.2. those drawings of physical conditions in or relating to existing surface and subsurface 
conditions (except Underground Facilities) which are at or contiguous to the site which have been 
utilized by Engineer in preparation of the Contract Documents. 

4.2.3. Copies of such reports and drawings (referred to above), if not attached to the Specifications 
or added on the Drawings, will be made available by Owner to any Bidder on request.  Those reports 
and drawings are not a part of the Contract Documents.  Bidder may not rely upon the accuracy of the 
non-technical data, interpretations or opinions contained in those reports and drawings.  Bidder may 
not rely on the completeness of those reports and drawings for the purposes of bidding or construction. 
Bidder may rely on any technical data contained in those reports and drawings specifically referenced 
in Division 1: General Requirements as technical data that can be relied on. 

4.3. Information and data reflected in the Contract Documents with respect to Underground Facilities at or 
contiguous to the site is based upon information and data furnished to Owner and Engineer by owners of 
such Underground Facilities or others, and Owner does not assume responsibility for the accuracy or 
completeness thereof unless it is expressly provided otherwise in the Supplementary Conditions. 

4.4. Provisions concerning responsibilities for the adequacy of data furnished to prospective Bidders on 
subsurface conditions, Underground Facilities and other physical conditions, and possible changes in 
Contract Documents due to differing conditions appear in Paragraphs 5.03 and 5.05 of the General 
Conditions. 

4.5. Before submitting a Bid, each Bidder will, at Bidder's own expense, be responsible to make or obtain 
such examinations, investigations, explorations, tests and studies and obtain any additional information and 
data which pertain to the physical conditions (surface, subsurface and Underground Facilities) at or 
contiguous to the site or otherwise which may affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the Work 
and which Bidder deems necessary to determine its Bid for performing and furnishing the Work in 
accordance with the time, price and other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 

4.6. On request in advance, Owner will provide each Bidder access to the site to conduct such explorations 
and tests as each Bidder deems necessary for submission of a Bid.  Bidder shall fill all holes, clean up and 
restore the site to its former condition upon completion of such explorations. 

4.7. The lands upon which the Work is to be performed, rights-of-way and easements for access thereto and 
other lands designated for use by Contractor in performing the Work are identified in the Contract 
Documents.  All additional lands and access thereto required for temporary construction facilities or storage 
of materials and equipment are to be provided by Contractor.  Easements for permanent structures or 
permanent changes in existing structures are to be obtained and paid for by Owner unless otherwise 
provided in the Contract Documents. 

4.8. The submission of a Bid will constitute an incontrovertible representation by Bidder that Bidder has 
complied with every requirement of this Article 4, that without exception the Bid is premised upon 
performing and furnishing the Work required by the Contract Documents and such means, methods, 
techniques, sequences or procedures of construction as may be indicated in or required by the Contract 
Documents, and that the Contract Documents are sufficient in scope and detail to indicate and convey 
understanding of all terms and conditions for performance and furnishing of the Work. 

5. INTERPRETATIONS AND ADDENDA.

5.1 All questions about the meaning or intent of the Contract Documents are to be directed to the bid on 
lakeworthbeachfl.bidsandtenders.net or by e-mail to purchasing1@lakeworthbeachfl.gov.  
Interpretations or clarifications considered necessary by the Owner or Engineer in response to such 
questions will be issued by Addenda.  Questions received after July 20, 2022 at 4 PM may not be answered. 
Only questions answered by formal written Addenda will be binding.  Questions or requests for 
clarification directed to any member of the City staff or Engineer may be grounds for rejection of 
the bid as being irregular. Oral and other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. 



INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
10/23/17  00100-3 

5.2. Addenda may also be issued to modify the Bidding Documents as deemed advisable by Owner or 
Engineer. 

6. BID SECURITY.

6.1. Each Bid must be accompanied by Bid security made payable to Owner in an amount of five percent 
of the Bidder's maximum Bid price and in the form of a certified or bank check or a Bid Bond issued by a 
surety meeting the requirements of Paragraph 6.01 of the General Conditions.  

6.2. The Bid security of the Successful Bidder will be retained by the Owner until such Bidder has delivered 
all of the following documents to the Owner: 

6.2.1 All required certificates or proof of insurance;  
6.2.2 The fully executed Agreement contained in the Contract Documents; and, 
6.2.3 The fully executed Public Construction Bond (if required) along with a certified copy of the 

Public Construction Bond as recorded in the Official Records of Palm Beach County, Florida. 

Upon receipt of all of the foregoing documents, the Bid security will be returned to the Successful Bidder. 
The required certificates or proof of insurance and the fully executed Agreement must be delivered by the 
Successful Bidder within fifteen days after the Successful Bidder’s receipt of the Agreement from the 
Owner. The Public Construction Bond and certified copy of the same must be delivered to the Owner by 
the Successful Bidder no later than fifteen (15) days after the Owner approves and executes the Agreement 
contained in the Contract Documents (as previously executed and delivered by the Successful Bidder). 

If the Successful Bidder fails to deliver all of the above documentation to the Owner in the timeframes 
stated above, the Owner may annul the Notice of Award and/or may immediately terminate the Agreement 
upon written notice to the Successful Bidder and the Bid security will be forfeited.  The Bid security of 
other Bidders whom Owner believes to have a reasonable chance of receiving the award may be retained 
by Owner until the earlier of the seventh day after the Effective Date of the Agreement or the 120th 
day after the Bid opening, whereupon Bid security furnished by such Bidders will be returned.  Bid security 
with Bids which are not competitive will be returned within seven days after the Bid opening. 

7. CONTRACT TIME.

The numbers of days within which, or the dates by which, the Work is to be substantially completed and 
also completed and ready for final payment (the Contract Time) are set forth in the Bid Form and the 
Agreement.  If Contract Times are left blank in the Bid Form, the time for Substantial Completion and final 
completion are to be set forth by Bidder in the Bid and will be included in the Agreement.  The times will 
be taken into consideration by Owner during the evaluation of Bids, and it will be necessary for the 
Successful Bidder to satisfy Owner of Bidder's ability to achieve Substantial Completion and final 
completion within the times designated in the Bid. 

8. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES.

Provisions for liquidated damages, if any, are set forth in the Agreement.

9. SUBSTITUTE OR "OR-EQUAL" ITEMS.

The contract, if awarded, will be on the basis of materials and equipment described in the Drawings or 
specified in the Specifications. A substitute or "or-equal" item of material or equipment may be furnished 
or used by Contractor if acceptable to Engineer, application for such acceptance will not be considered by 
Engineer until after the Effective Date of the Agreement.  The procedure for submission of any such 
application by Contractor and consideration by Engineer is set forth in Article 7 of the General Conditions 
and may be supplemented in Division 1: General Requirements. 

10. SUBCONTRACTORS, SUPPLIERS AND OTHERS.

10.1. If the Bid Form or Specifications require (or if Owner requests after Bids are received) the identity 
of certain Subcontractors, Suppliers and other persons and organizations (including those who are to furnish 



INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
10/23/17  00100-4 

the principal items of material and equipment) to be submitted to Owner in advance of the specified date 
prior to the Effective Date of the Agreement, the apparent Successful Bidder, and any other Bidder so 
requested, shall within seven days after the Bid opening (or seven days after request by Owner) submit to 
Owner a list of all such Subcontractors, Suppliers and other persons and organizations proposed for those 
portions of the Work for which such identification is required.  Such list shall be accompanied by an 
experience statement with pertinent information regarding similar projects and other evidence of 
qualification for each such Subcontractor, Supplier, person or organization if requested by Owner. 
Subcontractors shall be required to meet Contractor's liability insurance requirements as established by the 
General and Supplementary Conditions or be listed as an additional insured on the apparent successful 
Bidder's policy.  If Owner or Engineer after due investigation has reasonable objection to any proposed 
Subcontractor, Supplier, other person or organization, either may before the Notice of Award is given 
request the apparent Successful Bidder to submit an acceptable substitute without an increase in Bid price.  
If apparent Successful Bidder declines to make any such substitution, Owner may award the contract to the 
next lowest Bidder that proposes to use acceptable Subcontractors, Suppliers and other persons and 
organizations.  The declining to make requested substitutions will not constitute grounds for sacrificing the 
Bid security of any Bidder.  Any Subcontractor, Supplier, other person or organization listed and to whom 
Owner or Engineer does not make written objection prior to the giving of the Notice of Award will be 
deemed acceptable to Owner and Engineer subject to revocation of such acceptance after the Effective Date 
of the Agreement as provided in the General Conditions. 

10.2. No Contractor shall be required to employ any Subcontractor, Supplier, other person or 
organization against whom Contractor has reasonable objection. 

11. BID FORM.

11.1. The Bid Form is included with the Bidding Documents; additional copies may be obtained
from the issuing office.

11.2. All blanks on the Bid Form must be completed in ink or by typewriter.

11.3. Bids by corporations must be executed in the corporate name by the president or a vice-
president (or other corporate officer accompanied by evidence of authority to sign) and the corporate
seal must be affixed and attested by the secretary or an assistant secretary.  The corporate address and
state of incorporation must be shown below the signature.

11.4. Bids by partnerships must be executed in the partnership name and signed by a general partner,
whose title must appear under the signature and the official address of the partnership must be shown
below the signature.

11.5. All names must be typed or printed below the signature.

11.6. The Bid shall contain an acknowledgement of receipt of all Addenda (the numbers of which
must be filled in on the Bid Form).  All Addenda are a part of the Bid documents and each Bidder will
be bound by such Addenda, whether or not received by the Bidder.  It is the responsibility of each
Bidder to verify that he or she has received all Addenda issued before Bids are opened.

11.7. The address and telephone number for communications regarding the Bid must be shown.

12. SUBMISSION OF BIDS.

Bids shall be submitted at the time and place indicated in the Advertisement or Invitation to Bid marked 
with the Project title (and, if applicable, the designated portion of the Project for which the Bid is submitted) 
and name and address of the Bidder and accompanied by the Bid security and other required documents.   
Bids shall not be submitted and will not be accepted in by e-mail, telephone, telegram, facsimile or any 
other City’s address except as notified below.  The time of receipt shall be determined by the time clock in 
Financial Services Department.  



INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
10/23/17  00100-5 

All bids must be mailed or delivered to: 

City of Lake Worth Beach, City Hall 
Financial Services Office - Procurement 

7 North Dixie Hwy. 2nd floor 
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460 

SUBJECT LINE MUST BE IDENTIFIED IFB #22-110 Canal Transmission Substation 
Construction   

13. MODIFICATION AND WITHDRAWAL OF BIDS.

13.1. Bids may be modified or withdrawn by an appropriate document duly executed (in the manner
that a Bid must be executed) and delivered to the place where Bids are to be submitted at any time prior
to the opening of Bids.

13.2. If, within twenty-four hours after Bids are opened, any Bidder files a duly signed, written notice
with Owner and promptly thereafter demonstrates to the reasonable satisfaction of Owner that there
was a material and substantial mistake in the preparation of its Bid, that Bidder may withdraw its Bid
and the Bid security will be returned.  Thereafter, that Bidder will be disqualified from further bidding
on the Work to be provided under the Contract Documents.

14. OPENING OF BIDS.

Bids will be opened publicly immediately after the bid receipt at the City Hall, 7 N Dixie Ave, Lake 
Worth Beach, FL 33460 and as indicated in the Invitation to Bid. 

14.1. When Bids are opened publicly they will be read aloud, and the amounts of the base Bids and 
major alternates (if any) will be made available after the opening of Bids.  If applicable, the bid will be 
opened in accordance with sec. 255.0518, Florida Statutes. 

15. BIDS TO REMAIN SUBJECT TO ACCEPTANCE.

All bids will remain subject to acceptance for 120  days after the day of the Bid opening, but Owner 
may, in its sole discretion, release any Bid and return the Bid security prior to that date. 

16. AWARD OF CONTRACT.

16.1. Owner reserves the right to reject any and all Bids, to waive any and all informalities not
involving price, time or changes in the Work and to negotiate contract terms with the Successful Bidder,
and the right to disregard all nonconforming, nonresponsive, unbalanced or conditional Bids.  Also,
Owner reserves the right to reject the Bid of any Bidder if Owner believes that it would not be in the
best interest of the Project to make and award to the Bidder, whether because the Bid is not responsive
or the Bidder is unqualified or of doubtful financial ability or fails to meet any other pertinent standard
or criteria established by Owner.  Discrepancies in the multiplication of units of Work and unit prices
will be resolved in favor of the unit prices.  Discrepancies between the indicated sum of any column of
figures and the correct sum thereof will be resolved in favor of the correct sum.

16.2. In evaluating Bids, Owner will consider the qualifications of the Bidders, whether or not the
Bids comply with the prescribed requirements, and such alternates, unit prices and other data, as may
be requested in the Bid Form or prior to the Notice of Award.

16.3. Owner may consider the qualifications and experience of Subcontractors, Suppliers and other
persons and organizations proposed for those portions of the Work as to which the identity of
Subcontractors, Suppliers, and other persons and organizations must be submitted as provided in the
Supplementary Conditions (or as requested by Owner after the Bids are received). Owner also may
consider the operating costs, maintenance requirements, performance data and guarantees of major



INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
10/23/17  00100-6 

items of materials and equipment proposed for incorporation in the Work when such data is required to 
be submitted prior to the Notice of Award. 

16.4. Owner may conduct such investigations as Owner deems necessary to assist in the evaluation 
of any Bid and to establish the responsibility, qualifications and financial ability of Bidders, proposed 
Subcontractors, Suppliers, and other persons and organizations to perform and furnish the Work in 
accordance with the Contract Documents to Owner's satisfaction within the prescribed time. 

16.5. If the contract is to be awarded, it will be awarded to the qualified lowest, responsive and 
responsible Bidder whose evaluation by Owner indicates to Owner that the award will be in the best 
interests of the Project and subject to the Veteran Owned Enterprise, Small Business and/or Local 
Business preference policy.  No bid shall be accepted from, nor will any Contract be awarded to any 
Bidder who is in arrears to the Owner upon any debt or Contract or who is a defaulter as surety or 
otherwise upon any obligation to the Owner or who has failed to perform faithfully any previous 
Contract with the Owner or other party as determined by the Owner. 

16.6. If the contract is to be awarded, Owner will give the Successful Bidder a Notice of Award 
within   120  days after the day of the Bid opening. 

16.7. When Bidder is permitted to designate the Contract Time, Bid prices will be compared after 
adjusting for differences in the time designated in the Bid for Substantial Completion. 

17. CONTRACT SECURITY.

Paragraph 6.01 of the General Conditions and the Supplementary Conditions set forth Owner's requirements 
as to performance and payment Bonds.  When the Successful Bidder delivers the executed Agreement to 
Owner, it must be accompanied by the required performance and payment Bonds. 

18. SIGNING OF AGREEMENT.

When Owner gives a Notice of Award to the Successful Bidder, it will be accompanied by the required 
number of unsigned counterparts of the Agreement with all other written Contract Documents attached. 
Within   15  days thereafter Contractor shall sign and deliver the required number of counterparts of 
the Agreement and attached documents to Owner with the required Bonds.  In the event the successful 
Bidder fails to execute the Contract and return same to the Owner within the stipulated fifteen (15) days, 
the Owner may disqualify the Bid, and said Bidder shall not be permitted to contest to the contrary and 
does waive such right upon submitting a Bid. 

19. DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER

19.1 Bidder may be disqualified and its Bid rejected for any of the following:

a) Bidder does not meet the Competency of Bidder and Reference requirements set forth
herein or does not meet minimum qualifications criteria as set forth in solicitation
documents.

b) Reason to believe that collusion exists among or between Bidders.
c) Unbalanced Bid; that is, Bid in which the prices bid for some items are out of all proportion

to those Bids of others.
d) Bidder’s uncompleted workload, which in the judgment of the Owner, may cause

detrimental  impact or impair the prompt completion of this Contract.
e) Lack of responsibility on the part of Bidder, (for example, no Bidder would be considered

responsible who had failed to carry out any Contract in which the Owner had been directly
or indirectly concerned), or to which Bidder failed to perform on other projects.

f) A determination by Owner of the Contractor’s lack of experience or lack of competency as
may be revealed by qualification statements, financial statements, experience records,
references, or other questionnaires.

g) Substantial evidence of bad character or dishonesty.
h) Bidder is involved in any current litigation with Owner.
i) Bidder has defaulted on any contract or is in arrears on any contract.



INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
10/23/17  00100-7 

j) Incomplete Bid, missing or incomplete requested documentation and information

20. LICENSES, PERMITS, AND CERTIFICATION

20.1 When applicable, vendor must hold a Certificate of Competency issued by the State of Florida 
or the Palm Beach County Construction Industry Licensing. 

20.2 A business tax receipt obtained from the Owner shall be required of any person maintaining a 
permanent business location or branch office within the City of Lake Worth Beach.  

20.3 A copy of any licenses and permits shall be submitted with the Bid and must be in the name of 
the vendor shown on the Bid submittal. 

21. PREPARATION EXPENSE

21.1 Neither the Owner nor its representatives will be liable for any expenses incurred in connection 
with the preparation, presentation or submittal of any Bid. 

22. NON-COLLUSION

22.1 Bidder certifies that this Bid is made without prior understanding, agreement, or connection 
with any individual, firm, partnership, corporation or other entity submitting a Bid for the same 
materials, services, supplies, or equipment and is in all respects fair and without collusion or fraud.  No 
premiums, rebates, or gratuities are permitted with, prior to, or after any delivery of material or 
provisions of services.  Any violation of this provision may result in Contract cancellation, return of 
materials or discontinuation of services, and the possible removal of Bidder from the vendor Bid list(s). 

23. CODE OF ETHICS

23.1 If any Bidder violates or is a party to a violation of the Code of Ethics of the Owner, Palm
Beach County, and/or of the State of Florida with respect to this Bid, such Bidder may be disqualified
from performing the work described in this Bid or from furnishing the goods or services for which this
Bid is submitted and may be further disqualified from bidding on any future Bids for work or for goods
or services for the Owner.

24. CONFLICT OF INTEREST

24.1 The award is subject to any and all applicable conflict of interest provisions found in the
policies or Code of Ordinances of the City, the Palm Beach County Code of Ethics, and found in the
Florida Statutes.  All Bidders must complete the Conflict of Interest Form attached hereto.

Further, any Bidder coming before the City Commission for an award of a contract and who has made
an election campaign contribution in an amount that is more than one hundred dollars ($100.00) to any
elected official of the City Commission, who is a current sitting member of the Commission, must
disclose such election campaign contribution, verbally and in writing, in their responsive proposal to
this IFB. FAILURE TO INCLUDE THE CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION STATEMENT WILL
CAUSE YOUR BID TO BE REJECTED.

25. DRUG FREE WORKPLACE PROGRAMS

25.1 Preference may be given to businesses with Drug-Free Work Place Programs.  Whenever two
or more Bids which are equal with respect to price, quality, and service are received by the Owner for
the procurement of commodities or contractual services, a Bid received from a business that completes
the attached DFW form certifying that it is a DFW may be given preference in the award process.

26. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS



INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
10/23/17  00100-8 

26.1 Federal, State, County and Owner laws, ordinances, rules, codes, guidelines, directives and 
regulations that in any manner affect the items covered herein apply.  Lack of knowledge by the Bidder 
shall in no way be a cause for relief from responsibility. 

27. PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES

27.1 By submitting a bid, each bidder acknowledges and agrees that a person or affiliate who has been
placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a
bid, proposal, or reply on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity; may not submit
a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public
building or public work; may not submit bids, proposals, or replies on leases of real property to a public
entity; may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier or sub-contractor under a contract
with any public entity; and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold
amount provided in Section 287.017, Florida Statues, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months
following the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list.

27.2 SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES
A. Contractor certifies that it and its subcontractors are not on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott
Israel List and are not engaged in the boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to section 287.135, Florida Statutes,
the City may immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole option if the Contractor or any of its
subcontractors are found to have submitted a false certification; or if the Contractor or any of its
subcontractors, are placed on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List or is engaged in the
boycott of Israel during the term of this Agreement.
B. If this Agreement is for one million dollars or more, the Contractor certifies that it and its
subcontractors are also not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, Scrutinized
Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or engaged in business operations
in Cuba or Syria as identified in Section 287.135, Florida Statutes.  Pursuant to Section 287.135, the
City may immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole option if the Contractor, or any of its
subcontractors are found to have submitted a false certification; or if the Contractor or any of its
subcontractors are placed on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, or Scrutinized
Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or are or have been engaged with
business operations in Cuba or Syria during the term of this Agreement.
C. The Contractor agrees to observe the above requirements for applicable subcontracts entered into
for the performance of work under this Agreement.
D. The Contractor agrees that the certifications in this section shall be effective and relied upon by the
City for the term of this Agreement, including any and all renewals.
E. The Contractor agrees that if it or any of its subcontractors’ status changes in regards to any
certification herein, the Contractor shall immediately notify the City of the same.
F. As provided in Subsection 287.135(8), Florida Statutes, if federal law ceases to authorize the above-
stated contracting prohibitions then they shall become inoperative.

28. COMPLIANCE WITH OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ACT

28.1  The Bidder certifies that all equipment and materials contained in this Bid shall meet all
O.S.H.A. requirements.  Bidder further certifies that, if it is the successful Bidder and the equipment
and/or materials delivered are subsequently found to be deficient in any O.S.H.A. requirements in effect
on the date of delivery, all costs necessary to bring the equipment and/or materials into compliance
with the aforementioned requirements shall be borne by the Bidder.

29. NON-APPROPRIATIONS

29.1 The obligations of the Owner to make a Bid award and sign an agreement under the terms of
this "Invitation to Bid" are contingent upon funds lawfully appropriated for this purpose.  Should funds
not be appropriated for this purpose, the Owner, at its sole discretion, shall have the right to reject all
Bids.

30. FLORIDA PUBLIC RECORDS ACT AND CONTRACT CONTENT OWNERSHIP



INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
10/23/17  00100-9 

30.1 All material submitted regarding this Bid becomes the property of the Owner.  Pursuant to sec. 
119.07(1), Fla. Stat., sealed Bids received by the Owner pursuant to a competitive solicitation are 
subject to disclosure when the Owner provides notice of an intended decision or until thirty (30) after 
opening of the Bids, whichever is earlier.  If the Owner rejects all bids submitted in response to a 
competitive solicitation and the Owner concurrently provides notice of its intent to reissue the 
competitive solicitation, the rejected bids remain exempt from sec. 119.07(1), Fla. Stat., until such time 
as the Owner provides notice of an intended decision concerning the reissued competitive solicitation 
or until the Owner withdraws the reissued competitive solicitation.  A Bid is not exempt from disclosure 
for longer than 12 months after the initial notice rejecting all Bids made by the Owner.  Bidder should 
take special note of this as it relates to any proprietary information that might be included in their offer. 
Any resulting contract may be reviewed by any person after the contract has been executed by the 
Owner.  The Owner has the right to use any or all information/material submitted in response to this 
bid and/or any resulting contract from the same.  Disqualification of a Bidder does not eliminate this 
right. 

30.2 Contractor shall comply with Florida’s Public Records Laws, and, if applicable, specifically agrees 
to: 

a) Keep and maintain public records that ordinarily and necessarily would be required by the
Owner in order to perform the service.

b) Provide the public with access to public records on the same terms and conditions that the
Owner would provide the records and at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in
Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law.

c) Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records
disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law.

d) Meet all requirements for retaining public records and transfer, at no cost, to the Owner
all public records in possession of the Contractor upon termination of the Contract
Documents and destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and
exempt from public records disclosure requirements. All records stored electronically
must be provided to the Owner in a format that is compatible with the information
technology systems of the Owner.

31. E-VERIFY

Pursuant to Section 448.095(2), Florida Statutes, beginning on January 1, 2021, the CONTRACTOR shall: 
a) Register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all

newly hired employees and require all CONTRACTORs (providing services or receiving
funding under this Agreement) to register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the
work authorization status of all the Contractors’ newly hired employees;

b) Secure an affidavit from all CONTRACTORs (providing services or receiving funding
under this Agreement) stating that the CONTRACTOR does not employ, contract with, or
subcontract with an “unauthorized alien” as defined in Section 448.095(1)(k), Florida
Statutes;

c) Maintain copies of all CONTRACTOR affidavits for the duration of this Agreement and
provide the same to the City upon request;

d) Comply fully, and ensure all CONTRACTORs comply fully, with Section 448.095, Florida
Statutes;

e) Be aware that a violation of Section 448.09, Florida Statutes (Unauthorized aliens;
employment prohibited) shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement; and,

f) Be aware that if the City terminates this Agreement under Section 448.095(2)(c), Florida
Statues, the CONTRACTOR may not be awarded a contract for at least 1 year after the
date on which the Agreement is terminated and will be liable for any additional costs
incurred by the City as a result of the termination of the Agreement.



 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
10/23/17          00100-10 

 
32. VETERAN BUSINESS ENTERPRISE, SMALL BUSINESS, AND LOCAL BUSINESS 
PREFERENCE   
 
Section 2-117 of the City’s Code of Ordinance shall govern the application of a Veteran Business 
Enterprise, Small Business and/or Local Business preference for this IFB.  Documentation to support a 
Bidder as a Veteran Business Enterprise, Small Business and/or Local Business must be submitted with a 
bid in response to the IFB.  Documentation submitted after the proposal deadline will be rejected.  
 
The order and application of preferences is as follows:  For all preferences set forth in this IFB, only one 
preference may be identified in a response to this solicitation. In an event of a tie, for the purpose of 
determining the best value in the award of an IFB where more than one bidder identifies a preference, the 
Veteran Business Enterprise preference shall take precedence over the Local Business preference, and the 
Local Business preference shall take precedence over the Small Business preference. 
 

END OF SECTION 
 
 











































7 

Appendix 1 - Bidder Qualification Form 

CONTRACTOR SAFETY FORM

At CITY, the safety of all personnel on site is of utmost importance.  CITY is committed 
to achieving and maintaining an injury free work environment for their employees, the 
employees of its contractors and the public.   CITY expects contractors to be 
responsible for the safety of their employees, their subcontractors and others who are 
on or near the job site.   

As a contractor performing work for CITY, you, your employees and any subcontractors 
and their employees will be expected to work within all applicable federal, state and local 
safety laws and regulations including the Occupational Safety and Health Act and any 
applicable CITY safety guidelines.  Any equipment supplied or brought on to CITY 
premises shall meet or exceed all existing OSHA requirements, all applicable federal, 
state and local safety laws and CITY standards.  At CITY, we believe every person on our 
property or premises is entitled to expect a safe working environment.  As a contractor 
your responsibilities to your employees are defined by the OSHA General Duty Clause 
and the Electric Utility HASP.  No contractor or subcontractor shall require an employee 
to work in surroundings or under working conditions that are unsanitary, dangerous or 
hazardous to their health or safety.   While your responsibilities to your employees are 
defined by federal law, your responsibilities to CITY, and our employees or to any other 
person on the job site are spelled out in your contract.   

You must have a designated person on site, who is responsible for the prevention of 
accidents and administration of your safety program.   You must report all injuries to 
CITY immediately.  CITY may require a contractor to remove from the job site, any 
personnel or subcontractors who fail to obey any laws or regulations.  CITY states in 
your contract that CITY may terminate the whole or any part of your contract for the 
contractor’s failure to perform any of the contract obligations for health and safety.   



8 

All contractors must submit Contractor Corporate Safety Assessments. 

Contractor Corporate Safety Assessment 

Do you have a safety mission statement? ______ if yes, please state ______________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________ 

Do you have annual safety goals? ______ If yes, your goals are: ___________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

OSHA 200 Safety history for the most recent 3 years.  RATE  =        INJURIES X 200,000 
Use the following formula for incident/accident rate:     ACTUAL HOURS WORKED 

 Year  21 YTD  20  19  18 
1.OSHA recordable incident rate ……….. _____  ____  ____   ____ 

2.Number of recordable injury cases. . . . . . . . _____  ____  ____  ____ 

3.Lost time accident rate. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . _____  ____  ____  ____ 

4.Number of lost time accidents . . . . . . . . . . . _____  ____  ____  ____ 

5.Total number of hours worked . . . . . . . . . .  _____  ____  ____  ____ 

6.Number of fatalities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  _____  ____  ____  ____ 

7.Your Experience Modification Rate (EMR) . .  _____  ____  ____   ____ 

Has your company received an OSHA citation within the last 3 years? _____ If yes, explain the nature of 

each citation and list the citation amount.  (Attach extra sheet if needed.) 

____________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________ 

Does your company have safety meetings for field employees? _________  

If so how often? __________________ 

Do you conduct field safety inspections? _____ If so by whom? ________________  

How often? ______________ 

Does your crew hold daily job briefings? _______ Are they recorded? _____________ 



9 

How many hours of safety training/orientation are conducted for field personnel? _____ How often? 

_______ 

Do you have a safety incentive program? __________ 

Do you maintain inspection records on your equipment? _________ 

Do you have a feedback system for safety concerns arising from hazard assessments/field 

inspections? ____ 

If yes, Please 
explain:__________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________ 





















AGREEMENT 
00500-1 

 

City of Lake Worth Beach  
IFB #22-110  

Canal Transmission Substation Construction   
 
 

00500 
AGREEMENT 

 
THIS AGREEMENT is dated and will be effective on the ______ day of     in the 
year 20___, by and between the City of Lake Worth Beach (hereinafter called Owner) and 
Energy Erectors, Inc.  (hereinafter called Contractor). 
 
Owner and Contractor, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, agree as 
follows: 
 
ARTICLE 1. WORK. 
 
Contractor shall complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents.  The 
Work is generally described as follows: City of Lake Worth Beach Electric Utilities Canal 
Transmission Substation Construction and all else necessary for a complete and functional project 
that meet or exceeds all requirements of the City of Lake Worth Beach Electric Utilities. 
 
The Project, of which the Work under the Contract Documents is a part, shall be referred to as:  
City of Lake Worth Beach City of Lake Worth Beach Electric Utilities Canal Transmission 
Substation Construction. 
 
ARTICLE 2. ENGINEER 
 
The Project has been designed by Power Engineers, Inc., 1060 Maitland Center Commons, Suite  
110, Orlando, FL 32751 who is hereinafter called Engineer and who is to act as Owner’s 
representative, assume all duties and responsibilities and have the rights and authority assigned to 
Engineer in the Contract Documents in connection with completion of the Work in accordance 
with the Contract Documents. 
 
ARTICLE 3. CONTRACT TIME. 
 
3.1 The Work will be substantially completed within 475 days from the date when the Contract 
Time commences to run as provided in paragraph 4.01 of the General Conditions and shall be 
finally complete and ready for final payment in accordance with paragraph 15.06 of the General 
Conditions within 505  days from the date when the Contract Time commences to run. 
 
3.2 All time limits for Milestones, if any, Substantial Completion and completion and readiness 
for final payment as stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract. 

3.3 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES.  Owner and Contractor recognize that time is of the essence 
of this Agreement and that Owner will suffer financial loss if the Work is not completed 
within the times specified in paragraph 3.1 above, plus any extensions thereof allowed in 
accordance with the Contract Documents.  They also recognize the delays, expense and 
difficulties involved in proving in a legal or arbitration proceeding the actual loss suffered 
by Owner if the Work is not completed on time.  Accordingly, instead of requiring any such 
proof, Owner and Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a 



AGREEMENT 
00500-2 

 

penalty) Contractor shall pay Owner Two Thousand and Five Hundred 00/100  dollars 
($ 2,500.00 ) for each day that expires after the time specified in paragraph 3.1 for 
Substantial Completion until the Work is substantially complete.  After Substantial 
Completion if Contractor shall neglect, refuse or fail to complete the remaining Work 
within the Contract Time or any proper extension thereof granted by Owner, Contractor 
shall pay Owner Two Thousand Five Hundred and 00/100 dollars ($2,500.00   ) for each day 
that expires after the time specified in paragraph 3.1 for completion and readiness for final 
payment. 

3.4 In the Owner’s sole discretion, a requested extension of time may be denied for delays 
resulting from normal weather conditions prevailing from normal weather conditions prevailing 
in the area as defined by the average of the last five (5) years of weather recorded or otherwise 
established by the Owner. 

ARTICLE 4. CONTRACT PRICE. 

4.1 Owner shall pay CONTRACTOR for completion of the Work in accordance with the 
Contract Documents, subject to adjustment as provided therein, in current funds as follows:   

A. For all Work other than Unit Price Work, a lump sum of:  

B. For all Unit Price Work, an amount equal to the sum of the extended prices 
(established for each separately identified item of Unit Price Work by multiplying the unit price 
times the actual quantity of that item): 

 
TOTAL OF ALL UNIT PRICES Three Million Three Hundred FiftyTwo Thousand Six 
Hundred Ninety Dollars ($ 3,352,690.00) 
      

which is based on the unit price(s) in the Bid Form Unit Price Schedule.  
 
ARTICLE 5. PAYMENT PROCEDURES. 
 
Contractor shall submit Applications for Payment in accordance with Article 15 of the General 
Conditions.  Applications for Payment will be processed by Engineer as provided in the General 
Conditions. 
 
5.1 PROGRESS PAYMENTS.  Owner shall make progress payments on account of the Contract 
Price on the basis of Contractor’s Applications for Payment as recommended by Engineer, on or 
about the 10th day of each month during construction as provided below.  All progress payments 
will be on the basis of the progress of the Work measured by the schedule of values established in 
the General Conditions (and in the case of Unit Price Work based on the number of units 
completed) or, in the event there is no schedule of values, as provided elsewhere in the Contract 
Documents. 
 

5.1.1 Prior to Substantial Completion, progress payments will be made in an 
amount equal to the percentage indicated below, but, in each case, less 
the aggregate of payments previously made and less such amounts as 
Engineer shall determine, or Owner may withhold, in accordance with 
the General Conditions, less liquidated damages, if any. 



AGREEMENT 
00500-3 

 

 
95% of Work completed. 
95% of materials and equipment not incorporated in the Work (but delivered, 
suitably stored and accompanied by documentation satisfactory to Owner as 
provided in the General Conditions). 
 
5.1.2 Upon Substantial Completion, in an amount sufficient to increase total 

payments to Contractor to 98% of the Contract Price, less such amounts 
as Engineer shall determine, or Owner may withhold, in accordance with 
the General Conditions, less liquidated damages, if any. 

 
5.2 FINAL PAYMENT.  Upon final completion and acceptance of the Work in accordance with 
paragraph 15.06 of the General Conditions, and settlement of all claims, including liquidated 
damages, if any, Owner shall pay the remainder of the Contract Price as recommended by 
Engineer as provided in said paragraph 15.06. 
 
ARTICLE 6. INTEREST. 
 
6.1 All payments due and not made within the time prescribed by section 218.735, Florida 
Statutes, shall bear interest at the rate of 1 percent per month in accordance with section 218.735, 
Florida Statutes, as amended from time to time. 
 
ARTICLE 7. CONTRACTOR’S REPRESENTATIONS. 
 
In order to induce Owner to enter into this Agreement Contractor makes the following 
representations: 
  
7.1 Contractor has examined and carefully studied the Contract Documents and any data and 
reference items identified in the Contract Documents. 
 
7.2 Contractor has visited the Site, conducted a thorough, alert visual examination of the Site and 
adjacent areas, and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the general, local and Site 
conditions that may affect cost, progress and performance of the Work. 
 
7.3 Contractor is familiar with and is satisfied as to all Laws and Regulations that may affect cost, 
progress and performance of the Work.  
 
7.4 Contractor has studied carefully all: (1) reports of explorations and tests of subsurface 
conditions at or adjacent to the Site and drawings of physical conditions relating to existing 
surface or subsurface structures at the Site that have been identified in the Supplementary 
Conditions, especially with respect to Technical data in such reports and drawings, and (2) reports 
and drawings related to Hazardous Environmental Conditions, if any, at or adjacent to the Site 
that have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions, especially with respect to Technical 
data in such reports and drawings.  Contractor accepts the determination set forth in the Contract 
Documents of the extent of the technical data contained in such reports and drawings upon which 
Contractor is entitled to rely, if any. 
 
7.5 Contractor has obtained and carefully studied (or assumes responsibility for obtaining and 
carefully studying) all such examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports and studies, 
if any, (in addition to or to supplement those referred to in paragraph 7.4 above) which pertain to 
the subsurface or physical conditions at or adjacent to the Site or otherwise may affect the cost, 



AGREEMENT 
00500-4 

 

progress, performance or furnishing of the Work as Contractor considers necessary for the 
performance or furnishing of the Work at the Contract Price, within the Contract Time and in 
accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents; and no additional 
examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or similar information or data are 
or will be required by Contractor for such purposes. 
 
7.6 Contractor has reviewed and checked all information and data shown or indicated on the 
Contract Documents, if any, with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or adjacent to the 
Site and assumes responsibility for the accurate location of said Underground Facilities.  No 
additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or similar information 
or data in respect of said Underground Facilities are or will be required by Contractor in order to 
perform and furnish the Work at the Contract Price, within the Contract Time and in accordance 
with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
7.7 Contractor has considered the information known to Contractor itself; information commonly 
known to contractors doing business in the locality of the Site; information and observations 
obtained from visits to the Site; the Contract Documents; and the site-related reports and 
drawings identified in the Contract Documents, with respect to the effect of such information, 
observations, and documents on (1) the cost, progress and performance of the work; (2) the 
means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be employed by 
Contractor; and (3) Contractor’s safety precautions and programs.   
 
7.8 Contractor has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations, 
explorations, tests, reports and studies with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents 
and based on the information and observations referred to above, the Contractor agrees that no 
further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, or data are necessary for the 
performance of the work at the Contract Price, within the Contract Times, and in accordance with 
the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
7.9 Contractor has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors or discrepancies that 
Contractor has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution thereof by 
Engineer is acceptable to Contractor. 
 
7.10 Contractor acknowledges that the Contract Documents are generally sufficient to indicate 
and convey an adequate understanding of all terms and conditions for performance and furnishing 
of the Work. 
 
7.11 Contractor’s entry into this Contract constitutes an incontrovertible representation by 
Contractor that without exception all prices in the Agreement are premised upon performing and 
furnishing the Work required by the Contract Documents. 
 
7.12 Contractor is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by Owner and others at 
the Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Contract Documents. 
 
ARTICLE 8. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 
 
The Contract Documents which comprise the entire Agreement between Owner and Contractor 
concerning the Work consist of the following: 
 
8.1 This Agreement consisting of 11 pages. 

        



AGREEMENT 
00500-5 

8.2 Exhibits to this Agreement identified as: 
a. The Project Manual (pages 1 to 416, inclusive);
b. Contractor’s Bid (page 00300-1 to 00300-14, inclusive);
c. Permits (pages ____ to ____, inclusive);
d. Other: ___________________________________________

8.3 Performance Bond and Payment Bond consisting of 3 pages (plus Power of Attorney Forms 
as applicable). 

8.4 Notice of Award and Notice to Proceed. 

8.5 General Conditions consisting of 72 pages. 

8.6 Supplementary Conditions consisting of 6 pages. 

8.7 Bid documents as listed in the table of contents of the Project Manual. 

8.8 Project Specifications not attached hereto but incorporated by the reference consisting of 276 
pages named IFB#22-110 Construction Specification with Appendix. 

8.9 Drawings not attached hereto but are listed in Specifications. 

8.10 Addenda numbers  1  to  2 , inclusive. 

8.11 Contractor’s Bid consisting of 126 pages. 

8.12 Documentation submitted by Contractor prior to Notice of Award. 

8.13 The following which may be delivered or issued after the Effective Date of the Agreement 
and are not attached hereto: All Written Amendments and other documents amending, modifying, 
or supplementing the Contract Documents pursuant to the General Conditions. 

8.14 The documents listed under Article 8 above are attached to this Agreement (except as 
expressly noted otherwise above). 

8.15 Any other document attached hereto or incorporated herein by the Owner. 

There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above in this Article 8.  The Contract 
Documents may only be amended, modified or supplemented as provided in the General 
Conditions. 

Governing Order of Contract Documents - The Contract Documents include various divisions, 
sections and conditions which are essential parts for the work to be provided by the Contractor. A 
requirement occurring in one is as binding as though occurring in all. They are intended to be 
complementary and to describe and provide for a complete work. In case of discrepancy, the 
following precedence will govern the interpretation of the Contract Documents prior to award of 
the contract. 

1. Agreement
2. Addenda
3. Instructions to Bidders
4. Special Conditions



AGREEMENT 
00500-6 

 

5. Supplementary Conditions 
6. General Conditions 
7. Technical Specifications 
8. Details 
9. City Standard Details 
10. Drawings/Plans 
11. Bid Form 

 
After award, Work Change Directives, Change Orders, amendments and revisions to plans and 
specifications will take precedence over any of the above. In case of discrepancy among technical 
specifications, drawings and plans, the most restrictive shall govern. Detailed plans shall have 
precedence over general plans. In the event that any conflicts cannot be resolved by reference to 
this Governing Order of Contract Documents provision, then City shall resolve the conflict in any 
manner which is acceptable to City and which comports with the overall intent of the Contract 
Documents. 
 
 
ARTICLE 9. MISCELLANEOUS. 
 
9.1 Terms. Terms used in this Agreement will have the meanings indicated in the General 
Conditions. 
 
9.2 Assignment. Unless expressly agreed to elsewhere in the Contract documents, no assignment 
by a party hereto of any rights under or interests in the Contract Documents will be binding on 
another party hereto without the written consent of the party sought to be bound; and specifically 
but without limitation moneys that may become due and moneys that are due may not be assigned 
without such consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited by 
law), and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no 
assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under the 
Contract Documents. 
 
9.3 Successors and assigns. Owner and Contractor each binds itself, its partners, successors, 
assigns and legal representatives to the other party hereto, its partners, successors, assigns and 
legal representatives in respect of all covenants, agreements and obligations contained in the 
Contract Documents. 
 
9.4 Severability. Any provision or part of the Contract Documents held to be void or 
unenforceable under any Law or Regulation shall be stricken, and all remaining provisions shall 
continue to be valid and binding upon Owner and Contractor, who agree that the Contract 
Documents shall be reformed to replaced such stricken provision or part thereof with a valid and 
enforceable provisions that comes as close as possible to expressing the intention of the stricken 
provision. 
 
9.5 Public entity crimes. A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list 
following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a Bid on a Contract to provide 
any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a Bid on a Contract with a public entity 
for the construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not be awarded or perform 
Work as a Contractor, Supplier, Subcontractor, or Consultant under a Contract with any public 
entity, and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount 
provided in Section 287.017, Florida Statutes, for Category Two for a period of 36 months from 
the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. 



AGREEMENT 
00500-7 

 

 
9.6 Inspector General.  In accordance with Palm Beach County ordinance number 2011-009, the 
Contract Documents may be subject to investigation and/or audit by the Palm Beach County 
Inspector General.  Contractor should review such ordinance in order to be aware of its rights 
and/or obligations under such ordinance and as applicable. 
 
9.7 Waiver. Failure of either party to enforce or exercise any right(s) under the Contract 
Documents shall not be deemed a waiver of either party’s right to enforce said right(s) at any time 
thereafter. 
 
9.8 Waiver of jury trial. TO ENCOURAGE PROMPT AND EQUITABLE RESOLUTION OF 
ANY LITIGATION, EACH PARTY HEREBY WAIVES ITS RIGHTS TO A TRIAL BY JURY 
IN ANY LITIGATION RELATED TO THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 
 
9.9 Independent Contractor.  The Contractor is, and shall be, in the performance of all Work 
under the Contract Documents, an Independent Contractor, and not an employee, agent, or 
servant of the Owner.  All persons engaged in any of the Work performed pursuant to the 
Contract Documents shall at all times and in all places be subject to the Contractor’s sole 
direction, supervision and control.   
 
9.10 Access and audits. The Contractor shall maintain adequate records to justify all charges, 
expenses, and costs incurred in estimating and performing the Work for at least five (5) years 
after final payment is made.  The Owner shall have access to such books, records, and documents 
as required for the purpose of inspection or audit during normal business hours at the Contractor’s 
place of business.  Under no circumstances will Contractor be required to disclose any 
confidential or proprietary information regarding its products and service costs. 
 
9.11 Preparation. The Contract Documents shall not be construed more strongly against either 
party regardless of who was more responsible for its preparation. 
 
9.12 Public Records Law. Contractor shall comply with Florida’s Public Records Laws, and 
specifically agrees to:  
 

a) Keep and maintain public records required by the Owner to perform the service.  
b) Upon request from the Owner’s custodian of public records, provide the Owner 

with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or 
copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided 
in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes or as otherwise provided by law.   

c)  Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from 
public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by 
law for the duration of the contract term and following completion of the contract 
if the Contractor does not transfer the records to the Owner. 

d)     Upon completion of the contract, transfer, at no cost, to the Owner all public 
records in possession of the Contractor or keep and maintain public records 
required by the Owner to perform the service.  If the Contractor transfers all 
public records to the Owner upon completion of the contract, the Contractor shall 
destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt 
from public records disclosure requirements.  If the Contractor keeps and 
maintains public records upon completion of the Contract, the Contractor shall 



AGREEMENT 
00500-8 

 

meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records.  All records stored 
electronically must be provided to the Owner, upon request from the Owner’s 
custodian of public records, in a format that is compatible with the information 
technology systems of the Owner. 

IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE 
CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS 
RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN 
OF PUBLIC RECORDS OR DESIGNEE AT: ATTENTION CITY 
CLERK, (561) 586-1660 OR 
CITYCLERK@LAKEWORTHBEACHFL.GOV OR 7 NORTH DIXIE 
HIGHWAY, LAKE WORTH BEACH, FL  33460. 

9.13 Enforcement costs. If any legal action or other proceeding is brought for the enforcement of 
the Contract Documents, or because of an alleged dispute, breach, default or misrepresentation in 
connection with any provisions of the Contract Documents, the parties agree that each party shall 
be responsible for its own attorney’s fees.   
9.14 Binding authority. Contractor’s representative below has full power, authority and legal right 
to execute and deliver these Contract Documents and perform all of its obligations under the 
Contract Documents. By signing the Contract Documents, the representative hereby represents to 
the Owner that he/she has the authority and full legal power to execute the Contract Documents 
and any and all documents necessary to effectuate and implement the terms of the Contract 
Documents on behalf of the party for whom he or she is signing and to bind and obligate such 
party with respect to all provisions contained in the Contract Documents. 
9.15 Assignment of warranties. Contractor shall assign to Owner all warranties extended to 
Contractor by material suppliers.  If an assignment of warranty requires the material supplier to 
consent to same, then Contractor shall secure the material supplier’s consent to assign said 
warranties to Owner. 
9.16 Contractor’s certifications.  Contractor certifies that it has not engaged in corrupt, 
fraudulent, collusive, or coercive practices in competing for or in executing the Contract 
Documents.  For the purposes of this paragraph: 

1. “corrupt practice” means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of anything of 
value likely to influence the action of a public official in the bidding process or in the 
Contract execution; 
2. “fraudulent practice” means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a) to 
influence the bidding process or the execution of the Contract Documents to the 
detriment of Owner, (b) to establish Bid or Contract prices at artificial non-competitive 
levels, or (c) to deprive Owner of the benefits of free and open competition;  
3. “collusive practice” means a scheme or arrangement between two or more Bidders, 
with or without the knowledge of Owner, a purpose of which is to establish Bid prices at 
artificial, non-competitive levels; and 
4. “coercive practice” means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, 
persons or their property  to influence their participation in the bidding process or affect 
the execution of the Contract Documents. 

mailto:CITYCLERK@LAKEWORTHBEACHFL.GOV


AGREEMENT 
00500-9 

 

9.17 Construction defects. PURSUANT TO SECTION 558.005, FLORIDA STATUTES, ANY 
CLAIMS FOR CONSTRUCTION DEFECTS ARE NOT SUBJECT TO THE NOTICE AND 
CURE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 558, FLORIDA STATUTES.  
9.18 Delays; Contractor’s remedies. NOTHWITHSTANDING ANY PROVISION 
ELSEWHERE IN THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, NO CLAIM FOR DAMAGES OR ANY 
CLAIM OTHER THAN FOR AN EXTENSION OF TIME SHALL BE MADE OR ASSERTED 
AGAINST OWNER BY REASON OF ANY DELAYS.  Contractor shall not be entitled to an 
increase in the Contract Price or payment or compensation of any kind from Owner for direct, 
indirect, consequential, impact or other costs, expenses or damages, including, but not limited to, 
costs of acceleration or inefficiency, arising because of delay, disruption, interference, or 
hindrance, be it reasonable or unreasonable, foreseeable or avoidable or unavoidable.  Contractor 
shall be entitled only to extensions of the Contract Time as the sole and exclusive remedy for 
such resulting delays, in accordance with and the extent specifically provided herein. 
9.19 Termination for failure to provide Public Construction Bond.  If a Public Construction 
Bond is required under the Construction Documents and the Contractor fails to provide the fully 
executed Public Construction Bond, including a certified copy of the Public Construction Bond as 
recorded in the Official Records for Palm Beach County, within fifteen (15) calendar days after 
the Contractor’s and Owner’s execution of this Agreement, the Owner may immediately 
terminate this Agreement upon written notice to the Contractor and the Owner shall have no 
further obligation to the Contractor under the Contract. In the event of such termination, the 
Contractor shall also forfeit its bid security to the Owner. 
 
9.20  E-Verify. Pursuant to Section 448.095(2), Florida Statutes, beginning on January 1, 2021, 
the CONTRACTOR shall: 

a. Register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of 
all newly hired employees and require all CONTRACTORs (providing services or receiving 
funding under this Agreement) to register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work 
authorization status of all the Contractors’ newly hired employees; 

b. Secure an affidavit from all CONTRACTORs (providing services or receiving 
funding under this Agreement) stating that the CONTRACTOR does not employ, contract with, or 
subcontract with an “unauthorized alien” as defined in Section 448.095(1)(k), Florida Statutes; 

c. Maintain copies of all CONTRACTOR affidavits for the duration of this 
Agreement and provide the same to the City upon request; 

d. Comply fully, and ensure all CONTRACTORs comply fully, with Section 448.095, 
Florida Statutes;  

e. Be aware that a violation of Section 448.09, Florida Statutes (Unauthorized aliens; 
employment prohibited) shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement; and, 

f.  Be aware that if the City terminates this Agreement under Section 448.095(2)(c), 
Florida Statues, the CONTRACTOR may not be awarded a contract for at least 1 year after the date 
on which the Agreement is terminated and will be liable for any additional costs incurred by the 
City as a result of the termination of the Agreement. 
 
9.21  Scrutinized Companies. CONTRACTOR certifies that it and its subcontractors are not on 
the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List and are not engaged in the boycott of Israel.  
Pursuant to section 287.135, Florida Statutes, the City may immediately terminate this Agreement 
at its sole option if the CONTRACTOR or any of its subcontractors are found to have submitted a 
false certification; or if the CONTRACTOR or any of its subcontractors, are placed on the 
Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List or is engaged in the boycott of Israel during the term 
of this Agreement. 
 



AGREEMENT 
00500-10 

 

a) If this Agreement is for one million dollars or more, the CONTRACTOR certifies that it 
and its subcontractors are also not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan 
List, Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or 
engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria as identified in Section 287.135, Florida 
Statutes.  Pursuant to Section 287.135, the City may immediately terminate this Agreement 
at its sole option if the CONTRACTOR, or any of its subcontractors are found to have 
submitted a false certification; or if the CONTRACTOR or any of its subcontractors are 
placed on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, or Scrutinized 
Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or are or have been 
engaged with business operations in Cuba or Syria during the term of this Agreement. 

b) The CONTRACTOR agrees to observe the above requirements for applicable subcontracts 
entered into for the performance of work under this Agreement. 

c) The CONTRACTOR agrees that the certifications in this section shall be effective and 
relied upon by the CITY for the term of this Agreement, including any and all renewals. 

d) The CONTRACTOR agrees that if it or any of its subcontractors’ status changes in regards 
to any certification herein, the CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify the CITY of the 
same. 

e) As provided in Subsection 287.135(8), Florida Statutes, if federal law ceases to authorize 
the above-stated Contracting prohibitions then they shall become inoperative. 

 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS 



AGREEMENT 
00500-11 

 

       IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Owner and Contractor have signed this Agreement in four parts.  
Two counterparts have been delivered to Owner, and one counterpart each to Contractor and 
Engineer.  All portions of the Contract Documents have been signed or identified by Owner and 
Contractor or by Engineer on their behalf. 
 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 

 

      By: _____________________________ 
            Betty Resch, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:                                                                       
                                                          
By: __________________________                 
      Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk                           
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND                          APPROVED FOR FINANCIAL         
LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:                                        SUFFICIENCY 
 
By: __________________________                  By: ____________________________ 
      Glen J. Torcivia, City Attorney                        Bruce T. Miller, Financial Services Director 
 
    

CONTRACTOR:   
 
 
      By: __________________________________ 
 
[Corporate Seal]    Print Name: ___________________________ 
 
      Title: _________________________________ 
STATE OF _________________)  
COUNTY OF __________________)  
 

THE FOREGOING instrument was acknowledged before me by means of �physical 
presence or �online notarization on this ____ day of ______________ 2022, by 
________________________, as the ________________________ [title] of 
__________________________________ [vendor’s name], a 
______________________________ [corporate description], who is personally known to me or 
who has produced_________________________ as identification, and who did take an oath that 
he or she is duly authorized to execute the foregoing instrument and bind the CONTRACTOR to 
the same.   
 
 

____________________________________ 
Notary Public Signature 

Notary Seal:     
 



 
 

OPINION OF ATTORNEY 
November 2018        00501-1 

            City of Lake Worth Beach  
IFB #22-110  

Canal Transmission Substation Construction   
 

 
                
 
 
 
 
 
 

00501 
OPINION OF ATTORNEY 

 
 
 
 This is to certify that I have examined the attached Contract Documents, that after such examination I 
am of the opinion that the execution of the Agreement, the Performance Bond and Payment Bond are in 
due and proper form. 
 
 
 
 
 
                         
            Attorney for Owner 
 
 
 
 
 
 This the __________ day of ___________________________, 20_____. 
 
 



CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 
PAYMENT AND PERFORMANCE BOND 

(Pursuant to secs. 255.05 and 337.18, Fla. Stat.) 
 

Surety Bond No. __________  
   

Any singular reference to Contractor, Surety, Owner or other party shall be considered plural where applicable. 
 
CONTRACTOR:     SURETY: 
Name:       Name: 
Principal Business Address:    Principal Business Address 
 
Telephone Number:     Telephone Number: 
 
OWNER: 
City of Lake Worth Beach 
7 North Dixie Highway 
Lake Worth Beach, FL  33460 
(561) 586-1600 
 
CONTRACT: 
Date: 
Amount: 
Description (Name and Location):  
 
BOND 
Date (Not earlier than Contract Date): 
Amount: 
Modifications to this Bond Form: 
 
This Bond is issued in favor of the City of Lake Worth Beach/Owner conditioned on the full and faithful 

performance of the Contract. 

1. Contractor has entered into Project No. ___________________ with the City for the project titled 

“_____________________________” (the “Contract”), with conditions and provisions as are further 

described in the aforementioned Contract, which Contract, including all of its attachments, exhibits and 

incorporated documents (hereinafter, collectively, the “Contract Documents”) is by reference made a part 

hereof for the purposes of explaining this bond. 

2. Principal and Surety are bound to the Owner in the sum of the Contract Amount set forth above for 

payment of which we bind ourselves, our heirs, personal representatives, successors, and assigns, jointly 

and severally. 

3. THE CONDITION OF THIS BOND is that if Principal: 



 a. Performs the Work required of and in accordance with the Contract Documents at the 

times and in the manner prescribed in the Contract Documents, which are made a part of this bond by 

reference; and 

 b. In accordance with sec. 255.05 and sec. 337.18, Florida Statutes, promptly makes payment 

s to all persons, defined in sec. 713.01, Florida Statutes, who furnish labor, services or materials for 

prosecution of the work set forth in the Contract Documents described above; and 

 c. Pays Owner all losses, damages (including liquidated damages), expenses, costs, an d  

p ro f e s s io na l  f ee s ,  i n c l ud i n g  b u t  no t  l imi t ed  t o  a ttorneys’ fees, including appellate 

proceedings, that Owner sustains because of a default by Principal under the Contract Documents; and 

 d. Performs the war ran ty  and  guarantee of all work and materials furnished under the 

Contract D o c u m e n t s  for the time specified in the Contract Documents, then this bond is void; otherwise it 

remains in full force. 

4.      Section 255.05, Fla. Stat., as amended, together with all notice and time provisions contained therein, 

is incorporated herein by reference. 

5. Any action instituted by a claimant under this bond for payment must be in accordance with the 

notice and time limitation provisions in secs. 255.05(2) and (10), Fla. Stat., and those of sec. 337.18, Fla. Stat. 

6.        Any changes in or under the Contract D ocuments and compliance or noncompliance with any 

formalities connected with the Contract Documents or the changes does not affect Surety's obligation under 

this bond, and Surety waives notice of such changes. 

7. Principal and Surety expressly acknowledge that any and all provisions relating to consequential, delay 

and liquidated damages contained in the contract are expressly covered by and made a part of this Performance, 

Labor and Material Payment Bond.  Principal and Surety acknowledge that any such provisions lie within their 

obligations and within the policy coverages and limitations of this instrument. 

8. Any action brought under this instrument shall be brought in the state court of competent jurisdiction in 

Palm Beach County, Florida, and not elsewhere. 



Surety and Contractor, intending to be legally bound hereby, subject to the terms included herein and as 
required under Florida Statutes, do each cause this Performance and Payment Bond to be duly executed on 
its behalf by its authorized officer, agent, or representative. 
 
Signed and sealed this _______ day of ______________________________, 2022. 
 
 
_________________________________  __________________________________ 
Witness      Principal 
 
       __________________________________ 
       Title 
 

(Corporate Seal) 
 
_________________________________  __________________________________ 
Witness      Surety 
 
       __________________________________ 
       Attorney-in-Fact 
       (Attach Power of Attorney) 

 
__________________________________ 

       Print Name 
 
       (Corporate Seal) 
 
 



 
 

NOTICE OF COMPLIANCE 
November 2018 00630-1 

City of Lake Worth Beach  
IFB #22-110  

Canal Transmission Substation Construction   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SECTION 00630 
NOTICE OF COMPLIANCE WITH CHAPTER 556, FLORIDA STATUTES 

 
 
 
The undersigned Contractor does hereby confirm to the Owner and Engineer that the Contractor has 
reviewed the provisions of Chapter 556, Florida Statutes, and has provided to “Sunshine State One-Call of 
Florida, Inc.” the information required under F.S. 556.105 before the commencement of any excavation or 
demolition required for the Work. 
 
 Executed this    day of       , 20  . 
 
 
                         
 (name of Contractor) 
 
    
 (signature) 
 
   
 (print name) 
 
   
 (title) 
 
 
 
 

END OF SECTION 
 



 
 

CONTRACTOR’S AFFIDAVIT TO OWNER 
November 2018         00670-1 

City of Lake Worth Beach  
IFB #22-110  

Canal Transmission Substation Construction   
 

00670 
CONTRACTOR'S AFFIDAVIT TO OWNER 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF         
 
   Before me, the undersigned authority, authorized to administer oaths and take acknowledgements, personally 
appeared               , who, being by me first duly sworn, on oath 
depose(s) and say(s): 
 
 (1) He/she is/They are a (Corporation, Partnership or Individual) of      (State), doing 
business as            (Company Name), hereinafter called "Contractor". 
 
 (2) Contractor heretofore entered into a Contract with           hereinafter called 
"Owner" to do Work (furnish material, labor and services) for the construction of 
         , located at       County, Florida.  
 

(3) Contractor has fully completed construction in accordance with the terms of the Contract, and all lienors have 
been paid in full, except: 

 
 NAME OF LIENOR                                     AMOUNT DUE AND UNPAID 
 
                                                          $ 
 
 (4) All Workmen's Compensation claims have been settled and no liability claims are pending, in connection 
with, arising out of or resulting from the Contract. 
 
 (5) Receipt by the Contractor of the final payment, under the aforementioned Contract, shall constitute a full 
release and discharge by the Contractor to the Owner of any and all claims of the Contractor against the Owner, arising 
out of, connected with, or resulting from performance of the obligations of the Contractor pursuant to the Contract 
Documents. 
 
 (6) The term "lienor" as used in this affidavit means any person having a lien or a prospective lien, under the 
Mechanics Lien Law of Florida, on the land and property of the Owner referred to in paragraph (2) of this affidavit. 
 
  (7) This affidavit is given pursuant to the provisions of Florida Statutes Section 713.06 or Section 255.05, 
whichever is applicable.  
Signed and sealed in the presence of: 
 
                            
(ENTITY) 
      By: __________________________________ 
 
[Corporate Seal]     Print Name: ___________________________ 
 
      Title: _________________________________ 
STATE OF _________________)  
COUNTY OF __________________)  
 

THE FOREGOING instrument was acknowledged before me by means of �physical presence or �online 
notarization on this ____ day of ______________ 2022, by ________________________, as the 
________________________ [title] of __________________________________ [vendor’s name], a 
______________________________ [corporate description], who is personally known to me or who has 
produced_________________________ as identification, and who did take an oath that he or she is duly authorized 
to execute the foregoing instrument and bind the CONTRACTOR to the same.   
 

____________________________________ 
Notary Public Signature 

Notary Seal:       



 
 

APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT 
November 2018     00680-1 

00680 
APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT NO. _____________ 

 
Project:  IFB #22-110 Canal Transmission Substation Construction   
                        
 
Application is made for payment, as hereinafter shown, in connection with this Agreement: 
  
 Total Work to Date - see attached schedule $   
 Work performed from                                                                 _______________(date) to _____________(date) 
 Total Material Suitably Stored - see attached schedule $   
 Gross Amount Due  $   
 Less ________ % Retainage  $   
 Amount Due to Date  $   
 Less Previous Applications  $   
 Amount Due This Application  $   
     
 Original Contract Price  $   
 Net Change Orders  $   
 Current Contract Price  $   
 Value of Work Remaining to be Done  $   
     
Contractor's Certification: 
The undersigned Contractor certifies that (1) all previous progress payments received from Owner on account of Work 
done under the Agreement referred to above have been applied to discharge in full all obligations of Contractor 
incurred in connection with Work covered by prior Applications for Payment numbered 1 through _______, inclusive; 
and (2) title to all materials and equipment incorporated in said Work or otherwise listed in or covered by this 
Application for Payment will pass to Owner at time of payment free and clear of all liens, claims, security interests 
and encumbrances (except such as covered by Bond acceptable to Owner). 
 
Dated                             , 20                 
        Contractor and Mailing Address 
 
        By         
         (Name and Title) 
STATE OF _________________)  
COUNTY OF __________________)  
 

THE FOREGOING instrument was acknowledged before me by means of �physical presence or �online 
notarization on this ____ day of ______________ 2022, by ________________________, as the 
________________________ [title] of __________________________________ [vendor’s name], a 
______________________________ [corporate description], who is personally known to me or who has 
produced_________________________ as identification, and who did take an oath that he or she is duly authorized 
to execute the foregoing instrument and bind the CONTRACTOR to the same.   
 

____________________________________ 
Notary Public Signature 

Notary Seal: 
 
               
Payment of the above AMOUNT DUE THIS APPLICATION is recommended. 
 
        Power Engineers, Inc. 
 
Date:        By:         
       (Name)    (Title) 
 
      CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 
Date:       By       
       (Name)    (Title) 
 



 
 

SCHEDULE OF VALUES AND WORK COMPLETED 
November 2018 00681 

00681 
 

SCHEDULE OF VALUES AND WORK COMPLETED 
 

PROJECT TITLE: IFB #22-110 Canal Transmission Substation Construction   
 
                                                                                   
 
CONTRACTOR                                                                                                                                        
 
FOR PERIOD ENDING                                                                                                                
 
TO ACCOMPANY APPLICATION NO.                                                                                              
 

ITEM CONTRACTOR’S Schedule of Values Work Completed 

 Unit Price Quantity Amount  Quantity Amount 

 $  $  $ 
      

 NOTE: CONTRACTOR SHALL PREPARE APPROPRIATE SCHEDULE WITH ALL CONTRACT ITEMS 

      

SHOWN FOR ATTACHMENT TO EACH APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT. 

      

    Total 
 (Original Contract) $    

C.O. No. 1 
      

C.O. No. 1   NOTE: CHANGE ORDER(S) SHALL BE ITEMIZED AS APPLICABLE.  
      

 
 TOTAL WORK TO DATE $____________ 
 
 

MATERIALS SUITABLY STORED 
 
 

NOTE: CONTRACTOR TO ITEMIZE AND ATTACH APPROPRIATE INVOICES 
 
 TOTAL MATERIAL SUITABLY STORED $____________ 
 
 
Accompanying Documentation (Contractor to itemize): 
 



















































































































































 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS 
07/01/2016      00800-1 

00800 
SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS 

 
 
These Supplementary Conditions amend or supplement the Standard General Conditions of the 
Construction Contract, EJCDC C-700 (2013 Edition) and other provisions of the Contract Documents as 
indicated below.  All provisions which are not so amended or supplemented remain in full force and effect.  
The General Conditions may also be supplemented elsewhere in the Contract Documents.  
 
The terms used in these Supplementary Conditions which are defined in the Standard General Conditions 
of the Construction Contract, EJCDC C-700 (2013 Edition) have the meanings assigned to them in the 
General Conditions. 
 
PART 1 - MODIFICATIONS AND SUPPLEMENTS TO GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 
 
SC-2.01 Delivery of Bonds and Evidence of Insurance 
 

Delete paragraph 2.01 C. of the General Conditions in its entirety and insert the following in its 
place: 

 
C. This subsection is not needed. 

 
 
SC-3.03 Reporting and Resolving Discrepancies 
 
 Delete the paragraph 3.03 A.3 in its entirety and insert the following in its place: 
 
 3. Contractor shall not be liable to Owner or Engineer for failure to report any conflict, error, 

ambiguity, or discrepancy in the Contract Documents unless Contractor had actual knowledge thereof 
or unless Contractor reasonably should have known of such conflict, error, ambiguity or discrepancy. 

 
SC-4.01 Commencement of Contract Time; Notice to Proceed 

 
Delete the last sentence of paragraph 4.01 A. of the General Conditions and insert the following 
in its place: 

 
In no event will the Contract Time commence to run later than the  120th  day after the day of the 
Bid opening or the thirtieth day after the Effective Date of the Agreement, whichever date is earlier, 
unless agreed otherwise by Owner and Contractor in writing. 

 
SC-5.03 Subsurface and Physical Conditions 
 

Delete paragraphs 5.03 A. and 5.03 B. in of the General Conditions in their entirety and insert 
the following in their place: 

 
5.03 Subsurface and Physical Conditions 
 
A. Reports and Drawings: Division 1: General Requirements of the Specifications shall identify those 
reports known to Owner of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or adjacent to the site and 
drawings known to Owner of physical conditions relating to existing surface or subsurface structures 
at the site that have been utilized by Engineer in preparation of the Contract Documents.  Contractor 
may rely upon the accuracy of any Technical Data contained in such reports that is specifically 
referenced in Division 1: General Requirements as Technical Data that can be relied on by Contractor.  
Except as indicated above, Contractor shall have full responsibility with respect to subsurface and 
physical conditions at the site. 

 
B. Contractor may rely on the technical data as set forth in subsection A above, but such reports and 
drawings are not Contract Documents.  Except for such reliance on Technical Data, Contractor may 



 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS 
07/01/2016      00800-2 

not rely upon or make any claim against Owner or Engineer, or any of their officers, directors, members, 
partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors, with respect to:  
 

1. The completeness of such reports and drawings for Contractor’s purposes, including, but not 
limited to, any aspects of the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of 
construction to be employed by Contractor, and safety precautions and programs incident 
thereto; or 

2. Other data, interpretations, opinions, and information contained in such reports or shown or 
indicated in such drawings; or 

3. Any Contractor interpretation of or conclusion drawn from any Technical data or any such 
other data, interpretations, opinions, or information. 

 
 
SC-5.06 Hazardous Environmental Conditions at Site 
 

Delete paragraphs 5.06 A., 5.06 B. and 5.06 I. in of the General Conditions in their entirety and 
insert the following in their place: 
 
A. No reports or drawings related to Hazardous Environmental Conditions at the Site are known to 

Owner. 
B. This subsection is not needed. 
I. This subsection is not needed. 
 

 
SC-6.01 Performance, Payment and Other Bonds 
 
 Add the following language at the end of Paragraph 6.01 A.: 
 

In accordance with section 255.05(1), Fla. Stat., as amended from time to time, before commencing the 
Work or before recommencing the Work after a default or abandonment, the Contractor shall execute 
and record in the public records of Palm Beach County a payment and performance bond with a surety 
insurer authorized to do business in the State of Florida, and the Contractor shall be required to provide 
to the Owner a certified copy of the recorded bond.  The Owner may not make a payment to the 
Contractor until the Contractor has complied with section 255.05(1)(b), Fla. Stat.   

 
 
SC-6.02 Insurance – General Provisions 
 
 Add the following language at the end of Paragraph 6.02 C.: 
 
Contractor shall deliver the required certificates of insurance prior to the commencement of any Work at 
the site.  All of the policies of insurance (or the certificates or other evidence thereof) required to be 
purchased and maintained by Contractor shall be “claims made” and contain the name of the Project.  
 
SC-6.03 Contractor’s Insurance 
 

Delete the following language in Paragraph 6.03 G.: 
 
G. Additional insureds: The Contractor’s commercial general liability, automobile liability, umbrella 
or excess, and pollution liability policies shall include and list as additional insureds Owner and 
Engineer, and any individuals or entities identified in the Supplementary Conditions; include coverage 
for the respective officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and 
subcontractors of each and any of all such additional insureds; and the insurance afforded to these 
additional insureds shall provide primary coverage for all claims covered thereby (including as 
applicable those arising from both ongoing and completed operations) on a non-contributory basis. 
Contractor shall obtain all necessary endorsements to support these requirements. 
 
Add the following new paragraph immediately after Paragraph 6.03 J.: 



 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS 
07/01/2016      00800-3 

 
K. The limits of liability for the insurance required by Paragraph 6.03 of the General Conditions shall 
provide coverage for not less than the following amounts or greater where required by Laws and 
Regulations: 

 
1. Worker's Compensation, and related coverages under Paragraphs 6.03 A.1. and 6.03 A.2. of 

the General Conditions: 
 

  State: Statutory 
 
  Applicable Federal (e.g. Longshoreman's and Harbor 

         Workers' Compensation, Maritime, Jones Act, etc.): Statutory 
    

 
  Employer’s liability: 
 
   Bodily injury, each accident $1,000,000 
 
   Bodily injury by disease, each employee $1,000,000 
 
   Bodily injury/disease aggregate $1,000,000 
 
        

2. Contractor’s Commercial General Liability under paragraphs 6.03 B. and 6.03 C. of the 
General Conditions: 

 
General Aggregate $3,000,000 
 
Products and Completed Operations Aggregate $3,000,000 
 
Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000 
 
Each Occurrence (Bodily Injury and Property Damage) $1,000,000 

 
3. Automobile Liability under paragraph 6.03 D. of the General Conditions: 

 
Combined Single Limit of $1,000,000 

 
4. Excess or Umbrella Liability under paragraph 6.03 E. of the General Conditions: 

 
Per Occurrence $If applicable 
 
General Aggregate $If applicable 

 
 
SC-6.04 Owner’s Liability Insurance 
 

Delete paragraphs 6.04 A. and 6.04 B. of the General Conditions in their entirety and insert the 
following in their place: 
 
A. This Subsection is not needed. 
B. This subsection is not needed. 

 
SC-6.05 Property Insurance 

 
Add the following language at the end of paragraph 6.05 C.: 
 
The maximum deductible amount for any insurance required under paragraph 6.05 shall be $5,000.00. 

 



 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS 
07/01/2016      00800-4 

SC-6.06 Waiver of Rights 
 
Delete paragraphs 6.06 B. and 6.06 C. of the General Conditions in their entirety and insert the 
following in their place: 
 
B. This Subsection is not needed. 
C. This subsection is not needed. 

 
SC-7.01 Supervision and Superintendence 

 
Add the following language at the end of paragraph 7.01 B.:  
 

 The superintendent will be Contractor’s representative at the site and shall have authority to act on 
behalf of Contractor.  All communications given to the superintendent shall be as binding as if given to 
Contractor. 
 
SC-7.07 Patent Fees and Royalties 

 
Delete paragraph 7.07 B. and insert the following in its place: 
 

 B. This subsection is not needed.  
 

SC-7.08 Permits 
 
Add the following language at the end of paragraph 7.08 A.:  
 
Contractor shall obtain and pay for the following permits: 
 
1. City of Lake Worth Building Permit.  Include in the bid amount a 3-percent of appropriate items 

permit fee based on the bid cost.  This permit fee amount will be adjusted based on the actual fee 
charged and the difference credited, as applicable. 

2. Any other applicable permits. 
 
SC-7.18 Indemnification 

 
Delete paragraph 7.18 A. and insert the following in its place: 
 
A. Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner and Engineer and their respective officers 

and employees from liabilities, damages, losses, and costs, including, but not limited to, reasonable 
attorney’s fees, to the extent caused by the negligence, recklessness, or intentional wrongful 
misconduct of the Contractor and persons employed or utilized by the Contractor in the 
performance of the Contract Documents. Compliance with any insurance requirements required 
elsewhere in the Contract Documents shall not relieve Contractor of its liability and obligation to 
hold harmless and indemnify the City as set forth in this section.  It is the specific intent of the 
parties hereto that the foregoing indemnification complies with section 725.06, Florida Statutes.  It 
is further the specific intent and agreement of the parties that all of the Contract Documents on this 
Project are hereby amended to include the foregoing indemnification and the required “Specific 
Consideration” therefore. Nothing contained in the Contract Documents shall be construed or 
interpreted as consent by the City to be sued, nor shall the Contract Documents be construed as a 
waiver of sovereign immunity beyond the waiver provided in section 768.28, Fla. Stat., as amended 
from time to time. 

 
SC-10.03 Project Representative 
 
 Add the following new paragraph immediately after paragraph 10.03 A.: 
 

B. On this Project, by agreement with the Owner, Engineer will not furnish a Resident Project 
Representative to represent Engineer at the Site or assist Engineer in observing the progress and 
quality of the Work.  However, if the Engineer does furnish a Resident Project Representative per 



 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS 
07/01/2016      00800-5 

paragraph 10.03 of the General Conditions, the duties, etc. of the representative shall be as provided 
in the Listing of the Duties, Responsibilities and Limitations of Authority of the Resident Project 
Representative as included in the Project Manual.  If Owner designates another representative or 
agent to represent Owner at the Site who is not Engineer’s consultant, agent, or employee, the 
responsibilities and authority and limitations thereon of such other individual or entity shall be 
presented at the Preconstruction Conference or as otherwise set forth in the Project Manual. 

 
SC-10.04 Rejecting Defective Work 
 
 Add the following language at the end of paragraph 10.04 A.: 
 
 A. Engineer also has the authority to disapprove or reject Work which Engineer believes will not 

produce a completed Project that conforms to the Contract documents or that will prejudice the 
integrity of the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated by the 
Contract Documents. 

 
SC-11.04 Change of Contract Price 
 
 Delete paragraphs 11.04 C.2.c. and 11.04 C.2.e. in their entirety and insert the following in their 
place: 
 

c. where one or more tiers of subcontracts are on the basis of Cost of the Work plus a fee and no fixed 
fee is agreed upon, the maximum allowable to Contractor on account of overhead and profit of all 
Subcontractors shall be fifteen percent;  

 
e.    the amount of credit to be allowed by Contractor to Owner for any change which results in a net  

decrease in cost will be the amount of the actual net decrease in cost plus a deduction in Contractor’s 
fee by an amount equal to ten percent of such net decrease; and 
 

SC-13.03 Unit Price Work 
 
 Delete paragraph 13.03 E. in its entirety and insert the following in its place: 
 
 E. Contractor may not make a claim for additional expenses incurred as a result of a difference 

between final quantity of any item(s) of Unit Price Work and the estimated quantity of such item(s) 
in the Contract Documents, unless specifically allowed in the Bid Form.  Any adjustments 
specifically allowed shall be made in accordance with directions in the Bid Form. 

 
SC-16.03 Owner May Terminate for Convenience 
 
 Add the following new paragraph immediately after paragraph 16.03 B.: 
 

C. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds that the Owner wrongfully terminated this Contract, then 
in such event, this Contract shall be deemed terminated for convenience as provided for in this 
paragraph, and the Contractor shall not be entitled to loss of anticipated overhead, profits, or 
revenue, or other economic loss arising out of or resulting from such termination but may be entitled 
to all items as authorized herein. 

 
SC-18.07 Controlling Law 
 

Delete paragraph 18.07 A. in its entirety and insert the following in its place: 
 
A. This Contract is to be governed by the laws of the State of Florida. The venue for any and all legal 

action necessary to enforce the Contract Documents will be in Palm Beach County, Florida.   
 
  
 
PART 2 - ADDITIONAL SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS 
 



 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS 
07/01/2016      00800-6 

1. ATTACHMENTS: 
 
The following forms included in the Project Manual shall be used by Contractor for submittals required by 
the Contract Documents (unless Owner accepts other form): 
 
 a. Construction Payment And Performance Bond (00620). 

 
b. Notice of Compliance with Chapter 556, Florida Statutes (00630). 

 
d. Contractor's Affidavit to Owner (00670). 

 
 e. Form of Application for Payment (00680). 
 

 
END OF SECTION 



 
 

 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

00820-1  
   

00820 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

 
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH PROCUREMENT DIVISION REQUIREMENTS 

 
SPC-1  APPROVAL OF ACCOUNTING SYSTEM 
 

 Except with respect to firm fixed-price contracts, no contract type shall be used unless the 
Purchasing Manager has determined in writing that: 
 
 1) The proposed contractor’s accounting system will permit timely development of 

all necessary cost data in the form required by the specific contract type 
contemplated; and 

 
 2) The proposed contractor’s accounting system is adequate to allocate costs in 

accordance with generally accepted cost accounting principles. 
 
SPC-2  RIGHT TO INSPECT PLANT 
 
The City may, at reasonable times, inspect any part of the plant, place of business, or work site of 
a contractor or subcontractor which is pertinent to the performance of any contact awarded or to 
be awarded by the City. 
 
SPC-3  RIGHT TO AUDIT RECORDS 
 
 1) Audit of Cost or Pricing Data: The City may, at reasonable times and places audit 

the books, documents, papers and records of any contractor who has submitted 
cost or pricing data to the extent that such books, documents, papers and records 
are pertinent to such cost or pricing data. Any person who receives a contract, 
change order or contract modifications for which cost or pricing data is required, 
shall maintain such books, documents, papers and records that pertinent to such 
costs or pricing data for five (5) years from the data of the final payment under 
the contract. 

 
2) Contract Audit: The City shall be entitled to audit the books, documents, papers 

and records of a contractor or a subcontractor at any tier under any negotiated 
contract or subcontract other than a firm fixed-price contract to the extent that 
such books, documents, papers and records are pertinent to the performance of 
such contract or subcontract. Such books, documents, papers and records shall be 
maintained by the contractor for a period of five (5) years from the date of final 
payment under the prime contract and by the subcontractor for a period of five 
(5) years from the date of final payment under the subcontract. 

 
3) Contractor Records: If a contract is being funded in whole or in part by assistance 

from a federal agency, then the contract shall include provisions: 
 

A) Requiring the contractor and subcontractor at any tier to maintain for five 
(5) years from the date of final payment under the contract all books, 
documents, papers and records pertinent to the contract; and 



 
 

 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

00820-2  
   

 
B) Requiring the contractor and subcontractor at any tier to provide to the 

City, the federal grantor agency, the Comptroller General of the United 
States, or any of their duly authorized representatives access to such 
books, documents, papers and records for the purposes of examining. 
Auditing and copying them. 

 
SPC-4  CONTRACTOR’S START OF WORK & CHANGE OF SCOPE 
 
 1) The Contractor shall not perform work without a Purchase Order. 
 
 2) The Contractor shall not work out of scope without a signed, issued change order 

to the purchase order, authorizing the additional work and any change to the 
period of performance (Construction Contract Time). 

 
SPC-5  APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS 
 
 This project is subject to approval and appropriation of funds by the City of Lake Worth 

Beach City Commission.   
 
SPC-6  BUILDING PERMIT FEE  
 
 A building permit fee equal to 3-percent of the accepted bid shall be included in the 

project costs.  See Supplemental Conditions paragraph SC-7.08 for further details.   
 
SPC-7  CONE OF SILENCE 
 
 All communications shall be in accordance with the City of Lake Worth Beach Code of 

Ordinances, Section 2-112(k), Cone of Silence. 
 
SPC-8  ADDITIONAL AND SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS 
 
 Any applicant coming before the City of Lake Worth Beach City Commission for an 

award of a contract with the City and who has made an election campaign contribution in 
an amount that is more than one hundred dollars ($100.00) to any elected official of the 
City Commission, who is a current sitting member of the Commission, must disclose 
such election campaign contribution, verbally and in writing, during the application or 
bidding process and before the award of the contract in accordance with the City of Lake 
Worth Beach Code of Ordinances, Chapter 2, Article XII Code of Ethics, Section 2-
101(2).  All applicants shall complete the City’s Campaign Contribution Statement. 

 



 
 

RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE 
08/30/91          00840-1 

 
00840 

LISTING OF THE DUTIES, RESPONSIBILITIES AND 
LIMITATIONS OF AUTHORITY OF THE 

RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE 
 
 
ENGINEER may furnish a Resident Project Representative (RPR), assistants and other field staff to assist 
ENGINEER in observing performance of the Work of the Contractor.  RPR may only be part time on site, 
and CONTRACTOR shall coordinate with RPR as required in the Contract Documents. 
 
Through on-site observations of the Work in progress and field checks of materials and equipment by the 
RPR and assistants, ENGINEER shall endeavor to provide further protection for OWNER against defects 
and deficiencies in the Work; but, the furnishing of such services will not make ENGINEER responsible 
for or give ENGINEER control over construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures 
or for safety precautions or programs, or responsibility for CONTRACTOR's failure to perform the Work 
in accordance with the Contract Documents. 
 
The duties and responsibilities of the RPR are limited to those of ENGINEER in ENGINEER's agreement 
with the OWNER and in the construction Contract Documents, and are further limited and described as 
follows: 
 
 
A.  GENERAL 
 
RPR is ENGINEER's agent at the site, will act as directed by and under the supervision of ENGINEER, 
and will confer with ENGINEER regarding RPR's actions.  RPR's dealings in matters pertaining to the 
on-site work shall in general be with ENGINEER and CONTRACTOR keeping OWNER advised as 
necessary.  RPR's dealings with subcontractors shall only be through or with the full knowledge and 
approval of CONTRACTOR.  RPR shall generally communicate with OWNER with the knowledge of 
and under the direction of ENGINEER. 
 
 
B.  DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF RPR 
 

1. SCHEDULES:  Review the progress schedule, schedule of Shop Drawing submittals and 
schedule of values prepared by CONTRACTOR and consult with ENGINEER concerning 
acceptability. 

 
2. CONFERENCES AND MEETINGS: Attend meetings with CONTRACTOR, such as precon-
struction conferences, progress meetings, job conferences and other project-related meetings, and 
prepare and circulate copies of minutes thereof. 

 
3. LIAISON: 

 
a.  Serve as ENGINEER's liaison with CONTRACTOR, working principally through 
CONTRACTOR's superintendent and assist in understanding the intent of the Contract 
Documents; and assist ENGINEER in serving as OWNER's liaison with CONTRACTOR when 
CONTRACTOR's operations affect OWNER's on-site operations. 

 
b.  Assist in obtaining from OWNER additional details or information, when required for proper 
execution of the Work. 

 
4. SHOP DRAWINGS AND SAMPLES: 

 
a.  Record date of receipt of Shop Drawings and samples. 

 
b.  Receive samples which are furnished at the site by CONTRACTOR, and notify ENGINEER 
of availability of samples for examination. 

 



 
 

RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE 
08/30/91          00840-2 

c.  Advise ENGINEER and CONTRACTOR of the commencement of any Work requiring a 
Shop Drawing or sample if the submittal has not been approved by ENGINEER. 

 
5. REVIEW OF WORK, REJECTION OF DEFECTIVE WORK, INSPECTIONS AND TESTS: 

 
a.  Conduct on-site observations of the Work in progress to assist ENGINEER in determining if 
the Work is in general proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

 
b.  Report to ENGINEER whenever RPR believes that any Work is unsatisfactory, faulty or 
defective or does not conform to the Contract Documents, or has been damaged, or does not meet 
the requirements of any inspection, test or approval required to be made; and advise ENGINEER 
of Work that RPR believes should be corrected or rejected or should be uncovered for 
observation, or requires special testing, inspection or approval. 

 
c.  Verify that tests, equipment and systems startups and operating and maintenance training are 
conducted in the presence of appropriate personnel, and that CONTRACTOR maintains adequate 
records thereof; and observe, record and report to ENGINEER appropriate details relative to the 
test procedures and startups. 

 
d.  Accompany visiting inspectors representing public or other agencies having jurisdiction over 
the Project, record the results of these inspections and report to ENGINEER. 

 
6. INTERPRETATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS:  Report to ENGINEER when clari-
fications and interpretations of the Contract Documents are needed and transmit to CONTRACTOR 
clarifications and interpretations as issued by ENGINEER. 

 
7. MODIFICATIONS:  Consider and evaluate CONTRACTOR's suggestions for modifications in 
Drawings or Specifications and report with RPR's recommendations to ENGINEER.  Transmit to 
CONTRACTOR decisions as issued by ENGINEER. 

 
8. RECORDS: 

 
a.  Maintain at the job site or ENGINEER's office files for correspondence, reports of job 
conferences, Shop Drawings and samples, reproductions of original Contract Documents 
including all Work Directive Changes, Addenda, Change Orders, Field Orders, additional 
Drawings issued subsequent to the execution of the Contract, ENGINEER's clarifications and 
interpretations of the Contract Documents, progress reports, and other Project related documents. 

 
b.  Record names, addresses and telephone numbers of all CONTRACTORS, subcontractors and 
major suppliers of materials and equipment. 

 
9. REPORTS: 

 
a.  Furnish ENGINEER periodic reports as required of progress of the Work and of 
CONTRACTOR's compliance with the progress schedule and schedule of Shop Drawing and 
sample submittals. 

 
  b.  Consult with ENGINEER in advance of scheduled major tests, inspections or start of 

important phases of the Work. 
 
  c.  Draft proposed Change Orders and Work Directive Changes, obtaining backup material from 

CONTRACTOR and recommend to ENGINEER Change Orders, Work Directive Changes, and 
Field Orders. 

 
d.  Report immediately to ENGINEER and OWNER upon the occurrence of any accident 
witnessed by RPR or that was otherwise made known to RPR. 

 
10. PAYMENT REQUESTS:  Review applications for payment with CONTRACTOR for 
compliance with the established procedure for their submission and forward with recommendations to 



 
 

RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE 
08/30/91          00840-3 

ENGINEER, noting particularly the relationship of the payment requested to the schedule of values, 
Work completed and materials and equipment delivered at the site but not incorporated in the Work. 

 
11. CERTIFICATES, MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION MANUALS:  During the course of the 
Work, verify that certificates, maintenance and operation manuals and other data required to be 
assembled and furnished by CONTRACTOR are applicable to the items actually installed and in 
accordance with the Contract Documents, and have this material delivered to ENGINEER for review 
and forwarding to OWNER prior to final payment for the Work. 

 
 12. COMPLETION: 
 
  a.  Before ENGINEER issues a Certificate of Substantial Completion, submit to CONTRACTOR 

a list of observed items requiring completion or correction. 
 
  b.  Conduct final inspection in the company of ENGINEER, OWNER and CONTRACTOR and 

prepare a final list of items to be completed or corrected. 
 
  c.  Observe that all items on final list have been completed or corrected and make 

recommendations to ENGINEER concerning acceptance. 
 
 
C. LIMITATIONS OF AUTHORITY 
 
Resident Project Representative: 
 

1. Shall not authorize any deviation from the Contract Documents or substitution of materials or 
equipment, unless authorized by ENGINEER. 

 
2. Shall not exceed limitations of ENGINEER's authority as set forth in the Contract Documents. 

 
3. Shall not undertake any of the responsibilities of CONTRACTOR, subcontractors or 
CONTRACTOR's superintendent. 

 
4. Shall not advise on, issue directions relative to or assume control over any aspect of the means, 
methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of construction unless such advice or directions are 
specifically required by the Contract Documents. 

 
5. Shall not advise on, issue directions regarding or assume control over safety precautions and 
programs in connection with the Work. 

 
6. Shall not accept Shop Drawing or sample submittals from anyone other than Contractor. 

 
7. Shall not authorize OWNER to occupy the Project in whole or in part. 

 
8. Shall not participate in specialized field or laboratory tests or inspections conducted by others 
except as specifically authorized by ENGINEER. 

 
 

END OF SECTION 
 
 



CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION FORM 
00850 - 1 

City of Lake Worth Beach 
IFB #22-110 

Canal Transmission Substation Construction  

00850 
CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION STATEMENT 

This solicitation is subject to Section 2-101 of the City of Lake Worth Beach Code of Ordinances regarding 
campaign contributions.    

Sec. 2-101. - Additional and supplemental disclosures requirements. 
(a) Any elected official of the City of Lake Worth Beach, who is a current sitting member of the

city commission and has accepted an election campaign contribution in an amount that is more than
one hundred dollars ($100.00) from an individual or business entity having an interest in a matter
before the city commission in which the city commission will take action, must publicly disclose,
both verbally and in writing, such contribution prior to any discussion or vote on the matter. The
written disclosure must be submitted to the city clerk.

(b) Any applicant coming before the city commission for an award of a contract with the city and who
has made an election campaign contribution in an amount that is more than one hundred dollars
($100.00) to any elected official of the city commission, who is a current sitting member of the
commission, must disclose such election campaign contribution, verbally and in writing, during the
application or bidding process and before the award of the contract.

Vendor to complete: Check which statement applies, fill in the requested information, if applicable, and sign 
below. 

[     ]  Neither the undersigned business nor any of its owners or officers contributed more than $100.00 to the 
campaign of a sitting City Commission member.  [If you checked this statement, you are done and may sign 
below.] 

 [     ]  The undersigned business or one or more of its owners or officers contributed more than $100.00 to the 
campaign of a sitting City Commission member.  All such contributions are listed below and on the attached 
sheet of paper (if more room is needed).  [If you checked this statement, please fill in the information requested 
below and sign below.] 

1. _________________________ contributed a total of $____________ to the campaign of City

Commission member ___________________________________.

2. _________________________ contributed a total of $____________ to the campaign of City

Commission member ___________________________________.

3. _________________________ contributed a total of $____________ to the campaign of City

Commission member ___________________________________.

4. _________________________ contributed a total of $____________ to the campaign of City

Commission member ___________________________________.

Signature: 
I hereby certify that the above statements are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and I understand that 
a false or inaccurate statement may result in the rejection of this bid/proposal/submittal or the immediate 
termination of any resulting agreement with the City of Lake Worth Beach. 

By: _____________________________________ 

X



CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION FORM 
00850 - 2 

Print Name: ______________________________ 

Print Title: _______________________________ 

Print Name of Business: _______________________________________________  

Commissioner/Mayor to complete:  Check which statement applies, fill in the requested information, if 
applicable, and sign below. 

[     ]  Neither the above referenced business nor any of its owners or officers contributed more than $100.00 
to my campaign.  [If you checked this statement, you are done and may sign below.] 

 [     ]  The above referenced business or one or more of its owners or officers contributed more than $100.00 
to my campaign. All such contributions are listed below and on the attached sheet of paper (if more room is 
needed). [If you checked this statement, please fill in the information requested below and sign below.] 

_________________________ contributed a total of $____________ to my campaign. 

_________________________ contributed a total of $____________ to my campaign. 

_________________________ contributed a total of $____________ to my campaign. 

_________________________ contributed a total of $____________ to my campaign. 

Signature: 
I hereby certify that the above statements are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and I understand that 
a false or inaccurate statement may result in the rejection of this bid/proposal/submittal or the immediate 
termination of any resulting agreement with the City of Lake Worth Beach. 

By: _____________________________________ 

Print Name: ______________________________ 

For City Clerk’s Use Only. 

THIS SECTION SHALL BE COMPLETED ONLY IF THERE IS A CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION 
LISTED ABOVE BY THE VENDOR OR COMMISSION MEMBER. 

Applicable campaign contributions were disclosed in writing above, and prior to the award of the contract, the 
following statements were verbally made at the City Commission Meeting on the ____ day of 
____________________, 20___. 

Check all that apply. 

_____ Commissioner/Mayor ________________________ verbally disclosed the campaign 
contribution(s) set forth above. 

_____ Vendor, _____________________________, verbally disclosed the campaign contribution(s) 
set forth above. 

Mohamed Konate

Vice President of Operations

Energy Erectors, Inc.



SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES CERTIFICATION FORM 
00851 - 1 

City of Lake Worth Beach 
IFB #22-110 

Canal Transmission Substation Construction  

00851 
SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES CERTIFICATION FORM 

By execution below, I, _______________________, on behalf of ______________________________ (hereinafter, 
the “Contractor”), hereby swear or affirm to the following certifications:   

The following certifications apply to all procurements: 
1. The Contractor has reviewed section 215.4725, Florida Statutes, section 215.473, Florida Statutes and

section 287.135, Florida Statutes, and understands the same.
2. The Contractor is not on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List nor is the Contractor engaged

in a boycott of Israel.
3. If awarded a contract, the Contractor agrees to require these certifications for applicable subcontracts

entered into for the performance of work/services under this procurement.
4. If awarded a contract, the Contractor agrees that the certifications in this section shall be effective and

relied upon by the City for the entire term of the contract, including any and all renewals.
If the contract awarded hereunder is for one million dollars or more, the following additional certifications apply: 

1. The Contractor is not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List.
2. The Contractor is not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List.
3. The Contractor is not engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria.
4. If awarded a contract, the Contractor agrees to require these certifications for applicable subcontracts

entered into for the performance of work/services under this procurement.
5. If awarded a contract, the Contractor agrees that the certifications in this section shall be effective and

relied upon by the City for the entire term of the contract, including any and all renewals.

CONTRACTOR: 

By: 

Name: ______________________________ Title: _______________________________ 

Date:  _____________________ 

STATE OF _________________)  

COUNTY OF __________________) 

THE FOREGOING instrument was acknowledged before me by means of � �
notarization on this ____ day of ______________ 2022, by ________________________, as the 
________________________ [title] of __________________________________ [vendor’s name], a 
______________________________ [corporate description], who is personally known to me or who has 
produced_________________________ as identification, and who did take an oath that he or she is duly authorized 
to execute the foregoing instrument and bind the CONTRACTOR to the same.   

____________________________________ 

Notary Public Signature 

Notary Seal: 

Mohamed Konate Energy Erectors, Inc.

Mohamed Konate Vice President of Operations

08/10/2022

Florida

Lake

x
15th August Mohamed Konate 

Vice President of Operations Energy Erectors, Inc.
Florida Corporation _____________________________



1 
 

 

                                

                                           INVITATION FOR BID 

                                                              IFB 22-110 

                                                 Addendum No. 1 

                   

 

Canal Transmission Substation Construction 

 

This addendum shall modify, clarify, change, or add information and clarification and become 

part of the above referenced RFP.  

 

 

New Questions Deadline:  

 

Questions Deadline has been extended to July 25, 2022 at 4 p.m. 
 

 

Questions & Answers: 

 

Question 1: I don’t see anything that calls out substation steel and materials other than where 

the contractor is responsible for installation.  Is there someone at CLWB that can tell us if a 

package is involved or if the contractors bidding the installation are supplying the S/S 

equipment/steel, etc.? 

 

Answer 1: Please see section 2A2.2 for the list of Owner supplied material. Steel structures, 

Anchor bolts, and joining hardware for the structures will be provided by CLWB from 

Distran. 

 

Question 2: Does the above project currently have an estimated value and mobilization date? 

 

Answer 2:  Mobilization is as soon as awarded, under contract, and PO cut. Expectation is 

October start. Estimated construction budget is approximately $2,200,000.00.  

 

Question 3: Looking at the canal substation RFB that is currently out – is the 2-mile 138kv t-line 

that ties to this already being built or will that be looking for a contractor soon as well? 

 

Answer 3:  2 of the lines going in to the Transmission Switchyard are provided by FPL and 

only terminations from the awarded bidder from the last pole to the take off structure are 

included in this build. We have no knowledge of FPL bid operations. The 3rd transmission 

line is already existing from our Main Yard Substation to Canal and will only have a 4-pole 



2 
 

job to properly set the tap off this new 138kV station. The tap and poles are not included 

in this scope of work. 

 

Question 4: Would you be interested in receiving a proposal from our company to shoot aerial 

photos by aircraft or by drone of this project? 

 

Answer 4:  This request is not part of the project.  

 

Question 5: My name is Mary Ann Mazzella.  I supply electrical connectors and other Electrical 

components.  Is it possible for me to receive a list of the contractors so I can supply the best 

prices in the market?  Thanks, I’m advance for your assistance. 

 

Answer 5: Plan Holders list is attached to this Addendum.  

 

Question 6: How do I get plans for this project that do not have Review written on it? 

 

Answer 6:  Please see instructions provided in document 00020 Invitation to Bid, second 

paragraph.   

 

Question 7: Is it possible to leave the owner furnished material at the City's warehouse until 

needed on-site? 

 

Answer 7:  Yes, received material is safely stored until contractor is prepared to pick up 

and deliver to construction site. 

 

Question 8: Are there any work hour restrictions? Can we work a 6 x 10 schedule? 

 

Answer 8:  Yes, this is a green site and will not require CLWB supervision as typical for 

live stations. A 6 X 10 is acceptable. 

 

Question 9: Is it acceptable to use the spoils from the retention pond excavation as fill for low 

spots in the new yards? 

 

Answer 9: It is assumed that contractor will bring in all new and clean fill for the yards. 

This should be priced in to the bid. It is possible but not guaranteed that some may be 

used but it is at the discretion of CITY.  

 

Question 10: Can we have locked gate access for security? 

 

Answer 10:  Contractor may install their own fencing/gate and lock the site down when not 

present. The overall property has a locked gate and fence with shared access between 

FPU and CLWB for access to the propane station and our live substation. Contractor can’t 

block access to these two stations. Contractor may chain their lock with the others at the 

main gate there as well.  



3 
 

 

Question 11: Can you please email me the most current plans holders list for the project 

mentioned above? 

 

Answer 11:  Plan Holders list is attached to this Addendum. 

 

Question 12: We are respectfully requesting Q&A to remain open until Monday, July 25th - 5pm 

EST please. 

 

Answer 12:  See above new dedline.   

 

 



Number NameCompany Name Primary Contact First NamePrimary Contact Email

IFB#22-110 Canal Transmission Substation ConstructionCONDUCTOR POWER LLC. Hali halic@conductorpower.com

IFB#22-110 Canal Transmission Substation ConstructionCustom Built Marine Construction Robbie Robbie@custombuiltmarine.com

IFB#22-110 Canal Transmission Substation ConstructionDennis J. Leavy & Associates, Inc. Dave survey@djlasurvey.net

IFB#22-110 Canal Transmission Substation ConstructionEmerald Electrical Consultants LLC Ryan rtruitt@emerald-power.com

IFB#22-110 Canal Transmission Substation ConstructionEnergy Erectors, Inc. Elizabeth ebrown@energyerectors.net

IFB#22-110 Canal Transmission Substation ConstructionEngineered Power Products Inc Michael mike.albers@epprep.com

IFB#22-110 Canal Transmission Substation ConstructionHooper Corporation Rosemary bidepdfl@hoopercorp.com

IFB#22-110 Canal Transmission Substation ConstructionKiewit Energy Group Inc. Charisse charisse.meier@kiewit.com

IFB#22-110 Canal Transmission Substation ConstructionPower Grid Engineering AJ aj.khazami@qualusmail.com

IFB#22-110 Canal Transmission Substation ConstructionPower Line Services, Inc. Nicole bids@powerlinesinc.com

IFB#22-110 Canal Transmission Substation ConstructionPowerserve Technologies,inc. Leonardo LVELOSA@POWERSERVETECH.COM

IFB#22-110 Canal Transmission Substation ConstructionThe LE Myers Company Raymond rrichards@myrgroup.com



1 
 

 

                                
                                           INVITATION FOR BID 

                                                              IFB 22-110 
                                                 Addendum No. 2 

                   
 

Canal Transmission Substation Construction 

 
This addendum shall modify, clarify, change, or add information and clarification and become 
part of the above referenced RFP.  
 
 
Questions & Answers: 
 
Question 1: Will you please provide the camera and microwave pole dimensions, weight, and 
auger size and depth required for embedment? 
 
Answer 1: Microwave pole installation will be completed under a separate contract and not 
included under this scope of work.  Camera poles will be direct embedded ductile iron 
poles (55’, ~2’ diameter, 4,172 lbs, 8’ embedment per pole)   
 
Question 2: Will you please provide Station Single Line Drawing showing all electrical equipment 
to be tested? 
 
Answer 2:  Cable testing requirements are located in section 2F.4 of the specification.  
Equipment testing requirements are located in section 2I.4 & 2I.5.  One line provided for 
relaying/P&C equipment (CTS-138-1L-002-1.PDF) 
 
Question 3: Will you please provide P&C Drawings showing protection and control equipment? 
 
Answer 3:  P&C drawings will be provided after award.  One line provided for relaying/P&C 
equipment (CTS-138-1L-002-1.PDF).  All equipment inside the Relay Vault including relay 
panels will be wired by others.  Contractor will only be responsible with terminating and 
connecting external cables to equipment inside the Relay Vault.  Remote wiring diagrams 
will be provided after award. 
 
Question 4: Will you please provide the Testing & Commissioning specifications? 
 
Answer 4:  One line provided for relaying/P&C equipment.  Testing & commissioning shall 
include all necessary testing required for a fully functional substation.  This includes but 
not limited to breaker trip/close, breaker failure, transmission line end-to-end testing, ect.  



2 
 

Testing & commissioning for the FPL lines will need to be coordinated with FPL for remote 
end stations. 
 
Question 5: Does the P&C Scope include any SCADA, RTAC equipment testing? 
 
Answer 5 SCADA testing to be completed by others and not included in this scope of work. 
 
Question 6: Will there be a circuit schedule provided? 
 
Answer 6:  See attached circuit schedule (CTS-138-CBL-001-0). 
 
Question 7: Did not see a spec. for the multi-conductor cable in the bid docs, will one be 
supplied? 
Answer 7:  See attachment. 
 
Question 8: Is the contractor required to procure the 26KV fused disconnects? 
 
Answer 8:  No.  These will be furnished by others and installed by the contractor. 
 



 

1.1 GENERAL 

Contractor shall furnish and install all connecting wires and cable in strict conformance with the 

applicable Drawings and Specification. The Contractor shall be responsible for all attachment 

materials to complete the installations. All materials and equipment to be used during installation 

of the wire and cable shall be stored so as to protect them from deterioration or damage.  

Electronic data cables for RS-232, RS-485, and COAX shall be provided and installed by the 

Contractor as indicated in the cable schedule. 

1.2 MATERIALS 

1.2.1 Wire type and size for above-grade and conduit run connections shall be determined as 

specified below unless otherwise designated on the Drawings. 

1.2.1.1 Current circuits shall have a minimum size of #10 AWG. 

1.2.1.2 Potential circuits shall have a minimum size of #10 AWG. 

1.2.1.3 Multi-conductor control cable shall be insulated, with an overall jacket, tray 

cable rated and suitable for direct burial and wet/dry locations conforming to, 

NEMA WC-7, WC-8, IEEE-383 and the following specifications: 

1.2.1.3.1 Conductor - Class B stranded soft copper. 

1.2.1.3.2 Primary Insulation – PE or approved insulation material per 

ICEA S-73-532, 0.030" thick, 600V (min.). 

1.2.1.3.3 Color code – All multi-conductor cable shall be color coded per 

ICEA S-73-532, Table E-1. Contractor shall reimburse the 

Owner for any and all engineering changes required to revise 

drawings to reflect any other color scheme. 

1.2.1.3.4 Assembly - For three (3) conductors or more, fillers and 

polyester tape covering (ten percent (10%) minimum overlap) 

shall be applied to form a round cable. 

1.2.1.3.5 Overall jacket - The multiconductor cable shall have a PVC or 

approved material conforming with ICEA S-73-532 outer jacket 

applied over the cabled assembly. 

1.2.1.3.6 Marking - The overall jacket shall be ink printed with 1) number 

and AWG size of conductor(s), 2) 600V, 3) stranding, and 4) 

manufacturer's name. 

1.2.1.4 Coaxial cable for power line carrier  

1.2.1.8.1 Use RG8A/U for all applications. Cable shall meet the following 

criteria: 

1.2.1.8.2 Dielectric material - Polyethylene. 

1.2.1.8.3 Jacket material - black polyvinylchloride, non-contaminating, 

Type IIA, per MIL-C-17. 

1.2.1.8.4 Center Conductor - bare copper. 

1.2.1.8.5 Number of shields - one. 

1.2.1.8.6 Shield braid - bare copper. 

1.2.1.8.7 Max operating temperature range - -40° to +80 degrees C. 



CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH
LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA

CANAL TRANSMISSION
SUBSTATION

CIRCUIT SCHEDULE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REFERENCE DRAWINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
LATEST REV. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
36

AutoCAD SHX Text
37

AutoCAD SHX Text
38

AutoCAD SHX Text
39

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
41

AutoCAD SHX Text
42

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
45

AutoCAD SHX Text
46

AutoCAD SHX Text
47

AutoCAD SHX Text
48

AutoCAD SHX Text
49

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
51

AutoCAD SHX Text
52

AutoCAD SHX Text
53

AutoCAD SHX Text
54

AutoCAD SHX Text
55

AutoCAD SHX Text
56

AutoCAD SHX Text
57

AutoCAD SHX Text
58

AutoCAD SHX Text
59

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
61

AutoCAD SHX Text
62

AutoCAD SHX Text
63

AutoCAD SHX Text
64

AutoCAD SHX Text
65

AutoCAD SHX Text
66

AutoCAD SHX Text
67

AutoCAD SHX Text
68

AutoCAD SHX Text
69

AutoCAD SHX Text
70

AutoCAD SHX Text
71

AutoCAD SHX Text
72

AutoCAD SHX Text
73

AutoCAD SHX Text
74

AutoCAD SHX Text
75

AutoCAD SHX Text
76

AutoCAD SHX Text
77

AutoCAD SHX Text
78

AutoCAD SHX Text
79

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
81

AutoCAD SHX Text
82

AutoCAD SHX Text
83

AutoCAD SHX Text
84

AutoCAD SHX Text
85

AutoCAD SHX Text
86

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
88

AutoCAD SHX Text
89

AutoCAD SHX Text
90

AutoCAD SHX Text
91

AutoCAD SHX Text
92

AutoCAD SHX Text
93

AutoCAD SHX Text
94

AutoCAD SHX Text
95

AutoCAD SHX Text
96

AutoCAD SHX Text
97

AutoCAD SHX Text
98

AutoCAD SHX Text
99

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
101

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
103

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMARKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CTS-138-LDWG-001-0 List of Drawings

AutoCAD SHX Text
CTS-138-CKT-001-0 Circuit Schedule

AutoCAD SHX Text
LATEST REV. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LATEST REV. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LATEST REV. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LATEST REV. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LATEST REV. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LATEST REV. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CTS-138-CBL-001-0.DWG

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text
170415

AutoCAD SHX Text
CTS-138-CBL-001

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
DSGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEI

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEI

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEI

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/9/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/9/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/9/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
NONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DSGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKD

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPD

choopingarner
Text Box
FOR BIDDING PURPOSES ONLY



R CABLE DESCRIPTION 

E CKT. NO. FROM VIA TO FOR REMARKS 

V NO. CND. SIZE APPROX 
 LENGTH 

 

 

 

    Sheet Drawing Number 

 CLWB CIRCUIT SCHEDULE       CANAL TRANSMISSION   SUBSTATION 2                   CTS-138-CBL-001 

 AC-1 Station Service Cnd. 48 Cable Trench Transfer Panel AC Supply 3 1/c 3/0 90 

  Trans. Bank #1     3B 

 

 

 AC-2 Station Service Cnd. 22, Cable Trench Transfer Panel AC Supply 3 1/c 3/0 90 

  Trans. Bank #2     3B 

 

 

 AC-3 ACLC Relay Vault Cnd. Transfer Panel AC Supply 3 1/c 3/0 10 

       3B 

 

 AC-11 Pri. Batt. Charger Relay Vault Cnd., House Tray ACLC #1 AC Supply 1 2/c 10 40 

    

 

   AC-12 Sec. Batt. Charger Relay Vault Cnd., House Tray ACLC #1 AC Supply 1 2/c 10 40 

 

 

 AC-35 DS-M7031 Cond. 16, Cable Trench, ACLC #1 AC Supply 1 3/c 10 270 

   House Tray 

 

   AC-36 DS-M7032 Cond. 50, Cable Trench, ACLC #1 AC Supply 1 3/c 10 180 

   House Tray 

 

 

   AC-37 DS-M7033 Cond. 32, Cable Trench, ACLC #1 AC Supply 1 3/c 10 130 

   House Tray 

 

   AC-38 DS-M7034 Cond. 4, Cable Trench, ACLC #1 AC Supply 1 3/c 10 230 

   House Tray 

 

 AC-39 CB B7001 Cnd. 14, Cable Trench, ACLC #1  AC Supply 1 5/c 10 175 

   House Tray  

 

  



R CABLE DESCRIPTION 

E CKT. NO. FROM VIA TO FOR REMARKS 

V NO. CND. SIZE APPROX 
 LENGTH 

 

 

 

    Sheet Drawing Number 

 CLWB CIRCUIT SCHEDULE       CANAL TRANSMISSION   SUBSTATION 3                   CTS-138-CBL-001 

 AC-40 CB B7002 Cnd. 25, Cable Trench, ACLC #1  AC Supply 1 5/c 10 120 

   House Tray  

 

 AC-41 CB B7003 Cnd. 42, Cable Trench, ACLC #1  AC Supply 1 5/c 10 130 

   House Tray  

 

 AC-42 CB B7003 Cnd. 28, Cable Trench, ACLC #1  AC Supply 1 5/c 10 170 

   House Tray  

 

 AC-44 ACLC #1 House Tray Panel A6  AC Supply 1 2/c 10 50 

    

 

 B7001-1 CB B7001 Cnd. 12, Cable Trench Panel A4 CT Leads 1 5/c 10 200 

   House Tray   

 

 

 B7001-2 CB B7001 Cnd. 12, Cable Trench Panel A1 CT Leads 1 5/c 10 185 

                                           House Tray 

 

 

 B7001-3 CB B7001 Cnd. 12, Cable Trench Panel A4 CT Leads 1 5/c 10 200 

   House Tray 

 

 

 B7001-4 CB B7001 Cnd. 12, Cable Trench Panel A1 CT Leads 1 5/c 10 185 

   House Tray 

 

 

 B7001-5 CB B7001 Cnd. 13, Cable Trench Panel A1 Control 1 12/c 10 200 

 House Tray 

  

  

 B7001-6 CB B7001 Cnd. 13, Cable Trench Panel A1 Control 1 12/c 10 185 

 House Tray 



R CABLE DESCRIPTION 

E CKT. NO. FROM VIA TO FOR REMARKS 

V NO. CND. SIZE APPROX 
 LENGTH 

 

 

 

    Sheet Drawing Number 

 CLWB CIRCUIT SCHEDULE       CANAL TRANSMISSION   SUBSTATION 4                   CTS-138-CBL-001 

 

 B7001-7 CB B7001 Cnd. 12, Cable Trench Panel A1 Control 1 5/c 10 185 

   House Tray 

 

 

 B7001-8 CB B7001 Cnd. 13, Cable Trench Panel A4 Control 1 5/c 10 200 

 House Tray 

 

 

 B7001-9 CB B7001 Cnd. 13, Cable Trench Panel A1 Control 1 5/c 10 185 

 House Tray 

 

  

 B7001-10 CB B7001 Cnd. 13, Cable Trench Panel A4 Control 1 5/c 10 200 

 House Tray 

 

 

 B7002-1 CB B7002 Cnd. 23, Cable Trench Panel A2 CT Leads 1 5/c 10 220 

   House Tray   

 

 

 B7002-2 CB B7002 Cnd. 23, Cable Trench Panel A1 CT Leads 1 5/c 10 210 

                                           House Tray 

 

 

 B7002-3 CB B7002 Cnd. 23, Cable Trench Panel A2 CT Leads 1 5/c 10 220 

   House Tray 

 

 

 B7002-4 CB B7002 Cnd. 23, Cable Trench Panel A1 CT Leads 1 5/c 10 210 

   House Tray 

 

 

  



R CABLE DESCRIPTION 

E CKT. NO. FROM VIA TO FOR REMARKS 

V NO. CND. SIZE APPROX 
 LENGTH 

 

 

 

    Sheet Drawing Number 

 CLWB CIRCUIT SCHEDULE       CANAL TRANSMISSION   SUBSTATION 5                   CTS-138-CBL-001 

   House Tray 

 

 

 B7002-5 CB B7002 Cnd. 24, Cable Trench Panel A2 Control 1 12/c 10 220 

 House Tray 

 

 

 B7002-6 CB B7002 Cnd. 24, Cable Trench Panel A2 Control 1 12/c 10 220 

 House Tray 

 

 

 B7002-7 CB B7002 Cnd. 23, Cable Trench Panel A2 Control 1 5/c 10 220 

 

 

  

 B7002-8 CB B7002 Cnd. 24, Cable Trench Panel A1 Control 1 5/c 10 210 

 House Tray 

 

 

 

 B7002-9 CB B7002 Cnd. 24, Cable Trench Panel A2 Control 1 5/c 10 220 

 House Tray 

 

 

 B7002-10 CB B7002 Cnd. 24, Cable Trench Panel A1 Control 1 5/c 10 210 

   House Tray  

 

 

                 B7003-1 CB B7003 Cnd. 40, Cable Trench Panel A3 CT Leads 1 5/c 10 130 

   House Tray   

 

 

 B7003-2 CB B7003 Cnd. 40, Cable Trench Panel A2 CT Leads 1 5/c 10 125 

                                           House Tray 



R CABLE DESCRIPTION 

E CKT. NO. FROM VIA TO FOR REMARKS 

V NO. CND. SIZE APPROX 
 LENGTH 

 

 

 

    Sheet Drawing Number 

 CLWB CIRCUIT SCHEDULE       CANAL TRANSMISSION   SUBSTATION 6                   CTS-138-CBL-001 

 

 

 B7003-3 CB B7003 Cnd. 40, Cable Trench Panel A3 CT Leads 1 5/c 10 130 

   House Tray 

 

 

 B7003-4 CB B7003 Cnd. 40, Cable Trench Panel A2 CT Leads 1 5/c 10 125 

   House Tray 

 

 

 B7003-5 CB B7003 Cnd. 41, Cable Trench Panel A3 Control 1 12/c 10 130 

 House Tray 

 

 

 B7003-6 CB B7003 Cnd. 41, Cable Trench Panel A3 Control 1 12/c 10 130 

 House Tray 

 

 

 B7003-7 CB B7003 Cnd. 40, Cable Trench Panel A3 Control 1 5/c 10 130 

   House Tray 

 

 

 B7003-8 CB B7003 Cnd. 41, Cable Trench Panel A2 Control 1 5/c 10 125 

 House Tray 

 

 

 

 B7003-9 CB B7003 Cnd. 41, Cable Trench Panel A3 Control 1 5/c 10 130 

 House Tray 

 

 

 

 B7003-10 CB B7003 Cnd. 41, Cable Trench Panel A2 Control 1 5/c 10 125 

   House Tray  



R CABLE DESCRIPTION 

E CKT. NO. FROM VIA TO FOR REMARKS 

V NO. CND. SIZE APPROX 
 LENGTH 

 

 

 

    Sheet Drawing Number 

 CLWB CIRCUIT SCHEDULE       CANAL TRANSMISSION   SUBSTATION 7                   CTS-138-CBL-001 

                B7004-1 CB B7004 Cnd. 26, Cable Trench Panel A3 CT Leads 1 5/c 10 160 

   House Tray   

 

 

 B7004-2 CB B7004 Cnd. 26, Cable Trench Panel A4 CT Leads 1 5/c 10 165 

                                           House Tray 

 

 

 B7004-3 CB B7004 Cnd. 26, Cable Trench Panel A3 CT Leads 1 5/c 10 160 

   House Tray 

 

 

 B7004-4 CB B7004 Cnd. 26, Cable Trench Panel A4 CT Leads 1 5/c 10 165 

   House Tray 

 

  

 B7004-5 CB B7004 Cnd. 27, Cable Trench Panel A4 Control 1 12/c 10 165 

 House Tray 

 

 

 B7004-6 CB B7004 Cnd. 27, Cable Trench Panel A4 Control 1 12/c 10 165 

 House Tray 

 

 

 B7004-7 CB B7004 Cnd. 26, Cable Trench Panel A4 Control 1 5/c 10 165 

   House Tray 

 

 

 B7004-8 CB B7004 Cnd. 27, Cable Trench Panel A3 Control 1 5/c 10 160 

 House Tray 

 

 

 B7004-9 CB B7004 Cnd. 27, Cable Trench Panel A4 Control 1 5/c 10 165 

 House Tray 



R CABLE DESCRIPTION 

E CKT. NO. FROM VIA TO FOR REMARKS 

V NO. CND. SIZE APPROX 
 LENGTH 

 

 

 

    Sheet Drawing Number 

 CLWB CIRCUIT SCHEDULE       CANAL TRANSMISSION   SUBSTATION 8                   CTS-138-CBL-001 

 B7004-10 CB B7004 Cnd. 27, Cable Trench Panel A3 Control 1 5/c 10 160 

   House Tray  

 

 

 CCVT-21 138kV Osborne Line Cnd. 44 138kV Osborne Line Potential 1 5/c 10 30 

  AØ CCVT  CCVT JB 

 

 

 CCVT-22 138kV Osborne Line Cnd. 44A 138kV Osborne Line Potential 1 5/c 10 20 

  BØ CCVT  CCVT JB 

 

 

 

 CCVT-23 138kV Osborne Line Cnd. 45 138kV Osborne Line Potential 1 5/c 10 30 

  CØ CCVT  CCVT JB 

 

 

 CCVT-24 138kV Osborne Line Cnd. 98, Cable Trench, Line Tuning JB Coax   RG58 10 

  BØ CCVT House Tray  

    

 

 

 CCVT-25 138kV Osborne Line Cnd. 43, Cable Trench, Panel A2 Coax                                                   RG58       135 

  Tuning JB House Tray  

 

 

 

 CCVT-26 138kV Osborne Line Cnd. 46, Cable Trench, Panel A2 Potential 1 5/c 10 130 

  CCVT’s JB House Tray  

    

 

 

 CCVT-27 138kV Osborne Line Cnd. 46, Cable Trench, Panel A2 Potential 1 5/c 10 130 

  CCVT’s JB House Tray  



R CABLE DESCRIPTION 

E CKT. NO. FROM VIA TO FOR REMARKS 

V NO. CND. SIZE APPROX 
 LENGTH 

 

 

 

    Sheet Drawing Number 

 CLWB CIRCUIT SCHEDULE       CANAL TRANSMISSION   SUBSTATION 9                   CTS-138-CBL-001 

 CCVT-31 138kV CDS Line Cnd. 30 138kV CDS Line Potential 1 5/c 10 30 

  AØ CCVT  CCVT JB 

 

 

 CCVT-32 138kV CDS Line Cnd. 30A 138kV CDS Line Potential 1 5/c 10 20 

  BØ CCVT  CCVT JB 

 

 

 

 CCVT-33 138kV CDS Line Cnd. 29 138kV CDS Line Potential 1 5/c 10 30 

  CØ CCVT  CCVT JB 

 

 

 

 CCVT-36 138kV CDS Line Cnd. 31, Cable Trench, Panel A3 Potential 1 5/c 10 160 

  CCVT’s JB House Tray  

    

 

 

 CCVT-37 138kV CDS Line Cnd.31, Cable Trench, Panel A3 Potential 1 5/c 10 160 

  CCVT’s JB House Tray  

 

 

 

 CCVT-41 138kV Main Line Cnd. 2 138kV Main Line Potential 1 5/c 10 30 

  AØ CCVT  CCVT JB 

 

 

 CCVT-42 138kV Main Line Cnd. 1A 138kV Main Line Potential 1 5/c 10 20 

  BØ CCVT  CCVT JB 

 

 

 CCVT-43 138kV Main Line Cnd. 1 138kV Main Line Potential 1 5/c 10 30 

  CØ CCVT  CCVT JB 



R CABLE DESCRIPTION 

E CKT. NO. FROM VIA TO FOR REMARKS 

V NO. CND. SIZE APPROX 
 LENGTH 

 

 

 

    Sheet Drawing Number 

 CLWB CIRCUIT SCHEDULE       CANAL TRANSMISSION   SUBSTATION 10                   CTS-138-CBL-001 

 CCVT-46 138kV Main Line Cnd. 3, Cable Trench, Panel A4 Potential 1 5/c 10 230 

  CCVT’s JB House Tray  

    

 

 

 CCVT-47 138kV Main Line Cnd.3, Cable Trench, Panel A4 Potential 1 5/c 10 230 

  CCVT’s JB House Tray  

 

 

 

 CCVT-51 138kV Ranch Line Cnd. 17 138kV Ranch Line Potential 1 5/c 10 30 

  AØ CCVT  CCVT JB 

 

 

 

 CCVT-52 138kV Ranch Line Cnd. 17A 138kV Ranch Line Potential 1 5/c 10 20 

  BØ CCVT  CCVT JB 

 

 

 

 CCVT-53 138kV Ranch Line Cnd. 18 138kV Ranch Line Potential 1 5/c 10 30 

  CØ CCVT  CCVT JB 

 

 

 

 CCVT-54 138kV Ranch Line Cnd. 19, Cable Trench, Line Tuning JB Coax   RG58 10 

  BØ CCVT House Tray  

    

 

 

 CCVT-55 138kV Ranch Line Cnd. 20, Cable Trench, Panel A1 Coax                                                    RG58       235 

  Tuning JB House Tray  

 

 



R CABLE DESCRIPTION 

E CKT. NO. FROM VIA TO FOR REMARKS 

V NO. CND. SIZE APPROX 
 LENGTH 

 

 

 

    Sheet Drawing Number 

 CLWB CIRCUIT SCHEDULE       CANAL TRANSMISSION   SUBSTATION 11                   CTS-138-CBL-001 

 

 CCVT-56 138kV Ranch Line Cnd. 19, Cable Trench, Panel A1 Potential 1 5/c 10 240 

  CCVT’s JB House Tray  

    

 

 

 CCVT-57 138kV Ranch Line Cnd. 19, Cable Trench, Panel A1 Potential 1 5/c 10 240 

  CCVT’s JB House Tray  

  

  

 CDS-1 Panel A4 House Tray, Cable Trench Distr. Yard Bus Diff  1 2/c 10 500 

 Cond. 53       Panel 

 

    

                 CDS-2 Panel A3 House Tray, Cable Trench Distr. Yard Bus Diff  1 2/c 10 500  

 Cond. 53       Panel 

 

  

 CDS-4 Panel A4 House Tray, Cable Trench Distr. Yard Bus Diff  1 2/c 10 500 

 Cond. 53       Panel 

 

 

 CDS-5 Panel A4 House Tray, Cable Trench Distr. Yard Bus Diff  1 2/c 10 500 

 Cond. 53       Panel 

 

  

 COMM-1 Panel A1 House Tray Panel A6 Communication 1 RS232  40 

 

 

 

COMM-2 Panel A1 House Tray Panel A6 Communication 1 RS232  40 

 

 

 



R CABLE DESCRIPTION 

E CKT. NO. FROM VIA TO FOR REMARKS 

V NO. CND. SIZE APPROX 
 LENGTH 

 

 

 

    Sheet Drawing Number 

 CLWB CIRCUIT SCHEDULE       CANAL TRANSMISSION   SUBSTATION 12                   CTS-138-CBL-001 

COMM-3 Panel A1 House Tray Panel A6 Communication 1 RS232  40 

 

 

 

COMM-4 Panel A1 House Tray Panel A6 Clock Signal 1 Coax RG-58 40 

 

 

 

COMM-5 Panel A2 House Tray Panel A6 Communication 1 RS232  35 

 

 

 

COMM-6 Panel A2 House Tray Panel A6 Communication 1 RS232  35 

 

 

 

COMM-7 Panel A2 House Tray Panel A6 Communication 1 RS232  35 

 

 

 

COMM-8 Panel A2 House Tray Panel A6 Connunication 1 Coax RG-58 35 

 

 

 

 COMM-9 Panel A3 House Tray Panel A6 Communication 1 RS232  30 

 

 

 

COMM-10 Panel A3 House Tray Panel A6 Communication 1 RS232  30 

 

 

 

COMM-11 Panel A4 House Tray Panel A6 Communication 1 RS232  25 

 



R CABLE DESCRIPTION 

E CKT. NO. FROM VIA TO FOR REMARKS 

V NO. CND. SIZE APPROX 
 LENGTH 

 

 

 

    Sheet Drawing Number 

 CLWB CIRCUIT SCHEDULE       CANAL TRANSMISSION   SUBSTATION 13                   CTS-138-CBL-001 

 

 

COMM-12 Panel A4 House Tray Panel A6 Communication 1 RS232  25 

 

  

LT1-1 ACLC #1 House tray, Cable Trench WP1 AC Supply 1 2/c 10 80 

 Cond. 59 

 

 

LT1-2 WP1 Cond. 60 WP2 AC Supply 1 2/c 10 135 

 

 

 

LT1-3 WP2 Cond. 61 WP3 AC Supply 1 2/c 10 90 

  

 

 

LT1-4 WP3 Cond. 62 WP4 AC Supply 1 2/c 10 110 

 

 

 

LT1-5 WP4 Cond. 63 WP5 AC Supply 1 2/c 10 125 

 

 

 

LT2-1 ACLC #1 House tray, Cable Trench WP9 AC Supply 1 2/c 10 155 

 Cond. 64 

 

 

LT2-2 WP9 Cond. 65 WP8 AC Supply 1 2/c 10 90 

 

 

 

LT2-3 WP8 Cond. 66 WP7 AC Supply 1 2/c 10 110 



R CABLE DESCRIPTION 

E CKT. NO. FROM VIA TO FOR REMARKS 

V NO. CND. SIZE APPROX 
 LENGTH 

 

 

 

    Sheet Drawing Number 

 CLWB CIRCUIT SCHEDULE       CANAL TRANSMISSION   SUBSTATION 14                   CTS-138-CBL-001 

LT2-4 WP7 Cond. 67 WP6 AC Supply 1 2/c 10 125 

 

 

LT3-1 ACLC #1 House tray, Cable Trench LT1 AC Supply 1 2/c 10 255 

 Cond. 5 

 

 

LT3-2 LT1 Cond. 5, Cable Trench,  LT2 AC Supply 1 2/c 10 200 

 Cond. 15 

 

 

LT4-1 ACLC #1 House tray, Cable Trench LT3 AC Supply 1 2/c 10 155 

 Cond. 49 

 

 

 LT4-2 LT1 Cond. 49, Cable Trench,  LT2 AC Supply 1 2/c 10 150 

 Cond. 33 

   

 

 MET-1 CDS Met. CT AØ Cnd. 38 CDS Met. CT JB Pot. Supply 1 5/c 10 30 

    

 

 

                 MET-2 CDS Met. CT BØ Cnd. 37A CDS Met. CT JB Pot. Supply 1 5/c 10 5 

 

 

                      

 MET-3 CDS Met. CT CØ Cnd. 37 CDS Met. CT JB Pot. Supply 1 5/c 10 30  

 

 

 MET-4 CDS Met. CT JB Cnd. 39, Cable Trench, Panel A3 Pot. Supply 1 5/c 10 150  

 House Tray 

 

 



R CABLE DESCRIPTION 

E CKT. NO. FROM VIA TO FOR REMARKS 

V NO. CND. SIZE APPROX 
 LENGTH 

 

 

 

    Sheet Drawing Number 

 CLWB CIRCUIT SCHEDULE       CANAL TRANSMISSION   SUBSTATION 15                   CTS-138-CBL-001 

 MET-5 Panel A3 House Tray Panel A5 Potential 1 5/c 10 25 

 

 

 

 MET-6 Panel A3 House Tray Panel A5 Potential 1 5/c 10 25 

 

 

 

 MET-7 CDS Met. PT AØ Cnd. 35 CDS Met. PT JB Pot. Supply 1 5/c 10 30 

    

 

 

                 MET-8 CDS Met. PT BØ Cnd. 34A CDS Met. PT JB Pot. Supply 1 5/c 10 5 

 

 

                      

 MET-9 CDS Met. PT CØ Cnd. 34 CDS Met. PT JB Pot. Supply 1 5/c 10 30  

 

 

  

 MET-10 CDS Met. PT JB Cnd. 36, Cable Trench, Panel A3 Pot. Supply 1 5/c 10 150  

 House Tray 

 

 

 MET-11 CDS Met. PT JB Cnd. 36, Cable Trench, Panel A5 Pot. Supply 1 5/c 10 160  

 House Tray 

 

 

 MET-12 CDS Met. PT JB Cnd. 36, Cable Trench, Panel A5 Pot. Supply 1 5/c 10 160 

   House Tray 

 

 

 MET-21 Main Met. CT AØ Cnd. 10 Main Met. CT JB Pot. Supply 1 5/c 10 30 

    



R CABLE DESCRIPTION 

E CKT. NO. FROM VIA TO FOR REMARKS 

V NO. CND. SIZE APPROX 
 LENGTH 

 

 

 

    Sheet Drawing Number 

 CLWB CIRCUIT SCHEDULE       CANAL TRANSMISSION   SUBSTATION 16                   CTS-138-CBL-001 

 

 

                 MET-22 Main Met. CT BØ Cnd. 9A Main Met. CT JB Pot. Supply 1 5/c 10 5 

 

 

                      

 MET-23 Main Met. CT CØ Cnd. 9 Main Met. CT JB Pot. Supply 1 5/c 10 30  

 

 

 MET-24 Main Met. CT JB Cnd. 11, Cable Trench, Panel A4 Pot. Supply 1 4/c 10 150  

 House Tray 

 

 

 MET-25 Panel A4 House Tray Panel A5 Potential 1 5/c 10 20 

 

 

 

 MET-26 Panel A4 House Tray Panel A5 Potential 1 5/c 10 20 

 

 

 

 MET-27 Main Met. PT AØ Cnd. 7 Main Met. PT JB Pot. Supply 1 5/c 10 30 

    

 

 

                 MET-28 Main Met. PT BØ Cnd. 6A Main Met. PT JB Pot. Supply 1 5/c 10 5 

 

 

                      

 MET-29 Main Met. PT CØ Cnd. 6 Main Met. PT JB Pot. Supply 1 5/c 10 30  

 

 

 MET-30 Main Met. PT JB Cnd. 8, Cable Trench, Panel A4 Pot. Supply 1 5/c 10 150  

 House Tray 



R CABLE DESCRIPTION 

E CKT. NO. FROM VIA TO FOR REMARKS 

V NO. CND. SIZE APPROX 
 LENGTH 

 

 

 

    Sheet Drawing Number 

 CLWB CIRCUIT SCHEDULE       CANAL TRANSMISSION   SUBSTATION 17                   CTS-138-CBL-001 

 

 

 MET-31 Main Met. PT JB Cnd. 8, Cable Trench, Panel A5 Pot. Supply 1 5/c 10 160  

 House Tray 

 

 

 MET-32 Main Met. PT JB Cnd. 8, Cable Trench, Panel A5 Pot. Supply 1 5/c 10 160 

   House Tray 

 

 

 MO-1 DS M7034 Cond. 4, Cable Trench Panel A4 Control 1 12/c 10 230 

 House Tray 

 

 

 MO-2 DS M7033 Cond. 32, Cable Trench Panel A3 Control 1 12/c 10 160 

 House Tray 

 

 

 MO-3 DS M7032 Cond. 50, Cable Trench Panel A2 Control 1 12/c 10 110 

 House Tray 

 

 

 MO-5 DS M7031 Cond. 16, Cable Trench Panel A1 Control 1 12/c 10 255 

 House Tray 

 

 

PDC-2 DCLC #1  Pri. Sta. Battery DC Supply 1 1/c 2 35 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   B 

 

 

PDC-2A DCLC #1  Pri. Sta. Battery DC Supply 1 1/c 2 35 

         B 

 

 



R CABLE DESCRIPTION 

E CKT. NO. FROM VIA TO FOR REMARKS 

V NO. CND. SIZE APPROX 
 LENGTH 

 

 

 

    Sheet Drawing Number 

 CLWB CIRCUIT SCHEDULE       CANAL TRANSMISSION   SUBSTATION 18                   CTS-138-CBL-001 

 

PDC-3 Disc. Switch #4  DCLC #1 DC Supply 1 1/c 2 20 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                    B 

 

 

PDC-3A Disc. Switch #4  DCLC #1 DC Supply 1 1/c 2 20 

         B 

 

PDC-4 Disc. Switch #4 Cond. __, House Tray Pri. Batt. Charger  DC Supply 1 1/c 2 40 

          B 

    

             

PDC-4A Disc. Switch #4 Cond. __, House Tray Pri. Batt. Charger  DC Supply 1 1/c 2 40 

          B 

 

 

 PDC-5 Disc. Switch #3  DCLC #1 DC Supply 1 1/c 2 30 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                    B 

 

 

PDC-5A Disc. Switch #3  DCLC #1 DC Supply 1 1/c 2 30 

         B 

 

 

PDC-6 Disc. Switch #3 House Tray Manual Transfer Sw.  DC Supply 1 1/c 2 35 

          B 

    

             

PDC-6A Disc. Switch #3 House Tray Manual Transfer Sw. DC Supply 1 1/c 2 35 

          B 

 

 

 PDC-9 DCLC #1 House Tray Panel A1 DC Supply 1 2/c 10 50 

 



R CABLE DESCRIPTION 

E CKT. NO. FROM VIA TO FOR REMARKS 

V NO. CND. SIZE APPROX 
 LENGTH 

 

 

 

    Sheet Drawing Number 

 CLWB CIRCUIT SCHEDULE       CANAL TRANSMISSION   SUBSTATION 19                   CTS-138-CBL-001 

 

                PDC-10 DCLC #1 House Tray Panel A2 DC Supply 1 2/c 10 35 

 

  

 PDC-11 DCLC #1 House Tray Panel A3 DC Supply 1 2/c 10 35 

 

 

                PDC-12              DCLC #1                        House Tray     Panel A4                     DC Supply                    1       2/c        10         30 

 

 

 PDC-13  DCLC #1 House Tray Panel A5 DC Supply 1 2/c 10 25 

 

 

 PDC-14 DCLC #1 Cond. 32, Cable Trench DS M7033 DC Supply 1 2/c 10 280 

 House Tray 

 

PDC-15  DCLC #1  House Tray Panel A6 DC Supply 1 2/c 10 20 

 

  

 PDC-16 DCLC #1 Cond. 4, Cable Trench DS M7034 DC Supply 1 2/c 10 130 

 House Tray 

 

 PDC-20 CB B7001 Cnd. 14, Cable Trench, DCLC #1  DC Supply 1 2/c 10 185 

   House Tray  

 

 PDC-21 CB B7002 Cnd. 25, Cable Trench, DCLC #1  DC Supply 1 2/c 10 135 

 House Tray 

 

 PDC-22 CB B7003 Cnd. 42, Cable Trench, DCLC #1  AC Supply 1 2/c 10 140 

 

 

 PDC-23 CB B7003 Cnd. 28, Cable Trench, DCLC #1  AC Supply 1 2/c 10 140 

 House Tray 

 



R CABLE DESCRIPTION 

E CKT. NO. FROM VIA TO FOR REMARKS 

V NO. CND. SIZE APPROX 
 LENGTH 

 

 

 

    Sheet Drawing Number 

 CLWB CIRCUIT SCHEDULE       CANAL TRANSMISSION   SUBSTATION 20                   CTS-138-CBL-001 

 

 SDC-2 DCLC #2  Sec. Sta. Battery DC Supply 1 1/c 2 40 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   B 

 

SDC-2A DCLC #2  Sec. Sta. Battery DC Supply 1 1/c 2 40 

         B 

 

SDC-3 Disc. Switch #2  DCLC #2 DC Supply 1 1/c 2 10 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                    B 

 

 

SDC-3A Disc. Switch #2  DCLC #2 DC Supply 1 1/c 2 10 

         B 

 

SDC-4 Disc. Switch #2 House Tray Sec. Batt. Charger  DC Supply 1 1/c 2 60 

          B 

    

             

SDC-4A Disc. Switch #2 House Tray Sec. Batt. Charger  DC Supply 1 1/c 2 60 

          B 

 

 

 SDC-5 Disc. Switch #1  DCLC #2 DC Supply 1 1/c 2 30 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                    B 

 

 

 

SDC-5A Disc. Switch #1  DCLC #2 DC Supply 1 1/c 2 30 

         B 

 

 

SDC-6 Disc. Switch #1 House Tray Manual Transfer Sw.  DC Supply 1 1/c 2 35 

          B 

    



R CABLE DESCRIPTION 

E CKT. NO. FROM VIA TO FOR REMARKS 

V NO. CND. SIZE APPROX 
 LENGTH 

 

 

 

    Sheet Drawing Number 

 CLWB CIRCUIT SCHEDULE       CANAL TRANSMISSION   SUBSTATION 21                   CTS-138-CBL-001 

             

SDC-6A Disc. Switch #1 House Tray Manual Transfer Sw. DC Supply 1 1/c 2 35 

          B 

 

 

 SDC-9 DCLC #2 House Tray Panel A1 DC Supply 1 2/c 10 50 

     

 

 

                SDC-10 DCLC #2 House Tray Panel A2 DC Supply 1 2/c 10 45 

 

 

 

 SDC-11 DCLC #2 House Tray Panel A3 DC Supply 1 2/c 10 40 

 

 

 

 SDC-12 DCLC #2 House Tray Panel A4 DC Supply 1 2/c 10 35 

 

 

 

 SDC-13 DCLC #2 House Tray Panel A5 DC Supply 1 2/c 10 30 

  

 

 

                SDC-14 DCLC #2 Cond. 16, Cable Trench DS M7031 DC Supply 1 2/c 10 280 

 House Tray 

 

 

 SDC-16 DCLC #2 Cond. 50, Cable Trench DS M7032 DC Supply 1 2/c 10 130 

 House Tray 

 

 

 



R CABLE DESCRIPTION 

E CKT. NO. FROM VIA TO FOR REMARKS 

V NO. CND. SIZE APPROX 
 LENGTH 

 

 

 

    Sheet Drawing Number 

 CLWB CIRCUIT SCHEDULE       CANAL TRANSMISSION   SUBSTATION 22                   CTS-138-CBL-001 

 RTU-1 Panel A3 House Tray FPL RTU             1      2PR 16 50  

 

 

 

 RTU-2  Panel A4         House Tray       FPL RTU     1      2PR     16           50 



CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH
LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA

CANAL TRANSMISSION
SUBSTATION

RELAY & METER
ONE LINE DIAGRAM

AutoCAD SHX Text
AB C

AutoCAD SHX Text
2000-5A MR 2000-5A TAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2000-5A MR 2000-5A TAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
B7002

AutoCAD SHX Text
B7003

AutoCAD SHX Text
B7001

AutoCAD SHX Text
B7004

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO MAIN/CANAL DISTRIBUTION SUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
AB C

AutoCAD SHX Text
2000-5A MR 2000-5A TAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2000-5A MR 2000-5A TAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2000-5A MR 2000-5A TAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2000-5A MR 2000-5A TAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2000-5A MR 2000-5A TAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2000-5A MR 2000-5A TAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2000-5A MR 2000-5A TAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2000-5A MR 2000-5A TAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2000-5A MR 2000-5A TAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2000-5A MR 2000-5A TAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
AB C

AutoCAD SHX Text
AB C

AutoCAD SHX Text
B%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
MN  =MAIN SUBSTATION CDS =CANAL DISTRIBUTION SUBSTATION OS  =OSBORNE SUBSTATION RCH =RANCH SUBSTATION RB  =RECLOSE BLOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
RCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MN

AutoCAD SHX Text
"a"

AutoCAD SHX Text
OSBORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
OS

AutoCAD SHX Text
RANCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
OS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFI B7002

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRIP BKR B7001 TC1 VIA TRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN-STOP CARRIER VIA BFT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOP CARRIER - RCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFI B7003

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRIP BKR B7002 TC1 VIA TRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOP CARRIER - OS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MN

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFI B7004

AutoCAD SHX Text
CDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OS

AutoCAD SHX Text
RCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFI B7001

AutoCAD SHX Text
CDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
RCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MN

AutoCAD SHX Text
RCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
RCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
OS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OS

AutoCAD SHX Text
RCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
RCH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
OS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRIP BKR B7002 TC2 VIA TRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFI B7002 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFI B7002

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRIP BKR B7001 TC2 VIA TRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
MN

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFI B7004

AutoCAD SHX Text
RCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFI B7001

AutoCAD SHX Text
108kV

AutoCAD SHX Text
C B A

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH 138kV BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OSBORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OS

AutoCAD SHX Text
C B A

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO CANAL DISTRIBUTION SUBSTATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
C B A

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH 138kV BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
C B A

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO FPL OSBORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
108KV

AutoCAD SHX Text
108KV

AutoCAD SHX Text
 108kV 

AutoCAD SHX Text
RANCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
OS

AutoCAD SHX Text
RB

AutoCAD SHX Text
RB

AutoCAD SHX Text
RB

AutoCAD SHX Text
"a"

AutoCAD SHX Text
"a"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRI

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRI

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRI

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRI

AutoCAD SHX Text
B7004

AutoCAD SHX Text
B7003

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRI

AutoCAD SHX Text
#X

AutoCAD SHX Text
B7004

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRI

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRI

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC

AutoCAD SHX Text
B7001

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRI

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC

AutoCAD SHX Text
T2

AutoCAD SHX Text
T1

AutoCAD SHX Text
FWB

AutoCAD SHX Text
T2

AutoCAD SHX Text
T1

AutoCAD SHX Text
T2

AutoCAD SHX Text
T1

AutoCAD SHX Text
FWB

AutoCAD SHX Text
T2

AutoCAD SHX Text
T1

AutoCAD SHX Text
MN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MN

AutoCAD SHX Text
RCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
RCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-421

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-311L

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-421

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-421

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-311L

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-421

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-311L

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-421

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-421

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-421

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-421

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-421

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-421

AutoCAD SHX Text
B 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-421

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-421

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-421

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-311L

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-311L

AutoCAD SHX Text
OS

AutoCAD SHX Text
RCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
RCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
OS

AutoCAD SHX Text
B 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-421

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-311L

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-421

AutoCAD SHX Text
B 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-421

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-487B

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-311L

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-487B

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFI

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-421

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-421

AutoCAD SHX Text
B 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFI

AutoCAD SHX Text
OS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-421

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-311L

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-421

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-421

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-311L

AutoCAD SHX Text
BF

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFI

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-421

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-421

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-421

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-487B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-421

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-311L

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-421

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-421

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-421

AutoCAD SHX Text
CDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-311L

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-311L

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-421

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DSGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKD

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DSGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CKD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRN

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text
CTS-138-1L-002-1.DWG

AutoCAD SHX Text
170415

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEI

AutoCAD SHX Text
01/26/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
CTS-138-1L-002-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
NONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS DRAWING WAS PREPARED BY POWER ENGINEERS, INC. FOR A SPECIFIC PROJECT, TAKING INTO CONSIDERATION THE SPECIFIC AND UNIQUE REQUIREMENTS OF THE PROJECT.  REUSE OF THIS DRAWING OR ANY INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS DRAWING FOR ANY PURPOSE IS PROHIBITED UNLESS WRITTEN PERMISSION FROM BOTH POWER AND POWER'S CLIENT IS GRANTED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEI

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEI

AutoCAD SHX Text
01/26/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
01/26/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEI

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEI

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/26/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEI

AutoCAD SHX Text
DM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
MN

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFI B7004

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-421

AutoCAD SHX Text
RCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFI B7001

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-421

AutoCAD SHX Text
CDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFI B7003 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-421

AutoCAD SHX Text
RANCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-311L

AutoCAD SHX Text
RCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-311L

AutoCAD SHX Text
OS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-311L

AutoCAD SHX Text
RANCH-STOP CARRIER VIA BFT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFI B7003

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-421

AutoCAD SHX Text
OS

AutoCAD SHX Text
B7003

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-311L

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFI

AutoCAD SHX Text
B7001

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
B7004

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFI

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-311L

AutoCAD SHX Text
B7004

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFI

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-311L

AutoCAD SHX Text
MN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-311L

AutoCAD SHX Text
B7001

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFI

AutoCAD SHX Text
CDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-311L

AutoCAD SHX Text
CDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFI

AutoCAD SHX Text
RB

AutoCAD SHX Text
"a"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-487B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MN

AutoCAD SHX Text
2000-5A MR 2000-5A TAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2000-5A MR 2000-5A TAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2000-5A MR 2000-5A TAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2000-5A MR 2000-5A TAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
RELAY FUNCTION BREAKER/ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MULTIFUNCTIONAL RELAY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO FPL RANCH VIA GREEN ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
(NOTE 1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
B7003

AutoCAD SHX Text
BF

AutoCAD SHX Text
(NOTE 1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(NOTE 1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
B7002

AutoCAD SHX Text
BF

AutoCAD SHX Text
(NOTE 1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1. FROM DISTRIBUTION STATION SEE DRAWING  CDS-26.4-1L-002

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRIP BKR B7002 TC2 VIA TRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRIP BKR B7002 TC1 VIA TRIP & BFT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRIP BKR B7004 TC1 VIA BFT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRIP BKR B7003 TC1 VIA TRIP & BFT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRIP BKR B7001 TC1 VIA BFT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRIP BKR B7003 TC2 VIA TRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRIP BKR B7003 TC1 VIA TRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
OSBORNE-STOP CARRIER VIA BFT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRIP BKR B7004 TC1 VIA TRIP & BFT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRIP BKR B7002 TC1 VIA BFT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-421

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRIP BKR B7004 TC1 VIA TRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CDS-STOP CARRIER VIA BFT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRIP BKR B7001 TC1 VIA TRIP & BFT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRIP BKR B7003 TC1 VIA BFT

AutoCAD SHX Text
AB C

AutoCAD SHX Text
BF B7004

AutoCAD SHX Text
BF B7002

AutoCAD SHX Text
BF B7001

AutoCAD SHX Text
BF B7003

AutoCAD SHX Text
AB C

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFI B7002

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFI B7002

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFI B7002

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFI B7001

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFI B7001

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRIP BKR B7003 TC2 VIA TRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRIP BKR B7004 TC2 VIA TRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRIP BKR B7001 TC2 VIA TRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRIP BKR B7004 TC2 VIA TRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEL-311L

AutoCAD SHX Text
MULTIFUNCTIONAL RELAY LINE



 
 
 
 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
7 NORTH DIXIE HIGHWAY 

LAKE WORTH BEACH, FL 33460 

 

 
 

 
Posted: 9/1/2022 

 
NOTICE OF INTENT TO AWARD 

         
  
 
TO:  All Interested Parties 
 
FROM: Valentina Sustaita, Assistant Finance Director - Purchasing 
 
DATE:  September 1, 2022 
 
REF:     IFB #22-110 Canal Transmission Substation Construction   
             
  
 
SUBJECT: Notice of Intent to Award 
 
 
Based on the results and the thorough review of the proposals submitted in response to the above-
referenced solicitation, the City of Lake Worth Beach has determined that Energy Erectors, Inc is 
of the best value to the City and is being recommended for award of this solicitation. The effective 
date of this posting is September 1, 2022. 
 
The City will be advising you of the required documents needed so that contract documents can be 
completed and prepared for the Commission approval.  
 
If you have any additional questions, feel free to contact me via email, at 
purchasing1@lakeworthbeachfl.gov. If you are unable to contact me via email, please call at (561) 
586-1783.   
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment: IFB #22-110 Canal Transmission Substation Construction Bid Tab 

mailto:purchasing1@lakeworthbeachfl.gov









































































































































































































	Top
	A.	0824 AWS minutes
	DRAFT 082422 AWS minutes

	B.	0825 SM minutes
	DRAFT 082522 SM minutes

	C.	0829 BWS5 minutes
	DRAFT 082922 BWS5 minutes

	D.	0906 RM minutes
	DRAFT 090622 RM minutes

	A.	Proclamation declaring September 17-23, 2022 as Constitution Week
	Constitution Week Proclamation

	B.	Proclamation declaring September 21, 2022 as Alzheimer's Awareness Day
	Alzheimer's Awareness Day Proclamation

	C.	Third Amendment – Pura Vida Lease
	Kilwins Lease Staff Report
	Pura Vida Treats 3rd Amendment

	D.	Fourth Amendment to Retail Lease with RVRA, LLC
	Mamma Mia's Lease Staff Report
	Fourth Amendment

	E.	Facility Construction Agreement with Florida Power & Light for New Interconnection Project
	Florida Power & Light Staff Report
	Agreement

	A.	Ordinance No. 2022-16 – Second Reading - Establishing a Business Advisory Board
	Business Advisory Board Staff Report
	Ordinance 2022-16
	2022-16 - redlined

	B.	Ordinance No. 2022-18 – Second Reading - Repealing panhandling ordinances
	Repeal of Panhandling Ordinance Staff Report
	Ordinance 2022-18

	C.	Ordinance No. 2022-15 – First Reading - Lake Worth Station
	Lake Worth Station Staff Report
	Ordinance 2022-15
	PZB Staff Report
	Attachment 1 - Applicant's Project Narrative
	Attachment 2 -  Site Plan
	Attachment 3 - Architectural Plans
	Attachment 4  - Survey &  Civil Plans
	Attachment 5 - Landscape & Photometric Plans
	Attachment 6 - Applicant's Supporting Documentation

	A.	Ordinance No. 2022-19 – First Reading - banning smoking and vaping at city parks and the beach
	Smoking Ban Staff Report
	Ordinance 2022-19

	B.	Update and discussion regarding the housing crisis
	City Attorney Letter -  Housing Crisis Update
	FL Statutes- Section 166.043
	Orange County Atty Memo
	Orange County Ordinance
	Orange County Complaint (without attachments)

	C.	Ordinance No. 2022-12 – First Reading - providing for an Affordable/Workforce Housing Program
	Affordable Housing Staff Report
	Ordinance 2022-12
	PZBHRPB Staff Report

	D.	Ordinance No. 2022-13 – First Reading - providing for Micro-Unit Housing
	Micro Unit Staff Report
	Ordinance 2022-13
	PZBHRPB Staff Report

	E.	Ordinance No. 2022-14 – First Reading - providing standards for buildings
	Qualitative Standards Staff Report
	Ordinance 2022-14
	PZBHRPB Staff Report

	A.	Property and Insurances Services Renewals with Brown & Brown Inc. and City insurance coverage for FY2022-2023.
	Insurance Renewal Staff Report
	CLWB 10-1 Renewal Proposal 22-23

	B.	Purchase Orders to Ace Pole Co. and Koppers Utility & Industrial Products for delivery of wood utility poles
	Utility Poles Staff Report
	FMPA Award Memo

	C.	Second Amendment to Agreement with Gresco Utility Supply, Inc. for the purchase and delivery of distribution transformers
	Gresco Distribution Transformer Staff Report
	2nd Amendment

	D.	Purchase Order with G&W Electric for Viper Recloser External CT Kit
	G&W Staff Report
	G&W Quote
	G&W  Sole Source Letter

	E.	Agreement with Energy Erectors, Inc. for the construction of the Canal Distribution Substation
	Canal Transmission Substation Staff Report
	Bid Tab
	Canal Transmission Substation Construction Contract

	Bottom

